
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's 
Park Committee 

 
Date: MONDAY, 25 NOVEMBER 2013 

Time: 10.00am 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Jeremy Simons (Chairman) 

Virginia Rounding (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Michael Welbank 
Deputy John Barker 
Dennis Cotgrove 
Karina Dostalova 
Revd Dr Martin Dudley 
Clare James 
Professor John Lumley 
Barbara Newman 
Deputy John Owen-Ward 
Tom Sleigh 
Alderman Ian Luder (Ex-Officio Member) 
Deputy Alex Deane (Ex-Officio Member) 
Councillor Melvin Cohen 
Martyn Foster 
Councillor Sally Gimson 
Tony Ghilchik 
Charlotte Kemp 
Maija Roberts  

 
 
 
Enquiries: Alistair MacLellan 

alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 23 September 

2013.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 
 a) Draft Minutes of the Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee meeting dated 

12 November 2013  For Information (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

Hampstead Heath 
 
4. SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE 
 The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath to be heard. 

 
 

 For Information 
5. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 25 - 28) 

 
6. HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT - PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT AND 

NON-STATUTORY CONSULTATION 
 Report of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath.  

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 29 - 268) 

 
Highgate Wood and Queen's Park 

 
7. SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE 
 Superintendent of Hampstead Heath to be heard. 

 
 For Decision 

 
8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 

 
 



3 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
 

 For Decision 
11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2013. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 269 - 270) 

 
12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

THAT THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HAMPSTEAD HEATH, HIGHGATE WOOD AND QUEEN'S PARK COMMITTEE 
Monday, 23 September 2013 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen's Park 
Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 

23 September 2013 at 1.45 pm 
 
Present 
 
Members: 
Jeremy Simons (Chairman) 
Virginia Rounding (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Michael Welbank 
Deputy John Barker 
Dennis Cotgrove 
Karina Dostalova 
Revd Dr Martin Dudley 
Clare James 
Professor John Lumley 
Barbara Newman 
Deputy John Owen-Ward 
Alderman Ian Luder (Ex-Officio Member) 
Councillor Melvin Cohen 
Martyn Foster 
Tony Ghilchik 
Charlotte Kemp 
Maija Roberts 
 

 
Officers: 
Alistair MacLellan - Committee and Member Services 

Officer 
Simon Lee - Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, 

Queen's Park & Highgate Wood 
Alison Elam - Group Accountant, Chamberlain's 

Department 
Sue Ireland - Director of Open Spaces 

Jennifer Allott - Departmental Business Manager, 
Open Spaces Department 

Edward Wood - Comptroller and City Solicitor's 
Department 

Paul Monaghan - Assistant Director Engineering 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Alderman Robert Hall and Tom Sleigh.  
 
Before the meeting proceeded further, the Chairman took the opportunity to 
note the considerable contribution made by Alderman Bob Hall to the work of 
the Open Spaces Committees over many years, including his several 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 3

Page 1



 

 

chairmanships. He thanked Alderman Hall for his wise counsels and guidance 
and wished him well in the future. He undertook to convey the thanks and good 
wishes of the Management Committee to Alderman Hall.  
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. APPOINTMENT TO KEATS HOUSE CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
The Committee proceeded to appoint one of its members to the Keats House 
Consultative Committee for the year 2013/14. Mrs Barbara Newman, being the 
only member expressing her willingness to serve, was duly appointed to the 
Committee for the ensuing year.  
 

4. MINUTES  
RESOLVED: that the minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2013 were 
approved as a correct record subject to Paul Monaghan being listed as in 
attendance, and ‘John Lyons’ being corrected to ‘Joe Lyons’ in the first bullet 
point on page nine.  
 
Matters Arising 
Oak Processionary Moth (OPM) 
The Director of Open Spaces informed the Committee that latest data indicated 
that OPM was apparently moving in a westerly direction towards Heathrow, 
rather than north easterly as originally supposed. She noted that this evidently 
affected the City of London’s Burnham Beeches site and that the situation 
would be monitored accordingly.  
 
Dogs 
In response to a question from a member, the Superintendent of Hampstead 
Heath confirmed that a forthcoming report on dogs would address the general 
issue of dogs and dog users on the Heath, based on the experience of 
Burnham Beeches.  
 
All-Member Visit to Hampstead Heath 
In response to a query from the Deputy Chairman, the Director of Open Spaces 
agreed that all members of the Court of Common Council, plus co-opted 
members of the Open Spaces Committees, would be invited on a site visit to 
Hampstead Heath to allow them to see at first-hand issues involved in the 
Ponds Project.  
 
4.1 Amendment to the Minutes of the Meeting dated 9 May 2013  
 
RESOLVED: that the proposed revised wording for the item ‘Hampstead Heath 
Ponds Project – Assessment of the Design Flood’ in the minutes of the meeting 
dated 9 May 2013 be agreed, subject to the following amendments: a 
paragraph break in the second paragraph between ‘responsible’ and 
‘Assessments’; Heath ‘&’ Hampstead Society in the fourth paragraph; and 
‘dams’ for ‘damns’ in the fourth paragraph.  
 

Page 2



 

 

Hampstead Heath 
 

5. SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE  
The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath provided the Committee with a verbal 
update on the following issues: 
 
Fatality 
The Superintendent outlined the circumstances surrounding the recent fatality 
in the Hampstead Heath Ladies’ Pond, highlighting that normal lifeguarding 
routines had been followed throughout the course of the day in question. He 
noted that upon the realisation that evening that the lady in question was 
missing, a full land and air search was mounted by the Metropolitan Police 
Service, leading to her discovery by police divers the following morning. He 
added that this was the first fatality at the Ladies’ Pond in living memory and 
the first fatality involving swimming facilities on the Heath since an incident at 
the Lido in 1975. He emphasised that an inquest had been opened and 
subsequently adjourned, and that a report would be prepared for the 
Committee once the inquest was concluded. He also noted that a range of 
stakeholders were involved at the present time, including the Metropolitan 
Police and the Health and Safety Executive (HSE), as well as internal teams 
from the Corporation of London. He made clear that the Corporation’s protocols 
and procedures on the various swimming facilities on the Heath had been 
reviewed by an external health and safety consultant. He concluded by stating 
that it was clear that what had occurred had affected the staff involved deeply, 
and evidently the family in particular.   
 
The Deputy Chairman expressed thanks on behalf of the Committee for the 
efforts of staff present on the Heath at the time of the incident, acknowledging 
their professionalism during difficult and tragic circumstances.  
 
Garden House 
The Superintendent noted that a planning hearing was scheduled later that 
week for the Garden House application, and that he had instructed the 
Corporation’s planning consultant to attend to make the necessary 
representation.  
 
The Water House 
The Superintendent noted a further planning application for The Water House, 
a site opposite the entrance to the Ladies’ Pond. He highlighted the large 
amount of disruption proposed in the Construction Management Plan and his 
concerns that the lane through which heavy vehicles planned to access the site 
was unsuitable for such use. Furthermore, he had concerns over the effect of 
large movements of traffic on trees along the lane in question.  
 
Events 
The Superintendent noted the staging of the Duathlon on the Heath earlier in 
September, with four waves of competitors in total, with a winning time of c. 29 
minutes.  
 

Page 3



 

 

He went on to note issues over hot water supply to the changing rooms at the 
Athletics Track, which had seen him working with the City Surveyor’s 
Department to identify potential solutions, which may include the use of 
temporary facilities. He informed the Committee that he would provide more 
information at the next meeting of the Committee.  
 
He reported that the Give It A Go legacy event earlier that month had suffered 
slightly due to inclement weather, and that a circus was currently present on the 
Heath. He concluded by noting the forthcoming Conker Championships on 13 
October and the Greater London Cross-Country Championships on 16 
November.  
 

6. HAMPSTEAD HEATH TRUSTEES' ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013  
The Group Accountant introduced a report of the Chamberlain on the 
Hampstead Heath Trustees’ Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013. 
She noted that the overall format was the way in which the report was 
submitted to the Charity Commission, and that the sums involved covered both 
the Hampstead Heath operations budget and the Hampstead Heath Trust 
Fund.  
 
A member welcomed the format of the report, noting that it was readily 
accessible and understandable. Lastly and in response to a query from another 
member of the Committee, the Superintendent confirmed that the Kenwood 
Depot referred to in the second bullet point on page 19 of the agenda was a 
new resource on the site previously known as the eco-garden.  
 
RECEIVED 
 

7. PROGRESS REPORT ON CONSTRUCTION OF A STUMPERY IN THE 
WOODLAND WALK WAY - GOLDERS HILL PARK  
The Superintendent introduced a report on the introduction of a stumpery into 
Golders Hill Park, noting that the transformation of the site was in progress with 
stumps having been installed and the introduction of ferns to follow shortly. He 
argued that this area, with its forthcoming educational value, of the Park now 
represented a hub of voluntary activity when considered in conjunction with the 
neighbouring RSPB Glassroom.  
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• the Committee note the successful construction of the stumpery as an 
important new feature in Golders Hill Park; 

 

• the Committee acknowledges the close working relationships developed 
between Open Spaces Department staff and inspiration and knowledge 
gained from a visit to Highgrove House, Gloucestershire.  
 

8. HAMPSTEAD HEATH'S HEDGES AND THEIR MANAGEMENT  
The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath introduced a report on Hampstead 
Heath’s hedges and their management, noting the survey work undertaken on 

Page 4



 

 

the Heath during 2012 and the subsequent production of a ten-year 
management plan to protect and promote the biodiversity and landscape 
importance of the Heath’s hedges.  
 
Members welcomed the report, with one noting the fundamental importance of 
management plans in guaranteeing the character of the Heath. He recorded his 
appreciation therefore of what he described as outstanding efforts of the 
Hampstead Heath Ecologist.  
 
The Chairman concurred and expressed thanks on behalf of the whole 
Committee for the work undertaken by the Hampstead Heath Ecologist.  
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• Members note the report and approve the overall management 
programme, subject to the views of the Hampstead Heath Consultative 
Committee being received.  

 
 

9. UPDATE ON THE HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT  
The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath introduced a report on the 
Hampstead Heath Ponds Project, emphasising the fact that this set out the 
iterative process of the project to date. He referenced the robust debate that 
had taken place at a recent meeting of the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group 
workshop before informing the Committee that the Preferred Option Report 
would be prepared for their consideration at the next meeting of the Committee 
in November.  
 
In terms of procurement for the project, the Superintendent stated that he felt it 
had been vital to involve contractors in the early stages of the project to allow 
the Corporation to prepare an appropriate planning application to a mid-2014 
deadline. He noted that potential contractors were due to submit their final 
submissions shortly, and had benefited greatly from the opportunity to visit and 
discuss the project with officers.  
 
9.1 Hampstead Heath Ponds Project - Quantitative Risk Assessment  
 
The Superintendent introduced the Quantitative Risk Assessment, noting that it 
was an unusual document to be produced at this stage as it was not associated 
with the overall design process and had no statutory basis, but that the City 
Corporation had agreed, in the spirit of cooperation, to produce this interim 
document.  
 
He noted also that many of the proposed surveys, terrestrial and aquatic, had 
been completed and that in particular there had been no evidence found of 
Great Crested Newts. He concluded by recognising that there remained, as 
ever, the possibility that external parties may seek a judicial review of the 
Corporation’s proposals for the Ponds Project.  
 

Page 5



 

 

In response to a question from a member, the Principal Legal Assistant 
confirmed that a meeting had taken place between the Heath & Hampstead 
Society, their QC, and City of London Officers and their QC on 19 September 
2013. He described it as a productive meeting but that the differing positions 
between the Heath & Hampstead Society and the City of London Corporation 
were still apparent.  
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• Members approve the approach being undertaken to proceed with the 
project at ‘deliberate speed’.   

 

• Members receive the formal Quantitative Risk Assessment and 
accompanying Position Statement. 

 
10. REPORT ON MAINTENANCE WORKS AND FUTURE PROPOSALS AT THE 

HILL GARDEN & PERGOLA  
The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath introduced a report on maintenance 
works and future proposals at the Hill Garden and Pergola, noting that it was a 
good example of the City of London Corporation investing in the maintenance 
of its existing assets. He stated that, notwithstanding the work carried out, 
some areas of the Pergola required further investment. For example, timbers 
along the paviour path were decayed and held in place with braces, 
necessitating the paviour path to be closed in the event of 15mph+ winds, and 
that part of the pergola structure was currently fenced off and closed due to 
subsidence. 
 
He went on to note that the Open Spaces Departmental Business Manager had 
been approached by the Superintendent Registrar of Camden who was very 
keen to investigate the possibility of the use of the Hill Garden and Pergola as a 
wedding venue. The Superintendent told Committee members that the use of 
the area as such a venue, in income generation terms, would require some 
oversight by the Committee at a future date in the event of a successful 
application being made. 
 
In response to a question from a member, the Superintendent confirmed that 
Camden Council was happy for the lavatories at Golders Hill Park to serve as 
the necessary lavatory facilities required at wedding and civil ceremony venues.  
 
In response to the warning from the Superintendent of the need for continued 
investment in the maintenance of the Hill Garden and Pergola, a member 
suggested that contact be made with Unilever to gauge their willingness to 
become involved in any future maintenance works on the garden and pergola, 
given the company’s presence in the City and that it is the successor to Lever 
Brothers, established by Lord Leverhulme, original owner of the Hill Garden.  
 
A member concurred with this suggestion, noting that it was important such an 
approach be pursued proactively and that proper consideration be given to how 
members of the Committee could usefully assist in such an approach, rather 
than expecting the Superintendent and his staff to be experts on fundraising.    

Page 6



 

 

 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• The ongoing repair and maintenance works undertaken in the Pergola 
during the last ten years be noted; 

 

• The approach to use the Hill Garden and Pergola for marriage and civil 
ceremonies be endorsed, recognising that the details of such an 
approach will form the basis of a separate report to a future meeting of 
the Committee, once the views of the Hampstead Heath Consultative 
Committee have been received.    

 
11. REVIEW OF AFFORDABLE ART FAIR ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH IN JUNE 

2013 AND PROPOSALS FOR 2014 AND BEYOND  
The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath introduced a report on the Affordable 
Art Fair held on the Heath in June 2013. He noted the relative success of the 
event, which had generated £3million in art sales but attracted fewer visitors 
than had been anticipated, which was probably due to the fact that the event 
was held only seven months after the previous Art Fair.  
 
The Superintendent also outlined proposals for an associated event in 2014, 
called GROW London. This event would serve as a one-stop shop for garden 
experts, enthusiasts and the interested public and promote themes of 
sustainability, ecology and community planting projects. He noted that the 
proposal envisaged the GROW London event being intrinsically linked with the 
Heath, much in the same way that the Affordable Art Fair concept is associated 
with its original venue in Battersea. He concluded by saying that he had 
received messages of support from the Heath & Hampstead Society, and that 
the projected income from the two events would prove welcome over the next 
few years.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Superintendent for the report and noted that the 
existing Affordable Art Fair also raised sums for charity as well as providing 
profit for the organisers and exhibitors.  
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• The Committee note the relative success of the 2013 Affordable Art Fair 
in welcoming 16,500 adult visitors to the Heath and raising additional 
income from hire fees for the site; 

 

• The Committee approve the Affordable Art Fair continuing to be held in 
June and agree to its licence being granted for a further three years;  

 

• The Committee approve the hosting of a second event following the 
affordable art fair on a three year licence and note the plans that are 
underway with regards to the annual GROW London event.  

 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

 
12. GREEN FLAG AWARDS 2013  

The Open Spaces Business Manager introduced a report on the Green Flag 
Awards 2013, noting that all of the City of London Corporation’s Open Spaces 
had retained their Green Flag status and, of these sites, nine were also 
awarded Green Heritage Awards.  
 
In response to a question from a member, the Business Manager confirmed 
that the City of London’s submission to London in Bloom had recently received 
a Gold Award. 
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• The success of the City of London Open Spaces in the Green Flag and 
London in Bloom Awards be noted and reported to the Court of Common 
Council on 24 October 2013. 

 

• That the members of staff and volunteers at all the Open Spaces be 
congratulated on their contribution to the City of London’s success in the 
awards.  

 
Highgate Wood & Queen's Park 

 
13. SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE  

The Superintendent of Hampstead Heath provided the Committee with an 
update on the following issues: 
 
Queen’s Park Events 
He noted that the recent Film Nights in Queen’s Park had gone well, with 
around 500 persons attending each event. He reported that Queen’s Park Day 
on 15 September had attracted several thousand visitors despite inclement 
weather.  
 
Highgate Wood Events  
The Superintendent reported that the Highgate Wood Heritage Festival on 1 
September had been similarly well attended, in comparison to the Queen’s 
Park Day.  
 
Photovoltaic Cells 
The Superintendent concluded his update by noting that the installation of 
photovoltaic cells had been completed on the workshop in the Wood and that 
the cells were now contributing to both the National Grid as well as the 
operational needs of staff and equipment in Highgate Wood.  
 
Members of the Committee thanked the Superintendent for his update and 
suggested that future events such as Queen’s Park Day be put into the 
Members’ Pocket Book and onto Modern.Gov for information. 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

14. HIGHGATE WOOD AND QUEEN'S PARK KILBURN TRUSTEES' ANNUAL 
REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2013  
The Group Accountant introduced the Annual Report and Financial Statements 
of the Trustees of Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park Kilburn, noting that they 
were in the format required by the Charity Commission. There were no 
questions.  
 
RECEIVED 
 
 

15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
Committee Meeting November 2013 
The Chairman informed the Committee that its next meeting would be held on 
25 November 2013 and that this date replaced any communicated to them 
previously. He apologised for the rescheduling, noting that it was necessary to 
allow for the requisite engagement on the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project. 
The Town Clerk committed to providing an update on future dates of both the 
Management and Consultative Committees to their respective memberships.  
 
Queen’s Park Day September 2013 
A member placed on record her thanks to the Queen’s Park Manager and his 
team for the work that they put into the recent Queen’s Park Day, noting that 
she had only had positive feedback from residents following the event.  
 
London Councils Summit November 2013 
In response to a suggestion from a member, the Director of Open Spaces 
committed to investigating the feasibility of the Open Spaces Department 
exhibiting its recent work at the forthcoming London Councils Summit in 
Guildhall on 16 November.  
 

17. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
MOTION: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
Items 18-22   Paragraph(s) 3 
 
AGREED 
 

18. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED: that the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2013 
be agreed as an accurate record.  
 

Page 9



 

 

19. FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS UNDERPINNING AFFORDABLE ART FAIR 
AND PROPOSED GROW LONDON EVENTS 2014-16  
The Committee considered a report on the financial arrangements underpinning 
the proposed Affordable Art Fair and GROW London events 2014-16.  
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 

• The Committee note the breakdown of the financial costs that support 
the management of the Affordable Art Fair and proposed GROW London 
event; 

 

• The Committee approve the financial basis for agreeing a licence with 
the Affordable Art Fair/GROW London for 2014-16, with an annual 
review of the financial arrangements.  

 
20. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY OR DELEGATED AUTHORITY  

The Chairman introduced a report of the Town Clerk of the delegated and 
urgent decisions taken since the last meeting of the Committee.  
 
RECEIVED  
 

21. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

22. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was no other business.  
 

 
The meeting ended at 2.52 pm 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
Contact Officer: Alistair MacLellan 
alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 10



 

 

HAMPSTEAD HEATH CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, 12 November 2013  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee held at 

Education Centre, Parliament Hill Fields, Hampstead Heath, NW5 1QR on Tuesday, 
12 November 2013 at 7.00 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Jeremy Simons (Chairman) 
Virginia Rounding (Deputy Chairman) 
Xohan Duran (Representative of People with Disabilities) 
Colin Gregory (Hampstead Garden Suburb Residents' Association) 
Michael Hammerson (Highgate Society) 
Ian Harrison (Vale of Health Society) 
John Hunt (South End Green Association) 
Susan Nettleton (Heath Hands) 
Mary Port (Dartmouth Park Conservation Area Advisory Committee) 
Ellin Stein (Mansfield Conservation Area Advisory Committee/Neighbourhood Association) 

Richard Sumray (London Council for Sport and Recreation) 
Simon Taylor (Hampstead Rugby Club) 
Jeremy Wright (Heath & Hampstead Society) 
 

 
Officers: 
Alistair MacLellan 
Esther Sumner 
Sue Ireland 
Simon Lee 

- Town Clerk’s Department 
- Town Clerk’s Department 
- Director of Open Spaces 
- Superintendent of Hampstead Heath, 

Queen's Park & Highgate Wood 
Declan Gallagher - Operational Service Manager 

Richard Gentry 
 
David Bentley 

- Constabulary and Queen’s Park 
Manager  

- Hampstead Heath Information and 
Communication Officer 

Paul Monaghan - Assistant Director Engineering 

Meg Game - Hampstead Heath Ecologist 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Helen Payne, Susan Rose, Steve Ripley and 
John Weston. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 11



 

 

3. MINUTES  
The minutes of the meeting dated Monday 8 July 2013 were approved as a 
correct record subject to the following amendments: 
 
Members Present 
Committee members to have the name of the group they are representing 
given in the list of attendees. 
 
Item 1 Apologies 
Ian Harrison noted that he had submitted his apologies for the 8 July meeting. 
 
Item 4 Reports of the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath 
‘(Copies attached)’ to be deleted.  
 
Item 4.3 Progress Report on Enhancement of Landscaping Works to Bull 
Path and Surrounding Areas 
‘Three tupes of buttercup’ to be amended to ‘Three types@’ 
 
Matters Arising 
Dog Walking 
The Chairman noted that the report on commercial dog walking on the Heath, 
that had been intended for the present meeting, would now be submitted to the 
committee meeting in January 2014.  
 
Planning 
The Chairman noted that an update on planning decisions would form part of 
the Superintendent’s update in the current meeting.  
 
Affordable Art Fair 
In response to a question from Ian Harrison the Superintendent confirmed that 
the Affordable Art Fair proposal for a ‘Grow London’ event had been submitted 
to, and approved by, the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park 
Committee in September 2013. 
 
London Borough of Camden Flood Warning Letter 
The Superintendent apologised that he had not circulated a letter from the 
London Borough of Camden detailing information to local residents on the risks 
associated with flooding, as had been promised at the July meeting. He 
undertook to circulate the letter as promised, and took the opportunity to update 
the committee that Camden would be issuing maps of at-risk areas of surface 
water flooding in early December 2013. The information provided by Camden 
would similarly be circulated to the committee.  
 
Cycle Stands 
In response to a query from Mary Port over the installation of cycle stands, the 
Superintendent noted that this had been discussed at the recent committee 
walk on 2 November, and that he would update her on the issue outside of the 
meeting.  
 

Page 12



 

 

3.1 Draft Minutes of the Hampstead Heath Sports Advisory Forum 
Meeting dated 23 September 2013  

 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Richard Sumray made some comments on 
the draft minutes of the recent Sports Advisory Forum meeting.  
 
Places, People and Play 
Mr Sumray drew the committee’s attention to the issue of the funding position 
that was affecting refurbishment works on the athletics track and the cricket 
pavilion upgrade. He noted that the Ponds Project was resulting in a lack of 
staff resources, impacting on the ability to seek external funding for such works.  
 
British Military Fitness (BMF) 
Mr Sumray noted that BMF was keen to engage with wider activities on the 
Heath, such as the staging of classes at a recent ‘Give it a Go’ event. He 
argued that such willingness should be encouraged and put to good effect.  
 
Charging Policy – Athletics and Cricket 
Mr Sumray noted that the principles behind the planned charging policy were 
sound, but that he would be meeting with the Superintendent to discuss the 
best way to make progress.  
 
Bowls and Croquet – New Lease 
Mr Sumray noted that he would be meeting with the Superintendent shortly to 
discuss the new lease of the Parliament Hill Bowling Green. The Chairman 
noted that this would take place around 26/27 November. 
 
Changing Facilities – Athletics Track 
Mr Sumray stated that the lack of showers at the changing facilities currently on 
offer at the Parliament Hill athletics track was unacceptable. The 
Superintendent agreed, and noted the Director had been liaising with the 
Chamberlain’s and City Surveyor’s Departments to identify and implement a 
long term solution. In the meantime he informed the committee that portable 
showers would be arriving later in the week, on 17 November.  
 
The Director of Open Spaces noted that she had been given an assurance from 
the Chamberlain that funding for a longer term solution had been identified and 
at present the timetable was for these funds to be approved in January 2014 
and for works to commence in April/May 2014. There remained a possibility 
that the timetable for works could be brought forward but nevertheless she 
noted that greater clarity over dates was needed before the committee was 
briefed further. She confirmed that the short term solution of temporary showers 
would be kept in place until the works had been carried out.  
 
In response to an observation from Mr Sumray that the problem over the delay 
in the procurement and installation of portable showers as a temporary solution 
may be due to centralised decision-making within the City of London 
Corporation, the Director of Open Spaces replied that new Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) were being developed which would focus on the completion 

Page 13



 

 

dates of projects, rather than their start-dates, in order to more accurately 
measure effective performance.  
 

4. SUPERINTENDENT'S UPDATE  
The committee agreed to amend the order of business so that the 
Superintendent’s Update would be considered ahead of the Reports of the 
Superintendent.  
 
RESOLVED: that the Superintendent’s Update be moved from Item 5 on the 
published agenda to Item 4; and that Reports of the Superintendent be moved 
from Item 4 to Item 5.  
 
St Jude’s Day Storm 
The Superintendent updated the committee on the impact of the St Jude’s Day 
storm on 28 October. He noted that it had reached the Heath around 0630 and 
was largely over by 0715, and that the Sandy Heath area had been the worst 
affected, with some paths still closed as a result. Overall around 50 trees had 
been snapped or brought down on the Heath, with a further 50-60 trees 
suffering damage to their crowns. Nevertheless a lot of veteran trees on the 
Heath had been spared damage, thanks to recent works.  
  
The Superintendent went on to note that Highgate Wood had been particularly 
affected, potentially due to it being located on higher ground compared to the 
Heath, with 100 trees damaged. He informed the committee that staff resources 
would be diverted from the Heath to Highgate Wood to deal with the damage. 
He noted that staff had been exemplary in their response to the storm, coming 
in early on the day and working hard to deal with the storm’s impact. He 
concluded by saying that – with the fatality at Kew a year ago arising from a 
snapped branch – Highgate Wood with its high proportion of damaged trees 
had remained closed to the public for a few days after the storm whilst 
assessment and remedial works were carried out. 
 
National Cross-Country Championships  
The Superintendent informed the committee that the National Cross-Country 
Championships would be returning to the Heath in 2015, and that the decision 
to do so was secured by the Leisure and Events Manager.   
 
Duathlon 
The Superintendent noted that the Duathlon held on the Heath in September 
2013 had raised over £1,169 for the Lord Mayor’s Appeal.  
 
Planning – Garden House 
The Superintendent noted that the appeal to the Planning Inspectorate over the 
Garden House planning decision had been dismissed. At the invitation of the 
Superintendent, Ian Harrison commented further on the failure of the appeal, 
noting that it had not been as robust as similar appeals submitted to the 
Planning Inspector in the past, particularly a recent appeal that had focused on 
a point of law. He reiterated concerns that the application concerning the 
Garden House would see the road leading into the Vale of Health regularly 
obstructed by construction traffic, and that Vale of Health residents had little 

Page 14



 

 

faith in the London Borough of Camden’s ability to enforce the efficient 
movement of traffic in the area during the construction period. He concluded by 
expressing appreciation on behalf of the Vale of Health Society for the City of 
London Corporation’s support in opposing the Garden House application.  
 
 
Planning – The Water House 
The Superintendent updating the committee noted there was no indication of 
the Camden planning officer’s view regarding the revised application for The 
Water House. The application if approved would see heavy use of Millfield Lane 
during construction works that from the Corporation’s perspective is completely 
inappropriate.  
 
Planning – Athlone House 
The Superintendent noted that a planning application had been received by the 
London Borough of Camden but not yet formally logged.  
 
Planning – Swain’s Lane 
In response to a query from Mary Port, the Superintendent indicated that he 
was aware of the planning proposal in question and that he would be 
considering its potential impact shortly.  
 
Sports 
The Superintendent concluded his update by noting that the London Youth 
Games and the Cross-Country Championships were upcoming on the Heath.  
 
 

5. REPORTS OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF HAMPSTEAD HEATH  
 
5.1 Progress Report on Construction of a Stumpery in the woodland 

walk way - Golders Hill Park  
 
The Operational Manager updated the committee on the creation of a stumpery 
within Golders Hill Park, phase one of which had now been completed. He 
noted that overall the project, that had seen cooperation between Hampstead 
Heath and Epping Forest staff, had been a success and that a great deal of 
appreciation for the stumpery had been expressed by members of the public. In 
response to a question from Colin Gregory, the Operational Manager confirmed 
that further stumps would be installed as part of a later project phase. 
 
John Hunt expressed his congratulations on the project. He said that it might 
arguably rivalled its counterpart at Highgrove and that the stream was 
particularly notable. The Superintendent agreed and updated the committee on 
the intention to install a pump to allow the stream to flow.  
 
Jeremy Wright informed the committee that the Heath Sub Committee of the 
Heath and Hampstead Society considered the stumpery to be brilliant.  
 

Page 15



 

 

The Operational Manager noted that the project had been very much led by 
staff within Golders Hill Park. The committee decided to place on record their 
appreciation to Sean Dillon and Ciaran O’Keeffe, the two staff in question.  
 
5.2 Report on maintenance works and future proposals at the Hill 

Garden & Pergola  
 
The Operational Manager introduced the report on maintenance works and 
future proposals at the Hill Garden and Pergola. He highlighted that a decade 
of repair works had been carried out in cooperation with the City Surveyor’s 
Department and that the photographs appended to the report gave a good 
impression of what had been achieved. The repair works had also made it 
possible to give serious consideration to the use of the Pergola as a venue for 
marriages and civil ceremonies.  
 
The Superintendent provided the committee with further background on the use 
of the Pergola for marriages and civil ceremonies. He noted that this had been 
an aspiration in the management plan but had been a relatively low priority. 
Nevertheless the City of London had been proactively approached by the 
Superintendent Registrar for Camden who was very supportive of the use of 
the Pergola for ceremonies. The Superintendent Registrar had confirmed that 
requirements for toilet facilities and an interview room could be met using 
adjacent facilities such as the café in Golders Hill Park.  
 
In light of the strong support from Camden for an application to be submitted, 
the Superintendent noted that the question was now to decide on the 
appropriate balance between the number of ceremonies conducted, in light of 
the potential for revenue, versus the wish to ensure the Pergola remained open 
to the public. He informed the committee that this would be among a range of 
issues considered in a report that would go to the January 2014 meeting of the 
committee. He concluded by noting that the Hampstead Heath Business 
Manager had been on a fact-finding visit to Hylands Park Chelmsford to 
observe best practice in conducting ceremonies in public open space, and he 
further underlined the potential for much needed revenue arising from the use 
of the venue for ceremonies.  
 
In response to a question from Colin Gregory, the Superintendent clarified the 
likely impact of ceremonies on public access. He noted that ceremonies would 
be restricted to a particular area of the Pergola and that the wider site would 
remain open to the public. Furthermore, only ceremonies rather than receptions 
would be permitted, which would dispense with the need to provide large 
temporary structures like marquees, and that any smaller structures associated 
with the ceremonies would be constructed and dismantled within two hours. He 
took the opportunity also to comment on the likely frequency of ceremonies, 
noting that the Business Manager’s research indicated that two weekly 
ceremonies and two weekends of ceremonies per month was likely to be the 
maximum.  
 
In response to remarks from Ian Harrison that a similar proposal put forward by 
English Heritage for Kenwood House had been poorly thought through and 

Page 16



 

 

communicated, with little information on costs and projected revenue and 
predicted impact on public access provided, the Superintendent assured the 
committee that these issues would be addressed in the January 2014 report. 
He noted that, judging from the market, people were prepared to pay for the 
uniqueness of location for ceremonies. He highlighted the example of the high 
level walkway at Tower Bridge at which each ceremony provided excellent 
revenue generation.  
 
In response to questions from Ian Harrison over the potential for receptions to 
be held in the Spaniards Road side of the Hill Garden, and access for vehicles, 
the Superintendent replied that the Corporation would exercise caution on 
permitting receptions to take place, and that vehicular access would not be 
permitted. Instead attendees would have to make use of the nearby off-site car 
park at Jack Straw’s Castle. It was mooted that brides could use bespoke 
transport to access the venue, such as carriages.  
 
Richard Sumray noted that he was very supportive of the proposal and 
emphasised the need for clarity on the issues involved in the January 2014 
report.  
 
5.3 Hampstead Heath's Hedges and Their Management  
 
The Hampstead Heath Ecologist introduced the report on Hampstead Heath’s 
hedges and their management. She noted that she had surveyed the hedges 
on the Heath throughout 2012 and part of this process had meant defining what 
constituted a hedge. Of the definition adopted within the report, over 7km of 
hedges existed on the Heath, but this rose to 20km if a looser interpretation 
was applied. She concluded by noting that the landscape of the Heath, 
including its hedges, had changed significantly during the past century.  A ten-
year management plan had been drawn up, which was appended to the report.  
 
In response to a comment from Richard Sumray that he found it hard to identify 
within the report the development of new, and the restoration of existing 
hedges, the Hampstead Heath Ecologist replied that it was extremely difficult to 
restore a hedge that had declined. She added that new hedges had been 
installed on the Heath in the past, particularly around the Bull Path, and that a 
balance had to be struck in maintaining the natural aspect of the Heath by 
ensuring the existing landscape was not broken up by inappropriate planting of 
new hedges.  
 
In response to a question from Colin Gregory, the Hampstead Heath Ecologist 
replied that the management of hedges was included in the Hampstead Heath 
work programme and that it complied with existing strategic polices. The 
Superintendent added that the new Hedges Management Plan could be 
explicitly linked to policies in future documents.  
 
Colin Gregory took the opportunity to remark on a hedge near the cricket pitch 
on the Hampstead Heath Extension, noting that its restoration as a narrow 
hedge would not be welcome due to its location in screening views.  
 

Page 17



 

 

Susan Nettleton thanked the Hampstead Heath Ecologist for her report and 
remarked that she welcomed the use of native hedge stock. 
 
In response to remarks from John Hunt on the need to manage the buffer 
zones around hedges as well as the hedges themselves, the Hampstead Heath 
Ecologist replied that, in keeping with ensuring the natural aspect of the Heath 
be preserved, intervention in the landscape had to be minimised and a balance 
had to be struck between actively encouraging and managing visible buffer 
zones around hedges and focusing on the hedge itself.  
 
In response to a suggestion from Michael Hammerson over highlighting the 
importance of hedges to the wider public, the Hampstead Heath Information 
and Communication Officer replied that such information could be included 
under the Heritage section on the City of London Corporation’s website.  
 
5.4 Hampstead Heath Ponds Project - Preferred Options Report and 

Non-Statutory Consultation  
 
The Chairman introduced the report on the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project 
Preferred Options Report and Non-Statutory Consultation. He noted that the 
Ponds Project Stakeholder Group (PPSG) existed under the aegis of the 
Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee and that the PPSG had met on 
around 20 occasions over the past 12 months, and its members had shown 
commitment and energy to the task at hand throughout. The PPSG had been 
given the support and assistance of the Strategic Landscape Architect (SLA) 
Peter Wilder who had also facilitated a number of PPSG workshops. There now 
existed two preferred options on each chain of ponds which were detailed 
within the current report before the committee. He noted that the Corporation 
was obliged to follow the Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE) guidance on the 
works required on the Heath dams and that the project costs – over £15m – 
were not being allocated or spent lightly. He told the committee that the 
eventual works decided upon would be the minimum required. He concluded by 
saying the work of the PPSG had been key in informing the project to date, and 
noted that if works were restricted to the three statutory dams rather than 
spread across the two pond chains as currently proposed then the resulting 
impact on the Heath’s natural aspect would be greater.  
 
The Superintendent then took the opportunity to address the committee, and 
welcomed the Assistant Director of Engineering, the Responsible Officer for the 
safety and integrity of the Hampstead Heath dams. The Superintendent 
highlighted the core objective of the project, the prevention of the dams 
breaching as a result of storm events. He noted that a design philosophy had 
emerged throughout the project process to date. This philosophy was anchored 
on the need to preserve the natural aspect of the Heath as well as ensuring the 
safety of people resident downstream from the dams. These two principles 
meant that the design proposals attracted a range of views from a variety of 
stakeholders. The Superintendent highlighted the accepted principle that works 
should be spread across the two pond chains in order to minimise the impact of 
works. He then went on to summarise some key issues: 
 

Page 18



 

 

Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) 
He noted that it was forecast that the PMF would see 38 tonnes of water per 
second flow over or around the Highgate Number 1 dam, and that this would be 
reduced to around 30 tonnes per second under the Preferred Options. He 
emphasised that the project was anchored on dam preservation, not flood 
alleviation.  
 
Legal Duty 
He recognised that the City of London Corporation (CoL) had a duty to 
preserve the natural aspect of the Heath in accordance with the Hampstead 
Heath Act 1871, but this was a qualified duty.  
 
Passive System 
He acknowledged that there had been suggestions that, rather than a passive 
system of dam drainage being installed on the Heath, staff could operate 
drainage valves to ease pressure on dams in the event of storms. However, the 
risk to individual staff was unacceptable.  
 
Early Warning 
He reported that the Meteorological Office could not commit to providing 
sufficient early warning of convection storms, the most likely cause of xtreme 
rainfall events. He also referred to recent guidance from the Environment 
Agency/DEFRA on risk assessment for Reservoir Safety that stated that is was 
considered unlikely that in the UK context any effective warning would be given. 
 
Preferred Options 
He suggested that the PPSG underestimated the influence it had exercised 
over the identification of the preferred options. He noted that the two options 
were very similar in character due to the overarching need to follow industry 
and statutory guidance. He noted that many of the solutions incorporated into 
the Preferred Options had come from the PPSG and that they had provided a 
vital scrutiny function.  
 
Consultation 
He noted that the CoL was obliged to carry out works to ensure the dams were 
not at risk of failure, and failure to do so in a timely fashion would risk the CoL 
being issued with a s10 notice which would effectively remove the project from 
CoL control and risk an inappropriate and insensitive solution being 
implemented. He added that the period of non-statutory consultation would see 
the CoL asking people what they wanted to see done to the dams. He 
concluded by saying that the eventual option may be a variant of a Preferred 
Option. 
 
The Assistant Director of Engineering said that the Superintendent had 
provided a fair summary of the issues involved. He added that the adoption of 
early warning would only allow timely evacuation and not ensure the integrity of 
the dams, which was the issue in question.  
 
The Chairman invited committee members to provide their comments on the 
report.  

Page 19



 

 

 
Simon Taylor (Hampstead Rugby Club) 
He noted that this was only his second committee meeting and therefore did 
not feel qualified to comment in great detail. He was nevertheless impressed 
with the level of dialogue carried out by the CoL and the emphasis that has 
been placed on the preservation of the natural aspect of the Heath.  
 
Ian Harrison (Vale of Health Society) 
He noted that despite his recent absence he had remained impressed by the 
work of the PPSG, and the quality of the paperwork produced by the CoL for 
this meeting. He felt the project had been heading in the right direction when he 
was last involved six months ago, and this remained his opinion. He noted that 
he was unable to comment upon the specific views of the Vale of Health 
Society but that he would be surprised if they had moved away from the 
VoHS’s historic support. He made some specific comments of his own.  
 
Regarding early warning – he noted that he was formerly employed in the 
chemical industry and that his experience told him that it was not appropriate or 
wise to rely on one safeguard alone – such as early warning –given 
catastrophic events often arose due to a number of related failures of different 
safeguards. Regarding ‘Preferred Option’ - he felt it would be more appropriate 
to refer to the options as ‘Proposed’ or simply ‘Options’.  Regarding 
consultation – he argued that, subject to the risk of a s10 notice, as much time 
as possible should always be allocated to public consultation, and that the 
current timeline looked very tight. Furthermore he argued that consultation 
material should avoid technical language as far as possible to ensure clarity for 
the general public.  
 
Jeremy Wright (Heath & Hampstead Society) 
He noted that the H&HS had submitted around 5 pages of comments on the 
Preferred Options which included an issue with the use of the word ‘preferred’,  
and the suggestion that ‘proposed’ would be more appropriate. He said that the 
H&HS agreed that some works need to be carried out and supported the 
principle of spreading the works over the entirety of the pond chains and 
increasing the capacity for storage in the central areas of the chains. However, 
the H&HS cannot support any options that were drawn up on an incorrect 
interpretation of the law and consequently would damage the natural aspect of 
the Heath.  
 
The H&HS has issues with the Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) used by 
the CoL. He noted that the QRA states that in the event of dams overtopping 
during a 1/400,000 year storm, the likely loss of life (LLOL) is currently 
estimated at 1,100 and at 1,400 in the event of the dams failing, and therefore 
works would only lead to a residual improvement of 300 in LLOL.  
 
He cited the information provided by Haycock to highlight the experience of the 
1975 storm on the Heath,  noting that during the storm it had taken 5 minutes 
for flooding to occur,, The emergency services very quickly received 2,000 calls 
for assistance from the public. By comparison it is estimated that in the event of 
a storm it will take six hours for the dams to overtop. Therefore emergency 

Page 20



 

 

services will be well aware of the issue of flooding, and will be responding to 
calls from within the area at risk of flooding well before the dams have 
overtopped. Therefore, the H&HS does not understand why the CoL is not 
adopting the principle of Early Warning. He continued by asking if the CoL 
really believed the content of the QRA. He said that the H&HS had submitted a 
number of questions on the document with the aim of probing some of the 
assumptions therein. The recent response that they had received from Atkins 
did not answer any of these queries. He stated that the H&HS regarded the 
QRA to be a suspect, factually wrong and misleading document.  
 
He referred to a peer-review by Aecom Engineers which estimated the Bird 
Sanctuary Dam and the Mixed Bathing Pond dam to be at low risk of failure, 
and compared this to the completely opposite estimation put forward by Atkins 
that these dams were at high risk of failure. He said that despite these 
inconsistencies the CoL had chosen the QRA as the basis for its statement of 
1,400 persons being subject to a LLOL in the event of dam failure. He urged 
the CoL therefore to issue a revised QRA and an acknowledgment, given the 
1975 case study, that a storm will provide a natural degree of early warning. He 
noted that the SLA report was generally accurate. Lastly, he expressed 
sadness that the consultation will concern two options only. 
 
Richard Sumray (London Council for Sport and Recreation) 
He considered the two most significant documents to be the legal position set 
out jointly by the CoL and the H&HS and the paper outlining the forthcoming 
information-giving and consultation exercise. He felt that if it was considered to 
be necessary the judicial review mooted by the H&HS should happen sooner 
rather than later, given the clear divergence in interpretation of the law, and 
amount of money already spent by the City Corporation the implications of 
launching a judicial review once a further round of consultation had taken place. 
He suggested that further discussion could usefully take place between the 
H&HS and the CoL to attempt to resolve the difference over legal interpretation. 
He argued that the H&HS should decide what it wanted to do.  
 
He felt the paper relating to the consultation exercise was well written but 
problematic. He noted that the process was largely about information-giving, 
but it was not clear precisely what the public was being asked to consider – if 
there are only two very similar options, how is the public to make an informed 
decision? He felt that the term ‘consultation’ was not appropriate as this was 
not what was really happening. The wording of the material used would be 
important. and feedback should be given to observations made by the public. 
Lastly, he said that if the Ponds Project went ahead then the opportunity should 
be seized to improve the Heath as much as possible as a result.  
 
Chairman 
The Chairman allowed Jeremy Wright to comment upon Richard Sumray’s 
observation regarding the possibility of a judicial review. Jeremy Wright 
remarked that H&HS would need to see the final options being considered for a 
planning application before it was in a position to decide whether or not to 
embark upon a judicial review. He concluded by saying that the H&HS would 
rather avoid mounting a judicial review and therefore if there was the possibility 

Page 21



 

 

to discuss the legal position further or for any friendly action to take place to 
clarify the position then this would be welcomed.  
 
Ellin Stein (Mansfield Conservation Area Advisory Committee/Neighbourhood 
Association) 
She noted she had been a regular attendee of the PPSG and that she was 
aware the project was a balancing act between varying dam heights, spillways 
and impact on the Heath. Nevertheless she felt uncertain over whether, 
informed as she was by the PPSG process, she could make a decision 
between the Preferred Options. She recognised that the core principle was dam 
preservation and not flood alleviation. She felt that examples of consultation 
material she had seen on the Resources for Change website had a patronising 
tone, and was too simplistic. Material presented should address real concerns, 
such as disruption posed by construction, and the effect of new dams on 
runners, anglers, swimmers etc. It should give an idea of the effect of 
construction traffic. Fundamentally, it should address why the project is 
necessary. Lastly, she said the consultation needed to have clarity of purpose – 
was it genuine engagement or simply a tick box exercise? 
 
Xohan Duran (Representative of People with Disabilities) 
He felt that the consultation should fully inform the public, and why the CoL 
feels it is necessary to spend £15m. He agreed that it should detail the 
disruption posed by construction, in terms of traffic and the alteration of the 
landscape. He argued that the end-result should comply with the statutory duty 
to preserve the natural aspect of the Heath. Lastly, he hoped that a s10 notice 
could be avoided.  
 
John Hunt (South End Green Association) 
He felt that the public was faced with a common sense versus legal issue 
conflict. They are faced with two different, well informed legal opinions. 
Moreover, the number of variables in the project makes it almost impossible to 
make an informed choice between the options. He voiced admiration for the 
detailed critique provided by the H&HS. He concluded by saying that the South 
End Green Association (SEGA) were primarily interested in the lower chain of 
ponds and therefore did not welcome an increase in the  height of Hampstead 
No. 1 and 2 dams.  
 
Susan Nettleton (Heath Hands) 
She felt that it was a shame that such fundamental differences remain this far 
into the project process and that ideally these needed to be resolved. She felt 
that the public consultation should make it clear the project was about the 
prevention of dam failure. In terms of project presentation and communication 
she welcomed the aerial plans but observed that the proposed spillways 
needed to be included in these, and that similarly a new path near the Boating 
Pond was not depicted. She noted that no detailed plans existed showing the 
impact of the spillways despite their significant extent, and that they should be 
depicted on the plans. Lastly she said that pictorial material of views should 
depict the dams up close rather than viewed from a distance.  
 
 

Page 22



 

 

 
Colin Gregory (Hampstead Garden Suburb Residents' Association) 
He agreed with the issues identified regarding consultation by previous 
speakers. He was keen to know what the actual question under consideration 
would be, and emphasised that the process should provide information and 
invite views. He put forward the example of the construction of the Parliament 
Hill Staff Yard – none of the original options put forward were considered 
acceptable after consultation and so a brand new option was put forward. He 
used the example of consultation over the A1/North Circular – overall the 
majority of respondents were in favour of none of the proposals, and yet a 
proposal with only a small percentage of support was chosen simply so the 
project could proceed. He warned that the CoL risked a credibility issue if it took 
such an approach. He said that the CoL should make it clear why it had 
adopted its chosen position. He welcomed the site plans within the agenda 
pack, and observed that the legal paper focused on the Reservoirs Act 1975 
and did not include any analysis of common law liability. He felt that it was key 
to canvass the views of the contractor that would be carrying out the works.   
 
The Superintendent replied that it was the CoL’s intention to bring the 
contractor in early to allow them to gain an understanding of the phasing of the 
project and the wider issues involved.  
 
Mary Port (Dartmouth Park Conservation Area Advisory Committee) 
She agreed that the legal issue remained a problem. She felt that the technical 
nature of much of the information would be hard to communicate to the public, 
and that much of the information failed to reflect how local people related to the 
Heath –dog walkers, runners etc. were concerned over natural aspect, not 
safety of dams. She agreed with the decision to focus storage on the centre of 
the chains of ponds. She felt that many of the diagrams were too technical, and 
that more explanation was needed over the nature of the spillways, including 
visual material.  
 
Michael Hammerson (Highgate Society) 
He felt that there was no consensus in the PPSG given it represented such a 
multiplicity of views. He remarked that some of the works proposed did not 
seem very well conceived and could be interpreted as ‘window dressing’ – 
particularly around the Bird Sanctuary dam. He felt that the large size of the 
spillways – 30-40m – needed to be demonstrated. He felt that the issue was 
boiling down to whether the work proposed was really necessary or if it was 
simply a legal issue. He argued the consultation process should aim to 
convince public why the CoL was willing to spend £15m, and it should avoid 
giving the impression that the two options were immutable. Visuals of how the 
Heath would look should be provided, and a description of what the 
construction process would involve. The CoL needed to get across that the 
Heath was not going to be developed and would recover over time. He warned 
that awareness of the project amongst the public at large was minimal – even 
among regular dog walkers on the Heath.  
 

Page 23



 

 

The Chairman thanked the committee and noted that these comments would 
be reported to the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park 
Committee on 25 November 2013.  
 
The Superintendent took the opportunity to make some comments: 
 
QRA  
In light of the criticism from the H&HS, he said that the document was not a 
design tool but something intended to assess impact, and it was usually 
produced in the civil engineering industry to identify the best outcome for a 
project.  
 
Options 
He argued both sets of options were very similar. .. He agreed that visualisation 
of the spillways needed to be improved. He said that the information-giving 
exercise was exactly that – information giving, and that an open ended question 
would be included to allow the public to comment as widely as possible. The 
information would set out the project process to date and make clear why the 
CoL was doing what it was doing. He concluded by saying that the CoL had 
produced reams of information, none of which provided an alternative to the 
options in question.  
 
The Chairman emphasised that all comments would be going to the 
Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park Committee on 25 
November 2013, and that the contractor would be engaged as soon as possible 
to allow early contractor involvement in the design process.  
 

6. QUESTIONS  
There were no questions.  
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was no other business.  
 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
The next meeting will be held on Monday 20 January 2014 at 1900hrs in the 
Education Centre, Parliament Hill Fields, Hampstead Heath, NW5 1QR.  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 9.15 pm 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Alistair MacLellan 
alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 24



Committee: Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and 

Queen’s Park 

Date: 25 November 

2013 
 

Subject: Terms of Reference of Hampstead Heath, 

Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park 

Public 

 

Report of: Town Clerk For Decision 
 

 

Summary 
 

 

1. As part of the post-implementation review of the changes made to the 

governance arrangements in 2011 it was agreed that all Committees should 

review their terms of reference annually. This will enable any proposed 

changes to be considered in time for the reappointment of Committees by 

the Court of Common Council. 

  

2. The terms of reference of the Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and 

Queen’s Park Committee are attached as an appendix to this report for your 

consideration.  

 

  Recommendations 

 

3. That, subject to any comments, the terms of reference of the Committee be 

approved for submission to the Court on 1 May 2014 as set out in the 

appendix and that any further changes in the lead up to the Court’s 

appointment of Committees be delegated to the Town Clerk in 

consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman.  

 

 

Contact: 

Alistair MacLellan 
0207 332 1716 

alistair.maclellan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Page 1Page 27



Page 2Page 28



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood, Queen’s Park 
Management Committee 

25 November 2013 

Subject:  

Hampstead Heath Ponds Project – Preferred Options 
Report and Non-Statutory Consultation 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Superintendent of Hampstead Heath  

For Decision  

 

 

Summary 

Following consultation with the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group, 

two “preferred options” have been produced for each chain of ponds.  

These options are detailed in the appended Preferred Options 

Report.   
 

Both sets of options meet the project objectives to improve dam 

safety in accordance with standard industry guidelines whilst as far 

as possible preserving the Heath as a natural open space. A by-

product of being able to safely pass the Probable Maximum Flood in 

all preferred options is that the standard of flood protection afforded 

to communities downstream where there is no dam failure is also 

improved.  
 

This report also sets out the engagement work that has taken place 

over the past fifteen months leading up to the development of the 

Preferred Options. It includes a summary of the engagement with the 

Hampstead Heath Ponds Project Stakeholder Group as well as with 

staff and the general public on the development of preferred options 

for meeting the City’s duties as a responsible owner of reservoirs 

whilst as far as possible mitigating the impact of the works in 

accordance with the Heath’s foundation legislation. Overall the 

strategic input, particularly from the Ponds Project Stakeholder 

Group has been integral to the development of options that seek to 

minimise the impact on the Heath’s landscape. At this time however 

it seems unlikely that a consensus will be reached on the Preferred 

Options by all groups represented.  
 

The report also sets out the proposed consultation methodology to 

be implemented by specialist consultants in undertaking the non-

statutory public consultation over the coming winter period. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to receive: 

• the views of the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project Stakeholder 
Group and Consultative Committee as set out in the report and 
various appendices to this report (principally 1 and 4); 

• the Report of the Strategic Landscape Architect on Stakeholder 
Engagement to date; 

Members are asked to approve the: 

• Hampstead Heath Ponds Project Preferred Options Report as the 
basis for undertaking the non-statutory consultation (November 2013 
to February 2014); 

• consultation methodology for the non-statutory consultation period  
to receive the views of the wider public on the Preferred Options for 
the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project. 

 
Main Report 

 
Introduction 

 
 
1. Approval was given by the Court of Common Council on 14th July 2011 to 

proceed with the project to upgrade the pond dams on the Hampstead and 
Highgate chains. The aims of the project are to reduce the current risk of pond 
overtopping, embankment erosion, failure and potential loss of life 
downstream; ensure compliance with the existing requirements of the 
Reservoirs Act 1975 together with the additional expected requirements under 
the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 while meeting the obligations of 
the Hampstead Heath Act 1871; and improving water quality. At the same 
time it seeks to achieve other environmental gains through, for example, 
habitat creation. 

2. Industry guidance and best practice to support the legal framework is set out 
in the Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE) “Floods and Reservoirs Safety” and 
requires that the Heath dams must be able to pass a Probable Maximum 
Flood (PMF) – these are regionally derived statistical figures for the maximum 
amount of water that can be released from the sky. The ICE consider that if a 
dam can safely accommodate the PMF event, then it is reasonable to state 
that the probability of dam failure has been “virtually eliminated”. 

3. It is the dams’ function to store or pass water safely without risk of failure. The 
outflow from the Highgate chain of ponds in a PMF event in the current 
situation is equivalent to 38 tonnes of water per second passing over or 
around the dam. 

 

Page 30



Current Position 

 
4. To help support the Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee in 

understanding the complex issues associated with the Hampstead Heath 
Ponds Project (referred to at that time as the Flood and Water Management 
Project), your Committee approved the involvement of stakeholder 
representatives in July 2012: 

“to provide views and advice to the Hampstead Heath Consultative 
Committee in relation to the Flood and Water Management Project within the 
context of the Hampstead Heath Act 1871 and relevant reservoirs legislation.” 

5. In order to ensure that landscape and environmental considerations were 
championed within the project and to support stakeholders in this, the City 
appointed a Strategic Landscape Architect (SLA), with the support of the 
Stakeholder Group. The SLA’s principle role has been to champion the 
landscape of the Heath, ensuring that the design is environmentally led to 
mitigate its impact. 

6. The SLA acts as a critical friend during the design process and as such he 
has provided commentary on the impact of the design proposals.  As an 
independent appointment, separate from the Design Team, the SLA is able to 
influence the development of the design options without being prejudiced by 
partnership contract arrangements. 

7. In December 2012 your Committee having received the formal views of 
Consultative Committee approved a Design Review Method Statement 
prepared by Atkins as lead designers for implementing the first phase of the 
Hampstead Heath Ponds Project. This work covered the: 

• fundamental design review of the hydrology of the site, including 
Haycock’s design and input data, to establish the size of flood that has 
to be designed for; 

• an environmental baseline review undertaken in parallel to the 
fundamental design review identifying constraints that have helped to 
inform the option selection and identification process; 

• proposed outline approach to consultation to respond adequately to the 
interest and concern among stakeholders and the wider public 
generally about the project; 

• planning application strategy, including the planning programme that 
will list the main permissions required; 

• options development and evaluation to arrive at a preferred solution. 

8. Your April 2013 Management Committee was delayed until early May 2013 to 
enable representatives of the Stakeholder Group and members of the 
Consultative Committee to provide views and receive clarification of issues 
associated with the Design Flood Assessment.  The City of London agreed 
that before any work commenced on preparing options and detailed design 
solutions the Design Team would undertake a Fundamental Review of the 
basis for the whole project. This work was deemed necessary by the City 
Corporation following recommendations by Aecom who undertook an 

Page 31



independent peer review of the original feasibility study and was also 
requested by the members of the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project 
Stakeholder Group. 

9. The review utilised industry standards and software, ensuring that the work 
would be in line with current industry best practice to determine the Probable 
Maximum Flood (PMF) and its impact on the earth dams across the 
Hampstead and Highgate chains of ponds.  

10. The conclusion of this report was that: 

“Floods estimated by Atkins were generally 30% to 50% lower than those 
estimated by Haycock.  Even with reduced flood volumes water would still 
flow over the dam crests in events ranging from the 1 in 5 year to the PMF 
events.  For example Stock Pond will overtop during the 1 in 5 year event 
while Hampstead No 1 pond will start to overtop between the 1 in 1000 year 
flood and the 1 in 10,000 year flood.   The speeds of the flows on the outer 
slope in conjunction with the uneven nature of the slopes with coarse 
vegetation are such that the embankments are likely to suffer erosion damage 
which in some cases could lead to a breach. To reduce the risk of breaching, 
improvements need to be made to some of the dams to enable them to cope 
with these floods, although the extent of the work needed should be less than 
that proposed by Haycock”. 

11. Your Committee approved this Design Flood Assessment as the basis for the 
continuation of the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project and development of the 
preferred design options at a special meeting of the Committee held on the 9th 
May 2013. 

12. Having approved the basis upon which the options for the development of the 
project would need to be designed and following significant representation 
from the Stakeholder Group and representatives of the Consultative 
Committee, and whilst acknowledging the need to progress proposals ‘with all 
deliberate speed’, the City Corporation agreed to extend the timetable for 
development of the options by six months. This extension of time was 
welcomed by the Stakeholder Group thereby enabling greater engagement in 
the iterative process of refining the best options to meet the scheme 
objectives. In the Preferred Options Report at Appendix 1 the overview of the 
options development process is shown. 

13. This commenced with development of a Constrained Options Report. The 
process of developing these options began with an unconstrained options list 
in the form of a matrix of generic options. This was used to collate feedback 
from stakeholders, Heath staff and the wider public to identify constraints. 

14. The preliminary list of constrained options was reviewed in a workshop 
involving members of the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group, the City of 
London including Heath staff, and Atkins on the 18th May 2013. At this 
workshop there was a broad agreement between all present that the strategic 
concept of providing extra flood storage capacity by focusing major works at 
the middle of each pond chain, at less sensitive locations, was generally a 
sound principal to adopt. Feedback and views were provided to the Design 
Team and a final Constrained Options Report was issued on Friday 7th June 
2013. 

Page 32



15. The Constrained Options Report also established the preferred approach to 
solving dam safety; that treating the two chains of ponds as systems, rather 
than focussing all works on the current three designated statutory reservoirs 
provides a more holistic method of spreading the works, preserving the 
Heath’s natural aspect and future proofing against further works if anticipated 
legislative changes that have already been enacted are fully implemented. In 
addition the design principles and philosophy were clearly set out. 

16. A further Stakeholder Group workshop on 13th July focused on landscape 
mitigation, pond restoration, water quality improvements and ecological 
management. Engineering options were also discussed at length using 
flowcharts showing trade-offs and consequences of the various options 
considered, alongside photomontage visualisations together with detailed 
options descriptions and comparisons.  

17. It was apparent from this workshop that there remained strong views both for 
and against a proposed 3m additional dam raising at the Boating Pond, whilst 
on the Hampstead chain of ponds the loss of 2 plane trees was not well 
received. This workshop formed the basis for the issue of the second iteration 
of the shortlist options. Following feedback the final Shortlist Options report 
was issued on Friday 6th September 2013. 

18. The feedback from the Shortlist Options report is set out in Appendix 2 of this 
report, together with responses to all who responded.  

19. The final Stakeholder Group workshop in the development of the preferred 
outline options took place on Saturday 14th September 2013. At this meeting 
the Design Team set out the basis for its two preferred options. It was 
apparent at that meeting that there were still major concerns about the 
provision of an additional 3m dam at the Boating Pond. A new “Option P” on 
the Hampstead chain of ponds was proposed that would result in the loss of 
only one Plane tree at the Hampstead No. 2 causeway.  

20. Further refinement of the modelling of the Probable Maximum Flood on the 
Highgate chain of ponds enabled Atkins to discount the 3m dam option at the 
Boating Pond, this information was presented to the Stakeholder Group at its 
meeting on the 30th September 2013. 

21. A log of all questions that have been raised relating to the project, together 
with responses from Atkins or the City Corporation have been captured and 
these are included at Appendix 3 of this report. 

 

Preferred Options 

 

22. Atkins Preferred Options Report which is appended to this report (Appendix 1) 
meets the following key objectives of the project as they: 

• ensure City of London compliance with current and expected reservoir 
legislation; 

• improve dam safety on all the dams in the chains; 

• preserve as far as possible the Heath’s natural aspect; 

Page 33



• focus major works at the middle of each chain of ponds (see earlier 
paragraph 14); 

• introduce a passive system (no reliance on mechanical or human 
intervention); 

• maintain (or increase) the standard of protection downstream in other 
flooding scenarios (where there is no dam failure);  

• do not increase the rate of flow discharged from the last dam in any 
flood event, compared to the flows expected in the existing scenario. 

23. In addition to the works set out below all ponds require works to install new 
spillways. The provisional size of these spillways is indicated on page 10 and 
page 34 of the Preferred Options Report. 

 

Highgate Chain 

 Option 4 Option 6 

Stock Pond Crest Restoration by 
0.5m maximum 

Crest Restoration by 
0.5m maximum 

Kenwood Ladies Pond Crest restoration by 
0.2m maximum 

Crest restoration by 
0.2m maximum 

Bird Sanctuary Pond Crest restoration by 
0.1m maximum 

Crest restoration by 
0.1m maximum 

Model Boating Pond 2m 2.5m 

Highgate Men’s Bathing Pond 1.5m (wall) 1m (wall) 

Highgate No. 1 Pond 1.25m (wall) 1.25m (wall) 

Standard of Protection 1 in 1000 year 1 in 1000 year 

 

Hampstead Chain 

 Option M Option P 

Vale of Health Pond Crest restoration 0.6m 
maximum 

Crest restoration 0.6m 
maximum 

Viaduct Pond Crest restoration 0.2m 
maximum 

Crest restoration 0.2m 
maximum 

New Catchpit dam 5.6m high new earth 
embankment 

5.6m high new earth 
embankment 

Mixed Bathing Pond 1m 2m (embankment or wall 
combination) 

Hampstead No. 2 3x3m box culverts 0.5m wall, 1x4.5m box 
culvert 

Hampstead No. 1 1x4.5m box culvert 1x4.5m box culvert 

Standard of Protection 1 in 1000 year 1 in 10,000 year 

Plane tree loss on 
Hampstead No. 2 

2 1 

 

Page 34



24. Although not a design objective, as a consequence of the dams being 
designed to pass the PMF safely, there is an improved standard of flood 
protection for people living downstream of the ponds where there is no dam 
failure. In other words, more floodwater from higher return period events 
would be temporarily stored below the spillway level. Less water would 
therefore be flowing overland towards Brookfield Mansions from the last pond, 
and more water would be slowly passed through the overflow pipes into the 
sewer system after the storm has passed. 

25. The Preferred Options Report demonstrates through the suggestions that 
have now been incorporated in the design options how vital the Ponds Project 
Stakeholder Group has been in influencing the options that have been 
developed. It also sets out which suggestions have been discounted.  

 

 

Feedback on the Preferred Options Report from the Stakeholder Group 

 
26. Following the issue of the Preferred Option Report on the 4th October 

members of the Stakeholder Group were asked to provide their formal views 
in writing by Sunday 20th October 2013. These responses are all appended to 
the Preferred Options Report (see Appendix 1). At the Ponds Project 
Stakeholder Group meeting on the 21st October 2013 each Group was asked 
to provide its view on the Preferred Options Report. The Note of this meeting 
is also appended to this report. 

27. There were a number of specific issues that were raised at their meeting: 

Legal Position – following a meeting between the Heath & Hampstead Society 
and the City of London, including their respective counsel, a joint statement 
setting out the differences of opinion was published on the 7th November 2013 
(see Appendix 5). 

Spillways – serious concerns were expressed that whilst the size and depth of 
proposed spillways had been set out, their location and impact on the Heath 
landscape was not at all clear. 

Raising of the Mixed Pond  - one member was particularly concerned that with 
the installation of the proposed Catchpit dam no works to Mixed Pond should 
be required. It was confirmed that the downstream catchment still delivered 
significant amounts of water into the Mixed Pond. The two metre raising was a 
trade-off for the reduction in tree loss at Hampstead No. 2 pond. 

Early Warning – the view was expressed that with Early Warning systems 
communities downstream could be given adequate warning of potential 
flooding risks. The City has previously invested in an “early-warning system” 
which monitors weather conditions locally and water levels in some ponds.  

The Meteorological Office cannot however guarantee to provide the City 
Corporation with sufficiently robust forecasts to be able to predict a convection 
storm and thus the City cannot warrant that in a flood event such an early-
warning system will mitigate potential loss of life. Post-completion of the works 
the City will still need an Emergency Plan to deal with potential flooding 
events.  

Page 35



The new Guide to Risk Assessment for Reservoir Safety Management 
(RARS) published in March 2013 by the Environment Agency/DEFRA, states 
the following in relation to warning times:  

“In estimating the base case highest individual risk and average societal life 
loss it should be assumed that there is generally no warning. The exception is 
where the population at risk is well downstream of the dam with an intervening 
community where it may be reasonable to assume that the alarm would be 
raised once the flood wave had passed the first community and that the 
population downstream would be warned (allowing a reasonable time for the 
authorities to receive the alarm and issue warnings). Where allowance is 
made for some warning this should be stated in the impact assessment for the 
dam. It is considered unlikely that in the UK context any effective warning 
would be given”. 

Atkins assessment of no warning time has been based on the 
recommendation of the more guidance provided in the RARS document and 
the fact that there is a very short travel time for a flood wave into Camden. 

The City Corporation also has to meet its obligations to satisfy the Panel 
Engineer that the PMF event can be passed safely without risk of failure of a 
dam. 

Disproportionate Nature of the Works - There are concerns among the 
stakeholders that the proposals are disproportionate to the scale of the 
problem; however the City Corporation is following standard industry 
guidelines to achieve a design solution that can pass the PMF event without 
risk of dam failure and therefore avoid the need for the supervising engineer 
to call for a formal statutory inspection. 

Volume of PMF versus Introduction of New Pipes – a view was expressed 
that insufficient consideration had been given to the use of pipes to pass 
water through the chain of ponds. As an example on the Highgate chain of 
ponds the volume of water in the PMF event passing over or around the dam 
in the current situation is 38 tonnes of water per second. The size of pipes to 
accommodate this volume of water would need to be enormous.  

In January 2013 the Stakeholder Group received a presentation from Thames 
Water who advised that the flood alleviation scheme installed under the Heath 
in the 1990’s was only designed to accommodate a 1:70 year storm, this is 
significantly less than the design standards required to “virtually eliminate” the 
risk of dam failure. If the PMF event were to occur in this part of London then 
the sewer system would already be operating at capacity with sewers 
surcharging water. 

Treatment of Margins of Ponds – concerns were expressed that the changes 
proposed at the Boating Pond would deprive users and particularly fishermen 
of access to the water’s edge. It was explained that access around the pond 
would still be possible. Concern was also raised that the treatment of ponds 
appeared to be fairly generic and not specific to the respective ponds and that 
this could ultimately lead to ponds losing their individual characteristics. An 
example was the introduction of floating islands that many considered 
inappropriate for the Heath environment. 

Page 36



Need for a Passive System - the use of valves was raised by several 
stakeholders as a means of potentially lowering water levels, however, 
placing City Corporation staff into a situation where they may be at risk in 
terms of operating valves is now considered to be unacceptable. 

Maintaining Access for Users - West Hill Court have identified that maintaining 
access around ponds, particularly for people with disabilities will be essential. 
There is also the need to ensure that opportunities for angling on the Heath 
are retained, particularly at the Model Boating Pond. 

Strategic Landscape Architect - the SLA advised that he had prepared a 
Review of the process undertaken to date, this is also appended to this report 
(see Appendix 6). 

28. Given the disparity of views expressed at the Stakeholder meeting, it seems 
increasingly unlikely that there will be a consensus reached from the various 
groups represented on the Stakeholder Group.  

 

Feedback on the Preferred Options Report from the Consultative Committee 

 

29. There was a general view expressed that some works to a lesser or greater 
degree are necessary to reduce the risk of dams potentially failing. The 
following summarises the main points raised at the meeting. The draft minute 
of the Committee including more detailed feedback from each representative 
forms part of the papers for your Committee. 

Legal Position - concerns were expressed that there still remained 
fundamental differences between the City's legal position and that of the 
Heath & Hampstead Society.  A view was expressed that it would be 
unfortunate for the City Corporation to expend considerably more money, only 
to then have to face a legal challenge from the Society. Given that this matter 
was so fundamental, some urged the City and the Society to seek to narrow 
the points of law where clarification was required and to pursue these issues 
together, as in the High Court action on the swimming situation on the Heath. 
The Heath & Hampstead Society representative advised it was hoped that 
legal action could be avoided, but that until there was certainty on the final 
option to be pursued on each chain of ponds for submission of a planning 
application, the Society would not take any action. Another view concerned 
whether the City could seek a declaration from the Courts on the advice it had 
obtained. Reference was also made to the City Corporation’s legal duties in 
relation to Rylands v Fletcher. 

Information Giving and Consultation Process - there were general concern 
about the degree to which the forthcoming non-statutory consultation was 
actually a genuine consultation process or more an opportunity to broaden 
awareness of the project and provide information on the process to date and 
options being considered. It was stressed that raising expectations about what 
might be possible in terms of changing options fundamentally was a risk. 
Several representatives advised that the general public would find it hard to 
understand the difference between the options being considered and would 
seek clarification on the practical issues associated with implementation of the 

Page 37



project, such as whether they could still run on the Heath, what the level of 
vehicle movements would be, how building works would affect local residents. 
It was also recommended that the City make it absolutely clear that the 
consultation was not concerned with wider flood alleviation issues. The City 
Corporation was also asked for an assurance that there would be an open 
question so that we could take all feedback and that we must respond to all 
comments/ questions raised. Several comments were made that the City 
Corporation should not get boxed into time constraints that don't permit proper 
and meaningful consultation. The level of engagement on the process to date 
was commended. 

Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) - a view was expressed that this 
document produced by the City's lead designers Atkins was factually 
misleading. It was stated from the Heath & Hampstead Society representative 
that this was the only document produced to date that provided any technical 
justification for the project. 

The Superintendent advised that the QRA has been carried out for the 
existing condition of the Hampstead Heath ponds. He advised that QRA can 
be applied in this way, however, it is more typically applied to compare the 
risk associated with various options to allow for risk-based decision making. 
This QRA should not be used as the basis of design. 

Early Warning - there were two distinct views provided, one that reliance on 
early warning in terms of risk management was totally unacceptable, and the 
other that, in the design storm, the local sewers would already be surcharged 
and emergency services would already be activating off-site plans that would 
enable evacuation of homes long before Heath dams failed. 

Title 'Preferred Options' - the view was expressed that the title 'Preferred 
Options' conveyed the wrong message and indicated that the options were a 
fait accompli; a more suitable title would be 'possible options' or simply 
'options'. 

Detail in Preferred Options Report/Photomontage - there was a general view 
that the level of detail in the Preferred Options Report on the location and size 
of spillways was totally inadequate to enable any real understanding of their 
impact on the landscape. Similarly the detail on works at the Catchpit were felt 
to be inadequate. There was concern that the current photomontages do not 
depict detailed aspects such as potential footpaths, reedbeds and other 
environmental mitigation that might enhance the landscape. 

 
Non-Statutory Public Consultation 

 

30. The City Corporation has appointed Resources for Change, a specialist 
engagement organisation to offer expert and independent advice on the non-
statutory consultation process. Resources for Change have previously worked 
with the City Corporation; they managed the extensive consultation on the 
Heath’s management plan in 2006/7, where over 1000 detailed responses 
were received on this strategic document. 

31. The primary purpose of the public process is to inform the public about what is 
being done and why and also to give them the opportunity to inform the City of 

Page 38



London’s choice from the preferred options for the Hampstead and Highgate 
pond chains.  The information giving will need to address: 

• Who are the City of London Corporation, what is their remit as a 
responsible body (managing some 12,000 acres of public open space), 
with responsibility as landowners for the dams on Hampstead Heath.  

• The legal context about why the project is required, in terms of current 
and anticipated reservoir legislation and the City Corporation’s potential 
liability in the event of dam failure, and how this relates to the Heath’s 
foundation legislation. 

• The hydrology and design standards that underpin dam safety and the 
societal risks associated with dam failure. 

• The work the City Corporation has undertaken engaging with the 
Ponds Project Stakeholder Group over the past 15 months and how 
this has influenced the design principles and philosophy. It will need to 
address why a “passive” solution rather than one that involves human 
or mechanical intervention as a design solution is essential. 

• Early contractor involvement and the need to engage collaboratively 
with the building contractor to help inform the options development and 
to seek to minimise impact of traffic movements both within the Heath 
and for the surrounding residential/business community.  

32. Given that all options achieve the underlying design objectives, principles and 
philosophy, this consultation will be seeking to understand what preference 
consultees have on the Preferred Options, rather than a full options 
consultation to influence the design of the scheme, since its detailed aspects 
are only at an early illustrative stage. 

33. There has been significant involvement already with key stakeholders. The 
purpose of this process, both its information giving and consultation, is 
therefore to ‘reach out’ to others who may be affected, with a focus on those 
with a defined interest in the issues raised by the Ponds Project work.  These 
people are identified as: 

• Users of the ponds and immediate surrounds  

• Those living within the vicinity of pond chain areas 

• Users of the Heath 

• Those having a specialist interest in the Heath e.g. birdwatchers 

• Schools and youth groups 

• Heath volunteers 

• Local businesses 

• Off site - those potentially impacted in the situation of a dam breach 

• Those who may potentially (or have reason to think they will) be 
impacted by the Ponds Project works  

• Wider public (considered beyond scope apart from information sharing) 

Page 39



34. A more detailed summary of the consultation process is appended to this 
report. 

 

Next Steps 
 
35. At its meeting on the 21 October 2013 the Stakeholders requested more detail 

on the next steps: 

• During the consultation process the design team and Stakeholders will 
receive information on the views being expressed by people as part of the 
non-statutory consultation. 

• The appointment of the main contractor will enable further essential site 
investigations to be undertaken to consider issues such as where “borrow 
pits” might be located. This will help to inform the options development that 
will continue to be pursued during the consultation process, given the 
advice that the City Corporation needs to move towards a design solution 
and implementation of works “with all deliberate speed”. 

• At the end of the non-statutory consultation there will need to be an 
evaluation and analysis of the results, together with the information from 
the building contractor that will inform a decision on the “Preferred Design 
Solution”. 

• This information will then need to be presented to the Ponds Project 
Stakeholder Group, Consultative Committee and ultimately this Committee 
during April 2014, who will then need to determine whether these solutions 
form the basis of a detailed planning application. 

• The City Corporation is looking to submit a detailed Planning Application 
during early June 2014. 

• There will then be a period of “Statutory Consultation” and another 
opportunity for the public to express their views on the proposed scheme. 

 

Resources  

 

36. At this stage the estimated overall project costs remain unchanged at 
£15.12m (+/- 20% at Q4 2010 prices).  As part of the production of the options 
report the Design Team is undertaking a preliminary “overall order of costs of 
works”. At this early stage of the project process estimated costs remain 
within £15.12m (+/- 20% at Q4 2010 prices (despite the inclusion of the 
additional fees incurred resulting from the wider consultation process and the 
building of an additional dam on the Hampstead chain of ponds).  The 
preliminary overall order of cost figures still, however, requires refinement and 
will be determined by the final adopted option. 

 
37. The second stage of the appointment of the contractor, which goes into more 

detail on both technical and financial aspects of each applicants approach to 
the project, took place during August and September. Following these 

Page 40



discussions, participants have submitted their tender proposal in October 
which are being evaluated with a view to an appointment to assist with the 
detailed design options. The appointment of the contractor to be involved in 
the final design development will form the basis of a separate report to your 
Committee. 

 
Corporate & Strategic Implications 

 

38. The works support the strategic aim ‘To provide valued services to London 
and the nation’. The scheme will improve community facilities, 
conserve/enhance landscape and biodiversity and contribute to a reduction in 
water pollution whilst meeting the City Corporation’s legal obligations.  The 
risk of any dam breach leading to serious downstream flooding of 
communities (and consequent exposure to potential claims and reputational 
damage) is mitigated. 

 

Conclusion 

 

39. Through its engagement with the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group 
championed by the independent Strategic Landscape Architect, the City 
Corporation has through an extensive iterative process arrived at the 
“Preferred Options” of its appointed designers, Atkins. All of these options 
meet the design objectives, principles and philosophy to pass the PMF event 
and as far as possible preserve the Heath’s natural aspect.  

40. The City Corporation is commencing a non-statutory consultation with the 
wider public to advise them on what is being done and why, and also giving 
users and other interested parties the opportunity to inform the City of 
London’s decision on the “Preferred Design Solution”.  

 
Appendices 
 
 

• Appendix 1 – Atkins Preferred Options Report and Feedback on the 
Preferred Options Report Received from the Ponds Project Stakeholder 
Group/West Hill Court 

• Appendix 2 – Responses to Shortlist Option Report from Ponds Project 
Stakeholder Group/Others together with Responses. 

• Appendix 3 – Log of all Questions and Responses relating to the Ponds 
Project to date. 

• Appendix 4 - Notes of the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group meeting 21st 
October 2013 

• Appendix 5 – Statement on Legal Position City of London Corporation and 
Heath & Hampstead Society 

Page 41



• Appendix 6 - Strategic Landscape Architect – Review of the Process to 
Date 

• Appendix 7 – Consultation/Information Giving Methodology 

 
 
Contacts: 
 
Simon Lee       
020 7332 3322         
simon.lee@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
Paul Monaghan 
020 7332 3122 
paul.monaghan@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

  
             
 

Page 42



25th October 2013

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT
VOLUME 1

P
age 43



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT2

Contents

Volume 1: Preferred Options Report

1. Summary    3

2. Overview of Decision Making Process and Options Development 4

3. Engagement with stakeholders    7

4. Incorporation of suggestions from stakeholders   9

5. Preferred Options - Highgate Chain    10

6. Preferred Options - Hampstead Chain    34

7. Discounted Options 57

8. The Next Stage 61

   

 

Appendices

Appendix A: View Point Location Plan    63

Appendix B: Hydrographs for Model Boating Pond and Highgate No.1 Pond  

and Mixed Bathing Pond and Hampstead No.1 Pond including commentary 64

Appendix C: Meeting notes from 14th September PPSG workshop and 30th September PPSG meeting,  

and comments from PPSG and West Hill Court on Preferred Options Report  68

Volume 2: Comments, Queries and Answers on Shortlist 

Options Report

P
age 44



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 3

1. Summary
Purpose of report 

1.1 This report details the outcome of the 
process of the 3rd stage of engagement 
and options development with stakeholders. 
The report focuses on the preferred options 
/ combinations for each chain of ponds, 
!"#$%&'()#*+$!"$)"#),!-)'"$'.$+%*,)/,$
pond restoration and water quality works, 
including possible proposed mitigation and 
compensation measures for the impact of 
the engineering works. 

1.2 The report describes the two preferred 
options in detail for each of the pond chains, 
which can be summarised as follows:

Highgate Chain of Ponds:

• Option 4: Crest restoration works 
at Stock Pond and Kenwood Ladies 
Bathing Pond, 2m raising of the dam at 
Model Boating Pond, 1.5m and 1.25m 
raising of dams at Men’s Bathing Pond 
and Highgate No.1 Pond. Spillway 
works at all ponds.

• Option 6: Crest restoration works 
at Stock Pond and Kenwood Ladies 
Bathing Pond, 2.5m raising of the 
dam at Model Boating Pond, 1.0m and 
1.25m raising of dams at Men’s Bathing 
Pond and Highgate No.1 Pond. Spillway 
works at all ponds.

Hampstead Chain of Ponds:

• Option M: Crest restoration works at 
Vale of Health and Viaduct Ponds, build 
"*0$1234$5)65$7''#$+-'&!6*$#!4$80)-5$
a 300mm outlet pipe) at the Catchpit 
area, raise the dam at Mixed Bathing 
Pond 1.0m, install letterbox culvert 
spillways at Hampstead No.2 Pond and 
Hampstead No.1 Pond. Spillway works 
at all ponds.

• Option P: Crest restoration works 
at Vale of Health and Viaduct Ponds, 
9:);#$"*0$1234$5)65$7''#$+-'&!6*$
#!4$80)-5$!$<==44$':-;*-$%)%*>$!-$
the Catchpit area, raise the dam at 
Mixed Bathing Pond 2.0m, raise the 
dam at Hampstead No.2 Pond with 
a 0.5m wall, install letterbox culvert 
spillways at Hampstead No.2 Pond and 
Hampstead No.1 Pond. Spillway works 
at all ponds.

1.3 The reader is referred to the following 
reports on the City of London’s Ponds 
Project website for detail on the design 
process leading up to this report:
Ponds Project home page: 
5--%?@@0002,)-A'7'"#'"26'(2:B@-5)"6+C-'C
#'@6&**"C+%!,*+@5!4%+-*!#C5*!-5@%'"#+C
project/Pages/default.aspx 

1.4$ D'"#+$D&'E*,-$F*%'&-+$%!6*$8,;),B$'"$-5*$
bar “Reports from the Project team inc. 
Shortlist Options Report”):
5--%?@@0002,)-A'7'"#'"26'(2:B@-5)"6+C
-'C#'@6&**"C+%!,*+@5!4%+-*!#C5*!-5@
%'"#+C%&'E*,-@D!6*+@F*%'&-+2!+%G

1.5 The following page is dedicated to the 
Shortlist Options Report and provides 
links to the stakeholder comments:
5--%?@@0002,)-A'7'"#'"26'(2:B@-5)"6+C
-'C#'@6&**"C+%!,*+@5!4%+-*!#C5*!-5@
%'"#+C%&'E*,-@D!6*+@H'44*"-+C'"C-5*C
I5'&-;)+-CJ%-)'"+CF*%'&-2!+%G

1.6 Comments and queries from engagement 
with the Ponds Project Stakeholder 
K&':%$8DDIK>$!"#$.**#9!,B$.&'4$-5*$
wider public on the Shortlist Options 
Report have been collated with responses 
from the design team in Volume 2 of 
the Preferred Options Report. A Log of 
Questions and Answers since October 
2012 is available on the Ponds Project 
home page 5--%?@@0002,)-A'7'"#'"26'(2
:B@-5)"6+C-'C#'@6&**"C+%!,*+@5!4%+-*!#C
5*!-5@%'"#+C%&'E*,-@D!6*+@#*.!:;-2!+%G

P
age 45



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT4

2. Overview of Decision Making Process and Options Development

2.1 The options development process is 
+:44!&)+*#$)"$-5*$:%#!-*#$7'0,5!&-$
on Page 8 and shows progress to 
date including the issue of this report. 
The process started with the problem 
#*/")-)'"$+-!6*L$!"#$5!+$-5*"$%&'6&*++*#$
through three iterations of option 
development with stakeholders and the 
wider public to arrive at the preferred 
options. The option development phase 
will culminate in a 12 week period of 
"'"C+-!-:-'&A$%:9;),$,'"+:;-!-)'"$'(*&$
the winter months where the preferred 
options for each chain of ponds will be 
presented at exhibitions to the public.  

Brief Summary of  
Problem Definition

2.2 Atkins is commissioned to develop 
'%-)'"+$-5!-$+)6")/,!"-;A$&*#:,*$-5*$&)+B$
of dam failure while complying with the 
Hampstead Heath Act 1871 and the 
Reservoirs Act 1975, and taking into 
account the requirements of the Flood and 
Water Management Act 2010. To arrive 
at the best solution, while mitigating 
potential impacts, the options need to 
be carefully considered in the context 
of the whole chain as a system, as well 
as identifying the best solution for each 
chain. 

2.3 Atkins completed a fundamental review 
-'$!++*++$-5*$;!&6*+-$7''#$-5!-$-5*$#!4+$
are required to accommodate – known 
!+$-5*$D&'9!9;*$M!G)4:4$N;''#$8DMN>$
C$!"#$-'$,5*,B$).$-5*$#!4+$!&*$;)B*;A$-'$
withstand overtopping when passing 
-5*$7'0+$#'0"+-&*!42$O*++$+*(*&*$
7''#+$5!(*$!;+'$9**"$:+*#$-'$!++*++$
the system response to ensure that 
the options for passing the PMF do not 

*G!,*&9!-*$-5*$7'0+$#'0"+-&*!4$#:&)"6$
;*++*&$7''#+2$P5*$&*()*0$0!+$,!&&)*#$
out using industry standard methods, 
based on established guidance from the 
Department for Environment, Food and 
F:&!;$Q..!)&+$8R*.&!>$!"#$-5*$S"+-)-:-)'"$'.$
H)();$T"6)"**&+$8SHT>2$P5*$R*+)6"$N;''#$
Assessment Report can be accessed 
through the Ponds Project Reports 
webpage, following the link provided in 
Section 1.

2.4$ Q-B)"+U$&*()*0$+5'0+$-5!-$7''#$%*!B+$!&*$
generally 30% to 50% lower than those 
estimated in earlier work by Haycock 
Associates Ltd, which means there will 
be less water to manage than originally 
envisaged. However even at these lower 
values the dams will overtop in the PMF
and breaches are possible, with risk to 
life and property downstream. The City 
of London therefore needs to carry out 
works to make the dams safe and reduce 
the risk to life and property downstream.

2.5$ S"#:+-&A$+-!"#!&#$9*+-$%&!,-),*$6:)#*;)"*+$
state that the City of London should 
*"+:&*$-5*$#!4+$,!"$%!++$-5*$7'0+$
associated with the PMF safely; eg 
without collapse. Moreover, the modelling 
showed that most of the dams will also be 
overtopped in very much smaller return 
%*&)'#$7''#+L$.&'4$!+$;'0$!+$!$V?1$A*!&$
return period events.  

2.6 This is because the capacities of the 
*G)+-)"6$'(*&7'0$%)%*+$!-$*!,5$%'"#$!&*$
too small, and the storage capacities of 
*!,5$%'"#L$9*-0**"$-5*$'(*&7'0$;*(*;$
!"#$-5*$#!4$,&*+-$;*(*;L$!&*$"'-$+:./,)*"-$
-'$#*!;$0)-5$-5*$7''#+$0)-5':-$7''#0!-*&$
7'0)"6$'(*&$-5*$#!4$,&*+-+$'"-'$-5*$
downstream faces. 

2.7 The condition and level of the dam 
crests, the uneven downstream faces 
and the size of trees on most of the 
downstream slopes of the dams, 
mean that the volumes and speeds of 
7'0$'(*&-'%%)"6$-5*$#!4+$%&*+*"-$!$
+)6")/,!"-$&)+B$-5!-$'(*&7'0)"6$7''#$
0!-*&$0);;$*&'#*$-5*$#!4$/;;$4!-*&)!;2$
This erosion would cut down into the 
dams until they fail and release the 
water stored behind them. The dams, 
therefore, need to be made more 
&*+);)*"-$-'$9*)"6$'(*&-'%%*#$)"$7''#$
events to avoid dam failure, or additional 
spillway capacity needs to be provided, 
or a combination of these actions.

2.8 To read a short ‘plain English’ summary 
of the explanation for the need for 
the project go to: The Ponds Project 
Reports webpage, following the link 
provided in Section 1 and look in the 
Reports sections for the: Design Flood 
Assessment Summary Rev 4. This report 
also provides a technical explanation of 
the need for the project.

Duties of the  
City of London 

2.9 Having established a risk of dam breach 
the City must comply with the Reservoirs 
Q,-$VWX1$805*&*$-5)+$!%%;)*+$-'$-5*$-5&**$
large statutory reservoirs on the Heath) 
and must also take into account the Flood 
and Water Management Act 2010, which 
may have an extended remit to include 
cascades of smaller reservoirs and will be 
coming into effect in the next few years.

2.10$S"$,!&&A)"6$':-$0'&B+$-'$&*#:,*$-5*$&)+B$
of dam failure, the City of London, as the 
custodian of Hampstead Heath, is obliged 
to comply with the Hampstead Heath 
Act 1871 which requires the City to “…at 
all times preserve, as far as may be, the 
natural aspect and state of the Heath…”

P
age 46



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 5

Key Objectives

2.11 Atkins has developed options that will 
that will make the dams safe from breach 
within Highgate and Hampstead chains 
of ponds, and reduce the risk to life and 
property downstream, to comply with the 
Reservoirs Act 1975, whilst also taking 
into account the emerging requirements 
of the Flood and Water Management
Act 2010. 

2.12 The preferred options meet the key 
objectives of the project: 

• They improve dam safety on all the 
dams in the chains

•$ P5*A$4!)"-!)"$8'&$)",&*!+*>$-5*$
standard of protection downstream 

•$ P5*A$#'$"'-$)",&*!+*$-5*$&!-*$'.$7'0$
discharged from the last dam in any 
7''#$*(*"-L$,'4%!&*#$-'$-5*$7'0+$
expected in the existing scenario

• They preserve the Heath as a natural 
open space. 

Design Principles and 
Design Philosophy - 
An Overview

2.13 The project design principles and 
design philosophy have informed the 
development of the preferred options. The 
design principles and design philosophy 
summarised in the previous options 
reports have been retained and developed 
to balance dam safety requirements, 
with feedback from engagement with 
stakeholders and the wider public, while 
having regard to the environmental 
considerations of each pond and the 
‘natural aspect and state of the Heath’ 
These considerations include: retaining 
existing water level and the distinctive 
character of the Heath and key views, 
and minimising the scale of intervention, 
and impact on visual amenity and the 
:+*$'.$-5*$Y*!-5$.'&$!;;$:+*&+$C$)",;:#)"6$
swimmers, anglers, walkers and 
nature enthusiasts. 

2.14Environmental management is an 
)"-*6&!;$%!&-$'.$-5*$%&'E*,-2$S"$!##)-)'"$-'$
improving water quality the project must 
ensure that following construction work 
reinstatement the Heath’s natural aspect 
takes place. The collaboration between 
technical specialists has already ensured 
that none of the options being considered 
preclude pond and terrestrial habitat 
reinstatement and restoration. The use 
of appropriate and natural materials and 
minimal intervention will be used to retain 
the natural aspect of the Heath. 

Design Principles 

2.15 Design principles that apply to all 
of the preferred options to enable 
integration of the dams with the Heath 
character include:

• Each chain of ponds is considered as a 
05';*$+A+-*4L$+'$-5!-$!"A$+)6")/,!"-$
increases in storage capacity are 
focused in the least sensitive locations, 
limiting tree loss around ponds and 
reducing the residual works required 
elsewhere. 

• Each dam must be able to pass 
-5*$#*+)6"$7''#$)"7'0$+!.*;AL$)"$
accordance with Table 1 of ‘Floods 
!"#$F*+*&(')&$I!.*-AU$8SHTL$VWW3>2$
Hampstead No.1 Pond, Boating Pond 
and Highgate Men’s Pond must all pass 
the Probable Maximum Flood or PMF
as they are all Category A dams where 
“a breach could endanger lives in a 
community downstream”. A community 
)+$#*/"*#$)"$ZN;''#+$!"#$F*+*&(')&$
Safety’ as 10 people or more. Under 
the Flood and Water Management Act 
2010 this has been revised downwards 
to 1 person.

• Tree loss is to be minimised to retain 
the character and natural aspect, of the 
Heath. 

• Each option is designed as a passive 
system to improve the resilience of 
the dams without reliance on any 
4*,5!"),!;$+A+-*4$8+:,5$!+$(!;(*+$'&$
pumps) or human intervention. The 
passive system of each option has been 
#*+)6"*#$-'$%!++$*G,*++$7''#$0!-*&$!-$
each dam following 
these principles: 

1. A spillway at most ponds that passes 
as much as possible of the PMF, in 
order to minimise the volume and 
+%**#$'.$0!-*&$7'0)"6$'(*&$-5*$#!4$
crest, where overtopping is tolerable 
8+**$P!9;*$V$'.$ZN;''#+$!"#$F*+*&(')&$
I!.*-AUL$SHTL$VWW32>

2. Where the overtopping of the dam 
crest is not tolerable, which applies 
to the majority of the dams in the 
%'"#$,5!)"+$8#:*$-'$-5*$":49*&$
of trees on the crests and on the 
downstream slopes), some works to 
raise or restore the dam crests and 
creation of natural open spillways 
are proposed, to pass the PMF in 
order to minimise risk of dam failure. 
There is therefore a trade off at 
each pond between the amount of 
dam crest raising, and the width and 
depth of the spillway required to 
pass the PMF safely. 

3. Where overtopping of the dam crest 
)+$-';*&!9;*$805),5$'";A$!%%;)*+$-'$
the dams at Mixed Bathing and Bird 
I!",-:!&A$D'"#+>L$!"#$*G,*++$7''#$
water up to the PMF still needs to 
be passed over the dam crest or the 
downstream slope, reinforcement 
works to the downstream face may 
9*$&*[:)&*#$-'$!;;'0$7'0$'(*&$%!&-$
or all of the width of the dam crest.

2.16 The project has to be capable of standing 
up to external scrutiny, and this is why the 
design is constrained by these principles, 
which have a basis in legal requirements 
and standard dam safety guidelines.

P
age 47



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT6

Design Philosophy 

2.17 The design philosophy common to all 
'%-)'"+$)+$)"7:*",*#$9A$-5*$&*[:)&*4*"-$
to comply with the Hampstead Heath 
Act 1871, feedback from stakeholder 
engagement described in Chapter 3 
and the City’s Vision for the Heath and 
Hampstead Heath Management Plan.

2.18 The design philosophy includes: 

• More storage capacity that has been 
added in the middle of each chain 
of ponds for each option to reduce 
-5*$&!-*$'.$7'0$'.$7''#0!-*&$-'$-5*$
downstream ponds. The amount 
of works required to increase the 
resilience of the dams to overtopping 
has therefore been reduced in scale. 
Q&4':&)"6$-5*$05';*$#!4$,&*+-+$8!"#$
removing all trees on the dams) would 
not be required in most cases. Similarly 
works would only be required to install 
spillways, therefore preserving the 
majority of the trees on the dams.

• The current water level has been 
retained in each pond to protect the 
visual amenity and character of the 
Heath. Any proposed new spillway 
has been set above the typical normal 
water level of the pond in question, so 
that it would be normally generally dry 
and allow so the spillway surface can 
to be covered in grass. The nature of 
-5*$6&!++$4)G$8*)-5*&$%;!)"$Z!4*")-AU$
6&!++L$'&$Z"!-)(*$0);#7'0*&U$6&!++$4)G>$
will depend on the expected speeds of 
0!-*&$7'0+$#'0"$-5*$+%);;0!A$)"$
each case.

• ‘Naturalised’ spillways have been 
proposed in the optimum locations 
around the ends of dams, where 
possible, to minimise tree loss 
!"#$()+:!;$)4%!,-2$S"$!##)-)'"$-'$
grass seeding on spillways, other 
environmental mitigation measures 
5!(*$9**"$)#*"-)/*#$-'$)"-*6&!-*$
the works, and retain the distinctive 
character of the Heath and key views, 
include planting on the upstream face 
of the dams and marginal planting eg 
reedbeds on the pond perimeter 

• The option design development has 
been constrained and informed by the 
existing environmental considerations 
!"#$!"$'(*&&)#)"6$!)4$)#*"-)/*#$
.'&$*!,5$%'"#$-'$&*7*,-$-5*$:")[:*$
landscape character of the pond. These 
distinct characteristics will inform 
the landscape design strategy to 
include earthmodelling and planting to 
integrate and soften the appearance of 
the dams, a planting list and materials 
palette that considers the type and 
/")+5$'.$4!-*&)!;+$*6$-5*$%'-*"-)!;$-A%*L$
colour design etc of potential cladding.

• The ponds and pond margins provide 
diversity in aquatic and terrestrial 
habitat. These habitats need protection 
and monitoring to minimise the risk 
of habitat loss/damage and the risk of 
harm/disturbance to animals including 
the spread of invasive species. Where 
any potential detriment to these 
5!9)-!-+$)+$)#*"-)/*#$-5)+$&*[:)&*+$
mitigation and reestablishment to 
achieve a balanced ecology around the 
ponds. Environmental mitigation* and 
compensation** measures have been 
considered collectively across the chains 

and are proposed as an integrated part 
of the options, including consideration 
'.$-5*$*"6)"**&)"6$0'&B+$8)*$-5*$
permanent works) and the temporary 
construction impacts on the ponds. All 
pond restoration will be integrated with 
the existing form and function of each 
individual pond, and the approach to 
improve water quality.

Four approaches have been proposed to 
restore the ponds: 

• Softening the edges and banks in 
their current locations

• Softening the edges and banks by 
creating new margin in the pond

• Softening the edges and bank by 
excavating new margin set back 
from 
the pond

• Restoring by adding new islands or 
internal margins.

*Environmental mitigation measures that 
provide the environmental restoration 
local to construction, for example, 
replacement of lost waterside margin. 

**Environmental compensation measures 
that are remote of the works and may 
include sediment removal, creation of new 
)+;!"#+$'&$&*4'()"6$"'"C"!-)(*$+%*,)*+$
for example.

•$ S"$!##)-)'"$-'$-5*$%'"#$&*+-'&!-)'"$
measures, further feasible water quality 
)4%&'(*4*"-+$5!(*$9**"$)#*"-)/*#$
for each pond to help comply with the 
Water Framework and Bathing Water 
Directives. These include:

• The removal or consolidation of 
sediment within an island or pond 
margin or possibly used to provide 
material for any dam works.

• The provision of reedbeds at the 
upstream end of each pond to trap 
sediment and stop it moving down 
the pond chain.

• Selective pruning back of 
overhanging trees to reduce 
seasonal leaf litter. 

• Aeration of the ponds to improve 
dissolved oxygen content

• Precipitation of phosphorous from 
-5*$0!-*&$,';:4"$8!$+-!"#!&#$0!-*&$
treatment process) or locking of 
phosphorous in the sediment

• Biological management – by 
removing the larger and bottom 
.**#)"6$/+5$8*262$H!&%>L$+'$
preventing the stirring up of 
+*#)4*"-+$8!"#$5*",*$%5'+%5'&:+$
release) and the subsequent impact 
on water quality. 

•$ N;'!-)"6$)+;!"#+$0)-5)"$"'"C+-!-:-'&A$
ponds to reduce nutrient levels 
through plant uptake, and provide 
"*0$5!9)-!-L$!4*")-A$(!;:*L$/+5$
refuge, and shading of the water 
column to address algal issues.

P
age 48



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 7

3. Engagement with stakeholders

3.1 The engagement process is shown in 
-5*$.';;'0)"6$:%#!-*#$7'0,5!&-$!"#$)+$
"'0$)"-'$-5*$<&#$S-*&!-)'"$I-!6*2$P5*$
engagement with the Ponds Project 
I-!B*5';#*&$K&':%$8DDIK>$5!+$9**"$!$
continual process throughout the spring 
and summer of this year, and so far has 
included these activities:

• Comments on the Design Review 
Method Statement and the Assessment 
of Design Flood Report, 

• The Critical Review, where the Strategic 
Landscape Architect asked the 
stakeholders about their concerns and 
preferences, then captured these into a 
document given to the City of London
and Atkins,

• Constrained Options workshop, 18th 
May 2013 – where the concepts 
8*6$'.$!##)"6$*G-&!$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A>$
and typical engineering solutions 
were discussed,

• Site walks, including one on 17th 
\:"*$]=V<$-5!-$+%*,)/,!;;A$;''B*#$!-$
the possible scale of embankment 
works at the Catchpit area and Model
Boating Pond,

• Shortlist Options workshop, 13th 
July 2013 – where the shortlist of 
engineering options was presented 
along with the environmental 
engineering options to provide 
mitigation and compensation by 
focusing on pond restoration and 
water quality,

• Regular attendance by City of London
and Atkins engineers and technical 
specialists at PPSG evening meetings, 
to answer technical queries and 
address concerns raised,

• Preferred Options workshop, 14th 
September – focussing on three 
engineering options for each pond 
,5!)"$!"#$-5*$%'"#C+%*,)/,$'%-)'"+$
for pond restoration and water 
quality works,

•$ S"#)()#:!;$4**-)"6+$0)-5$+%*,)/,$
groups eg Elaine Grove and Oak Village 
Residents’ Association, Highgate Men’s 
D'"#$Q++',)!-)'"L$^&''B/*;#$M!"+)'"+$
Residents’ Association and the Heath & 
Hampstead Society,

• Open technical meetings for 
PPSG members,

• Engagement with Heath staff, such as 
ecologists and tree specialists,

• Stakeholder involvement in the 
,'4%*-)-)(*$#)!;'6:*$%&',*++$805*&*$
tendering constructors proposals were 
discussed), including involvement in 
the selection of the form of contract 
to be used.

3.2$ Q.-*&$-5*$/&+-$-0'$0'&B+5'%+L$!"$'%-)'"+$
report was issued to stakeholders, who 
provided comments. These were taken 
into account, where possible, at the next 
stage of developing and modelling the 
options. The comments and responses to 
queries on the Shortlist Options Report 
are collated in Volume 2 of the Preferred 
Option Report. All other queries received 
since October 2013 are collated in a Log

of Questions and Answers that is available 
on the Ponds Project home page http://
0002,)-A'7'"#'"26'(2:B@-5)"6+C-'C#'@
6&**"C+%!,*+@5!4%+-*!#C5*!-5@%'"#+C
project/Pages/default.aspx

3.3 One of the aims of the Preferred Options 
workshop was to address stakeholders’ 
concerns raised in the comments on the 
Shortlist Options report. This workshop 
proposed two new options, one of these is 
described in detail in this report. 

3.4 As well as stakeholder comments and 
queries, some proposals and suggestions 
have been put forward by the PPSG. 
These have been considered carefully by 
the design team. While some proposals 
have been assessed as not feasible in 
terms of meeting the key objectives of the 
project, others have been taken on board. 
These proposals are discussed later in this 
report. 

P
age 49



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT8

Stakeholder
consultation with 

constituents 

Stakeholder
consultation with 

constituents 

Overview of options development process

Quantitative
(QRA) Risk
Assessment

(First phase - 
Baseline)

Professional 
experience

Existing pond 
use site visits 
and reports

Ecological
conditions

observed and 
documented

Project drivers 
and objectives

Possible 
)4%&'(*4*"-+$C$
Water quality

Landscape
considerations

User
requirements 
from previous 
consultation

Concept
engineering

Stakeholder
consultation with 

constituents 

Hydrology 
and hydraulic 

modelling

Detail, data and 
analysis

Environment 
design,

management and 
improvements

Statutory
obligations

Engineering and 
environmental 

advice

1st Iteration
Stakeholder
engagement

Constrained 
options PPSG 

Workshop 
18 May 2013

Requirements 
for dam safety 

and water 
management

Cyclical 
process taking 
into account 

engineering and 
environmental 
considerations

2nd Iteration
Stakeholder
engagement

Short list of 
options PPSG 

Workshop
13 July 2013

3rd Iteration
Stakeholder
engagement

Preferred options
PPSG Workshop
14 September 

2013

31st May 2013

CONSTRAINED OPTIONS REPORT

Constrained 
Options Report

4th October 2013

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT

Preferred 
Options Report

(this report)

PROBLEM DEFINITION

Problem
!"#$%&%'$

Assessment
of Design

Report

Quantitative
(QRA) Risk
Assessment

(Second phase 
- Design)

Design
Development

Planning
Application

Constrained options

Non-Statutory
Public

Consultation

Statutory 
Consultation

Constructor
involvement and 

advice

Water Management 
Matrix (WMM)

unconstrained options

July 2013

SHORTLIST OPTIONS REPORT

Shortlist 
Options Report

Design Review
Method Statement

P
age 50



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 9

4. Incorporation of suggestions from stakeholders

4.1 A number of suggestions from stakeholders 
have been considered as feasible and have 
)"7:*",*#$-5*$#*(*;'%4*"-$'.$-5*$%&*.*&&*#$
options. Suggestions have either been 
incorporated into the options development 
and modelled, or can be modelled in the 
forthcoming outline design stage.

4.2 Providing extra storage capacity 
()*(+%,-%$.*/*0''-*1&'2/."*-/3*
at the Catchpit area in order 
to minimise works at most 
sensitive pond

This has become a key element of the 
options for the Hampstead chain of ponds, 
and has been modelled extensively. The 
7''#$+-'&!6*$#!4$0':;#$,&*!-*$!&':"#$
12,000m3$'.$!##)-)'"!;$7''#$+-'&!6*$
,!%!,)-AL$05),5$+)6")/,!"-;A$&*#:,*+$-5*$
extent, scale, and impact of works to 
downstream ponds.

4.3 Keeping the Kenwood Ladies 
Bathing Pond changing rooms in 
the centre of the dam

This has been incorporated into the options 
design due to queries about the impact 
of moving the building to the east bank in 
terms of lifeguard visibility.

4.4 Desilting ponds at the same time 
as the dam safety works

S-$0!+$+:66*+-*#$-5!-$0'&B+$-'$&*4'(*$
silt from the ponds could be carried out 
while there are construction plant on site 
to carry out the dam safety works. As 
0*;;$!+$!,5)*()"6$*./,)*",)*+$!"#$&*#:,)"6$
the overall impact of two separate sets of 
works, this creates possibilities such as 
the potential for moving the silt into the 
9'&&'0%)-+$,&*!-*#$-'$%&'()#*$/;;$.'&$&!)+)"6$

dams. Certain ponds are prioritised for 
these desilting works, such as Viaduct 
Pond, Stock Pond, and Bathing Ponds.

4.5 Retaining the group of trees on 
the west bank of Model Boating 
Pond and turning the area into 
a peninsula

This idea has been incorporated in the 
#*+)6"$8+**$()+:!;)+!-)'"+$)"$-5*$%&*.*&&*#$
options section) and the assessment of 
-5*$!4':"-$'.$/;;$-5!-$,!"$9*$*G,!(!-*#$
from the west bank will take the peninsula 
into account.

4.6 42/5#6*3/$/."3"$&*%-"/1

Suggestions such as avoiding movement 
9*-0**"$%'"#$,5!)"+$8)"$'&#*&$-'$
minimise the impact of construction 
-&!./,>$5!(*$9**"$)",'&%'&!-*#$)"-'$-5*$
constructor’s brief

4.7 Modelling of options to 
reduce loss of plane trees at 
Hampstead No.2 Pond

At the constrained options workshop, 
there was a general consensus that the 
line of plane trees on and near the dam 
at Hampstead No.2 Pond was a key 
feature on the Hampstead chain of ponds. 
Consequently, the plane trees became 
a focal point for all options modelled 
on this chain, with the number of plane 
trees affected becoming a key criterion in 
options comparison.

4.8 Borrowpit locations

Heath staff and stakeholders have 
provided suggestions for the location of 
9'&&'0%)-+$.'&$/;;$-'$&!)+*$*49!"B4*"-+2$

This has informed the planning of 
ground investigations, which are critical 
to the progress of the detailed design 
of preferred options. Subject to the 
&*+:;-+$-5)+$0);;$!;+'$+)6")/,!"-;A$9*"*/-$
-5*$)4%!,-$'"$-&!./,$4'(*4*"-+$-'$!"#$
from the Heath in the neighbouring 
communities and within the Heath.

4.9 7--%$.*/$*"8&2/*'9"20':*;%;"*
to Model Boating Pond, in order 
to reduce the spillway width

This is desirable since the existing 
'(*&7'0$%)%*$)+$'";A$<V=44$)"$#)!4*-*&2$
A new larger pipe, set just above normal 
0!-*&$;*(*;L$,':;#$9*$&*;!-)(*;A$*./,)*"-$!-$
#)+,5!&6)"6$!$%'&-)'"$'.$-5*$7''#0!-*&+$
and could lead to a reduction in the 
spillway width, provided that it does not 
reduce the standard of protection at the 
downstream end of the ponds. This is a 
&*/"*4*"-$-5!-$,':;#$9*$4'#*;;*#$#:&)"6$
the outline design phase.

4.10 Widening the proposed 
reinforced spillway at Mixed 
Bathing Pond to reduce the 
dam raising

The causeway at Mixed Bathing Pond 
is one of the few dams where this 
kind of approach is feasible, since the 
downstream slope is a uniform grassy 
slope and is mostly clear of trees. 

An increased spillway width, with a lower 
dam crest level, could be modelled to test 
whether there is a compromise between 
the 1m and 2m raising. For example, in 
the current options where the crest is 
raised by 2m, the proposed spillway is 

1.7m above the existing crest level. A 
variation on this could have a spillway 
)",&*!+*#$.&'4$VX4$-'$_=4$8!;4'+-$-5*$
whole clear length between the tree 
canopies at either end), with the spillway 
crest at 1.5m up from the existing crest 
level, and with the crest raised to 1.8m at 
each end of dam.

4.11 <",'6/&%$.*&="*'9"20':*;%;"*
between Bird Sanctuary Pond 
and Model Boating

P5)+$0':;#$5!(*$!*+-5*-),$9*"*/-+$
because it would allow removal of the 
*G)+-)"6$,'",&*-*$+;!9$05*&*$-5*$'(*&7'0$
pipe discharges into Model Boating Pond. 
This pipe could be relocated to the west 
end of the Bird Sanctuary Pond dam, 
while retaining or refurbishing the other 
existing pipe at the east end. Details of 
works on these pipes could be included 
in the plans when these are developed 
during the outline design phase.

P
age 51



10

5. Preferred Options - Highgate Chain
5.2 These two options are shown in a 

schematic form on the revised options 
7'0,5!&-2$Q+$&*[:*+-*#$9A$+-!B*5';#*&+L$
the provisional depths and widths of 
spillways are now included on the 
7'0,5!&-L$!;'"6$0)-5$)".'&4!-)'"$'"$
the standard of protection provided. 
This information comes from running a 
&!"6*$'.$#)..*&*"-$+)`*$7''#+$-5&':65$-5*$
5A#&!:;),$4'#*;$-'$/"#$':-L$05),5$&*-:&"$
%*&)'#$7''#$)+$-5*$;!&6*+-$'"*$-'$9*$
contained below the proposed spillway 
;*(*;$'.$-5*$;!+-$%'"#$8Y)656!-*$a'2V$
Pond).

5.3 Although not a design objective, as a 
consequence of the dams being designed 
to pass the PMF safely, there is an 
improved standard of protection for 
people living downstream of the ponds. 
S"$'-5*&$0'&#+L$4'&*$7''#0!-*&$.&'4$
higher return period events would be 
temporarily stored below the spillway 
level. Less water would therefore be 
7'0)"6$'(*&;!"#$-'0!&#+$^&''B/*;#$
Mansions from the last pond, and 
more water would be slowly passed 
-5&':65$-5*$'(*&7'0$%)%*+$)"-'$-5*$
+*0*&$+A+-*42$ S-$+5':;#$9*$"'-*#$-5!-$
-5*$/6:&*$.'&$-5*$7'0$9*)"6$#)+,5!&6*#$
from the last pond in the PMF event in 
the existing scenario now includes some 
7'0$-5!-$-5*$4'#*;$+5'0+$-'$9*$7'0)"6$
round the low spot in the natural ground 
at the south west side of the dam at 
Highgate No.1 Pond. This element of 
7'0$5!+$9**"$)",;:#*#$)"$-5*$-'-!;$7'0$
downstream, to allow a fair comparison 
of the options with the existing scenario, 
+)",*$-5*$':-%:-$7'0$.&'4$-5*$%&'%'+*#$
options is all through the proposed 
+%);;0!A+$05),5$&*%;!,*$-5*$7'0$&':"#$
the sides.

Options selection process: 
Highgate chain

5.1 The two preferred options for this chain 
of ponds are currently as follows:

• Option 4: Crest Restoration works 
at Stock Pond and Kenwood Ladies 
Bathing Pond, 2m raising of the 
dam at Model Boating Pond, 1.5m 
and 1.25m raising of dams at Men’s 
Bathing Pond and Highgate No.1 Pond. 
Spillway works at all ponds.

• Option 6: Crest restoration works at 
Stock Pond and Ladies Bathing Pond, 
2.5m raising of the dam at Model
Boating Pond, 1.0m and 1.25m raising 
of dams at Men’s Bathing Pond and 
Highgate No.1 Pond.

Stock Pond

Kenwood Ladies Bathing Pond

Bird Sanctuary

Model Boating Pond

Mens Bathing Pond

Highgate Chain - Modelled Options flowchart

Preferred options as at 26/09/2013

Spillway 1000mm deep, 20m 

base width / 46m upper width

Dam raising + 1.0m

Spillway 750mm deep,  25m / 

43m wide

Dam raising + 1.5m

Spillway 750mm deep,  25m / 

43m wide

Option 6

Dam raising +2.5 metres

Option 4

Dam raising +2.0 metres

Spillway 1100mm deep,  20m 

base width / 46m upper width

Crest restoration by 0.1m max

no spillway works

Crest restoration by 0.5m max

Spillway 500mm deep, min 21m base 

width, 33m upper width, plus 2 new 900mm 

dia overflow pipes

Crest restoration by 0.2m max

Spillway 800mm deep, 15m / 34m wide

Highgate No.1 Pond

Flows downstream in PMF 
(existing scenario PMF flow, including 

flows round dam at Highgate No.1 

Pond = 38.0m
3
/s)

Standard of protection

(existing standard of protection of last 

pond in chain = 1 in 100 year flood)

Option status derreferPderreferP

at least 1 in 1000 year flood

PMF output flow: 30.9m
3
/s

Standard of protection

Dam raising +1.25m

43m wide43m wide

Standard of protection

at least 1 in 1000 year flood

Spillway 570mm deep,  60m / 

74m wide

PMF output flow: 32.7m
3
/s

Dam raising +1.25m

Spillway 570mm deep,  60m / 

74m wide

P
age 52



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 11

Details of Preferred 
Options - Highgate

5.4 The details of the two preferred options 
are summarised for each pond below, 
followed by visualisations, sections 
and plans showing the environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

View Point 12 – View to north east along dam from south west of Stock Pond - Existing View Point 12 – View to north east of spillway along dam from south west of Stock Pond 

Option 4 works 
description

Stock Pond

5.5 Proposed works involve:

• Crest restoration of the eastern part of 
the dam by up to 500mm.

• An open channel spillway, 21m wide at 
its base, which is set above top water 
;*(*;$8PbO>$)"$'&#*&$.'&$-5*$+%);;0!A2$

To remain typically dry, so that the 
reinforcement to prevent the spillway 
*&'#)"6$#:&)"6$&!&*$5)65$7'0+$,!"$
be lined with topsoil and grass. The 
spillway would be located around the 
western end of the dam, where the 
tree coverage thins out towards the 
'%*"$/*;#L$)"$'&#*&$-'$4)")4)+*$-&**$
loss. The spillway would be 500mm 
deep and would have side slopes 
at 1:12 to maintain access along 
the reinstated road for vehicles and 
wheelchair users.

•$ P0'$"*0$W==44$#)!4*-*&$'(*&7'0$
pipes set at the TWL at the same level 
!+$-5*$*G)+-)"6$'(*&7'0$%)%*2$P5*+*$
would follow the open channel spillway 
route closely and then discharge into 
the next pond.

Refer to Page 12 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

P
age 53



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT12

Retain water level, limited 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to minimise visual 
impact and to retain the wild and 
natural character of the Heath.

OVERRIDING AIM

Create spiled edge to 
constrain existing reed bed.

Tree management on west 
bank to remove some of the 
overhanging branches and 

create ‘windows’.

Crest restoration (up to 0.5m) creation 
of ‘soft’(grass-lined) 21/33m spillway at 

western end of dam. Enclosed character and 
‘landscape walk’ feel of footpath retained. 

Tree loss limited to less than 3No.

Footpath reinstatement on crest.

Fence replaced to 
control access 

Japanese knotweed 
management

Conservation and 
protection of veteran 
trees and hedgerow

Fixed island created 
using dredge sediments.

Water level retained, 
and biomanipulation 

by introduction of 
Perch, and sediment 

removal.

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Stock Pond 

Create new marginal shelf use 
dredge sediments and plant with 

common reed.

Japa

Areation with pipe diffuser

Marginal planting at 
new inlet.

Reinstatement of planting 
along dam face and marginal 
and emergent planting low/

medium level to retain views.
Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Indicative centreline of 
possible spillway location.

P
age 54



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 13

Kenwood Ladies Bathing Pond

5.6 Proposed works involve:

• Crest restoration works to bring up 
the eastern half of the dam by up 
to 230mm.

• An open channel spillway to be 
installed around the western end of 
the dam, subject to further surveys/ 
investigation and design development. 
This spillway would be 800mm deep 
and if required could have have side 
slopes of 1: 12 to maintain disabled 
access from the south west side used 
by some swimmers. The exact location 
of the spillway would be decided on 
by assessing the potential for tree 
loss on the downstream slope of the 
#!42$8P5)+$0);;$9*$,'"/&4*#$05*"$-5*$
latest topographical survey is received 
as it can then be combined with the 
information from the tree survey.) After 
the spillway passes the bottom of the 
downstream slope of the dam, it would 
change into a shallow natural channel 
0)-5$-'%+');C;)"*#$&*)".'&,*4*"-$4!--)"6$
as it runs down to Bird Sanctuary Pond. 
No tree clearance would be therefore 
needed beyond the dam slope. 

• Replacing the changing room / building 
with a similar structure in a similar 
;',!-)'"L$9:-$0)-5$!$&!)+*#$7''&$+;!9$
so that the underside of the slab is 
300mm above the new level of the 
crest. Architects will look at options for 
ensuring that the access to the building 
.&'4$-5*$*!+-$+)#*$8-5*$M);;/*;#$O!"*$
side) complies with current regulations.

• Potential to reduce the width of the 
open channel spillway by replacing the 
*G)+-)"6$'(*&7'0$%)%*$0)-5$!$;!&6*&$%)%*$
'&$%)%*+$05),5$,':;#$%!++$7'0+$-'$'"*$
or more legs of Bird Sanctuary Pond.

Refer to Page 14 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and water 
quality.

P
age 55



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT14

Retain water level, minimise 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to minimise visual 
impact and effects on users, and 
maintain the spirit of place and 
seclusion, key views to the south 
east, and retain the wild and natural 
character of the Heath.

Extend reed bed margin to 
perform as sediment trap 

in front of the outlets from 
Stock Pond.

Selective thinning in the 
rear of the pond to allow 

light penetration.

Existing edge 
retained.

Character of historic 
entrances and approaches 
inc Meadow Gate retained. 

Existing pond bank to 
be replanted across the 

new spillway. 

Selective tree management 
on west bank to remove 
overhanging branches.

Pond to be dredged for water 
quality improvements.

Character of historic 
entrances and approaches 
inc Meadow Gate retained. 

Meadow to west protected – 
woodland /scrub grassland 

mosaic along edge to 
reinforce planting providing 
enclosure whilst increasing 

ecological diversity. 

Water level 
retained.

Footpath reinstatement on crest 
with access to sunbathing meadow 

and South Meadow retained. 

Crest restoration by up to 230mm 
on eastern half of dam to allow 
creation of ‘soft’ (grass-lined) 
spillway 15/34m around south 

western end of dam. Crest 
restoration to be  carried out along 

dam crest, to avoid tree loss and 
retain natural aspect and secluded, 

enclosed character.

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

OVERRIDING AIM

Building replaced on top of dam with 
similar function and size in similar 

location, with low impact appearance. 
Pier structure to extend potentionally 
slightly further into pond due to crest 

restoration of eastern half of dam. 

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Kenwood Ladies’ Bathing Pond

Indicative centreline of 
possible spillway location.

P
age 56



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 15

Bird Sanctuary Pond

5.7 Proposed works are limited to:

• Crest restoration of the low spots 
)"$-5*$,!:+*0!A$&'!#$9A$/;;)"6$0)-5$
4!-*&)!;$!&':"#$c=$C$V==44$#**%2$8a'$
retaining wall required).

• Potential for some minor works to 
&*%;!,*$-5*$'(*&7'0$%)%*$9*-0**"$^)&#$
Sanctuary Pond and Model Boating 
Pond.

See left for environmental mitigation and 
compensation measures proposed for 
pond restoration and 
water quality

B

5.5.

OVERRIDING AIM

Retain water level, minimise 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to minimise impact 
on wildlife habitats and visual 
amenity, and retain the wild and 
natural character of the Heath.

New spillway from Ladies
Pond to be replanted along 
the bank with a spiled edge 

using low height species.

Existing edge retained.

Enhance and encourage reed 
bed with new margin.

Excavate new channels and 
wetlands to form wet woodland 
with tree removal and thinning.

Crest restoration to reduce risk of 
'9"2&';;%$.*0':1*6+&&%$.*.+,,%"1*%$&'*,':*
1;'&1*-+2%$.*13/,,*0''-1>*?'*1;%,,:/)*

required as the whole dam is submerged in 
,/2."2*0''-1*?'*-/3*2/%1%$.@*/$-*$'*&2""*

loss to retain natural aspect and secluded, 
enclosed character.

Water level 
retained.

Footpath reinstatement 
on crest.

A%$.#1="2*$"1&%$.*/2"/*
retained and protected.

Fence replaced to 
control access.

Potential sites for amphibian 
and reptile hibernacula around 

Bird Sanctuary Pond.

OVERRIDING AIM

Bird Sanctuary Pond 

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

<"3'9/,*'5*'9"20':*;%;"*/$-*
concrete slab at pipe outfall.

Replant bank and extend 
existing marginal wetland.

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Indicative possible location of 
replacement overflow pipes

New marginal planting (low 
level) along dam face.

Spiling

Repair
'9"20':

P
age 57



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT16

Model Boating Pond

5.8 D&'%'+*#$0'&B+$(!&A$!-$-5)+$%')"-2$S"$
Option 4 the works involve:

• Raising of the existing dam by 2m by 
constructing an earth embankment on 
the upstream face of the existing dam 
against the sheet piles.

• A spillway on the raised section of 
bank that would be 20m wide at the 
9!+*L$!"#$V2V4$#**%$8)2*2$9*;'0$-5*$
raised upper crest level). After the 
downstream toe of the new bank, 
the spillway would change to become 

shallower and widen out towards the 
west abutment. A low training bund 
running down the downstream slope of 
-5*$*G)+-)"6$#!4$0':;#$6:)#*$-5*$7'0$
towards the natural ground to the west, 
in order to minimise lining works.

• Excavating the natural ground slope 
above the west side of the pond, 
widening the surface area of the water 
and removing the sheet piles on that 
side to create a softened edge. This 
excavation is intended to provide 
material for the dam and so can be 
shaped in such as way as to avoid 

View Point 13 – View south west / west across Model Boating Pond from sunbathing bank in east
Existing

View Point 13 – View south west / west across Model Boating Pond from sunbathing bank in east of enlarged pond 
area and wetland - 2m Raising (option 4)

trees, e.g. by leaving an island around 
the group of lime trees half way along 
the west bank. The upper slope of 
the west bank would be cut from the 
existing slope of around 1:10 to 1:8.

Refer to Page 21 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

P
age 58



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 17

View Point 6 – Across Model Boating Pond looking South 
2m raising without landscaping of dam (option 4)

View Point 6 – Across Model Boating Pond looking South 
Existing

P
age 59



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT18

View Point 8 - View across Model Boating Pond looking East  
Existing

View Point 8 - View across Model Boating Pond looking East  
2m bund and wetland showing indicative landscaping (option 4)

P
age 60



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 19

70m AOD

75m

80m

65m 38m

4m

Top Water Level (TWL)
71.35m AOD

Assumed existing
bed profile

Existing sheet piles
to be removed

71.15m AOD

Area of open water and
wetland created

Existing slope 1:10

4m Wide path,
re-routed

Proposed excavated
slope 1:8

Wetland planting

Regraded slope to be
lined with topsoil taken

from excavation

Cross section of widening / excavation at west bank of Model Boating Pond

P
age 61



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT20

Top Water Level (TWL)
71.35m AOD

13.2m

2m

3.6m

2m

73.87m AOD max crest level

2.52m
2.0m

Marginal planting along new water edge: 
Common reed for screening

Grass surface to
new embankment

Existing fence

Existing path

Assumed existing ground level Existing dam sheetpile

Model Boating Pond

7.6m

Approx 2.4m
(varies)

Model Boating Pond Option 4 - 2.0m raising

P
age 62



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 21

Retain water level, minimise scale 
and impact of any proposed works 
on visual amenity of Heath and 
ambiance of Men’s Bathing, protect 
views from north whilst providing an 
opportunity to enhance views to the 
south. Soften pond edge – reducing 
sterility of pond margins improving 
biodiversity whilst retaining access 
to water’s edge, open views across 
water and unique landscape 
character.

Crest raising 2.0/2.5m 
on upstream side of dam 

to retain mature trees 
on downstream face and 

limit impact on views 
from Men’s Bathing 

Pond.

Enlargement of pond and 
creation of new wetland 
area. Existing footpaths 
retained and realigned. 

Spoil used for dam 
embankment.

Water level 
retained.

Amenity use of 
‘sunny bank’ 
on east side 
potentially

extended on to 
upstream face. 

Pond enlarged and 
naturalised along western 
edge with trees and access 

to pond edge retained. 

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Dam embankment merged 
into the existing natural 

topography. - up to 2No tree 
removed.

Existing edge, access 
and expansive views 
retained from sunny 

bank.

Model Boating Pond 

‘Natural’ spillway 20m base width, 
44-46m upper width at western 

end of dam through trees. 

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Indicative centreline of 
possible spillway location.

Replant bank and extend existing marginal wetlands.

Aeration using pipe diffusers.

Naturalise appearance of 
dam with new planting to 
2"0"6&*';"$*6=/2/6&"2*'5*
pond include species rich 
grassland on upstream 

face - pond edge planting to 
integrate crest raising.

Access extended along upstream dam 
5/6"*:%&=*%$&"23%&&"$&*B#1=%$.*;".1C>

Creation of new margin 
along new dam edge with 

high and low planting 
to screen the new 

embankment.

anank k 

Existing access along dam 
reinstated with views 

overlooking Men’s Bathing Pond.

Potential to 
extend landscape 
dam embankment.

Indicative possible location of 
replacement overflow pipes

P
age 63



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT22

Mens Bathing Pond

5.9 S"$J%-)'"$_$-5*$0'&B+$5*&*$)"(';(*?

• Remedial works to prevent leakage 
through the dam and settlement of 
the dam material. The nature of these 
0'&B+$0);;$9*$,'"/&4*#$.';;'0)"6$
ground investigation which will enable 
analysis of the stability of the dam 
#:&)"6$7''#$*(*"-+2

• Raising of the dam crest level with a 
wall 1.5m high on the dam crest, along 
the line of the existing fence. This 
wall would have a reinforced concrete 
core with cladding such as timber, 
colour and material to be agreed. The 
upstream sheet piles would not be 
affected but could be screened 
with planting.

• A reinforced grass spillway, with a 
base 750mm below the top of the 
new wall. The location of the spillway 
would be subject to further surveys / 
investigations and design development. 
The spillway could either be on the gap 
between bushes on the downstream 
slope, or round the west end of the 
dam, which would require cutting and 
/;;)"6$!&':"#$-5*$"!-:&!;$6&':"#$)"$
-5!-$!&*!$!"#$+'4*$-&**$;'++$8*G!,-$
":49*&+$-'$9*$,'"/&4*#$'",*$-5*$
latest topographical survey results 
are combined with the tree survey 
information).

Refer to Page 24 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality

View Point 9 - View across Mens Bathing Pond looking South , showing one possible location of spillway 
1.5m wall (Option 4)

View Point 9 - View across Mens Bathing Pond looking South  
Existing

P
age 64



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 23

View Point 14 – Across Highgate No. 1 Pond looking North, showing one possible location of spillway 
1.5m wall (Option 4)

View Point 14 – Across Highgate No. 1 Pond looking North 
Existing

P
age 65



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT24

Retain water level, minimum 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to retain the natural 
character and minimise the scale 
and impact of any proposed works, 
on visual amenity of the Heath and 
ambiance of Men’s Bathing Pond, 
protect views from north.

OVERRIDING AIM

Existing edge made good 
to suit spillway from Model 

Boating.

Open species rich grass 
area created alongside 
jetty with pond edge 
access and seating. 

Existing edge retained.

Pond to be dredged 
for water quality 
improvements.

Management of 
overhanging trees -
natural aspect and 
enclosure retained.

Creation of new 
margin along hard 
"-."*:%&=*#1=%$.*

access.

Water level 
retained.

good 
Model 

Crest 0.5/1.0m 
raising on 

upstream side 
of dam.

Narrow margin in 
front of existing 

sheet piling.

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.
Some Management of 

overhanging trees although 
constrained by nesting great 

crested grebes - natural aspect 
and enclosure retained.

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Potential location for ‘Natural’ grass surfaced 
spillway 25m base width, 43m upper width, 

either around western end of dam or through 
gap in trees on southern half of dam. Informal

footpath and fence reinstated – screened 
from Men’s Bathing Pond by crest raising on 

upstream face.

Extend existing 
reed bed sediment 
&2/;*/&*%$0':>

Indicative centreline of 
possible alternative spillway 
locations.

Aeration using pipe diffusers.

Men’s Bathing Pond 

P
age 66



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 25

Highgate No.1 Pond

5.10 S"$J%-)'"$_$-5*$0'&B+$5*&*$)"(';(*?

• Raising of the dam crest level by 1.25m 
with a short wall on the crest. This wall 
would have a reinforced concrete core 
with cladding eg timber, colour and 
material to be agreed.

• A 60m wide spillway, partly on the 
western end of the dam and partly 
along the natural ground to the west 
of the dam. This spillway would start 
at the wooden fence that runs up 

the downstream slope and encloses a 
6&':%$'.$-&**+$-'$9*$&*-!)"*#2$S-$0':;#$
9*$1X=44$#**%$8&*;!-)(*$-'$-5*$-'%$'.$
-5*$0!;;>$05),5$0':;#$4*!"$+'4*$/;;$
would be required downstream of the 
lower section of the wall. The works to 
line this spillway and create a level base 
for it would require the loss of a small 
number of trees on the downstream 
slope of the dam only, as the western 
half of the spillway would be routed to 
avoid losses to the trees on the natural 
ground such as the veteran oak. Tree 
;'++$":49*&+$0);;$9*$,'"/&4*#$'",*$

the latest topographical survey results 
are combined with the tree survey 
information.

Refer to Page 27 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

View Point 10 – Across Highgate No. 1 Pond looking South  
1.25m wall (option 4)

View Point 10 – Across Highgate No. 1 Pond looking South 
Existing

P
age 67



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT26

View North on down stream slope of dam at Highgate No.1 Pond  
Option 4 + 6

View North on down stream slope of dam at Highgate No.1 Pond  
Existing

Start of retaining wall on crest

P
age 68



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 27

Retain water level, limited 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to minimise visual 
impact and tree loss to retain the 
natural character of the Heath.

Replant existing bank 
and extend existing 
marginal wetland.

Crest raising 1.25m on upstream side of dam to 
retain mature trees on downstream face ‘Natural’
spillway 60/74m at western end of dam through 
trees, partly on dam crest and partly on natural 
.2'+$-*1,';"*'$*:"1&*(/$D>*E,%.=&*#,,*'5*+;*&'*

300m to create spillway, footpaths to be raised 
to rampover spillway crest to maintain access.

Remove fallen and 
overhanging branches 

and trees.

Replant existing bank 
where eroded and worn.

Natural fencing to control 
access to pond.

No works on private bank.

Replant existing bank in 
front of new wall.

Water level 
retained.

Woodland retained with 
limited tree loss on east 
half of dam to manage 
9%":1*52'3*F2''D#",-*

Mansions.

Fence retained 
or replaced along 
existing dam to 
control access. 

Install bat 
boxes on trees.

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Highgate No1 Pond

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Indicative centreline of 
possible spillway location.

Aeration using pipe diffusers.

P
age 69



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT28

Option 6  
works description

Stock Pond, Ladies Bathing Pond 
and Bird Sanctuary Pond:

5.11 All works as described above for Option 4 
– refer to paragraphs 5.5 – 5.7.

Refer to Pages 12, 14 and 15 for 
environmental mitigation and 
compensation measures proposed for 
pond restoration and water quality.

Model Boating Pond

5.12 As described above for Option 4 – refer to 
paragraph 5.8 except for:

• The raising of the existing dam by 
2.5m by constructing and earth 
embankment on the upstream face of 
the existing dam. 

• The spillway location would be the 
same, but it would be 1.0m deep 
below the raised bank crest, so while 
the lower base width would be the 
same at 25m, the upper width would 
be slightly less at 44m.

Refer to Page 21 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

View Point 6 – Model Boating Pond 
Existing

View Point 6 – Model Boating Pond 
2.5m Raising without landscaping on dam (option 6) 

P
age 70



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 29

View Point 13 – View south west / west across Model Boating Pond from sunbathing bank in east 
Existing

View Point 13 – View south west / west across Model Boating Pond from sunbathing bank in east of enlarged 
pond area and wetland - 2.5m Raising (option 6)

P
age 71



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT30

View Point 8 - View across Model Boating Pond looking East  
Existing

View Point 8 - View across Model Boating Pond looking East  
2.5m bund and wetland with indicative landscaping (option 6)

P
age 72



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 31

Top Water Level (TWL)
71.35m AOD

16.2m

2m

5.1m

2m

74.37m AOD max crest level

3.02m 2.5m

Marginal planting along new water edge: 
Common reed for screening

Grass surface to
new embankment

Existing fence

Existing path

Assumed existing ground level Existing dam sheetpile

Model Boating Pond

9.1m

Approx 2.4m
(varies)

Model Boating Pond Option 6 - 2.5m raising

P
age 73



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT32

Men’s Bathing Pond

5.13 As described above for Option 4 – refer to 
paragraph 5.9 except for:

• The raising of the existing dam by 
building a wall 1.0m above dam crest 
level. 

• Spillway to be the same width and 
depth relative to the raising wall top 
;*(*;L$9:-$;',!-)'"$-'$9*$,'"/&4*#L$.'&$
reasons explained above for Option 4 in 
paragraph 5.9.

Refer to Page 24 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

View Point 9 - View across Mens Bathing Pond looking South  
Existing

View Point 9 - View across Mens Bathing Pond looking South  
1m Raising (option 6)

P
age 74



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 33

Highgate No.1 Pond

5.14 As described above for Option 4 – 
refer to paragraph 5.10. Refer to Page 
27 for environmental mitigation and 
compensation measures proposed for 
pond restoration and water quality.

Comparison of  
Options 4 and 6

5.15 Both options achieve a higher standard of 
protection for people living downstream, 
with the return period for operation of 
the spillway being in the range of 1 in 
VL===$A*!&+$-'$V$)"$V=L===$A*!&+2$8P5*$
existing standard of protection, beyond 
which the dam at Highgate No.1 pond is 
overtopped, is 1 in 100 years). 

5.16 Both options bring the discharge from 
the last ponds during a PMF to below 
-5*$7'0$&!-*+$*G%*,-*#$)"$-5*$*G)+-)"6$
+,*"!&)'2$S"$-5*$*G)+-)"6$+,*"!&)'L$).$7'0$
round the low spot to the southwest 
'.$-5*$#!4$)+$)",;:#*#L$-5*$-'-!;$7'0$
heading downstream is 38m3@+2$S"$J%-)'"$
_L$-5*$%*!B$7'0$'(*&$-5*$+%);;0!A$)+$
modelled at 32.7m3@+$!"#$-5*$%*!B$7'0$
in Option 6 is 30.9m3/s. 

5.17 Option 4 has less impact on the 
views towards and from the dam at 
Model Boating Pond since the raising 
embankment is 0.5m less. The lower 
height would mean that there would be 
less encroachment into the pond as the 
new dam would be 3m narrower above 
water level. However, the views across 
Men’s Bathing Pond have a greater 
impact in Option 4 since the 1.5m high 

wall is higher than the existing fence. 
The fence has panels 1.1 – 1.2m high 
with posts around 1.4m high), whereas 
the raising wall in Option 6 is 1.0m high. 
P5*&*.'&*L$-5*$-&!#*C'..+$9*-0**"$-5*$
two options on the Highgate chain relate 
to whether there is more visual impact at 
Model Boating Pond or at Men’s Bathing 
Pond.

5.18 Out of the two preferred options, Option 
3$80)-5$]214$&!)+)"6$!-$M'#*;$^'!-)"6$
D'"#>$%&'#:,*+$-5*$;'0*+-$':-%:-$7'0$)"$
!$DMN$7''#$!"#$-5*&*.'&*$#'*+$-5*$4'+-$
to reduce the impact on people living 
#'0"+-&*!4$.&'4$7''#)"6$)"$*G-&*4*$
events. However, both options achieve 
the key objectives of this project in 
improving dam safety and not making the 
7''#$&)+B$#'0"+-&*!4$0'&+*2

P
age 75



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT34

6. Preferred Options - Hampstead Chain
6.1 The preferred options for this chain are 

currently as follows:

• Option M: Crest restoration and 
spillway works at Vale of Health and 
Viaduct Ponds, build new 5.6m high 
7''#$+-'&!6*$#!4$80)-5$!$<==44$
pipe) at the Catchpit area, raise the 
dam at Mixed Bathing Pond 1.0m, 
install letterbox culvert spillways at 
Hampstead No.2 Pond and 
Hampstead No.1 Pond

• Option P:$C$H&*+-$&*+-'&!-)'"$!"#$
spillway works at Vale of Health and 
Viaduct Ponds, build new 5.6m high 
7''#$+-'&!6*$#!4$80)-5$!$<==44$%)%*>$
at the Catchpit area, raise the dam at 
Mixed Bathing Pond 2.0m, raise the 
dam at Hampstead No.2 Pond with 
a 0.5m wall, install letterbox culvert 
spillways at Hampstead No.2 Pond 
and Hampstead No.1 Pond

Details of Preferred 
Options - Hampstead

6.2 These two options are shown in a 
schematic form on the revised options 
7'0,5!&-L$05),5$5!+$9**"$:%#!-*#$-'$
include the provisional depths and widths 
of spillways, along with information on 
the standard of protection provided by 
the options. 

Crest restoration by 0.6m max

Spillway 550mm deep, 5m 

base width / 18m upper width

Vale of Health Pond - all 

options

Crest restoration by 0.2m

Spillway 300mm deep, 4m 

base width / 11m upper width

Hampstead Chain - Modelled Options flowchart
Preferred options as at 26/09/2013

Viaduct Pond - all 

options

Option M 

Option POption M 

New dam 5.6m high with 300mm pipe. 

Spillway 500mm deep, 80m /dished

Option P

Option P

Dam raising +2.0m 

Spillway 310mm deep, 17.1m 

/ 24.5m wide

New dam 5.6m high with 300mm pipe. 

Spillway 500mm deep, 80m /dished

Option M 

Dam raising +1.0m

Spillway 300mm deep, 25m / 

32.4m wide

Raising by max 0.5m with 

crest wall.

1No. Box culvert, 400 x 

5000mm wide (5.2m total 

width).

plane tree lost

p

Box culvert 400 x 4500mm, 

600mm deep

Option P

p

Box culverts, 340mm below 

EGL, 3No. 300 x 3000mm 

wide = 9.6m total width.

2 plane trees lost

Box culvert 400 x 4500mm 

wide, 600mm deep

 M noitpO

Crest raising with 0.5m high 

wallgnisiar oN

derreferPderreferP

PMF output flow = 3.3m
3

 = wolf tuptuo FMPs/ 1.4m
3
/s

Standard of protection

more than 1 in 1,000 year 

flood

Standard of protection

more than 1 in 10,000 year 

flood

1

Catchpit Area

Mixed Bathing Pond

Hampstead No.2 Pond

Hampstead No.1 Pond

Flows downstream in PMF event
!"#$%&$'()%*"'+,$-)./0)-1&2-3)4)56783/s)

Standard of protection
!"#$%&$'()%&+'9+,9)-:);,-&"*&$-')4)8-,")&<+')

=)$')=>???)@"+,)2--9A

Option Status

P
age 76



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 35

Option M works 
description

Vale of Health Pond

6.3 Proposed works involve:

• Crest restoration of the dam to a 
maximum of 0.6m above the lowest 
dam crest level.

• An open channel spillway, 550mm 
deep, 5m wide at the base, 18m wide 
at the top of the 1:12 side slopes, 
reinforced with topsoil and grass 
surface. The spillway will be located to 
run around either the south or north 
end of the dam. The exact location will 
9*$,'"/&4*#$.';;'0)"6$.:&-5*&$+:&(*A+$
and design development but will be 
chosen to minimise tree loss and avoid 
the sequoia tree near the south end.

•$ S"+-!;;!-)'"$'.$!$1==44$#)!4*-*&$':-;*-$
pipe to either replace or augment the 
*G)+-)"6$'(*&7'0$!&&!"6*4*"-2$

See left for environmental mitigation and 
compensation measures proposed for 
pond restoration and water quality.

To be completedTTTooo bbbbbeeee  ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccoooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooommmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllleeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt

Retain water level and minimise 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to avoid an adverse 
effect on the character of pond and 
surroundings, minimise visual impact 
and effects on users, and maintain 
the spirit of place and seclusion, key 
views to the south east, and retain 
the wild and natural character of 
the Heath.

Create new reed 
bed in corner by 
&="*%$0':

Reinstate existing bank 
line and replant margins 

with low species

Spiling around new 
pipe inlet headwall

tttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd

Water level retained 

Existing access to water’s edge 
/$-*1%.$%#6/$&*9%":1*G52'3*
gardens and from Heath NE,  

SE and SW) retained.

Maintain ‘lakeside walk’ feel of 
footpath and minimise tree loss 

to 1 or 2 trees at spillway

Crest restoration 
up to 600mm.

Potential sites for 
amphibian and reptile 

hibernacula

Footpath
reinstatement

on crest

No works on private bank

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMVale of Health Pond 

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Indicative centreline of possible 
alternative spillway locations.

Potential spillway 
location around south 
end of dam (Avoiding 

giant Sequoia).

Potential spillway 
location around 

north end of dam.

P
age 77



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT36

Viaduct Pond

6.4 Proposed engineering works involve:

• Crest restoration of the dam to a 
maximum of 180mm, which is likely to 
9*$!,5)*(*#$9A$;',!;$/;;)"6$'.$;'0$+%'-+L

•$ S"+-!;;!-)'"$'.$!$"*0$1==44$'(*&7'0$
pipe, to augment or replace the 
*G)+-)"6$'(*&7'0$%)%*2$Q;-*&"!-)(*;A$
there may be a possibility to improve 
the entrance to the existing pipe,

•$ Q$+5!;;'0$8<==44$#**%>$'%*"$,5!""*;$
spillway, 4m wide at the base, and 
11m wide at the top of the side slopes 
).$-5*+*$!&*$&*[:)&*#$-'$9*$V?V]2$8Q+$
there is not a formal footpath at 
this dam, the slope lengths may be 
reduced.) This spillway is likely to 
be located around the east end of 
the dam, subject to checks on tree 
locations when information from 
the ongoing topographical survey is 
incorporated on the design plans.

See left for environmental mitigation and 
compensation measures proposed for 
pond restoration and water quality.

Retain water level, minimise 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to minimise effect 
on visual amenity and features that 
contribute to setting of the Viaduct, 
and maintain the spirit of place and 
seclusion, key views to the south 
east, and retain the wild and natural 
character of the Heath.

Water level retained.

Retain downstream 
vegetation.

Crest restoration to 180mm to create 
‘soft’ grass surfaced spillway 5m / 11m 

at south eastern end of dam. 

Potential sites for amphibian 
and reptile hibernacula 
around Viaduct Pond.

No dam raising to maintain 
‘lakeside walk’ feel of footpath, 
minimise tree loss to 1No. tree.

Clearance and removal 
of existing scrub.

New headwall and outlet pipe.

Creation of natural 
cascade with reedbed 

to trap sediment.

Dredging of upper pond 
and lower pond for WQ.

Selective tree clearance and 
replanting of existing bank.

Selective Tree management to 
remove overhanging branches 

and partial set back.

Removal of overhanging trees 
and creation of new margin 
with low marginal species.

Reinstate existing timber piling 
in front of new spillway.

ing 

da

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Viaduct Pond 

Viaduct:
Grade II Listed Building.

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Indicative centreline of possible 
spillway location.

P
age 78



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 37

Catchpit Area

6.5 Works proposed here, in order to provide 
*G-&!$7''#$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$)"$-5*$4)##;*$
of the pond chain and minimise the 
impact of works on downstream dams, 
include:

•$ H'"+-&:,-)'"$'.$!$"*0$7''#$+-'&!6*$
dam, 5.6m high above the valley 
bottom. This dam would be earth 
embankment construction, with a grass 
surface, with some planting of isolated 
shrubs on the lower upstream face 
of the dam. Most of the crest would 
be one large spillway, designed to be 
overtopped along the whole length.

6.6 Up to 3 possible positions will be 
considered for the dam, in order to 
4)")4)+*$)4%!,-$'"$-&**+2$P5*$4!&B*#C:%$
aerials below are only intended to give 
an indicative idea of the location of the 
dam if the route of the crest was to run 
straight across the valley. 

P5*$/&+-$%'+)-)'"$0':;#$9*$+-&!)65-$!,&'++$
the valley along the existing clearing / 
path.

A second possible position would be a 
straight dam located further upstream 
!9'(*$-5*$*G)+-)"6$,!-,5%)-$805),5$0':;#$
require either rebuilding the catchpit 
pond or the creation of a new wetland 
habitat which would have a similar 
function in trapping sediments). 

A third position would involve the crest 
.'&4)"6$!"$IC+5!%*#$&':-*2

These routes will be considered in detail 
when the information from the new 
topographical survey is combined with 
the tree survey information.

6.7 The City of London are working with 
Atkins to identify borrow pit locations 
to provide material for the dam, such 
as the Field No.11 at the higher ground 
to the north of the clearing. A ground 
investigation early in 2014 will obtain 
material samples at these locations in 
order to assess the suitability of the 
ground.

Refer to Page 40 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

Catchpit - Position 1 possible location

Centre line of crest (extent of earthworks to be confirmed)

P
age 79



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT38

Catchpit - Position 2 possible location

P
age 80



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 39

Catchpit - Position 3 possible location

P
age 81



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT40

Catchpit - Landscape and Environmental Management

Existing Environmental Considerations:

• Open meandering stream, catchpit and mature oak trees

• Natural enclosed character, wooded valley with grass 
glades, that includes veteran and specimen trees

• Footpath forming tree lined route across the Heath linking 
to other important footpaths that have views into the area

• Use: Amenity, footpath users

• Opportunity for environmental improvements, including 
ecology

Options for pond restoration include:

• Extend the edge with new narrow marginal shelf to hide 
the existing hard engineering

• Catchpit option provides opportunity for new open water, 
aquatic and marginal planting

• Edge could be advanced by encouraging new waterside 
margins

• Replace concrete lined pond with wetland habitat 
and extend upstream of dam to provide water quality 
improvements

Minimum intervention for maximum storage, sensitive 
implementation to minimise the effect on the visual amenity 
and footpath users, and the scrubland character of the valley, 
and to retain the wild and natural character of the Heath.

OVERRIDING AIM

Landscape Mitigation & Compensation Options:

• Location and layout of embankment designed to minimise 
tree loss – especially veteran and specimen trees, by 
routing centre line of dam away from most valuable trees. 
?+3("2*'5*&2""1*&'*("*6'$#23"-*5',,':%$.*6'3(%$/&%'$*'5*
tree survey and topo survey

• Dam embankment merged into the existing natural 
topography – 3 potential positions to be considered using 
topographical and tree survey information

• Footpath link across valley retained 

• Restore natural character of wooded valley and grass 
glades

• Naturalise appearance of dam with new planting to include 
species rich grassland 

• Catchpit - pond restoration, water quality improvements 
and ecological management 

• Potential for creation of wet woodland / reedbed habitat 
upstream of dam by careful positioning of pipe through 
dam, this habitat creation could improve water quality in 
Mixed Bathing Pond downstream

Indicative outline of 
temporary stored floodwater.

Indicative centreline of dam 
(position to be confirmed).(p

Indicative centreline of 
spillway (most of dam crest).

P
age 82



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 41

Mixed Bathing Pond

6.8$ S"$J%-)'"$M$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$
here involve:

• Raising the causeway dam by a 
maximum of 1.0m, by building up from 
the crest road. This would be achieved 
9A$!##)"6$:%$-'$V4$'.$/;;$'"-'$-5*$
road at either end of the causeway. 
At the spillway, the net increase in 
road level would only be 0.7m, thus 
helping to reduce the visual impact 
on Mixed Bathing Pond. To avoid the 
two trees on the downstream slope 
of the west end of the causeway and 
the veteran oak at the east end, the 
downstream slope would be carried 
on up at the same gradient as existing 
8!%%&'G)4!-*;A$V?<>L$0)-5$!$+-**%$+;'%*$
on the upstream face.

•$ S"+-!;;)"6$!$+%);;0!A$<==44$#**%$)"-'$
the raised causeway, so that the net 
increase is 0.7m. The current spillway 
width has been modelled at 25m wide 
!-$-5*$9!+*$80)-5$V?V]$+)#*$+;'%*+>$9:-$
further modelling is planned that will 
investigate a wider spillway with more 
gentle slopes in order to minimise the 
visual impact of raising.

•$ S"+-!;;)"6$!$+%);;0!A$<==44$#**%$)"-'$
the raised causeway, so that the net 
increase is 0.7m. The current spillway 
width has been modelled at 25m wide 
!-$-5*$9!+*$80)-5$V?V]$+)#*$+;'%*+>$9:-$
further modelling is planned that will 
investigate a wider spillway with more 
gentle slopes in order to minimise the 
visual impact of raising.

Refer to Page 43 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

View Point 11 - View South across Mixed Bathing Pond 
Existing

View Point 11 - View South across Mixed Bathing Pond 
1m Raising (option M)

P
age 83



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT42

View Point 2 – Across Hampstead No. 2 Pond North to Mixed Bathing Pond 
Existing

View Point 2 – Across Hampstead No. 2 Pond North to Mixed Bathing Pond 
1m Raising (option M)

P
age 84



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 43

Minimum intervention to improve 
discharge capacity with sensitive 
implementation to minimise visual 
impact and effects on users, and 
maintain the spirit of place and 
seclusion, key views from the south 
east, and retain the wild and natural 
character of the Heath.

Tree management along 
west bank to remove 

overhanging branches

Replant existing banks where 
canopy removal allows

Dredging of pond for WQ 
improvements

No works on east bank

Potential site for amphibian 
and reptile hibernacula

Potential site for amphibian 
and reptile hibernacula

Water level retained 

Causeway and fence replaced

Crest raising on upstream side of dam 
by 1 to 2m with grass-lined spillway 

in middle of crest to avoid tree loss to 
retain natural aspect and enclosure

Naturalise appearance of dam with 
new planting to include species rich 

grassland on upstream face - pond edge 
planting to integrate crest raising 

West bank repaired and extended 
to increase swimming area

Northern end of pond improved:

• North of swimming deck; cutting back vegetation, 
moving deck further northwards to increase 
swimming area and installing reed bed/
oxygenating device

• Review layout to make better use of changing area 

South west facing sunbathing 
area increased but not at 

expense of seclusion

t raising on upstreawith

or amphibian 
bernacula

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Removal of trees in top 
corner and replant with 

reedbed in a new margin

Mixed Bathing Pond 

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Indicative centreline of possible 
spillway location.

P
age 85



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT44

Hampstead No.2 Pond

6.9$ S"$J%-)'"$M$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$
here involve:

•$ S"+-!;;!-)'"$'.$-5&**$&*)".'&,*#$,'",&*-*$
box culvert spillways through the upper 
dam crest at the southwest end, each 
300mm deep x 3000mm wide, making 
a total of approximately 9.6m wide,

• Reinforced grass open channel 
spillway starting from the exit of the 
box culverts and running down the 
downstream slope of the dam to the 
next pond.

View Point 4 – South across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Existing

View Point 4 – South across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
2 Plane Trees Lost, 3 x (300 x 3000mm) culverts (option M)

6.10 This option would lead to the loss of 
two plane trees from the downstream 
slope of the dam. While this is the same 
)4%!,-$5*&*$!+$.'&$J%-)'"$dL$-5*$7'0$
downstream from the last pond is higher 
and the peak water levels are higher 
at Hampstead No.2 Pond in Option M.
Consequently the standard of protection 
in this option is less, being between 1 in 
1,000 and 1 in 10,000 years.

Refer to Page 46 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

P
age 86



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 45

View Point 3 – North across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Existing

View Point 3 – North across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Box Culvert Spillway – 2 Plane Trees Lost, 3 x (300 x 3000mm) culverts (option M)

Outlet of box culvert

P
age 87



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT46

Retain water level, minimum 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity, with sensitive 
implementation to minimise effect 
on visual amenity and features, 
including avenue trees that 
contribute to the distinct natural, 
landscape character of the pond at 
the interface between the Heath 
and the community, maintaining the 
sense of place and key views from 
footpaths to the south and west. 

Replant existing bank and 
extend into the pond with 

low level planting

No works on dam face

Potential sites for amphibian 
and reptile hibernacula around 

Hampstead No.2 pond

Integrate spillway with new 
planting to include species rich 

grass on downstream face 

Box or open spillway at western 
end of dam through trees with loss 

of maximum 2No. Plane trees by 
%$62"/1%$.*0''-*1&'2/."*+;1&2"/3

Potential sites for amphibian 
and reptile hibernacula around 

Hampstead No.2 pond

Install bat boxes (on trees) 
around Hampstead No.2 Pond

Minimise impact on 
avenues of plane trees

Minimise impact on 
avenues of plane trees

Install bat boxes (on trees) 
around Hampstead No.2 Pond

Water level retained

Formalise dog access with 
surfacing and shallow steps

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Hampstead No.2 Pond

Indicative centreline of possible 
spillway location.

P
age 88



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 47

Hampstead No.1 Pond

6.11 S"$J%-)'"$M$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$5*&*$
involve:

•$ S"+-!;;!-)'"$'.$'"*$&*)".'&,*#$,'",&*-*$
box culvert spillway, 400mm deep x 
4500mm wide, through the upper dam 
crest at the east end,

• Reinforced grass open channel 
spillway starting from the exit of the 
box culvert and running down the 
downstream slope of the dam. This 
part of the spillway could cause the 
loss of a maximum of one tree on 
the downstream slope, this will be 
,'"/&4*#2

See left for environmental mitigation and 
compensation measures proposed for 
pond restoration and water quality.

Retain water level, minimum 
intervention to improve 
discharge capacity, with sensitive 
implementation to minimise effect 
on visual amenity and features, 
including trees, that contribute 
to the distinct natural, landscape 
character of the pond at the 
interface between the Heath and the 
community, maintain the sense of 
place and key views from footpaths 
to the north and west. 

Replacement of live willow 
spilling with hazel and 

plant marginal species tree 
management

Natural fencing to control 
dog access and replant bank

No works on private bank

Box culvert Spillway at south-eastern 
end through trees with loss of up to 1 
No. tree (not a veteran or plane tree). 

Avenue of plane trees 
retained

Integrate spillway with new planting 
to include native shrubs and species 

rich grass on downstream face

Water level retained

Formalised dog access with 
surfacing and shallow steps

OVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIMOVERRIDING AIM

Indicative environmental 
mitigation and compensation 
including: Pond edge 
restoration, water quality 
improvement and ecological 
management. 

Environmental engineering.

Hampstead No.1 Pond 

0 10 20 30mApprox 
Scale 

Trees retained on dam

Indicative centreline of possible 
spillway location.

P
age 89



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT48

Option P works description

6.12 Option P is a new option that has been 
investigated following stakeholders’ requests 
to develop an option which can reduce the 
loss of plane trees at Hampstead No.2 Pond 
to one.

Vale of Health Pond, Viaduct Pond 
and Catchpit area

6.13 All works at these areas are the same as 
described above in Option M – refer to 
%!&!6&!%5+$32<C32X2

Refer to Page 35, 36 and 40 for 
environmental mitigation and compensation 
measures proposed for pond restoration and
water quality.

Mixed Bathing Pond

6.14$S"$J%-)'"$D$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$
here involve:

• Raising the causeway dam 2.0m, by 
building up from the crest road. There 
are different methods for this; one could 
)"(';(*$!##)"6$]4$'.$/;;$'"-'$-5*$&'!#$
and encroaching into the Mixed Bathing 
Pond, the other could be by adding 1m 
'.$/;;$'"-'$-5*$&'!#$-5*"$4!B)"6$:%$-5*$
top 1m with a retaining wall. These two 
arrangements will be considered, and 
details will be developed that will avoid 
the two trees on the downstream slope 
of the west end of the causeway and the 
veteran oak which is in the natural ground 
but is near to the east end.

•$ Snstalling a spillway 300mm deep into the 
raised causeway, so that the net increase 
is 1.7m, thus helping to reduce the visual 
impact on Mixed Bathing Pond. Further 
modelling is planned that will investigate 
a wider spillway with more gentle slopes 
in order to minimise the visual impact 
of raising.

Refer to Page 43 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality.

View Point 11 - View South across Mixed Bathing Pond 
Existing

View Point 11 - View South across Mixed Bathing Pond 
2m Raising achieved with fill only (option P)

P
age 90



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 49

View Point 2 – Across Hampstead No. 2 Pond North to Mixed Bathing Pond 
Existing

View Point 2 – Across Hampstead No. 2 Pond North to Mixed Bathing Pond 
2m Raising achieved with fill only (option P)

P
age 91



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT50

View Point 11 - View South across Mixed Bathing Pond 
Existing

View Point 11 - View South across Mixed Bathing Pond 
1m bund +1m wall (option P) 

P
age 92



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 51

View Point 2 – Across Hampstead No. 2 Pond North to Mixed Bathing Pond 
Existing

View Point 2 – Across Hampstead No. 2 Pond North to Mixed Bathing Pond 
1m bund +1m wall (option P)

P
age 93



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT52

Mixed Bathing - Option P, 2m raising using embankment fill only

4m

Clad reinforced 
concrete 

retaining wall

Compacted
Earth Fill

Existing handrailing
to be reinstated at

new crest

1:3

1:1
Existing

sheet piles

Mixed Bathing Pond

Hampstead No.2 Pond

Top Water Level (TWL)
73.39m

Top Water Level (TWL)
74.95m

Existing road surface

P
age 94



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 53

4m
Grass surface

Down stream slope 

Up stream slope Compacted
Earth Fill

Fences to be removed /
reinstated at higher level

1:3

Mixed Bathing Pond

Hampstead No.2 Pond

Top Water Level (TWL)
74.95m

Top Water Level (TWL)
73.39m

Existing road surface

Mixed Bathing - Option P, 2m raising with combination of wall and embankment fill 

P
age 95



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT54

View Point 4 – South across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Existing

View Point 4 – South across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
1 tree lost (option P)

Hampstead No.2 Pond

6.15 S"$J%-)'"$D$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$
here involve:

• Crest restoration with a 0.5m high 
concrete wall, clad in timber, above the 
existing sheet pile line. This would tie 
into the higher ends of the dam. 

•$ S"+-!;;!-)'"$'.$'"*$&*)".'&,*#$,'",&*-*$
box culvert spillway through the upper 
dam crest at the southwest end, 
400mm deep x 5000mm wide.

• Reinforced grass open channel spillway 
starting from the exit of the box culvert 
and running down the downstream 
slope of the dam to the next pond.

6.16 By adding storage at this dam, and 
maximising storage at Mixed Bathing 
Pond, the loss of plane trees is reduced to 
one.

6.17 This option requires a check on the 
threshold levels of the houses on the 
east side of the pond, and the structural 
integrity of the boundary wall that adjoins 
the east end of the dam. However, the 
peak water level during a PMF has been 
modelled to be 250mm less than in the 
*G)+-)"6$,!+*L$#:*$-'$-5*$*G-&!$7''#$
storage upstream, so it is unlikely that 
-5*&*$0':;#$9*$!$"*-$)",&*!+*$)"$7''#$&)+B

Refer to Page 46 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and 
water quality 

P
age 96



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 55

View Point 3 – North across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Existing

View Point 3 – North across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Box Culvert Spillway - 1 Plane Trees Lost, 400x5000mm culvert (Option P)

Outlet of box culvert

P
age 97



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT56

Hampstead No.1 Pond

6.18$S"$J%-)'"$D$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$5*&*$
consisting of:

•$ S"+-!;;!-)'"$'.$'"*$&*)".'&,*#$,'",&*-*$
box culvert spillway, 400mm deep x 
4500mm wide,

• Reinforced grass open channel spillway 
to carry on from the box culvert down 
the downstream slope.

6.19 This option achieves a higher standard of 
protection than the existing scenario or 
Option M, with the return period of the 
7''#$-5!-$,!:+*+$'%*&!-)'"$'.$-5*$+%);;0!A$
being more than 1 in 10,000 years. 
This option therefore would reduce the 
.&*[:*",A$'.$7''#)"6$#'0"+-&*!4$'.$-5*$
last pond, because of the storage added 
upstream even though the box culvert 
spillway cuts into the dam at Hampstead 
No.1 Pond. because of the storage added 
upstream.

Refer to Page 47 for environmental 
mitigation and compensation measures 
proposed for pond restoration and water 
quality.

Comparison of Options 

6.20 Option M limits the impact on the Mixed 
Bathing Pond to maximum 1m of raising, 
but would lead to the loss of two plane 
trees at Hampstead No.2 Pond, whereas 
Option P raises Mixed Bathing Pond by up 
to 2m but causes the loss of one plane 
tree at Hampstead No.2 Pond. There is 
-5*&*.'&*$!$-&!#*C'..$'"$-5*$Y!4%+-*!#$
pond chain between raising Mixed Bathing 
Pond more, and losing a second plane 
tree at Hampstead No.2 Pond.

6.21 Option M would achieve the objectives of 
providing dam safety and not making the 
7''#)"6$#'0"+-&*!4$0'&+*$-5!"$*G)+-)"6L$
but Option P increases the Standard of 
Protection to 1:10,000.

P
age 98



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 57

7. Discounted options

Shortlist Options

7.1 The following options, previously 
described and considered in the Shortlist 
Options Report, have since been 
discounted as described below.

Highgate Chain

7.2 Option 5:
Spillway works to Stock and Ladies 
Bathing Ponds, raising of the dam at 
Model Boating Pond by 1m, raising of the 
dam at Men’s Bathing Pond by 1.5m, and 
raising of the dam at Highgate No.1 Pond 
by 2m.

Option 5 has been discounted due to 
the impact of the works required to raise 
the last dam at Highgate No 1 by 2.0m. 
A 2 m high retaining wall would form a 
+)6")/,!"-$.*!-:&*$#*-&!,-)"6$.&'4$-5*$
local visual amenity. A retaining wall 
of this height would also require the 
construction of a substantial base that 
would impact on the dam crest and result 
in more widespread tree loss. An earth 
embankment would require borrow pits 
close by or large excavations to widen 
the pond resulting in further tree loss 
along the west bank and a change in the 
secluded character of the pond. 

With only 1m of raising at Model Boating 
Pond, the spillway at the west abutment 
of Model Boating Pond would have to be 
50m wide to avoid overtopping of the new 
and existing dams. This 50m wide channel 
would lead to more tree losses around the 
path crossroads and from the hornbeams 
on the downstream slope of the existing 
dam.

7.3 Option 3:  
Spillway works to Stock and Ladies 
Bathing Ponds, raising of the dam at 
Model Boating Pond by 3m, raising of the 
dam at Men’s Bathing Pond by 0.5m, and 
raising of the dam at Highgate No.1 Pond 
by 0.5m.

Option 3 has been discounted since it has 
been shown that the key objectives of the 
%&'E*,-$,!"$9*$4*-$8!"#$)"$+'4*$0!A+$
exceeded) with options involving 2.0m 
and 2.5m raising of the dam at Model
Boating Pond, and so a raising of 3m is 
"'-$"*,*++!&A2$S"$!$DMN$*(*"-L$J%-)'"+$_$
!"#$3$9'-5$!,5)*(*$!"$':-%:-$7'0$.&'4$
the modelled spillway at Highgate No.1 
D'"#$-5!-$)+$;'0*&$-5!"$-5*$-'-!;$7'0$
over and around the dam at Highgate 
No.1 Pond in the existing scenario. As a 
consequence of the works on the chain 
of ponds, the standards of protection 
provided by Options 4 and 6 are both 
higher than in the existing scenario. 

Adopting the 2.0m and 2.5m raising 
options as preferred options would 
also address concerns expressed by 
stakeholders about the scale of the 
embankment required to raise the Model
Boating Pond by 3m. 

7.4 Option 3a:  
This was a variation on Option 3, and was 
investigated in response to stakeholder 
concerns about the width of the proposed 
spillway at Highgate No.1 Pond in the 
Highgate chain options. The feasibility of 
reducing the spillway width was tested 
by increasing the raising of the dams of 
the two downstream ponds from 0.5m 
to 1.0m, while retaining the 3m raising 
embankment at Model Boating Pond.

While Option 3a provided a useful result in 
indicating that the spillway width could be 
reduced from 60m to 40m, thus reducing 
tree loss on the Highgate No.1 Pond dam, 
it has been discounted for the reasons 
given above for Option 3.

Hampstead Chain

7.5 All options involving open channel 
spillways at the dam at Hampstead 
No.2 Pond:

This applied to Options H, J, L, and N. 
The open channel spillways in these 
options were all between 20m and 27m 
wide at the top, and would have therefore 
required the removal of more than two of 
the plane trees on the dam. The modelling 
'.$-5*$-0'$-A%*+$'.$+%);;0!A$89'G$,:;(*&-$
and open channel), for each combination 
of additional upstream storage capacity, 
has indicated that the box culvert type is 
4'&*$*./,)*"-$)"$%!++)"6$-5*$+!4*$7'0+$
through a narrower space. While the width 
of the base of the open channel spillways 
was just 11m, the need to maintain public 
access along the dam crest footpath 
8-5&':65$05),5$-5*$+%);;0!A+$0':;#$%!++>$
meant the side slopes would have to be 
at 1 in 12, causing the width of the upper 
spillway to be around double the lower 
width.

7.6 Any options leading to more than 2 
plane trees being lost at Hampstead 
No.2 Pond:

This applied to Options H, J, L, and N. 

The removal of more than two trees 
from the avenue of plane trees on the 
dam would result in an impact on the 

distinct character of this pond and would 
detract from views looking south over the 
Hampstead No.2 Pond towards the Royal 
Free Hospital. 

7.7 Any options where the Standard of 
Protection is less than in the existing 
scenario (which is more than 1 in 
1000 years return period):

This applied to Options C, D, and G that 
were discounted in the Shortlist Options 
report. At the time of this last report, 
Option M, which involved raising of the 
Mixed Bathing Pond by 1.0m, did not quite 
meet this standard, but the option has 
since been amended so that it complies 
with this.

7.8 Options where the spillway level at 
Hampstead No.2 Pond is too low:

$ P5)+$!%%;)*#$-'$J%-)'"$SL$05*&*$-5*$#!4$
raising at Mixed Bathing Pond was 1.5m. 
To prevent overtopping of the dam at 
Hampstead No.2 Pond, the invert of the 
box culvert spillway had to be set only 
100mm above the typical water level, 
which would have meant that the spillway 
would be in operation more frequently 
than in other options where it was higher. 
However, this option has some value in 
being a compromise height between 1m 
and 2m of raising at Mixed Bathing Pond, 
and it may be possible to revisit this option 
!"#$&*/"*$)-$-'$!;;'0$!$5)65*&$+%);;0!A$
level so that the spillway does not operate 
so frequently.

7.9 Open channel spillway running 
between trees:

An alternative to a single open channel 
spillway was considered, whereby the 
open channel would be split into smaller 
channels in order to run between the 

P
age 99



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT58

View Point 4 – South across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Existing

plane trees. However, this arrangement 
has been discounted for the following 
reasons: 

•$ S"$'&#*&$-'$!(')#$-5*$#!4!6*$
!++',)!-*#$0)-5$*##A)"6$'.$7'0+$
around the tree trunks, some material 
would have to be mounded up around 
the tree trunks. An arboriculturalist 
has recommended that the maximum 
amount of soil that can be added 
above the tree roots would be 200mm. 
P5*$#*%-5$'.$7'0$'(*&$-5*$+%);;0!A+$
is indicated by the model as around 
270mm – 330mm, which would exceed 
-5)+$;)4)-$'.$/;;2

•$ S",&*!+)"6$-5*$'(*&!;;$0)#-5$'.$-5*$
combined spillways was increased in 
'&#*&$-'$9&)"6$-5*$#*%-5$'.$7'0$#'0"$
below 200mm, the low part of the 
spillways between trees would have to 
be at the same level, but the ground 
levels at the bases of the trees all vary. 

• Working above and around the roots of 
5 – 6 trees to achieve the total width 
would spread the risk of damage to 
more trees than the two trees which 
would be lost in the box culvert options, 
by potentially overloading the structural 
roots with soil or reinforcement 

materials. This could either crush the 
roots or over consolidate the soil above 
them so that their supply of oxygen is 
reduced.

• For a line of separated spillways to run 
through the middle of the plane trees, 
the second line of trees further down 
the downstream slope would have to 
be removed. This would reduce the 
screening of the view of the Royal 
Free Hospital that these trees currently 
%&'()#*L$+)",*$-5*A$/;;$-5*$c4$6!%+$
between the plane tree trunks. This 
effect is shown in a visualisation below.

View Point 4 – South across Hampstead No. 2 Pond 
Box Culvert Spillway – 2 Plane Trees Lost (minimum loss of any option)

P
age 100



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 59

Stakeholder Options

7.10 The following options, proposed 
by stakeholder groups, have been 
considered, but discounted for the reasons 
described below:

7.11 Dry diversion channel bypassing 
Men’s Bathing Pond and Highgate 
No.1 Pond

$ S-$+)#*$,5!""*;$5!+$9**"$+:66*+-*#L$
making the best use of the natural 
contours of the Heath, would carry the 
excess water down the side of Highgate 
No. 1 and Model Boating Ponds rather 
than through them. The proposed channel 
would be around 30m wide and 1m deep 
and could be where the existing north/
+':-5$%!-5+$!&*$8!"#$-5*+*$,':;#$&*4!)"$
in use as paths). The suggestion also 
includes a reinforced bund which could 
be constructed on the pond side of the 
channel in order to avoid the need for 
excavating a channel. The reinforced 
bund would prevent the water in the 
,5!""*;$.&'4$7'0)"6$'(*&$!"#$)"-'$-5*$
pond. Drains on either side of the path 
,':;#$#*!;$0)-5$4);#$7''#)"6$+'$-5!-$0!-*&$
would not pond on the higher side of the 
bund. After the diversion channel proposal 
was provided, it was also suggested that a 
diversion channel could be combined with 
a reduced raising embankment at Model
Boating Pond.

However, this proposal has not been 
incorporated into the project for the 
following reasons:

• H$62"/1"*%$*0''-%$.*52"I+"$6)> By 
starting the diversion channel at the 
level of the existing auxiliary spillway at 
Model Boating Pond, the channel would 
operate at a higher frequency than the 

existing standard of protection provided 
by the pond chain, which is modelled to 
be almost exactly 1 in 100 year return 
period. The auxiliary spillway would 
9*$'%*&!-)"6$)"$7''#+$'.$9*-0**"$V$
in 25 and 1 in 50 year return periods. 
The diversion channel would therefore 
)",&*!+*$-5*$.&*[:*",A$'.$7''#)"6$-'$
downstream properties, so it would not 
comply with the key objective of not 
4!B)"6$7''#)"6$0'&+*$#'0"+-&*!42$
S"$!##)-)'"L$-5*$H)-A$'.$O'"#'"$0':;#$
be held liable for any damage that 
&*+:;-*#$.&'4$7''#)"6$!.-*&$'%*&!-)'"$
'.$-5*$#)(*&+)'"$,5!""*;L$+)",*$7''#)"6$
would happen more frequently, and to 
a greater extent, than in the existing 
case.

• H$62"/1"*%$*2/&"*'5*0':*'5*
0''-:/&"21*-%16=/2."->$S.$-5*$;!+-$
two ponds are bypassed, the existing 
7''#$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-)*+$'.$-5*+*$
%'"#+$8-5*$,'49)"*#$-'-!;$'.$05),5$)+$
estimated at 24,700m3) would not be 
used. By having a low spillway at the 
upstream end of the diversion channel 
at Model Boating Pond, the potential 
for maximising storage capacity at both 
Model Boating Pond and Bird Sanctuary 
D'"#$)+$!;+'$;'+-2$YA#&'6&!%5+$8)++:*#$
separately) demonstrate that providing 
*G-&!$7''#$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$&*#:,*+$
9'-5$-5*$&!-*$'.$)"7'0$)"-'$-5*$;!+-$
-0'$%'"#+$!"#$-5*$&!-*$'.$':-7'02$^A$
removing the existing storage capacity, 
the opposite effect will be achieved, 
0)-5$':-7'0+$#'0"+-&*!4$9*)"6$
increased for the same return period 
storm. The diversion channel would 
therefore not comply with the other key 
objective of not increasing the rate of 
7'0$.&'4$-5*$;!+-$#!42

• A combination with a low raising 
embankment at Model Boating 
Pond would reduce the standard 
of protection. Previous modelling 
done for Option 5, which involved only 
a 1m raising embankment at Model
Boating Pond, showed that a 50m 
wide spillway would be required in the 
new embankment in order to prevent 
the new and existing embankments 
from being overtopped. This 50m wide 
spillway would be of a similar order of 
size as the proposed diversion channel, 
and while the spillway crest would be 
higher than the existing dam, it would 
+-);;$9*$'(*&-'%%*#$!-$7''#+$'.$&*-:&"$
periods between 1 in 25 and 1 in 50 
years. The key objective of not making 
7''#)"6$0'&+*$#'0"+-&*!4$0':;#$+-);;$
not be met. 

• Increased tree loss at Model 
Boating Pond. The channel would 
have to be at least 60m wide to cope 
0)-5$-5*$*G%*,-*#$7'0+L$!"#$).$)-$0*&*$
to start from the Model Boating Pond 
8!&':"#$-5*$;'0$+%'-$05),5$)+$-5*$
existing auxiliary spillway), the 60m 
is a large increase on the proposed 
spillway width of 20m in Options 4 and 
6. This would have a greater impact 
on the group of trees at the west end 
of the dam at Model Boating Pond, 
these include a number of mature 
hornbeams. Currently, only one willow 
is predicted to be lost due to the 20m 
spillway designed in Options 4 and 6. 

• Increased tree loss due to size 
of dam required to support the 
diversion channel. The natural 
contours do not support the theory 
that no excavation would be required 
to form channels, since the existing 

ground is rarely lower than the dam 
crest levels, and the valley sides 
slope upwards by up to 1 in 7 near 
the downstream end of the Highgate 
No.1 Pond. The bund that would be 
required to support a 60m channel 
at that end would therefore need to 
be approximately 8.5m high. Even if 
the channel only needed to be 30m 
wide as suggested in the proposal, the 
downstream end of the bund would be 
over 4m high. This would be around 
28m wide and would cause tree loss 
along the hillside at Highgate No.1 
Pond and elsewhere. The total area 
affected by the dam, shown as around 
420m long on the plan in the proposal, 
could therefore be up to 11,760m2.

7.12 Permanent lowering of the typical 
water level at Model Boating Pond

$ S-$5!+$9**"$+:66*+-*#$-5!-$9A$;'0*&)"6$
the typical water level at this pond by 
=214L$*6$0)-5$!$"*0L$;'0*&$'(*&7'0$%)%*L$
-5*$)",&*!+*$)"$7''#0!-*&$+-'&!6*$0':;#$
mean that the dam would not need to be 
raised as much as is proposed in Options 
<$C$32

This is technically feasible and would 
increase storage capacity. However, it 
should be noted that the increase in 
capacity of going down 0.5m would not 
be the same amount as the reduction 
in capacity due to reducing 0.5m from 
the new embankment, since the surface 
area used is only within the perimeter 
of the Model Boating Pond, whereas the 
raised embankment also makes use of the 
surface area of Bird Sanctuary pond for 
-*4%'&!&A$7''#$+-'&!6*2

P
age 101



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT60

The concept of permanent changes to 
water level has been discussed before 
and there was a general consensus that 
-5)+$0!+$"'-$#*+)&!9;*2$S-$)+$&*!+'"!9;*$-'$
expect that other stakeholders would not 
accept the visual impact of exposing a 
further 0.5m of the sheet piles around the 
whole perimeter, or the loss of access for 
model boaters.

Water levels would be less in summer 
when the water levels drop below the 
'(*&7'0$%)%*+L$)",&*!+)"6$-5*$&*#:,-)'"$)"$
water level to more depth than 0.5m. 

7.11 Making the whole dam at Model 
Boating Pond into an armoured 
spillway

The reasoning behind this suggestion 
is that the upper part of the raising 
embankment could be removed by 
an amount similar to the depth of the 
spillway. For example, in Option 3 where 
the dam is raised by 3m, the spillway is 
V2V4$#**%$8&*;!-)(*$-'$-5*$;*(*;$'.$-5*$
raised crest).  The proposal is to raise the 
dam by only 1.9m, plus an allowance for 
-5*$5*)65-$'.$7'0$'(*&$-5*$05';*$#!4$
crest in order to retain the same storage 
capacity, and the whole dam crest and 
downstream slope would be armoured 
@$&*)".'&,*#2$S-$0!+$+:66*+-*#$-5!-$
damage to the trees on this dam could be 
acceptable.

The Panel Engineer has stated he would 
not accept overtopping of the main dam 
due to the trees on the downstream slope 
which are to be retained. These trees 
would cause eddying and turbulence 
which would increase the erosion of the 
dam during overtopping, and would have 
to be removed if the whole crest is to 
become a spillway, particularly when the 
steepness of the downstream slope 
is considered.

The kind of damage that would be 
accepted would be minor wear and tear 
of turf which could be replaced after a 
7''#$*(*"-2$T&'+)'"$'.$,5!""*;+$!&':"#$
trees, or trees being pushed over and 
removing the root ball from the dam, are 
not acceptable. The trees on the dam 
would therefore have to be removed if the 
plan is to overtop along the whole dam 
width. The allowance for the height of 
-5*$7'0$'(*&$-5*$+%);;0!A$0':;#$9*$'.$-5*$
order of 300 to 700mm, since the model 
)"#),!-*+$-5!-$-5*$5*)65-$'.$7'0$'(*&$-5*$
20m wide spillway is around 700mm. 
S.$-5)+$!;;'0!",*$)+$!##*#$-'$-5*$V2W4$
high new embankment, to compensate 
for the loss of temporary storage, the 
net result would be a raising of around 
2.2 to 2.3m, but with all trees lost from 
-5*$#!42$S"$,'4%!&)+'"L$J%-)'"+$_$!"#$
6 involve a raising embankment of 2.0m 
and 2.5m height respectively, but neither 
option would require tree loss on the 
downstream slope of the existing dam. 
Therefore, the reduction in total height of 
the raising embankment that is achieved 
by the proposal is not worth the loss of 
the downstream slope trees, which would 
be avoided by the proposed raising on the 
upstream face in Options 4 and 6.

P
age 102



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 61

8. The next stage

Revised programme

8.1 The following revised programme of 
consultation has been agreed between 
the City and Ponds Project Stakeholder 
K&':%$8DDIK>2$

Consultation

8.2 This remains key to the project and 
0)#*&$"'"C+-!-:-'&A$,'"+:;-!-)'"$0);;$
be undertaken to help inform the 
development of the preferred option for 
each of the chain of ponds.

Construction Contractor

8.3 A construction contractor is being 
appointed early in the process to enable 
their experience to contribute to the 
development of solutions that minimise 
the impact on the Heath.

Continuing analysis  
and assessments

8.4 The results from testing of the sediment 
have been received and will now be 
analysed to allow an assessment of the 
treatment required to the sediment if 
it is to be located on site. Bathymetric 
surveying will obtain depths of silt present 
in the ponds, to allow the scope of 
#*+);-)"6$-'$9*$[:!"-)/*#2

8.5 This information and subsequent 
assessments will be shared with the 
contractors who are currently involved 
in the competitive dialogue stage of 
the tendering process, so that they can 
include considerations for earth and silt 
movements in their proposals.

Activity Date

Preferred Options Report issued 4 October

Comments back on Preferred Options Report 18 October

PPSG meeting ]V$J,-'9*&$e$3%4$84'(*#$.&'4$V_$J,->

Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee V]$a'(*49*&$84'(*#$.&'4$]c$J,->

PPSG meeting Vc$a'(*49*&$e$3%4$84'(*#$.&'4$V]$a'(>

Hampstead Heath Management Committee ]1$a'(*49*&$84'(*#$.&'4$VV$a'(>

Public Consultation 26 November – 17 February 2014

PPSG meeting 9 December – 6pm

Selection of Preferred Options 23 April 2014

Target date for Planning Application Summer 2014

Assessment of tree loss

8.6 Tree surveys of the areas of proposed 
works have been completed, and the 
latest topographical surveys are being 
delivered in stages. When these two 
sources of information are combined 
into accurate tree location plans then 
compared with proposed works locations, 
a more detailed assessment of tree loss 
!-$*!,5$%'"#$8!"#$4)-)6!-)'">$0);;$9*$
%'++)9;*2$P5)+$0);;$!;;'0$&*/"*4*"-$'.$-5*$
engineering and pond restoration options 
designs in the outline design phase, and 
also be included in the public exhibition 
phase of consultation.

Option Development

8.7 The preferred options described above 
will be developed through early contractor 
involvement, further analysis of survey 
information, and analysis of the results 
of ground investigation. Assessment of 
-5*$*,';'6),!;$+:&(*A+$!"#$"'"C+-!-:-'&A$
consultation with the public will continue 
to inform the design of options. 

P
age 103



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT62

Appendices

P
age 104



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 63

Appendix A - Photo View Point Locations Plan

P
age 105



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT64

Appendix B - Hydrographs

Commentary

The following hydrographs are intended to show the differences between inflow and outflow in both 
the existing scenario and a typical proposed option scenario (where extra flood storage capacity is added 
upstream in the pond chain). The flows are extracted from the hydraulic model and are given in ‘cumecs’ 
(cubic metres per second, ie 1 cumec = 1 tonne of water per second). 

The 1:10,000 year return period flood event and the PMF were used for this comparison, since in Option 4 
the floodwater from all flood events up to and including the 1:1,000 year return period flood is stored below 

the weir level of the proposed spillway at Highgate No.1 in Option 4.

In each scenario, the following observations can be noted:

•$ P5*$%*!B$':-7'0$',,:&+$!.-*&$-5*$%*!B$)"7'0L$#:*$-'$-5*$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$)"$-5*$%'"#$8*)-5*&$
existing or in an option). This time difference, or ‘lag’ tends to be increased when extra storage is 
added.

•$ P5*$%*!B$':-7'0$)+$:+:!;;A$;*++$-5!"$-5*$%*!B$)"7'0L$#:*$-'$-5*$7''#$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$

in the pond.

•$ ^A$!##)"6$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$-'$-5*$,5!)"L$-5*$-)4)"6$'.$-5*$%*!B$':-7'0$)+$#*;!A*#L$05),5$
would give more time for people living downstream to be evacuated before the proposed 
spillway operates.

•$ P5*$-0'$+4!;;*&$%*!B+$'"$-5*$&)+)"6$;)49$'.$-5*$)"7'0$5A#&'6&!%5$8)"$6&**">$9*.'&*$-5*$4!)"$
%*!B$!&*$#:*$-'$!$,'49)"!-)'"$'.$)"7'0+$05),5$%*!B$!-$#)..*&*"-$-)4*+2$P5*$/&+-$%*!B$)+$#:*$
-'$&!)".!;;$#)&*,-;A$'"$-5*$%'"#$+:&.!,*L$-5*$+*,'"#$%*!B$)+$#:*$-'$-5*$0!-*&$7'0)"6$)"$.&'4$-5*$
"*!&9A$(!;;*A$+)#*+$.&'4$-5*$%'"#U+$+:9C,!-,54*"-L$!"#$-5*$-5)&#L$4!)"L$%*!B$&*;!-*+$-'$-5*$
)"7'0$.&'4$-5*$:%+-&*!4$%'"#$8*)-5*&$.&'4$-5*$'(*&7'0$%)%*L$'&$'(*&$-5*$:%+-&*!4$#!4$'&$
+%);;0!A$,&*+-+>2$S"$+'4*$)"+-!",*+$-5*$-)4)"6$'.$-5*$+*,'"#$%*!B$4*!"+$-5!-$)-$4*&6*+$
with the third. 

•$ Q##)"6$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$-'$:%+-&*!4$%'"#+$0':;#$&*#:,*$-5*$)"7'0$)"-'$-5*$;!+-$%'"#$)"$*!,5$
,5!)"$!"#$!;+'$#*;!A$-5*$%*!B$)"7'02

•$ Q##)"6$+-'&!6*$,!%!,)-A$:%+-&*!4$0':;#$!;+'$&*#:,*$-5*$':-7'0$%*!B$.&'4$-5*$;!+-$%'"#$)"$9'-5$

7''#$*(*"-+2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

Model Boating Pond - 10,000yr 

0 

2 

4  

6  

8  

10  

12

14  

16

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 

Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# 4 

"#$%&

Op!%# 4 

Ou'(%&

Model Boating Pond - 1:10,000 year event

0

000 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Model Boating Pond - PMF event

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

 

 

 

 

 

 

Model Boating Pond - PMF 

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40 Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# 4 

"#$%&

Op!%# 4 

Ou'(%&

0 

 

 

 

 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Exis!ng

"#$%&

Exis!ng

Ou'(%&

Op!%# 4

"#$%&

Op!%# 4

Ou'(%&

0 222 44 6 8 10 12 14 16

P
age 106



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 65

Highgate No.1 Pond - 1:10,000 year return period event

0 

2 

4 

6 

8 

10 

12 

14 

16 

18 

20 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

 

Highgate No.1 Pond - 10,000yr

 

 

 

 

Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# 4 

"#$%&

Op!%# 4 

Ou'(%&

 

0

4

10

14

000 222 4 6 8 10 12 14

Inflow peaks due to direct 
rainfall and inflow from valley 
sides – same for both existing 
scenario and Option 4 before 
inflow from upstream pond 
occurs.

Highgate No.1 Pond - PMF event

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

 

Highgate No.1 Pond - PMF

 

 

 

 

 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 

 

   
Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# 4 

"#$%&

Op!%# 4 

Ou'(%&

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

0000 222 444 6 8 10 12 14

P
age 107



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT66

Mixed Bathing Pond: 1:10,000 year return period event

0 

0.5

1.5

1

2.5

3.5

3

2

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

 

Mixed Bathing Pond - 10,000yr

 

 

 

 

 

5

5

5

00 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# P 

"#$%&

Op!%# P 

Ou'(%&

Mixed Bathing Pond: PMF event

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

1
 

2

 

3

 
4

 5

 
6

 

7

8

9 

 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 

 

  

Mixed Bathing Pond - PMF

00 22 44 6 8 10 12 14

 
Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# P 

"#$%&

Op!%# P 

Ou'(%&

P
age 108



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 67

Hampstead No.1 Pond: 1:10,000 year return period event

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

Hampstead No.1 Pond - 10,000yr

0 

0.5 

1 

1.5 

2 

2.5 

3 

3.5 

4 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 

Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# P 

"#$%&

Op!%# P 

Ou'(%&

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

0 

2 

4 

6

8

10 

12 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 165

Hampstead No.1 Pond: PMF event

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

F
lo

w
 (

c
u

m
e

c
s)

Time (hours)

 

Hampstead No.1 Pond  - PMF

 

 

 

 

 

Exis!ng 

"#$%&

Exis!ng 

Ou'(%&

Op!%# P 

"#$%&

Op!%# P 

Ou'(%&

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

P
age 109



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT68

1
 

 

 
 !
"#
$#
%
&'
(

Je
re

m
y

 S
im

o
n

s 
 

 
JL

S
 

E
le

ct
e

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r,
 C

it
y

 o
f 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 (

D
e

p
u

ty
 C

h
a

ir
m

a
n

) 

C
h

a
rl

e
s 

Le
o

n
a

rd
 

 
C

L 
O

a
k

 V
il

la
g

e
 R

A
 

E
d

 R
e

y
n

o
ld

s 
 

 
E

R
 

O
a

k
 V

il
la

g
e

 R
A

 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 

H
a

m
m

e
rs

o
n

 
 

M
H

 
H

ig
h

g
a

te
 S

o
ci

e
ty

 

M
a

ry
 P

o
rt

 
 

 
M

P
 

D
a

rt
m

o
u

th
 P

a
rk

 C
A

A
C

 

Je
re

m
y

 W
ri

g
h

t 
 

 
JW

 
H

e
a

th
 &

 H
a

m
p

st
e

a
d

 S
o

ci
e

ty
 

T
o

n
y

 G
il

ch
ik

 
 

 
T

G
 

H
e

a
th

 &
H

a
m

p
st

e
a

d
 S

o
ci

e
ty

 

G
e

o
ff

 G
o

ss
 

 
 

G
G

 
H

ig
h

g
a

te
 M

e
n

’s
 P

o
n

d
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
M

P
A

) 

R
o

b
e

rt
 S

u
th

e
rl

a
n

d
-S

m
it

h
 

R
S

S
 

H
ig

h
g

a
te

 M
e

n
’s

 P
o

n
d

 A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 (
H

M
P

A
) 

Ja
n

e
 S

h
a

ll
ic

e
 

 
 

JS
 

K
e

n
w

o
o

d
 L

a
d

ie
s 

P
o

n
d

 A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 

M
a

ry
 C

a
n

e
 

 
 

M
C

 
K

e
n

w
o

o
d

 L
a

d
ie

s 
P

o
n

d
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
 

P
e

te
r 

W
il

d
e

r 
 

 
P

W
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 A
rc

h
it

e
ct

, 
W

il
d

e
r 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

s 
(F

a
ci

li
ta

ti
n

g
) 

 S
im

o
n

 L
e

e
 

 
 

S
L 

S
u

p
e

ri
n

te
n

d
e

n
t,

 H
a

m
p

st
e

a
d

 H
e

a
th

 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 C

h
a

m
b

e
rl

a
in

 
 

R
C

 
P

ro
je

ct
 L

ia
is

o
n

, 
C

it
y

 S
u

rv
e

y
o

r’
s 

P
e

te
r 

S
n

o
w

d
o

n
  

 
P

S
 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

n
t,

 C
it

y
 S

u
rv

e
y

o
r’

s 

Iv
a

n
 O

’T
o

o
le

 
 

 
IT

 
C

o
st

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

n
t,

 C
a

p
it

a
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s 

Jo
n

a
th

a
n

 M
e

a
rs

  
 

A
B

 
C

o
n

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 H

a
m

p
st

e
a

d
 H

e
a

th
 

D
e

cl
a

n
 G

a
ll

a
g

h
e

r 
 

D
G

 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 H

a
m

p
st

e
a

d
 H

e
a

th
 

Je
n

n
if

e
r 

W
o

o
d

 
 

 
JM

W
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
it

y
 o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 (
n

o
te

s)
 

( !
"#
$#
%
&)
%
*
(

M
ik

e
 W

o
o

lg
a

r 
 

 
M

W
 

M
D

, 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 A
tk

in
s 

Li
z 

B
ro

w
n

 
 

 
LB

 
Le

a
d

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 A
tk

in
s 

B
e

n
 J

o
n

e
s 

 
 

B
J 

Le
a

d
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r,

 A
tk

in
s 

M
ik

e
 V

a
u

g
h

a
n

 
 

 
M

V
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
E

n
g

in
e

e
r,

 A
tk

in
s 

(  +%
&"
,
-
.
/&
),
%
(

 

!
P

W
 g

a
v

e
 a

 b
ri

e
f 

in
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
t 

o
f 

th
e

 d
a

y
 a

n
d

 s
a

id
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 Q
R

A
 t

a
k

in
g

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
a

 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
 –

 s
o

 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 d
e

a
lt

 w
it

h
 i

n
 a

n
y

 

d
e

ta
il

 a
t 

th
e

 w
o

rk
sh

o
p

. 

!
JW

 –
 a

sk
e

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
e

 s
u

b
m

it
 l

is
t 

o
f 

o
b

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

s/
co

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 Q

R
A

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

. 

!
S

L 
–

 y
e

s 

!
JW

 –
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s 

lu
d

ic
ro

u
sl

y
 s

h
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
is

 e
xt

re
m

e
ly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

st
a

g
e

. 

!
S

L 
–

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 w
a

s 
p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 2
-3

 m
o

n
th

s 
a

g
o

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
P

S
G

 a
cc

e
p

te
d

 i
t.

 

!
JW

 –
 w

h
y

 i
s 

th
e

re
 s

u
ch

 a
 p

ro
b

le
m

 w
it

h
 d

e
la

y
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
?

 

!
G

G
 –

 a
g

re
e

s 
w

it
h

 J
W

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
t 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
im

e
 t

o
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 c

o
n

su
lt

 w
it

h
 g

ro
u

p
s,

 e
sp

e
ci

a
ll

y
 w

it
h

 

so
 m

u
ch

 p
a

p
e

rw
o

rk
. 

 T
h

e
 P

P
S

G
 w

e
re

 b
e

in
g

 a
sk

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 b
ig

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s.
 

!
P

W
 –

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s 

e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 3

 m
o

n
th

s.
 

!
G

G
- 

n
o

t 
e

n
o

u
g

h
 t

im
e

. 
T

h
e

 H
M

P
A

 d
o

 n
o

t 
fe

e
l 

th
e

 C
it

y
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 v
ie

w
s.

 

!
,
%
-
$(
!
",
0#
/&
(1
&2
3
#
4
,
5-
#
"(
6
",
.
7
(

8
,
"3
$4
,
7
(

1
2
&.
"-
2
9
(:
;
(1
#
7
&#
<
=
#
"(
>
?
:
@
A(
B
'@
?
2
<
(

!
2
"5
)2
<
#
%
&(
C
)5
5(
<
#
#
&)
%
*
("
,
,
<
(

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 C
  

M
ee

ti
ng

 n
ot

es
 fr

om
 1

4t
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r P
PS

G 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

an
d 

30
th

 S
ep

te
m

be
r P

PS
G 

m
ee

ti
ng

, 

 a
nd

 co
m

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 P

PS
G 

an
d 

W
es

t 
Hi

ll
 C

ou
rt

 o
n 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
Op

ti
on

s 
Re

po
rt

P
age 110



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 69

2
 

 

!
JS

 –
 s

ti
ll

 m
a

n
y

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
k
n

o
w

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
 i

s 
a

n
d

 m
a

y
b

e
 t

h
is

 s
ta

g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
m

o
re

 

ti
m

e
. 

It
 i

s 
a

 c
ru

ci
a

l 
ti

m
e

 s
o

 p
e

rh
a

p
s 

e
xt

e
n

d
in

g
 i

s 
w

o
rt

h
 l

o
o

k
in

g
 a

t.
 

!
R

S
S

- 
p

a
ra

m
o

u
n

t 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 t
h

a
t 

e
a

ch
 g

ro
u

p
 r

e
p

re
se

n
te

d
 o

n
 P

P
S

G
 h

a
s 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
im

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

su
lt

. 

!
P

W
 –

 t
h

e
 P

P
S

G
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
. 

!
JW

 –
 t

h
is

 w
a

s 
b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

y
 k

n
e

w
 h

o
w

 m
u

ch
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

e
y

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

ce
iv

in
g

. 

!
T

G
 –

 n
o

t 
e

n
o

u
g

h
 t

im
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
a

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
e

ri
e

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 S
h

o
rt

li
st

 O
p

ti
o

n
s 

re
p

o
rt

. 

!
JW

 –
 w

h
e

n
 d

o
e

s 
C

it
y

 w
a

n
t 

w
ri

tt
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 b
a

ck
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

xt
 r

e
p

o
rt

?
 

!
S

L 
–

 m
u

st
 b

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 w

e
e

k
 t

im
e

 f
ra

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
a

s 
a

g
re

e
d

. 

!
JW

 –
 t

h
is

 i
s 

n
o

t 
e

n
o

u
g

h
 t

im
e

. 

!
M

C
 –

 t
h

is
 m

a
k

e
s 

it
 a

 m
e

a
n

in
g

le
ss

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

!
P

W
 –

 M
ik

e
 W

o
o

lg
a

r 
a

n
d

 A
tk

in
s 

te
a

m
 w

il
l 

a
d

d
re

ss
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
e

ri
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 

 

 

!
M

W
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
n

d
 s

a
id

 h
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

s 
it

 i
s 

a
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
sc

a
le

 i
s 

v
e

ry
 

ti
g

h
t.

 

!
M

W
 r

e
ca

p
p

e
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

so
n

s 
b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

 s
a

id
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 o

f 
th

e
 f

lo
w

, 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 

st
o

ra
g

e
 m

u
st

 b
e

 a
d

d
e

d
 t

o
 e

a
ch

 c
h

a
in

. 
T

h
e

 b
e

st
 l

o
ca

ti
o

n
 m

u
st

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
is

 s
to

ra
g

e
 w

il
l 

cr
e

a
te

 

th
e

 l
e

a
st

 d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

th
. 

!
M

W
 g

a
v
e

 b
a

ck
g

ro
u

n
d

 o
n

 Q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 R
is

k
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
–

 i
f 

li
v
e

s 
a

re
 i

n
 d

a
n

g
e

r,
 C

it
y

 h
a

s 
to

 d
o

 

so
m

e
th

in
g

 a
b

o
u

t 
it

. 
 Q

R
A

 i
s 

a
n

 a
tt

e
m

p
t 

to
 q

u
a

n
ti

fy
 t

h
o

se
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

th
a

t 
ca

u
se

 r
is

k
. 

D
if

fi
cu

lt
y

 w
it

h
 

q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 r
is

k
 i

s 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 i

t 
is

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 q

u
a

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

se
. 

Q
R

A
 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
se

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

a
 d

e
si

g
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

a
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 d
e

si
g

n
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

si
tu

a
ti

o
n

. 
R

a
in

fa
ll

 i
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s,
 a

s 
is

 h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 w
a

te
r 

fl
o

w
s 

o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 

e
ro

si
o

n
 (

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 e
m

p
ir

ic
a

l 
te

st
s)

. 
H

a
y

co
ck

 u
se

d
 a

n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

v
e

rs
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

u
n

d
 u

p
 t

o
 9

0
0

 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

t 
ri

sk
. 

A
tk

in
s 

fo
u

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 1
,4

0
0

 a
t 

ri
sk

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

to
o

 h
ig

h
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

C
it

y
 t

o
 a

cc
e

p
t 

so
 i

t 
is

 

ta
k

in
g

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

ct
io

n
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 d

a
m

s 
sa

fe
r.

 

!
JS

 –
 t

h
is

 i
s 

a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
a

s 
th

e
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

a
s 

to
 b

e
 s

o
ld

 t
o

 w
id

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c.
 

!
T

G
 –

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

a
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
so

m
e

th
in

g
 h

a
s 

to
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
, 

it
 i

s 
h

o
w

 l
it

tl
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

b
le

m
. 

!
M

W
 –

 t
h

a
t 

is
 w

h
y

 A
tk

in
s 

a
re

 l
o

o
k

in
g

 a
t 

st
o

ra
g

e
 i
n

 t
w

o
 a

re
a

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
. 

!
JW

- 
1

,4
0

0
 l

iv
e

s 
a

t 
ri

sk
 i

f 
d

a
m

 b
re

e
ch

e
s 

a
n

d
 1

,1
0

0
 a

t 
ri

sk
 i

f 
d

a
m

 o
v
e

rt
o

p
s 

–
 s

o
 l

o
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 

lo
ss

 o
f 

li
fe

 b
y

 3
0

0
 –

 t
h

is
 i

s 
m

a
rg

in
a

l 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 t

o
 l

o
ss

 o
f 

li
fe

. 

!
M

W
 –

 n
o

t 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 m
a

rg
in

a
l 

b
y

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

. 

!
R

S
S

 -
 e

v
e

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

u
ld

 s
ti

ll
 b

e
 s

u
b

st
a

n
ti

a
l 

lo
ss

 o
f 

li
fe

?
 

!
M

W
 –

 e
v
e

n
 i

f 
d

a
m

s 
d

o
n

’t
 f

a
il

 –
 a

 l
o

t 
o

f 
w

a
te

r 
st

il
l 

g
o

e
s 

o
v

e
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

n
o

 w
a

y
 o

f 
st

o
p

p
in

g
. 

!
G

G
 –

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 k

n
o

w
 m

o
re

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti

ca
l 

m
o

d
e

ls
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
It

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

tw
e

a
k

e
d

 t
o

 g
e

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
re

su
lt

s.
 T

h
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
is

 h
id

d
e

n
 a

n
d

 i
t 

fe
e

ls
 a

s 
if

 t
h

e
 P

P
S

G
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
li

c 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

b
li

n
d

e
d

 b
y

 s
ci

e
n

ce
. 

!
M

W
 –

 m
o

d
e

l 
is

 a
 s

im
p

le
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti

ca
l 

ty
p

e
 a

n
d

 i
s 

u
se

d
 i

n
 a

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

iz
e

d
 w

a
y

. 

!
C

L 
–

 i
n

te
re

st
e

d
 i

n
 l

o
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 h

y
d

ro
g

ra
p

h
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
re

tu
rn

 p
e

ri
o

d
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 a
sk

in
g

 f
o

r 

th
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
o

v
e

r 
a

 y
e

a
r.

 

!
M

W
 –

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
o

n
e

 w
h

e
n

 a
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 d

e
ci

d
e

d
 o

n
. 

!
R

S
S

 –
 i

s 
it

 c
o

n
ce

iv
a

b
le

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

st
a

ti
st

ic
ia

n
 c

o
u

ld
 f

in
d

 t
h

is
 m

o
d

e
l 

u
n

re
li

a
b

le
?

 

!
M

W
 –

 i
n

p
u

ts
 a

re
 a

u
d

it
e

d
. 

In
 t

h
e

se
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s,

 t
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 d
o

u
b

t.
 

!
M

W
 –

 w
e

 w
a

n
t 

p
a

ss
iv

e
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
th

a
t 

d
o

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 h
u

m
a

n
 i

n
te

ra
ct

io
n

 (
w

h
ic

h
 o

ft
e

n
 g

o
e

s 
w

ro
n

g
) 

h
e

n
ce

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

il
lw

a
y

s 

!
C

L 
–

 c
a

n
 s

co
u

r 
p

ip
e

 a
t 

b
o

tt
o

m
 o

f 
H

ig
h

g
a

te
 N

o
. 

1
 b

e
 t

u
rn

e
d

 i
n

to
 a

n
 a

ct
iv

e
 s

y
st

e
m

?
 

!
S

L 
–

 p
ip

e
 i

s 
to

o
 s

m
a

ll
 (

4
5

0
m

m
) 

a
n

d
 c

a
n

’t
 b

e
 m

o
d

if
ie

d
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
 t

h
e

 l
a

rg
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
a

te
r 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

. 

P
age 111



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT70

3
 

 

!
M

W
 –

 i
t 

is
 a

 r
is

k
 t

o
 r

e
ly

 o
n

 a
n

 a
ct

iv
e

 s
y

st
e

m
. 

!
C

L 
–

 c
a

n
 s

co
u

r 
p

ip
e

 b
e

 m
o

d
if

ie
d

?
 

!
S

L 
–

 n
o

. 

 

!
LB

 g
a

v
e

 p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

ca
p

p
e

d
 o

n
 d

e
si

g
n

 p
ri

n
ci

p
a

ls
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 (
sl

id
e

s 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
) 

!
M

V
 s

p
o

k
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
re

su
lt

s 
b

a
ck

 w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
n

d
s 

to
 h

a
v
e

 p
o

o
r 

w
a

te
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 –

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s 
n

o
t 

a
 

su
rp

ri
se

 g
iv

e
n

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 k

n
e

w
. 

D
re

d
g

in
g

 i
s 

th
e

 b
e

st
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

is
. 

 !
"#
$
#
%
&'
()
$
%
"*
(

!
B

J 
ta

lk
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 O

p
ti

o
n

s 
fl

o
w

ch
a

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 a
 n

e
w

 o
p

ti
o

n
 –

 3
A

. 
S

a
id

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 h
a

d
 g

o
n

e
 u

p
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

b
ly

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

g
o

o
d

 n
e

w
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

d
o

w
n

st
re

a
m

. 
N

o
w

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 1

 i
n

 1
0

0
0

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s.
 

!
G

G
 –

 w
h

a
t 

is
 m

e
a

n
t 

b
y

 c
re

st
 r

e
st

o
ra

ti
o

n
?

 

!
B

J 
–

 f
il

li
n

g
 i

n
 l

o
w

 s
p

o
ts

 o
n

 c
re

st
 (

ca
u

se
d

 w
h

e
n

 a
 d

a
m

 s
lu

m
p

s)
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 i

t 
b

a
ck

 t
o

 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

le
v
e

l.
 

!
JW

 –
 a

n
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 m
e

a
n

s 
m

o
re

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
th

?
 

!
B

J 
–

 n
o

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 i
s 

a
 b

y
-p

ro
d

u
ct

. 

!
R

S
S

 –
 d

o
 t

h
e

se
 n

e
w

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

ta
k

e
 i

n
to

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 H

M
P

A
 o

n
 S

h
o

rt
li

st
 O

p
ti

o
n

s 

R
e

p
o

rt
?

 H
a

s 
th

e
 i

d
e

a
 o

f 
a

 d
ry

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n

 d
it

ch
, 

d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 s

id
e

 o
f 

M
o

d
e

l 
B

o
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 M
e

n
’s

 B
a

th
in

g
 

P
o

n
d

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

?
 

!
B

J 
–

 t
h

is
 o

p
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
, 

b
u

t 
it

 m
a

k
e

s 
th

e
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

w
n

st
re

a
m

 w
o

rs
e

. 

!
JS

 –
 w

h
a

t 
a

re
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
il

lw
a

y
s?

 

!
JL

S
 –

 f
ro

m
 n

o
w

 o
n

, 
ca

n
 t

h
e

re
 b

e
 a

n
 u

p
p

e
r 

w
id

th
, 

a
 l

o
w

e
r 

w
id

th
 a

n
d

 a
 d

e
p

th
 o

f 
sp

il
lw

a
y

s 
o

n
 f

u
tu

re
 

ch
a

rt
s?

 

!
B

J 
–

 y
e

s.
 

!
B

J/
LB

 a
n

d
 M

V
 –

 t
a

lk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

a
ch

 p
o

n
d

, 
o

n
e

 b
y

 o
n

e
. 

 T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
w

e
re

 a
sk

e
d

: 

 S
to

ck
 P

o
n

d
 

!
G

G
 –

 w
il

l 
sp

il
lw

a
y

s 
in

cr
e

a
se

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

se
d

im
e

n
t 

e
n

te
ri

n
g

 p
o

n
d

s?
 

!
B

J 
–

 i
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 r
e

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

se
d

im
e

n
t 

!
P

W
 –

 i
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 d

ry
 m

o
st

 o
f 

th
e

 t
im

e
. 

S
p

il
lw

a
y

s 
a

re
 s

e
lf

-p
re

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
o

n
d

s.
 

 M
o

d
e

l 
B

o
a

ti
n

g
 P

o
n

d
 

!
JW

 –
 h

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

e
xc

a
v

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 i

t 
a

ff
e

ct
s 

a
tt

e
n

u
a

ti
o

n
?

 

!
G

G
 –

 h
o

w
 w

id
e

 i
s 

sp
il

lw
a

y
?

 

!
B

J 
–

 2
0

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 i
t 

n
a

rr
o

w
s.

 

!
JW

 –
 H

&
H

S
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
 3

m
 h

ig
h

 d
a

m
 t

o
 b

e
 t

o
o

 v
is

u
a

ll
y

 i
n

tr
u

si
v
e

. 

!
G

G
 –

 b
a

ck
s 

u
p

 H
&

H
S

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 H

M
P

A
 t

h
in

k
 3

m
 t

o
o

 h
ig

h
. 

!
M

H
 –

 w
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

su
lt

 o
f 

e
xc

a
v

a
ti

n
g

 w
e

st
 s

id
e

 o
n

 e
xi

st
in

g
 t

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
y

?
 

!
LB

 –
 f

o
ll

o
w

 e
xi

st
in

g
 c

o
n

to
u

rs
 –

 1
 i

n
 8

 s
lo

p
e

. 

!
G

G
 –

 b
ig

g
e

st
 r

a
d

ic
a

l 
ch

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 u
se

d
 p

o
n

d
. 

B
u

t 
d

o
e

sn
’t

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
u

se
r 

g
ro

u
p

 

re
p

re
se

n
ti

n
g

. 
Is

 C
it

y
 c

o
n

ce
rn

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

is
?

 

!
P

W
 –

 i
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p

re
se

n
te

d
 –

 b
y

 H
&

H
S

, 
H

ig
h

g
a

te
 S

o
ci

e
ty

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
. 

!
B

J 
–

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 s

e
le

ct
e

d
 a

s 
it

 i
s 

a
n

 e
a

sy
 t

a
rg

e
t 

–
 i

t 
is

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 s

to
ra

g
e

. 

!
M

H
 –

 s
e

ct
io

n
 d

ra
w

in
g

s 
sh

o
w

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 w
e

st
 s

id
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 h
e

lp
fu

l.
 

!
M

P
 –

 N
o

rt
h

e
rn

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

o
d

e
l 

B
o

a
ti

n
g

 P
o

n
d

 i
s 

u
g

ly
, 

w
h

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 h
e

re
?

 

!
E

R
 –

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

n
o

t 
to

 l
o

se
 a

b
il

it
y

 t
o

 u
se

 m
o

d
e

l 
b

o
a

ts
. 

!
LB

- 
E

a
st

 e
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 n

o
rt

h
 e

d
g

e
 b

e
in

g
 k

e
p

t 
a

s 
h

a
rd

 e
d

g
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

ll
o

w
s 

fo
r 

m
o

d
e

l 
b

o
a

ti
n

g
. 

 

P
age 112



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 71

4
 

 

M
e

n
’s

 B
a

th
in

g
 P

o
n

d
 

!
JW

- 
w

h
y

 n
o

t 
b

ri
n

g
 s

p
il

lw
a

y
 r

o
u

n
d

 f
ro

m
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
st

 c
o

rn
e

r,
 a

n
d

 a
w

a
y

 f
ro

m
 d

a
m

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 t

re
e

 l
o

ss
?

 

!
B

J-
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
d

a
m

 –
 b

u
t 

w
e

 w
il

l 
lo

o
k

 i
n

to
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l.

 

!
G

G
- 

a
s 

th
e

re
 a

re
 c

ra
ck

s 
in

 d
a

m
, 

su
re

ly
 t

h
is

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 c
h

e
ck

e
d

 o
u

t,
 b

e
fo

re
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 o

n
 i

t?
 

!
B

J 
–

 n
o

t 
h

a
d

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

 i
n

v
e

st
ig

a
ti

o
n

s 
d

o
n

e
 y

e
t.

 

!
G

G
 –

 i
n

 w
o

rs
t 

ca
se

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

 y
o

u
 m

a
y

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 r
e

b
u

il
d

 d
a

m
 –

 c
o

u
ld

 t
h

is
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 w

h
o

le
 

p
ro

je
ct

?
 C

o
n

ce
rn

e
d

 i
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
co

m
e

 a
 d

e
si

g
n

 i
ss

u
e

. 

!
M

W
 –

 t
h

is
 i

s 
a

 l
o

w
 r

is
k

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

m
e

d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

s 
to

 t
h

e
 d

a
m

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
g

ro
u

ti
n

g
, 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 m

a
jo

r.
 

!
JW

- 
in

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 h

a
lf

 m
e

te
r 

w
a

ll
 –

 w
h

a
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 t
h

is
 t

o
 1

m
?

 

!
B

J 
–

 y
e

s 
co

u
ld

 b
e

 1
 m

 w
a

ll
 t

o
o

. 

!
R

S
S

- 
w

h
y

 d
o

e
s 

th
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 w

a
ll

?
 

!
P

W
 –

 e
m

b
a

n
k

m
e

n
t 

is
 n

a
rr

o
w

 –
 s

o
 w

a
ll

 w
o

rk
s 

b
e

st
 i

n
 t

h
is

 s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
. 

 H
ig

h
g

a
te

 N
o

. 
1

 

!
JW

- 
W

h
a

t 
tr

e
e

 l
o

ss
 o

n
 S

o
u

th
 b

a
n

k
 (

in
 f

ro
n

t 
o

f 
B

ro
o

k
fi

e
ld

 a
n

d
 W

e
st

 H
il

l 
C

o
u

rt
) 

w
it

h
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

a
ll

?
 

!
B

J 
–

 N
o

n
e

 a
t 

th
e

 n
o

rt
h

e
a

st
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
m

 n
e

a
re

st
 B

ro
o

k
fi

e
ld

 M
a

n
si

o
n

s,
 s

o
m

e
 t

re
e

 l
o

ss
 a

t 
th

e
 s

o
u

th
-

w
e

st
 e

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

p
il

lw
a

y
. 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
s 

!
M

C
- 

w
il

l 
b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
o

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
it

h
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
o

xy
g

e
n

 l
e

v
e

ls
?

 

!
M

V
- 

y
e

s 
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 g
e

t 
b

e
tt

e
r.

 

!
M

C
 –

 C
o

n
ce

rn
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
o

 m
a

n
y

 t
re

e
s 

g
e

tt
in

g
 c

u
t 

b
a

ck
, 

a
s 

la
d

ie
s 

e
n

jo
y

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 u
n

d
e

r 
b

ra
n

ch
e

s.
 

!
M

V
 –

 n
o

te
d

. 

!
M

C
 –

 w
il

l 
fe

n
ce

s 
b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
?

 

!
M

V
 –

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

b
e

 l
o

o
k

e
d

 i
n

to
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 f

e
w

 p
la

ce
s 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 g
o

o
d

 t
o

 k
e

e
p

 d
o

g
s 

o
u

t.
 

!
LB

 –
 f

e
n

ce
s 

a
re

 m
o

re
 o

f 
a

 w
id

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

is
su

e
. 

!
G

G
 –

 h
o

w
 w

il
l 

b
ir

d
li

fe
 b

e
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
?

 

!
M

V
 –

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

 w
il

l 
b

e
 i

ss
u

e
d

 w
it

h
 o

rd
e

rs
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 l
e

a
st

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 b

ir
d

s.
 

!
P

W
 –

 i
s 

th
e

re
 m

e
ri

t 
w

it
h

 i
sl

a
n

d
s 

n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
 s

o
 w

il
d

li
fe

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i

so
la

te
d

?
 

!
M

V
 –

 y
e

s.
 

!
T

G
 –

 b
u

t 
if

 i
sl

a
n

d
 i

n
 M

o
d

e
l 

B
o

a
ti

n
g

 P
o

n
d

 n
o

t 
a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
, 

th
e

n
 n

o
t 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 w
it

h
 m

o
d

e
l 

b
o

a
ts

. 

!
M

H
 –

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
v
e

rh
a

n
g

in
g

 t
re

e
s 

n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 e
xp

la
in

e
d

 c
a

re
fu

ll
y

 t
o

 p
u

b
li

c.
 

!
JS

 –
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
co

n
fu

se
s 

th
e

 p
ro

je
ct

. 
P

u
b

li
c 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

u
b

st
a

n
ce

 –
 t

h
e

 e
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
, 

a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 c

lo
u

d
e

d
 b

y
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
g

a
in

s.
 

!
JL

S
 –

 t
h

e
 “

n
ic

e
-t

o
-h

a
v

e
” 

(p
o

st
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

) 
w

o
rk

 n
o

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
ct

 –
 n

o
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 

p
ro

ce
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 

!
JW

 –
 r

a
is

e
s 

id
e

a
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
y

 H
&

H
S

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 d

a
m

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 M
o

d
e

l 
B

o
a

ti
n

g
 P

o
n

d
 a

n
d

 

M
e

n
’s

 B
a

th
in

g
 P

o
n

d
 b

e
co

m
in

g
 a

 s
p

il
lw

a
y

 –
th

e
 P

M
F

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
ll

o
w

e
d

 t
o

 o
v
e

rt
o

p
 i

t.
 

!
M

W
- 

fa
ce

 t
h

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

 o
f 

lo
si

n
g

 t
re

e
s,

 r
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

st
o

ra
g

e
. 

!
JW

 d
ra

w
s 

se
ct

io
n

 d
ia

g
ra

m
. 

!
M

W
 –

 i
f 

y
o

u
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 s
to

ra
g

e
 t

h
e

n
 y

o
u

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
o

 m
o

re
 w

o
rk

 d
o

w
n

st
re

a
m

. 

!
JW

 –
 n

e
e

d
s 

w
ri

tt
e

n
 a

n
sw

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 q
u

e
ri

e
s 

o
n

 S
h

o
rt

li
st

 O
p

ti
o

n
s 

R
e

p
o

rt
. 

 

!
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 f

o
ll

o
w

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 p

o
in

t 
w

it
h

 m
a

n
y

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

P
P

S
G

 f
e

e
li

n
g

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

n
ce

rn
s 

a
n

d
 

q
u

e
ri

e
s 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 w
it

h
. 

!
LB

 –
 M

e
n

’s
 B

a
th

in
g

 P
o

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
 s

u
g

g
e

st
io

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
 d

ry
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
 d

it
ch

. 
A

tk
in

s 
p

la
n

 t
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 

th
is

 n
o

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 i
t 

in
 t

h
e

 n
e

xt
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

!
G

G
 –

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
 n

o
w

 s
o

 h
e

 c
a

n
 g

o
 b

a
ck

 t
o

 h
is

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

. 

!
C

L 
–

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
 i

n
 w

ri
ti

n
g

. 

!
R

S
S

 –
 w

a
n

ts
 t

h
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

su
g

g
e

st
e

d
 b

y
 M

e
n

’s
 P

o
n

d
 t

o
 a

p
p

e
a

r 
in

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fl

o
w

ch
a

rt
. 

P
age 113



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT72

5
 

 

!
B

J 
d

ra
w

s 
d

ia
g

ra
m

 a
n

d
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
a

t 
in

 d
o

in
g

 t
h

is
 t

h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 d

o
w

n
st

re
a

m
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 e

xa
ce

rb
a

te
d

 –
 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
st

o
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

 a
n

d
 v

e
lo

ci
ty

 o
f 

w
a

te
r 

h
e

a
d

in
g

 d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 

h
il

l.
 

!
R

S
S

- 
w

a
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
e

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 m
o

d
e

li
n

g
 o

f 
th

is
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
ic

h
 p

u
t 

st
o

ra
g

e
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 –
 

n
o

t 
n

e
x
t 

to
 M

e
n

’s
 B

a
th

in
g

 P
o

n
d

. 

!
G

G
 –

 H
M

P
A

 d
o

 n
o

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
so

 f
a

r 
p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
in

k
 A

tk
in

s 
h

a
v

e
 n

o
t 

a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 i

ss
u

e
s.

 

!
JS

 –
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
a

ll
y

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 a
n

d
 A

tk
in

s 
h

a
v

e
 n

o
t 

re
co

g
n

is
e

d
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 a
re

 u
p

 a
g

a
in

st
. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 t

a
k

e
n

 s
e

ri
o

u
sl

y
 a

n
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

s 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

!
C

L 
–

 t
h

e
 r

e
st

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p

s 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

 t
h

e
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

s 
to

 e
a

ch
 g

ro
u

p
. 

!
P

W
 –

 t
h

e
se

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 d

e
se

rv
e

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 a

n
sw

e
rs

. 

!
G

G
 –

th
is

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 u
rg

e
n

tl
y

. 

!
S

L 
–

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 m

o
v

in
g

 P
P

S
G

 t
o

 o
n

e
 w

e
e

k
 l

a
te

r 
in

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

–
 2

1
 O

ct
o

b
e

r,
 m

e
a

n
s 

m
o

v
in

g
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

v
e

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 b

a
ck

 t
o

 1
2

th
 N

o
v

 a
n

d
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 2

1
/2

2
 N

o
v

. 

!
JW

 –
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s 
C

it
y

 a
n

d
 A

tk
in

s 
h

a
v

e
 t

ri
e

d
 t

o
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
im

e
, 

b
u

t 
it

 i
s 

to
o

 t
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 

w
e

lc
o

m
e

 t
h

is
 e

xt
e

n
si

o
n

. 

!
S

L 
–

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
se

 w
h

o
 m

a
d

e
 q

u
e

ri
e

s 
(H

&
H

S
 a

n
d

 H
M

P
A

) 
a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 

a
n

sw
e

rs
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 w

h
o

le
 g

ro
u

p
. 

 !
"
#
$
%&
'
"
(
)*
+
"
,-

  

!
B

J 
ta

lk
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 O

p
ti

o
n

s 
fl

o
w

ch
a

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 a
 n

e
w

 o
p

ti
o

n
 –

 P
. 

R
a

is
in

g
 M

ix
e

d
 P

o
n

d
 b

y
 2

m
 

a
n

d
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 d

a
m

 a
t 

H
a

m
p

st
e

a
d

 2
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
d

u
ce

 P
la

n
e

 t
re

e
 l

o
ss

 t
o

 1
 

Q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
o

n
 H

a
m

p
st

e
a

d
 C

h
a

in
: 

 
V

a
le

 o
f 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

!
JW

 –
 c

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

re
 b

e
 a

 p
ip

e
 i

n
st

e
a

d
 o

f 
a

 s
p

il
lw

a
y

?
 

!
B

J 
–

 i
t’

s 
b

o
th

 a
t 

th
e

 m
o

m
e

n
t 

b
u

t 
ca

n
 b

e
 l

o
o

k
e

d
 a

t.
 

!
JW

 –
 i

f 
a

 p
ip

e
 c

a
n

 r
e

d
u

ce
 t

re
e

 l
o

ss
, 

th
e

n
 i

t 
is

 p
re

fe
ra

b
le

. 

 C
a

tc
h

p
it

 

!
R

S
S

 –
 i

s 
th

e
 ‘

S
’ 

sh
a

p
e

d
 d

a
m

 s
ti

ll
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

?
 

!
B

J 
–

 y
e

s,
 b

u
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 g
e

t 
e

xa
ct

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

tr
e

e
s 

fr
o

m
 t

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 s
u

rv
e

y
. 

!
JW

 -
 w

h
a

t 
a

b
o

u
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

 i
n

 v
o

lu
m

e
 s

to
re

d
?

 

!
B

J 
–

 n
o

t 
g

o
t 

th
a

t 
y

e
t,

 b
u

t 
d

o
n

’t
 t

h
in

k
 i

t 
w

il
l 

m
a

k
e

 a
 h

u
g

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
. 

!
T

G
 –

 c
o

u
ld

 y
o

u
 g

o
 u

p
 t

o
 5

.8
m

 h
e

ig
h

t 
e

m
b

a
n

k
m

e
n

t,
 s

o
 n

o
 w

a
te

r 
w

o
u

ld
 o

v
e

rt
o

p
?

 

!
B

J 
–

 y
e

s 
th

is
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
. 

!
P

W
 –

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
m

b
a

n
k

m
e

n
t 

is
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
–

 i
s 

it
 p

re
fe

ra
b

le
 t

o
 p

u
t 

it
 i

n
 a

n
 a

re
a

 w
h

e
re

 m
o

re
 t

re
e

s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
o

st
, 

o
r 

w
h

e
re

 a
 f

e
w

 v
e

te
ra

n
 t

re
e

s 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 l

o
st

?
 

!
S

L 
–

 i
t 

ca
n

 b
e

 h
id

d
e

n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
n

o
rt

h
. 

 

M
ix

e
d

 B
a

th
in

g
 P

o
n

d
 

!
JW

 –
ca

n
 w

h
o

le
 d

a
m

 b
e

 a
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
d

 s
p

il
lw

a
y

?
 

!
S

L 
–

 i
s 

a
n

 a
rm

a
lo

ck
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
d

 s
li

g
h

tl
y

 l
o

w
e

r 
d

a
m

 c
re

st
 p

re
fe

ra
b

le
 t

o
 a

 s
p

il
lw

a
y

?
 

!
M

C
 –

 h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 d
o

e
s 

n
e

w
 e

a
rt

h
 e

m
b

a
n

k
m

e
n

t 
e

n
cr

o
a

ch
 o

n
 p

o
n

d
?

 

!
LB

 –
 3

 t
o

 6
 m

 w
it

h
 a

 2
m

 h
ig

h
 e

m
b

a
n

k
m

e
n

t.
 

!
G

G
 –

 c
o

n
ce

rn
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 h
e

ig
h

t 
m

a
k

e
s 

th
e

 p
o

n
d

s 
lo

o
k

 l
ik

e
 r

e
se

rv
o

ir
s.

 

!
JW

 –
 s

u
rp

ri
se

d
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
 s

il
t 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

y
e

t 
–

 i
f 

it
 i

s 
co

n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 i

t 
w

il
l 
b

e
 c

o
st

ly
 t

o
 d

is
p

o
se

 o
f.

 

!
S

L 
–

 s
il

t 
te

st
in

g
 t

a
k

in
g

 p
la

ce
 s

o
o

n
. 

!
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
ce

 a
b

o
u

t 
1

m
 h

ig
h

 r
a

is
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
 1

m
 h

ig
h

 w
a

ll
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

v
e

 t
h

e
 2

m
. 

W
a

ll
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

la
d

 

in
 g

re
e

n
 o

a
k

. 
P

a
ll

e
t 

o
f 

fi
n

is
h

e
s 

is
 d

e
ta

il
e

d
 d

e
si

g
n

 i
ss

u
e

. 

P
age 114



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 73

6
 

  

H
a

m
p

st
e

a
d

 N
o

. 
2

 

!
JW

- 
C

a
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
ll

 b
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 h
a

lf
 a

 m
e

te
r?

 

!
B

J 
–

 t
h

is
 m

a
y

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
d

jo
in

in
g

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s.
 

 H
a

m
p

st
e

a
d

 N
o

. 
1

 

!
JW

- 
is

 s
p

il
lw

a
y

 i
n

 f
a

r 
ri

g
h

t 
co

rn
e

r 
–

 f
a

rt
h

e
st

 r
ig

h
t 

th
e

 b
e

tt
e

r.
 

!
B

J 
–

 y
e

s.
 

!
P

W
 –

 s
h

o
u

ld
 w

a
te

r 
q

u
a

li
ty

 b
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 p
o

n
d

, 
a

s 
it

 i
s 

e
n

d
 o

f 
ch

a
in

?
 

!
M

V
 –

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
st

 i
n

te
re

st
in

g
 p

o
n

d
s 

e
co

lo
g

ic
a

ll
y

 o
n

 H
e

a
th

. 

!
JW

 –
 a

 s
it

e
 w

a
lk

 t
a

lk
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 v

a
lu

a
b

le
. 

!
G

G
 –

 g
o

t 
to

 b
e

 c
a

re
fu

l 
to

 c
a

u
se

 c
o

n
fu

si
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

a
t 

is
 d

ri
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
ct

. 
It

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

a
m

 s
a

fe
ty

, 

n
o

t 
w

a
te

r 
q

u
a

li
ty

. 

!
P

W
 –

 k
e

y
 i

ss
u

e
 o

n
 H

a
m

p
st

e
a

d
 C

h
a

in
 a

re
 l

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

a
tc

h
p

it
 d

a
m

 a
n

d
 h

e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

m
ix

e
d

 p
o

n
d

 d
a

m
. 

!
M

C
 –

 t
h

e
 1

 m
 r

a
is

e
d

 e
m

b
a

n
k

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 1

 m
 w

a
ll

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 v
is

u
a

ll
y

 b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 2
m

 e
m

b
a

n
k

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

M
ix

e
d

 P
o

n
d

. 

!
P

W
 –

 A
tk

in
s 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

se
 t

h
e

 t
ra

d
e

-o
ff

s 
su

cc
in

ct
ly

 –
 1

m
 r

a
is

in
g

 a
t 

M
ix

e
d

 P
o

n
d

 r
e

su
lt

s 
in

 t
w

o
 

tr
e

e
s 

lo
st

 a
t 

H
a

m
p

st
e

a
d

 N
o

. 
2

. 
A

 2
m

 r
a

is
in

g
 a

t 
M

ix
e

d
 P

o
n

d
, 

re
su

lt
s 

in
 1

 t
re

e
 l

o
st

. 

!
E

R
 –

 m
o

re
 s

e
ct

io
n

 d
ia

g
ra

m
s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 h
e

lp
fu

l.
 

 S
u

m
m

in
g

 U
p

 

 

!
P

W
 –

 t
h

e
se

 a
re

 a
ll

 e
m

o
ti

v
e

 i
ss

u
e

s.
 W

e
 a

re
 a

ll
 c

o
n

ce
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 H

e
a

th
. 

S
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
 

a
n

sw
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 q

u
e

st
io

n
s.

 T
h

is
 i

s 
n

o
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

, 
st

il
l 

m
u

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
y

 t
o

 

g
o

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 h

e
a

r 
m

o
re

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 Q

R
A

 i
s 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 m
o

re
 d

ia
lo

g
u

e
 a

n
d

 

a
 s

e
ss

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
fo

ll
o

w
. 

 

 

W
o

rk
sh

o
p

 f
in

is
h

e
d

: 
3

 p
m

. 

P
age 115



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT74

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

'
!

!Pr
es

en
t: 

Ka
ren

 Be
are

  
 

KB
  

Fit
zro

y P
ark

 RA
 (A

ctin
g C

<
+
$,

)
B
"
,"
8
@
)C
$8
-
'
%
 

 
B
D
C

 
Cit

y o
f L

on
do

n "
E"
*
&"
9
)8
"
8
F
"
,
!G
"
;
1
&@
)H
<
+
$,

) 
I
-
8
)J
,"
'
& 

 
 

TB
C
-
1
&<
)K
'
9
)L
,"
"
'

RA
M
+
*
<
"
E)
G
-
1
(
E+
%
 

 
RD

Mi
xe

d P
on

d A
sso

cia
tio

n
L
"
-
::
)L
-
%
%
 

 
 

L
L

H
ig

h
g

a
te

 M
e

n
’s

 P
o

n
d

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
/
$*
<
+
"
E)
N
+
8
8
"
,%
-
'

  
/
N

N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)C
-
*
$"
&@

.
,"
8
)N
-
E9
+
3
+
@
 

 
.
N

N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)N
"
+
&<
)O
'
(
E"
,%
)C
-
*
$"
&@

N
+
,,
$"
&)
P
$'
(

 
 

 
N
P

 
Bro

ok
fie

ld 
Ma

ns
ion

s R
A 

C
$8
-
'
)D
"
"

 
 

 
C
D

C
1
;
"
,$
'
&"
'
9
"
'
&, N

+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)N
"
+
&<

Ma
ry 

Po
rt 

 
 

MP
G
+
,&
8
-
1
&<
).
+
,Q
)H
O
O
H

K
9
)M
"
@
'
-
E9
%
  

 
K
M

Oa
k V

illa
ge

 RA
B
+
'
"
)C
<
+
EE$
*
"

  
 

B
C

P
"
'
3
-
-
9
)D
+
9
$"
%
).
-
'
9
)O
%
%
-
*
$+
&$
-
'

K
EE$
'
)C
&"
$'

 
 

 
K
C

 
Ma

ns
fie

ld 
CA

AC
 

Pe
ter

 W
ilde

r 
 

 
PW

 
C
&,
+
&"
(
$*
)D
+
'
9
%
*
+
;
"
)O
,*
<
$&
"
*
&>
)R
$E9
"
,)
O
%
%
-
*
$+
&"
%

Je
nn

ife
r W

oo
d  

 
JM

W 
Co
8
8
1
'
$*
+
&$
-
'
)S
::
$*
"
,>
)Ci

ty 
of 

Lo
nd

on
 (n

ote
s) 

B
"
,"
8
@
)R
,$
(
<
&  

 
JW

N
"
+
&<
)T
)N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)C
-
*
$"
&@

Alt
ern

ate
 m

em
be

rs 
ob

se
rvi

ng
 

N
+
,E
"
@
)O
&Q
$'
%
-
'

 
 

N
O

 
Fit

zro
y P

ark
 RA

 
Ma

ry 
Ca

ne
 

 
 

MC
P
"
'
3
-
-
9
)D
+
9
$"
%
).
-
'
9
)O
%
%
-
*
$+
&$
-
'

I
-
'
@
)L
$E*
<
$Q

 
 

 
I
L

N
"
+
&<
)T
)N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)C
-
*
$"
&@

C
1
%
+
'
)M
-
%
"

 
 

 
C
M

N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)C
-
*
$"
&@

M
-
F
"
,&
)C
1
&<
"
,E
+
'
9

-C8
$&
<
)

M
C
C

H
ig

h
g

a
te

 M
e

n
’s

 P
o

n
d

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n

Of
fic

ers
 ob

se
rvi

ng
:  

D
$U
)J
,-
3
'

 
 

 
LB

D
"
+
9
)E
+
'
9
%
*
+
;
"
)+
'
9
)"
'
V
$,
-
'
8
"
'
&>
)O
&Q
$'
%

M
$*
<
+
,d 
H
<
+
8
F
"
,E
+
$'

  
RC

C
"
'
$-
,)
.
,-
W"
*
&)
D
$+
$%
-
'
)S
::
$*
"
,>
)H
$&
@
)C
1
,V
"
@
-
,%

G
"
*
E+
'
)L
+
EE+
(
<
"
, 

 
G
L

S
;
"
,+
&$
-
'
%
)C
"
,V
$*
"
)/
+
'
+
(
"
,>
)N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)N
"
+
&<

Be
n J

on
es

 
 

 
BJ

 
G
+
8
)K
'
(
$'
"
"
,>
)O
&Q
$'
%

Iv
a

n
 O

’T
o

o
le

  
 

IO
T 

H
E$"
'
&)
M
"
;
,"
%
"
'
&+
&$
V
"
>)
H
+
;
$&
+
E)
C
@
8
-
'
9
%

.
+
1
E)
/
-
'
+
(
<
+
'

 
 

PM
 

O
%
%
$%
&+
'
&)
G
$,
"
*
&-
,)
K
'
(
$'
"
"
,$
'
(
>)
H
$&
@
)C
1
,V
"
@
-
,%

.
"
&"
,)
C
'
-
3
9
-
'

 
 

.
C

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t,

 C
it
y
 S

u
rv

e
y
o

r’
s

B
D
C
)%
&+
,&
"
9
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)3
$&
<
)+
)3
"
E*
-
8
"
)&
-
).
,"
8
)N
-
E9
+
3
+
@
)3
<
-
)3
+
%
)+
&&
"
'
9
$'
(
):
-
,)
&<
"
):
$,
%
&)
&$
8
"
)

1. 
Ap

olo
gie

s 
H
<
+
,E
"

s L
eo

na
rd 

(O
ak

 Vi
llag

e R
A) 

2. 
Ac

tin
g C

ha
ir a

nd
 De

pu
ty 

Ch
air

  
!

B
D
C

-1
;
-
'
)9
$%
*
1
%
%
$-
'
)3
$&
<
)X
+
'
)N
+
,,
$%
-
'
>)
P
+
,"
'
)J
"
+
,"
)<
+
9
)F
"
"
'
)+
;
;
-
$'
&"
9
)+
%
)G
"
;
1
&@
)H
<
+
$,
)

an
d3

$EE
)F
"
)O
*
&$
'
(
)H
<
+
$,
6!
"
#
$
%&
!
'"
()
*+
&,
+-
.
)
/
"
0$
)
'&
1
'"
2
3
&

&

4
"
#
$
-
5
&6
7
&,
)
3
+)
8
9
)
'&
:
7
;
6
<&
=
>7
7
3
8
&

!
-
'0
?-
8
)
#
+&
@
?0
0&
8
)
)
+?
#
A
&'
"
"
8
&

!

P
age 116



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 75

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

)
!

!

!
 

KB
 - &
<
+
'
Q
"
9
)&
<
"
)(
,-
1
;
):
-
,)
%
1
;
;
-
,&
$'
(
)<
"
,>
)%
<
"
),
"
*
-
(
'
$%
"
9
)&
<
+
&)
&<
$%
)3
+
%
)+
)%
"
'
%
$&
$V
"
);
,-
W"
*
&)

an
da

ske
d &
<
"
)8
"
8
F
"
,%
)&
-
)F
"
)8
$'
9
:1
E)
-
:)
F
"
<
+
V
$-
1
,)
+

nd
lan

gu
ag

e a
fte

r a
 ,-
F
1
%
&)

dis
cu

ssi
on

 
+
&)
&<
"
)3
-
,Q
%
<
-
;
)-
'
)C
"
;
&"
8
F
"
,)
=
Y
6

3. 
Ap

pro
va

l o
f p

rev
iou

s n
ote

 
!
 

Ap
pro

ve
d –

/
N
)&
-
)F
"
)+
9
9
"
9
)&
-
)+
;
-
E-
(
$"
%
:,
-
8
)B
1
E@
)'
-
&"
6

!
 

KB
 –
&<
+
'
Q
"
9
)B

MR
):
-
,)
+
EE)
<
"
,)
-
'
(
-
$'
(
)%
1
;
;
-
,&
):
-
,)
&<
"
)N
N
.
.
6

4.
Ma

tte
rs 

ari
sin

g
!

C
D
)– 

aEE)
-
:)
&<
"
)$
&"
8
%
3
$EE
)F
"
);
$*
Q
"
9

-up
-
'
)&
<
"
)8
+
$'
)+
(
"
'
9
+

!
N
P
)–
$'
*
E1
9
$'
(
)&
<
"
)E
"
(
+
E)
8
"
"
&$
'
(
Z

!
C
D
)– 

ye
s –

&-
)F
"
)9
"
+
E&
)3
$&
<
)1
'
9
"
,)
$&
"
8
)7
6

!
 

KB
 –
$&
"
8
)[
)+
'
9
)7
)<
+
V
"
)F
"
"
'
)%
3
+
;
;
"
9
),
-
1
'
9
)3
$&
<
)$
&"
8
)7
)&
-
)F
"
)&
+
Q
"
'
)'
"
#
&6

5/6
.Up

da
te 

on
 ot

he
r m

ee
tin

gs
 an

d f
oll

ow
 up

 to
 PP

SG
 W

ork
sh

op
  

Br
oo

kfi
eld

 M
an

sio
ns

 M
ee

tin
g -

 14
 Au

g
!

C
D
)–
E-
&%
)-
:)
3
-
,Q
)F
"
"
'
)(
-
$'
(
)-
'
)-
V
"
,)
&<
"
)%
1
8
8
"
,6
)X
'
)O
1
(
1
%
&)
&<
"
,"
)3
+
%
)+
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)3
$&
<
)

J
,-
-
Q
:$
"
E9
)/
+
'
%
$-
'
%
)+
'
9
)S
+
Q
)\
$EE
+
(
"
)3
<
$*
<
):
-
*
1
%
"
9
)-
'
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
]
-
6=
).
-
'
9
6)
X&
)3
+
%
)3
"
EE)

+
&&
"
'
9
"
9
)+
'
9
)$
'
*
E1
9
"
9
),
"
;
,"
%
"
'
&+
&$
-
'
):
,-
8
)R
"
%
&)
N
$EE
)H
-
1
,&
>)
3
<
$*
<
)$
%
)'
"
#
&)
9
-
-
,)
&-
)J
,-
-
Q
:$
"
E9
6)

O
)9
"
&+
$E"
9
)'
-
&"
)3
+
%
)*
$,
*
1
E+
&"
9
)&
-
)&
<
"
).
.
C
L
)3
$&
<
)+
'
%
3
"
,%
)&
-
)&
<
"
)^
1
"
%
&$
-
'
%
)+
%
Q
"
9
)F
@
)

J
,-
-
Q
:$
"
E9
)/
+
'
%
$-
'
%
6)
X&
"
8
%
)9
$%
*
1
%
%
"
9
)$
'
*
E1
9
"
9
_)
9
"
%
$(
'
)-
;
&$
-
'
%
>)
9
$%
*
<
+
,(
"
>)
V
+
EV
"
%
>)
%
&+
'
9
+
,9
)

-
:)
;
,-
&"
*
&$
-
'
>)
9
"
;
&<
%
)-
:)
;
,-
;
-
%
"
9
)%
;
$EE
3
+
@
%
6

!
.
N
)–
3
<
"
,"
)9
-
"
%
);
,-
;
-
%
"
9
)%
;
$EE
3
+
@
):
,-
8
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6)
=
);
-
'
9
)(
-
Z
)

!
C
D
)–
&<
"
)3
+
&"
,)
3
$EE
):
-
EE-
3
)$
&%
)*
-
1
,%
"
)9
-
3
'
&<
"
)<
$EE
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
)%
;
$EE
3
+
@
)3
$EE
)&
+
Q
"
)3
+
&"
,)

int
o&
<
"
)

%
&,
"
"
&)
+
'
9
)%
"
3
"
,)
%
@
%
&"
8
6

!
.
N
)–
*
-
1
E9
)&
<
"
)%
*
-
1
,)
;
$;
"
)'
-
&)
F
"
)*
-
'
%
$9
"
,"
9
)+
%
)+
)3
+
@
)-
:)
&<
"
)3
+
&"
,)
E"
+
V
$'
(
)&
<
"
);
-
'
9
Z

!
C
D
)–
&<
$%
);
$;
"
)9
-
"
%
)'
-
&)
<
+
V
"
)&
<
"
)*
+
;
+
*
$&
@
)$
'
)&
<
"
)E
+
,(
"
),
+
$'
:+
EE)
"
V
"
'
&%
)–
*
-
1
E9
)%
1
,*
<
+
,(
"
)&
<
"
)

%
@
%
&"
8
)+
'
9
)8
+
Q
"
)&
<
"
)%
$&
1
+
&$
-
'
)3
-
,%
"
6

!
N
P
)–
F
1
&)
3
+
%
)1
%
"
9
)$
'
)`
?
=
?
)+
'
9
)9
$9
)'
-
&)
8
+
Q
"
)%
$&
1
+
&$
-
'
)3
-
,%
"
6

!
C
D
)–
`
?
=
?
)3
+
%
)+
)V
"
,@
)%
8
+
EE)
"
V
"
'
&)
+
'
9
)&
<
"
);
$;
"
)3
+
%
)-
'
E@
)-
;
"
'
"
9
)+
)&
$'
@
)+
8
-
1
'
&

!
N
P
)– 

Bro
ok

fie
l9)
<
+
%
)'
"
V
"
,)
F
"
"
'
):
E-
-
9
"
9
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
):
+
*
&)
&<
"
)%
*
-
1
,)
;
$;
"
)<
+
%
)F
"
"
'
)1
%
"
9
)F
"
:-
,"
)

%
<
-
1
E9
)F
"
)&
+
Q
"
'
)$
'
&-
)+
*
*
-
1
'
&6
)M
"
^
1
"
%
&"
9
)9
$%
*
<
+
,(
"
)*
+
;
+
*
$&
@
):
-
,)
%
*
-
1
,

pip
e–

&<
$%
)<
+
9
)

;
,"
V
$-
1
%
E@
)F
"
"
'
)Q
"
;
&)
:,
-
8
).
.
C
L
6

!
 

PM
 –
&<
"
)%
*
-
1
,)
;
$;
"
)*
+
'
'
-
&)
F
"
)1
%
"
9
)$
'
)E
+
,(
"
),
+
$'
:+
EE)
"
V
"
'
&%
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
)E
-
*
+
&$
-
'
)$
%
)-
'
)&
-
;
)-
:)
&<
"
)

9
+
8
)+
'
9
)3
-
1
E9
)F
"
)9
+
'
(
"
,-
1
%
)&
-
)+
*
*
"
%
%
)$
:)
3
+
&"
,)
3
+
%
):
E-
-
9
$'
(
)-
V
"
,)
&-
;
6
C
-
8
"
)9
+
8
)

$'
:-
,8
+
&$
-
'
)$
%
)Q
"
;
&)

co
nfi

de
nti

al 
for

 se
cu

rity
 re

as
on

s6
!

N
P
)–
3
-
1
E9
)E
$Q
"
)&
-
)(
-
)&
<
,-
1
(
<
)+
EE)
-
:)
&<
"
),
"
%
;
-
'
%
"
%
)3
$&
<
)M
-
F
)/
$&
*
<
"
EE)
+
'
9
)H
<
+
,E
"
%
)D
"
-
'
+
,9
)

F
"
:-
,"
)*
-
8
$'
(
)F
+
*
Q
)&
-
)&
<
"
)H
$&
@
)+
'
9
)O
&Q
$'
%
6)
D
-
&%
)-
:)
&"
*
<
'
$*
+
E)
$'
:-
,8
+
&$
-
'
)3
<
$*
<
)$
%
)9
$:
:$
*
1
E&
)&
-
)

9
$(
"
%
&6
)M
"
^
1
"
%
&"
9
)+
)*
-
'
&-
1
,)
8
+
;
)-
:)
&<
"
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6)
=
)+
,"
+
6

!
C
D
)–
&-
;
-
(
,+
;
<
$*
)%
1
,V
"
@
%
)*
1
,,
"
'
&E
@
)1
'
9
"
,3
+
@
+
'
9
)3
$EE
)F
"
)%
<
+
,"
9
)+
%
)%
-
-
'
)+
%
),
"
*
"
$V
"
9
6

!
 

KB
- a
1
"
%
&$
-
'
%
):
,-
8
).
.
C
L
)'
"
"
9
)&
-
)F
"
)+
'
%
3
"
,"
9
);
,-
8
;
&E
@
6

M
e
n

’s
 P

o
n

d
 A

s
s

o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 –
27

 Se
pt

!
C
D
)–
+
'
-
&<
"
,)
8
"
"
&$
'
(
)3
+
%
)<
"
E9
)3
$&
<
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)M

en
’s P

on
d A

sso
cia

tio
n !
N
/
.
O
A)

to 
tal

k 
&<
,-
1
(
<
)%
-
8
"
)-
:)
&<
"
$,
)*
-
'
*
"
,'
%
6

!
 

KB
 –N

/
.
O
)8
"
8
F
"
,%
)3
"
,"
)%
"
'
%
$&
$V
"
)of

 an
y ;
-
&"
'
&$
+
EE@
)9
"
&,
$8
"
'
&+
E)
Q
'
-
*
Q
--'
)"
::
"
*
&%
)-
:)
&<
"
$,
)

pro
po

sa
ls ;

+
,&
$*
1
E+
,E
@
)9
-
3
'

-%&
,"
+
8
)-'
-
)3
$%
<
)&
-
)8
+
Q
"
)*
1
,,
"
'
&)
%
$&
1
+
&$
-
'
)3
-
,%
"
6

P
age 117



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT76

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

(
!

!

!
L
L
)–

Hig
hg

ate
 M

en
’s P

on
d A

sso
cia

tio
n’s

 co
n*
"
,'
"
9
)&
<
+
&)
+
)E
+
,(
"
)9
+
8
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
)

Po
nd

 an
d a

 hi
gh

 wa
ll a

t s
ou

th 
en

d o
f M

en
’s B

ath
ing

 Po
nd

 no
t w

elc
om

ed
. T

he
y lo

ok
ed

 at
 

8
$&
$(
+
&$
'
(
)&
<
"
)"
::
"
*
&)
-
:)
*
-
'
*
"
'
&,
+
&$
'
(
)&
<
"
)8
+
W-
,$
&@
)-
:)
&<
"
)3
-
,Q
)$
'
)&
<
+
&)
+
,"
+
6)
N
/
.
O
):
"
"
E)
&<
+
&)

H
$&
@
)$
%
)*
-
'
*
"
'
&,
+
&$
'
(
)3
-
,Q
)<
"
,"
)F
"
*
+
1
%
"
)$
&)
$%
)*
<
"
+
;
"
,6
)N
/
.
O
)*
+
8
"
)1
;
)3
$&
<
)+
)%
-
E1
&$
-
'
)&
<
+
&)

pu
ts 

a d
ry 

div
ers

ion
 di

tch
 do

wn
 th

e s
ide

 of
 M

en
’s B

ath
ing

 Po
nd

 an
d H

igh
ga

te 
No

. 1
 po

nd
. 

I
<
$%
)3
+
%
)9
$%
*
1
%
%
"
9
)3
$&
<
)O
&Q
$'
%
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
)H
$&
@
)+
&)
+
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)-
'
)0
,$
9
+
@
)`
5
)C
"
;
6)
N
/
.
O
)+
E%
-
)3
+
'
&)

&-
)Q
'
-
3
)$
:)
$&
)3
-
1
Ed 
3
-
,Q
)+
%
)+
)*
-
8
;
,-
8
$%
"
>)
$'
)*
-
8
F
$'
+
&$
-
'
)3
$&
<
)+
)%
8
+
EE"
,)
,+
$%
$'
(
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)

J
-
+
&$
'
(
)+
'
9
)+
)9
,@
)9
$V
"
,%
$-
'
)9
$&
*
<

!
K
C
)–
3
<
+
&)
+
,"
)&
<
"
)*
-
'
*
"
,'
%
)-
:)
&<
"
)N
/
.
O
)–
+
'
9
)3
"
,"
)&
<
"
@
)F
"
$'
(
)+
9
9
,"
%
%
"
9
Z

!
L
L
)–
<
$(
<
)3
+
EE)
-
'
"
)%
$9
"
)+
'
9
)b
8
),
+
$%
$'
(
)-
'
)-
&<
"
,)
%
$9
"
)*
-
1
E9
)8
+
Q
"
);
-
'
9
):
"
"
E)
8
-
,"
)E
ike

 a 
res

erv
oir

 –
9
"
%
&,
-
@
)*
<
+
,+
*
&"
,6

!
 

TB
 – 

co
nc

en
tra

t$'
(
)3
-
,Q
)$
'
)8
$9
9
E"
)-
:)
&<
"
)*
<
+
$'
)-
:)
;
-
'
9
%
)$
%
)-
:)
<
1
(
"
)F
"
'
"
:$
&)
&-
)N
"
+
&<
)–
&<
+
&)
$%
)

+
);
,$
'
*
$;
+
E)
3
<
$*
<
)3
+
%
)+
(
,"
"
9
)$
'
)&
<
"
)F
"
(
$'
'
$'
(
6)
O
)*
<
+
'
'
"
E)
9
-
3
'
)&
<
"
)%
$9
"
)3
-
1
E9
)<
+
V
"
)+
)<
1
(
"
)

V
$%
1
+
E)
$8
;
+
*
&)
-
'
)&
<
"
)N
"
+
&<
6

!
M
C
C
)–

Me
n’s

 Po
nd

 ar
e n

ot 
ha

pp
y w

ith
 cu

rre
nt 

pro
po

sa
ls –

+
)b
8
),
+
$%
$'
(
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
)

+
E%
-
)+
)<
1
(
"
)V
$%
1
+
E)
$8
;
+
*
&6

!
L
L
)–
9
-
"
%
)'
-
&)
+
(
,"
"
)3
$&
<
)I
J
6

!
C
D
)–
&<
"
)*
<
+
'
'
"
E)
3
-
1
E9
)<
+
V
"
)&
-
)F
"
)^
1
$&
"
)3
$9
"
)–
+
,-
1
'
9
)[
?
8
6

!
 

BJ
 –
+
:&
"
,)
9
-
$'
(
)%
-
8
"
)ad

dit
ion

al
8
-
9
"
E$'
(
>)
&<
"
):
E-
-
9
),
"
&1
,'
);
"
,$
-
9
)3
-
1
E9
)F
"
)E
-
3
"
,)
&<
+
'
)&
<
"
)

*
1
,,
"
'
&)
%
$&
1
+
&$
-
'
)+
&)
N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6)
=
);
-
'
9
)3
$&
<
)+
)9
,@
)*
<
+
'
'
"
E)
+
%
)%
1
(
(
"
%
&"
9
)F
@
)N
/
.
O
)6
)

C
&+
'
9
+
,9
)-
:)
;
,-
&"
*
&$
-
'
)(
-
"
%
3
-
1
E9
)F
"
)3
-
,%
"
)&
<
+
'
)ex

isti
ng

 - F
"
E-
3
)=
_[
?
6

!
C
D
)–
&<
"
%
"
)+
,"
)&
<
"
)&
,+
9
"

--:
:%
6)
H
$&
@
)8
1
%
&)
*
-
'
%
$9
"
,)
$&
%
),
"
%
;
-
'
%
$F
$E$
&@
)+
%
)+
)(
-
-
9
)'
"
$(
<
F
-

u,6
)I
<
"
)

3
+
&"
,)
3
-
1
E9
)+
E%
-
)F
"
),
"
E"
+
%
"
9
)+
&)
+
):
+
%
&"
,)
%
;
"
"
9
6

!
 

TB
 –
3
$&
<
)&
<
$%
);
,-
;
-
%
+
E)
&<
"
);
-
'
9
%
)*
"
+
%
"
)&
-
)F
"
)+
)*
<
+
$'
6

!
 

BJ
 –
9
,@
)*
<
+
'
'
"
E)
3
-
1
E9
)'
"
"
9
)&
-
)F
"
)F
"
&3
"
"
'
)b
?
8
)+
'
9
)7
?
)8
)3
$9
"
6

!
L
L
)–
3
<
+
&)
+
F
-
1
&)
$:
)@
-
1
)<
+
V
"
)+
)=
8
),
+
$%
$'
(
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
);
-
'
9
Z

!
 

BJ
 –
[
?
8
)3
$9
"
6

!
L
L
)–
X)
&<
$'
Q
)8
@
)*
-
EE"
+
(
1
"
%
)$
'
)N
/
.
O
),
"
+
E$s"

)$
&)
$%
)'
-
&)
+
)V
$+
F
E"
)-
;
&$
-
'
>)
F
1
&)
3
"
)9
-
)3
+
'
&)
&-
)E
-
-
Q
)

+
&)
-
&<
"
,)
%
-
E1
&$
-
'
%
6

!
.
N
)–
+
)9
,@
)*
<
+
'
'
"
E)
3
-
1
E9
)9
"
%
&,
-
@
)&
<
"
)+
%
;
"
*
&)
-
:)
N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)N
"
+
&<
6)
I
<
"
);
$;

e 3
-
,Q
)%
<
-
1
E9
)F
"
)

up
gra

de
d a

nd
 co

ns
ide

red
 as

 an
 op

tio
n6

!
C
D
)–
&<
"
);
$;
"
%
)+
,"
)W
1
%
&)
'
-
&)
E+
,(
"
)"
'
-
1
(
<
)&
-
)&
+
Q
"
)&
<
"
)E
+
,(
"
):
E-
-
9
)"
V
"
'
&%
6

!
.
N
)–
F
1
&)
*
-
,,
"
*
&)
F
+
E+
'
*
"
)F
"
&3
"
"
'
);
$;
"
%
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
'
),
"
9
1
*
$'
(
)%
$U
"
)-
:)
%
;
$EE
3
+
@
%
)%
<
-
1
E9
)F
"
)

*
-
'
%
$9
"
,"
9
6

!
 

KB
 –
&<
$%
)$
%
%
1
"
)<
+
%
)F
"
"
'
)9
$%
*
1
%
%
"
9
)+
'
9
)<
-
;
"
:1
EE@
)+
%
)3
"
)8
-
V
"
)-
'
)&
-
)di

scu
ss 

pro
po

sa
ls &
<
$%
)

3
$EE
)F
"
)*
E"
+
,6
)0
1
,&
<
"
,)
8
-
9
"
E$'
(
)<
+
%
)%
<
-
3
'
)&
<
+
&)
&<
"
);
,-
;
-
%
"
9
)b
8
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
).
-
'
9
)<
+
%
)

F
"
"
'
),
"
9
1
*
"
9
)&
-
)W
1
%
&)
-
V
"
,)
`
8
6

!
L
L
)–
%
&$
EE)
<
+
,9
)&
-
)%
"
EE
&<
"
%
"
);
,-
;
-
%
+
E%
)&
-
)N
/
.
O
6

!
C
D
)–
3
"
),
"
*
-
(
'
$s"
)&
<
$%
6

!
B
C
)–
9
-
"
%
)"
+
,&
<
)"
8
F
+
'
Q
8
"
'
&)
<
+
V
"
)&
-
)F
"
)E
-
*
+
&"
9
)3
<
"
,"
)$
&)
$%
)–
*
-
1
E9
)$
&)
F
"
)8
-
V
"
9
):
1
,&
<
"
,)
'
-
,&
<
)

–3
$&
<
)E
"
%
%
)$
8
;
+
*
&)
-
'
)&
<
"

Me
n’s

 Po
nd

?
!

C
D
)–
$:
)$
&)
(
-
"
%
)&
-
-
):
+
,)
'
-
,&
<
)$
&)
"
'
9
%
)1
;
)%
;
E$&
&$
'
(
)&
<
"
);
-
'
9
)+
'
9
)@
-
1
),
"
9
1
*
"
)&
<
"
)%
&-
,+
(
"
)%
-
)<
"
$(
<
&)

-
:)
"
8
F
+
'
Q
8
"
'
&)
3
-
1
E9
)'
"
"
9
)&
-
)(
-
)1
;
6

!
/
N
)–
1
'
<
+
;
;
@
)3
$&
<
);
,-
;
-
%
+
E)
&-
)"
#
&"
'
9

 M
od

el 
Bo

ati
ng

 P-
'
9
)&
-
)&
<
"
)3
"
%
&)
+
%
)$
&)
3
$EE
)*
<
+
'
(
"
)&
<
"
)

3
<
-
E"
)+
,"
+
6)
R
<
+
&)
+
F
-
1
&)
+
);
$;
"
)&
<
+
&)
,1
'
%
)&
<
"
)%
+
8
"
)*
-
1
,%
"
)+
%
)&
<
"
)9
,@
)*
<
+
'
'
"
E)
;
,-
;
-
%
"
9
)F
@
)

N
/
.
O

–`
8
)9
$+
8
"
&"
,Z

!
C
D
)–
W1
%
&)
&-
-
)8
1
*
<
)3
+
&"
,)

–+
);
$;
"
)3
-
1
E9
)'
-
&)
F
"
)F
$(
)"
'
-
1
(
<
6

!
 

TB
 –
.
/
0
)<
+
%
)F
"
"
'
)-
V
"
,)
*
+
E*
1
E+
&"
9
6

He
ath

 & 
Ha

mp
ste

ad
 So

cie
ty 

Me
eti

ng
 - 2

0 S
ep

t
!

B
R
)&
+
EQ
"
9
)+
F
-
1
&)
&<
"
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)&
<
"
)N
T
N
C
)<
+
9
)3
$&
<
)O
&Q
$'
%
)&
-
)&
+
EQ
)&
<
,-
1
(
<
)<
$%
)V
+
,$
-
1
%
)$
9
"
+
%
6)

S
'
"
)-
:)
<
$%
)%
-
E1
&$
-
'
%
)$
%
)&
-
)+
EE-
3
)-
V
"
,&
-
;
;
$'
(
)-
:)
&<
"
)3
<
-
E"
)9
+
8
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
).
-
'
9
)+
'
9
)

P
age 118



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 77

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

)
!

!

%
+
8
"
)3
$&
<
)/
$#
"
9
)J
+
&<
$'
(
).
-
'
9
6)
O
),
-
F
1
%
&)
9
$%
*
1
%
%
$-
'
)&
-
-
Q
);
E+
*
"
)F
1
&)
&<
"
):
"
"
E$'
(
)3
+
%
)ev

ery
 

;
,-
;
-
%
+
E)
N
T
N
C
)8
+
9
"
)3
+
%
)F
+
&&
"
9
)F
+
*
Q
6)
M
"
^
1
"
%
&"
9
)+
)'
1
8
F
"
,)
-
:)
*
,-
%
%
)%
"
*
&$
-
'
%
)-
:)
&<
"
)/
$#
"
9
)

Po
nd

 pr
op

os
als
6
O
)'
1
8
F
"
,)
-
:)
<
$%
)^
1
"
,$
"
%
)+
,"
)%
&$
EE)
&-
)F
"
)+
'
%
3
"
,"
9
>)
$'
*
E1
9
$'
(
)^
1
"
,$
"
%
)-
'
)a
M
O
6

!
C
D
)-&
<
"
%
"
)+
,"
)F
"
$'
(
)9
"
+
E&
3
$&
<
)+
&)
&<
"
)8
-
8
"
'
&6

!
 

JW
 –
&<
-
1
(
<
&)
&<
"
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)3
-
1
E9
)F
"
)+
'
)$
'
:-
,8
+
E)
9
$%
*
1
%
%
$-
'
)3
$&
<
)th

e d
es

ign
ers

 wi
th 

“sl
ee

ve
s 

rol
led

 up
” to

 th
ink

 ou
tsid

e o
f th

e b
ox

 F1
&)
"
'
9
"
9
)1
;
)F
"
$'
(
)+
)8
-
,"
):
-
,8
+
E)
8
"
"
&$
'
(
)+
&&
"
'
9
"
9
)F
@
)

se
ve

ral
 Ci

ty 
-
::
$*
"
,%
6

!
 

TB
 –

we
’re

 no
w=

c
)8
-
'
&<
%
)$
'
&-
)&
<
"
);
,-
*
"
%
%
)+
'
9
)E
-
&%
)-
:)
&<
"
%
"
)$
9
"
+
%
)<
+
V
"
)F
"
"
'
)3
+
%
<
"
9
)-
1
&)
$'
)

&<
"
)9
$%
*
1
%
%
$-
'
%
)–
3
<
@
)+
,"
)&
<
"
@
)F
"
$'
(
)F
,-
1
(
<
&)
1
;
)+
(
+
$'
Z

!
 

JW
 –
F
"
*
+
1
%
"
)b
8
)<
$(
<
),
+
$%
$'
(
)+
&)
/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
).
-
'
9
)$
%
)'
-
&)
+
*
*
"
;
&+
F
E"
6

!
L
L
)–
(
-
-
9
)&
-
)F
,$
'
(
$'
)'
"
3
)$
9
"
+
%
6

Pr
op

os
als

 fo
r th

e H
igh

ga
te 

Ch
ain

 
!
 

BJ
 –
&+
EQ
"
9
)&
<
,-
1
(
<
)'
"
3
);
,-
;
-
%
+
E%
)-
'
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)H
<
+
$'
)–
b
8
)<
$(
<
),
+
$%
$'
(
)<
+
%
)'
-
3
)F
"
"
'
)

9
$%
*
-
1
'
&"
9
6)
S
;
&$
-
'
%
)Y
)+
'
9
)7
)+
,"
)&
3
-
);
,"
:"
,,
"
9
6

S
;
&$
-
'
)Y

S
;
&$
-
'
)7

Mo
de

l B
oa

tin
g P

on
d

`
8

`
6[
8

Me
n’s

 Ba
thi

ng
 Po

nd
=
6[
8
)!
3
+
EEA

=
8
)!
3
+
EEA

N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6)
=
).
-
'
9

=
6`
[
8
)!
3
+
EEA

=
6`
[
8
!3
+
EEA

C
&+
'
9
+
,9
)-
:)
;
,-
&"
*
&$
-
'

1 i
n 1

00
0 y

ea
r

1 i
n 1

00
0 y

ea
r

!
N
P
)– 

n-
&)
<
+
;
;
@
)3
$&
<
)=
6`
[
8
)3
+
EE)
+
&)
N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6)
=
6

!
 

TB
 –
<
-
3
)3
-
1
E9
)3
+
EE)
F
"
)F
1
$E&
Z

!
 

BJ
 –
V
+
,$
-
1
%
)9
$:
:"
,"
'
&)
-
;
&$
-
'
%
)-
'
)<
-
3
)$
&)
3
-
1
E9
)F
"
)F
1
$E&
>)
F
1
&)
*
-
1
E9
)F
"
)*
E+
9
)$
'
)&
$8
F
"
,6

!
L
L
)–
*
-
1
E9
)V
"
(
"
&+
&$
-
'
)F
"
)(
,-
3
'
)-
V
"
,Z

!
C
D
)–
@
"
%
6

!
 

JW
 – 

sta
nd

ard
 of

 pr
ote

ctio
n <
+
%
)(
-
'
"
)1
;
)–3

<
+
&)
"
#
&,
+
)%
&-
,+
(
"
)<
+
%
)<
+
9
)&
-
)F
"
);
1
&)
$'
)&
-
)+
*
<
$"
V
"
)

&<
$%
Z

!
 

BJ
 –

no
 ex

tra
 st

ora
ge

, it
’s s

im
ply

 a 
by

-;,
-
9
1
*
&)
-
:)
&<
"
%
"
)-
;
&$
-
'
%
6)
R
"
)3
"
,"
)'
-
&)
+
3
+
,"
)-
:)
&<
$%
)

F
"
:-
,"
)+
%
)3
"
)<
+
9
)'
-
&)
<
+
9
+
)*
<
+
'
*
"
)&
-
),
1
'
)+
EE)
-
:)
&<
"
)8
-
9
"
E%
6

!
 

JW
 – 

sta
nd

ard
 of

 pr
ote

ctio
n F
"
$'
(
$'
*
,"
+
%
"
9
)8
1
%
&)
<
+
V
"
)$
8
;
+
*
&)
-
'
)N
"
+
&<
6

!
C
D
)–
'
-
6)
G
"
%
$(
'
)$
%
)&
-
);
+
%
%
)&
<
"
).
/
0
>)
%
-
)&
<
"
):
$'
+
E)
9
"
%
$(
'
)8
1
%
&)
9
-
)&
<
$%
)– 

no
t d

es
ign

ed
 to

 ge
t 

F
"
&&
"
,)
%
&+
'
9
+
,9
)-
:)
;
,-
&"
*
&$
-
'

it is
 a 
F
@
-;,
-
9
1
*
&)
-
:)
&<
"
)-
;
&$
-
'
)&
-
)%
+
:"
E@
);
+
%
%
)&
<
"
).
/
0
6

!
N
P
)–
$%
)%
&+
'
9
+
,9
)-
:)
;
,-
&"
*
&$
-
'
)&
-
)9
-
)3
$&
<
)ov

ert
op

pin
gZ

!
C
D
)–

no
, it

’s w
he

n w
ate

r s
tar

ts 
to 

co
me

 ov
er 

the
 sp

illw
ay

!
N
P
)–
,"
^
1
"
%
&)
8
-
,"
)V
$%
1
+
E%
)-
:)
&<
"
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6)
=
);
-
'
9
)+
,"
+
)–
%
<
-
3
$'
(
)3
<
+
&)
3
+
EE)
3
-
1
E9
)E
-
-
Q
)

E$Q
"
6

!
TB

–3
"
)+
,"
)'
-
3
)&
+
EQ
$'
(
)+
F
-
1
&)
=
8
)<
$(
<
)3
+
EE%
)–

no
t a

s r
ad

ica
l a

s h
ad

 fir
st 

be
en

 pr
op

os
ed

. It
’s 

%
&,
+
'
(
"
)3
"
)+
,"
)%
&$
EE)
E-
-
Q
$'
(
)+
&)
%
1
*
<
)+
)3
$9
"
),
+
'
(
"
)-
:)
-
;
&$
-
'
%
)+
&)
&<
$%
)%
&+
(
"
6

!
 

BJ
 –
3
"
)%
&+
,&
)3
$&
<
)&
<
"
)F
$(
(
"
%
&
!.
/
0
A)
+
'
9
)&
<
"
'
)3
"
),

a'
)+
EE)
&<
"
)9
$:
:"
,"
'
&)

ret
urn

 pe
rio

d s
ize

d
:E
-
-
9
%
)F
"
*
+
1
%
"
);
"
-
;
E"
)3
"
,"
)*
-
'
*
"
,'
"
9
)+
F
-
1
&)
&<
"
)%
$&
1
+
&$
-
'
)9
-
3
'
%
&,
"
+
8
)F
"
$'
(
)8
+
9
"
)3
-
,%
"
6

!
N
P
)–
<
+
%
)<
$%
&-
,$
*
+
E)
,+
$'
:+
EE)
9
+
&+
)F
"
"
'
)*
-
'
%
$9
"
,"
9
Z

!
 

BJ
 –
3
"
)1
%
"
)+
)%
&+
&$
%
&$
*
+
E)
8
-
9
"
E)
F
1
&)
<
$%
&-
,$
*
+
E)
9
+
&+
)$
%
)*
-
'
%
$9
"
,"
9
)F
@
)&
<
$%
)8
-
9
"
E6
)X
&)
3
+
%
)

*
-
'
%
$9
"
,"
9
6

!
 

KB
 –
<

av
e A

tkin
s ,
1
'
)&
<
"
)=
d
5
[
):
E-
-
9
)&
<
-
,-
1
(
<
)&
<
"
)8
-
9
"
EZ

!
 

BJ
 –
3
-
,Q
)<
+
%
)F
"
"
'
)9
-
'
"
)-
'
)=
d
5
[
):
E-
-
9
)+
'
9
)3
+
%
)%
<
+
,"
9
)3
$&
<
).
.
C
L
6)
R
$EE
)%
<
+
,"
)&
<
$%
)+
(
+
$'
6

!
C
D
)–
&<
"
)9
"
%
$(
'
)<
+
%
)&
-
)fo

llow
 in

du
str

y s
tan

da
rd 

an
d i

t’s 
no

t in
du

str
y s

tan
da

rd 
to 

run
 hi

sto
ric

 
:E
-
-
9
%
6)

!
L
L
)–
<
-
3
)<
$(
<
)3
-
1
E9
&<
"
)"
8
F
+
'
Q
8
"
'
&)
'
"
"
9
)&
-
)F
"
):
-
,)
&<
"
)=
d
5
[
):
E-
-
9
Z

!
C
D
)– 

un
for

tun
ate

ly i
t’s 

irre
lev

an
t –
3
"
)<
+
V
"
)&
-
)9
"
%
$(
'
)&
-
)+
)%
&+
'
9
+
,9
)%
"
&)
-
1
&)
F
@
)&
<
"
)X

ns
titu

te 
of 

H
$V
$E)
K
'
(
$'
"
"
,%
6

P
age 119



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT78

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

)
!

!

!
I
L
)–
$:
);
"
-
;
E"
)+
,"
)3
-
,,
$"
9
)+
F
-
1
&)
&<
"
)8
-
9
"
E>
)&
<
"
'
)3
<
@
)'
-
&)
,1
'
)&
<
"
)=
d
5
[
):
E-
-
9
)&
<
,-
1
(
<
)&
<
"

8
-
9
"
EZ

!
C
D
)–
N
+
@
*
-
*
Q
)9
$9
)+
)E
-
&)
-
:)
3
-
,Q
)-
'
)&
<
"
)=
d
5
[
):
E-
-
9
)+
'
9
)$
&)
3
+
%
)'
-
&)
*
"
'
&"
,"
9
)-
'
)&
<
"
)N
"
+
&<
6

!
 

TB
 –
*
+
'
)&
"
*
<
'
-
E-
(
@
)'
-
&)
F
"
)1
%
"
9
)&
-
)8
-
V
"
)&
<
"
)=
d
5
[
)%
&-
,8
)-
'
&-
)N
"
+
&<
)+
'
9
),
1
'
)&
<
"
)8
-
9
"
EZ

!
 

PM
 –

we
 ca

n’t
 m

od
el 

the
 19

75
 ev

en
t a

s w
e d

on
’t k

no
w e

xa
ctly

 wh
at 

ha
pp

en
ed

. F
-
,)
"
#
+
8
;
E"
>)

t<"
);
,"
V
$-
1
%
)C

up
eri

nte
nd

en
t o

pe
ne

d a
 va

lve
 –

bu
t w

e d
on

’t w
he

n o
r fo

r h
ow

 lo
ng

. W
e w

ou
ld 

'
-
&)
F
"
)*
-
8
;
+
,$
'
(
)E
$Q
"
):
-
,)
E$Q
"
6

!
 

TB
 –
$&
)3
-
1
E9
)F
"
)<
"
E;
:1
E)
:-
,)
&<
"
)E
+
@
8
+
'
)+
%
)+
)*
-
8
;
+
,+
&-
,6

!
N
P
)–
+
,"
)&
<
"
)8
-
9
"
E%
'
-
&)
V
+
E$9
+
&"
9
)F
@
);
,"
V
$-
1
%
)"
V
"
'
&%
Z

!
C
D
)– 

ye
s, 
:$
(
1
,"
%
)$
'
)&
<
"
)0
E-
-
9
)K
%
&$
8
+
&$
-
'
)N
+
'
9
F
-
-
Q
)&
+
Q
"
)in

to 
ac

co
un

t p
rev

iou
s e

ve
nts

 an
d 

E-
*
+
E)
,+
$'
:+
EE)
9
+
&+
6

!
.
N
)–
$'
)=
d
5
[
>)
'
-
)9
+
8
%
)-
V
"
,&
-
;
;
"
9
)–
E-
&%
)-
:)
F
1
%
<
"
%
):
"
EE)
9
-
3
'
)+
'
9
)&
,+
;
;
"
9
)+
)8
+
'
6

!
 

BJ
 –

wil
l g

et 
hy

dro
log

ist 
to 

ex
pla

in 
wh

at 
the

y’v
e d

on
e w

ith
 th

e 1
97

5 e
ve

nt.
Pr

op
os

als
 fo

r H
am

ps
tea

d C
ha

in
!
 

BJ
 - &
+
EQ
"
9
)&
<
,-
1
(
<
)'
"
3
);
,-
;
-
%
+
E%
)-
'
)N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)H
<
+
$'

–S
;
&$
-
'
%
)/
)+
'
9
).
6

Op
tio

n M
Op

tio
n P

/
$#
"
9
)J
+
&<
$'
(
).
-
'
9

=
8

`
8
)!
"
8
F
+
'
Q
8
"
'
&)
-
,)
3
+
EE)

*
-
8
F
$'
+
&$
-
'
A

N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)]
-
6)
`

b
#
)b
8
)F
-
#
)*
1
EV
"
,&
%

?
6[
8
)3
+
EE>
)=
#
Y
6[
8
)F
-
#
)*
1
EV
"
,&

N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)]
-
6)
=

=
#
Y
6[
8
F
-
#
)*
1
EV
"
,&

=
#
Y
6[
8
)F
-
#
)*
1
EV
"
,&

C
&+
'
9
+
,9
)-
:)
.
,-
&"
*
&$
-
'

1 i
n 1

00
0 y

ea
r

1in
 10

,00
0 y

ea
r

I
,"
"
)E
-
%
%
)-
'
)N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)]
-
6)
`

`
1

!
.
N
)–
3
<
+
&)
3
$EE
)F
"
)"
::
"
*
&)
&-
)+
'
(
E$'
(
)&
-
)F
1
$E9
$'
(
3
+
EE%
)+
'
9
),
+
$%
$'
(
9
+
8
%
Z

!
C
D
)–
&<
$%
)3
$EE
)'
"
"
9
)&
-
)F
"
)E
-
-
Q
"
9
)+
&6

!
RD

–/
$#
"
9
).
-
'
9
)O
%
%
-
*
$+
&$
-
'
):
"
"
E)
V
"
,@
)%
&,
-
'
(
E@
)&
<
+
&)
=
8
)$
%
)&
<
"
)+
F
%
-
E1
&"
)8
+
#
$8
1
8
)&
<
"
@
)

3
-
1
E9
)+
*
*
"
;
&)
-
&<
"
,3
$%
"
)&
<
"
)*
<
+
,+
*
&"
,)
-
:)
&<
"
);
-
'
9
)3
$EE
)F
"
)E
-
%
&6

!
 

JW
 –
&<
"
%
"
)+
,"
)'
-
&)
'
"
3
)-
;
&$
-
'
%
)–
'
-
)'
"
3
)$
'
'
-
V
+
&$
V
"
)%
-
E1
&$
-
'
%
6

!
C
D
)–
3
-
,&
<
),
"
8
"
8
F
"
,$
'
(
)&
<
+
&)
.
+
'
"
E)
K
'
(
$'
"
"
,)
*
+
'
)%
&$
EE)
"
#
"
,*
$%
"
)<
$%
)W
1
9
(
8
"
'
&)
-
V
"
,)
&<
"
%
"
)

9
"
%
$(
'
%
6

!
 

BJ
 –
+
9
V
$%
"
9
)&
<
+
&)
$&
)$
%
)9
$:
:$
*
1
E&
)&
-
)E
-
-
Q
)+
&)
%
+
:"
&@
)-
:)
9
+
8
)$
%
%
1
"
%
)-
1
&%
$9
"
)&
<
"
)F
-
#
>)
3
<
+
&)
<
+
;
;
"
'
%
)

$:
)&
<
$%
),
"
%
1
E&
%
)$
'
)+
):
+
$E1
,"
)+
'
9
)@
-
1
)"
'
9
)1
;
)$
'
)*
-
1
,&
6

!
 

KB
 –
'
"
"
9
)&
-
)8
-
V
"
)-
'
)&
-
)&
<
"
)a
M
O
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
)E
"
(
+
E)
8
"
"
&$
'
(
6

Le
ga

l M
ee

tin
g -

19
 Se

pt
!
 

JW
 –

leg
al 

me
eti

ng
 to

ok
 pl

ac
e b

etw
ee

n t
he

 Ci
ty’s

 Q
.C 

an
d t

he
 H&

HS
’s Q

.C.
 Us

efu
l 

"
#
*
<
+
'
(
"
)-
:)
&<
"
)&
3
-
);
-
$'
&%
)-
:)
V
$"
3
6

!
B
D
C
)–
K
9
3
+
,9
)R
-
-
9
)!
H
$&
@
)%
-
E$*
$&
-
,A
)+
'
9
)/
+
,*
)N
1
&*
<
$'
%
-
'
)+
,"
)3
-
,Q
$'
(
)-
'
)+
)'
-
&"
)&
-
)F
"
)%
"
'
&)

+
,-
1
'
9
)&
<
"
).
.
C
L
6)
]
-
)+
(
,"
"
8
"
'
&
:,
-
8
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
6)
I
<
"
)$
%
%
1
"
)-
:)
<
-
3
)@
-
1
)*
-
'
%
$9
"
,)
,$
%
Q
)3
+
%
)

9
$%
*
1
%
%
"
9
)+
'
9
)H
$&
@
)F
"
E$"
V
"
%
)$
&)
$%
);
,-
*
"
"
9
$'
(
)*
-
,,
"
*
&E
@
6

!
 

TB
 –
<
-
3
)E
-
'
(
)F
"
:-
,"
).
.
C
L
)*
+
'
)%
"
"
)&
<
"
)'
-
&"
Z

!
C
D
)–
;
,"
%
%
$'
(
)&
-
)(
"
&)
&<
$%
)+
%
)%
-
-
'
)+
%
)3
"
)*
+
'
6

!
 

KB
 –
&<
"
)'
-
&"
)%
<
-
1
E9
)F
"
)+
%
):
1
EE)
+
%
);
-
%
%
$F
E"

!
N
P
)–
<
-
3
):
+
,)
*
+
'
)@
-
1
)(
-
)3
$&
<
)&
<
"
);
,-
W"
*
&)
3
$&
<
-
1
&)
&<
$%
)$
%
%
1
"
)F
"
$'
(
),
"
%
-
EV
"
9
Z

!
C
D
)–
H
$&
@
)8
1
%
&)
;
,-
*
"
"
9
)–
$:
)&
<
"
)N
T
N
C
)$
%
)(
-
$'
(
)&
-
)*
+
EE)
+
)B

ud
icia

l R
"
V
$"
3
3
"
)3
$EE
)9
"
+
E)
3
$&
<
)&
<
+
&)

3
<
"
'
)$
&)
*
-
8
"
%
6

!
 

JW
 –
N
T
N
C
)3
$EE
)*
-
'
%
$9
"
,)
$&
%
)-
;
&$
-
'
%
)+
:&
"
,)
&<
"
);
1
F
E$*
)*
-
'
%
1
E&
+
&$
-
'
)+
'
9
)&
<
$%
3
$EE
)9
"
;
"
'
9
)-
'
)&
<
"
)

:$
'
+
E)
*
<
-
%
"
'
)9
"
%
$(
'
6

P
age 120



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 79

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

)
!

!

!
.
N
)–
&<
"
);
,-
W"
*
&
+
;
;
"
+
,"
9
)-
'
)J
J
H
)M
+
9
$-
)`
>)
B
"
,"
8
@
)\
$'
"
)%
<
-
3
>)
%
-
8
"
-
'
"
):
,-
8
)O
&Q
$'
%
)3
+
%
)

$'
&"
,V
$"
3
"
9
6)
N
+
V
"
),
"
^
1
"
%
&"
9
)&
,+
'
%
*
,$
;
&6

!
C
D
)–
'
-
&)
+
3
+
,"
)$
&)
3
+
%
)-
'
)&
<
$%
)%
<
-
3
)–
;
E"
+
%
"
)%
<
+
,"
)&
,+
'
%
*
,$
;
&6

Me
eti

ng
 on

 Q
RA

 –
27

 Se
pt

!
JW

–a
M
O
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
>)
-
'
E@
)O
'
9
@
)N
1
(
<
"
%
 pr

es
en

t>)'
-
&)
&<
"
)+
1
&<
-
,)
-
:)
&<
"
)a
M
O
)+
%
)<
+
9
)F
"
"
'
)

;
,-
8
$%
"
9
6)
G
$%
*
1
%
%
$-
'
)3
+
%
);
-
E$&
$*
+
E)
+
'
9
)%
&,
+
&"
(
$*
)+
'
9
)&
<
"
)^
1
"
%
&$
-
'
%
)%
1
F
8
$&
&"
9
)F
@
)&
<
"
)N
T
N
C
)

3
"
,"
)'
-
&)
+
'
%
3
"
,"
9
6

!
C
D
)-&
<
"
,"
)3
$EE
)F
"
)+
)3
,$
&&
"
'
),
"
%
;
-
'
%
"
)pr

ov
ide

d6
!
 

JW
 –
'
-
)+
&&
"
8
;
&)
&-
)E
-
-
Q
)+
&)
&<
"
),
"
9
1
*
&$
-
'
)$
'
)E
-
%
%
)-
:)
E$:
"
)$
:)
`
)<
-
1
,%
)3
+
,'
$'
(
)$
%
)(
$V
"
'
>)
3
<
$*
<
)

N
T
N
C
)F
"
E$"
V
"
%
)&
<
"
,"
)$
%
);
E"
'
&@
)-
:)
&$
8
"
)&
-
)9
-
6)
N
T
N
C
)<
+
%
)V
"
,@
)E
$&
&E
"
)*
-
'
:$
9
"
'
*
"
)$
'
)a
M
O
)+
'
9
)

3
-
1
E9
)E
$Q
"
)&
-
)%
"
"
)&
<
"
)+
'
%
3
"
,%
)&
-
)&
<
"
$,
)^
1
"
,$
"
%
6

!
 

KB
 –
+
&)
&<
"
)8
"
"
&$
'
(
)&
<
"
,"
)3
+
%
)E
-
&%
)-
:)
9
$%
*
1
%
%
$-
'
-
'
)"
+
,E
@
)3
+
,'
$'
(
)–
F
-
&<
)3
+
,'
$'
(
);
"
-
;
E"
)+
'
9
)

<
+
V
$'
(
)3
"
+
&<
"
,)
3
+
,'
$'
(
%
6)
I
<
"
);
,-
F
E"
8
)%
"
"
8
%
)&
-
)F
"
>)
$'
)+
).
/
0
)"
V
"
'
&)

–N
"
+
&<
)-
::
$*
"
,s,

 or
 

.
-
E$*
"
)+
'
9
)0
$,
"
)*
+
'
'
-
&)
F
"
)"
#
;
"
*
&"
9
)&
-
)(
-
)$
'
)+
%
)$
&)
3
$EE
)F
"
)&
-
-
)9
+
'
(
"
,-
1
%
6)
R
"
+
&<
"
,)
:-
,"
*
+
%
&)
$%
)

'
-
&)
(
1
+
,+
'
&"
"
9
6)
R
<
+
&)
%
&$
EE)

no
t u

nd
ers

too
d i

s, 
$:
)&
<
"
)'
1
8
F
"
,)
+
&)
,$
%
Q
)$
%
)V
+
%
&E
@
),
"
9
1
*
"
9
)–
<
-
3
)

9
-
"
%
)&
<
$%
)+
::
"
*
&)
&<
"
)9
"
%
$(
'
Z

!
 

PW
 –
$:
):
"
3
"
,)
;
"
-
;
E"
)+
,"
)+
&)
,$
%
Q
>)
3
<
+
&)
%
<
-
1
E9
)H
$&
@
)9
-
Z
)X
:)
&<
"
,"
)$
%
)-
'
"
)E
$:
"
)+
&)
,$
%
Q
>)
H
$&
@
)8
1
%
&)

*
+
,,
@
)-
1
&)
&<
"
)3
-
,Q
6

!
 

JW
 –
;
"
-
;
E"
)&
+
Q
"
),
$%
Q
%
)"
V
"
,@
)9
+
@
)$
6"
)9
,$
V
$'
(
)+
)*
+
,6
)X
%
)$
&)
,"
+
%
-
'
+
F
E"
)&
<
+
&)
&<
"
)H
$&
@
)F
1
$E9
%
)

$8
;
,"
(
'
+
F
E"
)9
+
8
%
)&
-
)"
E$8
$'
+
&"
),
$%
Q
>)
3
<
"
'
)&
<
"
,"
)+
,"
)E
-
&%
-
:)
-
&<
"
,)
,$
%
Q
%
)%
-
*
$"
&@
)+
*
*
"
;
&%
Z

]
"
"
9
%
)&
-
)F
"
)9
"
*
$9
"
9
)-
'
)$
'
)+
)*
-
1
,&
)-
:)
E+
3
6

!
 

TB
 –
V
"
,@
)9
$:
:$
*
1
E&
)&
-
)8
"
"
&)
$'
)&
<
"
)8
$9
9
E"
)3
$&
<
)&
<
$%
6

!
.
N
)–
3
<
+
&)
<
+
;
;
"
'
%
)$
:)
&<
"
,"
)$
%
)+
'
-
&<
"
,)
%
&-
,8
)-
:)
&<
"
)%
+
8
"
)%
$U
"
)&
<
"
):
-
EE-
3
$'
(
)9
+
@
Z

!
C
D
)–

it c
ou

ld 
ha

pp
en

. It
’s a

ll a
bo

ut 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e, 
so

cie
tal

 ris
k is

 di
ffe

ren
t to

 in
div

idu
al 

ris
k6

!
 

TB
 –
"
+
,E
@
)3
+
,'
$'
(
)%
<
-
1
E9
)F
"
)&
+
Q
"
'
)$
'
&-
)+
*
*
-
1
'
&6

!
 

KB
 – 

ye
s, 
F
1
&)
$&
)*
+
'
'
-
&)
F
"
)3
+
,,
+
'
&"
9
6

!
 

TB
 –

it’s
 an

 iss
ue

 fo
r(
-
V
"
,'
8
"
'
&6
)H
$&
@
)8
1
%
&)
:-
EE-
3
)E
"
(
$%
E+
&$
-
'
6

!
 

PW
 –
O
&Q
$'
%
)'
"
"
9
)&
-
)*
-
8
"
)F
+
*
Q
)3
$&
<
)+
'
%
3
"
,%
)&
-
)-
1
&%
&+
'
9
$'
(
)^
1
"
,$
"
%
)+
'
9
);
-
$'
&)
;
"
-
;
E"
)$
'
)&
<
"
)

9
$,
"
*
&$
-
'
)-
:)
&<
"
)*
-
,,
"
*
&)
,"
;
-
,&
%
6)
a
M
O
)$
%
)*
-
8
;
E"
#
)F
1
&)
O
&Q
$'
%
)+
,"
):
-
EE-
3
$'
(
)%
&+
'
9
+
,9
%
6

!
 

KB
 –
&<
$%
)$
%
)+
)E
-
'
(
);
,-
*
"
%
%
)3
$&
<
)+
)E
-
&
-
:)
$'
:-
,8
+
&$
-
'
>)
%
-
)^
1
"
%
&$
-
'
%
)'
"
"
9
)&
-
)F
"
)+
'
%
3
"
,"
9
)$
'
)

*
-
'
&"
#
&6

!
N
P
)–
3
<
+
&)
$%
),
"
%
;
-
'
%
$F
$E$
&@
)-
:)
K
'
V
$,
-
'
8
"
'
&)
O
(
"
'
*
@
Z

!
 

PM
 –
X'
),
"
(
+
,9
%
)9
+
8
%
)&
<
"
@
)+
,"
)&
<
"
)"
'
:-
,*
"
8
"
'
&)
+
1
&<
-
,$
&@
6)
I
<
"
@
)<
+
V
"
)-
&<
"
,)
,"
%
;
-
'
%
$F
$E$
&$
"
%
)

3
$&
<
),
$V
"
,)
:E
-
-
9
$'
(
>)
3
<
$*
<
)9
-
"
%
)'
-
&)
+
::
"
*
&)
1
%
6

!
L
L
)– 

req
ue

sts
 cr

os
s s

ec
tio

ns
 &-
)<
"
E;
)V
$%
1
+
E$U
"
);
,-
;
-
%
+
E%
)%
-
)9
"
*
$%
$-
'
%
)*
+
'
)F
"
)8
+
9
"
6

!
 

JW
 –
*
,-
%
%
)%
"
*
&$
-
'
%
)$
'
)/
-
9
"
E)
J
-
+
&$
'
(
).
-
'
9
)3
"
,"
)V
"
,@
)<
"
E;
:1
E6

!
K
C
)–
<
"
E;
:1
E)
&-
)%
"
"
)+
)(
E-
%
%
+
,@
6

!
C
D
)–
3
"
)3
$EE
),
"
*
$,
*
1
E+
&"
6

8.
Up

da
te 

on
 Pu

bli
c C

on
su

lta
tio

n –
 Je

nn
ife

r W
oo

d 
!
 

JM
W 

- C
ity 
<
+
%
)&
+
Q
"
'
)-
'
)+
'
)"
#
&"
,'
+
E)
*
-
'
%
1
E&
+
'
&)

–M
"
%
-
1
,*
"
%
)0
-
,)
H
<
+
'
(
"
6)
I
<
$%
)-
,(
+
'
$%
+
&$
-
'
)

3
-
,Q
"
9
)-
'
)&
<
"
)N
"
+
&<
);
,"
V
$-
1
%
E@
)+
'
9
)Q
'
-
3
%
)$
&)
3
"
EE6
)I
<
"
)H
$&
@
)8
"
&)
3
$&
<
)&
<
"
8
)-
'
)C
+
&1
,9
+
@
)+
'
9
)

&<
"
@
)+
,"
)3
-
,Q
$'
(
)1
;
)+
)9
"
&+
$E"
9
);
E+
'
)'
-
3
>)
3
<
$*
<
)3
$EE
)<
-
;
"
:1
EE@
)F
"
)3
$&
<
)&
<
"
)*
$&
@
)F
@
)&
<

e e
nd

 of
 

&<
"
)3
"
"
Q
6

PP
SG

 in
vit

ed
 to

 m
ee

t w
ith

 th
e c

on
su

lta
nts

 on
 M

on
da

y, 
14

 O
cto

be
r a

t 6
pm

. 
7. 

 Up
da

te 
on

 Co
ntr

ac
tor

 Ap
po

int
me

nt 
– S

im
on

 Le
e 

!
C
D
)–
I
<
+
'
Q
"
9
)B
R
)+
'
9
)C
M
):
-
,)
&<
"
$,
)$
'
V
-
EV
"
8
"
'
&6
)H
1
,,
"
'
&E
@
)+
&)
%
$&
"
)V
$%
$&
$'
(
)%
&+
(
"
)+
'
9
)<
-
;
"
)&
-
)

<
+
V
"
)+
;
;
-
$'
&"
9
)F
@
)E
+
&"
)]
-
V
"
8
F
"
,6

P
age 121



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT80

!
"#

$
%&
'
%'
&
%'
(
!

!
!

)
!

!

!
 

JW
 –
$8
;
,"
%
%
"
9
)3
$&
<
)^
1
+
E$&
@
)-
:)
&<
"
)*
-
'
&,
+
*
&-
,)
+
'
9
)&
<
"
)"
8
;
<
+
%
$%
)H
$&
@
)<
+
%
);
1
&)
-
'
)"
'
V
$,
-
'
8
"
'
&)

+
'
9
)3
-
,Q
$'
(
)$
'
)+
);
1
F
E$*
)%
;
+
*
"
6

9.
AO

B 
!
 

JW
 – 

co
ns

titu
en

ts 
+
,"
)*
-
'
*
"
,'
"
9
)F
@
)E
+
'
9
%
*
+
;
"
)+
'
9
)"
*
-
E-
(
$*
+
E)
;
,-
;
-
%
+
E%
6)
H
+
'
)H
$&
@
)*
E+
,$
:@
)

&<
"
%
"
)+
,"
)-
'
E@
)$
'
9
$*
+
&$
V
"
)+
'
9
):
1
,&
<
"
,)
9
"
&+
$E>
)%
1
*
<
)+
%
)%
$&
"
)3
+
EQ
%
>)
3
$EE
):
-
EE-
3
6

!
C
D
)–
@
"
%
>)
F
1
&)
%
&$
EE)
$8
;
-
,&
+
'
&)
&-
):
"
"
9
)F
+
*
Q
)+
'
@
)*
-
8
8
"
'
&%
)&
<
,-
1
(
<
-
1
&)
&<
"
);
,-
*
"
%
%
6

!
.
N
)–
,"
^
1
"
%
&)
&<
"
)9
$+
8
"
&"
,)
-
:)
;
$;
"
%
)-
'
)F
-
&<
)N
$(
<
(
+
&"
)]
-
6=
)+
'
9
)N
+
8
;
%
&"
+
9
)]
-
6)
=

, p
lus

 
E"
'
(
&<
)+
'
9
)+
'
(
E"
6

Da
tes

 fo
r fu

tur
e m

ee
tin

gs
:  

- 
Mo

nd
ay
>)
=
Y
)S
*
&-
F
"
,)
)-8

"
"
&$
'
(
)&
-
)9
$%
*
1
%
%
)&
<
"
)H
-
'
%
1
E&
+
&$
-
'

- 
Mo

nd
ay

, `
=
)S
*
&-
F
"
,

-
/
-
'
9
+
@
>)
=
c
)]
-
V
"
8
F
"
,

- 
Mo

nd
ay

,  d
)G
"
*
"
8
F
"
,

P
age 122



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 81

Source Comment

Highgate

Men’s Pond 

Association

(HMPA)

16 October 

2013

The HMPA recognises the efforts undertaken by the City and its advisers to reduce the 

scale of the proposed dam works from that originally proposed. Nevertheless, the HMPA 

#'*+$"'-$+:%%'&-$*)-5*&$'.$-5*$+'C,!;;*#$f%&*.*&&*#g$'%-)'"+$.'&$-5*$.';;'0)"6$&*!+'"+2

1. The Hampstead Heath Act 1871 requires the Heath to be kept in its natural state 

!"#$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+L$)"$-5*)&$%&'%'+*#$+,!;*L$!&*$)"$#)&*,-$,'"7),-$0)-5$-5!-$

requirement.

]2$P5*$YMDQ$9*;)*(*+$-5!-$!%%&'%&)!-*$;*(*;+$'.$%&'-*,-)'"$.&'4$7''#)"6$,!"$9*$

achieved with the use of various techniques, including early warning systems, which 

have been disregarded in the preparation of the Preferred Options Report.

On a separate matter, the HMPA considers that the coloured pictures and maps 

,'"-!)"*#$)"$-5*$F*%'&-$!&*$5)65;A$4)+;*!#)"62$S"$%!&-),:;!&L$-5*$4!%+$'.$-5*$M'#*;$

Boating Ponds and the Men’s Bathing Pond misleadingly conceal the true and enormous 

+)`*$'.$-5*$%&'%'+*#$+%);;0!A+$!"#$-5*$#)+/6:&*4*"-$-5*A$0);;$,!:+*$-'$-5*$+:&&':"#)"6$

landscape.

Highgate

Society

18 October 

2013

P5*$Y)656!-*$I',)*-A$)+$-5*$!4*")-A$+',)*-A$.'&$-5*$Y)656!-*$!&*!2$S-$)+$!$(';:"-!&A$

organisation with c. 1,400 members living in and around Highgate, and its purpose is to 

4!B*$Y)656!-*$!$9*--*&$%;!,*$)"$05),5$-'$;)(*$!"#$0'&B2$S-$)+$!$.':"#*&C4*49*&$'.$-5*$

Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee, and the western part of Highgate is bordered 

by Hampstead Heath.

b*$!&*$.',:+)"6$':&$,'44*"-+$'"$,*&-!)"$4!E'&$!+%*,-+$'.$-5*$Y)656!-*$,5!)"2$b*$/"#$

)-$#)./,:;-$-'$,'44*"-$4'&*$,'"+-&:,-)(*;A$'"$!$":49*&$'.$%')"-+$05),5$0*&*$7!66*#$:%$

in our response to the previous Options consultation paper in August but which do not 

appear to have been adequately addressed by the current paper; our members would 

appreciate a response to the points we raised in the August consultation. Our comments 

are as follows:

Q2$ I-',B$%'"#2$b*$+**$"'$"**#$.'&$!$/G*#$)+;!"#L$!"#$,'"+)#*&$-5!-$)-$0':;#$!;+'$

be damaging to the character of the pond, which is particularly valued for the clear 

views across its often smooth water to the trees and vegetation around its edges. We 

also consider that any reduction of overhanging branches should be minimal, as this, 

too, is an essential element of the pond’s character. The “environmental mitigation and 

compensation” measures should be dealt with at a later stage, once the engineering

Source Comment

issues have been decided. The imprecise descriptions of such proposed work also 

confuse the picture of what is really required, not least because the City of London

remain unwilling to share their interpretation of the reservoirs legislation with the 

Stakeholder Group.

B. Spillways. The stylised orange lines used to show the routes of spillways on all 

%'"#+$!&*$)"+:./,)*"-$-'$!;;'0$&*!+'"!9;*$,'44*"-L$+)",*$-5*$;)"*+$'"$-5*$#&!0)"6+$!&*$

+)6")/,!"-;A$"!&&'0*&$-5!"$-5*$!,-:!;$4!G)4:4$0)#-5$'.$-5*$%&'%'+*#$+%);;0!A+2$b*$

0':;#$!+B$-5!-$!,,:&!-*L$-'C+,!;*$)4!6*+$+5':;#$9*$%&'#:,*#L$!"#$-5!-$-5*$4!G)4:4$

widths of all spillways should be marked on the ground to enable us to judge their 

actual impact. More detail is required regarding such issues as plants that can remain in 

the spillway, trees to be lost and resultant impact on views for Heath users.

C. Bird sanctuary Pond. We consider that the proposed new channel and wetlands 

in the western sector of the pond are an unnecessary intervention and potentially 

disruptive to the established birds and other wildlife here. Water quality improvements, 

not water features, should be the main aim. The document indicates “no spillway”, yet 

two are marked on the plan. We need more information about the “replacement of 

'(*&7'0$%)%*g2$P5*$+-!-*#$'(*&&)#)"6$!)4?$fF*-!)"$0!-*&$;*(*;L$4)")4)`*$)"-*&(*"-)'"$-'$

improve discharge capacity with sensitive implementation to minimise impact on wildlife 

habitats and visual amenity, and retain the wild and natural character of the Heath”, as 

with much else in the long document, lacks clarity, confuses the issue of improvements 

with the fundamental one of rendering the dams safe, and should be considered in 

detail only after the basic dams reinforcement work has been agreed.

D. Boating Pond. On the basis of the information available to us, we consider that 

Option 4 is preferable to option 6. However, a 2m increase in the height of the dam is 

still going to have a dramatic impact on the character of the area. We would consider 

it to be the maximum acceptable height by which the dam can be increased, but would 

nevertheless expect considerable public disquiet at the proposal at the wider public 

consultation stage. Our support for this option must therefore be dependent on more 

information:

- much greater clarity about the location, size and look of the spillway;

- greater clarity about the impact of pond widening on the steepness of the slope 
on the western bank; the proposed profile drawings in the document are not 
consistent and appear also to be incorrect, and they do not appear to relate to 
any of the actual sections indicated on the plan. At least three profiles of the 
“before and after slope”, at equal points along the bank of the western edge of 
the pond, are necessary. 

Comments from PPSG on Preferred Options Report 

P
age 123



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT82

Source Comment

E. Public consultation – next steps. We are increasingly concerned that the options 

report appears to be getting longer and more complex, while also being too vague on 

important points, with too little on engineering changes that will impact fundamentally 

'"$-5*$Y*!-5L$!"#$-''$4:,5$'"$f6&**")"6$)++:*+g$05),5$0*$9*;)*(*$,!""'-$9*$/"!;)`*#$

in detail until whatever major dam reinforcement works may be necessary have been 

!6&**#2$S-$)+$()-!;$-5!-$-5*$I-!B*5';#*&$K&':%$)+$!9;*$-'$+**$!"#$,'44*"-$'"$-5*$#&!.-$

%:9;),$,'"+:;-!-)'"$#',:4*"-L$-'$9*$+!-)+/*#$-5!-$-5!-$)-$+5'0+$-5*$0)#*&$%:9;),L$-'$

whom this will be new and complex, in clear, simple and unambiguous language, what 

0);;$,5!"6*L$5'0$)-$0);;$;''B$!"#L$4'+-$)4%'&-!"-;AL$!$,;*!&$;*6!;$E:+-)/,!-)'"$'.$05A$-5*$

changes are needed.

Hampstead

Heath Anglers 

Society

18 October 

2013

Page 3/1. Summary.

V2V@V2]2$S$-!B*$)-$-5*+*$!&*$-5*$%&*.*&&*#$'%-)'"+$'.$-5*$,)-A$'.$O'"#'"$!"#$Q-B)"+$!"#$

not any of the stakeholders preferred options.

D!6*$_@]2$J(*&()*0$'.$#*,)+)'"C4!B)"6$%&',*++$!"#$'%-)'"+$#*(*;'%4*"-2

]2V2$N&'4$05!-$S$5!(*$&*!#$+'$.!&2$P5*$%&'6&*++$+'$.!&$)+$*"-)&*;A$'"$-5*$,)-A$'.$O'"#'"$

and Atkins side and ignoring several pertinent questions including my own. What is the 

#)!4*-*&L$!"6;*$!"#$;*"6-5$'.$-5*$+*,'"#$&:"C'..$%)%*$9*5)"#$-5*$.*",)"6$'"$Y)656!-*$

":49*&$'"*$%'"#2$S$!;+'$5!(*$"'-$9**"$6)(*"$-5*$!"6;*+$'.$9'-5$-5*$Y)656!-*$M!)"$&:"C

'..$%)%*$!"#$-5*$Y!4%+-*!#$&:"C'..$%)%*L$05),5$)+$&*;*(!"-$-'$-5*)&$&:"C'..$,!%!,)-)*+2

You also state the options development phase will, culminate in a 12 week period 

'.$"'"C+-!-:-'&A$%:9;),$,'"+:;-!-)'"$'(*&$-5*$0)"-*&$4'"-5+2$Q"A$,'"+:;-!-)'"$!"#$

exhibitions on the Heath should be done over the period of the summer months for 

maximum attendance of the general public.

D!6*$_@]2$^&)*.$+:44!&A$'.$%&'9;*4$#*/")-)'"2

2.2. You State that, while complying with the reservoirs act 1975. This act was already 

complied with in the early 1980s. The stock pond had a new pipe put in at the western 

*"#L$05),5$0!+$/--*#$!9'(*$-5*$-5*"$*G)+-)"6$0!-*&$;*(*;2$H'"+*[:*"-;A$&!)+)"6$-5!-$

water level. No knowledge of what was done in the ladies pond. The bird sanctuary 

%'"#$5!#$!$"*0$%)%*$/--*#$)"$-5*$0*+-*&"$*"#2$Q%%&'G)4!-*;A$]$.**-$!9'(*$-5*$-5*"$

*G)+-)"6$0!-*&$;*(*;2$P5*$9'!-)"6$%'"#$5!#$!$"*0$;!&6*&$#)!4*-*&$%)%*$/--*#$0*&*$)-$"'0$

*G)+-+$!"#$-5*$';#$%)%*$&*4'(*#2$R'$"'-$B"'0$'.$!"A$4'#)/,!-)'"+$-'$-5*$4*"U+$%'"#2$

P5*$/&+-$%'"#2$P5*$*G)+-)"6$%)%*$0!+$)",&*!+*#$)"$#)!4*-*&2$Q"#$!$"*0$%)%*$/--*#$-5*$

other side of the fence on the private land. So it is only the 2010 act or the parts of the 

2010 act that affect Hampstead Heath that needs to be taken into account.

Source Comment

2.4. You State, however even at these lower values the dams will overtop. If the 
existing pipework is left in place then these dams will overtop. With a combination 
of larger pipework, as in my design and minimal raising of the dams. There should 
be no overtopping at all.

2.9. As already said. The reservoirs act 1975 has already been complied with.

2.10. In view of the work planned to be carried out. This is way over and above the 
requirements of the flood and water management act 2010. Therefore would be in 
complete contravention of the Hampstead Heath 1871 Act.

Page 5/2. Key objectives

2.11.See previous comments on reservoirs act 1975

2.12. Why is the flow not being allowed to increase considering there were 
three six-foot diameter pipes going underneath the Midland line which we were 
informed. Two were for the flood relief of the Highgate chain and the third one was 
for the flood relief of the sewers. No idea what was done at the Hampstead chain. 
Apart from the dam at the number one pond was raised approximately 6 feet with 
a new outflow pipe and the stopping of anglers fishing from that bank because it 
was now to steep.

Page 6/2. Design philosophy.

2.15. The design philosophy includes:

There has been lots of talk about margin planting and softening, removal of 
the bottom feeding fish. Also planting on upstream faces of the dams. Various 
protection for animals and habitat, softening of edges by creating new margins, 
softening the edges and banks by excavating new margins set back from pond.

This gives the impression that you are trying to turn an animal/bird sanctuary on the 

lines of the Barnes reservoirs.

S"$!;;$'.$-5*+*$0'&B+2$a'$,'"+)#*&!-)'"$5!+$9**"$6)(*"$-'$-5*$!"6;*&+$!"#$-5*$"**#$'.$

access to all the banks that they have always had access to. Also there has been no 

,'"+)#*&!-)'"$-'$05**;,5!)&$:+*&+$805*-5*&$!"6;*&+$'&$6*"*&!;$%:9;),>$-5!-$0)+5$-'$6*-$

access to the banks. While wheelchair users have not always had access to all of the 

9!"B+2$P5*A$5!#$!,,*++$-'$-5*$4)G*#$+0)44)"6$%'"#L$+':-5*&"$9!"B$805),5$0);;$9*$;'+-$

:"#*&$-5*$,:&&*"-$+,5*4*>$!"#$-5*$9'!-)"6$%'"#$9!"B+2$T!+-$9!"B$!"#$b*+-$^!"B2$S"$

the current plans they will lose the access to the West Bank. Also any model boat users 

will lose access to the boating pond. The bank softening and planting has already been 

carried out on the Wanstead Flats boating pond and the only thing that sails on there 

P
age 124



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 83

Source Comment

now, are the ducks! There is also a lot of talk of adding islands to the ponds. Again this 

will be taking away the amenities and visual aspect from the public and also reduce any 

storage capacity.

2.15. Paragraph 3. Planting on the upstream face of dams. Any planting on the 
dams faces would impede access by the anglers and the general public. Any raising 
of the dams should still allow access to those bank edges.

Page 9/4. Incorporation of suggestions from stakeholders.

4.4. Desilting of ponds.

Both number one ponds should also be desilted as they are now very shallow 
compared to what they used to be.

4.5. Retaining the group of trees on the West Bank of model boating pond and 
turning the area into a peninsula.

The HHAS cannot agree with this at all. This is completely unnecessary and entirely 
in contravention of the Hampstead Heath 1871 act. Which states: And whereas it 
would be of great advantage to the inhabitants of the metropolis if the Heath were 
always kept uninclosed and unbuilt on, it’s natural aspect and state being as far as 
may be preserved. It is also not required under the flood and water management 
act 2010.

Page 11/5.5 I suspect with a crest restoration of up to 500mm would not be 
enough with a spillway, 500mm deep. This would put a spillway at the same depth 
as the water. With all the mitigation that you have planned for this stock pond. You 
are drastically reducing the surface area thus reducing potential storage area.

Page 14. Kenwood ladies bathing pond. Any planting to the West of the ladies 
pond should be done with great care as that field has some rare orchids. Especially 
towards the northern end.

Page 15. Bird sanctuary pond. This is the only pond that I think should have its 
water level lowered back to its original (or slightly less) prior to the 1975 dams act 
being carried out. At the moment it is approximately 2 feet higher than it used to 
be. Once bought back to its original level, this would allow the space to be used for 
any flood storage. Thus lowering any increase in dam heights further downstream.

Page 16/21. Model boating pond.

The size and shape including the existing bank edging should remain the same. 
This is a model boating pond and one of the few ponds that wheelchair users have 
access to and should remain the same. Any raising of the dams should be no more 
than 1 m with access to the water’s edge still available to anglers.

Source Comment

Page 22. Men’s bathing pond.

Raising the dam by 1.5 m and yet you quote a spillway of 750 mm below the top of the 

new wall. To me this means the dams is at least 250 mm higher than it needs to be. 

There should be no creation of new margins as this would impede angling and also snag 

/+5$!"#$%'++)9;A$9&*!B)"6$;)"*+L$0)-5$-5*$,'"+*[:*"-$5''B$!"#$;)"*$;*.-$)"$-5*$/+5$0)-5$

-5*$/+5$:"!9;*$-'$4'(*2

The trees on the West Bank should be trimmed well back to allow the reed beds to 

regrow that used to be there. The fencing on the West and North bank should be 

removed as it is in contravention of the Hampstead Heath 1871 act. Prior to that fencing 

9*)"6$%:-$-5*&*L$-5*&*$0*&*$.':&$%;!,*+$-5!-$,':;#$9*$/+5*#$.&'42

Page 25/27 Highgate number 1 pond. Anglers no longer have access to this pond. When 

did this happen. Why is it the city of London are so intent on depriving the public access 

to the ponds by either fencing off with wooden fencing or using natural means.

You are planning a spillway at the southern corner of this pond. Which is the route that 

-5)+$+%);;0!A$0);;$9*$-!B)"62$S$9*;)*(*$)-U+$'";A$*G)-$)+$()!$-5*$%:9;),$5)650!A2$S$#'$0'"#*&$

).$-5)+$)+$;*6!;$-'$%:&%'+*;A$&:"$7''#0!-*&$'"-'$-5*$%:9;),$5)650!A2$D'++)9;A$*"#!"6*&)"6$

life.

Page 28. Options 6. All the comments above also applies to this option.

Page 34/6. Preferred options-Hampstead chain.

page 35. Vale of health pond.

The potential spillway to the northern end of the dam should not be considered. 
This is the only access to anglers on that side of the pond all previous accesses to 
that pond are now heavily overgrown with trees and trees that have collapsed. 
Making it impossible to fish from that side of the pond other than the northern 
corner.

Any hibernacula’s should be restricted to the ponds that have the original iron 
fencing around.

Page 36. Viaduct pond.

Any amphibian and reptile hibernacula should be restricted to the upstream side 
of the Viaduct and the East and West banks given back to the anglers. The reason 
for this is the southern bank. I.e. the dam crest is too narrow to fish from and allow 
public to pass by, without possible confrontation.

P
age 125



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT84

Source Comment

Page 43. Mixed bathing pond

this pond is the only pond on the Hampstead chain that has access for wheelchair users. 

Whether anglers or public. Therefore we feel this dam should not be touched.

Page 46. Hampstead number 2 pond.

Any planting to the West Bank should give consideration to access by anglers. Again no 

hibernacula’s should be considered.

Page 47. Hampstead number 1 pond.

This pond like the Highgate number 1 pond should be dredged, as it is a lot shallower 

"'0$-5!"$05!-$)-$:+*#$-'$9*2$S-U+$!;+'$9**"$.*",*#$'..$0)-5$"!-:&!;$%;!"-)"6$!"#$/+5)"6$

on both number one ponds have been taken away from anglers. Why is this. The East

bank now seems to be considered as private land.

There is a box culvert. Obviously going through the dam. Where does that go to. And 

05*&*$#'*+$-5*$'(*&7'0$%)%*$6')"6$-'2$P5*A$+5':;#$9'-5$9*$6')"6$)"-'$-5*$7**-$#&!)"L$

which should be able to take all of the PMF on the Hampstead chain.

Page 48. Option P works description.

All above comments to the above option, apply to this option P.

h';:4*$]C,'44*"-+$'"$+5'&-;)+-$'%-)'"+$&*%'&-$VV-5$'.$J,-'9*&$]=V<

page 6. Query number 163. Jeremy Wright of the Heath and Hampstead society queries. 

On a single exception being made to the water level of the boating pond.

S.$-5)+$%'"#$0!+$;'0*&*#$-'$)-+$'&)6)"!;$;*(*;$8!%%&'G)4!-*;A$+'4*$_$)",5*+$;'0*&$-5!"$

what it is now along with the lowering of the bird sanctuary to its original level) this 

would allow more storage with less dam height.

Summary

On many occasions there is talk of the spillways being designed for Possible Maximum

Flood. Then on other occasions. The spillways to be designed to discharge the 1 in 

V=L===$A*!&$7''#$0)-5$-5*$+:&%;:+$DMN$!;;'0*#$-'$'(*&-'%2$b5A$)+$-5)+L$,'"+)#*&)"6$-5*$

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 states that the dams must be able to pass a 1 in 

V=L===$A*!&$7''#$0)-5':-$,';;!%+)"6i$

S.$-5*+*$-&)9:-!&)*+$!&*$%!&-$'.$-5*$F)(*&$7**-2$S$9*;)*(*$-5*$;!0$!;;'0+$.'&L$7''#0!-*&$-'$

be passed downstream, provided they do not cause a dam collapse. Therefore the 3 exit 

%)%*+$+5':;#$9*$*";!&6*#$-'$-!B*$-5*$V$)"$V=L===$A*!&$7''#2

Source Comment

Q;;$<$%)%*+$+5':;#$9*$)",&*!+*#$-'$!-$;*!+-$_$.**-$)"$#)!4*-*&2$S.$-5*$]$%*'%;*$-5!-$S$!"#$

some friends spoke to at the time of the 1975 dams act upgrades. The 4 foot pipes on 

-5*$Y)656!-*$,5!)"$0':;#$-5*"$9*$&:"")"6$)"-'$]$+)GC.''-$%)%*+2$P5)+$0':;#$#&!+-),!;;A$

reduce the requirement for water storage.

P5*$Y!4%+-*!#$,5!)"2$S$9*;)*(*$+5':;#$+-);;$9*$&:"")"6$)"-'$-5*$7**-$#&!)"L$+'$+5':;#$9*$

!9;*$-'$-!B*$!;;$'.$-5*$7''#0!-*&$,'4)"6$#'0"$-5*$Y!4%+-*!#$,5!)"$-5&':65$!$+:)-!9;*$

size pipe and spillway.

SU4$+'&&A$-'$+!A$-5)+$!"#$).$S$'..*"#$!"A9'#A$-5*"$S$!%';'6)+*L$9:-$S$6*-$-5*$)4%&*++)'"$

that the Corporation of London and Atkins are trying to pull the wool over the public’s 

*A*+2$S.$"'-$-5*"$05A$-5*$+,!&*4'"6*&)"6$-!,-),+$'.$V_==$%*'%;*$9*)"6$B);;*#$!"#$-5*$

impression of the PMF coming down all in one go. Also. Why are they not involving the 

maximum amount of public that visits the Heath in the summer months and restricting 

the public consultation to the worst of the winter months, when the minimum amount of 

public visit the Heath

Kenwood

Ladies Pond 

Association  

20 October 

2013

We know that the City has tried to ensure a wide measure of consultation with both 

those who use the Heath, and in particular with the swimmers’ associations and with 

residents’ associations from the surrounding areas, as well as with the Heath and 

Hampstead Society.  We have been engaged for almost two years in discussing the 

reasons why the proposed works will be necessary and there has been explanations and 

discussions and work shops to ensure that as many are aware of both the urgency of 

the proposals and the ways that the potential problems could be dealt with. 

For the Kenwood Ladies Pond Association it became clear very early on in the process 

that some of the initial suggestions would make a quite catastrophic intervention into a 

%'"#L$-5!-$)+$:")[:*$)"$)-+$.'&4$9:-$:")[:*$-''$)"$-5*$%*'%;*$05'$:+*$)-2$$S-$)+$:")[:*$!+$

-5*&*$)+$"'$'-5*&$0'4*"C'";A$+0)44)"6$%'"#$)"$^&)-!)"$'&$-5&':65$T:&'%*2$S-$9*,!4*$

clear that this is a pond which has great loyalty from its swimmers and which plays such 

an important part in their lives. Any works which would alter in any substantive way the 

pond and its surroundings would face huge opposition, and this was quickly recognized 

by the City and all of those on the stakeholders group.  Consequently the initial thoughts 

of building up the dam and moving the lifeguards deck were quickly abandoned.  This 

was warmly welcomed by all the KLPA, swimmers and lifeguards. 

P
age 126



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 85

Source Comment

The proposals to restore the crest of the dam, as long as there will be no interference 

with the trees and vegetation would be accepted.  There has been agreement that any 

new buildings would be designed and built with full consultation with and acceptance by 

the KLPA.  The proposed spillway 

whilst substantial in size would be located in a discreet manner in the south west part of 

the pond and would wend its way through the wooded area at the north west end of the 

bird sanctuary pond. The views to the bird sanctuary pond would be maintained as at 

present.

Generally however there is concern about any major interventions across the Heath, 

and many members are still unconvinced by the arguments about the hydrology and 

-5*$)4%!,-$'.$5*!(A$&!)".!;;L$!"#$-5*$"**#$.'&$!$4!E'&$*"6)"**&)"6$%&'E*,-2$S-$)+$.*;-$-5!-$

if there is to be work done, it should be guided by ‘the less the better’.  The concern 

of many members is evident and it is that the engineering solutions being proposed, 

.'&$05!-$)"$-5*)&$*A*+$)+$!$5A%'-5*-),!;$7''#L$!&*$"'-$!+$A*-$:"#*&+-''#$!+$-5*$%'++)9;*$

solutions nor accepted as needed. 

We are also concerned that the schedule now appears to be very rushed when the 

timing for the public consultation is nearly upon us and the meetings of both the 

Consultative Committee and particularly the Management Committee are taking place 

immediately before the start of the public consultation. This implies that documentation 

presented to both will be passed without alteration. Possibly an accurate prediction but 

one which smacks of complacency and not democracy.

Source Comment

Heath & 

Hampstead

Society

2O October 

2013

FINAL

Hampstead Heath Ponds Project – Proposed [‘Preferred’] Options Report

dated 4.10.2013

Comments by the Heath & Hampstead Society

jw / Revision E / 19.10.13 / hs1150e

WITHOUT PREJUDICE

The Heath & Hampstead Society rejects all the Options now offered by the 

City.  We also urge the City to rename this document and any document 

going out for public consultation as the “Proposed Options” since to call them 

“Preferred” is unnecessarily provocative to the very strong public objections 

they will undoubtedly stir up.

We have made known to the City at recent meetings and through correspondence 

-5*$&*!+'"+$.'&$':&$&*E*,-)'"2$$P5*$%'+)-)'"$'.$-5*$I',)*-A$)+$,'"/&4*#$)"$!$+*%!&!-*$

letter from our Chairman to the Chairman of the Hampstead Heath Management

H'44)--**2$$S"$+:44!&AL$0*$,'"+)#*&$-5*$%&'%'+*#$*"6)"**&)"6$-'$9*$9!+*#$'"$!"$

incorrect interpretation of the relevant law and, with the adoption of inappropriate 

safety assumptions, have led to the Proposed Options being unnecessarily obtrusive and 

damaging to the wild and natural state of the Heath, contrary to the 1871 Act.

P
age 127



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT86

Source Comment

We will continue to work with the City and its advisers in the hope that we may be able 

-'$/"#$!6&**4*"-$'"$5'0$-5*$&)+B$!++*++4*"-+$+5':;#$9*$4!#*j$05!-$+5':;#$9*$-5*$

appropriate safety standards and objectives behind the designs, and that this continued 

dialogue will result in proposals which do not damage the wild and natural state of the 

Heath.

General Comments on the Design Development Procedures

S"$-5)+$#',:4*"-L$0*$0);;$&*.*&$-5&':65':-$-'$-5)+$;!-*+-$&*%'&-$!+$-5*$‘Proposed

Options Report’, rather than the ‘Preferred’ Options Report.

Concerns re the Consultation Process

We have become increasingly concerned that although the City has made sincere 

*..'&-+L$!-$+)6")/,!"-$,'+-L$-'$*"6!6*$!"#$,'"+:;-$0)-5$-5*$I-!B*5';#*&+L$-5*$#*+)6"+$

!"#$/"!;$)"-*"-)'"+$'.$-5*$#!4$*"6)"**&+$!%%*!&$-'$9*$#&)(*"$.'&0!&#L$.:"#!4*"-!;;A$

unaltered, despite the extensive and constructive comments by the Stakeholders and 

others.

For example the Proposed Options Report lists on p9 some 10 suggestions ‘from 

stakeholders’ which purport to show how stakeholder suggestions have been 

incorporated.  However, most of these were suggested initially by the design team.  

S-*4$_2V=$)+$':&$+:66*+-)'"L$9:-$-5*$F*%'&-$'";A$+-!-*+$-5!-$)-$,':;#$9*$4'#*;;*#$-'$

reduce the height of the Mixed Pond dam.  This suggestion has not been incorporated, 

even though Volume 2, giving the Design Team Responses to the many Stakeholder 

queries, acknowledges that there is scope to widen this spillway to reduce dam height.  

The extraordinary tight timescale imposed at this late stage has resulted in these 

responses being circulated very recently and may give rise to further queries from us 

after your deadline for this current stage.

Concerns re the Programme from now to the Start of Public Consultation on 

the Proposed Options

I-!B*5';#*&+$4!A$+:66*+-$+)6")/,!"-$,5!"6*+$-'$-5*$D&'%'+*#$J%-)'"+2$$N'&$*G!4%;*L$

we suggest below variants on a Proposed Option which would require models to be 

&*C&:"2$$P5*$*G-&*4*;A$,'4%&*++*#$%&'6&!44*$!-$-5)+$/"!;$+-!6*$#'*+$"'-$!%%*!&$-'$

!;;'0$+:./,)*"-$-)4*$.'&$-5)+$'&$*(*"$4'&*$4)"'&$4'#)/,!-)'"+$-'$9*$4!#*$-'$-5*$,:&&*"-$

&*%'&-2$$I-!B*5';#*&+$5!(*$-'$+:94)-$,'44*"-+$9A$Vc$J,-'9*&$8&*,*"-;A$*G-*"#*#$-'$

21 October), and to discuss these comments at the PPSG meeting on 21 October.  The 

City will issue the Final Proposed Options report to the Consultative Committee about 

one week later, around 29 October.  This allows no time to revise the report to PPSG 

comments so we believe it will again be the current unaltered report, have to submit

Source Comment

,'44*"-+$9A$Vc$J,-'9*&$8&*,*"-;A$*G-*"#*#$-'$]V$J,-'9*&>L$!"#$-'$#)+,:++$-5*+*$

comments at the PPSG meeting on 21 October.  The City will issue the Final Proposed 

Options report to the Consultative Committee about one week later, around 29 October.  

This allows no time to revise the report to PPSG comments so we believe it will again 

be the current unaltered report, with Stakeholder comments as an appendix, that will 

go to the Consultative Committee for discussion on 12 November.  For a meaningful 

consultation, the body of the report should be amended at minimum to include a proper 

summary of Stakeholder views contained in the Appendix.

The Management Committee papers will then be issued about 18 November [i.e. 

again no time to absorb the Consultative Committee’s comments].  The Management

Committee will then decide on 25 November whether this Report should be used for 

public consultation.  However, this public consultation starts the very next day, 

on 26 November!

S-$)+$'9()':+$-5&':65':-$-5)+$%*&)'#L$!"#$%!&-),:;!&;A$!-$-5*$H'"+:;-!-)(*$!"#$

M!"!6*4*"-$H'44)--**$+-!6*+L$-5!-$"'$-)4*$5!+$9**"$!;;'0*#$-'$4!B*$!"A$+)6")/,!"-$

changes to this report.  We conclude therefore that the public will be consulted on the 

basis of an unaltered Proposed Options Report, and with Stakeholder comments again 

!--!,5*#$!+$!"$!%%*"#)GL$!"#$-5)+$5!+$"'0$9**"$,'"/&4*#L$+**$9*;'02$$S"$'-5*&$0'&#+L$

the public will merely be asked to select one of the two proposed options per chain, 

which may not have support from Stakeholders and the Consultative Committee

We therefore query the purpose of Stakeholders studying the reports in detail and 

issuing considered comments, apart from the City and Atkins being able to write ‘we

have consulted’.

Concerns re the Programme from the end of Public Consultation until 

Submission of a Planning Application

The outline programme from when the public consultation ends on 17 February 

2014 shows that the Planning Application preparation is from February to April, with 

submission in May of a Single Option per chain to LB Camden for planning purposes.  

Nothing has yet been issued that indicates how the Design Team will consider and take 

into account all the comments from the public and others, and the process to proceed 

from the two Proposed Options per chain down to the single Planning Option.  Nothing 

,'"/&4+$05*-5*&$-5*$DDIKL$H'"+:;-!-)(*$'&$M!"!6*4*"-$H'44)--**+$0);;$5!(*$!"A$

input or involvement during this stage.  We are most concerned that much of this will be 

by Atkins with little or no reference to Stakeholders.

We therefore urge that a detailed Method Statement and Programme be issued for this 

stage without delay

P
age 128



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 87

Source Comment

Concerns re the Public Consultation Process

The Public Consultation is scheduled to start on 26 November, i.e. in only 5 weeks’ 

time!  We are concerned that as yet no detailed plan has been shown to Stakeholders 

on precisely what will be carried out and what documents and material will be produced, 

despite having made detailed comments on preliminary proposals some months ago.  

The Proposed Options Report, with recently issued Appendices, is obviously far too 

detailed for the general public.

b*$0*&*$%;*!+*#$-'$!--*"#$-5*$/&+-$)".'&4!;$#)+,:++)'"$'"$V_$J,-'9*&$0)-5$F*+':&,*+$

.'&$H5!"6*L$05'$5!(*$E:+-$9**"$!%%')"-*#$-'$4!"!6*$-5*$%:9;),$,'"+:;-!-)'"2$$S-$0!+$

,'"/&4*#$-5*"$-5!-$-5*A$0':;#$:+*$-5*$,:&&*"-$:"!;-*&*#$D&'%'+*#$J%-)'"+$F*%'&-$-'$

prepare their consultation material, and that the Stakeholders would not see this before 

)-$)+$/"!;)+*#2$$

As there are no public meetings planned by the City, the Society will be holding a public 

meeting on 25 November.

General Comments on Project Programme

From the above, it will be appreciated that the Society is extremely concerned that, 

unlike the steadier earlier programme at the start of the project, this absolutely critical 

/"!;$+-!6*$)+$"'0$9*)"6$#&)(*"$4:,5$4'&*$:&6*"-;AL$0*$+:+%*,-$9A$-5*$#!4$*"6)"**&+L$

to a completely unrealistically tight programme.  This will not allow time to make any 

alterations to the physical designs of the dams already determined by the engineers

H'44*"-+$'"$k:!"-)/*#$F)+B$Q++*++4*"-

Since the project inception in July 2012, we have always submitted that it is essential 

to understand the risks before designing a solution which largely eliminates them.  The 

kFQL$05),5$0!+$'";A$)++:*#$'"$]c$Q:6:+-$]=V<L$)+$-5*$/&+-$#',:4*"-$-'$*(!;:!-*$-5*$

risks in detail.  We queried some of the basic assumptions and the resulting conclusions 

of this QRA on 23 September and are concerned that answers will not be produced until 

at least 28 October.

Comments on the Highgate Chain Engineering Proposals

1. There is absolutely nothing new with these 2 engineering options presented on the 

Highgate chain.  Because of opposition to the 3m dam, Atkins have resurrected two 

previously discarded schemes for 2.5 and 2.0 m raising at the Boat Pond, but these 

come with increased work on the two lower dams, which is why they were previously 

abandoned

Source Comment

2. We consider the least worst option is Option 4, being

Option 4

Model Boating Pond 2m

Men’s Bathing Pond V214$80!;;>

Highgate No. 1 Pond V2]14$80!;;>

Standard of protection 1 in 1000 year

However we consider that a 1.25m wall at Highgate No 1 will be too visually 

intrusive at this very visible pond.  We feel that the wrong balance of work is 

proposed on the 2 downstream ponds.  The Men’s Pond dam is a ‘formal’ looking 

dam which is not readily visible from the public footpaths.  When viewed from the 

south end of Highgate 1 only a short length of dam can be seen between the trees.  

The main view is south from the swimming area and from the Boat dam, but these 

are generally distant views.  The impact on the general Heath user should be given 

%&)'&)-A$'(*&$-5*$.!&$.*0*&$+0)44*&+2$$S"$,'"-&!+-L$Y)656!-*$V$#!4$)+$()*0*#$!+$

you approach from the south, and all pedestrians walk past the W side of the dam, 

05),5$)+$&*!#);A$()+)9;*$.&'4$-5*$0*+-L$!"#$05*"$0!;B)"6$aCI$!;'"6$-5*$.''-%!-52$$S-$

)+$,'(*&*#$0)-5$-&**+$05),5$+,&**"$-5*$)"-&:+)(*$05)-*$b*+-$Y);;$H':&-$!"#$^&''B/*;#$

Mansions from the Heath, and the impact on these should be minimised.  Please 

therefore carry out further modelling to assess the effect on the Men’s Pond dam if 

the wall at Highgate 1 were reduced to say 0.75m max. without raising the Model

Boating Pond dam above 2m.

3. The spillway on Highgate 1 will be 60/74m wide, and 570mm deep.  This is 
huge, and it is only 50m from the Brookfield fence to the main path so will be 
difficult to fit in.  We are sure that this may involve significant tree loss and asked 
in August for detailed plans of all spillways showing all tree loss on all dams but 
have not yet received them.  The mock-up on p26 is not very revealing – we 
are sure there will be a major tree loss which will be very visible as one walks N 
towards the pond on the main and very heavily used N-S path

4. The Standard of Protection has gone up from 1:50 to 1:1000 years.  We have 
asked what additional dam height was required to provide this, and have been 
told only that it ‘is a by-product of being able to pass the PMF safely’.  Please 
answer the question we have raised re additional dam height

P
age 129



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT88

Source Comment

Comments on the Hampstead Chain Engineering Proposals

5. We are very concerned that a 5.6m Catchpit dam will be too visually intrusive in this 

(!;;*A2$$b*$&*E*,-$-5*$'%-)'"$-'$5!(*$-5)+$,*"-&!;;A$#'0"$-5*$,*"-&*$'.$-5)+$(!;;*A2$$S-$

is impossible to decide on whether the least worst option would be to have it sited 

on the S side [next to the Mixed Pond] or on the N side [at the Catchpit site] until 

detailed plans have been provided showing its footprint, tree loss, and any tree or 

shrub planting on or by the mound to screen it.

6. We consider the least worst option is Option P, being

Option P

Mixed Bathing Pond ]4$8*49!"B4*"-$'&$0!;;$,'49)"!-)'">

Hampstead No. 2 0.5m wall, 1x4.5m box culvert

Hampstead No. 1 1x4.5m box culvert

Standard of Protection 1in 10,000 year

Tree loss on Hampstead No. 2 1

However, we note on p9 that you could widen the Mixed Pond spillway to almost 

the clear width between the trees at either end of this dam, which would reduce the 

&*[:)&*#$#!4$5*)65-2$$b*$!&*$+:&%&)+*#$-5!-$)-$)+$E:+-$"'-*#$8)"$h';:4*$]>$-5!-$-5*&*$

is scope for this.  Please present an option with reduced dam height.

7. The Standard of Protection has gone up from >1:1000 years for Option K to >10,000 

years for Option P.  We have asked what additional dam height was required to 

%&'()#*$-5)+L$!"#$5!(*$9**"$-';#$'";A$-5!-$)-$Z)+$!$9AC%&'#:,-$'.$9*)"6$!9;*$-'$%!++$-5*$

PMF safely’.  Please answer the question we have raised re additional dam height.

Photographic Visualisations of Works on both Chains

We urge that the images prepared to demonstrate the proposed works, especially 

for the most sensitive parts of the project, should be taken from the most sensitive 

viewpoints showing all the affected area, and that they should be accurate and not 

4)+;*!#)"62$$b*$!&*$,'",*&"*#$-5!-$-5)+$)+$"'-$+'L$.'&$*G!4%;*?C

• Highgate 1 spillway shows only a small part of the area that will be affected

l$ P5*$M'#*;$^'!-)"6$D'"#$#*-!);+$8-5*$%5'-'+$'"$%V3CVcL$-5*$,&'++$+*,-)'"$'"$%VW$!"#$

the plan on p21) appear not consistent in that the change in slope on the west bank 

8!-$)-+$,*"-&*$%')"-L$+!AL$.&'4$-5*$%!)&$'.$-&**+$'"$-5*$5);;$#'0"$-'$-5*$f)+;!"#g>$0);;L$

0*$!&*$+:&*L$9*$4:,5$6&*!-*&$-5!"$-5*$&*%'&-$+!A+$8'"$-5*$,&'++$+*,-)'"$#)!6&!4L$

from 1:10 to 1:8)

Source Comment

• The main impact of the Boating pond raised dam may be seen from the path on 

the west side of the pond, when approaching it closely from the north.  We have 

previously requested an image from this point and would be grateful for this

• The proposed wall on Highgate 1 is shown only from long distance from the north.  

S-$0':;#$9*$5*;%.:;$-'$5!(*$()+:!;+$4:,5$,;'+*&$-'$-5*$Ib$,'&"*&$'.$-5*$%'"#L$

looking in a SE direction

Comments on the Landscape and Environmental Management Proposals for 

both chains

8. We make no comment on these proposals at this stage.  We have stated previously 

that it is essential to inspect each pond on site with the Atkins Team and with the 

City of London, to discuss appropriate measures.  We had been told by them that 

the proposals were purely indicative of the type of measures that could be carried 

out.  We are therefore extremely concerned that these proposals appear to be 

going forward as part of the Public Consultation, after which there appears to be no 

provision to discuss details of the single Options that will be presented for Planning 

Application

We therefore formally reject all landscape and environmental proposals until they have 

9**"$#)+,:++*#$0)-5$I-!B*5';#*&+$'"C+)-*2$$P5*$N)"!;$J%-)'"$!"#$-5*$;!"#+,!%*$!"#$

environmental management proposals must be fully discussed with Stakeholders before 

being submitted for Planning Application

F2''D#",-*/$-*

EGOVRA

20 October 

2013

S-U+$,&:,)!;$-5!-$!;;$+-!B*5';#*&+L$!:-5'&)-)*+L$&*+)#*"-+$!"#$)"+:&!",*$9'#)*+$:"#*&+-!"#$

5'0$YKV$0);;$&*+%'"#$)"$!"A$+)`*$7''#2

Our main concern is the release of water from HG1, how it is controlled and where the 

water is delivered. CoL consider that they must guard against “a wave of water” in the 

Camden area due to a collapse of an earth embankment and/or of potential deaths from 

'(*&-'%%)"6$'.$-5*$#!42$P5*A$5!(*$!;+'$!$&*+%'"+)9);)-A$).$7''#)"6$',,:&+$#:*$-'$7'0+$'.$

+:&.!,*$0!-*&$#'0"$-5*$+%);;0!A$)"-'$H!4#*"$'&$^&''B/*;#2$

The assurance given by both the CoL and the Panel Engineer of ensuring that the 

conditions downstream are not made worse than the present conditions, by any sized 

&!)".!;;L$)+$0*;,'4*#2$P5)+$!++:&!",*$+5':;#$9*$,;*!&;A$#*4'"+-&!-*#$-'$9*$(*&)/*#$)"$

!#(!",*$.'&$!;;$'%-)'"+2$8&*.$H'"+-&!)"*#$J%-)'"+$F*%'&-L$V=-5$\:"*$]=V<L$D!6*$c>2

P
age 130



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 89

Source Comment

P5*$+,':&$%)%*$5!+$5)+-'&),!;;A$9**"$'%*"*#$-'$%&*(*"-$-5*$7''#)"6$'.$^&''B/*;#$!"#$

immediate neighbourhood. We do not accept that the scour pipe cannot used in a 

%!++)(*$7''#$4!"!6*4*"-$+A+-*4$)"$.:-:&*2$P5*$*..*,-$'.$-5*$+,':&$%)%*$)"$,!&&A)"6$

excess water to the drainage system should be included in your assessment of the 

existing situation. 

b*$:"#*&+-!"#$-5!-$-5*$I-!"#!&#$'.$D&'-*,-)'"$8I'D>$!%%;)*+$'";A$-'$#!4$'(*&-'%%)"6L$

"'-$-'$#*;)(*&A$'.$0!-*&$#'0"$-5*$+%);;0!A2$D;*!+*$,'"/&4$-5)+2

TWA have increased the storm water capacity of the sewers since 1975. We have asked 

that the effect of these in accepting early discharge from storms, ie allowing water to be 

taken out of the chain prior to reaching the spillway level at HG1, should be taken into 

account and this information made transparent.

We feel the information we have been given is unclear and has been corrected and 

amended; in addition questions still have not been answered. This undermines the 

credibility of the process and is an ongoing issue of concern for us.

S".'&4!-)'"$+5':;#$9*$9!+*#$"'-$'";A$'"$+-!-)+-),!;$4'#*;;)"6$9:-$!;+'$'"$4'#*;;)"6$'.$

&*!;$!"#$+)4:;!-*#$5)+-'&),!;$#!-!$!"#$+5':;#$9*$(!;)#!-*#$!6!)"+-$/*;#$4*!+:&*4*"-+2

J%-)'"+$_$!"#$3$!&*$)#*"-),!;$)"$&*6!&#$'.$-5*$-&*!-4*"-$'.$YKV2$Y'0*(*&$-5*$)"7'0$)"-'$

the HG1 is different with each option. The effect of this has not been made clear.

2 Existing:

]2V$ I-'&4$&*;)*.$+*0*&+?$0*$5!(*$&*%*!-*#;A$!+B*#$.'&$,'"/&4!-)'"$'.$-5*$+)`*$!"#$

capacity of TWA’s new storm water relief sewers and chambers and how much 

water they can accept from the Highgate chain in large storm events, including 

water from early discharge from both the Hampstead and Highgate chains.

]2]$ J(*&7'0$%)%*?$-5*$'(*&7'0$5!+$9**"$,'"/&4*#$!+$_1X44$#)!4*-*&$0)-5$!$

maximum discharge capacity estimated at 0.9m3/s. We should like this to be 

,5*,B*#$:+)"6$/*;#$4*!+:&*4*"-+2$S.$-5*$7'0+$-5&':65$-5*$':-7'0$%)%*$!&*$

,:&&*"-;A$'(*&C*+-)4!-*#L$0!-*&$0);;$7'0$'(*&$-5*$+%);;0!A$4'&*$.&*[:*"-;A2

]2<$ I,':&$%)%*?$-5*$+,':&$%)%*$5!+$9**"$,'"/&4*#$!+$<1=44$#)!4*-*&$0)-5$!$

4!G)4:4$#)+,5!&6*$,!%!,)-A$'.$mV4<@+2$D;*!+*$,'"/&4$-5*$#)+,5!&6*$,!%!,)-AL$

%&*.*&!9;A$9A$/*;#$4*!+:&*4*"-2

]2_$ P5*$,:4:;!-)(*$n$'.$%*!B$)"7'0$-5!-$,!"$9*$+-'&*#$)"$YKV$!-$%&*+*"-$)+$*+-)4!-*#$

by Atkins to be 5.2%.

Source Comment

]21$ P5*$,:4:;!-)(*$%*!B$)"7'0$-5!-$,!"$9*$+-'&*#$)"$-5*$,5!)"$!-$%&*+*"-$)+?$i

3 Options 4 and 6

<2V$ Q-B)"+$5!+$,'"/&4*#$-5*$.';;'0)"6$.'&$9'-5$J%-)'"+$_$!"#$3?

existing minimum dam crest  63.77

top of proposed wall   65.02

spillway weir level   64.45

PbO$8!"#$'(*&7'0$)"(*&->$ $ 3]2_1

S+$-5*$4)")4:4$#!4$,&*+-$-5*$*G)+-)"6$;'0*+-$%')"-$'"$-5*$#!4$,&*+-C$).$-5)+$)+$#:*$

to erosion or outstanding maintenance of the crest why is the dam crest not to be 

&*%!)&*#i

<2]$ D;*!+*$,'"/&4$-5*$)"7'0$(!;:*+$.'&$#)..*&*"-$+-'&4$*(*"-+$!"#$-5*$,:4:;!-)(*$n$

'.$%*!B$)"7'0$-5!-$,!"$9*$+-'&*#$)"$YKV$0)-5$J%-)'"+$_$!"#$3$8,$V1ni>2$S+$-5)+$!$

+:9+-!"-)!;$)4%&'(*4*"-i$

<2<$ D;*!+*$,'"/&4$-5*$,:4:;!-)(*$%*!B$)"7'0$-5!-$,!"$9*$+-'&*#$)"$-5*$Y)656!-*$,5!)"$

both for existing and for the proposed options.

3.4 Please examine this using real historical data or generated realistic data for lesser 

7''#+$-'$*+-!9;)+5$,5!&!,-*&)+-),+$'.$05*"$-5*$0!-*&$0);;$,'4*$#'0"$-5*$+%);;0!A$!-$

HG1. Please provide this with a range of values eg of duration and volume of water 

that will result in water coming over the spillway.

3.5 The levels given indicate that the west bank of HG1 is below the level of the 

+%);;0!A2$S+$)-$%&'%'+*#$-5!-$0!-*&$0);;$7'0$'(*&$-5*$0*+-$9!"B$!"#$9*$+-'&*#$)"$-5)+$

!&*!L$'&$-5!-$-5*$9!"B$0);;$9*$&!)+*#$-'$-5*$;*(*;$'.$-5*$-'%$'.$-5*$0!;;$8312=]>2$P5)+$

would indicate a bank raising of up to 1.3m, alternatively, this area can become 

‘marsh’ when the pond levels rise. 

3.6 Please place posts at the end of the wall and both ends of the spillway weir 

)"#),!-)"6$)-+$;',!-)'"$!"#$5*)65-2$8P5*+*$%'+-+$,!"$9*$V214$5)65$4!&B*#$-'$+5'0$

QJR$;*(*;+C$"'$'"*$0);;$-&)%$'(*&$-5*4>2

<2X$ b*$5!(*$!+B*#$.'&$,'"-':&*#$%;!"+$8]==44$)"-*&(!;+>$.'&$9'-5$*G)+-)"6$!"#$

proposed. Please include the surrounding area and give spot levels for all paths and 

main roads. Preferred scale 1:500.

3.8 Please provide an update of Table 5.7 both for existing and Options 4 and 6.

P
age 131



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT90

Source Comment

4 Comments

We have put forward the following suggestions aimed at reducing downstream 
7''#)"6L$P5*+*$#'$"'-$!%%*!&$)"$A':&$+-!B*5';#*&$,'44*"-+$'&$)"$'%-)'"+$
that were considered. We should like them to be considered, with the 
%&)4!&A$)"-*"-)'"$'.$4)-)6!-)"6$#'0"+-&*!4$7''#)"6$!"#$%'-*"-)!;$#!4!6*$
to people and property. 

Q$ P5*$+,':&$%)%*$,':;#$9*$:+*#$-'$+:%%;*4*"-$-5*$7'0+$.&'4$-5*$'(*&7'0$
%)%*$05*"$-5*&*$)+$!$&)+*$)"$-5*$%'"#$0!-*&$;*(*;$9:-$9*.'&*$)-$7'0+$'(*&$
-5*$+%);;0!A2$P5)+$,':;#$,'"-&)9:-*$-'0!&#+$&*#:,)"6$%'++)9;*$7''#)"6$.&'4$
+:&.!,*$0!-*&$8()!$-5*$+%);;0!A>$#'0"+-&*!42$

eg the pipe could be converted to operate as a bellmouth spillway, constructed over  

the inlet end of the scour pipe or as a semi circular spillway close to the scour pipe  

valve house:

Source Comment

^$ Q"$)",&*!+*$)"$-5*$+)`*$'.$-5*$'(*&7'0$%)%*L$'&$!"$!##)-)'"!;$%)%*$05),5$,':;#$6)(*$

!$#)+,5!&6*$,!%!,)-A$*[:!;$'&$6&*!-*&$-5!"$-5!-$'.$-5*$'(*&7'0$!"#$+,':&$%)%*$

,'49)"*#$!"#$,'"/&4!-)'"$-5!-$-5*$)",&*!+*#$,!%!,)-A$'.$PbQ$+-'&4$0!-*&$&*;)*.$

sewers would cope with this.

H$$H'"+-&:,-)'"$'.$!$#&A$&*+*&(')&$8#&A$*G,*%-$)"$;!&6*$7''#+>$-'$-5*$+':-5$'&$0*+-$'.$

^&''B/*;#2$H'"+)#*&!-)'"$4:+-$9*$6)(*"$-'$05*&*$-5*$0!-*&$)"$-5*$+%);;0!A$0);;$9*$

delivered.

D What is the effect if water is discharged early from HG1 down either an additional 

'(*&7'0$%)%*$'&$-5*$+,':&$%)%*$9*.'&*$-5*$0!-*&$;*(*;$&*!,5*+$-5*$+%);;0!A$0)-5$

,:4:;!-)(*$#)+,5!&6*$,!%!,)-A$'.$*6$]4<@+j$14<@+i$D;*!+*$4'#*;$.'&$V?V==j$V?V===j$

V?V=L===$7''#j$DMN$!"#$VWX1$+-'&4$%'+)-)'"*#$'(*&$-5*$Y*!-52

T$ b*$5!(*$:+*#$!"$*G)+-)"6$,'"-':&*#$4!%$-'$+5'0$!%%&'G)4!-*$7'0$;)"*+$)"$-5*$

+%);;0!A2$b!-*&$7'0)"6$)"$-5)+$0!A$0);;$)"*()-!9;A$7''#$^&''B/*;#$!"#$%!&-+$'.$

Camden.

P
age 132



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 91

Source Comment

Mixed Pond 

Association  

20 October 

2013

J(*&!;;$I-!-*4*"-?$$$P5*$/&+-$%&)'&)-A$.'&$!;;$:+*&+$)+$-5!-$-5*$M)G*#$D'"#$
+5':;#$9*$!;-*&*#$!+$;)--;*$!+$%'++)9;*$!"#$)-+$"!-:&!;$,5!&!,-*&$&*-!)"*#2$$S-$
)+$&*,'6")+*#$-5!-$+'4*$+%*,)/,$$0'&B$)+$"**#*#$-'$B**%$-5*$D'"#$)"$6''#$
,'"#)-)'"$.'&$+0)44)"6$C$*262$4:##A)"6$':-L$%&:")"6$'.$'(*&5!"6)"6$(*6*-!-)'"L$
)4%&'(*4*"-+$-'$0!-*&$[:!;)-A$C$!"#$-5!-$-5)+$,':;#$9*$!$:+*.:;$+%)"$'..$.&'4$-5*$
Ponds Project.  But it is hard for most users to get their head around what the 
H'O$!,-:!;;A$5!+$-'$#'$-'$.:;/;;$)-+$'9;)6!-)'"+2$$$$Q"A$D:9;),$H'"+:;-!-)'"$4:+-$
clarify this as exactly as it can.    However, our fundamental view is that the 
DJaR$)+$aJP$!$OSRJ$!"#$+5':;#$"*(*&$9*$-&*!-*#$!+$+:,52

1) Basis Principles  -  We need a clear and unequivocal statement of the CoL’s legal 
obligations.   We are told that “there has been a change in emphasis from flood 
defence to flood risk management, as it is now accepted that it is not possible 
to defend against th e full range of natural disasters that could occur”.   To get 
ourselves and the general public involved in detailed argument about possible 
solutions to a problem that is still ill-defined is clearly nonsensical.   In addition 
we are being offered solutions which afford either 1 in 1,000 year or 1 in 
10,000 year protection, while being told the present dams offer 1 in 100 year 
protection, without any guidance as to the standard of protection that is actually 
thought to be necessary.

2) Early Warning  -  We have been given various alarmist figures about potential 
loss of life in the unlikely event of a PMF event.   We have no information of 
early warning systems that, even if only able to give a few hours warning of an 
impending storm, should prevent most if not all of these.

<>$D:9;),$H'"+:;-!-)'"$C$b*$!&*$(*&A$,'",*&"*#$-5!-$-5*$%:9;),$,'"+:;-!-)'"$)+$-!B)"6$

%;!,*$'(*&$-5*$0)"-*&$4'"-5+L$05*"$-5*$Y*!-5$)+$;*!+-$:+*#$C$!"#$-5*$MSG*#$

Pond itself is closed.   We are also concerned that the consultation will not 

establish how frequently the respondents use the Heath/Swimming Ponds, and 

how far they travel to do so.   The Mixed Pond is a draw and people regularly 

,'4*$.&'4$!;;$'(*&$O'"#'"$-'$+0)4$)"$)-$8-5*A$!;+'$,'4*$.&'4$(*&A$4:,5$.:&-5*&$

!/*;#L$9:-$"'-$+'$&*6:;!&;A>2$$$P5*+*$%*'%;*$4!A$"'-$9*$&*%&*+*"-!-)(*$'.$-5*$

population at large and they may also not be around to respond to a consultation 

in the winter, but they are the ones who will be most affected by any changes.                                                                                                              

b);;$-5*$[:*+-)'"$fR'$A':$%&*.*&$J%-)'"$M$'&$D$.'&$-5*$Y!4%+-*!#$H5!)"ig$9*$!+B*#$

#)&*,-;A$'&$)"#)&*,-;Ai$$$$S.$"'-L$05!-$)".'&4!-)'"$)+$)-$5'%*#$0);;$9*$6!)"*#$.&'4$-5)+$

*G*&,)+*$-5!-$)+$"'-$!;&*!#A$B"'0"$C$)2*2$fR'"U-$-':,5$-5*$Y*!-5L$0*$;)B*$)-$!+$)-$)+og$i

Source Comment

Once the above points have been answered satisfactorily, we offer the following 
comments on the area that most affects our members:

4) Catchpit   -  General agreement that the Catchpit dam embankment to provide 
water attenuation in the event of flood is sensible.   Strong feeling position 3 for 
dam (S-shaped structure, not shown in Report) avoiding most valuable trees is 
best.   Creation of walkway/path along top of dam not discussed in detail - we 
feel that this should NOT become a major thoroughfare, as this would destroy 
the undisturbed nature of this small area.     Essential that local soil be used for 
dam, sourced from dredging the Mixed Pond and/or Field 11.                                                                                                      
[N.B. The key on page 40 appears to have the blue and green rectangles 
transposed.]

5) The Mixed Pond - We feel that Option M with the dam raised by 1 
metre only is the least bad solution of those proposed.   The dam to be 
naturalised with planting of species-rich grass, with a steep slope on the 
upsteam side and a more gentle gradient downstream into Hampstead 
No. 2 Pond.    The loss of two plane trees from the No. 2 Pond causeway is 
regretted, but nature will fill the gap;  the effects of a 2 metre high dam at 
the Mixed Pond would be permanent. We strongly oppose Option P and, 
in particular, the suggestion that this should be topped with a retaining 
wall for the last 1 metre, a feature that has only just been introduced.                                                                                                                    
[N.B.  There appears to be duplication of the bullet point notations on pages 41 
and 48.]

South End

Green

Association  

20 October 

2013

We confine our responses to the lower ponds on the Hampstead Chain.

We wholly support the ‘CATCHPIT’ proposed intervention on the following basis.

4) That the flood storage dam to be constructed to retain Possible Maximum 
Floodwaters and be designed to overtop, has a wild looking and loosely planted 
Crest that meanders when viewed from the air as would an organic mound. This 
must be ensured to accord with the nature of the Heath. Therefore we do not 
support the one option, to build a straight dam. 

5) The initial argument for creating ‘Catchpit’ was that it negated any serious 
works to downstream dams/ponds - Mixed Bathing to Hampstead No 2 and 
H.No 2 to H. No 1.

6) However the Causeway south of Mixed Bathing and north of H.No2 is proposed 
to be raised by 2m- or 1.7m plus spillway of 300mm. We do not understand 
the need for or support this work. With the creation of Catchpit, enlarging the 
spillway and managing the flow between these two ponds and ensuring

P
age 133



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT92

Source Comment

absolute stability of the Causeway, (it being free of significant trees), ought to be 
able to be proved to suffice in a PMF.

7) The Causeway between Hampstead No2 and Hampstead No1 has, until this 
Preferred Option Report been spared any height increase other than crest repair 
and downstream bank strengthening where eroded. This was to preserve the 
magnificent Plane Trees and the need to maintain the present water level. 
The current proposal to add a 0.5m wall over the sheet piling seems quite 
unnecessary intervention.

8) We support the loss of one Plane tree in the SW corner of H.No 2 in order only 
to install a Box Culvert Spillway of 5000x400mm between H. No 2 Pond and 
H.No 1 Pond.

9) The proposed works to Hampstead No 1 pond are generally found acceptable 
with the exception of ‘Formal Dog Access point’ being proposed oddly on the 
northern dam slope. More accessible for dog owners and appropriate, would 
be the western side either retaining the present position or moving this slightly 
northwards. Please note there is no avenue of plane trees on the western bank 
as suggested on the plan (pg 47).

Vale of Health 

Society

21 October 

2013

The main consideration is the relative impact of the alternative proposed 
locations for the spillway. Given that the north end of the causeway is raised 
considerably above the water level compared to the southern end of the 
cuaseway, it would imply that the visual impact on the VoH pond & surrounding 
area would be considerably greater if the spillway were to be constructed at the 
northern end of the cuaseway.

While obviously a spillway at the southern end needs to avoid the giant sequoia 
8!"#$)#*!;;A$-5*$&'9)")!$05),5$)+$9*!:-).:;$)"$7'0*&>L$)-U+$()+:!;$)4%!,-$@$+,!&&)"6$
on the surrounding landscape would be lower than at the northern end.

P5)+$+5':;#$9*$,'4*$+*;.C*()#*"-$:%'"$+)-*$+:&(*A+2

Fitzroy Park 

Residents

Association   

21 October 

2013

PRINCIPLES

As before, then strategy of increasing attenuation in the middle of each chain, to 
take energy out of the system during a storm, and slow down the velocity and 
volume of water reaching Highgate No1 or Hampstead No1 is fully supported.

P5*$4'+-$&*,*"-$D&*.*&&*#$J%-)'"$F*%'&-+L$#!-*#$XCVV$J,-'9*&$!"#$":49*&)"6$
well over 100 pages, was found to be confusing. The proposals appear to be 
4:,5$!+$-5*A$0*&*$!-$-5*$%&*()':+$)-*&!-)'"$!"#$/"#)"6$*G!,-;A$05!-$#*-!);+$5!(*$
been ‘tweaked’ in such a large document was extremely time consuming and 
somewhat frustrating.

Source Comment

Questions relating to the size, width, depth and form of the numerous spillways 
appear not to have been addressed and at this stage of the process, is 
considered a serious omission. Spillways have the capacity of being extremely 
voluminous and those that are poorly positioned run the risk of impacting 
()+:!;$!4*")-A$)"$!$"*6!-)(*$0!A$'&$7''#)"6$#'0"+-&*!4$,'44:")-)*+L$+:,5$!+$
^&''B/*;#

M!"+)'"+L$05'$5!(*$"*(*&$+:..*&*#$!$7''#2$S"#),!-)(*$#)!6&!4+$0)-5':-$,'"-':&+$
showing local topography are potentially misleading.

P5*$9*"*/-$'.$)",&*!+)"6$#!4$5*)65-+$5!+$"'-$9**"$&*;!-*#$-'$%*&,*"-!6*$
attenuation as previously requested. For example understanding how raising 
a dam by 2m as opposed to 2.5m at the Boating Pond will affect this measure 
would help to put the works into some sort of context.

Existing rates of protection that underpin the proposed works appear to be 
unreliable, particularly for the Highgate chain. Without Atkins providing, reliable 
#!-!$-5!-$!..'&#+$!$#)&*,-$,'4%!&)+'"$9*-0**"$*G)+-)"6$9!+*C;)"*$%&'-*,-)'"$
and projected protection, the City, let alone constituents, surely cannot form 
!$&*;)!9;*$'%)")'"$'.$-5*$9*"*/-+$'.$-5*$%&'%'+*#$0'&B+$)"$-5*$,'"-*G-$'.$
eliminating risk. 

Many of the View Point photos existing vs proposed are almost impossible to 
)"-*&%&*-$'.-*"$;''B)"6$)#*"-),!;2$S-$)+$!,,*%-*#$-5!-$,&*!-)"6$+:,5$()+:!;+$)+$
*G-&*4*;A$#)./,:;-$-'$!,5)*(*$05*"$;'"6$()*0$+)65-C;)"*+$!&*$!#'%-*#L$5'0*(*&$
it would be helpful to provide short view aspects on proposed works, as Heath 
visitors will need to consider how impacts look/feel from a distance as well as 
how they look/feel as they walk past them ‘up close and personal’.

Appendix B Hydrographs were presented next to each other and appear to be 
-5*$+!4*$9:-$-5*$6&!%5$+,!;*+$!&*$"'-$e$-5*$V?V=L===$;*.-$5!"#$!G)+$)+$= V3$4<@
+*,$9:-$-5*$DMN$*(*"-$)+$=C<14<@+*,2$S-$0':;#$5!(*$9**"$5*;%.:;$.'&$-5*+*$-'$
have had the same scale and to have included a 1:1000 event to demonstrate a 
meaningful comparison all on one graph.

S$!4$"'-$+:&*$).$-5)+$)+$-5*$&)65-$.'&:4$.'&$-5*+*$,'44*"-+L$9:-$5!()"6$!--*"#*#$
-5*$YpYI$4**-)"6$0)-5$Q-B)"+$-'$#)+,:++$-5*$kFQ$S"-*&)4$F*%'&-L$S$&*4!)"$
unclear as to how the concept of an early warning system will directly relate to a 
reduction in the mass/bulk of any works on the Heath and would welcome clarity 
on this point.

P
age 134



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 93

Source Comment

Accepting that the QRA report is a ‘coarse’ tool, suggesting in very round terms 
300 potential fatalities caused by dam breach and 1000+ potential fatalities 
caused by dam overtopping, clearly adopting some sort of comprehensive 
early warning system makes total sense. A strategy that integrates evacuation 
,':%;*#$0)-5$%&*C*4%-)(*$&*#:,-)'"$'.$%'"#$;*(*;+$0':;#$5!(*$!$%'+)-)(*$*..*,-$
on when overtopping occurs and as a consequence could reduce the number of 
.!-!;)-)*+$;)"B*#$-'$'(*&C-'%%)"62$b*$0':;#$-5*&*.'&*$:&6*$-5*$H)-A$-'$;*!(*$"'$
stone unturned in developing a comprehensive response in this regard, even if it 
cannot be warranted as part of the dam breach assessment.

P5!-$+!)#L$S$%*&+'"!;;A$,!""'-$+**$5'0$+-!;;)"6$'(*&-'%%)"6$9A$!$.*0$5':&+L$
by actively managing pond water levels at Highgate No1 or Hampstead No1 
%'"#+$8!++:4)"6$!$%&!,-),!;@+!.*$0!A$,!"$9*$.':"#$'.$#')"6$-5)+>$9A$#)+,5!&6)"6$
&*;!-)(*;A$-)"A$(';:4*+$'.$0!-*&$-5&':65$!$+,':&$%)%*$'&$!##)-)'"!;$'(*&7'0$%)%*+$
80)-5':-$*!&;A$+:&,5!&6)"6$'.$+-'&4$#&!)"+$#'0"+-&*!4>$0);;$4!B*$4:,5$)4%!,-$
on the volumes of water involved in the larger, more dangerous  storms such 
!+$V?V===L$V?V=L===$81=L_==4<@5&i>$!"#$-5*$DMN$8V=cL===4<@5&i>$05),5L$:"-);$
YpYI$%:&+:*$!$\F$!"#$%&'(*$'-5*&0)+*L$-5*$H)-A$9*;)*(*+$)+$-5*)&$;*6!;$9!+*C
;)"*$.'&$&)+B$#*+)6"2$8a^?$-5*$4<@5&$*+-)4!-*+$0*&*$-!B*"$.&'4$Q%%*"#)G$^$e$
Hydrographs m3/sec and extrapolated/hr).

To understand this more fully it would be helpful for Atkins to provide the 
maximum discharge rate m3/hr for the scour pipe at both Hampstead & Highgate 
a'V$%'"#+$89!+*#$'"$#)!4*-*&$p$+;'%*$'.$%)%*$!"#$5*!#$'.$0!-*&>$!"#$5'0$
this relates to a reduction in pond levels assuming no rainfall. ie: 1” per hour 
'&$VU$%*&$5':&i$P5)+$0':;#$%&'()#*$!$5*;%.:;$,'"-*G-$.'&$-5*$;!&6*&$+-'&4+$!"#$
-5*$*G)+-)"6$':-7'0$#)+,5!&6*2$Q%';'6)*+$).$-5)+$)".'&4!-)'"$5!+$9**"$%&'()#*#$
9*.'&*L$S$+)4%;A$,!""'-$/"#$)-$)"$4A$/;*+L$'&$).$4'&*$.:"#!4*"-!;;A$S$5!(*$4)++*#$
the point…

YQMDIPTQR$HYQSa

- the bund at Catchpit should ideally follow a natural shape (I believe an ‘s’ shape 
has been suggested) not only strategically to miss important trees but to mould 
into the existing topography.

- it is believed 1m dam raising at the Mixed Pond is the maximum such a site 
could integrate and the loss of two plane trees downstream (on condition that 
they are replaced with mature specimens post works) is accepted.

Source Comment

HIGHGATE CHAIN

- the discharge philosophy upstream from Stock to Ladies to Bird to Boating is 
now understood: in order to delay overtopping new overflow pipes are needed 
to manage pond levels early in the storm to prevent dam erosion and potential 
breach from extended periods of overtopping. The extra water will be held by 
the increased attenuation at Boating. Overflow pipes will be used rather than 
large spillways to reduce visual amenity impacts. Is this not exactly the same 
discharge philosophy that is being suggested as part of any early warning 
strategy for Highgate No1?

- all efforts to reduce the bund at Boating Pond to 2m or below are welcomed.

-  further clarification is needed to the proposals for Mens Bathing and Highgate 
No1 before a reliable opinion can be offered particularly in relation to spillway 
location and .design.

P
age 135



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT94

Comments by West Hill Court Ponds Group on the Preferred Options Report – received 18 October 2013

Source Comment

West Hill Court 

Ponds Group
West Hill Court comments on the Preferred Options Report

Many thanks for sending us the Preferred Options report and the additional 
documents. Thank you also for giving us the opportunity to make comments, 
which we have set out below. 

We should say that it is not clear to us that comments we and the Stakeholder 
K&':%$4!B*$!-$-5)+$%')"-$0);;$9*$4!-*&)!;L$!+$-5*$&*%'&-$!%%*!&+$-'$9*$/"!;$!"#$)+$
"'0$%:9;)+5*#$'"$A':&$0*9+)-*L$9:-$0*$;''B$.'&0!&#$-'$,;!&)/,!-)'"$'.$-5)+$05*"$
we meet on 25th October. 

Our points are as follows:

We very much appreciate that the clear concern expressed by ourselves and 
many others about the proposal to raise the Model Boating Pond dam by three 
metres has been recognised in the two options put forward. We consider that the 
design proposed for the pond, with a wetland area and promontory with existing 
trees, is creative and sympathetic.

We raised the issue of access in our submission to the City of London’s 
consultation on the Shortlist Options report. We assume, but would be grateful to 
5!(*$,'"/&4*#L$-5!-$-5*$H)-A$'.$O'"#'"U+$,'44)-4*"-$-'$*"+:&)"6$6''#$!,,*++$
for people with disabilities, and to improving access to the wider open spaces, as 
#*+,&)9*#$.'&$)"+-!",*$)"$-5*$Y!4%+-*!#$Y*!-5$M!"!6*4*"-$D;!"$]==XC]=VXL$0);;$
mean that all the rebuilt dams will have an equal or better level of access than 
the existing dams, and that this will be addressed in detail at the design stage. 

Both options require that the No 1 Pond dam is raised by 1.25 metres. While 
we accept that this is needed in terms of the engineering requirements of the 
project, we are of course concerned about this work, given that our property 
directly borders and overlooks the length of the pond. We have discussed the 
%&'E*,-$0)-5$\*&*4A$I)",;!)&L$-5*$'0"*&$'.$M);;/*;#$H'--!6*L$05),5$!;+'$9'&#*&+$
the pond. He shares our concerns.

^*,!:+*$b*+-$Y);;$H':&-$!"#$M);;/*;#$H'--!6*$#)&*,-;A$'(*&;''B$a'$V$D'"#L$0*$
have a critical stake in discussions of the visual aspects of the wall, the extent 
to which it will reach around the pond, the management of woodland and tree 
loss and subsequent replanting at No 1 Pond. We are also concerned about the 
+*,:&)-A$'.$':&$%&'%*&-)*+$8%!&-),:;!&;A$).$-5*$%'"#$)+$#*C+);-*#>L$!"#L$!+$0*$4!#*$
,;*!&$)"$':&$%&*()':+$+:94)++)'"L$-5*$#!"6*&+$'.$:+)"6$M);;/*;#$O!"*$.'&$5*!(A$
,'"+-&:,-)'"$-&!./,2

Source Comment

As we stated in our previous submission, we are, because we overlook No 1 
Pond, very concerned that our views should be taken into account. The West 
Hill Court Ponds Group very much appreciates Simon Lee’s and your efforts to 
meet us, and to reassure us that this will happen through our meetings with you, 
despite the fact that we are not currently represented on the Stakeholder Group. 

However we continue to be seriously concerned that, as the project moves 
towards detailed design and implementation, the residents’ associations that 
will be most affected by these aspects of the project are not represented on the 
Stakeholder Group. We note that the composition of the group has changed, 
and that a new interest group, representing anglers, has recently been admitted 
to the Group. Whilst we are very supportive of all visitors to the ponds and the 
areas around them, those of us who live immediately adjacent to them have a 
particular interest in the proposed developments and are particularly concerned 
to be positive partners in planning and effecting any change. 

A central point in our submission to the Shortlist Options report has not been 
addressed by the Preferred Options report. This reinforces the above concerns.

We stated in our submission: “While we are pleased that the Stakeholder Group 
has established the principle that views on to the heath from neighbouring 
properties must be considered, we are alarmed that at this point only the views 
.&'4$^&''B/*;#$M!"+)'"+$!%%*!&$-'$5!(*$9**"$-!B*"$)"-'$,'"+)#*&!-)'"2g

The caption on page 33 of the Preferred Options report states, ‘Woodland 
retained with limited tree loss on east half of dam to manage views from 
^&''B/*;#$M!"+)'"+U$2$P5)+$+)4%;A$&*%*!-+$-5*$+-!-*4*"-$4!#*$)"$-5*$*!&;)*&$
I5'&-*&$J%-)'"+$&*%'&-$C$-5*$9!+)+$.'&$':&$,'",*&"2

b5);*$0*$*"-)&*;A$&*+%*,-$-5!-$()*0+$.&'4$^&''B/*;#$M!"+)'"+L$&*%&*+*"-*#$'"$
the Stakeholder Group, should be taken into account, we are most concerned 
that the views of No 1 Pond and the new wall from West Hill Court, and indeed 
.&'4$M);;/*;#$H'--!6*L$+5':;#$9*$6)(*"$*[:!;$,'"+)#*&!-)'"L$!"#$-5!-$-5*&*$+5':;#$
not be a perception that the interests of members of the Stakeholder Group 
have been privileged by their membership of the group.  We appreciate that 
this may be an oversight, and hope that it could be amended before the public 
consultation.

P
age 136



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 95

P
age 137



Epsom Gateway 
2 Ashley Avenue 
Epsom 
Surrey 
KT18 5AL 
England

Telephone: +44 (0) 1372 75 6280 
Mobile: +44 (0) 7710 36 3354  
Email:  mike.woolgar@atkinsglobal.com

www.atkinsglobal.com

© Atkins Ltd except where stated otherwise 

P
age 138



PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 
VOLUME 2 – COMMENTS, QUERIES AND ANSWERS  
ON SHORTLIST OPTIONS REPORT  

25th October 2013

P
age 139



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

2

Contents

Volume 2: Comments, Queries and Answers on Shortlist 
Options Report

Shortlist Options Report – Schedule of Comments    3

Shortlist Options Report – Schedule of Questions and 
Answers 147 - 214    17

P
age 140



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
3

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Kenwood Ladies 
Pond Association

1 It is clear that in large measure the concerns that we had about the impact of works on the Ladies Pond have mainly been assuaged. It is obvious that all recognise 
the extremely sensitive nature and beauty of the pond and are aware that there must be very little that alters any of its aesthetic qualities. The dam will not be raised 
but the crest restored i.e. levelled out along the path. There will be a “soft” spillway created at the western end of the pond, near to the back gate and it will curve 
gently down through the wood into the bird sanctuary pond.  The argument about the siting of the lifeguards hut and the changing rooms has been won and will be 
located at the current positions. Obviously with all of these factors there will be extensive discussion about the plans and construction of these features. 

We would want the pond to be muddied out, and are uncertain what the caveat is about such work, but rely on further discussion.  We would be concerned if there 
were to be any major works which would affect the screen of large trees which are aligned along the west side, although it is said it would be “long term tree set 
back”. We assume that means they would be planting trees along the edge of the large external meadow but set back from the fence. We are aware the pond, along 
the east side below the meadow, is increasingly over grown and there was a time when there were views of the water from the meadow although it is also clear that 
for many women sunbathing the vegetation acts as a screen. 

If it were to be proposed that work be done on raising the dam at the Stock Pond, we would need to be assured there would be no impact on the Ladies pond. In 
relation to the options for the Highgate Chain it seem that the proposal to have all major works hinged on the Boating Pond is sensible, but as work below our pond 
does not affect the Ladies pond we do not have an opinion on the options. Recognising that the Ladies Pond and the Bird Sanctuary Pond are the two ponds which 
should have as little intervention as possible, the view from the small meadow is also maintained. As yet there is no information to indicate what the impact on the 
view from the Ladies pond would be if the largest bund were to be built. 

PS.
!"#$%&'%()*+#,#+*&-".-&-"%&/#01.$#0.-#)+0&.'%&2+%3&41-&1+$%00&5)1&6+)7&%8.(-$5&7"%'%&-"%&/#%70&.'%&9'):&#;%;&.-&7".-&"%#*"-&-"%&.001:%<&%5%&$%/%$&#03&-"%5&<)+=-&:%.+&
much.  We assume that when we see the detailed proposals we will have :
• Plans which show the detailed proposals, including the materials that are to be used.
• Cross sections : 
&&&&&>&&&?"%&$)+*#-1<#+.$&0%(-#)+&-"')1*"&-"%&@)+<3&<.:3&:%.<)73&0-)(6&@)+<3&4).-#+*&@)+<&.+<&:%+=0&@)+<;
     -   Cross section down the middle of the access lane down to the dam and changing rooms.
     -   Cross section through our meadow, the pond and the meadow to the West.
     -   Detailed cross sections through the different conditions around the edge of the pond i.e. through the
         dam, the spillway, the West side, the North side and the East side.
A& B#01.$#0.-#)+0&)9&-"%&@')@)0.$0&9'):&-"%&@.-"3&-"%&<.:3&-"%&0@#$$7.53&-"%&$#9%*1.'<0=&$))6)1-3&-"%
        changing rooms, the water, and the meadow.

Shortlist Options Report – Schedule of Comments  
(For response to queries refer to Questions and Answers on page 17)

Volume 2 – Comments, Queries and Answers  
on Shortlist Options Report
This volume of the Preferred Option Report - Volume 2,  includes collated comments and queries 
from engagement with the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group (PPSG) and feed back from the wider 
public on the Shortlist Options Report. Responses to the queries on the Shortlist Options Report have 
been prepared by the design team and included in this Volume. 

All external consultation on the Ponds Project from January 2011 and all queries from engagement 
with the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group (PPSG) and feed back from the wider public since October 
2012 are included in the Log of Questions and Answers on the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project. A 
‘live’ document that is regularly updated and includes responses to queries by the design team. 

P
age 141



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

4

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society

2 C&.--.("&-"%&D!#-")1-&E'%F1<#(%=&()::%+-0&&)9&-"%&G%.-"&H&G.:@0-%.<&I)(#%-53&J"0KKLMNO3&&)+&-"%&I")'-$#0-&P@-#)+0&Q%@)'-&<.-%<&R&S1*10-&RMKL;&&

In consulting on this, several members of our General Committee and Heath Sub-committee strongly feel that it is imperative that the City urgently organises a series 
)9&.-&$%.0-&L&@14$#(&:%%-#+*0&"%$<&#+&@14$#(&/%+1%0&-".-&.'%&%.0#$5&.((%00#4$%3&-".-&0192(#%+-&.</.+(%&+)-#(%&#0&*#/%+&)9&-"%0%&:%%-#+*03&-".-&:%:4%'0&)9&-"%&@14$#(&.'%&
invited to ask questions at these meetings, and that the meetings are spread over a period that does not include the Christmas vacation.  

We made these points on 6 August as our response to your Draft Public Consultation Brief that we received on 2 August, and then followed up with further comments 
on 6 August.  Additionally, some members have recently stated that the City should provide, and be prepared to justify in detail, the precise legal requirements for the 
@')@)0%<&7)'6&-)&@')(%%<&.-&.$$3&.+<&:.6%&($%.'&%8.(-$5&)+&7")0%&.1-")'#-5&#-&'%0-0;&&S$0)&-".-&:%%-#+*0&0")1$<&4%&"%$<&4%9)'%&2+.$&@$.+0&.'%&@'%@.'%<3&#+&)'<%'&-".-&
the public may have a realistic opportunity to contribute their views

We therefore very much hope that the City circulate their amended Public Consultation Brief well in advance of the next Stakeholders meeting on 16 September, and 
that this be an agenda item at that meeting so that there can be adequate discussion

FINAL
Hampstead Heath Ponds Project – Shortlist Options Report dated 2.8.2013
Preliminary Comments by the Heath & Hampstead Society

jw / 24.8.13 / hs1130E

WITHOUT PREJUDICE
General

!%&2'0-&'%/#%7&-"%&'%@)'-&@.*%&45&@.*%3&.+<&*#/%&()::%+-0&.+<&T1%'#%0&)+&<%-.#$03&.+<&'%T1%0-&91'-"%'&#+9)':.-#)+&7#-")1-&7"#("&#-&#0&<#92(1$-&-)&9)':&.&/#%7;&&U%5&
issues and queries are shown in bold.

We then consider the available options on a pond by pond basis and give some views.  However, in order to give our views, we consider it essential to consider 
now the detailed impacts that may arise for each of the presented options.   Some of our comments therefore inevitably cover detailed design aspects that 
will be considered in depth in the next iteration that will select 2 main options for each chain.  

Please note that the Society is reviewing the legal background for the project, which could fundamentally change our position.  We therefore reserve the right 
to challenge designs if appropriate, and to take into account the minimum work legally required, if and when this is established, and to amend our comments 
accordingly.  

PAGE BY PAGE REVIEW OF SHORTLIST OPTIONS REPORT
Page No.

Page 2.  The public have been invited to comment on this complex and detailed report, so there needs to be guidance on the key issues where 
comments are most sought.  As this document may be read as a ‘stand alone’ report by the public, we consider that Section 2 ‘Brief Summary’ is 
!""#$"%&'%('&#)%&#&"'(#%"!#*+",-&'#)#."/-$).#01(!-2$)!-"%#3"+#!4'#5"+6(7#*)+!-$1.)+.8#3"+#*'+("%(#54"#4),'#%"!#+')&#!4'#*+'$'&-%/#&"$19'%!(:  In 
@.'-#(1$.'3&-"%&@"'.0%&DN00%+-#.$$53&:)'%&0-)'.*%&#0&+%%<%<=&#0&+)-&.&$)*#(.$&()+($10#)+&)9&7".-&*)%0&4%9)'%&#+&-"#0&0%(-#)+;&&S$0)3&-"%&@'#:.'5&)4F%(-#/%&)9&-"%&@')F%(-&
-)&@'%/%+-&<.:&4'%.6&#0&+)-&0-.-%<3&.+<&-"%&@"'.0%&D;;;-)&#:@')/%&-"%&'%0#$#%+(%&)9&-"%&<.:0;;;;;=&&#0&)40(1'%&-)&-"%&1+#+9)':%<;&&S+&.<<#-#)+.$&-7)&)'&-"'%%&0%+-%+(%0&
might help considerably.

E.*%&V3&W&.+<&X;&&!%&.'%&0):%7".-&4%:10%<&45&-"%&@$%-")'.&)9&DY%0#*+&E'#+(#@$%0=3&.+<&9%.'&-".-&-"%&*%+%'.$&@14$#(&7#$$&'%(%#/%&.&()+910%<&:%00.*%;&&!%&+)-%&-"%&Z&
principles on page 6, 3rd column, which are then supplemented by 2 more in column 4.  These are then supplemented by a further 6 on page 8, column 3, and then 
)+&@.*%&X&-"%'%&.'%&.&91'-"%'&L&D6%5&)4F%(-#/%0=;&&!%&01**%0-&-".-&#-&7)1$<&4%&"%$@91$&-)&0-.-%&)+%&($%.'&0%-&)9&.#:03&()+0#0-%+-&7#-"&<1-#%0&1+<%'&$%*#0$.-#)+;

Page 9, 25, 47.&&!%&+)-%&S-6#+0&0-.-%:%+-0&J@X3&R[O&;;7"%'%/%'&@)00#4$%3&-"%&:.F)'#-5&)9&-"%&JE\]O&:10-&4%&@.00%<&-"')1*"&0@#$$7.50&#+&)'<%'&-)&:#+#:#0%&^)70&
)/%'&-"%&1+@')-%(-%<&@.'-0&)9&-"%&<.:&('%0-0;&&S$0)3&J@R[O3&-"%&G#*"*.-%&(".#+&#0&<%0#*+%<&01("&-".-&;;;!4'#;!"!).<#&'(-/%#=>?#@""&#;-(<#*)(('&#()3'.8#!4+"1/4#
the new spillways without spilling over the upper dam crests.  

Please clarify if the same principle is applied to the Hampstead chain, as p47 is silent.  We assume that it also applies.

We note that the design team/Dr Hughes has said that some damage can be accepted.&&!%&.$0)&+)-%&-".-&C_N&D]$))<0&.+<&Q%0%'/)#'&I.9%-5=&?.4$%&K&'%()::%+<0&
-".-&0@#$$7.50&9)'&_.-%*)'5&S&<.:0&4%&<%0#*+%<&9)'&K`KM3MMM3&7#-"&-"%&'%:.#+<%'&)9&-"%&0")'-%'&<1'.-#)+&.+<&'.'%'&01'@$10&E\]&0@#$$#+*&)/%'&-"%&('%0-&#9&)/%'-)@@#+*&#0&
tolerable.

P
age 142



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
5

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society 
(Cont.)

2 !%&'%()*+#0%&-".-&E\]&0@#$$7.50&.'%&.&@'1<%+-&<%0#*+&@'#+(#@$%&-".-&7)1$<&.$0)&./)#<&#+-'10#/%&7)'60&-)&'%#+9)'(%&)1'&%8#0-#+*&.+<&0%+0#-#/%&<.:0&-)&-.6%&)/%'-)@@#+*;&&
However, if PMF overtopping could be tolerated on two dams, we suggest this could reduce dam raising by approx 1m, being the depth of 
spillways below the crest.&&!%&7#$$&.<<'%00&-"#0&#+&<%-.#$&7"%+&7%&'%/#%7&)@-#)+03&0@%(#2(.$$5&9)'&-"%&\)<%$&a).-#+*&@)+<3&.+<&-"%&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&@)+<;

Page 9, 25, 47.  Please explain, if all the PMF is routed through spillways and does not overtop the crest, why crest restoration is required on 
many dams, with possible impact on crest vegetation, as their crests will normally be above water level.  This query applies to Stock, Ladies, Bird, 
Vale and Viaduct ponds

E.*%&X3&R[3&Zb;&&E$%.0%&($.'#953&.0&:)0-&%8#0-#+*&<.:0&7#$$&(1''%+-$5&)/%'-)@&#+&E\]3&#9&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&<%@-"&#0&0.5&.@@')8&K:&.+<&0):%&<.:0&"./%&('%0-&'.#0#+*c
'%0-)'.-#)+&$%00&-".+&-"#03&<)%0&-"#0&:%.+&-".-&-"%0%&:)<#2%<&<.:0&7#$$&0-)'%&$%00&7.-%'&-".+&-"%&(1''%+-&%8#0-#+*&<.:0d

E.*%&KM;&&G#*"*.-%&(".#+&^)7(".'-`&&E$%.0%&%8@$.#+`>

A& 7"5&.'%&0@#$$7.5&7#<-"0&)+&-"%&a).-#+*&E)+<&#<%+-#(.$&9)'&)@-#)+0&L3&Z&.+<&V3&'.-"%'&-".+&4%#+*&-.#$)'%<&9)'&-"%&<#99%'%+-&01'@$10&^))<0d&&S'%&-"%5&)/%'0#,%<&9)'&-"%&
"#*"%'&<.:0d&&!%&+)-%&J@RKO&-".-&0@#$$7.5&0#,%&#0&.&6%5&()+0#<%'.-#)+3&.0&/%*%-.-#)+&($%.'.+(%&7#$$&4%&+%%<%<3&&"%+(%&7%&1'*%&-".-&-"%0%&4%&-"%&:#+#:1:&0#,%&
possible

A& \%+=0&.+<&G#*"*.-%&K&0@#$$7.50&e&7"5&.'%&-"%0%&#<%+-#(.$&9)'&.$$&)@-#)+03&#''%0@%(-#/%&)9&-"%&"%#*"-&)9&-"%&a).-#+*&@)+<&<.:d

A& P@-#)+&[&0")70&.&R;M:&'.#0#+*&)+&G#*"*.-%&K3&41-&)+$5&.&K;[:&'.#0#+*&)+&-"%&\%+=0&@)+<;&&a)-"&-"%0%&'.#0#+*0&:.5&'%T1#'%&.+&%.'-"&<.:&-)&4%&41#$-&#+0#<%&-"%&
@)+<03&J@.*%&LLO3&7"#("&:.5&"./%&.&:.F)'&#:@.(-&)+&0('%%+#+*&/%*%-.-#)+&.+<&-'%%0&)+&G#*"*.-%&K;&&_)1$<&5)1&@$%.0%&-%0-&-"#0&)@-#)+&7#-"&.&:.8&K;R[:&'.#0#+*&
.-&G#*"*.-%&K&J#%;&7#-"&.&7.$$O3&-)&<%-%':#+%&-"%&.:)1+-&)9&<.:&'.#0#+*&-"%+&+%%<%<&)+&-"%&\%+=0&@)+<&<.:d

E.*%&X3&KM3&R[;&&!%&+)-%3&'%&D0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+=3&-".-&-"%&'%-1'+&@%'#)<;;;;;;-".-&(.10%0&)/%'-)@@#+*&)9&-"%&$.0-&<.:&#+&-"%&%8#0-#+*&0(%+.'#)&#0&():@.'%<&7#-"&-"%&
^))<&%/%+-&-".-&(.10%0&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&#+&%.("&)@-#)+&-)&0-.'-&-)&0@#$$&7.-%';&&Y%0@#-%&:.F)'&.--%+1.-#)+&)+&%.("&(".#+3&-"%&0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+&.+<&@%.6&
/%$)(#-#%0&.@@%.'&9'):&-"%&^)7(".'-0&-)&'%:.#+&/#'-1.$$5&1+(".+*%<3&7#-")1-&.+5&#:@')/%:%+-;&&?)&.00%00&-"#03&please supply the current and proposed rate 
"3#@"5#,'+(1(#!-9'#/+)*4(#;48&+"/+)*4(<#3"+#)..#"*!-"%(#3"+#!4'#A"!!"9#B#*"%&(7#!4'#>-C'&#D)!4-%/#="%&#)%&#!4'#D")!-%/#*"%&7 and also for all the 
ponds if possible. 

E.*%&KR;&&G.:@0-%.<&_".#+&]$)7(".'-;&&E$%.0%&%8@$.#+`>

A& ?"%&(".'-&0")70&B.$%&@)+<&('%0-&'%0-)'.-#)+&.0&M;R:&:.83&7"%'%.0&-"%&-%8-&J@ZbO&0-.-%0&M;V:&:.8;&&E$%.0%&($.'#95

A& ?"%&(".'-&0")70&B#.<1(-&@)+<&('%0-&'%0-)'.-#)+&.0&M;[:3&7"%'%.0&-"%&-%8-&J@ZbO&0-.-%0&M;KW:&:.8;&&E$%.0%&($.'#95

A& ?"%&]$)7(".'-&0")70&-"%&_.-("@#-&7#-"&-"'%%&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+0&)9&@#@%&0#,%&-"')1*"&-"%&0.:%&[;V:&"#*"&<.:;&&E$%.0%&%8@$.#+&-"%&%99%(-&)9&-"%0%&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+0&'%&
-#:#+*3&<1'.-#)+3&/%$)(#-5&.+<&-)-.$&/)$1:%&)9&^))<&7.-%'&)+&-"%&<)7+0-'%.:&<.:0;&&!%&<)&+)-&1+<%'0-.+<&-"%&4%+%2-0&)9&-"%0%&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+0

A& !%&:1("&7%$():%&-"%&@'%0%+-.-#)+&)9&0)&:.+5&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+03&41-&.'%&@1,,$%<&.-&0):%&)9&-"%&2*1'%0&@'%0%+-%<;&&!%&7)1$<&.@@'%(#.-%&($.'#2(.-#)+;&&])'&
example, referring to the spillway/culvert options for Hampstead No 2 pond:-

)& 7"5&#0&P@-#)+&f&0@#$$7.5&0#*+#2(.+-$5&$.'*%'&-".+&P@-#)+&G&J7"%'%&4)-"&"./%&K;[:&'.#0#+*&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<Od

)& 7"5&#0&P@-#)+&g&0@#$$7.5&.$:)0-&-"%&0.:%&0#,%&.0&P@-#)+&_&J7"#("&".0&:1("&$%00&0-)'%<&7.-%'Od

)& 7"5&.'%&-"%&(')00&0%(-#)+.$&0@#$$7.5&.'%.0&J(.$(1$.-%<&1@&-)&('%0-&$%/%$O&0#*+#2(.+-$5&*'%.-%'&-".+&-"%&(')00&0%(-#)+.$&.'%.0&)9&-"%&(1$/%'-03&7"%+&():@.'#+*&@.#'0&
9)'&-"%&0.:%&^)70d&&I@#$$7.5&.'%.0&/.'5&9'):&K;[8&-)&L;K8&$.'*%'&#+&.'%.&-".+&-"%&%T1#/.$%+-&(1$/%'-0;&&I1'%$5&0@#$$7.5&^)7&7)1$<&4%&0:))-"%'&.+<&:)'%&%92(#%+-&
-".+&(1$/%'-&^)7&7"#("&()1$<&4%&-1'41$%+-3&7"#("&()1$<&4%&%8@%(-%<&-)&:.6%&0@#$$7.5&.'%.&$%00&-".+&(1$/%'-&.'%.d

)& 7"5&#0&-"%'%&-"#0&/.'#.-#)+&#+&-"%&'.-#)&)9&0@#$$7.5&.'%.0&-)&-"%&%T1#/.$%+-&(1$/%'-&.'%.0d&&I1'%$5&-"%'%&0")1$<&4%&-"%&0.:%&'.-#)&-"')1*")1-d&&])'&%8.:@$%3&-"%&
0@#$$7.5&.'%.&#+&P@-#)+&h&#0&K;[8&-"%&.'%.&)9&-"%&%T1#/.$%+-&(1$/%'-0&#+&P@-#)+&U3&7"%'%.0&-"%&0@#$$7.5&.'%.&#+&P@-#)+&f&#0&L;K8&-"%&.'%.&)9&-"%&(1$/%'-0&#+&P@-#)+&C;&&
C0&0@#$$7.5&f&-7#(%&-"%&0#,%&+%%<%<d

Page 14, 22.  We note in all cases it is assumed that water levels remain as today.  We endorse this principle generally, as agreed at the 13 July workshop, as 
lowering could affect ecology and visual appearance.  However, we query if a single exception might be made for the Boating Pond, as lowering the water 
level may enable the proposed dam to be reduced in height.  We discuss this in detail later.

Page 26.  Viewpoint 6, 3m raising, still shows the canopy of a tree that would be removed with this option.  There are similar instances in several photo visualisations.  
We urge for accurate imagery in the next report.

P
age 143



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

6

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society 
(Cont.)

2 Page 31.  We note that most of the advantages and disadvantages quoted for Option 3 are changes that are irrelevant to dam height, and apply therefore to all the 
options, not just to Option 3.

Page 37.  Errors.  Option 5 on lines 4 and 14 should read Option 6

E.*%&[[;&&N'')';&&B#.<1(-&E)+<&DN8#0-#+*&N+/#')+:%+-.$&_)+0#<%'.-#)+0=&#0&.&'%@%.-&)9&-".-&9)'&-"%&B.$%&)9&G%.$-"&E)+<

Page 55.  Error.  ...grass surfaced spillway at south EASTERN end of the dam. 

E.*%&[X;&&N'')';&&N8#0-#+*&N+/#')+:%+-.$&_)+0#<%'.-#)+0&41$$%-&R&0")1$<&'%.<&I)1-"&G#$$&E.'6&JgP?&i.'<%+0O

Page 85.  Error.  Bullet 2 should read Land drops away to the EAST

E.*%&WV;&&!"5&+)&DC+<#(.-#/%&@'#/.-%&)7+%'0"#@&4)1+<.'5=&:.'6%<d&&!".-&#0&:%.+#+*&)9&'%<&<)--%<&$#+%d

E.*%&X[;&&!".-&#0&:%.+#+*&)9&'%<&<)--%<&$#+%d

E.*%&Xb;&&N'')';&&_.@-#)+0&0")1$<&'%.<&I)1-"&G#$$&E.'6&&JgP?&Q).<O

E.*%&XW;&&!".-&#0&:%.+#+*&)9&'%<&<)--%<&$#+%d

E.*%&XX;&&N'')';&&E")-)&(.@-#)+0&a&.+<&_&.'%&-'.+0@)0%<;&&Y%0('#@-#)+&a&0")1$<&.$0)&'%.<&&B#%7&$))6#+*&0)1-"&NSI?;&&N'')';&&_.@-#)+0&0")1$<&'%.<&I)1-"&G#$$&E.'6&JgP?&Q).<O

Page 102.  Errors in photo captions.  B should read View looking south EAST...,  C should read  View looking EAST..., and D should read  View looking south EAST..

CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS – HIGHGATE CHAIN

(see particularly pages 9-10, 25-46)

Key Principles and Selected Options

In assessing these options, we have considered the following key principles:-

K;&&I-)'%c.--%+1.-%&.0&:1("&)9&-"%&E\]&.0&@)00#4$%&.-&-"%&a).-#+*&@)+<3&41-&:#+#:#0%&$.+<0(.@%&#:@.(-;&&This implies Option 3 [3.0m raising], but we have 
reservations, and suggestions as below.  We would like to limit the apparent height to approx 1.5m

2.  On Highgate 1, minimise any loss of trees and vegetation&-".-&0('%%+&-"%&G%.-"&9'):&'%0#<%+-#.$&41#$<#+*03&@.'-#(1$.'$5&a'))62%$<&\.+0#)+0&.+<&-"%&
#+-'10#/%&7"#-%&4$)(60&)9&!%0-&G#$$&_)1'-&J0%%&()::%+-&)+&@.*%&LKO;&&E.*%&LZ&#+<#(.-%0&-".-&.&M;[:&)'&K;R[:&<.:&'.#0#+*&)+&G#*"*.-%&K&()1$<&4%&.(()::)<.-%<&7#-"&
a wall on the crest which would have less impact on the vegetation than an earth dam.  However, this is partly contradicted by page 33, which implies that an earth 
dam might have to be built for the 1.25m dam raising, and any higher raising.  This therefore implies Option 3, or perhaps Option 6, but we have queries.

3.  Carry out the minimum possible work on all other dams

We detail these principles on the following review of the proposals for each pond, based on Option 3 stored volume, but with a Boat Pond dam raising of much less 
than 3m if our suggestions are incorporated:-

Highgate Chain – pond by pond review

Spillways generally

I@#$$7.50&.'%&<%0('#4%<&#+&)1-$#+%&)+&.$$&-"%&<.:03&<#:%+0#)+0&.'%&0-.-%<3&41-&$)(.-#)+0&.'%&'.'%$5&*#/%+;&&_)+0%T1%+-$53&-"%&/#01.$&#:@.(-&#0&<#92(1$-&-)&.00%00;&&C-&#0&
%00%+-#.$&-".-&7%&4%&@')/#<%<&1'*%+-$5&7#-"&0#:@$%&@$.+0&0")7#+*&-"%&$)(.-#)+03&7#-"&.+5&0#*+#2(.+-&-'%%&.+<&/%*%-.-#)+&$)00&<%0('#4%<;&&!"%'%&D+.-1'.$=&0@#$$7.50&(.+&
be routed to avoid the dam slopes and toe, then we urge that no reinforcement is needed, and no trees, bushes or fences need be removed on the route.  During 
.&E\]&0@#$$3&-'%%03&410"%0&.+<&9%+(%0&:.5&0199%'&0):%&<.:.*%&<1'#+*&-"#0&%8-'%:%$5&'.'%&%/%+-3&41-&-"#0&7)1$<&4%&.((%@-.4$%3&'.-"%'&-".+&1++%(%00.'#$5&($%.'&.+<&
reinforce the spillway, as proposed on some dams.

Stock Pond – crest restore 0.5m to 1.0m

We presume that this height of dam raising is principally to allow a spillway to be inserted into the crest without unduly lowering the normal water level, rather than 
for crest restoration.  Please clarify.We would prefer timber facing to the proposed retaining wall which we consider more visually appropriate than brick.  There could 
be planting in front as screening.  English Heritage screened the raised Wood Pond dam like this, which seems visually acceptable.  This remark also applies to the 
@')@)0%<&7.$$0&.-&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&.+<&G#*"*.-%&g)&K;&!%&+)-%&-".-&-7)&J@)+<&0#<%dO&-'%%0&:.5&4%&$)0-&#+&41#$<#+*&-"%&'%-.#+#+*&7.$$&J@.*%&LWO&.+<&T1%'5&#9&-"#0&(.+&
be avoided through design As the proposed spillway is to be reinforced, with topsoil and grass cover over, could there be some bushes or shrubs on its downstream 
0$)@%d&C0&#-&#+-%+<%<&-".-&-"#0&@)+<&4%&<'%<*%<&.0&@.'-&)9&-"%&7)'60&J@ZZO3&.0&-"%'%&#0&<%%@&0#$-&#+&-"#0&@)+<d

P
age 144



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
7

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society 
(Cont.)

2 Ladies Bathing Pond – crest restore by 0.2m

Please detail the position of the spillway, with any tree loss.

Bird Sanctuary Pond – crest restore by 0.1m

Please clarify if there will be any tree loss when carrying out the crest restoration.  If so, we query why any work needs to be carried out.  This dam is the most 
')410-&)+&-"%&G%.-"3&-"%'%&#0&.&-.':.(&').<&)+&-"%&('%0-&7"#("&0#*+#2(.+-$5&7#$$&@')-%(-&9'):&.+5&%')0#)+3&.+<&1+<%'&^))<&()+<#-#)+0&-"%&<.:&7#$$&@')4.4$5&4%&
overwhelmed by rising water in the Boat pond before formation of any small gullies

Model Boating Pond – raise dam to store equivalent volume of water of a 3.0m raising

It appears desirable to store approx 106,000 cu m or more if possible behind this dam, as in Option 3 which has 3m dam raising.  However, we consider that 
this extra height could severely impact on the landscape, and suggest that the raising ideally be limited to an apparent 1.5m, whilst still storing this 
volume of water.  We suggest that this might be achieved by the following three measures:-

E:##F'(-/%#!4'#(*-..5)8#!"#&-($4)+/'#!4'#EGEH7HHH#8')+#@""&#"%.87#5-!4#!4'#(1+*.1(#=>?#5)!'+#A'-%/#).."5'&#!"#",'+!"*#!4'#$+'(!:  This might reduce 
the raising by approx 1.1m, being the height of the spillway.  =.')('#$.)+-38#)%&#$"%2+9:# The old and new dams would then have to be protected from erosion 
9'):&-"%&)/%'-)@@#+*&E\]3&.+<&-"%&+%%<&9)'&-"#0&7#$$&<%@%+<&)+&-"%&'.-%&)9&^)7&.+<&<1'.-#)+3&hence please supply the hydrograph.  

?"%&+%7&'.#0%<&%.'-"&<.:&()1$<&"./%&.$$&0$)@%0&.+<&-"%&('%0-&%.0#$5&@')-%(-%<&7#-"&'%#+9)'(%<&*'.00&J@$.0-#(&N+6.:.-&)'&0#:#$.'O&#+0-.$$%<&<1'#+*&()+0-'1(-#)+&.+<&-"#0&
would present a similar surface to that proposed for Option 3, ie. uniform grass, with possibly a berm/path and some bushes or shrubs on the upstream face to soften 
the appearance.

The crest/cycle track on the existing dam is already in hard tarmac construction, but this could be re-laid in harder construction to ensure that it would not be eroded 
or undermined.  It will then form a berm on the downstream slope, 

?"%&<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%&)9&-"%&%8#0-#+*&<.:&#+-)&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&#0&4').<$5&1+#9)':&*'.00&7#-"&0):%&0@%(#:%+&-'%%0&7"#("&.'%&-)&4%&'%-.#+%<;&&C9&-"%&"5<')*'.@"&
#+<#(.-%0&-".-&-"#0&<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%&+%%<0&-)&4%&@')-%(-%<3&-"%+&'%#+9)'(%<&*'.00&()1$<&4%&$.#<&)+&#-&.+<&.')1+<&-"%&-'%%0&7#-")1-&0#*+#2(.+-$5&.$-%'#+*&-"%&
appearance.  We accept that this may not provide the same protection as on a new dam, but suggest that it should be adequate, taking into account the fully 
protected crest, and the massive thickness of the combined existing and new dams.  There could perhaps be some surface damage but no structural damage, and we 
understand that some damage can be accepted.

2.  Lower the water level in the pond by say, 0.5m max, and hence trim further height off the raised dam.  As stated above, we absolutely agree that 
water levels should remain unchanged on all other ponds, due to the adverse effect on ecology and visual aspects.  However, we suggest that the Boating pond is 
.&0@%(#.$&(.0%;&&C-&#0&.+&.'-#2(#.$&$))6#+*&@)+<3&)9&+)&0#*+#2(.+-&%()$)*#(.$&/.$1%;&&?)&()+0-'1(-&-"%&+%7&<.:3&7%&4%$#%/%&-".-&-"%&@)+<&:.5&"./%&-)&4%&():@$%-%$5&
drained with areas dredged for the new dam, and the two small reed beds and other planting will not survive.  It is also proposed to cut back the west slopes 
0#*+#2(.+-$5&#+-)&-"%&'#0#+*&$.+<3&-)&7#+&2$$&.+<&('%.-%&.&:)'%&+.-1'.$&%<*%

Whilst this work is being carried out, it would be extremely simple to dredge the pond deeper and lower the water level permanently without reducing the surface 
.'%.&)9&-"%&@)+<;&&!%&01**%0-&-"#0&4%&$#:#-%<&-)&0.5&M;[:&:.8;&&!%&.((%@-&-".-&<#0@)0.$&)9&0#$-3&@.'-#(1$.'$5&#9&()+-.:#+.-%<3&:.5&4%&.&@')4$%:3&41-&0#*+#2(.+-&
quantities may have to be disposed anyway, even if the water level is not reduced.  The design of the dam and west slopes can easily be adjusted for a lower water 
level.  However, this could leave the untouched east and north edges higher above and slightly more remote from the water.  We therefore suggest that the existing 
east and north perimeter path could be re-constructed to the same height above the lowered water level as now.  Alternatively, these paths could remain as now, 
41-&.&+%7&0-%@@%<&7.-%'=0&%<*%&()1$<&4%&9)':%<&.</.+(%<&#+-)&-"%&@)+<3&4').<$5&.0&)+&@.*%&KV3&41-&7#-"&.&7.$67.5&F10-&.4)/%&7.-%'&$%/%$;&&I):%&:.'*#+.$&@$.+-0&
()1$<&4%&.<<%<&#9&'%T1#'%<&-)&0)9-%+&.+<&()+(%.$&-"%&7.$67.53&41-&91$$&.((%00&7)1$<&0-#$$&%8#0-&9)'&:)<%$&4).-0;&&!%&01**%0-&-".-&-"#0&()1$<&91'-"%'&D+.-1'.$#0%=&-"%&@)+<&
.--'.(-#/%$5;&&S&0#:#$.'&01**%0-#)+&7.0&.$0)&:.<%&.-&-"%&I-.6%")$<%'0&7)'60")@&)+&KV&f1$5&RMKL&J@Z[O;

3.  The additional area of the pond, formed by excavating the west bank, may allow the raised dam to be trimmed further in height.  We await 
(.$(1$.-#)+0&)+&-"#0&7#-"&#+-%'%0-&J@.*%&LKO;&&G)7%/%'3&7%&.'%&/%'5&()+(%'+%<&.-&-"%&@)00#4$%&/#01.$&#:@.(-&)9&%8-%+<#+*&-"%&@)+<&7#<-"&45&1@&-)&bM:3&7"#("&7%&
understand may be mainly at the north end.  This would double the width of the pond.  We are also concerned at the proposed steepening of the west bank 
0$)@%0&9'):&K`KL&-)&K`[3&7"#("&()1$<&$))6&/%'5&.'-#2(#.$;&&!%&.'%&.$0)&()+(%'+%<&.-&.+5&-'%%&$)00&-".-&7)1$<&4%&(.10%<&45&-"#0&7#<%+#+*3&@$%.0%&($.'#95;&&?"#0&:.F)'&
7#<%+#+*&)9&-"%&@)+<&#0&+)-&'%^%(-%<&#+&-"%&@$.+><#.*'.:&)+&@.*%&ZK;&&C9&-"#0&%+$.'*%<&7#<-"&#0&@')@)0%<&:.#+$5&-)&7#+&%.'-"&9)'&-"%&<.:&()+0-'1(-#)+3&'.-"%'&-".+&
import earth, we strongly suggest that serious consideration be given to the option of digging deeper into the pond, rather than making it wider.  Also, if suitable and 
1+)4-'10#/%&$)(.-#)+0&(.+&4%&9)1+<&9)'&4)'')7&@#-0&-)&)4-.#+&2$$&9)'&-"%&<.:3&-"%0%&:.5&@)00#4$5&4%&4.(62$$%<&7#-"&1+01#-.4$%&0)#$&.+<&0#$-&#9&@)+<0&.'%&<%>0#$-%<3&'.-"%'&
than transport off-site. In summary, we hope that these three measures will enable the apparent dam raising to be limited to approx. 1.5m, whilst still storing the 
same volume of water as Option 3.  Because the footprint of the dam would be reduced, we hope that both mature willows at the west end just north of the ancient 
oak could then be retained.  Please also advise if the large and the medium hornbeams at the west end of the causeway can be retained.

P
age 145



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

8

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society 
(Cont.)

2 !%&.'%&()+(%'+%<&.-&01**%0-%<&-'%%&$)00&9)'&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&7)'60&)+&-"%&<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%&)9&-"%&%8#0-#+*&<.:&J@RWcRXO;&&C-&#0&essential that a detailed plan 
4%&@')/#<%<&0")7#+*&-'%%&$)00;&&ERX&0-.-%0&-".-&.&$)7&%.'-"&41+<&&7)1$<&-'.#+&-"%&J7.-%'O&^)7&.7.5&9'):&-"%&<.:&.+<&-"%'%9)'%&./)#<&-"%&+%%<&-)&$#+%J'%#+9)'(%O&.&
wider area or cut into the ground to form a spillway chute.  Excellent!  However, we therefore feel that there should be no need to touch any trees on this spillway 
route, and we contest that two London planes have to be felled to form this corridor for the lower spillway.

Men’s Swimming Pond – raise dam 0.5m

We prefer timber facing for the proposed wall on the dam crest rather than brickwork which would be unacceptable, screened with marginal vegetation.

!%&'%T1%0-&.&@$.+&0")7#+*&-"%&$.5)1-&)9&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.53&.+<&-"%+&"./%&.&F)#+-&'%/#%7&)+&0#-%;&&!%&.'%&01'@'#0%<&.-&-"%&$.'*%&7#<-"&JR[:cZL:O;&&G)7%/%'3&#9&#-&
#0&0#-%<&@.'-$5&)+&-"%&7%0-&4.+63&45&-"%&'.+*%'0=&4)-"53&7%&4%$#%/%&-".-&#-&()1$<&9)$$)7&.&+.-1'.$&0$)@%&)/%'&0".$$)7&*')1+<&<)7+&-)&-"%&+%8-&@)+<&.+<&+)&'%0".@#+*&)9&
the ground would be needed.  As this natural route completely avoids the dam toe, no reinforcement of the spillway is needed, except at the dam crest and spillway 
:#-'%0;&&S$0)3&+)&-'%%03&410"%0&)'&9%+(%0&+%%<&4%&'%:)/%<&)+&-"#0&')1-%;&&Y1'#+*&.&E\]&0@#$$3&-'%%03&410"%0&.+<&9%+(%0&:.5&0199%'&0):%&<.:.*%&<1'#+*&-"#0&%8-'%:%$5&
rare event, but this would be acceptable, rather than unnecessarily clear and reinforce the spillway as proposed.  

Highgate No 1 Pond – raise dam 0.5m

We prefer timber facing for the proposed wall on the dam crest rather than brickwork which would be unacceptable.  We urge that this wall be hand constructed so 
-".-&-"%'%&#0&+)&-'%%&$)00&)+&-"%&('%0-&)'&<.:&0$)@%0&7"#("&7)1$<&%8@)0%&!%0-&G#$$&_)1'-&.+<&a'))62%$<&\.+0#)+0&9'):&-"%&G%.-";&&S0&-"%&7.$$&#0&)+&-"%&('%0-&7#-"&.&
sloping upstream face, we urge that it be concealed with vegetation and shrubs on both sides.

We are greatly surprised that the spillway is proposed to be 60m/74m long, and ask that calculations be provided to substantiate this extraordinary width.  This 
0@#$$7.5&J@LMO&7)1$<&4%&@.'-$5&)+&-"%&7%0-&%+<&)9&-"%&<.:&.+<&@.'-$5&.$)+*&-"%&+.-1'.$&*')1+<&-)&-"%&7%0-&)9&-"%&<.:;&&S-&-"#0&@)0#-#)+&-7)&$.'*%&-'%%0&J#+($1<#+*&.&
/%'5&$.'*%&")'0%&("%0-+1-&.<F.(%+-&-)&-"%&@.-"3O&.+<&.&0:.$$%'&$#:%&.+<&-7)&.$<%'0&7)1$<&4%&9%$$%<;&&?"%'%&#0&.$0)&.&/%-%'.+&).6&.<F.(%+-3&.4)1-&7"#("&-"%&'%@)'-&#0&
0#$%+-&J%8(%@-&9)'&:%+-#)+&)+&@.*%&LLO;

We consider this tree loss to be unacceptable, and query if fewer trees would be lost if the raised dam is continued round the waters edge almost to the dog 
07#::#+*&.'%.;&&?"%&7%0-&4.+6&9'):&-"#0&@)#+-&+)'-"7.'<0&7)1$<&-"%+&9)':&.&D+.-1'.$=&0@#$$7.5&7"#("&()1$<&^))<&.(')00&-"%&@.-"&-)&-"%&$)7&$5#+*&.'%.&-)&-"%&7%0-3&
.+<&-"%+&2$$&1@&4%9)'%&)/%'^)7#+*&0)1-"&-"')1*"&.&+.-1'.$&<%@'%00#)+&4').<$5&.$)+*&-"%&$#+%&)9&-"%&%8#0-#+*&9))-@.-";&&S0&:)0-&)9&-"#0&+.-1'.$&')1-%3&7"#("&#0&91'-"%'&
-)&-"%&7%0-&-".+&@')@)0%<&#+&-"%&'%@)'-3&7)1$<&./)#<&-"%&<.:&-)%3&-"%+&$#--$%&)'&+)&'%#+9)'(#+*&:.5&4%&'%T1#'%<;&&C-&:.5&.$0)&0$#*"-$5&'%<1(%&.+5&#:@.(-&)9&-"%&^))<&-)&
a'))62%$<&\.+0#)+0

We request a plan showing the layout of the proposed spillway with trees that would be lost, and a detailed level survey and plan of our alternative proposal above.  
There should then be a joint review on site.  On these plans, please indicate the general direction this overtopping surface water will take after leaving the dam

E$%.0%&($.'#95&7".-&#0&#+-%+<%<&45&>&&+%7&0@#$$7.5&()1$<&4%&@$.+-%<&.0&.&4#)07.$%&9%.-1'%&J@ZLO

Environmental Management Options [p44/45]

We note the extensive toolbox of options for pond, water quality and ecology, but feel that we cannot offer any opinions at this stage.  It is essential that every 
pond is visited and detailed discussions held on site before any options can be supported or discarded.

CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS – HAMPSTEAD CHAIN

(see particularly pages 11-12, 47-61)

Key Principles and Selected Options

In assessing these options, we have considered the following key principles:-

1.  To minimize tree loss on Hampstead No 2 pond

R;&&?)&.--%+1.-%c0-)'%&:)'%&^))<&7.-%'&-".+&@')@)0%<&#+&-"%&'%@)'-3&provided that this would reduce the tree loss on Hampstead No 2.  We particularly 
query if more storage is possible at the Catchpit, the Mixed pond, and at Hampstead No 2

3.  To minimize the visual impact of the works at all ponds

P
age 146



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
9

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society 
(Cont.)

2 Hampstead Chain – pond by pond review

Spillways generally

I@#$$7.50&.'%&<%0('#4%<&#+&)1-$#+%&)+&.$$&-"%&<.:03&<#:%+0#)+0&.'%&0-.-%<3&41-&$)(.-#)+0&.'%&'.'%$5&*#/%+;&&_)+0%T1%+-$53&-"%&/#01.$&#:@.(-&#0&<#92(1$-&-)&.00%00;&&It is 
'(('%!-).#!4)!#5'#A'#*+",-&'&#1+/'%!.8#5-!4#(-9*.'#*.)%(#(4"5-%/#!4'#."$)!-"%(7#5-!4#)%8#(-/%-2$)%!#!+''#)%&#,'/'!)!-"%#."((#&'($+-A'&:  Where 
D+.-1'.$=&0@#$$7.50&(.+&4%&')1-%<&-)&./)#<&-"%&<.:&0$)@%0&.+<&-)%3&-"%+&7%&1'*%&-".-&+)&'%#+9)'(%:%+-&#0&+%%<%<3&.+<&+)&-'%%03&410"%0&)'&9%+(%0&+%%<&4%&'%:)/%<&
)+&-"%&')1-%;&&Y1'#+*&.&E\]&0@#$$3&-'%%03&410"%0&.+<&9%+(%0&:.5&0199%'&0):%&<.:.*%&<1'#+*&-"#0&%8-'%:%$5&'.'%&%/%+-3&41-&-"#0&7)1$<&4%&.((%@-.4$%3&'.-"%'&-".+&
unnecessarily clear and reinforce the spillway, as proposed on some dams.

Vale of Health Pond – crest restoration 0.2m max [or 0.6m?]

C-&".0&4%%+&0-.-%<&-".-&-"#0&@)+<&".0&+%/%'&)/%'^)7%<&.+<&#0&0@'#+*&9%<&7#-"&.&0:.$$&(.-(":%+-&.'%.;&&?"%&#''%*1$.'&-.':.(&('%0-&".0&+)-&4%%+&+)-%<&.0&)9&.+5&
concern.  We therefore query why crest restoration is needed, with possible impact on crest trees 

Please clarify if use of a pipe larger than 500mm would avoid the use of a spillway with consequent tree loss.  We would prefer this

Please clarify proposed spillway and pipe discharge routes re the large sequoia tree, and detail any tree loss.

Viaduct Pond – crest restoration 0.5m [or 0.18m?]

Please clarify spillway route and tree loss

Catchpit – suggest 5.8m dam

We note that a 5.6m dam is proposed because the 7.2m dam reached a max water level only 160mm higher than with the 5.6m dam.  Why not increase the proposed 
<.:&-)&[;W:3&#+&)'<%'&-)&0-)'%&-"%&.40)$1-%&:.8#:1:&/)$1:%&)9&^))<d&&?"%&]$)7(".'-&J@KRO&#+<#(.-%0&-"%&/.$1%&)9&:)'%&0-)'.*%3&7"%+&)+%&():@.'%0&-"%&Z;Z:&.+<&
5.6m dams

!%&"./%&()+0#<%'%<&-"%&-7)&@)0#-#)+0&01**%0-%<&9)'&-"%&<.:&e&.j&.&0#+1)10&(1'/%&)+&-"%&I&0#<%&)9&-"%&/.$$%53&)'&4j&:)/#+*&-"%&<.:&(;R[:&4.(6&1@0-'%.:;&&a%9)'%&
giving a view, it is essential that detailed plans of these options be provided, showing trees that would be lost.  We would then like again to view these 
options on site, as option b) was not considered at the last site visit.  

We initially favour Option a), but only if it can be designed not to endanger the two hybrid black poplars and hornbeams.  This option would hold 
:)'%&^))<&7.-%'&-".+&)@-#)+&4j;&

If Option b) is constructed, we presume the oak that would be lost is just inside the Catchpit fence.  However, it is essential that a mature oak at the top of the west 
0$)@%&+%.'&-"%&_.-("@#-&4%&'%-.#+%<3&.0&-"#0&0")1$<&0#*+#2(.+-$5&0('%%+&-"%&+%7&7)'60&9'):&E'5)'0&]#%$<;&&\.+5&7#$$)70&)+&-"%&_.-("@#-&4)1+<.'5&)+&-"%&%.0-&0#<%&:.5&
be lost, - there should be replacement planting on the dam toe.  

We note on p49 that an advantage of Option b) appears to be that the Catchpit infrastructure could be rebuilt and improved, with potential for creation of a wetland 
habitat upstream.  If this is desirable, we suggest that it could be carried out irrespective of the position of the new dam

Option b) on the north side will store less water than option a).  Please re-calculate storage volumes, and indicate what adjustments should be made to this and other 
dam heights to compensate

S0&-"#0&<.:&#0&.&D<'5=&<.:3&7%&@'%01:%&-".-&0"'140&.+<&410"%0&(.+&4%&@$.+-%<&)+&-"%&0$)@%0;&&E$%.0%&()+2':;&&C9&-"%&0$)@%0&.'%&#+&7))<$.+<3&-"%+&7%&7)1$<&7.+-&
bushes for screening.  If the slope faces grassland, then we wish to review on site

Mixed Bathing Pond

Options K, I and M indicate that two plane trees may be lost on Hampstead 2 Pond dam.  If this loss could be reduced to only one tree by 
-%$+')(-%/#!4'#@""&#(!"+)/'#)!#!4'#>-C'&#="%&#9"+'#!4)%#*+"*"('&7#!4'%#5'#5"1.&#(1**"+!#!4-(#"*!-"%:&&?"#0&0")'-&<.:&#0&.$'%.<5&.+&.'-#2(#.$&$))6#+*&
(.10%7.5&7#-"&0-%%@&<%0(%+-0&)+-)&#-&.-&4)-"&%+<03&.+<&'.#0#+*&#-&0#*+#2(.+-$5&0")1$<&4%&0#:@$%;&&G)7%/%'3&-"%&6%5&#001%0&-)&()+0#<%'&#+($1<%`>

• pedestrians on the causeway should still be able to view the water on this pond and Hampstead No 2 pond at the same time, which implies raising the crest road 
-)&%+.4$%&)+%&-)&$))6&+)'-"&)/%'&-"%&('%0-&)9&-"%&+%7&<.:&7"#("&7)1$<&4%&41#$-&7#-"#+&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<3&0#:#$.'$5&-)&-"%&@')@)0%<&a).-&E)+<&<.:

A& $)00&)9&-"%&*$#:@0%&)9&7.-%'&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&7"%+&/#%7%<&9'):&G.:@0-%.<&g)&R&E)+<&(.10%7.5;&&G)7%/%'3&-"#0&*$#:@0%&7#$$&4%&$)0-&#9&-"%&<.:&#0&'.#0%<&$%00&
than 1/2m, so a greater raising would not affect this aspect.

P
age 147



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

10

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Heath & 
Hampstead Society 
(Cont.)

2 A& ?"%&%99%(-&)9&-"%&'.#0%<&<.:&7"%+&/#%7%<&9'):&-"%&07#::#+*&%+($)01'%3&.$-")1*"&7%&@'%01:%&#-&()1$<&"./%&0):%&0"'1403&.+<&.&7#$<^)7%'&0%%<&:#8;&&!%&+)-%&
9'):&-"%&]$)7(".'-&J@KRO&-".-&K;[:&'.#0#+*&#0&01**%0-%<&7#-")1-&T1.$#2(.-#)+3&41-&.&R;M:&'.#0#+*&#0&+)-&@'%9%''%<&45&0):%&0-.6%")$<%'0;&&

Ultimately, the amount the dam is raised may be a balance between saving one plane trees on Hampstead No 2 and the feelings of the swimmers re a raised dam to 
-"%&0)1-";&&?)&:.6%&-"#0&<%(#0#)+3&7%&+%%<&#+9)':.-#)+&)+&")7&:)'%&7.-%'&0-)'.*%&.-&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&:#*"-&#+^1%+(%&$)00&)9&@$.+%&-'%%0&)+&g)&R&<.:;

G)7%/%'3&.001:#+*&-"%&0@#$$7.5&#0&<%0#*+%<&9)'&E\]&J.0&)+&-"%&G#*"*.-%&(".#+O3&-"%+&#9&-"%&0@#$$7.5&#0&'%><%0#*+%<&-)&<#0(".'*%&-"%&K`KM3MMM&5%.'&^))<&)+$53&7#-"&-"%&
01'@$10&E\]&7.-%'&4%#+*&.$$)7%<&-)&)/%'-)@&-"%&('%0-3&-"#0&:#*"-&'%<1(%&-"%&'.#0#+*&45&.@@')8&K:3&4%#+*&-"%&"%#*"-&)9&-"%&0@#$$7.5;&&E$%.0%&'%9%'&-)&)1'&()::%+-0&'%&
-"%&a).-#+*&E)+<3&($.'#95&.+<&()+2':;&&

If this option is selected, then the whole dam may have to be reinforced to take overtopping.  This should be very simple, as the slopes are short, and the existing 
<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%&#0&.$'%.<5&1+#9)':&*'.00&.+<&".0&+)&-'%%0&.$)+*&#-0&('#-#(.$&$%+*-";&&S$0)3&-"#0&<.:&#0&-"%&0%()+<&:)0-&')410-&<.:&)+&-"%&G%.-"&J.9-%'&-"%&a#'<&
I.+(-1.'5&<.:O;&&?"#0&)@-#)+&:.5&-"%'%9)'%&%+.4$%&:)'%&7.-%'&-)&4%&0-)'%<&7#-")1-&91'-"%'&'.#0#+*&-"%&<.:

!#$$&-"%&@)+<&4%&<'%<*%<3&.0&#-&#0&/%'5&0".$$)73&@.'-#(1$.'$5&.$)+*&-"%&7")$%&)9&-"%&7%0-&4.+6d

Hampstead No 2 Pond

E:##I*!-"%(#J7#K#)%&#>#-%&-$)!'#!4)!#!5"#*.)%'#!+''(#9)8#A'#."(!#"%#!4-(#&)9:##K3#!4-(#."((#$"1.&#A'#+'&1$'&#!"#"%.8#"%'#!+''##A8#-%$+')(-%/#!4'#@""&#
storage at this pond, then we would support this option, but as a last resort only if necessary, after our other suggestions have been adopted.  

!%&+)-%&-".-&G.5()(6&@')@)0%<&-)&'.#0%&-"%&('%0-&45&K;M:3&.+<&_)$/#+&.+<&\)**'#<*%3&h.+<0(.@%&S'("#-%(-03&01**%0-%<&#+&g)/&RMKM&-".-&)+%&()1$<&'%@$.(%&-"%&
%8#0-#+*&9%+(%&J@)0-0&XMM::&"#*"O&7#-"&.&41--'%00%<&7.$$&K:&"#*";&&?"#0&7#$$&'.#0%&-"%&$%/%$&)9&-"%&<.:&7#-"&:#+#:1:&#:@.(-&)+&-'%%&'))-0;&&S((%00&()1$<&4%&@')/#<%<&
-)&-"%&20"%':%+=0&@.-"&.-&-"%&7.-%'0&%<*%;&&?"#0&)@-#)+&:#*"-&(.10%&^))<&7.-%'&-)&%+-%'&-"%&$)7%0-&@.'-&)9&-"%&*.'<%+0&)9&0):%&")10%0&#+&I)1-"&G#$$&E.'63&41-&#9&0)3&
-"#0&7)1$<&4%&4'#%^5&<1'#+*&%8(%@-#)+.$$5&'.'%&%8-'%:%&^))<&%/%+-03&.+<&-"%&")10%0&0")1$<&+)-&4%&.99%(-%<;&&?"#0&01**%0-#)+&7)1$<&'%T1#'%&/%'5&(.'%91$&$.+<0(.@#+*&
so as not to be intrusive when viewed from the north.  The path may have to be raised, and the wall may need to be screened with vegetation on the north side.  In 
)'<%'&-)&.00%00&-"#0&)@-#)+3&@$%.0%&@')/#<%&<%-.#$0&)+&7"%-"%'&0-)'.*%&.-&-"#0&@)+<&7)1$<&4%&4%+%2(#.$;&&

2.  We have considered the options of spillways versus culverts.  Please provide details of your investigation of the possibility of splitting up the spillways to run 
between the trees.  However, we initially favour culverts, to be sited as far west as possible

L;&&k)1'&B#%7&E)#+-&L&J@.*%&[RO&0")70&-7)&-'%%0&7)1$<&4%&$)0-;&&C9&-"%&-'%%&)+&-"%&%.0-&#0&'%:)/%<3&-"%+&-"%&Q)5.$&]'%%&G)0@#-.$&7#$$&4%():%&/#0#4$%&-"')1*"&-"%&*.@&
7"%+&/#%7%<&9'):&-"%&7%0-&%+<&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&(.10%7.53&:1("&91'-"%'&7%0-&-".+&B#%7&E)#+-&Z&7"#("&#0&9'):&-"%&%.0-&%+<&)9&-"%&(.10%7.5;&&G)7%/%'3&#9&)+$5&
the tree on the west is removed, then the hospital will not be visible as the gap will be screened by trees overhanging the west bank of Hampstead No 2 pond.  We 
therefore urge that only the west tree be removed.

4.  We therefore query if the wide but shallow box culvert could be constructed with a taper in plan to form a narrow waist but deeper section as it passes between 
the trees so that only the west tree need be removed.

[;&&!%&.$0)&")@%&-".-&:)'%&0-)'.*%&.-&-"%&_.-("@#-3&\#8%<&E)+<&.+<&G.:@0-%.<&g)&R&@)+<3&7"%+&():4#+%<3&:#*"-&'%01$-&#+&-"%&'%<1(-#)+&)9&-"%&+1:4%'&)9&L:&7#<%&
culvert to two, which presumably will have a width of 6.5m.  If so, we suggest that only one plane need be lost, as they are at 8m centres

6.  If two trees will still be lost with shallow culverts, we query if a letterbox drop culvert, with a low level thrust bored or tunnelled culvert could be constructed below 
the tree roots, to save one or both of the trees proposed for felling with shallow culverts

b;&&!%&+)-%&01**%0-#)+&9)'&.+&#0$.+<&J@[WO;&&!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&:%%-&)+&0#-%&-)&<#0(100&<%-.#$0&.+<&@.'-#(1$.'$5&-"%&0#,%&)9&.+5&@')@)0.$0

Hampstead No 1 Pond

!%&@'%01:%&-"%&)1-^)7&7#$$&4%&0#-%<&.-&-"%&%8-'%:%&%.0-&%+<&)9&-"%&<.:;&&C9&0)3&-"%+&-"#0&0")1$<&4%&()+(%.$%<&9'):&-"%&9))-@.-"&)+&-"%&0)1-"&45&-"%&4%$-&)9&-'%%0&
and shrubs at the dam toe, which widens out at the east end.  We would therefore prefer a spillway which should be less intrusive when viewed from upstream.  
However, we suggest that this should be made as narrow as possible, and query if the side slopes could be made steeper, as access to the crest is private. We note 
01**%0-#)+&9)'&.+&#0$.+<&J@[XO;&&!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&:%%-&)+&0#-%&-)&<#0(100&<%-.#$0&.+<&@.'-#(1$.'$5&-"%&0#,%&)9&.+5&@')@)0.$0;

Environmental Management Options [p60/61]

We note the extensive toolbox of options for pond, water quality and ecology, but feel that we cannot offer any opinions at this stage.  It is essential that every 
pond is visited and detailed discussions held on site before any options can be supported or discarded.

P
age 148



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
11

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Highgate Society 3 We have focussed our comments on the Highgate chain of Ponds. Our main comments are as follows:

1.  Legal and analytical foundations. The planned work on the Highgate chain is very heavily focused on the boating pond, where It is proposed to raise the 
current dam by 3m and double the width of the pond, widening it by up to 70m. We are concerned that neither the legal requirement under the 1871 Hampstead 
G%.-"&S(-3&+)'&-"%&.+.$5-#(.$&F10-#2(.-#)+&9)'&:.6#+*&01("&<'.:.-#(&(".+*%03&.'%&.<%T1.-%$5&%8@$.#+%<;&C9&.+5&01("&7)'60&.'%&-)&(.''5&-"%&@14$#(&7#-"&-"%:3&-"%'%&
needs to be greater clarity about the legal and data/modeling aspects underlying the plans. Simply stating (page 4) that “more storage is needed” is not adequate. 
!%&1+<%'0-.+<&-".-&-"%&$%*.$&4.0#0&#0&0-#$$&1+<%'&<#0(100#)+l&-"#0&0")1$<&01'%$5&4%&2+.$#0%<&4%9)'%&-"%&@')F%(-&<%/%$)@0&%/%+&:)'%&:):%+-1:;&?.4$%0&0%--#+*&)1-&6%5&
model assumptions and data examples should be included. We certainly welcome the reduction in the scale of the work across the chain from that originally proposed 
but, in the absence of more clarity, consider that the documents as they stand do not justify the scale of work proposed.  It is also impossible to choose between 
options 3-6 when no ready-reckoner type calculations are available for the extra storage capacity gained by cutting into the existing slopes above the existing water 
level. (p.31).

2. The underlying principles remain unclear. ?"%&%.'$5&@.*%0&)9&-"%&@.@%'&e&+)-.4$5&@.*%0&Z>X&e&"./%&0%/%'.$&0%'#%0&)9&@'#+(#@$%0;&?"%&$#0-&+%%<0&-)&4%&0$#::%<&
down and stated more clearly, so that the proposed works can be sensibly judged against them. We welcome the effort to leave most of the Highgate chain relatively 
untouched, but are concerned about the extent of work planned for the boating pond. 

3.  Water storage needs. Clarity is also needed on the rationale for the extent of extra water storage planned for the boating pond. The case for that much extra 
storage is not clear-cut if the overriding legal requirement driving the project is to ensure that the dams lower down the chain do not fail in the event of the extreme 
^))<&(.0%;&&

4.  Misleading images. !%&2+<&-"%&#:.*%0&)+&@.*%0&RVcRb3&.+<&%0@%(#.$$5&-".-&)+&@.*%&ZK3&-)&4%&:#0$%.<#+*;&?"%5&*#/%&+)&'%.$&#:@'%00#)+&)9&7".-&.&bM:&7#<-"&
#+('%.0%&m.0&0%-&)1-&)+&@.*%&LKj&>&7"#("&7)1$<&<)14$%&-"%&@)+<&.'%.&>&7)1$<&.(-1.$$5&$))6&$#6%;&?"%&#:@.(-&)+&-"%&7%0-&4.+6&e&0-%%@%+#+*&#-&9'):&K`KL&-)&K`[&e&:10-&
be shown clearly. This would be a very major change, with a major impact on users of the slopes above the Pond.  Visualisations from all viewpoints are needed, and 
a model to be displayed at public events would also be important.

5.  Wider v deeper.&C9&:.-%'#.$&#0&-)&4%&-.6%+&9'):&-"%&\)<%$&a).-#+*&@)+<&-)&41#$<&-"%&<.:&m7"#("&7%&7)1$<&.@@')/%&#9&-"%&'%01$-&7.0&-)&:#+#:#0%&-'.92(&^)7&)+&
the access roads), the pond should be made deeper, not wider. This would have no visual or safety outcomes.

6.  Access, not naturalisation. We do not believe that the boating pond edges should be be softened or made more “natural”, beyond what is already being done 
on the way of reed-bed planting. One of its great attractions now is that it is the only pond on the Highgate chain on which the edge can be accessed by all, including 
("#$<'%+=0&41**#%0&.+<&%$%(-'#(&7"%%$&(".#'0&>&:1("&:)'%&0)3&@%'".@03&-".+&.+5&)-"%'&@)+<&)+&-"%&G%.-";&!%&4%$#%/%&-".-&-"#0&#0&/.$1%<&45&G%.-"&10%'0&.+<&-".-&-"#0&
access must be maintained. 

7.  Western “roadway”. ?"%&@.-"7.5c').<&.$)+*&-"%&7%0-%'+&0#<%&)9&-"%&4).-#+*&@)+<&#0&)+%&)9&-"%&G%.-"=0&:.F)'&-")')1*"9.'%03&9)'&@%)@$%&.+<&G%.-"&/%"#($%0;&C-&
#0&9.'&9'):&($%.'&")7&#-&7#$$&4%&'%()+2*1'%<&.+<&7".-&7#$$&4%&#-0&0140%T1%+-&'%$.-#)+0"#@&7#-"&.+5&+%7&%<*%&-)&-"%&@)+<;&Y'.7#+*0&.'%&'%T1#'%<;

8.  Spillways: hard v soft. The creation of spillways is crucial to minimising the addition to dam heights required in the Highgate chain. While the spillways for more 
9'%T1%+-&^))<&%/%+-0&m0.53&KMcR[&5%.'&%/%+-0j&+%%<&-)&4%&n%+*#+%%'%<o&#+&/.'#)10&7.50&.+<&6%@-&9'%%&)9&$.'*%&@$.+-03&-"%&0@#$$7.50&9)'&K3MMM>5%.'&%/%+-0&(.+&10%&-"%&
lie of the land to shift the water. Such rare events will presumably cause extensive damage on and beyond the Heath, and the loss of trees and plants on the “natural” 
spillways will be a small part of any such damage. A tree with a life expectancy of 50/100 years does not need to be protected from a 1000-year event. 

9.  Boardwalks. We are unconvinced about the merits of boardwalks around the boating pond. They can be slippery, need replacing/maintenance and will prove to 
be too narrow. Hard edges, such as those existing on the boating pond, are ideal for all users and far more durable and easy to maintain. Edges should be as close to 
water level as possible. 

10.  Trees on pond edges. !%&.'%&0-')+*$5&.*.#+0-&-"%&n-'%%&:.#+-%+.+(%o&01**%0-#)+&m@.*%&KWj&-".-&-'%%0&)+&@)+<&4.+60&4%&'%:)/%<3&)'&n:)/%<&4.(6omdj3&0)&.0&
to reduce leaf litter in the ponds. This would alter the character of the Ponds irreparably and would, we consider, be completely counter to the requirements of the 
1871 Act, if the aim is to reduce tree cover simply for ease of maintenance.

P
age 149



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

12

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Highgate Society 
(Cont.)

3 11.  Road access. \%'-)+&h.+%&.+<&\#$$2%$<&h.+%&:10-&4%&6%@-&)@%+&-)&@%<%0-'#.+&-'.92(&-"')1*")1-&01("&7)'60&.0&.'%&%/%+-1.$$5&1+<%'-.6%+;&g)-&)+$5&.'%&-"%5&
-"%&:.#+&:%.+0&)9&.((%00&9)'&G#*"*.-%&'%0#<%+-0&-)&-"%&G%.-"&m.+<&9)'&:.+5&():#+*&9'):&91'-"%'&.2%$<&9'):&-"%&%.0-j3&41-&'%0#<%+-0&)+&-"%&').<0&+%%<&-)&4%&.4$%&-)&
.((%00&-"%#'&"):%0&.-&.$$&-#:%0;&!%&"./%&:.F)'&()+(%'+0&.4)1-&-"%&01#-.4#$#-5&)9&\#$$2%$<&h.+%&m%99%(-#/%$5&.&0#+*$%&$.+%&'%0#<%+-#.$&').<j&9)'&.((%00&)9&+1:%')10&GiB0&
to the site; access must be achieved from more suitable two-way roads wherever possible. 

12.  Phasing the works.&E%<%0-'#.+&.((%00&-)&-"%&G%.-"&9'):&-"%&@)+<0&.'%.&m\#$$2%$<&h.+%j&+%%<0&-)&4%&:.#+-.#+%<&.-&.$$&-#:%0;&C-&#0&-"%'%9)'%&#:@)'-.+-&-".-&-"%&
works be phased so that only one or two pond causeways are blocked at any time. 

13.  Active water management. A fundamental aspect of the overall aims of the project is surely the active management of water levels in advance of a predicted 
0-)':3&-)&7"#("&$#--$%&.--%+-#)+&.@@%.'0&-)&"./%&4%%+&*#/%+&0)&9.';&\)'%&<%-.#$%<&()+0#<%'.-#)+&)9&-"#0&.0@%(-&)9&7.-%'&^)7&()+-')$&()1$<&"./%&.&:.F)'&#:@.(-&)+&-"%&
.:)1+-&)9&7)'60&'%T1#'%<&-)&<.:0&.+<&@)+<&4.+60;&?"%&#:@.(-&)9&01("&:%.01'%0&)+&.&KM3MMM>5%.'&^))<&7#$$&4%&$#:#-%<&41-&9)'&$%00%'3&:)'%&9'%T1%+-&%/%+-03&-"%&
implementation of improved measures to allow the controlled lowering of water levels in the day or hours before forecast heavy rainfall should go some way towards 
mitigating the negative impact of dam works. 

14.  Public consultation. We are concerned that public consultation plans are still unclear, and risk being presented in a way which will give the wider public the 
9%%$#+*&-".-&-"%5&.'%&#+&%99%(-&4%#+*&@'%0%+-%<&7#-"&.&9.#-&.(():@$#;&!%&7)1$<&1'*%&-".-&0192(#%+-&^%8#4#$#-5&4%&41#$-&#+-)&-"%&)@-#)+0&@'%0%+-%<&9)'&7#<%'&()+01$-.-#)+&-)&
be able to satisfy the public that their input can be a real one. 

Dartmouth Park 
CAAC

4 ?"%&&()+0%+010&)9&)@#+#)+&)9&-")0%&'%0@)+<#+*&-)&-"%&()+01$-.-#)+&7.0&-".-&P@-#)+&g);L3&()+(%+-'.-#+*&-"%&7)'60&.-&-"%&\)<%$&a).-#+*&@)+<&7.0&-"%&$%.0-&
undesirable.  Inevitably, there was  concern about raising the height of the dam to three metres, but it is accepted that there is scope for improving the municipal 
appearance of the pond, while tree loss would be only one tree on site, with a reduction of potential loss on the Downstream ponds.

S<<#-#)+.$$5&#-;&C0&.*'%%<&-"%&'%1+#)+&)9&7)'60&)+&-"%&Y)7+0-'%.:&@)+<0&7#$$&($%.'$5&4%&4%+%2(#.$3&7"#$%&%8(./.-#)+0&)+&-"%&7%0-&0#<%&7#$$&@')/#<%&:.-%'#.$&)+&0#-%3&
-"10&./)#<#+*&()+0-'1(-#)+&-'.92(&-"')1*"&+%#*"4)1'#+*&'%0#<%+-#.$&0-'%%-03&7"#("&#0&"#*"$5&<%0#'.4$%;

In conclusions he Report paper, though there are disadvantages, as  set out in the Report paper, such as the changes to views from the N W end and east side of the 
\aE&3&-"%&%8-%+0#)+&)9&-"%&@)+<&-)&-"%&7%0-&$)0#+*&7.-%'0#<%&.((%003&#+&.<<#-#)+&&-)&-"%&Q%#$$5&"#*"%'&<.:3&)+&4.$.+(%&-"%&.</.+-.*%0&@'%<):#+.-%;

Highgate Men’s 
Pond Association

5 \)<%$&a).-#+*&E)+<&mnaEoj&.+<&G#*"*.-%&\%+=0&E)+<&mn\Eoj&e&_)::%+-0&45&'%9%'%+(%&-)&@.*%0&#+&-"%&Q%@)'-

A.  Model Boating Pond

We reject all of options 3, 4, 5 and 6.

We are in particular opposed to the construction of the 3 metre dam on the BP for these reasons:

A& #-&#0&1+$#6%$5&-)&4%&.((%@-%<&45&-"%&*%+%'.$&:%:4%'0"#@&)9&-"%&G\ES

• it is unlikely to be accepted by the general public

• the scale of the construction introduces an increased engineering risk

• it represents “building against nature” in a way antithetical to the ideal of the Heath.

?"%&-'.92(&.+<&@%<%0-'#.+&@.-"&(1''%+-$5&"%./#$5&10%<&)+&-"%&7%0-&4.+6&)9&-"%&aE&#0&@')@)0%<&-)&4%&0#*+#2(.+-$5&'.#0%<3&:.6#+*&-"%&-'.92(&.+<&@%<%0-'#.+0&:1("&:)'%&
visible, robbing the place of its hitherto discreet tranquillity, and unsightly to those seated on the grass on the east bank.  We have real concerns that the creation 
of the proposed uniform grass bank on the west side will give the place a lido-like appearance and require the destruction of trees and vegetation and the habitat of 
shoreline animal and bird life.

!%&"./%&.001:%<&e&41-&.06&9)'&-"#0&-)&4%&()+2':%<&e&-".-&-"#0&'.#0%<&@.-"&7#$$&+)-&*)&1@&.+<&)/%'&)'&.')1+<&-"%&('%0(%+->0".@%<&7%0-7.'<&()+-#+1.-#)+&)9&-"%&'.#0%<&
BP dam.

P
age 150



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
13

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Highgate Men’s 
Pond Association 
(Cont.)

5 B.  Men’s Bathing Pond

K;&&C0&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&)+&-"%&<.:&)9&-"%&\E&-)&4%&.&".'<&0@#$$7.5&)+&7"#("&-'%%0&(.++)-&*')7d&&

R;&&C0&#-&-"%&(.0%&-".-&.&4').<%'&0@#$$7.5&)+&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&7)1$<&'%01$-&#+&.&$%00%'&'.#0%<&<.:&)+&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&7"#$%&'%-.#+#+*&-"%&%8#0-#+*&-'%%0d

!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&0%%&.&@$.+&.+<&@#(-1'%&0")7#+*&-"%&'%-1'+0&)+&-"%&%.0-&.+<&7%0-&)9&-"%&\E&<.:&.0&7%$$&.0&-"%&91$$&n4'#(6o&7.$$;&&!"5&#0&4'#(6&(")0%+d&&?)&()+(%.$&
()+('%-%d

On page 29 of the Report there is a reference to the dam slope needing to be 1:12.  We do not understand the need for this in the absence of an accessible path to 
the top of the dam.

!#$$&#-&4%&+%(%00.'5&-)&($)0%&-"%&\E&9.(#$#-5&#+&)'<%'&-)&()+0-'1(-&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&.+<c)'&'.#0%&-"%&\E&<.:d&&C9&0)3&7"5d

Q%*.'<$%00&)9&-"%&.(-1.$&7)'60&.-&-"%&\E3&#0&#-&#+-%+<%<3&#+&.+5&(#'(1:0-.+(%03&-)&10%&-"%&\E&9.(#$#-5&.0&.&%+*#+%%'#+*&():@)1+<&9)'&-"%&0-)'.*%&)9&@$.+-&)'&:.-%'#.$d

C.  Conclusion

1.  We continue to regard the application of the 1871 Act as of paramount importance in terms of preserving the natural landscape of the Heath and the freedom of 
access by the public to the swimming ponds and their adjoining facilities.

!%&0-#$$&()+0#<%'&-".-&#+0192(#%+-&-")1*"-&".0&4%%+&*#/%+&-)&-"%&()+0-'1(-#)+&)9&.&0#<%&(".++%$&7"#("3&:.6#+*&-"%&4%0-&10%&)9&-"%&+.-1'.$&()+-)1'0&)9&-"%&G%.-"3&7)1$<&
carry the excess water down the side of No. 1 and No. 2 Ponds rather than through them.  The channels could be where the existing north/south paths are (and 
these could remain in use as paths) and creation of the channels would not involve the felling of trees.  We anticipate they might be approximately 60 metres wide 
but would not need to be excavated as channels.  Rather a reinforced bund could be constructed on the pond side of the channel with the natural slope of Parliament 
G#$$&@')/#<#+*&-"%&n41+<o&)+&-"%&%.0-&0#<%;&&Y'.#+0&)+&%#-"%'&0#<%&)9&-"%&@.-"&()1$<&<%.$&7#-"&:#$<&^))<#+*;&&?"%&'%#+9)'(%<&41+<&7)1$<&@'%/%+-&-"%&7.-%'&#+&-"%&
(".++%$&9'):&^)7#+*&)/%'&.+<&#+-)&-"%&@)+<;

D+""62'.&#
Mansions and 
EGOVRA

6 ?"%&'%0#<%+-0&)9&a'))62%$<&.+<&NiPBQS&"./%&0".'%<&()+(%'+0&'%*.'<#+*&-"%&@$.++%<&G.:@0-%.<&G%.$-"&E)+<0&E')F%(-&mGGEEj&.+<&()+0%T1%+-$5&@'%0%+-&"%'%&)1'&
joint comments on the project.

In order that City of London (CoL) to meet its statutory obligation to ensure the structural integrity of the dams and so manage the risk to life and property of a 
<.:&9.#$1'%&#-&#0&#:@$%:%+-#+*&-"%&GGEE;&&C-&#0&-)&@')-%(-&-"%&'%0#<%+-0&<)7+0-'%.:3&01("&.0&a'))62%$<&.+<&NiPBQS3&-".-&-"#0&$%*#0$.-#)+&".0&4%%+&@1-&#+&@$.(%;&P1'&
)/%''#<#+*&#+-%'%0-&-"%'%9)'%&#0&-".-&7%&@')(%%<&7#-"&.+&)@-#)+&-".-&)99%'0&-"%&*'%.-%0-&@')-%(-#)+&-)&$#9%&.+<&@')@%'-5&9'):&^))<#+*&.+<&0%7%'&01'(".'*%0&<1'#+*&.$$&
return periods and that it is at least as good as the existing protection offered by the dams during these return periods.  Unfortunately based upon the information we 
have received to date it is not possible for us to determine which option if any offers this.

C+&.</.+(%&)9&-"%&I-.6%")$<%'&\%%-#+*&"%$<&.-&G#*"*.-%&g)K&E)+<&)+&KZ&S1*10-&RMKL&7%&014:#--%<&T1%0-#)+0&-".-&7%&+%%<&-)&)4-.#+&.+07%'0&-)&#+&)'<%'&9)'&10&-)&4%&
able to assess the Shortlist Options, which are now being presented.  We attach these as an appendix to these comments. We would be grateful if we could receive 
.+07%'03&-)&-"%0%&T1%0-#)+0&.0&.*'%%<;&&\.+5&)9&-"%0%&"./%&4%%+&)1-0-.+<#+*&9)'&.&/%'5&$)+*&-#:%l&7%&"./%&@'%/#)10$5&.+<&0%/%'.$&-#:%0&4%%+&@'):#0%<&.+07%'0;&&
It is unreasonable that CoL should impose a deadline on our response to the Shortlist Options Report (the Report) without providing the information they promised.  
_.+&5)1&@$%.0%&.</#0%&10&7"%+&5)1&@')@)0%&-)&*#/%&10&.+07%'0&-)&-"%0%&T1%0-#)+0d

C+&-"%&Q%@)'-&#-&#0&0@%(#2%<&-".-&.&Y%0#*+&E'#+(#@$%&#0&-)&nS/)#<&:.6#+*&<)7+0-'%.:&^))<#+*&7)'0%3&45&%+01'#+*&-"%&^)70&<#0(".'*%<&45&-"%&$.0-&@)+<&)+&%.("&(".#+&
.'%&+)&*'%.-%'&-".+&#+&-"%&%8#0-#+*&(.0%;o&&C+&-"%&S00%00:%+-&)9&Y%0#*+&]$))<&#-&0@%(#2%0&-".-&-"%&0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+&9)'&G#*"*.-%&g)K&E)+<&9.$$0&4%-7%%+&K&#+&[M&
and 1 in 100 years.  All the Options for the Highgate Chain in the Report are worked to a 1 in 50 standard of protection.  The Design Principle for the Highgate Chain 
has consequently not been met.  If the standard of protection is assessed as a range the design should meet the top of the range, 1 in 100, to satisfy the Design 
Principle.

?"%&Q%@)'-&0@%(#2%0&-".-&nh%00&0%/%'%&^))<0&"./%&.$0)&4%%+&10%<&-)&.00%00&-"%&050-%:&'%0@)+0%&-)&%+01'%&-".-&-"%&)@-#)+0&9)'&@.00#+*&-"%&E\]&<)&+)-&%8.(%'4.-%&
-"%&^)70&<)7+0-'%.:&<1'#+*&$%00%'&^))<0;o&&!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&0%%&-"%&'%01$-0&)9&-"#0&7)'6&.0&#-&:.5&*)&0):%&7.5&-)&0.-#095&10&-".-&-"%0%&)@-#)+0&<)&+)-&'%01$-&#+&
7)'0%&^))<0&.'#0#+*&#+&$)7%'&'%-1'+&@%'#)<0&-".+&.-&@'%0%+-;&&C+-1#-#/%$5&-"%&#+('%.0%<&0-)'.*%&#+&-"%&@)+<&050-%:&0")1$<&'%<1(%&-"%&@)-%+-#.$&)9&^))<#+*3&")7%/%'3&
-"%&<%0#*+&-%.:&"./%&+)-&4%%+&.4$%&-)&()+2':&-"#0&9)'&10;

p+<%'&_)::)+&h.7&_)h&".0&.+&)4$#*.-#)+&-)&%+01'%&-".-&7.-%'&#0&+)-&n<%$#4%'.-%$5&<'.#+%<o&)+-)&$)7%'&+%#*"4)1'0=&$.+<&.0&.&'%01$-&)9&n.'-#2(#.$&.$-%'.-#)+0o3&01("&.0&
0@#$$7.50;&&?"%&<%0('#@-#)+&)9&-"%&0@#$$7.5&)+&G#*"*.-%&g)K&01**%0-0&.+&%8-'%:%$5&$)+*&0@#$$7.5&-".-&():%0&)/%'&.&0-%%@&@.'-&)9&-"%&<.:&9.(%&.+<&#+-)&a'))62%$<;&?"%&
^))<7.-%'&#0&+)-&4%%+&<#'%(-%<&4%5)+<&-"%&('%0-&)9&-"%&<.:&.+<&#+&.&:.F)'&^))<&$))60&$#6%&#-&()1$<&1+<%':#+%&-"%&4.0%&)9&-"%&<.:;&&_)h&+%%<0&-)&"./%&()+0#<%'.-#)+&
9)'&")7&^))<7.-%'&#0&:.+.*%<&)/%'&#-0&$.+<&.+<&<%$#/%'%<&#+-)&.<F.(%+-&@')@%'-#%0&#+&)'<%'&-)&:%%-&#-0&)4$#*.-#)+0;&&?"%&Q%@)'-&<)%0&+)-&.<%T1.-%$5&.<<'%00&")7&-"#0&
is to be achieved.

P+&4%".$9&)9&a'))62%$<&.+<&NiPBQS

P
age 151



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

14

Source Comment

Number

Comment

D+""62'.&#
Mansions and 
EGOVRA (Cont.)

6 Appendix

Outstanding Questions Re Highgate No1 Pond

Existing pond 

K;&!".-&#0&-"%&%8#0-#+*&0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+&9)'&G#*"*.-%&g)K&E)+<&mGig)Kjd&&?"%&S00%00:%+-&)9&]$))<&Y%0#*+&0@%(#2%0&-"#0&9.$$0&4%-7%%+&[M&.+<&KMM&5%.'0;&&
Please provide this with greater accuracy.

R;&Y)%0&-"%&<%-%':#+.-#)+&)9&-"%&0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+&#+($1<%&-"%&1-#$#,.-#)+&)9&.$$&@#@%0&mP/%'^)7&E#@%&.+<&-"%&I()1'&E#@%j&$%./#+*&Gig)Kd

L;&!".-&.'%&-"%&^))<&:.+.*%:%+-&@')(%<1'%0&-".-&"./%&4%%+&10%<&-)&:.+.*%&-"%&^))<7.-%'0&)9&Gig)K&#+($1<#+*&4)-"&-"')1*"&%8#0-#+*&<'.#+.*%&050-%:0&.+<&.+5&
)-"%'&:%.+0&%;*;&01'9.(%&7.-%'d

Z;&!")&)7+0&)'&#0&'%0@)+0#4$%&9)'&%.("&@#@%&$%./#+*&Gig)K&#+($1<#+*&-"%#'&:.#+-%+.+(%d

[;&!".-&#0&-"%&%8#0-#+*&"%#*"-&)9&-"%&<.:&.4)/%&-"%&+)':.$&7.-%'&$%/%$d

V;&!".-&.'%&-"%&<#:%+0#)+03&:.8#:1:&<#0(".'*%&^)7&'.-%&.+<&/)$1:%&)9&%.("&@#@%&mP/%'^)7&.+<&I()1'&E#@%0j&-".-&$%./%0&Gig)Kd

b;&E$%.0%&@')/#<%&2*1'%0&9)'&-"%&%8#0-#+*&/)$1:%&.+<&<#0(".'*%&^)7&'.-%0&)9&7.-%'&@.00#+*&-"')1*"&-"%&)/%'^)7&@#@%&<1'#+*&Kj&+)':.$&()+<#-#)+0&m#;%;&7"%+&-"%'%&
#0+=-&.+5&'.#+j&.+<&Rj&0-)':&%/%+-0&)9&K&#+&KM3&RM3&LM&.+<&[M&.+<&.-&-"%&@)#+-&7"%+&)/%'-)@@#+*&4%*#+0d&?"#0&#0&-)&%0-.4$#0"&-"%&(1''%+-&()+<#-#)+0&9)'&():@.'#0)+&7#-"&
the expected conditions after the proposed works have been completed. 

W;&E')/#<%&<%-.#$0&)9&-"%&%8#0-#+*&-)-.$&/)$1:%3&@%.6&<#0(".'*%&^)7&'.-%3&<%@-"&)9&)/%'-)@@#+*&.+<&)/%'-)@@#+*&<1'.-#)+&#+&[M3&b[&.+<&KMM&5%.'&0-)':&%/%+-0;

Proposed Scheme

K;&E')/#<%&.&-)@)*'.@"#(.$&:.@&)9&Gig)K&#<%+-#95#+*&-"%&$)(.-#)+&<#:%+0#)+0&.+<&<%0#*+&)9&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.53&-"%&@)+<&.'%.&-".-&7)1$<&4%&#+1+<.-%<&45&.&^))<&
@'#)'&-)&7.-%'&():#+*&<)7+&-"%&0@#$$7.53&7"%'%&-"%&0@#$$7.5&7#$$&<#0(".'*%&7.-%'&.+<&-"%&%8@%(-%<&<#'%(-#)+&)9&7.-%'&^)7&)99&-"%&_#-5&)9&h)+<)+&m_)hj&@')@%'-5

R;&C0&#-&@')@)0%<&-".-&-"%'%&7#$$&4%&.+5&%.'-"7)'60&m41+<&)'&)-"%'7#0%j&-)&:.+.*%&-"%&<#'%(-#)+&.+<&0@%%<&)9&7.-%'&^)7&)+(%&#-&".0&():%&<)7+&-"%&0@#$$7.5d

L;&C0&#-&@')@)0%<&-)&(".+*%&-"%&^))<&:.+.*%:%+-&@')(%<1'%0&#+&91-1'%&.+<&#9&0)&7"5&.'%&-"%0%&(".+*%0&4%#+*&#+-')<1(%<&.+<&7".-&.'%&-"%&@')@)0%<&+%7&^))<&
:.+.*%:%+-&@')(%<1'%0&#+($1<#+*&-"')1*"&%8#0-#+*&<'.#+.*%&.+<&01'9.(%&7.-%'&050-%:0d&&C0&.+5&()+0#<%'.-#)+&4%#+*&*#/%+&-)&.&050-%:&-".-&@'%>%:@-0&@%'#)<0&)9&
%8@%(-%<&"#*"&'.#+9.$$&45&#+('%.0#+*&-"%&7.-%'&<#0(".'*%<&9'):&-"%&@)+<&#+&.</.+(%&)9&-"%&0-)':d

Z;&S-&7".-&"%#*"-&.4)/%&+)':.$&7.-%'&$%/%$&7#$$&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&4%*#+&@.00#+*&7.-%'d&

[;&!".-&.'%&-"%&@')@)0%<&@14$#(&9.(#$#-#%0&-".-&.'%&-)&4%&:.<%&./.#$.4$%&)+&Gig)Kd&&S'%&-"%'%&@$.+0&-)&#+-')<1(%&.+*$#+*&)+&-"#0&@)+<d

V;&!".-&<.:&'.#0#+*&(.+&4%&.("#%/%<&)+&-"#0&@)+<&7#-")1-&.99%(-#+*&-"%&-'%%&()/%'&)9&-"%&@)+<d

b;&?"%&Y%0#*+&E"#$)0)@"5&0-.-%0&nq-"%&7)'60&-)&-"%&@)+<0&7#$$&+)-&:.6%&-"%&^))<#+*&0#-1.-#)+&<)7+0-'%.:&7)'0%o;&&C0&-"#0&-"%&(.0%&9)'&.$$&0-)':&%/%+-0&.+<&")7&7#$$&
-"#0&4%&<%:)+0-'.-%<c/%'#2%<d

W;&C-&#0&@')@)0%<&-)&nq#:@')/%&-"%&<#0(".'*%&(.@.(#-5qo&.-&Gig)K&@)+<;&&G)7&#0&-"#0&-)&4%&.("#%/%<&.+<&7"5d&&P1'&()+(%'+&#0&-".-&01'9.(%&7.-%'&7#$$&4%&<#0(".'*%<&
sooner than is currently the case and at a faster rate.

9. Please provide us with a map of the drainage pipe system around the Heath and advise us how it is envisaged that water will drain through this system in different 
storm events.

KM;&C+&-"%&S00%00:%+-&)9&Y%0#*+&]$))<&#-&.+-#(#@.-%0&RbV3XXV&:3&-)-.$&E\]&/)$1:%&%+-%'#+*&-"%&G#*"*.-%&_".#+&.+<&-)-.$&./.#$.4$%&0-)'.*%&#+&-"%&G#*"*.-%&_".#+&)9&
42,518 m3;&&?"#0&:%.+0&-"%&G#*"*.-%&_".#+&(.+&)+$5&(1''%+-$5&0-)'%&K[r&)9&-"%&E\];&&!".-&#0&-"%&@')@)0%<&#:@.(-&)9&-"%&@')@)0%<&0("%:%&)+&-"%&0-)'.*%&)9&-"%&
E\]&#+&-"%&G#*"*.-%&_".#+&E)+<0d

KK;&!".-&#0&-"%&#:@.(-&)9&-"%&0("%:%&)+&-"%&0:.$$%'&0-)':&%/%+-0d&&?"%&#:@$#(.-#)+&#0&-".-&-"%5&7#$$&)/%'-)@&$%00&9'%T1%+-$5&.0&:)'%&0-)'.*%&%8#0-0&#+&-"%&050-%:;

KR;&!".-&#0&-"%&#:@.(-&)9&-"%&0("%:%&)+&-"%&./.#$.4$%&0-)'.*%&#+&Gig)Kd

P
age 152



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
15

Source Comment

Number

Comment

D+""62'.&#
Mansions and 
EGOVRA (Cont.)

6 KL;&&E$%.0%&@')/#<%&2*1'%0&9)'&-"%&@')@)0%<&-)-.$&/)$1:%&.+<&@%.6&<#0(".'*%&^)7&'.-%0&)9&7.-%'&@.00#+*&-"')1*"&-"%&)/%'^)7&@#@%&<1'#+*&Kj&+)':.$&()+<#-#)+0&m#;%;&
7"%+&-"%'%&#0+=-&.+5&'.#+j&.+<&Rj&0-)':&%/%+-0&)9&K&#+&KM3&RM3&LM&.+<&[M&.+<&.-&-"%&@)#+-&7"%+&)/%'-)@@#+*&4%*#+0d&!%&7.+-&-)&4%&01'%&-".-&_.:<%+&.+<&?".:%0&
!.-%'&"./%&0192(#%+-&#+9)':.-#)+&-)&(.$(1$.-%&-"%&#:@.(-&)9&-"#0&%8-'.&7.-%'&)+&-"%#'&<'.#+0&.+<&0%7%'0;&

KZ;&&E')/#<%&<%-.#$0&)9&-"%&@')@)0%<&-)-.$&/)$1:%3&@%.6&<#0(".'*%&^)7&'.-%3&<%@-"&)9&)/%'-)@@#+*&.+<&)/%'-)@@#+*&<1'.-#)+&#+&[M3&b[&.+<&KMM&5%.'&0-)':&%/%+-0;

Legal

K;&?"%&@)0#-#)+#+*&)9&-"%&0@#$$7.5&.+<&-"%&+.-1'%&)9&#-0&<#0(".'*%&)9&7.-%'&#0&.&9.(-)'&#+&<%-%':#+#+*&$#.4#$#-5&#9&-"%&7.-%'&#0&(.10%<&-)&^)7&#+&.&:)'%&()+(%+-'.-%<&9)':&
-".+&#-&+.-1'.$$5&7)1$<&.0&-"%&'%01$-&)9&.'-#2(#.$&.$-%'.-#)+0;&&E$%.0%&.</#0%&10&")7&-"#0&#0&4%#+*&.<<'%00%<d

2. Please provide us with a copy of CoL emergency action plan.

L;&E$%.0%&.</#0%&10&)9&_)h=0&$%*.$&'%0@)+0#4#$#-5&-)&'%0#<%+-0&.+<&@')@%'-#%0&)+&-"%&G%.-"&4)1+<.'5&7#-"&'%*.'<&-)&-"%&<%$#/%'5&)9&Kj&01'9.(%&7.-%'&.+<&Rj&1+<%'*')1+<c
@#@%<&7.-%';&S$0)3&@$%.0%&($.'#95&")7&-"%&_)h=0&1+<%'0-.+<#+*&)9&-"%#'&'%0@)+0#4#$#-#%0&#+&-"#0&:.--%'&"./%&(".+*%<3&#9&.-&.$$3&0#+(%&-"%&(#'(1$.-#)+&-)&-"%&!\Ii&)9&-"%&
“Position Statement on Discharge of Water (Overtopping of Ponds and Surface Water) from Hampstead Heath” on 28th November 2012.

Z;&Y)%0&-"%&@')@)0%<&0("%:%&():@$5&7#-"&-"%&'%T1#'%:%+-0&.+-#(#@.-%<&1+<%'&-"%&RMKM&S(-d&&C9&+)-&#+&7".-&7.5&<)%0&#-&+)-&():@$5d

[;&!".-&#0&-"%&%00%+(%&)9&-"%&$%*.$&<#0@1-%&4%-7%%+&G.:@0-%.<&.+<&G#*"*.-%&I)(#%-5&.+<&_)hd

Authorities

1. Please clarify what discussions have taken place with any concerned Authorities including Camden Council, Thames Water and Environment Agency.

R;&Y)%0&-"%&0("%:%&-.6%&#+-)&()+0#<%'.-#)+&-"%&E'%$#:#+.'5&]$))<&Q#06&S00%00:%+-&@'%@.'%<&45&_.:<%+&.+<&_.:<%+=0&0-1<5&)+&01'9.(%&7.-%'&^))<#+*d

Fitzroy Park 
Residents 
Association

7 Key principles:

S*'%%:%+-&-".-&:.+.*%:%+-&)9&\E]&#0&4%0-&.("#%/%<&45&:.8#:#0#+*&#+('%.0%<&0-)'.*%&m.--%+1.-#)+j&#+&-"%&:#<<$%&)9&%.("&(".#+`&'%0@%(-#/%$5&_.-("&E#-&9)'&
Hampstead and Boating Pond for Highgate and to work from this point.

]1$$5&01@@)'-&@)+<&'%0-)'.-#)+&)@-#)+0&.+<&7.-%'&T1.$#-5&#:@')/%:%+-&)@-#)+0&#+($1<#+*&^).-#+*&#0$.+<0;&S-6#+0&+%%<0&-)&*1.'<&.*.#+0-&$)0#+*&1+#T1%&9%%$&)9&%.("&@)+<&
45&'%@%.-#+*&0.:%&0)$1-#)+0&<)7+&-"%&(".#+&e&-))&*%+%'#(;

Acceptance that this is a generational scheme and, as such, it is important to give Atkins scope to explore more fully options that are not simply determined on height 
)9&41+<&.-&%.("&#+&)'<%'&-)&('%.-%&+%7&<#/%'0%&%+/#')+:%+-0&9)'&-"%&G%.-"&%*`&7#<%+#+*&)9&\)<%$&a).-#+*&45&%8(./.-#+*&7%0-&4.(6&45&[M:s;

S(-1.$&<.-.&9)'&%8@%(-%<&.--%+1.-#)+&<)7+&-"%&(".#+3&@'%0%+-%<&.0&r.*%&)9&E\]&.+<&)-"%'&K`KMMM&)'&K`[MMM&5%.'&^))<&#0&('#-#(.$&#+&F10-#95#+*&-"%0%&0#*+#2(.+-&7)'60;

If only clays are used for construction of new dams, concerns remain at the sheer mass and presence of proposed bunds in both sites: detrimental impact on visual 
amenity, diversion of pathways, removal of trees. To mitigate these impacts we suggest Atkins consider use of more hard-core materials to reduce massing with PW 
advising on alternatives to concrete.

!"%'%&.((%00&-)&7.-%'=0&%<*%&(1''%+-$5&%8#0-0&9)'&.+*$%'0&)'&("#$<'%+&-)&@$.5&0.9%$5&-"#0&.:%+#-5&0")1$<&4%&'%-.#+%<;

p0%&)9&0@#$$7.50&+%%<0&0):%&91'-"%'&($.'#2(.-#)+&.+<&")7&-"%5&7#$$&4%&%+*#+%%'%<&+%%<0&91'-"%'&($.'#2(.-#)+;

?'%%&D0%-&4.(6=&-)&'%<1(%&$%.9&$#--%'&#0&+)-&()+0#<%'%<&.@@')@'#.-%&)'&/#.4$%;

P
age 153



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

16

Source Comment

Number

Comment

Fitzroy Park 
Residents 
Association (Cont.)

7 L*'$-2$#3''&A)$6#"%#I*!-"%(#(4"+!.-(!G

Highgate Chain:

L:&'.#0#+*&)9&\aE&#0&()+0#<%'%<&-))&#+/.0#/%&9)'&$.+<0(.@%;

K:&'.#0#+*&)9&\aE&".0&-))&:1("&)9&.+&#:@.(-&<)7+0-'%.:&)+&\%+0=&a.-"#+*&E)+<&H&G#*"*.-%&g)K;

_)+0#<%'.-#)+&)9&.&0)$1-#)+&4%-7%%+&K;[:&.+<&R;[:&#+&()+F1+(-#)+&7#-"&.&7#<%+#+*&)9&\aE&.0&<%0('#4%<&.4)/%&7)1$<&4%&@'%9%'.4$%&t&P@-#)+&Z&+%.'%0-&)@-#)+;

Hampstead Chain:

R:&'.#0#+*&)9&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&E)+<&7)1$<&4%&-)&#+/.0#/%;

Preference would be 1m.

Preference would be for letterbox culvert spillways, not open spillways so long as these can be designed by Atkins to retain as many existing trees as possible. It

is accepted that loss of two plane trees at Hampstead No2 would be inevitable.

a%0-&(")#(%&)+&(1''%+-&#+9)':.-#)+&7)1$<&4%&P@-#)+&\;

Mixed Pond 
Association

8 !%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&0-'%00&-".-&-"%&\ES&9%%$0&-".-&Sgk&#+('%.0%&-)&-"%&"%#*"-&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&Y.:&7#$$&<%-'.(-&9'):&-"%&%8@%'#%+(%&)9&07#::#+*&-"%'%;&&&&g%/%'-"%$%00&
we recognise that the dam needs to be raised to some extent in order to minimise work on No. 2 Pond dam, and we agree that saving the maximum number of trees 
)+&-"#0&<.:&#0&.&"#*"&@'#)'#-5;&&&!%&-"%'%9)'%&.'%&6%%+&-".-&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&<.:&0")1$<&Pghk&aN&QSCINY&ak&K&:%-'%;&&&&?"#0&#0&0")7+&#+&P@-#)+0&\&H&g&)+&S-6#+0&
\)<%$$%<&P@-#)+0&^)7(".'-3&41-&7#-"&-"%&()::%+-&nQ%T1#'%0&.:%+<:%+-&-)&4%&9%.0#4$%o;&&&&

We ask that this feasible study should be done and reported on.

P
age 154



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
17

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jane Shallice,

Ladies Pond on 
Shortlist Options 
Report

21 Aug 2013

147 \)'%&)+&<%>0#$-#+*
• Plans which show the detailed proposals, including the materials that are to be used.

• Cross sections : 
&&&&&&&>&&&?"%&$)+*#-1<#+.$&0%(-#)+&-"')1*"&-"%&@)+<3&<.:3&:%.<)73&0-)(6&@)+<3&4).-#+*&@)+<&.+<&:%+=0&@)+<;
        -   Cross section down the middle of the access lane down to the dam and changing rooms.
        -   Cross section through our meadow, the pond and the meadow to the West.
        -   Detailed cross sections through the different conditions around the edge of the pond i.e. through the
            dam, the spillway, the West side, the North side and the East side.
• B#01.$#0.-#)+0&)9&-"%&@')@)0.$0&9'):&-"%&@.-"3&-"%&<.:3&-"%&0@#$$7.53&-"%&$#9%*1.'<0=&$))6)1-3&-"%
        changing rooms, the water, and the meadow.

Information on the scope of de-silting that can be carried out to the 
Ladies Pond will be dependent on the results of bathymetric surveys which 
are ongoing. These will allow estimates of the quantities of silt on the 
pond bed.  This information will be combined with an assessment of the 
treatment required to the silt if it is to be moved elsewhere on the Heath.

Cross sections through the changing rooms and more detailed drawings 
will be worked up during the detailed design phase. 

The architect is currently working up outline design proposals for 
consideration and will be able to provide more detail on the proposed 
changing room construction.

The environmental works are summarised in the Preferred Options report. 
The detail of these works will be developed in the next stage of design. The 
current proposals are to allow a public consultation which encompass the 
principle of minimising the impact on the Heath by focusing intervention 
#+&)+%&:.#+&.'%.&m#;%;&\)<%$&a).-#+*j;

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

148 The public have been invited to comment on this complex and detailed report, so there needs to be guidance 
on the key issues where comments are most sought.  As this document may be read as a ‘stand alone’ report 
by the public, we consider that Section 2 ‘Brief Summary’ is too condensed and does not provide a logical 
01(!-2$)!-"%#3"+#!4'#5"+6(7#*)+!-$1.)+.8#3"+#*'+("%(#54"#4),'#%"!#+')&#!4'#*+'$'&-%/#&"$19'%!(:##In particular, 
the phrase DN00%+-#.$$53&:)'%&0-)'.*%&#0&+%%<%<=&is not a logical conclusion of what goes before in this section.  Also, the 
primary objective of the project to prevent dam break is not stated, and the phrase ‘...to improve the resilience of the 
<.:0;;;;;=& is obscure to the uninformed.  An additional two or three sentences might help considerably.

?"%'%&7#$$&4%&.&0#:#$.'&0%(-#)+&01::.'#0#+*&-"%&@')4$%:&<%2+#-#)+&#+&-"%&
forthcoming Preferred Options Report, where these comments can be 
addressed.

This section of the report will include an explanation of 1) how increasing 
0-)'.*%&#+&)+%&@)+<&'%<1(%0&-"%&^)7&<#0(".'*#+*&9'):&-"%&+%8-&@)+<3&.+<&
2) how the “resilience of the dams” refers to the ability of the dams to 
7#-"0-.+<&-"%&%')0#/%&#:@.(-&)9&^))<7.-%'0&)/%'-)@@#+*&-"%&<.:&('%0-0&
.+<&^)7#+*&<)7+&-"%&<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%;&

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

149 6, 8 and 9.& !%&.'%&0):%7".-&4%:10%<&45&-"%&@$%-")'.&)9&DY%0#*+&E'#+(#@$%0=3&.+<&9%.'&-".-&-"%&*%+%'.$&@14$#(&7#$$&
receive a confused message.  We note the 4 principles on page 6, 3rd column, which are then supplemented by 2 more in 
column 4.  These are then supplemented by a further 6 on page 8, column 3, and then on page 9 there are a further 3 ‘key 
)4F%(-#/%0=;&&!%&01**%0-&-".-&#-&7)1$<&4%&"%$@91$&-)&0-.-%&)+%&($%.'&0%-&)9&.#:03&()+0#0-%+-&7#-"&<1-#%0&1+<%'&$%*#0$.-#)+;

This is noted and a clearer set of objectives, design principles and 
philosophy is set out in the Preferred Options report as suggested.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

150 We note that the design team/Dr Hughes has said that some damage can be accepted.  We also note that ICE 
D]$))<0&.+<&Q%0%'/)#'&I.9%-5=&?.4$%&K&'%()::%+<0&-".-&0@#$$7.50&9)'&_.-%*)'5&S&<.:0&4%&<%0#*+%<&9)'&K`KM3MMM3&7#-"&-"%&
'%:.#+<%'&)9&-"%&0")'-%'&<1'.-#)+&.+<&'.'%'&01'@$10&E\]&0@#$$#+*&)/%'&-"%&('%0-&if overtopping is tolerable.

!%&'%()*+#0%&-".-&E\]&0@#$$7.50&.'%&.&@'1<%+-&<%0#*+&@'#+(#@$%&-".-&7)1$<&.$0)&./)#<&#+-'10#/%&7)'60&-)&'%#+9)'(%&)1'&
existing and sensitive dams to take overtopping.  However, if PMF overtopping could be tolerated on two dams, 
we suggest this could reduce dam raising by approx 1m, being the depth of spillways below the crest.  We 
7#$$&.<<'%00&-"#0&#+&<%-.#$&7"%+&7%&'%/#%7&)@-#)+03&0@%(#2(.$$5&9)'&-"%&\)<%$&a).-#+*&@)+<3&.+<&-"%&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&@)+<;

?"%&'%9%'%+(%&-)&?.4$%&K&)9&D]$))<0&.+<&Q%0%'/)#'&I.9%-5=&#0&()''%(-&.+<&#-0&
recommendations do inform our design principles.  However, the decision 
on whether overtopping is tolerable or not depends on several factors 
including the nature of vegetation on the dam crest and downstream slope, 
.+<& -"%&<%@-"& .+<& 0@%%<&)9& ^)7&)/%'& -"%&<.:&('%0-& .+<&<)7+0-'%.:&
0$)@%;&&])'&%8.:@$%3&-"%&E.+%$&N+*#+%%'&".0&0.#<&-".-&"%&7)1$<&+)-&.((%@-&
overtopping of the dam at Hampstead No.2 pond because the plane trees 
would cause eddying and turbulence which would increase the erosion of 
the dam during overtopping.  The dams which would be more resilient to 
overtopping are those which have a uniform grassy slope with no woody 
/ bushy vegetation. This description would largely apply to the causeway 
<.:&.-&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&E)+<3&9)'&%8.:@$%3&41-&+)-&-)&-"%&<.:&.-&\)<%$&
Boating Pond, which has several large trees on the downstream slope of 
the dam itself, or most of the other dams.

Shortlist Options Report – Schedule of Questions and Answers 147 - 214  
(Note Query numbers are derived from the Log of Questions and Answers on Hampstead Heath Ponds Project)

P
age 155



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

18

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

151 9, 25, 47 Please explain, if all the PMF is routed through spillways and does not overtop the crest, why 
crest restoration is required on many dams, with possible impact on crest vegetation, as their crests will 
normally be above water level.  This query applies to Stock, Ladies, Bird, Vale and Viaduct ponds.

At Stock, Ladies, Vale of Health and Viaduct Ponds, crest restoration is 
proposed for the low spots (which tend to be in the middle of the dam) to 
bring the crest to uniform level so that the spillway can be located away 
from the middle, and also so that the weir level of the spillway can be kept 
above typical water level.  We can therefore reduce tree loss on the dam 
(by locating the spillway away from the most valuable trees) and also have 
a normally dry spillway which can be lined with grass that can blend in 
with the surroundings.

S-&a#'<&I.+(-1.'5&@)+<3&-"%&('%0-&'%0-)'.-#)+&#0&#+-%+<%<&-)&2$$&#+&$)7&0@)-0&
0)&-".-&#9&-"%'%&#0&0):%&)/%'-)@@#+*&#+&0:.$$&^))<03&-"%&'#06&)9&-"%&^)7&
()+(%+-'.-#+*&#+-)&.&+.'')7&(1-&#+&-"%&<.:&#0&'%<1(%<;&C+&$.'*%'&^))<03&
water will be backing up on both sides of Bird Sanctuary dam, so it will 
become submerged.

The crest restoration at Bird Sanctuary dam is relatively minor with only 
an 80mm increase required at the low spots, this could be achieved with 
resurfacing of the crest road without affecting the vegetation on either 
side.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

152 X3&R[3&Zb& E$%.0%&($.'#953&.0&:)0-&%8#0-#+*&<.:0&7#$$&(1''%+-$5&)/%'-)@&#+&E\]3&#9&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&<%@-"&#0&0.5&
.@@')8&K:&.+<&0):%&<.:0&"./%&('%0-&'.#0#+*c'%0-)'.-#)+&$%00&-".+&-"#03&<)%0&-"#0&:%.+&-".-&-"%0%&:)<#2%<&<.:0&7#$$&0-)'%&
$%00&7.-%'&-".+&-"%&(1''%+-&%8#0-#+*&<.:0d

Generally the crest restoration proposed for upstream dams allows 
the spillway weir level to be above the typical water level in the pond 
upstream and as close as possible to the existing ground level. However, 
this is not always possible, so to minimise raising works at these ponds, 
there is a slight reduction in storage capacity at some ponds. This is 
more than compensated for by the raising of dams (or building a new 
one) downstream, and this is why the whole chain of ponds should be 
considered as a system, where the raising of a dam in the middle of a 
chain can reduce the works required both upstream and downstream.

Y%@-"0&)9&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.50&"./%&4%%+&0")7+&)+&-"%&)@-#)+0&^)7(".'-0&
in the Preferred Options Report.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

153 KM&G#*"*.-%&(".#+&^)7(".'-`&&E$%.0%&%8@$.#+`>

!" why are spillway widths on the Boating Pond identical for options 3, 4 and 6, rather than being tailored for the 
<#99%'%+-&01'@$10&^))<0d&&S'%&-"%5&)/%'0#,%<&9)'&-"%&"#*"%'&<.:0d&&!%&+)-%&J@RKO&-".-&spillway size is a key 
consideration, as vegetation clearance will be needed,  hence we urge that these be the minimum size possible

Currently, the peak water levels in Options 3, 4 and 6 are only around 
LMM::& 4%$)7& -"%& <.:& ('%0-& $%/%$& <1'#+*& .& E\]3& 7"#("& 01**%0-0& -".-&
there is little scope for spillways to be made narrower without losing the 
freeboard required by the Panel Engineer to allow for wave surcharge.  
However, it may be possible to reduce the spillway size by adding another 
@#@%&-"')1*"&-"%&<.:;&Q%2+%:%+-0&-)&-"%&0@#$$7.5&0#,%&01("&.0&-"%0%&7#$$&
be tested using the model at the beginning of the outline design stage.  

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

154 !" \%+=0&.+<&G#*"*.-%&K&0@#$$7.50&e&7"5&.'%&-"%0%&#<%+-#(.$&9)'&.$$&)@-#)+03&#''%0@%(-#/%&)9&-"%&"%#*"-&)9&-"%&a).-#+*&
@)+<&<.:d

])'& -"%& 0")'-$#0-& )@-#)+0& '%@)'-3& 0@#$$7.5&7#<-"0& )+& -"%& $.0-& R&G#*"*.-%&
chain ponds were kept the same when modelling the Highgate chain 
)@-#)+0&0)&-".-&-"%&<%*'%%&)9&'.#0#+*&.-&%.("&@)+<&()1$<&4%&T1.+-#2%<&.+<&
compared.  This was intended to demonstrate the principle of trade-offs, 
0)&7%&()1$<&<%2+%&-"%&()+0%T1%+(%0&)9&/.'5#+*&.:)1+-0&)9&'.#0#+*&)9&-"%&
<.:&.-&\)<%$&a).-#+*&E)+<;&&

]1'-"%'& '%2+%:%+-0& 7#$$& 4%& (.''#%<& )1-& -)& #+/%0-#*.-%& @)00#4#$#-#%0& )9&
reducing spillway size.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

155 !" P@-#)+&[&0")70&.&R;M:&'.#0#+*&)+&G#*"*.-%&K3&41-&)+$5&.&K;[:&'.#0#+*&)+&-"%&\%+=0&@)+<;&&a)-"&-"%0%&'.#0#+*0&
:.5&'%T1#'%&.+&%.'-"&<.:&-)&4%&41#$-&#+0#<%&-"%&@)+<03&J@.*%&LLO3&7"#("&:.5&"./%&.&:.F)'&#:@.(-&)+&0('%%+#+*&
/%*%-.-#)+&.+<&-'%%0&)+&G#*"*.-%&K;&&_)1$<&5)1&@$%.0%&-%0-&-"#0&)@-#)+&7#-"&.&:.8&K;R[:&'.#0#+*&.-&G#*"*.-%&K&J#%;&
7#-"&.&7.$$O3&-)&<%-%':#+%&-"%&.:)1+-&)9&<.:&'.#0#+*&-"%+&+%%<%<&)+&-"%&\%+=0&@)+<&<.:d

Option 5 has now been discounted due to the impact on screening 
vegetation mentioned.

Option 6 has shown that when there is a 1.25m raising at Highgate No.1 
E)+<&<.:3&K;M:& #0& '%T1#'%<& .-&\%+=0& E)+<&<.:3&41-& )+$5& #9& -"%'%& #0& .&
'.#0#+*&)9&R;[:&.-&\)<%$&a).-#+*&E)+<;

P
age 156



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
19

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

156 9, 10, 25& !%&+)-%3&'%&D0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+=3&-".-&the return period......that causes overtopping of the last dam 
#+&-"%&%8#0-#+*&0(%+.'#)&#0&():@.'%<&7#-"&-"%&^))<&%/%+-&-".-&(.10%0&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&#+&%.("&)@-#)+&-)&0-.'-&-)&0@#$$&
water.  Y%0@#-%&:.F)'&.--%+1.-#)+&)+&%.("&(".#+3&-"%&0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+&.+<&@%.6&/%$)(#-#%0&.@@%.'&9'):&-"%&^)7(".'-0&
to remain virtually unchanged, without any improvement.  To assess this, please supply the current and proposed 
+)!'#"3#@"5#,'+(1(#!-9'#/+)*4(#;48&+"/+)*4(<#3"+#)..#"*!-"%(#3"+#!4'#A"!!"9#B#*"%&(7#!4'#>-C'&#D)!4-%/#
Pond and the Boating pond, and also for all the ponds if possible.

?"%&)@-#)+0&^)7(".'-&#+&-"%&I")'-$#0-&P@-#)+0&'%@)'-&".<&.&0$#*"-&%'')'&#+&
the boxes stating standard of protection, in that all of them should have 
stated ‘at least&K&#+&[M&5%.'&^))<=;&&mS-&-"%&-#:%3&)+$5&-"%&E\]&.+<&.&K&
#+&[M&5%.'&^))<&".<&4%%+&'1+&-"')1*"&-"%&)@-#)+0&:)<%$0j;&&I#+(%&-"%+3&
-"%&:)<%$0&9)'&P@-#)+0&L3&L.3&Z&.+<&V&m7#-"&R;[:&e&L;M:&'.#0#+*&.-&\)<%$&
a).-#+*& E)+<j& "./%& 4%%+&:)<%$$%<&7#-"& "#*"%'& '%-1'+& @%'#)<& ^))<0& #+&
)'<%'&-)&2+<&)1-&-"%&.(-1.$&'.+*%&)9&0-.+<.'<0&)9&@')-%(-#)+;&&C+&.$$&-"%0%&
Z&)@-#)+03&-"%&0@#$$7.5&&<#<&+)-&)@%'.-%&9)'&^))<0&1@&-)&.+<&#+($1<#+*&.&K&
#+&KMMM&5%.'&^))<3&#+<#(.-#+*&-".-&-"%&0-.+<.'<&)9&@')-%(-#)+&*#/%+&45&-"%&
last dam is better than existing, due to the net increase in storage in the 
pond chain.

G5<')*'.@"0& 0")7#+*& )1-^)70& 9'):& -"%& G#*"*.-%& g);K& E)+<& 9)'& -"%&
+%8-&$.'*%'&^))<0&mK`KM3MMM&5%.'&.+<&E\]j&.'%&#+($1<%<&#+&-"%&E'%9%''%<&
Options Report to allow comparison between existing scenario and one 
option for each chain.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

157 KR& G.:@0-%.<&_".#+&]$)7(".'-;&&E$%.0%&%8@$.#+`>

!" ?"%&(".'-&0")70&B.$%&@)+<&('%0-&'%0-)'.-#)+&.0&M;R:&:.83&7"%'%.0&-"%&-%8-&J@ZbO&0-.-%0&M;V:&:.8;&&E$%.0%&($.'#95
?"%&(".'-&0")70&B#.<1(-&@)+<&('%0-&'%0-)'.-#)+&.0&M;[:3&7"%'%.0&-"%&-%8-&J@ZbO&0-.-%0&M;KW:&:.8;&&E$%.0%&($.'#95

The text in the report is correct, the proposed crest restoration is 0.6m at 
Vale of Health and 0.2m (0.18 m rounded up) at Viaduct.

?"#0& ".0& 4%%+& ()''%(-%<& )+& -"%& )@-#)+0& ^)7(".'-0& @'%0%+-%<& )+& KZth 
September and appears in the Preferred Options Report.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

158 ?"%&]$)7(".'-&0")70&-"%&_.-("@#-&7#-"&-"'%%&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+0&)9&@#@%&0#,%&-"')1*"&-"%&0.:%&[;V:&"#*"&<.:;&&E$%.0%&
%8@$.#+&-"%&%99%(-&)9&-"%0%&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+0&'%&-#:#+*3&<1'.-#)+3&/%$)(#-5&.+<&-)-.$&/)$1:%&)9&^))<&7.-%'&)+&-"%&<)7+0-'%.:&
<.:0;&&!%&<)&+)-&1+<%'0-.+<&-"%&4%+%2-0&)9&-"%0%&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+0

The different size of pipes in the dam were tested after it was found in an 
earlier iteration that a 7m high dam with a 600mm pipe through it would 
only impound 5.6m of water.  Smaller pipes were then tried, to see if the 
volume of stored water could be maximized.  While it would be possible 
to calculate all the exact data requested, the key variable for comparison 
between options was the water level downstream in Hampstead No.2 
pond, when the dam was combined with differing spillway / culvert sizes 
.-&-".-&@)+<;&&?"%&6%5&4%+%2-&)9&"./#+*&0:.$$%'&@#@%0&7.0&-")1*"-&-)&4%&
that the increased stored volume would reduce water levels downstream. 
However, reducing the pipe diameter did not have as much of an impact 
)+&<)7+0-'%.:&@)+<0&.0&-"%&.:)1+-&)9&'.#0#+*&:)<%$$%<&.-&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&
Pond.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

159 !" !%&:1("&7%$():%&-"%&@'%0%+-.-#)+&)9&0)&:.+5&<#99%'%+-&)@-#)+03&41-&.'%&@1,,$%<&.-&0):%&)9&-"%&2*1'%0&@'%0%+-%<;&&
!%&7)1$<&.@@'%(#.-%&($.'#2(.-#)+;&&])'&%8.:@$%3&'%9%''#+*&-)&-"%&0@#$$7.5c(1$/%'-&)@-#)+0&9)'&G.:@0-%.<&g)&R&
pond:-

7"5&#0&P@-#)+&f&0@#$$7.5&0#*+#2(.+-$5&$.'*%'&-".+&P@-#)+&G&J7"%'%&4)-"&"./%&K;[:&'.#0#+*&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<Od

In Option H the proposed Catchpit dam had a larger pipe (600mm) than 
in Option J (400mm), and the peak water levels were different (being 
higher in Option H), which means it is not always easy to compare like for 
$#6%;&&?"%&)@-#)+0&^)7(".'-&9)'&-"%&G.:@0-%.<&(".#+&<#<&()+-.#+&.&$)-&)9&
information so it was decided not to include spillway depths and modelled 
water levels.  However, spillway depths will be shown in the Preferred 
Options Report.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

160 7"5&#0&P@-#)+&g&0@#$$7.5&.$:)0-&-"%&0.:%&0#,%&.0&P@-#)+&_&J7"#("&".0&:1("&$%00&0-)'%<&7.-%'Od ?"%'%&#0&.+&%'')'&#+&-"%&-%8-&#+&-"%&^)7(".'-3&-"%&)@%+&(".++%$&0@#$$7.5&
in Option N is actually modelled at 14.3m wide at the base, so is slightly 
wider than in the 11.9m wide spillway in Option C.  Currently these options 
have been discounted in favour of those with box culvert spillways at 
Hampstead No.2 pond.

P
age 157



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

20

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

161 7"5&.'%&-"%&(')00&0%(-#)+.$&0@#$$7.5&.'%.0&J(.$(1$.-%<&1@&-)&('%0-&$%/%$O&0#*+#2(.+-$5&*'%.-%'&-".+&-"%&(')00&0%(-#)+.$&.'%.0&
)9&-"%&(1$/%'-03&7"%+&():@.'#+*&@.#'0&9)'&-"%&0.:%&^)70d&&I@#$$7.5&.'%.0&/.'5&9'):&K;[8&-)&L;K8&$.'*%'&#+&.'%.&-".+&-"%&
%T1#/.$%+-&(1$/%'-0;&&I1'%$5&0@#$$7.5&^)7&7)1$<&4%&0:))-"%'&.+<&:)'%&%92(#%+-&-".+&(1$/%'-&^)7&7"#("&()1$<&4%&-1'41$%+-3&
7"#("&()1$<&4%&%8@%(-%<&-)&:.6%&0@#$$7.5&.'%.&$%00&-".+&(1$/%'-&.'%.d

?"%&^)7(".'-&<)%0&+)-&0")7&@%.6&7.-%'&$%/%$0&.+<&<%@-"0&c&#+/%'-&$%/%$03&
so it is not possible to make like for like comparisons on cross sectional 
.'%.0&)9&^)7;

Box culverts have been considered for Hampstead No.2 pond in order to 
reduce the width of spillways and therefore minimize tree loss.

?"%&^)7&'.-%&)/%'&0@#$$7.50&#0&@')@)'-#)+.$&-)&-"%&<'#/#+*&"%.<&'.#0%<&-)&
the power of 1.5 and linearly proportional to the width.  This means the 
"%.<&".0&.&:1("&*'%.-%'&#+^1%+(%&)+&-"%&^)7&'.-%&-".+&-"%&7#<-";&&C+&
order to minimise the width of the box culverts, a greater head is applied 
-)&*%-&-"%&^)7&-"')1*"&-"%&(1$/%'-;

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

162 7"5&#0&-"%'%&-"#0&/.'#.-#)+&#+&-"%&'.-#)&)9&0@#$$7.5&.'%.0&-)&-"%&%T1#/.$%+-&(1$/%'-&.'%.0d&&I1'%$5&-"%'%&0")1$<&4%&-"%&0.:%&
'.-#)&-"')1*")1-d&&])'&%8.:@$%3&-"%&0@#$$7.5&.'%.&#+&P@-#)+&h&#0&K;[8&-"%&.'%.&)9&-"%&%T1#/.$%+-&(1$/%'-0&#+&P@-#)+&U3&
7"%'%.0&-"%&0@#$$7.5&.'%.&#+&P@-#)+&f&#0&L;K8&-"%&.'%.&)9&-"%&(1$/%'-0&#+&P@-#)+&C;&&C0&0@#$$7.5&f&-7#(%&-"%&0#,%&+%%<%<d

?"%&^)7(".'-&<)%0&+)-&0")7&@%.6&7.-%'&$%/%$0&.+<&<%@-"0&c&#+/%'-&$%/%$03&
so it is not possible to make like for like comparisons.  The process of 
developing models was not based on ratios but on adjusting the spillway 
weir level and width of each option until the peak water level was below 
the minimum existing crest level.

I%%&.$0)&-"%&()::%+-&.4)/%&'%*.'<#+*&-"%&#+^1%+(%0&)9&"%.<&.+<&7#<-"&
)+&^)7&'.-%0;

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

163 14, 22  We note in all cases it is assumed that water levels remain as today.  We endorse this principle generally, 
as agreed at the 13 July workshop, as lowering could affect ecology and visual appearance.  However, we query if a 
single exception might be made for the Boating Pond, as lowering the water level may enable the proposed dam to 
be reduced in height.  We discuss this in detail later

This is technically feasible, but there was a general consensus within the 
feedback from the early consultations that no typical  (existing) water 
levels should be changed.  It was also discussed at the 2nd PPSG workshop 
and most stakeholders were against lowering the water level.

The recent silt testing has suggested  that there  could be up to 2.2m of 
0#$-&#+&\)<%$&a).-#+*&E)+<3&.+<&0)&-"%&'%<1(-#)+&#+&-"%&<%@-"&)9&($%.'&7.-%'&
()1$<&"./%&.&+%*.-#/%&%99%(-&)+&20"&@)@1$.-#)+0&7"#("&7)1$<&+%%<&-)&4%&
assessed by specialists.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

164 26  Viewpoint 6, 3m raising, still shows the canopy of a tree that would be removed with this option.  There 
are similar instances in several photo visualisations.  We urge for accurate imagery in the next report

This is noted, and the visualization will be corrected for the next report.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

165 31  We note that most of the advantages and disadvantages quoted for Option 3 are changes that are 
irrelevant to dam height, and apply therefore to all the options, not just to Option 3.

This point is made on page 34 of the Short Options Report and so the 
differences in advantages are given when discussing the next option.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

166 HIGHGATE CHAIN

In assessing these options, we have considered the following key principles:-

I-)'%c.--%+1.-%&.0&:1("&)9&-"%&E\]&.0&@)00#4$%&.-&-"%&a).-#+*&@)+<3&41-&:#+#:#0%&$.+<0(.@%&#:@.(-;&&This implies 
Option 3 [3.0m raising], but we have reservations, and suggestions as below.  We would like to limit the 
apparent height to approx 1.5m

!%&+)-%&-".-&-"%&#:@.(-&)+&$.+<0(.@%&.-&\)<%$&a).-#+*&E)+<&#0&0#*+#2(.+-3&
41-&#-&#0&'%$.-%<&-)&-"%&+%%<&-)&0)1'(%&2$$&:.-%'#.$&.0&($)0%&.0&@)00#4$%&-)&
-"%&@)+<3&#+&)'<%'&-)&:#+#:#0%&-"%&+%%<&9)'&#:@)'-%<&2$$&-)&4%&-'.+0@)'-%<&
through residential areas around the Heath.

?"%&:)<%$$#+*&)9&)@-#)+0&".0&0")7+&-".-&.&$)7%'&'.#0#+*&"%#*"-&.-&\)<%$&
Boating Pond would have the consequence of a larger new embankment 
at Highgate No.1 Pond, thus spreading the area of major works and the 
impact on other ponds.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

167 On Highgate 1, minimise any loss of trees and vegetation that screen the Heath from residential buildings, 
@.'-#(1$.'$5&a'))62%$<&\.+0#)+0&.+<&-"%&#+-'10#/%&7"#-%&4$)(60&)9&!%0-&G#$$&_)1'-&J0%%&()::%+-&)+&@.*%&LKO;&&E.*%&LZ&
indicates that a 0.5m or 1.25m dam raising on Highgate 1 could be accommodated with a wall on the crest which would 
have less impact on the vegetation than an earth dam.  However, this is partly contradicted by page 33, which implies that 
an earth dam might have to be built for the 1.25m dam raising, and any higher raising.  This therefore implies Option 
3, or perhaps Option 6, but we have queries.

In both the Preferred Options it is proposed that a wall be built at Highgate 
No. 1 pond.

P
age 158



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
21

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

168 1. Carry out the minimum possible work on all other dams

We detail these principles on the following review of the proposals for each pond, based on Option 3 stored volume, but 
with a Boat Pond dam raising of much less than 3m if our suggestions are incorporated:-

Highgate Chain – pond by pond review

Spillways generally

Spillways are described in outline on all the dams, dimensions are stated, but locations are rarely given.  Consequently, 
-"%&/#01.$&#:@.(-&#0&<#92(1$-&-)&.00%00;&&It is essential that we be provided urgently with simple plans showing 
!4'#."$)!-"%(7#5-!4#)%8#(-/%-2$)%!#!+''#)%&#,'/'!)!-"%#."((#&'($+-A'&:##!"%'%&D+.-1'.$=&0@#$$7.50&(.+&4%&')1-%<&
to avoid the dam slopes and toe, then we urge that no reinforcement is needed, and no trees, bushes or fences need be 
'%:)/%<&)+&-"%&')1-%;&&Y1'#+*&.&E\]&0@#$$3&-'%%03&410"%0&.+<&9%+(%0&:.5&0199%'&0):%&<.:.*%&<1'#+*&-"#0&%8-'%:%$5&'.'%&
event, but this would be acceptable, rather than unnecessarily clear and reinforce the spillway, as proposed on some dams.

We are not yet in a position to release outline design drawings, which are 
programmed to be developed in October. We can summarise the spillway 
location position as follows:

Stock Pond: at the west end of the dam, to be shown in a new visualization.
Ladies Bathing Pond: at the western half of the dam as mentioned in the 
Shortlist Option report.

\)<%$&a).-#+*&E)+<`&&.-&-"%&7%0-&.41-:%+-&)9&-"%&+%7c%8#0-#+*&<.:0;
\%+=0&a.-"#+*&E)+<`&.-&-"%&7%0-&%+<&)9&-"%&<.:3&.-&-"%&*.@&#+&-'%%0&7"%'%&
there is an existing grassy slope.

Highgate No.1 Pond:  partly on the west end of the dam, partly on the 
natural ground, as described on page 30.

In terms of the location, these can be discussed in detail with the 
topographical surveys and tree survey information.

We have tried to locate spillways in such a way as to minimize tree loss, 
using the methodologies described above, but due to the constraints of 
the existing ground levels and the locations of the most valuable trees it is 
not always possible to completely avoid the dams.

It would be necessary to clear trees from the spillways where they are on 
the dam, since damage to any trees on the dams would not be acceptable, 
0#+(%&-'%%0&#+&^)7&(.10%&"#*"&-1'41$%+(%&#::%<#.-%$5&<)7+0-'%.:&)9&-"%&
tree with deep erosion.  Trees can fall over due the downstream erosion 
.+<&$%./%&.&0#*+#2(.+-&/)#<&#+&-"%&%:4.+6:%+-&7"%'%&-"%&'))-&4.$$&".0&
been pulled out.

P
age 159



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

22

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

169

170

171

172

173

2. Stock Pond – crest restore 0.5m to 1.0m

We presume that this height of dam raising is principally to allow a spillway to be inserted into the crest without unduly 
lowering the normal water level, rather than for crest restoration.  Please clarify.

We would prefer timber facing to the proposed retaining wall which we consider more visually appropriate than brick.  
There could be planting in front as screening.  English Heritage screened the raised Wood Pond dam like this, which seems 
/#01.$$5&.((%@-.4$%;&&?"#0&'%:.'6&.$0)&.@@$#%0&-)&-"%&@')@)0%<&7.$$0&.-&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&.+<&G#*"*.-%&g)&K;

!%&+)-%&-".-&-7)&J@)+<&0#<%dO&-'%%0&:.5&4%&$)0-&#+&41#$<#+*&-"%&'%-.#+#+*&7.$$&J@.*%&LWO&.+<&T1%'5&#9&-"#0&(.+&4%&./)#<%<&
through design

As the proposed spillway is to be reinforced, with topsoil and grass cover over, could there be some bushes or shrubs on its 
<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%d

C0&#-&#+-%+<%<&-".-&-"#0&@)+<&4%&<'%<*%<&.0&@.'-&)9&-"%&7)'60&J@ZZO3&.0&-"%'%&#0&<%%@&0#$-&#+&-"#0&@)+<d

The level of crest restoration is intended to allow a new spillway and 
)/%'^)7& @#@%& -)& 4%& #+0-.$$%<& 7"#$%& 6%%@#+*& -"%& 0@#$$7.5& .4)/%& -5@#(.$&
water level.  

The preference for timber cladding has been noted and this was shown 
on the proposed walls in the new set of visualizations at the September 
14th workshop. 

We have since relocated the spillway to the west side, so the tree loss 
only applies to a small cluster of trees with trunk diameters of less than 
100mm.

S0&.&*%+%'.$&'1$%3&-"%&E.+%$&N+*#+%%'&".0&0@%(#2%<&-".-&@$.+-#+*&)9&410"%0&
or shrubs would only be acceptable on the upstream slope of any dam, 
.+<&+)-&7#-"#+&-"%&0@#$$7.5&0#+(%&-"#0&7)1$<&.99%(-&-"%&^)7;

Stock Pond is one of the highest priority ponds in terms of plans for de-
silting.  The amount of desilting on this and other ponds will depend on 
-"%&/)$1:%&)9&0#$-3&-)&4%&()+2':%<&45&4.-"5:%-'#(&01'/%503&.+<&-"%&'%01$-0&
of silt testing which is being  carried out, since these both have a bearing 
on costs.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

174 Ladies Bathing Pond – crest restore by 0.2m
Please detail the position of the spillway, with any tree loss.

At the western half of the dam as mentioned in the Shortlist Option report.  
?'%%& $)00& -)& 4%& ()+2':%<& )+(%& -"%& '%01$-0& )9& -"%& $.-%0-& -)@)*'.@"#(.$&
survey are received as they will then be combined with the tree survey.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

175 Bird Sanctuary Pond – crest restore by 0.1m
Please clarify if there will be any tree loss when carrying out the crest restoration.  If so, we query why any work needs 
-)&4%&(.''#%<&)1-;&&?"#0&<.:&#0&-"%&:)0-&')410-&)+&-"%&G%.-"3&-"%'%&#0&.&-.':.(&').<&)+&-"%&('%0-&7"#("&0#*+#2(.+-$5&7#$$&
@')-%(-&9'):&.+5&%')0#)+3&.+<&1+<%'&^))<&()+<#-#)+0&-"%&<.:&7#$$&@')4.4$5&4%&)/%'7"%$:%<&45&'#0#+*&7.-%'&#+&-"%&a).-&
pond before formation of any small gullies

No tree loss due to crest restoration work is anticipated at Bird Sanctuary 
E)+<;&&?"%&'%0-)'.-#)+&7)'6&7)1$<&4%&()+2+%<&-)&-"%&7#<-"&)9&-"%&%8#0-#+*&
road surface.

P
age 160



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
23

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

176

177

Model Boating Pond – raise dam to store equivalent volume of water of a 3.0m raising

It appears desirable to store approx 106,000 cu m or more if possible behind this dam, as in Option 3 which has 3m dam 
raising.  However, we consider that this extra height could severely impact on the landscape, and suggest that 
the raising ideally be limited to an apparent 1.5m, whilst still storing this volume of water.  We suggest that this 
might be achieved by the following three measures:-

1. F'(-/%#!4'#(*-..5)8#!"#&-($4)+/'#!4'#EGEH7HHH#8')+#@""&#"%.87#5-!4#!4'#(1+*.1(#=>?#5)!'+#A'-%/#).."5'&#
to overtop the crest.  This might reduce the raising by approx 1.1m, being the height of the spillway.  Please 
$.)+-38#)%&#$"%2+9

?"%&)$<&.+<&+%7&<.:0&7)1$<&-"%+&"./%&-)&4%&@')-%(-%<&9'):&%')0#)+&9'):&-"%&)/%'-)@@#+*&E\]3&.+<&-"%&+%%<&9)'&-"#0&
will depend on the '.-%&)9&^)7&.+<&<1'.-#)+3&hence please supply the hydrograph.  

?"%&+%7&'.#0%<&%.'-"&<.:&()1$<&"./%&.$$&0$)@%0&.+<&-"%&('%0-&%.0#$5&@')-%(-%<&7#-"&'%#+9)'(%<&*'.00&J@$.0-#(&N+6.:.-&)'&
0#:#$.'O&#+0-.$$%<&<1'#+*&()+0-'1(-#)+&.+<&-"#0&7)1$<&@'%0%+-&.&0#:#$.'&01'9.(%&-)&-".-&@')@)0%<&9)'&P@-#)+&L3&#%;&1+#9)':&
grass, with possibly a berm/path and some bushes or shrubs on the upstream face to soften the appearance.

The crest/cycle track on the existing dam is already in hard tarmac construction, but this could be re-laid in harder 
construction to ensure that it would not be eroded or undermined.  It will then form a berm on the downstream slope, 

?"%&<)7+0-'%.:&0$)@%&)9&-"%&%8#0-#+*&<.:&#+-)&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&#0&4').<$5&1+#9)':&*'.00&7#-"&0):%&0@%(#:%+&-'%%0&7"#("&
are to be retained.  If the hydrograph indicates that this downstream slope needs to be protected, then reinforced grass 
()1$<&4%&$.#<&)+&#-&.+<&.')1+<&-"%&-'%%0&7#-")1-&0#*+#2(.+-$5&.$-%'#+*&-"%&.@@%.'.+(%;&&!%&.((%@-&-".-&-"#0&:.5&+)-&@')/#<%&
the same protection as on a new dam, but suggest that it should be adequate, taking into account the fully protected crest, 
and the massive thickness of the combined existing and new dams.  There could perhaps be some surface damage but no 
structural damage, and we understand that some damage can be accepted.

Reducing the upper crest of the raising dam by 1.1m would effectively 
reduce storage capacity since the peak water levels are 0.7m above the 
0@#$$7.5& ('%0-& <1'#+*& -"%& E\]& %/%+-3& 4%(.10%& -"%& 0@#$$7.5& (.10%0& -"%&
water to back up behind it (the throttling effect).  This would represent a 
loss of storage capacity of at least 17,300m3 based on an estimate using 
-"%&01'9.(%&.'%.0&)9&a#'<&.+<&\)<%$&@)+<0&m$#6%$5& -)&4%&:)'%&0#+(%&-"%&
areas increase with height).  This loss of storage capacity would have 
consequences on the works required on downstream ponds to achieve no 
+%-&#+('%.0%&#+&^))<#+*&<)7+0-'%.:;

The Panel Engineer would not accept overtopping of the main dam due to 
the trees on the downstream slope which are to be retained.  These trees 
would cause eddying and turbulence which would increase the erosion of 
the dam during overtopping.

The kind of damage that would be accepted would be minor wear and tear 
)9&-1'9&7"#("&()1$<&4%&'%@$.(%<&.9-%'&.&^))<&%/%+-;&N')0#)+&)9&(".++%$0&
around trees, or trees being pushed over and removing the root ball from 
the dam, would not be acceptable.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

178 Lower the water level in the pond by say, 0.5m max, and hence trim further height off the raised dam.  

As stated above, we absolutely agree that water levels should remain unchanged on all other ponds, due to the adverse 
%99%(-&)+&%()$)*5&.+<&/#01.$&.0@%(-0;&&G)7%/%'3&7%&01**%0-&-".-&-"%&a).-#+*&@)+<&#0&.&0@%(#.$&(.0%;&&C-&#0&.+&.'-#2(#.$&
$))6#+*&@)+<3&)9&+)&0#*+#2(.+-&%()$)*#(.$&/.$1%;&&?)&()+0-'1(-&-"%&+%7&<.:3&7%&4%$#%/%&-".-&-"%&@)+<&:.5&"./%&-)&4%&
completely drained with areas dredged for the new dam, and the two small reed beds and other planting will not survive.  
C-&#0&.$0)&@')@)0%<&-)&(1-&4.(6&-"%&7%0-&0$)@%0&0#*+#2(.+-$5&#+-)&-"%&'#0#+*&$.+<3&-)&7#+&2$$&.+<&('%.-%&.&:)'%&+.-1'.$&%<*%
Whilst this work is being carried out, it would be extremely simple to dredge the pond deeper and lower the water level 
permanently without reducing the surface area of the pond.  We suggest this be limited to say 0.5m max.  We accept 
-".-&<#0@)0.$&)9&0#$-3&@.'-#(1$.'$5&#9&()+-.:#+.-%<3&:.5&4%&.&@')4$%:3&41-&0#*+#2(.+-&T1.+-#-#%0&:.5&"./%&-)&4%&<#0@)0%<&
anyway, even if the water level is not reduced.  The design of the dam and west slopes can easily be adjusted for a lower 
water level.  However, this could leave the untouched east and north edges higher above and slightly more remote from 
the water.  We therefore suggest that the existing east and north perimeter path could be re-constructed to the same 
"%#*"-&.4)/%&-"%&$)7%'%<&7.-%'&$%/%$&.0&+)7;&&S$-%'+.-#/%$53&-"%0%&@.-"0&()1$<&'%:.#+&.0&+)73&41-&.&+%7&0-%@@%<&7.-%'=0&
edge could be formed advanced into the pond, broadly as on page 16, but with a walkway just above water level.  Some 
marginal plants could be added if required to soften and conceal the walkway, but full access would still exist for model 
4).-0;&&!%&01**%0-&-".-&-"#0&()1$<&91'-"%'&D+.-1'.$#0%=&-"%&@)+<&.--'.(-#/%$5;&&S&0#:#$.'&01**%0-#)+&7.0&.$0)&:.<%&.-&-"%&
I-.6%")$<%'0&7)'60")@&)+&KV&f1$5&RMKL&J@Z[O;

As mentioned above, it is unlikely that other stakeholders will make this 
exception. While it is technically feasible to increase storage capacity by 
$)7%'#+*&-"%&)/%'^)7&$%/%$3&-"%'%&7)1$<&4%&0-.6%")$<%'0&7")&7)1$<&+)-&
like the visual impact of exposing 0.5m of the sheet piles for the whole 
perimeter, or the loss of access for model boaters.

Dredging the pond is unlikely to be simple considering the quantities 
involved, the costs and the amount of plant movements.  Currently the 
cost estimate only includes an allowance for 20% of the pond area to be 
dredged (to allow construction of the new bund), but increasing this to 
KMMr&7)1$<&0#*+#2(.+-$5&#+('%.0%&()0-0;&&?"%&#001%&)9&7"%'%&-)&$)(.-%&-"%&
removed silt is already associated with high risks and unknowns.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

179 The additional area of the pond, formed by excavating the west bank, may allow the raised dam to be 
trimmed further in height.  !%&.7.#-&(.$(1$.-#)+0&)+&-"#0&7#-"&#+-%'%0-&J@.*%&LKO;&&G)7%/%'3&7%&.'%&/%'5&()+(%'+%<&.-&
the possible visual impact of extending the pond width by up to 70m, which we understand may be mainly at the north 
end.  This would double the width of the pond.  We are also concerned at the proposed steepening of the west bank 
0$)@%0&9'):&K`KL&-)&K`[3&7"#("&()1$<&$))6&/%'5&.'-#2(#.$;&&!%&.'%&.$0)&()+(%'+%<&.-&.+5&-'%%&$)00&-".-&7)1$<&4%&(.10%<&45&
this widening, please clarify.  

We have modelled a variation of one of the Highgate chain Options with 
the additional storage volume achieved from the excavations above water 
$%/%$3&41-&#-&:.<%&/%'5&$#--$%&<#99%'%+(%&-)&^))<&$%/%$0&<)7+0-'%.:&m.')1+<&
RM&e&LM::j;&&?"%&@'#:.'5&'%.0)+&9)'&-"%&7#<%+#+*&#0&-"%'%9)'%&-)&@')/#<%&
material without importing large quantities through residential areas.

The current design for the west bank slope has a maximum slope of 1:8, 
where the existing slope is around 1:10.

Tree loss due to the excavation will be avoided by working around the 
trees, leaving the group of lime trees as an island, and having the widest 
excavation at the area of open grassland towards the north west.

P
age 161



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

24

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

180 ?"#0&:.F)'&7#<%+#+*&)9&-"%&@)+<&#0&+)-&'%^%(-%<&#+&-"%&@$.+><#.*'.:&)+&@.*%&ZK;&&C9&-"#0&%+$.'*%<&7#<-"&#0&@')@)0%<&:.#+$5&
to win earth for the dam construction, rather than import earth, we strongly suggest that serious consideration be given to 
the option of digging deeper into the pond, rather than making it wider.  Also, if suitable and unobtrusive locations can be 
9)1+<&9)'&4)'')7&@#-0&-)&)4-.#+&2$$&9)'&-"%&<.:3&-"%0%&:.5&@)00#4$5&4%&4.(62$$%<&7#-"&1+01#-.4$%&0)#$&.+<&0#$-&#9&@)+<0&.'%&
de-silted, rather than transport off-site.

In summary, we hope that these three measures will enable the apparent dam raising to be limited to approx. 1.5m, whilst 
still storing the same volume of water as Option 3.  Because the footprint of the dam would be reduced, we hope that both 
mature willows at the west end just north of the ancient oak could then be retained.  Please also advise if the large and 
the medium hornbeams at the west end of the causeway can be retained.

We are concerned at suggested tree loss for the proposed spillway works on the downstream slope of the existing dam 
J@RWcRXO;&&C-&#0&essential that a detailed plan be provided showing tree loss.  P29 states that a low earth bund  would train 
the J7.-%'O&^)7&.7.5&9'):&-"%&<.:&.+<&-"%'%9)'%&./)#<&-"%&+%%<&-)&$#+%J'%#+9)'(%O a wider area or cut into the ground 
to form a spillway chute.  Excellent!  However, we therefore feel that there should be no need to touch any trees on this 
spillway route, and we contest that two London planes have to be felled to form this corridor for the lower spillway.

A visualization of the pond widening has since been presented on the 14th 
September workshop and will be included in the next report.

Digging deeper into the pond is less viable because of the layer of silt in 
the pond, recently estimated to be up to 2.2m deep in places.

The dredged silt will not be suitable for use in dam construction, and 
it would take some months to dry out material obtained from the hard 
bed below the silt. This material would need to be temporarily stored on 
site which could be unsightly.  Dredging will also not provide any more 
^))<7.-%'&0-)'.*%&(.@.(#-5;&&&?"%&_#-5&)9&h)+<)+&.'%&7)'6#+*&7#-"&S-6#+0&
to identify borrow pit locations but suitable locations are limited.

None of the hornbeams on the dam would be affected. Currently the only 
-'%%&-".-&".0&4%%+&#<%+-#2%<&9)'&'%:)/.$&#0&.&7#$$)73&7"#("&#0&+)'-"&)9&-"%&
dam (between the upper and lower paths).  Some discussion using maps 
.+<&@")-)0&7)1$<&4%&+%%<%<&-)&()+2':&7"%-"%'&-"#0&7#$$)7&#0&)+%&)9&-"%&
two referred to.

A detailed plan showing tree loss can be provided in the near future once 
all the new topographical survey information is combined with the tree 
survey information and the outline designs. This is likely to be during the 
outline design phase, programmed for October / early November.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

181 Men’s Swimming Pond – raise dam 0.5m

We prefer timber facing for the proposed wall on the dam crest rather than brickwork which would be unacceptable, 
screened with marginal vegetation.

We request a plan showing the layout of the proposed spillway, and then have a joint review on site.  We are surprised at 
-"%&$.'*%&7#<-"&JR[:cZL:O;&&G)7%/%'3&#9&#-&#0&0#-%<&@.'-$5&)+&-"%&7%0-&4.+63&45&-"%&'.+*%'0=&4)-"53&7%&4%$#%/%&-".-&#-&()1$<&
follow a natural slope over shallow ground down to the next pond and no reshaping of the ground would be needed.  As 
this natural route completely avoids the dam toe, no reinforcement of the spillway is needed, except at the dam crest and 
0@#$$7.5&:#-'%0;&&S$0)3&+)&-'%%03&410"%0&)'&9%+(%0&+%%<&4%&'%:)/%<&)+&-"#0&')1-%;&&Y1'#+*&.&E\]&0@#$$3&-'%%03&410"%0&.+<&
fences may suffer some damage during this extremely rare event, but this would be acceptable, rather than unnecessarily 
clear and reinforce the spillway as proposed.  

This preference has been noted and incorporated into the updated 
visualizations shown at the 14th September workshop.
We are not yet able to issue detailed plans of spillways but may be able to 
<#0(100&-"%&)1-$#+%&06%-("%0&-)&4%&-.4$%<&.-&)9^#+%&:%%-#+*0;

])'& #+9)':.-#)+& )+& 0@#$$7.5& $)(.-#)+& @$%.0%& 0%%& -"%& E'%9%''%<& P@-#)+0&
Report.  The reinforcement of any slope would have minimal visual impact 
since whatever reinforcement material is used there will be turf and grass 
covering it.

The proposed spillway level at this pond in Option 4 is 68.91mAOD.  The 
*')1+<&$%/%$0&4%-7%%+&-"%&<.:&.+<&-"%&@.-"&'1++#+*&g!&e&IN&@.0-&-"%&
pond are up to 68.97mAOD so the natural ground is not as shallow as is 
'%T1#'%<&.+<&7)1$<&+)-&4%&.&+.-1'.$&')1-%&9)'&7.-%'&-)&^)7&<)7+&7#-")1-&
some excavation of the area.  Such an excavation would require tree loss 
7"#("&#0&)@@)0%<&45&-"%&\%+0&a.-"#+*&E)+<&S00)(#.-#)+;

P
age 162



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
25

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

182 Highgate No 1 Pond – raise dam 0.5m

We prefer timber facing for the proposed wall on the dam crest rather than brickwork which would be unacceptable.  We 
urge that this wall be hand constructed so that there is no tree loss on the crest or dam slopes which would expose West 
G#$$&_)1'-&.+<&a'))62%$<&\.+0#)+0&9'):&-"%&G%.-";&&S0&-"%&7.$$&#0&)+&-"%&('%0-&7#-"&.&0$)@#+*&1@0-'%.:&9.(%3&7%&1'*%&-".-&#-&
be concealed with vegetation and shrubs on both sides.

We are greatly surprised that the spillway is proposed to be 60m/74m long, and ask that calculations be provided to 
0140-.+-#.-%&-"#0&%8-'.)'<#+.'5&7#<-";&&?"#0&0@#$$7.5&J@LMO&would be partly on the west end of the dam and partly along the 
natural ground to the west of the dam;&&S-&-"#0&@)0#-#)+&-7)&$.'*%&-'%%0&J#+($1<#+*&.&/%'5&$.'*%&")'0%&("%0-+1-&.<F.(%+-&-)&
-"%&@.-"3O&.+<&.&0:.$$%'&$#:%&.+<&-7)&.$<%'0&7)1$<&4%&9%$$%<;&&?"%'%&#0&.$0)&.&/%-%'.+&).6&.<F.(%+-3&.4)1-&7"#("&-"%&'%@)'-&
#0&0#$%+-&J%8(%@-&9)'&:%+-#)+&)+&@.*%&LLO;

We consider this tree loss to be unacceptable, and query if fewer trees would be lost if the raised dam is continued 
round the waters edge almost to the dog swimming area.  The west bank from this point northwards would then form a 
D+.-1'.$=&0@#$$7.5&7"#("&()1$<&^))<&.(')00&-"%&@.-"&-)&-"%&$)7&$5#+*&.'%.&-)&-"%&7%0-3&.+<&-"%+&2$$&1@&4%9)'%&)/%'^)7#+*&
south through a natural depression broadly along the line of the existing footpath.  As most of this natural route, which is 
further to the west than proposed in the report, would avoid the dam toe, then little or no reinforcing may be required.  It 
:.5&.$0)&0$#*"-$5&'%<1(%&.+5&#:@.(-&)9&-"%&^))<&-)&a'))62%$<&\.+0#)+0;

We request a plan showing the layout of the proposed spillway with trees that would be lost, and a detailed level survey 
and plan of our alternative proposal above.  There should then be a joint review on site.  On these plans, please indicate 
the general direction this overtopping surface water will take after leaving the dam.

Please clarify what is intended by -  new spillway could be planted as a bioswale feature J@ZLO

This preference has been noted.

No tree loss is anticipated along the dam crest due to constructing the 
raising walls in options 3 and 6.  

Some planting of bushes / shrubs is possible on the upstream face.

The spillway width was tested in the hydraulic model so there are no 
calculations as such, although the inputs to the model (the hydrology used 
-)&(.$(1$.-%&-"%&#+^)703&.+<&-"%&<#:%+0#)+0&10%<&9)'&-"%&<%0#*+&0@#$$7.5j&
are auditable. 

?"%&0@#$$7.5&7#<-"&.+<&<%@-"&()1$<&4%&'%2+%<&.-&-"%&+%8-&<%0#*+&0-.*%&
and there may be scope for reduction.

The current spillway route avoids the veteran oak.

The natural ground described in this proposal is higher than the spillway 
level (eg in Option 4) and would require excavation.  While the ground 
appears to be lower at the path near the west end of the dam, it is close 
to the minimum existing ground level of the crest of the dam.  A copy of 
-"%&-)@)*'.@"#(.$&01'/%5&(.+&4%&0%+-&-)&-"%&GHGI&-)&.$$)7&.&'%/#%7&)9&
these levels.

The spillway location and tree loss plans will be made available at outline 
design stage (October). Topographical survey information on tree locations 
is expected soon and this will be combined with the tree survey to allow a 
more detailed assessment of tree loss.

It is suggested that there would be planting at the pond and upstream 
face of the dam near the spillway out of Highgate No.1 Pond, in order to 
screen the feature.  It may be possible to add some more planting into the 
0@#$$7.5&(".++%$&7"%+&#-&#0&0192(#%+-$5&4%5)+<&-"%&<)7+0-'%.:&-)%&)9&-"%&
<.:3&41-&-"#0&7#$$&<%@%+<&)+&-"%&0@%(#2(&.$#*+:%+-&)/%'&c&.')1+<&-"%&<.:;

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

183 Environmental Management Options [p44/45]
We note the extensive toolbox of options for pond, water quality and ecology, but feel that we cannot offer any opinions 
at this stage.  It is essential that every pond is visited and detailed discussions held on site before any options can be 
supported or discarded.

Discussions on site can be arranged.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

184 CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS – HAMPSTEAD CHAIN

(see particularly pages 11-12, 47-61)

Key Principles and Selected Options

In assessing these options, we have considered the following key principles:-

1. To minimize tree loss on Hampstead No 2 pond

2. ?)&.--%+1.-%c0-)'%&:)'%&^))<&7.-%'&-".+&@')@)0%<&#+&-"%&'%@)'-3&provided that this would reduce the tree loss 
on Hampstead No 2;&&!%&@.'-#(1$.'$5&T1%'5&#9&:)'%&0-)'.*%&#0&@)00#4$%&.-&-"%&_.-("@#-3&-"%&\#8%<&@)+<3&.+<&.-&
Hampstead No 2

3. To minimize the visual impact of the works at all ponds

Slightly more storage may be achievable at the proposed Catchpit dam 
by raising the spillway level by around 50mm (the current overtopping 
depth), or more if the pipe through the dam is reduced again from 300mm 
-)&R[M::;&?"%&)+$5&7.5&-)&0-)'%&0#*+#2(.+-$5&:)'%&-".+&-"#0&7)1$<&4%&-)&
have an automated valve or penstock system which would close the pipe 
going through the dam.  However, the City of London prefer not to rely 
on any automated / mechanical systems.  In terms of passive systems, 
.& 91'-"%'& '%2+%:%+-& ()1$<& 4%& .("#%/%<& 7#-"& .& "5<')4'.6%3& 7"#("& #0& .&
vortex shape within the pipe (with no moving parts), that can maximise 
the storage. This could be investigated at outline or detailed design stage.

P
age 163



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

26

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

185 Hampstead Chain – pond by pond review

Spillways generally

Spillways are described in outline on all the dams, dimensions are stated, but locations are rarely given.  Consequently, 
-"%&/#01.$&#:@.(-&#0&<#92(1$-&-)&.00%00;&&It is essential that we be provided urgently with simple plans showing 
!4'#."$)!-"%(7#5-!4#)%8#(-/%-2$)%!#!+''#)%&#,'/'!)!-"%#."((#&'($+-A'&:##!"%'%&D+.-1'.$=&0@#$$7.50&(.+&4%&')1-%<&
to avoid the dam slopes and toe, then we urge that no reinforcement is needed, and no trees, bushes or fences need be 
'%:)/%<&)+&-"%&')1-%;&&Y1'#+*&.&E\]&0@#$$3&-'%%03&410"%0&.+<&9%+(%0&:.5&0199%'&0):%&<.:.*%&<1'#+*&-"#0&%8-'%:%$5&'.'%&
event, but this would be acceptable, rather than unnecessarily clear and reinforce the spillway, as proposed on some dams.

])'& #+9)':.-#)+& )+& 0@#$$7.5& $)(.-#)+& @$%.0%& 0%%& -"%& E'%9%''%<& P@-#)+0&
Report.  Tree loss plans will be made available at outline design stage 
(October). Topographical survey information on tree locations is expected 
soon and this will be combined with the tree survey to allow a more 
detailed assessment of tree loss.

?"%&<.:.*%& -)& -'%%0&<1'#+*&.&^))<& #0&+)-& 0)&:1("&)9&.+& #001%&.0& -"%&
damage to dam material or spillway that might be caused by a tree 
)/%'-1'+#+*& <1'#+*& .& ^))<3& .+<& -"#0& #0& -"%& <.:.*%& -".-& 7)1$<& +)-& 4%&
acceptable.

Please also see answer to query 168.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

186 Vale of Health Pond – crest restoration 0.2m max [or 0.6m?]
It has been stated that this pond ".0&+%/%'&)/%'^)7%<&.+<&#0&0@'#+*&9%<&7#-"&.&0:.$$&(.-(":%+-&.'%.;&&?"%&#''%*1$.'&-.':.(&
crest has not been noted as of any concern.  We therefore query why crest restoration is needed, with possible impact on 
crest trees 

Please clarify if use of a pipe larger than 500mm would avoid the use of a spillway with consequent tree loss.  We would 
prefer this
Please clarify proposed spillway and pipe discharge routes re the large sequoia tree, and detail any tree loss.

The Vale of Health pond dam has been considered in the context of its place 
in a chain of ponds. If it were to fail, the stored volume released (estimated 
at 17,800m3 at crest level) would be too much for the downstream dams 
to store (even in the proposed design options), causing overtopping at the 
3 downstream dams and the associated risk of erosion and further failure.  
The return period of overtopping is estimated at between a 1 in 100 and 1 
in 1,000 years, and the risk of failure due to overtopping is therefore too 
high to be acceptable.

While the proposed 3rd& )/%'^)7&@#@%& ()1$<& +)-& 4%& $.'*%'& -".+& [MM::&
without increasing the raising of the dam crest, it is possible to model the 
effects of adding a 4th pipe in terms of a possible reduction of the open 
channel spillway size.

])'& #+9)':.-#)+& )+& 0@#$$7.5& $)(.-#)+& @$%.0%& 0%%& -"%& E'%9%''%<& P@-#)+0&
Report.

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

187 Viaduct Pond – crest restoration 0.5m [or 0.18m?]
Please clarify spillway route and tree loss

])'& #+9)':.-#)+& )+& 0@#$$7.5& $)(.-#)+& @$%.0%& 0%%& -"%& E'%9%''%<& P@-#)+0&
Report.

?"%&-'%%&$)00&(.+=-&4%&()+2':%<&1+-#$&7%&():4#+%&-"%&-)@)*'.@"#(.$&01'/%5&
information on tree locations with the tree survey.

P
age 164



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
27

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

188 Catchpit – suggest 5.8m dam

We note that a 5.6m dam is proposed because the 7.2m dam reached a max water level only 160mm higher than with the 
[;V:&<.:;&&!"5&+)-&#+('%.0%&-"%&@')@)0%<&<.:&-)&[;W:3&#+&)'<%'&-)&0-)'%&-"%&.40)$1-%&:.8#:1:&/)$1:%&)9&^))<d&&?"%&
]$)7(".'-&J@KRO&#+<#(.-%0&-"%&/.$1%&)9&:)'%&0-)'.*%3&7"%+&)+%&():@.'%0&-"%&Z;Z:&.+<&[;V:&<.:0;

!%&"./%&()+0#<%'%<&-"%&-7)&@)0#-#)+0&01**%0-%<&9)'&-"%&<.:&e&.j&.&0#+1)10&(1'/%&)+&-"%&I&0#<%&)9&-"%&/.$$%53&)'&4j&
moving the dam c.25m back upstream.  Before giving a view, it is essential that detailed plans of these options be 
provided, showing trees that would be lost.  We would then like again to view these options on site, as option b) was 
not considered at the last site visit.

We initially favour Option a), but only if it can be designed not to endanger the two hybrid black poplars and 
hornbeams.&&?"#0&)@-#)+&7)1$<&")$<&:)'%&^))<&7.-%'&-".+&)@-#)+&4j;&

If Option b) is constructed, we presume the oak that would be lost is just inside the Catchpit fence.  However, it is 
%00%+-#.$&-".-&.&:.-1'%&).6&.-&-"%&-)@&)9&-"%&7%0-&0$)@%&+%.'&-"%&_.-("@#-&4%&'%-.#+%<3&.0&-"#0&0")1$<&0#*+#2(.+-$5&0('%%+&
-"%&+%7&7)'60&9'):&E'5)'0&]#%$<;&&\.+5&7#$$)70&)+&-"%&_.-("@#-&4)1+<.'5&)+&-"%&%.0-&0#<%&:.5&4%&$)0-3&>&-"%'%&0")1$<&4%&
replacement planting on the dam toe.  

We note on p49 that an advantage of Option b) appears to be that the Catchpit infrastructure could be rebuilt and 
improved, with potential for creation of a wetland habitat upstream.  If this is desirable, we suggest that it could be carried 
out irrespective of the position of the new dam

Option b) on the north side will store less water than option a).  Please re-calculate storage volumes, and indicate what 
adjustments should be made to this and other dam heights to compensate.

S0&-"#0&<.:&#0&.&D<'5=&<.:3&7%&@'%01:%&-".-&0"'140&.+<&410"%0&(.+&4%&@$.+-%<&)+&-"%&0$)@%0;&&E$%.0%&()+2':;&&C9&-"%&
slopes are in woodland, then we would want bushes for screening.  If the slope faces grassland, then we wish to review on 
site

It is possible to increase the height of the dam to retain the extra 40mm 
which is the current modelled height of overtopping over the spillway.

?"%&@)00#4$%&<.:&@)0#-#)+0&7#$$&4%&'%<'.7+&)+&-"%&2+.$#0%<&-)@)*'.@"#(.$&
survey and tree survey plan when this is available and a more detailed 
assessment of tree loss will then be possible.

!%&7#$$&0))+&4%&.4$%&-)&()+2':&#9&.&0#+1)10&')1-%&./)#<#+*&-"%0%&@.'-#(1$.'&
trees is possible. If not, the position of the dam further upstream (over 
the current location of the catchpit) will be modelled. However, it is not 
.+-#(#@.-%<& -".-& -"%& '%<1(-#)+& #+& 0-)'.*%&(.@.(#-5&7#$$&4%& 0#*+#2(.+-3& 0)&
the tree loss and quantities are likely to be the determining criteria when 
deciding on the exact dam location.

Some replacement planting will be possible on the upstream toe of the 
dam, away from the central core.

This point is noted, although there may be cost considerations if the 
catchpit is removed while being outside of a dam footprint.

We will check the impact on storage volumes at outline design stage, 
although it is not thought that the impact of moving the dam upstream 
will be great.

The Panel Engineer has advised that some planting is allowable on the 
lower part of the upstream slope of the dam, in the form of bushes and 
shrubs with gaps between to allow inspection of the surface condition. 
Both slopes would face woodland.

P
age 165



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

28

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

189 Mixed Bathing Pond
Options K, I and M indicate that two plane trees may be lost

"%#M)9*(!')&#B#="%&#&)9:##K3#!4-(#."((#$"1.&#A'#+'&1$'&#!"#"%.8#"%'#!+''#A8#-%$+')(-%/#!4'#@""&#(!"+)/'#)!#
the Mixed Pond more than proposed, then we would support this option.&&?"#0&0")'-&<.:&#0&.$'%.<5&.+&.'-#2(#.$&
$))6#+*&(.10%7.5&7#-"&0-%%@&<%0(%+-0&)+-)&#-&.-&4)-"&%+<03&.+<&'.#0#+*&#-&0#*+#2(.+-$5&0")1$<&4%&0#:@$%;&&G)7%/%'3&-"%&6%5&
issues to consider include:-

!" pedestrians on the causeway should still be able to view the water on this pond and Hampstead No 2 pond at the 
same time, which implies raising the crest road to enable one to look north over the crest of the new dam which 
7)1$<&4%&41#$-&7#-"#+&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<3&0#:#$.'$5&-)&-"%&@')@)0%<&a).-&E)+<&<.:

!" $)00&)9&-"%&*$#:@0%&)9&7.-%'&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&7"%+&/#%7%<&9'):&G.:@0-%.<&g)&R&E)+<&(.10%7.5;&&G)7%/%'3&-"#0&
glimpse will be lost if the dam is raised less than 1/2m, so a greater raising would not affect this aspect.

!" The effect of the raised dam when viewed from the swimming enclosure, although we presume it could have some 
0"'1403&.+<&.&7#$<^)7%'&0%%<&:#8;&&!%&+)-%&9'):&-"%&]$)7(".'-&J@KRO&-".-&K;[:&'.#0#+*&#0&01**%0-%<&7#-")1-&
T1.$#2(.-#)+3&41-&.&R;M:&'.#0#+*&#0&not preferred by some stakeholders.  

Ultimately, the amount the dam is raised may be a balance between saving one plane trees on Hampstead No 2 and the 
feelings of the swimmers re a raised dam to the south.  To make this decision, we need information on how more water 
0-)'.*%&.-&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&:#*"-&#+^1%+(%&$)00&)9&@$.+%&-'%%0&)+&g)&R&<.:;

G)7%/%'3&.001:#+*&-"%&0@#$$7.5&#0&<%0#*+%<&9)'&E\]&J.0&)+&-"%&G#*"*.-%&(".#+O3&-"%+&#9&-"%&0@#$$7.5&#0&'%><%0#*+%<&-)&
<#0(".'*%&-"%&K`KM3MMM&5%.'&^))<&)+$53&7#-"&-"%&01'@$10&E\]&7.-%'&4%#+*&.$$)7%<&-)&)/%'-)@&-"%&('%0-3&-"#0&:#*"-&'%<1(%&
the raising by approx 1m, being the height of the spillway.  Please refer to our comments re the Boating Pond, clarify and 
()+2':;&&

If this option is selected, then the whole dam may have to be reinforced to take overtopping.  This should be very simple, 
as the slopes are short, and the existing downstream slope is already uniform grass and has no trees along its critical 
$%+*-";&&S$0)3&-"#0&<.:&#0&-"%&0%()+<&:)0-&')410-&<.:&)+&-"%&G%.-"&J.9-%'&-"%&a#'<&I.+(-1.'5&<.:O;&&?"#0&)@-#)+&:.5&
therefore enable more water to be stored without further raising the dam

!#$$&-"%&@)+<&4%&<'%<*%<3&.0&#-&#0&/%'5&0".$$)73&@.'-#(1$.'$5&.$)+*&-"%&7")$%&)9&-"%&7%0-&4.+6d

C+&.+5&()+2*1'.-#)+&)9&.&R:&'.#0#+*3& -"%&(.10%7.5&').<&01'9.(%&7)1$<&
be raised, so that pedestrians will have a clear view of the ponds on both 
sides.

This is noted. 

This appears to be the key issue for many stakeholders and we are looking 
at different designs for raising the dam 2m, eg with a 1m high wall above 
1m of earth embankment above the existing causeway level.  We are 
aiming to include some cross section sketches of these options in the next 
report.

?"%&)@-#)+0&^)7&(".'-&(.+&4%&.:%+<%<&-)&0-.-%&-".-&R&-'%%0&.'%&%8@%(-%<&
-)&4%&$)0-&.-&G.:@0-%.<&g);R&#+&P@-#)+&\3&&41-&K&@$.+%&-'%%&7)1$<&4%&$)0-&
in Option P, the new option introduced at the 14th September workshop.

?"%'%&#0&0()@%&-)&7#<%+&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&.-&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&E)+<3&7"#("&
may allow the upper raised crest either side to be lowered. However, the 
spillway crest level is currently only 300mm below the upper crest level, 
so the net reduction in the upper raised section could only be between 0 
and 300mm.

Agreed that most of the downstream slope could be reinforced, except for 
the two mature trees at the west end (on the dam itself) and the large 
veteran oak at the east end which would be affected.

There are discussions about the possibility of dredging the upstream end. 
The pond is one of the highest priority ponds for de-silting.

P
age 166



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
29

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

190 Hampstead No 2 Pond

1. Options K, I and M indicate that two plane trees may be lost on this dam.  If this loss could be reduced to 
"%.8#"%'#!+''##A8#-%$+')(-%/#!4'#@""&#(!"+)/'#)!#!4-(#*"%&7#!4'%#5'#5"1.&#(1**"+!#!4-(#"*!-"%7#A1!#)(#)#
last resort only if necessary, after our other suggestions have been adopted.  

!%&+)-%&-".-&G.5()(6&@')@)0%<&-)&'.#0%&-"%&('%0-&45&K;M:3&.+<&_)$/#+&.+<&\)**'#<*%3&h.+<0(.@%&S'("#-%(-03&01**%0-%<&
in Nov 2010 that one could '%@$.(%&-"%&%8#0-#+*&9%+(%&J@)0-0&XMM::&"#*"O&7#-"&.&41--'%00%<&7.$$&K:&"#*";&&?"#0&7#$$&
raise the level of the dam with minimum impact on tree roots. &S((%00&()1$<&4%&@')/#<%<&-)&-"%&20"%':%+=0&@.-"&.-&-"%&
7.-%'0&%<*%;&&?"#0&)@-#)+&:#*"-&(.10%&^))<&7.-%'&-)&%+-%'&-"%&$)7%0-&@.'-&)9&-"%&*.'<%+0&)9&0):%&")10%0&#+&I)1-"&
G#$$&E.'63&41-&#9&0)3&-"#0&7)1$<&4%&4'#%^5&<1'#+*&%8(%@-#)+.$$5&'.'%&%8-'%:%&^))<&%/%+-03&.+<&-"%&")10%0&0")1$<&+)-&4%&
affected.  This suggestion would require very careful landscaping so as not to be intrusive when viewed from the north.  
The path may have to be raised, and the wall may need to be screened with vegetation on the north side.  In order to 
.00%00&-"#0&)@-#)+3&@$%.0%&@')/#<%&<%-.#$0&)+&7"%-"%'&0-)'.*%&.-&-"#0&@)+<&7)1$<&4%&4%+%2(#.$;&&

2. We have considered the options of spillways versus culverts.  Please provide details of your investigation of the 
possibility of splitting up the spillways to run between the trees.  However, we initially favour culverts, to be sited as far 
west as possible.

3. k)1'&B#%7&E)#+-&L&J@.*%&[RO&0")70&-7)&-'%%0&7)1$<&4%&$)0-;&&C9&-"%&-'%%&)+&-"%&%.0-&#0&'%:)/%<3&-"%+&-"%&Q)5.$&]'%%&
G)0@#-.$&7#$$&4%():%&/#0#4$%&-"')1*"&-"%&*.@&7"%+&/#%7%<&9'):&-"%&7%0-&%+<&)9&-"%&\#8%<&E)+<&(.10%7.53&:1("&
further west than View Point 4 which is from the east end of the causeway.  However, if only the tree on the west 
is removed, then the hospital will not be visible as the gap will be screened by trees overhanging the west bank of 
Hampstead No 2 pond.  We therefore urge that only the west tree be removed.

4. We therefore query if the wide but shallow box culvert could be constructed with a taper in plan to form a narrow waist 
but deeper section as it passes between the trees so that only the west tree need be removed.

5. !%&.$0)&")@%&-".-&:)'%&0-)'.*%&.-&-"%&_.-("@#-3&\#8%<&E)+<&.+<&G.:@0-%.<&g)&R&@)+<3&7"%+&():4#+%<3&:#*"-&'%01$-&
in the reduction of the number of 3m wide culvert to two, which presumably will have a width of 6.5m.  If so, we 
suggest that only one plane need be lost, as they are at 8m centres

6. If two trees will still be lost with shallow culverts, we query if a letterbox drop culvert, with a low level thrust bored or 
tunnelled culvert could be constructed below the tree roots, to save one or both of the trees proposed for felling with 
shallow culverts

7. !%&+)-%&01**%0-#)+&9)'&.+&#0$.+<&J@[WO;&&!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&:%%-&)+&0#-%&-)&<#0(100&<%-.#$0&.+<&@.'-#(1$.'$5&-"%&0#,%&)9&
any proposals

A new option, Option P, has been introduced to investigate whether a 
small amount of raising at Hampstead No.2 can reduce the width of the 
box culvert spillway  in order to reduce the plane tree loss down to 1 
m7"%+&():4#+%<&7#-"&.&R:&'.#0#+*&.-&\#8%<&a.-"#+*&E)+<j;&&?"%&<.:&('%0-&
could be raised by 0.5m by a short wall situated above the sheet piles on 
the upstream face. The top of this wall is below the highest part of the 
dam at the eastern abutment, but we will check that the threshold levels 
of the houses to the east are not below this level. 

?"%&:)<%$$#+*&)9&-"%&)@-#)+&#+<#(.-%<&-".-&-"%&E\]&@%.6&7.-%'&$%/%$0&7%'%&
below the raised crest wall level, so this option is now on the shortlist.

Option P has been presented at the 14th September workshop and will be 
described further in the next report.

The open channel spillways were modelled extensively, but they were 
either too wide (if trees are cleared) or would spread the risk of damage 
to more trees even if none are felled, by overloading the structural roots 
with soil or reinforcement materials.
Agreed that the ideal location of the culvert spillway would be at the west 
end of the dam.

Agreed that if 1 tree should be removed then the western tree would be 
the better one.

?"%& +.'')7%0-& @)#+-& #+& -"%& (1$/%'-& 7)1$<& ()+0-'.#+& -"%& ^)7& 0)& 7)1$<&
cause water to back up more upstream in the pond. At outline design 
stage we will look at more ways to reduce the culvert width, including the 
maximizing of storage at Catchpit dam as described above.

This scenario has been modelled as the new Option P, which has been 
found to work with a 5m wide x 400mm high box culvert.

The Panel Engineer has expressed concerns that a thrust bored culvert 
()1$<& (.10%& <.:.*%& -)& -"%& <.:& 45& ('%.-#+*& @'%9%'%+-#.$& & ^)7& @.-"0&
around the outside of the tunnel.  The dam crest level is around 500mm 
above typical water level so any pipe would be small and would have to 
drop very sharply to get below the tree roots.  

A site meeting can be arranged.

P
age 167



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

30

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

191 Hampstead No 1 Pond

!%&@'%01:%&-"%&)1-^)7&7#$$&4%&0#-%<&.-&-"%&%8-'%:%&%.0-&%+<&)9&-"%&<.:;&&C9&0)3&-"%+&-"#0&0")1$<&4%&()+(%.$%<&9'):&
the footpath on the south by the belt of trees and shrubs at the dam toe, which widens out at the east end.  We would 
therefore prefer a spillway which should be less intrusive when viewed from upstream.  However, we suggest that this 
should be made as narrow as possible, and query if the side slopes could be made steeper, as access to the crest is private

!%&+)-%&01**%0-#)+&9)'&.+&#0$.+<&J@[XO;&&!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&:%%-&)+&0#-%&-)&<#0(100&<%-.#$0&.+<&@.'-#(1$.'$5&-"%&0#,%&)9&.+5&
proposals.

Environmental Management Options [p60/61]

We note the extensive toolbox of options for pond, water quality and ecology, but feel that we cannot offer any opinions 
at this stage.  It is essential that every pond is visited and detailed discussions held on site before any options can be 
supported or discarded.

This is correct.  The preferred option at Hampstead No.1 pond is a narrow 
box culvert which we believe could be screened by locating it at the east 
end of the dam.

A site meeting with our environmental and dam engineers can be arranged.

Michael 
Hammerson, 
Highgate Society

on Shortlist Options 
Report

26 Aug 2013

192  Western “roadway”;&?"%&@.-"7.5c').<&.$)+*&-"%&7%0-%'+&0#<%&)9&-"%&4).-#+*&@)+<&#0&)+%&)9&-"%&G%.-"=0&:.F)'&
-")')1*"9.'%03&9)'&@%)@$%&.+<&G%.-"&/%"#($%0;&C-&#0&9.'&9'):&($%.'&")7&#-&7#$$&4%&'%()+2*1'%<&.+<&7".-&7#$$&4%&#-0&
subsequent relationship with any new edge to the pond. Drawings are required.

Visualisations were presented at the Stakeholder Workshop on the 14th 
September for consideration.P

age 168



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
31

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate Men’s 
Pond Association 
on Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

!%&"./%&.001:%<&e&41-&.06&9)'&-"#0&-)&4%&()+2':%<&e&-".-&-"#0&'.#0%<&@.-"&7#$$&+)-&*)&1@&.+<&)/%'&)'&.')1+<&-"%&('%0(%+->
shaped westward continuation of the raised BP dam.

Men’s Bathing Pond
1. C0&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&)+&-"%&<.:&)9&-"%&\E&-)&4%&.&".'<&0@#$$7.5&)+&7"#("&-'%%0&(.++)-&*')7d&&

2. C0&#-&-"%&(.0%&-".-&.&4').<%'&0@#$$7.5&)+&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&7)1$<&'%01$-&#+&.&$%00%'&'.#0%<&<.:&)+&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&
7"#$%&'%-.#+#+*&-"%&%8#0-#+*&-'%%0d

!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&0%%&.&@$.+&.+<&@#(-1'%&0")7#+*&-"%&'%-1'+0&)+&-"%&%.0-&.+<&7%0-&)9&-"%&\E&<.:&.0&7%$$&.0&-"%&91$$&n4'#(6o&
7.$$;&&!"5&#0&4'#(6&(")0%+d&&?)&()+(%.$&()+('%-%d

On page 29 of the Report there is a reference to the dam slope needing to be 1:12.  We do not understand the need for 
this in the absence of an accessible path to the top of the dam.

!#$$&#-&4%&+%(%00.'5&-)&($)0%&-"%&\E&9.(#$#-5&#+&)'<%'&-)&()+0-'1(-&-"%&@')@)0%<&0@#$$7.5&.+<c)'&'.#0%&-"%&\E&<.:d&&C9&0)3&
7"5d

Q%*.'<$%00&)9&-"%&.(-1.$&7)'60&.-&-"%&\E3&#0&#-&#+-%+<%<3&#+&.+5&(#'(1:0-.+(%03&-)&10%&-"%&\E&9.(#$#-5&.0&.+&%+*#+%%'#+*&
():@)1+<&9)'&-"%&0-)'.*%&)9&@$.+-&)'&:.-%'#.$d

!%&0-#$$&()+0#<%'&-".-&#+0192(#%+-&-")1*"-&".0&4%%+&*#/%+&-)&-"%&()+0-'1(-#)+&)9&.&0#<%&(".++%$&7"#("3&:.6#+*&-"%&4%0-&10%&
of the natural contours of the Heath, would carry the excess water down the side of No. 1 and No. 2 Ponds rather 
than through them.  The channels could be where the existing north/south paths are (and these could remain in 
use as paths) and creation of the channels would not involve the felling of trees.  We anticipate they might be 
approximately 60 metres wide but would not need to be excavated as channels.  Rather a reinforced bund could be 
constructed on the pond side of the channel with the natural slope of Parliament Hill providing the “bund” on the 
%.0-&0#<%;&&Y'.#+0&)+&%#-"%'&0#<%&)9&-"%&@.-"&()1$<&<%.$&7#-"&:#$<&^))<#+*;&&?"%&'%#+9)'(%<&41+<&7)1$<&@'%/%+-&-"%&
7.-%'&#+&-"%&(".++%$&9'):&^)7#+*&)/%'&.+<&#+-)&-"%&@)+<;

Q%>')1-%<&@.-"&')1-%0&"./%&+)-&5%-&4%%+&()+2':%<&.+<&(.+&4%&
discussed as part of the ongoing non-statutory consultation.

The spillway will not be a hard surface but lined with topsoil and grass. 
Some planting can be considered for the parts of the spillway which are 
beyond the downstream toe of the dams, but trees will not be planted 
on spillways generally.

No, it is the other way round. The lesser the raising, the wider the 
spillway would have to be, because increasing storage capacity reduces 
-"%&)1-^)7&-)&4%&')1-%<&-"')1*"&.&0@#$$7.5&.+<&0)&-"%&0@#$$7.5&(.+&4%&
reduced.

?"%&<%-.#$0&)9&-"%&'%-1'+0&)9&-"%&'.#0#+*&7.$$&)+&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&<.:&
will be developed in the outline design phase.  The cladding of the wall 
would be to conceal a concrete core, but can be any material eg timber, 
subject to agreement with the City of London and stakeholders. 

The 1:12 slope would be for the side slopes of the spillway along the 
crest line of the dam.  There is a path on the crest, but not a formalised 
one, so it may be possible to justify a steeper slope.

?"%&@')@)0%<&7)'60&-)&-"%&<.:&.-&-"%&\%+=0&E)+<&7)1$<&+)-&'%T1#'%&
lowering of the water level, so it may be possible to keep part or all of 
-"%&@)+<&)@%+&<1'#+*&7)'603&41-&-"#0&7#$$&4%&()+2':%<&)+(%&()+0-'1(-#)+&
phasing is planned by the appointed constructors.

This has not been planned, with other locations elsewhere on the Heath 
being considered for site compounds.  

The proposal of a dry diversion channel and reinforced bund has been 
considered in detail in the Preferred Options Report.

Rob Mitchell,

EGOVRA and 
D+""62'.&#"%#
Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

201 ?"%&Q%@)'-&0@%(#2%0&-".-&nh%00&0%/%'%&^))<0&"./%&.$0)&4%%+&10%<&-)&.00%00&-"%&050-%:&'%0@)+0%&-)&%+01'%&-".-&-"%&)@-#)+0&
9)'&@.00#+*&-"%&E\]&<)&+)-&%8.(%'4.-%&-"%&^)70&<)7+0-'%.:&<1'#+*&$%00%'&^))<0;o&&!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&0%%&-"%&'%01$-0&)9&-"#0&
7)'6&.0&#-&:.5&*)&0):%&7.5&-)&0.-#095&10&-".-&-"%0%&)@-#)+0&<)&+)-&'%01$-&#+&7)'0%&^))<0&.'#0#+*&#+&$)7%'&'%-1'+&@%'#)<0&
-".+&.-&@'%0%+-;&&C+-1#-#/%$5&-"%&#+('%.0%<&0-)'.*%&#+&-"%&@)+<&050-%:&0")1$<&'%<1(%&-"%&@)-%+-#.$&)9&^))<#+*3&")7%/%'3&-"%&
<%0#*+&-%.:&"./%&+)-&4%%+&.4$%&-)&()+2':&-"#0&9)'&10;

The standard of protection would be increased on Highgate Chain to 
.-&$%.0-&.&K`K3MMM&5%.'&^))<&%/%+-&m4)-"&@'%9%''%<&)@-#)+0j;&&P@-#)+0&
for the Hampstead Chain either maintain the standard of protection 
.-&:#+#:1:&K`K3MMM&5%.'&%/%+-&mP@-#)+&\j&)'&#+('%.0%&#-&-)&.-&$%.0-&
1:10,000 year (Option P).

P
age 169



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

32

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Fitzroy Park RA 202 S(-1.$&<.-.&9)'&%8@%(-%<&.--%+1.-#)+&<)7+&-"%&(".#+3&@'%0%+-%<&.0&r.*%&)9&E\]3&.+<&)-"%'&K`KMMM&)'&K`[MMM&5%.'&^))<03&#0&
('#-#(.$&#+&F10-#95#+*&-"%0%&0#*+#2(.+-&7)'60;

Hydrographs for Highgate No.1 Pond have been included in the Preferred 
Options Report to illustrate this attenuation.  These hydrographs show 
-"%&<#99%'%+(%&4%-7%%+&-"%&%8#0-#+*&@%.6&)1-^)70&9'):&-"%&$.0-&@)+<&
.+<&-"%&)1-^)70&9'):&-"%&$.0-&@)+<&0@#$$7.5&#+&)+%&)9&-"%&@'%9%''%<&
)@-#)+0&mP@-#)+&Zj;&&?"#0&)@-#)+&7)1$<&.("#%/%&.&'%<1(-#)+&#+&)1-^)70&
#+&.&K`KM3MMM&5%.'&^))<&.+<&.&E\]&^))<;&&&S$$&)9&-"%&^))<7.-%'&#+&.&
K`K3MMM&5%.'&^))<&#0&.--%+1.-%<&m)'&0-)'%<j&7#-"#+&-"%&@)+<&050-%:&#+&
Options 4 and 6, so the spillway would not operate.  The 1:5,000 year 
^))<&".0&+)-&4%%+&(.$(1$.-%<;

Information on the reduction in volumes being discharged from the last 
@)+<&m#+&-"%&K`KM3MMM&5%.'&.+<&E\]&%/%+-0j&7#$$&9)$$)7&0%@.'.-%$5;

Prem Holdaway 203

204

205

206

g)7"%'%&#0&-"%&(1''%+-&)1-^)7&)9&4)-"&+1:4%'&)+%&@)+<0&T1)-%<;
Each pond needs to be quoted individually.

g)7"%'%&#0&-"%&:.8#:1:&)1-^)7&)9&4)-"&+1:4%'&)+%&@)+<0&T1)-%<;&S*.#+&%.("&@)+<&+%%<0&-)&4%&T1)-%<&#+<#/#<1.$$5;

All options so far seem to be only designed for storing water.

!".-&".@@%+0&#9&-"%'%&#0&.+)-"%'&K&#+&KM3MMM&5%.'&0-)':3&-"%&<.5&.9-%';&!"%'%&#0&-".-&7.-%'&*)#+*&-)&*)d

!".-&.'%&-"%&)@-#)+0&9)'&<%0#*+#+*&-"%&)1-^)7&)9&%.("&@)+<&-)&#-0&%/%+-1.$&-.'*%-;&?"%&Q#/%'&?".:%0;&I)&-".-&+)&.<<#-#)+.$&
water is stored.

?"%&(.@.(#-5&)9& -"%&%8#0-#+*&M;ZV:&<#.:%-%'&)/%'^)7&@#@%&.-&G#*"*.-%&
No.1 Pond has been calculated at 0.9m3c0;& &?"%&)1-^)7& #+&-"%&%8#0-#+*&
scenario peaks at over 17m3/s (in a 1:10,000 year event) and 38m3/s in a 
E\]&%/%+-3&7"#("&:%.+0&-".-&-"%&)/%'^)7&@#@%&7)1$<&4%&#+0192(#%+-&.+<&
^))<7.-%'&7)1$<&4%&4.(6&1@&.+<&^)7&)/%'&-"%&<.:;

At Hampstead No.1 Pond, the capacity of the existing 0.31m diameter 
)/%'^)7&@#@%&.-&G.:@0-%.<&g);K&E)+<&#0&M;ZW:3c0;&&?"%&E\]&%/%+-&)1-^)7&
is around 8m3/s which again means that the dam would be overtopped.

?"%&.4)/%&)/%'^)7&(.@.(#-#%0&.'%&%99%(-#/%$5&-"%&:.8#:1:&)1-^)7&)9&
the No.1 Ponds.

Temporary additional water storage is required to cope with the design 
^))<;&&?"%&@')@)0.$0&.$0)&#+($1<%&('%0-&'%0-)'.-#)+3&+%7&0@#$$7.50&%-(;&&
If the additional storage was not included additional engineering works 
would be required at all ponds in the chain.  Without adding storage 
capacity to some ponds in the chain, the spillways would have to be 
much larger and would require removal of many more trees.

The spillways in the preferred options would be overtopped if a second 
$.'*%& ^))<& )((1''%<3& 0#+(%& -"%& ^))<7.-%'& 0-)'%<& <1'#+*& -"%& 2'0-& ^))<&
would take some days to drain away into the sewer system.
However, in the existing scenario, more water would overtop the dams in 
4)-"&-"%&2'0-&.+<&0%()+<&^))<;

This option would involve many very large diameter pipes running through 
central London so it unlikely to be feasible.

David Lewis, 
Protect Our Ponds 
on Shortlist Options 
Report

19 Aug 2013

207 Water Quality

C0&-"#0&7.-%'&T1.$#-5&0-.+<.'<&():@1$0)'5d&C0&#-&@)00#4$%&-)&)4-.#+&.+&%8%:@-#)+d

EU bathing directives are compulsory if bathing ponds are to be used as 
such.

P
age 170



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
33

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Ken Blyth on 
Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

208 C&.:&@1,,$%<&45&-"%&0-.-%:%+-&#+&-"%&0%(-#)+&)9&-"%&I1::.'5&.4)1-&S00%00:%+-&)9&Y%0#*+&]$))<&-".-3&.$-")1*"&-"%&<.-.&
9'):&-"%&G.:@0-%.<&I(#%+-#2(&I)(#%-5&n@')/#<%<&.&10%91$&'%()'<&)9&'.#+9.$$&)/%'&.4)1-&KMM&5%.'0;;;;#-&#0&+)-&01#-.4$%&-)&
@')/#<%&<%0#*+&'.#+9.$$&<%@-"0&9)'&-"%&K&#+&KMMM&@%'#)<&%/%+-0&1@&-)&-"%&E\]&+%%<%<&9)'&-"#0&0-1<5&#;%;&1@&-)&-"%&KM3MMM&
5%.'&^))<3&.0&-"#0&7)1$<&#+/)$/%&0#*+#2(.+-&%8-'.@)$.-#)+&4%5)+<&-"%&10%91$&'.+*%&)9&-"%&'.#+9.$$&<.-.o;&&?"#0&<)%0&+)-&
make clear why the Hampstead data are considered useless for statistical purposes, nor what data extending over more 
than 100 years have in fact been used.  It is not clear either why data from other parts of England (or elsewhere in the 
pU&>&.+<&N1')@%j&.'%&-")1*"-&'%$%/.+-&-)&G.:@0-%.<&G%.-";&&?"%&'%@)'-&4$#+<0&45&:.-"%:.-#(.$&9)':1$.%&.+<&<)%0&+)-&
say enough about the data that are fed into them.   

I%%&:%-")<)$)*5&#+&E')4$%:&Y%2+#-#)+&Q%@)'-;

The statement points to the fact that statistically, the HHSS rainfall 
record is too short to give a reliable estimate of large rainfall events on 
#-0&)7+;&&?"%&]NG&YY]&(1'/%0&.'%&./.#$.4$%&9)'&-"%&pU&7"#("&.$$)70&9)'&
statistically reliable estimates of rainfall for large events as it is based on 
<.-.&9'):&:)'%&-".+&)+%&'.#+&*.1*%;&G.:@0-%.<&G%.-"&I(#%+-#2(&I)(#%-5&
'.#+9.$$&*.1*%&#0&$#0-%<&.0&)+%&)9&-"%&'.#+&*.1*%0&10%<&#+&-"%&]NG&YY]&
'.#+9.$$&:)<%$&mGGII&<.-.&9'):&KXLL>KXX[&#0&10%<j;&&&?"%&YY]&(1'/%0&
we used, are therefore likely to incorporate HHSS rainfall observations, 
complemented by other rain gauges to provide a more statistically 
reliable estimate of rainfall.  With regard to data used in the analysis, the 
]NG&:.+1.$03&_Y0&.+<&'%@)'-0&0%-&)1-&.$$&<.-.&10%<&.+<&.$$&1+<%'$5#+*&
methodologies applied, in a very transparent manner.  The reader is 
'%9%''%<&-)&-"%&]NG&:.+1.$0&9)'&91'-"%'&#+9)':.-#)+;&&

P1'&.00%00:%+-&".0&.@@$#%<&-"%&Y%9'.3&]$))<&.+<&'%0%'/)#'&0.9%-5&
Revised guidance for panel engineers to calculate the hydrological 
#+^)70&-)&-"%&G.:@0-%.<&G%.-"&@)+<0;&?"#0&#+($1<%0&-"%&]$))<&I-1<#%0&
Q%@)'-&m]IQj&.+<&]$))<&N0-#:.-#)+&G.+<4))6&m]NGj&:%-")<)$)*#%0&9)'&
<%'#/#+*&^))<&%/%+-&'.#+9.$$&"5%-)*'.@"0&.+<&^)7&"5<')*'.@"0;&?"%&]IQ&
.+<&]NG&:.+1.$0&0%-&)1-&-"%&<.-.&10%<&#+&4)-"&<%/%$)@#+*&.+<&.@@$5#+*&
the methodologies.

P
age 171



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

34

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

West Hill Court RA 
on Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

209

210

211

212

213

214

!%&7)1$<&$#6%&-)&6+)7&7"%-"%'&-"%'%&".0&4%%+&.&0-1<5&)9&@'%/#)10&^))<#+*&#+&-"%&.'%.d&!%&.@@'%(#.-%&-".-&-"#0&7#$$&+)-&
help predict the future, but it may inform solutions. We understand, for instance that inadequate drainage at lower levels 
7.0&.+&#:@)'-.+-&9.(-)'&#+&-"%&KXb[&^))<0;&

!%&.'%&.$0)&()+(%'+%<&-".-&-"%'%&:.5&+)-&4%&.<%T1.-%&()$$.4)'.-#)+&4%-7%%+&-"%&.*%+(#%0&'%0@)+0#4$%&9)'&^))<&#001%0;&
Could it be that stronger joint work between The City of London, Thames Water and Camden Council might enable a 
:)<#2(.-#)+&)9&-"%&7)'60d&

?"%&_#-5=0&#+-%+-#)+&.@@%.'0&-)&4%&0#:@$5&-)&#+('%.0%&-"%&"%#*"-&)9&-"%&<.:0&0)&9.'&-".-&:1("&:)'%&7.-%'&#0&0-)'%<&.+<&
there is less risk of overspill. Our residents have raised a number of questions in this respect: 

1. G)7&:1("&#0&D"#*"&%+)1*"=d

2. !".-&#0&.&D0.9%&/)$1:%=&)9&7.-%'&-)&0-)'%d

3. Is it not the case that increasing the height of the dam means that if the dam did breach, the volume of water 
'%$%.0%<&7)1$<&4%&$.'*%'&.+<&(.10%&:)'%&<.:.*%d

4. Given that nobody could guarantee the rainfall in a 1 in 10,000 disaster, should not the priority be to manage 
-"%&7.-%'&-".-&7)1$<3&)'&<)%03&0@#$$&)/%'d&C+&0):%&)-"%'&.'%.0&7%&*.-"%'&-".-&-"%'%&.'%&+)7&D01:@0=3&<%<#(.-%<&
7%-$.+<0&)'&^))<&@$.#+0&-)&.40)'4&%8-'.&7.-%'&#+&%8.(-$5&-"%&7.5&-".-&@%)@$%&#+&-"%&@.0-&:.+.*%<&/.'#.-#)+0&
in weather. There is some recognition of this in the report with the use of spillways etc - could not more use 
)9&-"%0%&050-%:0&4%&:.<%&)+&-"%&G%.-"d&_'%.-#+*&:)'%&7%-$.+<0&".0&#:@')/%<&-"%&0#-1.-#)+&#+&:.+5&.'%.0&)9&
I100%83&@')-%(-%<&")10%03&(')@0&.+<&$#/%0-)(6&9'):&0%'#)10&^))<#+*&.+<&".<&-"%&.<<%<&4)+10&)9&#:@')/#+*&-"%&
range of wildlife and plants in the areas affected.

Previous studies used in the Atkins work:
A& G5<')$)*#(.$& .+<& !.-%'& u1.$#-5& C+/%0-#*.-#)+& .+<& \)<%$$#+*& )9& -"%&

Hampstead Heath Lake Chains and Associated Catchments, Haycock 
Associates Limited, 2006;

• Hydrology Improvements Detailed Evaluation Process (HiDEP): 
Hydrology and Structure Hydraulics, Haycock Associates Limited, 2010;

• Hampstead Heath Dam 3D Topographic Survey, Plowman Craven, 
2010;

• Haycock Hampstead Heath Stella model, 2010; and
• Hampstead Heath Reservoirs On-Site Emergency Response Plan for 

Reservoir Dam Incidents. City of London, November 2012.

!%& "./%& +)-& :)<%$$%<& @'%/#)10& ^))<& %/%+-0& )+& -"%& G%.-"& .0& @.'-& )9&
our study as, there is very little calibration data for previous other than 
whether dams overtopped or not.  Also, the focus of our work was on 
deriving events of different return periods to assess the overtopping risk 
of the dams under these types of events.   We have undertaken a review 
)9&)-"%'&0-1<#%0&7"#("&"./%&#+/%0-#*.-%<&@'%/#)10&^))<&%/%+-0;

Thames Water are not responsible for the safety of the dams or for the 
water normally stored in the dams that could be breached.
?"%#'&0%7%'&050-%:0&.'%&)+$5&<%0#*+%<&9)'&0:.$$&^))<&%/%+-0&1@&-)&
around a 1:75 year return period event.  Standard guidance on dam 
0.9%-5&'%T1#'%0&-".-&<.:0&(.+&0.9%$5&@.00&^))<7.-%'&9'):&.&E\]3&7#-"&
0@#$$7.50&.4$%&-)&@.00&-"%&^))<7.-%'&9'):&.&K`KM3MMM&5%.'&%/%+-3&0)&-"%&
%8#0-#+*&0%7%'&050-%:&(.++)-&.(()::)<.-%&-"%0%&6#+<0&)9&^))<0;
?"%'%&#0&+)&)@@)'-1+#-5&-)&@')/#<%&0192(#%+-&0-)'.*%&)9&-"%&%8(%00&
^))<7.-%'&<)7+0-'%.:&)9&-"%&@)+<0&#+&_.:<%+;

1. Storage capacity has been added to some of the dams until the 
<%0#*+&^))<&m-"%&E\]j&#0&0.9%$5&@.00%<&7#-")1-&)/%'-)@@#+*&-"%&
dam crest as this could cause dam failure.

2. A safe volume would be the amount that leaves a small enough 
%8(%00&^))<7.-%'&-".-&(.+&4%&@.00%<&-"')1*"&-"%&0@#$$7.5;

3. By improving the safety of the dams with adequate spillways and 
extra storage capacity, the possibility of the dams breaching is 
much reduced.  Ground investigation early next year will provide 
information to allow the analysis of the stability of dams when 
loaded with higher water levels.  Any issues will be remedied in 
the detailed design of the safety works.

4. The principles that decide which aspect is the highest priority 
are constrained by law and standard industry guidance (see the 
@')4$%:&<%2+#-#)+&0%(-#)+&#+&-"%&I")'-$#0-&P@-#)+0&'%@)'-j;&&C+&
the 1:10,000 year event, it is estimated that around 107,000m3 
)9&%8(%00&^))<7.-%'&7#$$&)/%'-)@&-"%&<.:&.-&G#*"*.-%&g);&E)+<&
#+&-"%&2'0-&KZ&")1'0;&&?"#0&#0&-))&:1("&/)$1:%&-)&4%&0-)'%<&#+&
-"%&Y16%0&]#%$<&.'%.&)9&-"%&G%.-"3&.0&#-&7)1$<&'%T1#'%&&.&+%7&
reservoir with twice the capacity of Highgate No.1 Pond.  It is 
therefore more feasible to design the existing dam to pass water 
safely without collapse. Overtopping could still occur but will not 
result in dam failure.

P
age 172



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2 
35

P
age 173



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT – VOLUME 2

36

Epsom Gateway 
2 Ashley Avenue 
Epsom 
Surrey 
KT18 5AL 
England

Telephone +44 (0) 1372 75 6280 
Mobile    +44 (0) 7710 36 3354  
Email:     mike.woolgar@atkinsglobal.com

www.atkinsglobal.com

© Atkins Ltd except where stated otherwise 

P
age 174



LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON 
HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

25th October 2013

P
age 175



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

2

Contents

Log of Queries and Answers on Hampstead Heath Ponds Project

Schedule of External consultation on Hampstead Heath 
Ponds Project    3

Hampstead Heath Ponds Project – Schedule of Question 
and Answers    4

Position Statement on Discharge of Water from Hampstead Heath 52

Drainage Location Plan    56

P
age 176



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
3

Schedule of External consultation on Hampstead 
Heath Ponds Project
Date Event

17 Jan 2011 !""#$%&'("#)""%'*+,-"./0'1234/#"25'1"2#6'7*%/89#2#$:"'7*33$##""';1177<0'=$->'12?-*->0'
@%5?'18&6"/'2%5'1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?0'#*'5$/-8//'#6"'4.*C"-#'2%5'#6"'$//8"/'2.$/$%&

19 Jan 2011 !""#$%&'("#)""%'*+,-"./0'=$->'12?-*->'2%5'/)$33$%&'&.*84/'#*'5$/-8//'#6"'4.*C"-#'2%5'#6"'
$//8"/'2.$/$%&

20 Jan 2011 DE(899"#$%'8452#"'*%'#6"'4.*C"-#'48(9$/6"5'*%'#6"')"(/$#"

30 Jan 2011 F23/'2%5'G*%5/'42&"'-."2#"5'*%'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%')"(/$#"

8 Mar 2011 B)$33"./'I*.83J'G.*C"-#'5$/-8//"5J

12 Mar 2011 1177')29>'$%-985$%&'#29>'2#'D58-2#$*%'7"%#."'*%'6?5.*9*&?'(?'=$->'12?-*->

2 Apr 2011 K*.>/6*4'+*.'."/$5"%#/0'3"3("./'*+'$%#"."/#'2%5'8/".'&.*84/'*+'#6"'1"2#6'2%5'/#2++J'L2:"'
5"#2$9"5'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'#6"'2."2/'#62#'-*895'("'2++"-#"5'(?'2'M**5'2%5'$%$#$29'-*%-"4#'5"/$&%/

20 Apr 2011 N.$",%&'5"9$:"."5'#*'7235"%'7*8%-$9

21 Apr 2011 1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?'."&892.'O82.#".9?')29>E'4.*C"-#'5$/-8//"5

26 Apr 2011 K2#".'O829$#?'/"3$%2.'2##"%5"5'(?'/)$33$%&'&.*84/0'/#2++0'=$->'12?-*->0'11770'!2%2&"3"%#'
7*33$##""0'."/$5"%#/'2//*-$2#$*%/'2%5'2%&9"./

1 May 2011 DE(899"#$%'8452#"'*%'#6"'4.*C"-#'48(9$/6"5'*%'#6"')"(/$#"

9 May 2011 P"4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#6'7*%/89#2#$:"'7*33$##""

23 May 2011 D:2982#$*%'."4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'Q8""%/'G2.>'
!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""

7 Jun 2011 B)$33"./'I*.83J'R452#"'*%'4.*C"-#'&$:"%J

11 Jul 2011 1177'S'8452#"'$%'!2##"./'@.$/$%&

5 Jul 2011 B$#"':$/$#'#*'4*%5/'(?'7*8.#'*+'7*33*%'7*8%-$9

14 Jul 2011 D:2982#$*%'."4*.#'-*%/$5"."5'(?'#6"'7*8.#'*+'7*33*%'7*8%-$9

25 Jul 2011 B6*.#'8452#"'$%'!2##"./'2.$/$%&'2#'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""

1 Aug 2011 !""#$%&'("#)""%'*+,-"./0'11770'=$->'12?-*->0'@%5?'18&6"/0'1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?'
2%5'/)$33"./'#*'5$/-8//'+8.#6".'*4#$*%'+*99*)$%&'+8.#6".'2//"//3"%#'(?'12?-*->'2%5'18&6"/

26 Sep 2011 R452#"'."4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'Q8""%T/'G2.>'!2%2&"3"%#'
7*33$##""

19 Oct 2011 B)$33$%&'I*.83J'G.*C"-#'5$/-8//"5

5 Nov 2011 1177')29>'S':".(29'8452#"'&$:"%

7 Nov 2011 R452#"'."4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1177

11 Nov 2011 U$/$#'#*'2'/$3$92.'523'2#'V$9&2#"'G2.>'$%'7.2)9"?'(?'/#2++'2%5'3"3("./'*+'1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'
B*-$"#?

28 Nov 2011 1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'Q8""%/'G2.>'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""J'!"%#$*%"5'$%'
3$%8#"/'244.*:29J

18 Jan 2012 1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?'."&892.'O82.#".9?')29>J'!"3("./'&$:"%'2'(.$"+'8452#"'*%'4.*C"-#'
2%5'$%#.*58-"5'#*'7*338%$-2#$*%/'W+,-".

18 Jan 2012 B)$33$%&'I*.83J'!"3("./'&$:"%'2%'8452#"'*%'4.*C"-#

Log of Queries and Answers on Hampstead Heath 
Ponds Project
The Log of Questions and Answers on the Hampstead Heath Ponds Project includes a schedule of all 
external consultation on the Ponds Project from January 2011 and all queries from engagement with 
the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group (PPSG) and the wider public since October. The log is a ‘live’ 
document that is regularly updated and includes responses to queries by the design team. 

P
age 177



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

4

Date Event

23 Jan 2012 R452#"'."4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'Q8""%T/'G2.>'!2%2&"3"%#'
7*33$##""

26 Jan 2012 1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?';V*%?'1$99$".'2%5'X"."3?'K.$&6#<'(.$"+"5'*%'4.*-8."3"%#'4.*-"//'
(?'*+,-"./'2%5'$%:*9:"3"%#'$%'$#

2 Feb 2012 7235"%'=")'X*8.%29'4.$%#'/#*.?')$#6'8452#"'*%'4.*C"-#

2 Feb 2012 123'A'1$&6'4.$%#'/#*.?'2(*8#'4.*C"-#

6 Mar 2012 H25$"/'(2#6$%&'4*%5'$34.*:"3"%#'3""#$%&J'K$5".'4.*C"-#'5$/-8//"5'2/'42.#'*+'#6"'-*%#"Y#'+*.'
#6"'$34.*:"3"%#')*.>/

10 Mar 2012 1177')29>J'N.$"+'8452#"'&$:"%'*%'#6"'4.*C"-#

12 Mar 2012 R452#"'."4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1177

14 Mar 2012 X"."3?'K.$&6#'*+''1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?'9**>/'2#'5*-83"%#/'2#'1"2#6,"95'1*8/"

15 Mar 2012 !""#$%&')$#6'B299?'L$3/*%0')2.5'-*8%-$99*.0'2%5'G289'!2/>"99'#*'5$/-8//'4.*C"-#

4 Apr 2012 X"."3?'K.$&6#'+.*3'1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?'9**>/'2#'5*-83"%#/'2#'1"2#6,"95'1*8/"

18 Apr 2012 B)$33"./T'I*.83'S'G*%5/'G.*C"-#'B#2>"6*95".'L.*84';GGBL<'5$/-8//"5'2%5'7*338%$-2#$*%/'
B#.2#"&?'/62."5')$#6'&.*84

23 Apr 2012 H"2M"#'"Y492$%$%&')6?'#6"')*.>'$/'%"-"//2.?'$/'5$/#.$(8#"5'#*'Z[0[[['."/$5"%#/'2.*8%5'#6"'1"2#6'
2%5'#*':$/$#*./'*%'#6"'1"2#6

8 May 2012 !$Y"5'(2#6$%&'4*%5'$34.*:"3"%#'3""#$%&

21 May 2012 P"4*.#'*%'7*338%$-2#$*%/'B#.2#"&?'4."/"%#"5'#*'#6"'1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'
Q8""%/'G2.>'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""J

22 May 2012 G."/"%#2#$*%'2%5'/$#"':$/$#'&$:"%'#*'3"3("./'*+'7235"%'7*8%-$9'D%:$.*%3"%#'B-.8#$%?'G2%"9

7 July 2012 1177')29>'S'4."/"%#2#$*%'*%'4.*C"-#

9 July 2012 1234/#"25'1"2#6'7*%/89#2#$:"'7*33$##""J'7*338%$-2#$*%/'/#.2#"&?'2%5'V".3/'*+'P"+"."%-"'
*+'B#2>"6*95"./'5$/-8//"5'2/')"99'2/'#"%5".'."4*.#

16 July 2012 \%28&8.29'3""#$%&'*+'GGBL

18 July 2012 B)$33"./'+*.83J'!"3("./'&$:"%'2%'8452#"'*%'#6"'4.*C"-#J

23 July 2012 1234/#"25'1"2#6'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""J'@%'8452#"'."4*.#'*%'#6"'4.*&."//'2%5'4.*-8."3"%#'
/#.8-#8."'&$:"%'#*'3"3("./J

9 Aug 2012 123'A'1$&6'S762$.32%T/'-*983%'+*-8/"/'*%'4.*C"-#

30 Aug 2012 GGBL'2##"%5'4."/"%#2#$*%/'(?'#)*'4.*/4"-#$:"'-2%5$52#"/'+*.'#6"'.*9"'*+'B#.2#"&$-'H2%5/-24"'
@.-6$#"-#J

14 Sep2012 I$./#'4*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%J'V6"/"'-*%/$/#'*+'#)*'3"3("./'*+'/#2++'&*$%&'*8#'*%'1"2#6'+*.'2'#)*'
6*8.'/"//$*%0'4.*:$5$%&'$%+*.32#$*%'2/')"99'2/'-2%:2//$%&'*4$%$*%'*%'#6"'4.*C"-#J

1 Oct 2012 GGBL

6 Oct 2012 K29>')$#6'GGBL'S'1$&6&2#"'762$%J'!"3("./'*+' #6"'GGBL' #2>"%'*%'2')29>'5*)%' #6"'-62$%0'
/#*44$%&'#*'5$/-8//'#6"'>"?'$//8"/J

8 Oct 2012 B)$33$%&'+*.83J'!"3("./'&$:"%'2%'8452#"'*%'#6"'4.*C"-#J

10 Oct 2012 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

18 Oct 2012 7235"%'=")'X*8.%29'(.$"+"5'*%'4.*C"-#'2%5'4.$%#/'8452#"'

27 Oct 2012 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

Date Event

29 Oct 2012 GGBL

30 Oct 2012 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

6 Nov 2012 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

6 Nov 2012 =")/'."9"2/"'2%%*8%-$%&'244*$%#3"%#'*+'B#.2#"&$-'H2%5/-24"'@.-6$#"-#'2%5'4.*:$5$%&'
$%+*.32#$*%'*%'GGBL'2/')"99'2/'244*$%#3"%#'*+'@#>$%/

8 Nov 2012 123'A'1$&6'S'762$.32%T/'-*983%'+*-8//"/'*%'4.*C"-#

20 Nov 2012 F.'@%5?'18&6"/'(.$"+/'GGBLT/'762$.32%0'F"48#?'762$.32%'2%5'1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?T/'
."4."/"%#2#$:"'*%'/-*4"'*+'+8%523"%#29'.":$")'2%5'$%5$-2#$:"'#$3"/-29"/'*+'4.*C"-#

24 Nov 2012 K29>')$#6'GGBL'S'1234/#"25'762$%J'!"3("./'*+'#6"'GGBL'#2>"%'*%'2')29>'5*)%'#6"'-62$%0'
/#*44$%&'#*'5$/-8//'#6"'>"?'$//8"/J

26 Nov 2012 R452#"'."4*.#'4."/"%#"5'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'Q8""%/'G2.>'!2%2&"3"%#'
7*33$##""J

28 Nov 2012 F"/$&%'P":$")'!"#6*5'B#2#"3"%#0'5.2+#"5'(?'@#>$%/'$/'."9"2/"5'#*'GGBL'+*.'#6"$.'-*33"%#/

30 Nov 2012 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

3 Dec 2012 GGBL'S'5$/-8//$*%'*%'F"/$&%'P":$")'!"#6*5'B#2#"3"%#

17 Dec 2012 X*8.%29$/#'(.$",%&')$#6'123'2%5'1$&6'2%5'=")/'."9"2/"')$#6'8452#"'*%'-*%/89#2#$*%'*44*.#8%$#$"/'
#6.*8&6*8#'#6"'4.*C"-#

19 Dec 2012 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

20 Dec 2012 123'A'1$&6'4$"-"'4.*,9$%&'B#.2#"&$-'H2%5/-24"'@.-6$#"-#

10 Jan 2013 GGBL')*.>/6*4'EG"#".'K$95".'#2>"/'GGBL'*%':$.#829'#*8.'*+'#6"'4*%5/'9**>$%&'2#'"2-6'/$#"'2%5'
%*#$%&'#6."2#/'2%5'*44*.#8%$#$"/J'

14 Jan 2013 K29>'*+'1$&6&2#"'762$%')$#6' ."/$5"%#/' +.*3'N.**>,"95'!2%/$*%/'2%5'*#6"./')6*' -*895'%*#'
2##"%5'*.$&$%29')29>J

14 Jan 2013 GGBL'S'+*99*)'84'*%']['X2%')*.>/6*4

14 Jan 2013 =")/'."9"2/"'$%:$#$%&':$")/'+.*3'48(9$-0'-*:"."5'$%'123'A'1$&6

17 Jan 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

17 Jan 2013 F.2+#'7.$#$-29'P":$")'(?'G"#".'K$95".0'$//8"5'#*'GGBL'+*.'#6"$.'-*33"%#

18 Jan 2013 B#2++')*.>/6*4')6$-6'+*99*)/'#6"'/23"'+*.32#'2/'G"#".'K$95"./J

26 Jan 2013 G*/#"./'48#'84'*%'1"2#6'$%:$#$%&'4"*49"'#*'&$:"'#6"$.':$")/

28 Jan 2013 1234/#"25'1"2#6'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""

28 Jan 2013 B$3*%'H""'3""#/')$#6'W2>'U$992&"'P"/$5"%#/'@//*-$2#$*%'#*'5$/-8//'$//8"/'."92#$%&'#*'M**5$%&J

31 Jan 2013 @5:".#/'$%'123'A'1$&6'2%5'7235"%'=")'X*8.%29'$%:$#$%&'4"*49"'#*'&$:"'#6"$.':$")/

31 Jan 2013 GGBL'S'/4"-$29'3""#$%&'#*'#29>'2(*8#'4.*&.233"J

7 Feb 2013 7235"%'=")'X*8.%29'4.$%#'2%'8452#"'*%'4.*C"-#'#29>$%&'2(*8#'^92%5/-24"E9"5T'244.*2-6

11 Feb 2013 GGBL'S'.":$")'*+'-.$#$-29'.":$")

18 Feb 2013 B4"-$29'3""#$%&'*+'GGBL'#*'#29>'2(*8#'-*338%$-2#$*%/

26 Feb 2013 B)$33$%&'I2-$9$#$"/'I*.83J'!"3("./'&$:"%'2'(.$",%&'*%'4.*C"-#

7 Mar 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

11 Mar 2013 @523'H"?/0'2'."/$5"%#'+.*3'_"%#$/6'V*)%'&$:"%'(.$",%&'*%'4.*C"-#

P
age 178



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
5

Date Event

14 Mar 2013 123'A'1$&6'2%5'7=X'.8%'/#*.$"/'*%'."/89#/'*+'F"/$&%'I9**5'@//"//3"%#'2%5'#6"'+2-#'$#')$99'."/89#'
$%'9"//'$%#.8/$:"')*.>'*%'#6"'1"2#6J

15 Mar 2013 K29>'*+'-62$%'*+'4*%5/')$#6'3"3("./'+.*3'1$&6&2#"'="$&6(*8.6**5'I*.83

18 Mar 2013 @%5?'18&6"/'3""#/')$#6'."/$5"%#/'+.*3'W2>'U$992&"'2%5'D92$%"'L.*:"

18 Mar 2013 GGBL'S'@%5?'18&6"/'4."/"%#/'#6"'."/89#/'*+'#6"'F"/$&%'I9**5'@//"//3"%#

20 Mar 2013 B$3*%'H""'&$:"/'4."/"%#2#$*%'*%'4.*C"-#'#*'1$&6&2#"'@."2'@-#$*%'L.*84'2/'42.#'*+'7235"%T/'
-*%/89#2#$*%'*%'I9**5'B#.2#"&?

21 Mar 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

22 Mar 2013 !""#$%&')$#6'*+,-"./'+.*3'7*H'2%5'1234/#"25'6"2#6'@%&9"./'B*-$"#?

22 Mar 2013 K*.>/6*4')$#6'?*8%&'4"*49"'2#'Q8""%T/'7."/-"%#'7*338%$#?'7"%#."

27 Mar 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

8 April 2013 B4"-$29'3""#$%&'*+'#6"'1177'S'@%5?'18&6"/'4."/"%#/'."/89#/'*+'F"/$&%'I9**5'@//"//3"%#

9 April 2013 U$/$#'#*'@((".#*%'P"/".:*$.')$#6'3"3("./'*+'#6"'B#2>"6*95".'L.*84

10 April 2013 G*/#"./'8452#"5'2#'G2.9$23"%#'1$99'2%5'L*95"./'1$99'G2.>

12 April 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%J'@.*8%5'`['4"*49"'/4*>"%'#*0'244.*Y$32#"9?'629+')"."'2)2."'*+'4.*C"-#J

15 April 2013 GGBL'S'3"3("./'*+'#6"'5"/$&%'#"23'&$:"'2'4."/"%#2#$*%'*%'#6"'32#.$Y'2%5'$#/'+8%-#$*%

19 April 2013 !""#$%&' #*' 5$/-8//' *8#/#2%5$%&' O8".$"/' *%' F"/$&%' I9**5' @//"//3"%#' S' 2##"%5"5' (?' @%5?'
18&6"/0'!$>"'K**9&2.0'V*%?'N.8&&"32%%0'!2.&2."#2'@?*8%&0'G"#".'B%*)5*%0'\:2%'WTV**9"0'
P$-62.5'7623(".92$%0'762.9"/'H"*%2.50'_2."%'N"2."0'X"."3?'K.$&6#0'X"%%$+".'K**5

24 April 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%J'B4*>"'#*'2.*8%5'][['4"*49"0'629+'*+')6*3')"."'2)2."'*+'#6"'4.*C"-#

25 April 2013 V*3'!2./62990'C*8.%29$/#'2#'123'A'1$&6'$/'&$:"%'2'(.$",%&'*%'4.*C"-#

30 April 2013 K29>' *+' 1$&6&2#"' 762$%' )$#6' @523' H"?/' 2%5' 72.*9$%"' 1$990' 762$.' *+' #6"' _"%#$/6' V*)%'
="$&6(*8.6**5'I*.83

2 May 2013 762$.32%T/'7*983%'$%'123'A'1$&6')$#6'8452#"'*%'4.*C"-#

9 May 2013 B$&%'"."-#"5'*%'G*%5'N*Y'2%5'*%'-28/")2?'("#)""%'!$Y"5'G*%5'2%5'1234/#"25'=*J'aJ

9 May 2013 P"4*.#'*%'F"/$&%'I9**5'@//"//3"%#'#2>"%'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#60'1$&6&2#"'K**5'2%5'Q8""%/'
G2.>'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""J

13 May 2013 GGBL'!""#$%&

18 May 2013 GGBL')*.>/6*4'*%'8%-*%/#.2$%"5'9$/#

21 May 2013 !G'!2.>'I$"95/'$/'(.$"+"5'*%'4.*C"-#'2%5'#2>"%'*%'/$#"

29 May 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

3 June  2013 =")'G*%5/'G.*C"-#'9"2M"#'4.*58-"5

5 June 2013 B#2++')*.>/6*4'S'8%-*%/#.2$%"5'9$/#

7 June 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

7 June 2013 7*%/#.2$%"5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#'48(9$/6"5'2%5'5$/#.$(8#"5'#*'GGBL'

10 June 2013 N.$",%&'2%5'4."//'."9"2/"'#*'123'A'1$&6

12 June 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

13 June 2013 I$./#'"=")/9"##".'5$/#.$(8#"5'#*'b[['"32$9'255."//"/0')$#6'5"#2$9/'*+'7*%/#.2$%"5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#

Date Event

17 June 2013 GGBL')29>'2%5'3""#$%&'#*'5$/-8//'*8#/#2%5$%&'O8".$"/'*%'8%-*%/#.2$%"5'9$/#

27 June 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

30 June 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%'S'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'I"/#$:29

2 July 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%';)$#6'@#>$%/<

8 July 2013 1177'S'R452#"'."4*.#'2%5'8%-*%/#.2$%"5'*4#$*%/'4."/"%#"5

9 July 2013 GGBL';X"."3?'K.$&6#0'B8/2%'P*/"'2%5'!2.-'18#-6$%/*%<3""#')$#6'@#>$%/'$%'D4/*3'#*'5$/-8//'
S'_"%)**50'QP@0'6?5.*9*&?

12 July 2013 B#2++'+*.83'S'5$/-8//'*44*.#8%$#$"/

13 July 2013 GGBL')*.>/6*4'S'/6*.#9$/#'*+'*4#$*%/

16 July 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

22 July 2013 1234/#"25'1"2#6'!2%2&"3"%#'7*33$##""'S'8452#"'."4*.#

22 July 2013 GGBL'S'3""#$%&'S'-*%#$%82#$*%'*+'5$/-8//$*%'*%'/6*.#".E9$/#'*+'*4#$*%/

25 July 2013 B#2++')*.>/6*4'S'/6*.#".E9$/#'*+'*4#$*%/

26 July 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

5 Aug 2013 B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#'48(9$/6"5'2%5'5$/#.$(8#"5'#*'GGBL'2%5'#*')$5".'48(9$-')$#6'%")/9"##".J

6 Aug 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

9 Aug 2013 1234/#"25'1"2#6'@%&9"./'B*-$"#?'(.$"+"5'2/'42.#'*+'2'."&892.'3""#$%&J

14 Aug 2013 N.**>,"95' !2%/$*%/' 2%5' DLWUP@' ."/$5"%#/' 3""#' )$#6' @#>$%/' #*' 5$/-8//' $//8"/' ."92#$%&' #*'
1$&6&2#"'=*J']'G*%5J

11 Sep 2013 D:"%$%&'B#2%52.5'.8%'/#*.?'(2/"5'*%'QP@

11 Sep 2013 \VU'%")/'-*:"./'G*%5/'G.*C"-#

11 Sep 2013 K29>')$#6'K"/#'1$99'7*8.#'."/$5"%#/';X"%%$+".'K**5'2%5'B$3*%'H""<

14 Sep 2013 GGBL')*.>/6*4'S'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/

18 Sep 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

18 Sep 2013 D32$9'#*'299'/#2++

18 Sep 2013 H"&29'3""#$%&'("#)""%'7$#?'2%5'1A1B

20 Sep 2013 1A1B':$/$#'#*'@#>$%/'#*'5"29')$#6'*8#/#2%5$%&'O8".$"/'#*'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#';X"."3?'K.$&6#<

27 Sep 2013 GGBL'3""#$%&')$#6'@#>$%/'#*'5$/-8//'QP@

27 Sep 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

27 Sept 2013 1$&6&2#"'!"%T/'G*%5'@//*-$2#$*%'3""#')$#6'@#>$%/'#*'5"29')$#6'*8#/#2%5$%&'O8".$"/'#*'B6*.#9$/#'
W4#$*%/'P"4*.#

30 Sep 2013 GGBL'3""#$%&

3 Oct 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

9 Oct 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

14 Oct 2013 GGBL'3""#$%&

23 Oct 2013 G*4E84'-*%/89#2#$*%

25 Oct 2013 K"/#'1$99'7*8.#'P"/$5"%#/'3""#$%&

P
age 179



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

6

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Charles Leonard, 
EGOVRA

Via email 23 
October 2012

1

2

3

`

5

Z

7

G9"2/"')*895'#6"'7*H'-92.$+?')62#'#6"'9"&29'/$#82#$*%'$/'."&2.5$%&
E'$#/'*)%'58#$"/'2%5'."/4*%/$($9$#$"/'#*'3$#$&2#"'2%5c*.'4.":"%#'5*)%/#."23'M**5$%&'#*'8/'%"$&6(*8./'$%-985$%&'6*)'#6$/'
$342-#/'84*%'#6"'F"/$&%'4.*-"//'E'2%5'29/*')6"#6".'#6"'7*H')*895'("'9$2(9"'+*.'5232&"'-28/"5'/6*895'#6$/'*--8.d

\#')*895'29/*'("':".?'6"94+89'$+'?*8.'92)?"./')*895'-92.$+?')62#'#6"'."/4*%/$($9$#$"/'2."'*+'#6"'*#6".'32$%'492?"./'$%'#6$/'
/-"%2.$*';"&'7235"%'2%5'V623"/'K2#".<'2%5'6*)'2%5')62#'#6"'7*H'$/'5*$%&'#*'9$2$/"')$#6'#6"3'$%'4.*#"-#$%&'8/'2&2$%/#'
M**5$%&'+.*3'*:".E#*44$%&J

`J'V2>$%&'#6"'9"25'E'\%:*9:$%&'*#6"./'/8-6'2/'7235"%'2%5'V623"/'K2#".'%*)'E'2%5'$%'#6"'I8%523"%#29'P":$")'2%5'F"/$&%'
4.*-"//'\%'#6"'3""#$%&'*+']Z#6'X89?'a[]a'\'2/>"5'$+'#6"'7*H')"."'$%:*9:$%&'7235"%'2%5c*.'V623"/'K2#".'(8#'#6"."')2/'%*'
2-#829'2%/)".J'V6"'3$%8#"/'/$349?'/2?'#62#'\'2/>"5'2(*8#'7235"%';%*#'V623"/'K2#".<'2%5'#62#'^V6$/'-2%'("'-*%/$5"."5'(?'
#6"'BLT'(8#'/*'+2.'%*#6$%&'62/'6244"%"5'#62#'\'23'2)2."'*+J'\'23'2'9$##9"'-*%-".%"5'#62#'#6"."'$/'%*#'38-6'+*99*)'84'+.*3'
$//8"/'.2$/"5'2#'*8.'3""#$%&/

\'23'%*#'2'92)?".'%*.'2%'"%&$%"".'(8#'$#'/""3/'*(:$*8/'#*'3"'#62#'#6$/'."4."/"%#/'2'#."3"%5*8/'*44*.#8%$#?'+*.'#6"'7*H0'
7235"%'2%5'V623"/'K2#".';)6*'\'("9$":"'2."'#6"'32$%'492?"./'$%'#6$/'$//8"<'#*'":*9:"'2%5'$349"3"%#'2'/-6"3"'#62#'
3$%$3$/"/'#6"'.$/>'*+'5*)%/#."23'M**5$%&'$+'#6"?')*.>'#*&"#6".'+.*3'#6"'/#2.#J'@#'4."/"%#0'$#'/""3/'#6"."'$/':".?'9$##9"'
^9$2$/*%T'("#)""%'#6"'#6.""'42.#$"/'E'8%9"//'#6"."'$/'3*."'&*$%&'*%'#62#')"'5*%T#'>%*)'2(*8#J

eJ'G"#".'K$95".T/'(.$"+'2%5'/-*4"
G9"2/"')*895'?*8'-92.$+?'$+'#6"/"'$//8"/'*+'^*:".E#*44$%&T'2%5'^5*)%/#."23'M**5$%&T'+299'$%#*'#6"'/-*4"'*+'G"#".'K$95".T/'
(.$"+d'\')*895'*(:$*8/9?'6*4"'#6"?'5*f

ZJ'V6"'4*/#']bge'M**5')*.>/
\T5'29/*'("'&.2#"+89'+*.'2%?'$%+*.32#$*%'?*8'62:"'2(*8#'#6"')*.>/'#62#')"."'5*%"'#*'3$#$&2#"c4.":"%#'2'."4"2#'*+'#6"'
M**5$%&'+*99*)$%&'#6"'M**5/'$%']bged'\T3'42.#$-892.9?'$%#"."/#"5'$%'#6"'92.&"'8%5".&.*8%5'/#*.2&"'#8%%"9'#62#'\'&2#6".')2/'
(8$9#J'\'62:"'29)2?/'8%5"./#**5'#6$/')2/'#*'4.*#"-#'8/'+.*3'+8#8."'M**5$%&'/*3"6*)'2%5')*895'244."-$2#"'$%+*.32#$*%'
2(*8#'$#/'48.4*/"0'/$h"0'#6.*8&6E48#'-242-$#?'2%5'$#/'9*-2#$*%'$%-985$%&'"%#.2%-"/'2%5'"Y$#/'2%5')6"#6".'$#'5$/-62.&"/'$%#*'
#6"'%*.329'/")".'/?/#"3'*.'/*3"'*#6".'#8%%"9J

gJ'V6"')2#".'."9"2/"':29:"'#*'1$&6&2#"'G*%5'=*']'\T5'29/*'("'&.2#"+89'+*.'2%?'$%+*.32#$*%'?*8'-2%'&$:"'3"'2(*8#'#6"'
-242-$#?'*+'#6"':29:"'/?/#"3'?*8'/6*)"5'8/'#62#'."9"2/"/')2#".'+.*3'1$&6&2#"'G*%5'=*']d'\'#6$%>'?*8'/2$5'#62#'#6$/':29:"'
/?/#"3'."9"2/"/')2#".'$%#*'2%'8%5".&.*8%5'/")".'4$4"'("9*%&$%&'#*'V623"/'K2#".';$/'#62#'.$&6#d<J'\'23'$%#"."/#"5'$%'6*)'
38-6')2#".'#6$/'-2%'#2>"'*++'#6"'1"2#6')6"%'."O8$."5'$%-985$%&'6*)'38-6'^/42."'-242-$#?T'#*'1$&6&2#"'G*%5'=*']'-*895'("'
-."2#"5'$%'2'&$:"%'#$3"/-29"0'"#-J

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'4."/"%#"5'2'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#'$%'."/4*%/"'#*'#6"'
O8"/#$*%/'.2$/"5'(?'DLWUP@'#6$/')2/'$//8"5'*%'#6"'ai#6'=*:"3(".'
a[]aJ'V6$/'$/'244"%5"5'#*'#6$/'B-6"589"J

B""'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#J

B""'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#J

B""'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#J

V6"'B#.2#"&$-'H2%5/-24"'@.-6$#"-#'/6299'2-#'2/'2'."4."/"%#2#$:"'*+'(*#6'
#6"'7$#?'2%5'#6"'B#2>"6*95".'&.*84/0'-6234$*%$%&'#6"'92%5/-24"'2%5'
"%:$.*%3"%#29'2/4"-#/'-*%#.$(8#$%&')$#6'$32&$%2#$*%'2%5'>%*)9"5&"'#*'
#6"'5"/$&%'#6$%>$%&'2%5'-6299"%&$%&'2%?'"3".&$%&'"%&$%"".$%&'/*98#$*%/'
#62#'+2$9'#*'."/4"-#'#6"/"'2/4"-#/

@'492%')2/'4.*58-"5'(?'V623"/'K2#".'2#'$#/'4."/"%#2#$*%'#*'
B#2>"6*95"./'*%'#6"']`#6'X2%82.?'a[]j'/6*)$%&'#6"'M**5'."9$"+'/?/#"3J

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'$//8"5'2'5$2&.2332#$-'."4."/"%#2#$*%'
*+'#6"'4$4"'%"#)*.>'+.*3'#6"'4*%5/'#*'DLWUP@'*%'#6"'a`#6'!2?'a[]j'
;244"%5"5'#*'#6$/'/-6"589"<J

B""'492%'244"%5"5'#*'#6$/'/-6"589"J'

V6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'je[33'5$23"#".'/-*8.'4$4"'$/'9$>"9?'#*'("'9"//'#62%'
]33c/'2%5'/*'$#')$99'#2>"'32%?'6*8./'3*."'#*'"34#?'#6$/'4$4"'$%#*'#6"'
/")".'/?/#"3';$+'#6$/')2/'#6"*."#$-299?'299*)"5<'#62%'#6"'#$3"'#*'4"2>'*+'
#6"'M**5'+.*3'2']k][0[[['?"2.'/#*.3'":"%#';2.*8%5'j'6*8./<J'V623"/'
K2#".T/'/")".'/?/#"3/'2."'*%9?'5"/$&%"5'+*.'/3299'M**5'":"%#/'84'#*'
2.*8%5'2']kge'?"2.'."#8.%'4".$*5'":"%#J''B#2%52.5'&8$52%-"'*%'523'
/2+"#?'."O8$."/'#62#'523/'-2%'/2+"9?'42//'M**5)2#".'+.*3'2'G!I0')$#6'
/4$99)2?/'2(9"'#*'42//'#6"'M**5)2#".'+.*3'2']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#0'/*'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'/")".'/?/#"3'-2%%*#'2--*33*52#"'#6"/"'>$%5/'*+'M**5/J

Hampstead Heath Ponds Project – Schedule of Question and Answers

P
age 180



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
7

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Design 
Review Method 
Statement

10 December 12

i

b

10

11

12

13

]`

15

]Z

17

]i

B"-#$*%']k''\#')*895'("'6"94+89'$+'#6"'G.*C"-#'B#2&"/'$%'#6"'\%/#.8-#$*%'#*'V"%5".'-*895'("'5",%"5

B"-#$*%']k''V)*'*4#$*%/'*%9?'2."'4.*4*/"5'+*.'5"#2$9"5'3*5"99$%&J''K"'/8&&"/#'#62#'#6"'%83(".'*+'9$3$#"5',%29'*4#$*%/'
."32$%/'*4"%'8%#$9'4*//$($9$#$"/'("-*3"'-9"2.".

B"-#$*%'aJ]Jjk''G9"2/"'"Y492$%')6?'(*#6'-2/-25"/'2."'#*'("'$%#"&.2#"5'$%#*'2'/$%&9"'3*5"90'.2#6".'#62%'("$%&'-*%/$5"."5'
/"42.2#"9?J''V6"/"'-2/-25"/'2."'92.&"9?'/"42.2#"'"Y-"4#'+*.'5*)%/#."23'-*%/"O8"%-"/'$%'#6"'$34.*(2(9"'":"%#'*+'523'
-*9924/"'/$389#2%"*8/9?'$%'(*#6'-62$%/

B"-#$*%'aJaJ]k''V6"'B#.2#"&$-'H2%5/-24"'@.-6$#"-#'$/'9$>"9?'#*'62:"'2'/$&%$,-2%#'-*%#.$(8#$*%''$%'#6$/'*4#$*%/'462/"'(8#'$/'%*#'
3"%#$*%"5

B"-#$*%'aJaJ]k''K"'/844*.#'2:*$5$%&')*.>/'2#'3*/#'/"%/$#$:"'2."2/0'(8#'/8&&"/#'#62#'$#'$/'#**'/**%'#*'4.*4*/"'2%?'/4"-$,-'
$%#"%#$*%/0';"&J'#*'2:*$5')*.>'2#'#6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'G*%5'2%5'4".624/'-*%-"%#.2#"')*.>/'2#'#6"'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5<0'8%#$9'
:$")/'2."'*(#2$%"5'+.*3'299'$%#"."/#"5'*.&2%$/2#$*%/J

B"-#$*%'aJaJak''K"')"9-*3"'#6"'-*33"%#'+.*3'!$>"'K**9&2.'*%'j'F"-"3(".'#62#'#6$/'5*"/'%*#'%"-"//2.$9?'$349?'#62#'2'
4.*&."//$:"'-*9924/"'*+'":".?'523'$%'(*#6'-62$%/')$99'("'2//83"5'#*'*--8.'%"2.'/$389#2%"*8/9?0'2/'#2>"%'(?'=$->'12?-*->

B"-#$*%'`k''K"')*895'244."-$2#"'2'9$>"9?'52#"'+*.'$//8"'*+'#6"'7*338%$-2#$*%/'B#.2#"&?'2%5'4.*&.233"0'2/')"'/8&&"/#'$#'$/'
8.&"%#'#*'.2$/"'2)2."%"//')$#6'#6"'&"%".29'48(9$-0'2%5')"99'("+*."'#6"'48(9$-'-*%/89#2#$*%'4.*4*/"5'$%'aJaJ`0'`<

B"-#$*%'ek''\%'#6"'G92%%$%&'B#.2#"&?0'49"2/"'29/*'/"#'*8#'299'5*-83"%#/'."O8$."5'+*.'492%%$%&'2449$-2#$*%'2%5'*#6".'
4".3$//$*%/J''

G.*C"-#'G.*&.233"k''\+'9$>"9?'52#"/'+*.'299'#6"'4.*4*/"5'."4*.#/'2%5'3$9"/#*%"/'2."'/6*)%0'#6$/')$99'&."2#9?'6"94'/#2>"6*95"./'
2%5'*#6".'#*'492%'."+"..29'5$/-8//$*%/')$#6$%'#6"$.'*.&2%$/2#$*%/J''D2.9?'$//8"'*+'#6$/'4.*&.233"')*895'("'6"94+89J

@44"%5$Y'@a0'`Jek''K"'%*#"'#6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".T/'-*33"%#'."'/4$99)2?'-242-$#$"/J''G9"2/"'-92.$+?')62#'."#8.%'4".$*5/')$99'("'
8/"5'+*.'*:".M*)/'2%5'/4$99)2?/J''K"'/8(3$#'#62#'2'/$349"'&.246'/6*)$%&'M**5'4."-$4$#2#$*%'Y'+."O8"%-?';."#8.%'4".$*5<'
)*895'2$5'8%5"./#2%5$%&'(?'#6"'/#2>"6*95"./

@44"%5$Y'@ak''G2&"'`'*+'11B'4.*4*/29/'$/'3$//$%&

V6$/'$%+*.32#$*%')$99'+*99*)')6"%'#6"'4.*&.233"'$/'-$.-892#"5';/"42.2#"'
5*-83"%#<

K"')$99'$%:*9:"'#6"'/#2>"6*95"./'#6.*8&6*8#'#6"'*4#$*%/'4.*-"//0'/*'
#6"'9*&$-')"'8/"'$%'3*:$%&'+.*3'#6"'9*%&'8%-*%/#.2$%"5'9$/#'#*'#6"',%29'
/6*.#9$/#')$99'("'-9"2.J'V6"',%29'*4#$*%/'#6"3/"9:"/'32?'62:"'/8(E*4#$*%/J'
B$%-"'9$3$#"5'*44*.#8%$#?'$/'"Y4"-#"5'+*.'/$&%$,-2%#')*.>/'2#'3*/#'*+'#6"'
4*%5/0'#6"."')$99'62:"'#*'("'M"Y$($9$#?'$%'#6"'#)*'5"#2$9"5'*4#$*%/J'V6$/'
M"Y$($9$#?'$/'9$>"9?'#*'("'4.*:$5"5'(?'#6"/"'/8(*4#$*%/'2#'2'9$3$#"5'%83(".'
*+'9*-2#$*%/J

K"')$99'("'.8%%$%&'#6"'#)*'-2/-25"/'2/'/"42.2#"'3*5"9/')6"%'2//"//$%&'
#6"'"++"-#/'*+'92.&"'M**5'":"%#/0'$5"%#$+?$%&'/4$99)2?'-242-$#?'"#-J'
F8.$%&'2'G!I'":"%#0'$#'$/'4*//$(9"'#62#'(*#6'-62$%/')*895'("'/8(C"-#"5'
#*'#6"'G!I';-*%/$5".$%&'#6"'/6*.#'5$/#2%-"'("#)""%'#6"'#)*'-62$%/<0'/*'
+2$98."'$%'(*#6'-62$%/'$/'-."5$(9"J'V6"'#)*'-2/-25"'3*5"9/')$99'#6"."+*."'
("'C*$%"5'2#'#6"'92/#'/#2&"'*+'523E(."2-6'3*5"99$%&0'/*'#62#')"'-2%'
/$389#2%"*8/9?'#"/#'#6"'/-"%2.$*'*+'523'-*9924/"/'*%'(*#6'-62$%/J

@&.""50'#"Y#')$99'("'255"5'#*'#6$/'"++"-#J

@&.""5J'K"'+"9#'#62#'2%'"2.9?'."2//8.2%-"'*%'#6"'3$%$3$/2#$*%'*+')*.>/'
#*'#6"'3*."'/"%/$#$:"'2."2/'/8-6'2/'#6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?')*895'6"94'&2$%'
-*%,5"%-"'+.*3'#6"'/#2>"6*95"./J

@/'/#2#"5'$%':"./$*%'j0')"'2."'4.*4*/$%&'#*'3*5"9'4.*&."//$:"'-*9924/"'
/-"%2.$*/J'V6"'255$#$*%29'."+"."%-"'-*895'("'#62#'lK"')$99'8/"'#6"'3*5"9'
#*'"/#$32#"'#6"'*:".299'#$3"'+.23"'*+'#6"'4.*&."//$:"'-*9924/"'/-"%2.$*'
$%'"2-6'-62$%mJ'F23'(."2-6'$/'8%9$>"9?'#*'*--8.'2#'#6"'/23"'#$3"'*%'#)*'
523/'$%'*%"'-62$%J'1*)":".0'2/'3"%#$*%"5'2(*:"0'$#'$/'-."5$(9"'#62#'#)*'
/"#/'*+'4.*&."//$:"'-*9924/"/'-*895'*--8.'/$389#2%"*8/9?'$%'2'G!I'":"%#0'
&$:"%'#6"'4.*Y$3$#?'*+'#6"'#)*'-62$%/J

7*338%$-2#$*%/'B#.2#"&?'$//8"5'#*'GGBL'I"(.82.?'a[]j

B#2&"'7'S'V6$/'$%+*.32#$*%')$99'("'4."/"%#"5'#*'/#2>"6*95".'&.*84'2#'2'
92#".'/#2&"J

G.*&.233"'7$.-892#"5'"%5'*+'a[]a

V6$/'$/'3"%#$*%"5'"2.9$".'$%'9$%"'`JaJ'V6"'."/".:*$./')$99'("'2//"//"5'
+*99*)$%&'\7D'&8$5"9$%"/'$%'I9**5/'A'P"/".:*$.'B2+"#?0')6$-6'."O8$."'
#6"'/4$99)2?'*+'2'72#"&*.?'@'523'#*'/2+"9?'42//'2']k][0[[['?"2.'M**5'
;)$#6'#6"'."/#'*+'#6"'G!I'M*)'/2+"9?'42//$%&'*:".'#6"'-."/#<J'V6"'G2%"9'
D%&$%"".'3$&6#'-*%/$5".'2'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')$#6']k][[['?"2.'-242-$#?0
(8#'#6"'523'-."/#'38/#'/2+"9?'42//'#6"'."/#'*+'#6"'G!I'M*)J@'&.246'
*+'M**5'4."-$4$#2#$*%':/'."#8.%'4".$*5'$/'%*#'?"#'2:2$92(9"'(8#'-*895'("'
4.*:$5"5'2#'2'92#".'52#"'+*99*)$%&'#6"'-*349"#$*%'*+'#6"'6?5.*9*&$-29'
.":$")J

I$Y"5'$%'#6"',%29'5*-83"%#J

P
age 181



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

8

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King, 
!"##$%&'()
Mansions on Design 
review Method 
Statement

20 December 2012

]b

20

@44"%5$Y'@'gJa 
K"T."'%*#'-9"2.')62#'^/2+"T'5$/-62.&"'$/J'\/'#6$/'5$/-62.&"'#62#'-2%'("'2--*33*52#"5'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/")"./d'\+'%*#0'-9"2.'
$%+*.32#$*%'/6*895'("'4.*:$5"5'#62#')$99'"%2(9"'."/$5"%#/'#*'2//"//'#6"$.'"Y4*/8."'#*'M**5'.$/>'2%5'$%/8."./'#*'5"#".3$%"'
#6"'-*/#'*+'#6"'.$/>J'V6$/'/6*8950'$%'#8.%0'"%-*8.2&"'M**5'.$/>'3$#$&2#$*%'(?'299'42.#$"/0'42.#$-892.9?'2/'#6"'$%/8.2%-"'$%58/#.?'
492?/'2':$#29'.*9"'$%'+8%5$%&'#6"'."(8$95$%&0'."42$.'*.'."492-"3"%#'*+'5232&"5'6*3"/0'$%+.2/#.8-#8."'"#-J 
 
K"'62:"'2'-*%-".%'2/'#*'6*)'#6"')*.>/')$99'("'-2..$"5'*8#'2%5'/6*895'9$>"'2'5"/-.$4#$*%'*+'4*//$(9"'2--"//'.*8#"/'+*.'
:"6$-9"/'2%5'/#*.2&"'*+'32#".$29/'#*&"#6".')$#6'2%'2//"//3"%#'*+'4.*(2(9"'5$/.84#$*%'#*'("'$%-985"5'$%'":2982#$*%'*+'#6"'
*4#$*%/J

V6$/')2/'2%'$//8"'.2$/"5'(?'#6"'1"2#6'A'1234/#"25'B*-$"#?'$%'."92#$*%'#*'
#6"'F"/$&%'!"#6*5*9*&?J
V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%T/'."/4*%/$($9$#$"/'2."'/"#'*8#'$%'#6"'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#'
244"%5"5'#*'#6$/'/-6"589"J

V6$/')$99'+*.3'42.#'*+'#6"'5":"9*43"%#'*+'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/'2%5')$99'("'2%'
$34*.#2%#'-*%/$5".2#$*%'(?'#6"'-*%/#.8-#$*%'-*%#.2-#*.J'P"4."/"%#2#$:"/'*+'
#6"'B#2>"6*95".'&.*84'62:"'(""%'$%:*9:"5'$%'#6"'/"9"-#$*%'*+'#6"'4."+".."5'
-*%#.2-#*.J

Karen Beare, 
Fitzroy Park RA 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

20 March 2013

21 72%' )"' 62:"' 3*."' /4"-$,-' 5"#2$9' *+' "Y2-#9?' 6*)' 38-6' 9*-29 52#2' )2/' $%#"&.2#"5' $%#*' #6"' @#>$%/' 32-.*' 3*5"9' +*.'
-29-892#$%&' #6"' O82%#83d' K62#' 9*-29' )"$&6#$%&' 5$5' #6"?'$%#"&.2#"'$%#*'#*'#6$/'%")'-29-892#$*%d

lH*-29m'52#2')2/'$%#"&.2#"5'2/'+*99*)/k
I*.'#6"'"/#$32#$*%'*+'#6"'4".-"%#2&"'.8%E*++'#6"'/*$9/'324'+*.'1234/#"25'
1"2#6')2/' 8/"5' #*' 25C8/#' #6"' B#2%52.5' G".-"%#2&"' P8%E*++' )6$-6')2/'
4.*:$5"5'(?'#6"'28#*32#"5'.*8#$%"')$#6'#6"'ID1'7F'PW!J
V6"'11BB'.2$%+299' ."-*.5')2/'2%29?/"5'2%5' $#')2/'5"3*%/#.2#"5' #62#' $#'
)2/' /#2#$/#$-299?' $%-*%/$/#"%#')$#6' #6"' $%+*.32#$*%' +.*3' #6"' ID1J' V6$/'
$/' #*'("'"Y4"-#"5' 2/' $#' $/' /#2#$/#$-299?' 8%."9$2(9"' #*' 2449? 52#2' +.*3' 2'
/$%&9"' .2$%' &28&"' 2%5')$#6' 2' /6*.#'."-*.5'9"%&#6'$%'-*342.$/*%')$#6'#6"'
":"%#/'("$%& 4."5$-#"5' ;B""' I$&8."/' `E`' 2%5' `Ee' $%' #6"' 32$% ."4*.#<J

Karen Beare, 
Fitzroy Park RA 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

20 March 2013

22 G.*+' 18&6"/' /2$5' 42#6)2?/' 498/' 2' ($#' "Y#.2' "$#6".' /$5"')2/'2//83"5'2/'62.5'92%5/-24$%&J'V6$/' $/':".?':2&8"J'K"'%""5 
3*."'5"#2$9J

B""'42&"'ag'*+' #6"'F"/$&%'I9**5'@//"//3"%#'."4*.#' S'2')$5#6'*+'][3 
)2/'25*4#"5J

Karen Beare, 
Fitzroy Park RA 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

20 March 2013

23 K$#6'."&2.5'#*'.2$%+2990'G.*+'18&6"/'#29>"5'2(*8#'8/$%& )"2#6".' /#2#/' +.*3' 2.*8%5' #6"' -*8%#.?' ?"#' 6$/' -*99"2&8"'
;/$##$%&'#*'#6"'/$5"<'#29>"5'2(*8#'2'!"#'W+,-"'5"#".3$%2#$*% 3"#6*5*9*&?J' K6$-6'*%"'$/'$#d

K6"%'"/#$32#$%&'":"%#/')$#6'."#8.%'4".$*5/'$J"J'e0 a[0'e[0'][[0']0[[['
2%5'][0[[['?"2./0'#6"'%2#$*%29'.2$%+299'."-*.5/'2."'8/"5'*%'2'/#2#$/#$-29'
(2/$/J'I*.'"/#$32#$*%' *+' #6"' G!I0' #6"' G.*(2(9"' !2Y$383 G."-$4$#2#$*%''
;G!G<'' $/''."O8$."5J'''' V6"''G!G''$/'5".$:"5' $%' 2' 5"#".3$%$/#$-' 32%%".'
;(2/"5'*%'2%'"/#$32#$*%'*+'#6"'32Y$383':*983"'*+'.2$%+299'#6"*."#$-299?'
4*//$(9"0' 8/$%&' 2#3*/46".$-' 46?/$-/<' 2%5' #6"' IBP' ."4*.#' $%-985"/'
324/'*+'G!G')6$-6')"."'4."42."5 (?'#6"'!"#'W+,-"J

Karen Beare, 
Fitzroy Park RA 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

20 March 2013

a` @#>$%/' $349$"5' #6"$.' -*348#".' /*+#)2."')2/'+2.'/84".$*.'c'/*46$/#$-2#"5'#*'12?-*->T/':"./$*%d''\'-2%%*#',%5'$%'#6"'
."4*.#' 2' 5",%$#$:"' "Y492%2#$*%' *+' #6"' >"?' 5$++"."%-"/'("#)""%'#6"3J'72%'#6$/'("'4.*:$5"5J

@#>$%/' 8/"5' -*348#".' /*+#)2."' )6$-6' $/' )$5"9?'8/"5'')$#6$%''$%58/#.?''
#*' ' "Y#"%#' ' #62#' ' $#' ' -2%' ' ("' -*%/$5"."5' #*' ("' $%58/#.?' l/#2%52.5m'
/*+#)2."J'V6"' @#>$%/T' 6?5.289$-' 3*5"99$%&' $%-*.4*.2#"5' a'5$3"%/$*%29'
3*5"99$%&' *+' #6"' 92%5' 2.*8%5' #6" 4*%5/' 9$%>"5' #*' 2' ]' 5$3"%/$*%29'
."4."/"%#2#$*%' *+' #6"' 4*%5/' 2%5' *:".M*)' 2..2%&"3"%#/J' ' \%' #6"' ]'
5$3"%/$*%29' 3*5"90' #6"' 4*%5/' 2."' ."4."/"%#"5' (? 32#6"32#$-29'
"Y4."//$*%/'*+'#6"'."92#$*%/6$4 ("#)""%')2#".' 9":"9' 2%5'4*%5' /8.+2-"'
2."20' 2%5 #6"' *:".M*)/' (?' 2' 32#6"32#$-29' "Y4."//$*%' +*.' #6"'
."92#$*%/6$4'("#)""%'#6"')2#".' #6"' 9":"9'2%5 5$/-62.&"' ;M*)<' *8#' *+'
#6"' 4*%5J'V6"' a 5$3"%/$*%29'3*5"9'299*)/'("##".'."4."/"%#2#$*%'*+'#6"'
#*4*&.246?'2.*8%5'#6"'4*%5/'(?'(."2>$%&'#6" 2."2' 84' $%#*' 2' /".$"/'
*+' $%#".9$%>"5' 5$/-."#"'"9"3"%#/J' V6"' /*+#)2."' /*9:"/' #6"' "O82#$*%/'
+*.'M8$5' M*)' )$#6$%' #6"' "9"3"%#/' 2/' )"99' 2/' 2-.*//'#6"' (*8%52.$"/'
("#)""%' "9"3"%#/' #6"."(? /6*)$%&' #6"' /42#$29' :2.$2#$*%' *+' #6"' M*)'
2.*8%5 #6"'4*%5/J

12?-*->' (?' -*%#.2/#' 8/"5' *%9?' ]' 5$3"%/$*%29 3*5"99$%&' #"-6%$O8"/J'
V6"'/*+#)2."' #6"?'8/"5' $/'%*#')$5"9?'8/"5'$%'$%58/#.?'$%'#6"'R_'2%5')"'
62:"'%*#' -2..$"5' *8#' 2' 5"#2$9"5' 244.2$/29' *+' #6" /*+#)2."J

V6"' @#>$%/' 3*5"99$%&' )2/' 3*."' /*46$/#$-2#"5' $% #62#'$#'29/*'3*5"99"5'
#6"'2."2/'2.*8%5'#6"'4*%5/J

P
age 182



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
9

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Karen Beare, 
Fitzroy Park RA 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

20 March 2013

25 K6*').*#"'^I9**5/'2%5'P"/".:*$.'B2+"#?'S'j
.5'
D5$#$*%Td I9**5/' 2%5'P"/".:*$.0' j

.5 
D5$#$*%0')2/' 48(9$/6"5 (?'#6"'\%/#$#8#$*%'*+'7$:$9'

D%&$%""./'$%']bbZJ

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

aZ G".-"%#2&"'P8%E*++k'@#>$%/'62/'325"'#)*'2442."%#9? ."2/*%2(9"'/$349$,-2#$*%/J' V6"?'62:"'2//83"5'#62#'#6"."'$/ 2%'":"%'
5$/#.$(8#$*%'*+'#6"'42#6'%"#)*.>'2-.*//'#6"'1"2#6J 1*)":".'#6"."'244"2./'#*'("'9"//'42#6/';2%5'6"%-"'9"//'-*342-#$*%<'*%'#6"'
6$&6".'1"2#6J' @9/*0'#6"?'62:"'2449$"5'2% 2:".2&"'BGP':298"'*+'ejn'#*'299'-2#-63"%#/0'.2#6".'#62%'8/"'2'/4"-$,-'9*)".'BGP'
*%'#6"'844".'3*."'4".3"2(9"'/*$9/J !$&6#'#6"/"'/$349$,-2#$*%/'."/89#'$%'#6"'-29-892#"5'.8%E*++'$%#*'#6"'844".'3*."'/"%/$#$:"'
4*%5/'("$%&'#**'6$&60'9"25$%& #*'#**'38-6')*.>'*%'#6"/"'4*%5/d' B6*895'#6"'#*#29'.8%E*++'("'25C8/#"5'#*'5$/-62.&"'9"//'$%#*'
#6"'844".'4*%5/'2%5'3*."'$%#*'#6"'9*)".'4*%5/d

V6"'ID1'&8$52%-"'*%'.8%E*++'"/#$32#$*%'+*.'#6" G!I'/#2#"/'#62#')6"%'#6"'
BGP'"/#$32#"'$/'9"//'#62%'ejn0'#6"'BGP'/6*895'("'/"#'2#'ejnJ' W% (2/$/'*+'
#6$/'25:$-"0'#6"'BGP')2/'%*#':2.$"5 ("#)""%'#6"'6$&6".'2%5'9*)".'1"2#6J

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

27 R4/#."23'B4$99/k' V6"'*.$&$%29'V2(9"']E`0'G*%5'B#*.2&"'7242-$#?0'oV2(9"'eEg'$/'$5"%#$-29p0'/#2#"/'$%'-*983%'j'"Y-985"/ /4$99/'+.*3'
#6"'84/#."23'4*%5J' @'.":$/"5'V2(9"')2/'$//8"5 *%'a]JjJa[]j')$#6'29#"."5'n'/#*.2&"',&8."/'$%'#6"'92/#'-*983%J' 7*983%'j'
6"25$%&'%*)'."25/'$%-985$%&'/4$99/'+.*3 #6"'84/#."23'4*%5J' B6*895'#6"'52#2'$%'#6"'j.5'-*983% oV*#29'G!I':*983"JJJp'("'29#"."5'
#*'/6*)'$%-."2/"5'$%M*)d

V6"'V2(9"'62/'(""%'.":$/"5'#6"'."4*.#'."$//8"5J

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

ai B"-#$*%'̀ JZ'$%5$-2#"/'#62#'$%M*)'6?5.*&.246/')"."'-29-892#"5 +*.'"2-6'4*%5T/'$%5$:$5829'-2#-63"%#J' \#'$/'%*#'-9"2.'$+'#6"'+*99*)$%&'
/"-#$*%/'2%5'#2(9"/'$%-985"'*.'"Y-985"'84/#."23 /4$99/J' G9"2/"'#6"."+*."'-*%,.3'+.*3'B"-#$*%'`JZ'*%)2.5/0')6"#6".'*.'%*#'
84/#."23'/4$99/'62:"'(""%'$%-985"50'2%5'$+ %*#0'49"2/"'4.*:$5"'23"%5"5'V2(9"/'$%-985$%&'84/#."23'/4$99/ )6"."'244.*4.$2#"J

V6"' 6?5.*&.246/' 4."/"%#"5' 2."' +*.' #6"' )6*9" 84/#."23' -2#-63"%#'
&"%".2#"5' (?' #6" 6?5.*9*&$-29' 3*5"9J' V6"/"' 6?5.*&.246/' 62:"' (""%'
.*8#"5'#6.*8&6'#6"'6?5.289$-'3*5"9'2%5'$#'$/ #6$/'#62#'4.*:$5"/'#6"'/4$99/'
+.*3'84/#."23 ."/".:*$./J' V6"/"'/4$99/'2."'#6"."+*."'%*#'$%-985"5 in the 
#2(9"/'/6*)$%&'6?5.*&.246/J' V6"'#2(9"/'62:"'%*#'(""%'8452#"5'#*'$%-985"'
#6"'/4$99'$%M*)/'2/'#6"?'2."'-*349"Y'2%5'5$+,-89#'#*'$%-*.4*.2#"J  \#'62/'
(""%'5*%"'+*.'#6"'G!I'2%5'8452#"5'G!I 4"2>'$%M*)/'2."'4.*:$5"5J

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

ab

30

I9**5'D/#$32#"/'V2(9"']E]0'oV2(9"'`Eg'$/'$5"%#$-29pk' V6$/'#2(9" -*342."/'@#>$%/'32Y$383'M*)/'+*.'5$++"."%#'/#*.3/'
2#'":".?'4*%5')$#6'12?-*->T/'M*)/0')6$-6'62:"'(""%'"Y#.2-#"5'+.*3'6$/'V2(9"'g0'4J`jJ' @."'#6"/"'#)*'#2(9"/'5$."-#9?'
-*342.2(9"d I*.'"Y2349"0'12?-*->'/#2#"/'#62#'#6"/"'M*)/')$99'(" 2##"%82#"5'(?'#6"'92>"'-62$%'2%5'#6"/"':298"/'#68/'
."4."/"%# #6"'(*8%52.?'-*%5$#$*%/'*+'#6"'92>"'3*5"9J'G9"2/"'#6"."+*."'-92.$+?'#6$/'2/4"-#0'42.#$-892.9?'+*.'84/#."23'$%M*)/'
2%5 )6"#6".'-8.."%#'2##"%82#$*%'62/'(""%'299*)"5'$%'#6$/'2%5 *#6".'."9":2%#'#2(9"/J

Q82%#$,"5'P$/>'@//"//3"%#k' @#>$%/'62/'-*%,.3"5'$% @44"%5$Y'@'*+'#6"$.'F"/$&%'P":$")'!"#6*5'B#2#"3"%#'2%5 /"42.2#"9?'
#62#'#6"?')$99'-2..?'*8#'2'QP@'*+'#6"'-8.."%#'523 /$#82#$*%J' K6"%')$99'#6$/'("'-2..$"5'*8#d' K"'8.&"'#62#'$#'("'2/'/**%'2/'#6"'
5"/$&%'M**5'62/'(""%'2&.""5J

V6"' V2(9"/' 2."' 5$."-#9?' -*342.2(9"J' @/' 4".' #6"' ."/4*%/"' 2(*:"0' (*#6'
#2(9"/'-*%#2$%'#6"'4"2>'*+'#6"'6?5.*&.246/'-29-892#"5'+.*3'#6"'."/4"-#$:"'
6?5.*9*&$-29'3*5"9/'2%5'#6"?'2."'#6"."+*."'5$."-#9?'-*342.2(9"J

V6"'Q82%#$#2#$:"'P$/>'@//"//3"%#')$99'("'-2..$"5 *8#'(8#')"'"Y4"-#'#62#'
9$:"/')$99'/#$99'("'2#'.$/>'$% #6"'8.(2%'2."2'5*)%/#."23'*+'#6"'1"2#6J

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

31 G."-$4$#2#$*%'c'F"/$&%'P2$%+299'F"4#6/k' G9"2/"'"Y492$%'6*) G!G'2%5']k][0[[['.2$%+299'5"4#6/'2%5'58.2#$*%/')"."'-29-892#"5J'
K2/']k][0[[['.2$%+299'5".$:"5'+.*3'G!G'o*.':$-"':"./2pd

V6"'][0[[['?"2.' .2$%+299'5"4#6')2/'5"#".3$%"5 +.*3'#6"'ID1'/#2#$/#$-29'
.2$%+299'52#2J' V6"'G!G')2/'5"#".3$%"5'+.*3'#6"'G!G'324/'4.*:$5"5'$% the 
IBP'2%5'$/'5"#".3$%$/#$-0'%*#'/#2#$/#$-29J

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

32 @."'#6"'G!G'2%5']k][0[[['.2$%+299'5"4#6/'2%5'58.2#$*%/ 4.*4*/"5'+*.'5"/$&%'aje33'*:".'bJe'6*8./'2%5'-J]`]33 *:".']Jb'
6*8./'."/4"-#$:"9?d' ;\+'/*0'#6"'G!Gc]k][0[[['.2#$*'$/ 4."/832(9?'-J']JZgd<J' \+'%*#0'49"2/"'/#2#"J

V6"."' $/' %*' 4."5"#".3$%"5' .2#$*' ("#)""%' #6"' G!G 2%5' ][0[[[' .2$%+299'
5"4#6/J' @/'%*#"5'2(*:"0'#6" G!G')2/'5".$:"5'8/$%&'5"#".3$%$/#$-'3"#6*5/'
)6"."2/'#6"'][0[[['?"2.':298"'$/'5".$:"5 /#2#$/#$-299?J

X"."3?'K.$&6# 

1A1B0'*%'F"/$&%'

I9**5'@//"//3"%#

ae'!2.-6'a[]j

33 12?-*->'8/"5'ag[33'2%5']je33'."/4"-#$:"9?0'(*#6'*:".
`J`'6*8./J' V6$/'4."/832(9?'&$:"/'2'38-6'/92->".'G!G'#62% 12?-*->0'(8#'2'38-6'3*."'$%#"%/"']k][0[[['/#*.30')6$-6
32?'("'#6"'32$%'$%M8"%-"'*%'523'5"/$&%J' G9"2/"'"Y492$% )6?'#6"%'/*'38-6'5$++"."%-"'+.*3'12?-*->'$%'5"4#6/'2%5
58.2#$*%/0'2%5')6?'#6"'@#>$%/'58.2#$*%/'*+'bJe'6*8./'2%5']Jb 6*8./'2."'/*'5$++"."%#

@#>$%/'"Y#.2-#"5'.2$%+299'5"4#6/'+.*3'#6"'IBP'+*.'#6"'G!I'2%5'#6"'][0[[['
?"2.'":"%#/';299'*#6".'":"%#/'8/"5'#6"'ID1'.2$%+299<J'K"'5*'%*#'>%*)')6"."'
12?-*->T/'.2$%+299'5"4#6/'-*3"'+.*30'(8#'(2/"5'*%'#6"$.'2//83"5'`J`'6*8.'
/#*.30'$+'#6"?'625'8/"5'IBP'.2$%+299';2/'4".'#6"'&8$52%-"<'#6"'.2$%+299'5"4#6'
/6*895'62:"'(""%'2.*8%5']Z`33';/""'*8.'#2(9"'̀ J`<J'I8.#6".3*."0'$#')*895'
244"2.' #62#'12?-*->'(2/"5' #6"$.' G!G':298"'*%'5*8(9"' #6"'][0[[['?"2.'
:298"';)6".":".'#62#'-23"'+.*3<')6$-6'$/').*%&J''@#>$%/T'/#*.3'58.2#$*%/'
)"."'*4#$3$/"5' #*'5"#".3$%"' #6"' -.$#$-29' /#*.3'58.2#$*%' +*.'"2-6'":"%#0'
)6"."2/'12?-*->'-6**/"'2',Y"5'`J`'6*8.'58.2#$*%0')6$-6'$/'%*#'2'-*.."-#'
244.*2-6J

P
age 183



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

10

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

j` !2Y$383'I9**5'D/#$32#"/k'12?-*->'8/"5'#6"'244.*Y$32#"'.24$5'2//"//3"%#'G!Gc]k][0[[['.2$%+299'.2#$*'*+'aJ[J'I.*3'
#6$/'6"'5".$:"5'M**5'"/#$32#"/'2#'(*#6'1$&6&2#"'=*']'2%5'1234/#"25'=*']')6$-6'(*#6'625'2'G!Ic]k][0[[['.2#$*'29/*'*+'
aJ[J'V6"/"'2."'/6*)%'$%'V2(9"/']E]'c'`Eg0'$J"J'(*#6'6$/'$%48#'.2$%+299'2%5'6$/'*8#M*)'M**5'.2#$*/'*%'#6"'(*##*3
4*%5/'2."'#6"'/23"J

\%'-*%#.2/#0'@#>$%/T'3*."'5"#2$9"5'-29-892#$*%/'*+'.2$%+299'$%48#/'."/89#'$%'M*)/'2#'(*#6'(*##*3'523/')$#6'2'G!Ic]k][0[[['
.2#$*'*+'aJ]a'2%5'aJaa'."/4"-#$:"9?0')6$-6'2."'&."2#".'#62%'12?-*->T/'aJ[J'K6?'2."'@#>$%/'*8#M*)'.2#$*/'%*#'(*#6'*+'#6"'
*.5".'*+']JZgd

V6"'.2#$*'*+'a'+.*3'#6"'.24$5'2//"//3"%#')2/'$%#"%5"5'#*'("'2449$"5'
#*'G"2>'I9*)/'5".$:"5'+.*3'#6"'.24$5'3"#6*50'%*#'.2$%+299'5"4#6/J'V6"'
.2#$*'$/'8/"5'*%9?')$#6'#6"'.24$5'2//"//3"%#'2%5'#6"'.24$5'2//"//3"%#'
$/'%*#'244.*4.$2#"'+*.'5"/$&%J

V6"'.2#$*'*+'][0[[['?"2.'.2$%+299'2%5'G!G'5"4#6/ /6*895'%*#'("'"Y4"-#"5'
#*'("'#6"'/23"'2%5'.2#$* *+'#6"'4"2>'M*)/J

V6$/' $/' ("-28/"' #6"' ."92#$*%/6$4' ("#)""%' .2$%+299 5"4#6' 2%5' M*)' $/' %*#'
9$%"2.'2%5')"'/6*895'%*#'"Y4"-#'#6"'.2#$*/'("#)""%'#6"'][0[[['2%5'G!G'
.2$%+299'#*'("'#6"'/23"'2/'#6"'.2#$*'("#)""%'#6" ][0[[['M*)'2%5'#6"'G!IJ

Jeremy Wright 
H&HS, on Design 
Flood Assessment

25 March 2013

35 W:".#*44$%&0'2%5'F23'B#2($9$#?'2%5'B4$99)2?'G.*#"-#$*%k'V2(9"'eE]j'&$:"/'/6*)/'32Y$383'5"4#6'*+'*:".#*44$%&J'
@#>$%/'7*%-98/$*%/'2%5'P"-*33"%52#$*%/0'4J`e0'/#2#"'#62#'P"/".:*$.'.*8#$%&'."/89#"5'$%'&"%".299?'9*)".'*:".#*44$%&'
5"4#6/'#62%'#6*/"'4."5$-#"5'(?'12?-*->J'12?-*->T/'G!I'*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6/'2."'/6*)%'$%'6$/'V2(9"/']Z'2%5'jjJ'V6"/"'
/6*)'#62#'@#>$%/'/#2#"3"%#'$/'-*.."-#'+*.'299'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%'2%5'+*.'#6"'H25$"/'N2#6$%&'523J'1*)":".0'+*.'#6"'
*#6".'e'523/'*%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%0'@#>$%/'*:".#*44$%&'G!I'5"4#6/'2."'299'6$&6".'#62%'12?-*->T/J'1*)0'#6"."+*."0'$/'
$#'#62#'@#>$%/'62/'#6"/"'6$&6".'*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6/0'("2.$%&'$%'3$%5'#62#'@#>$%/'G!G';$+'#6$/'$/'aje33<'$/'*%9?'ign'*+'
12?-*->T/0'2%5'$/'/4."25'*:".'2'58.2#$*%'*+'*:".'#)$-"'2/'9*%&d

V2(9"/']Z'2%5'jj'+.*3'#6"'12?-*->'P"4*.#'."+".'#*'#6"'][0[[['?"2.'M**5J'
V2(9"/']g'2%5'j`'+.*3 #6"'12?-*->'."4*.#'2."'+*.'#6"'G!I'2%5'#6"/"'/6*)'
#62#'#6"'@#>$%/'/#2#"3"%#'$/'-*.."-#J

Peter Wilder, 
Strategic

Landscape 
Architect on Design 
Flood Assessment

22 March 2013

jZ V6"'-29-892#$*%/'+*.'B#*->'G*%5'/""3"5'#*'2##.$(8#"'#6" "%#$."'-2#-63"%#'%*.#6'*+'B#*->'G*%5'#*'#62#'4*%5'29*%"'2%5'5*'
%*#'#2>"'$%#*'2--*8%#'2%?'2##"%82#$*%'*.'6*95$%&'(2->'#62#'#6"'#)*'_"%)**5'G*%5/'*++".J

V6"."+*."0'29#6*8&6')"'5*'%*#'"Y4"-#'#*'-2..?'*8#')*.>/'*% #6"/"'4*%5/' )"'/#$99'%""5'@#>$%/'#*'4.*:$5"'#6"'2##"%82#$*% 
-242-$#?'2%5'#2>"'$%#*'2--*8%#'#6"'"++"-#'*+'#6"/"'4*%5/')6"%'2//"//$%&'B#*->'G*%50'*#6".)$/"'#6"'3"2/8."/'."O8$."5 2#'
B#*->'G*%5'9**>'5$/4.*4*.#$*%2#"'#*'#6"'/-29"'*+'#6" 4.*(9"3J'V6$/'$/'+8%523"%#29'#*'@#>$%/'G.*(9"3'F",%$#$*% 5*-83"%#J

V6"'#"34*.2.?'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'_"%)**5 G*%5/')2/'C85&"5'#*'("'
%"&9$&$(9"J

V6"' _"%)**5' G*%5/' 62:"' (""%' 3*5"99"5' #*' 2//"//' 6*)' 38-6' )2#".'
#6"?')*895'/#*."'58.$%&'#6"'G!I'":"%#'2%5'$#')2/'+*8%5'#62#'#6"?')*895'
4.*:$5"'%"&9$&$(9"' /#*.2&"' /*' #6"'"++"-#'*+' #6"3')*895'("' $%/$&%$,-2%#J''
K6"%'/#*.2&"'$%'#6"'_"%)**5'G*%5/'$/'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#0'#6"'5"4#6'*+'
*:".#*44$%&'2#'/#*->'G*%5'-62%&"5'(?'][33'#*'a[330'#68/'/6*)$%&'#62#'
#6"'$%M8"%-"'*+'#6"'_"%)**5'G*%5/'$/'%"&9$&$(9"J'

P
age 184



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
11

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King, 
!"##$%&'(

Mansions on Design 
Flood Assessment

27 March 2013

37

ji

jb

`[

`]

`a

@9#6*8&6'#6"'4.$32.?'*(C"-#$:"'*+'#6"')*.>'#*'("'8%5".#2>"% (?'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'$/'#*'4.":"%#'523'+2$98."')6$9/#'4."/".:$%&'
#6"'-62.2-#".'2%5'O829$#?'*+'1234/#"25'1"2#60'#6"'/"-*%52.?'*(C"-#$:"'38/#'("'#*'9"//"%'#6"'O82%#$#?'*+'/8.+2-"')2#".'
2.$/$%&'+.*3'*:".#*44$%&0'/4$99)2?/'2%5'5.2$%/'*%#*'#6"'1"2#6 2%5'/8(/"O8"%#9?'$%#*'/8..*8%5$%&'."/$5"%#$29'2."2/J'K6$9"''
)"')"9-*3"'?*8.'2//8.2%-"'#62#'#6"'/$#82#$*%')$99'%*#'("'325"')*./"')"')*895')$/6'2//8.2%-"/'#62#'299'M**5')2#"./'2."'
32%2&"5'2%5'-*%#.*99"5'$%#*'#6"'5.2$%2&"'2%5'/#*.3')2#".'/?/#"3/'$%'/8-6'2'32%%".'#62#'$#'3$%$3$h"5'2%?'.$/>'#* 9$+"'2%5'
4.*4".#?J'V6"'."/89#/'+.*3'#6"'$%:"/#$&2#$*%'2/'/6*)% $%'?*8.'."4*.#'/6*895'("'-*%/$5"."5'$%'-*%C8%-#$*%')$#6'#6"
-242-$#?'*+'#6"'5.2$%/'2%5'/")"./'#*'-*4"')$#6'2%?')2#".
2.$/$%&J'@99'42.#$"/'/6*895'("'2(9"'#*'"2/$9?'8%5"./#2%5'2%5'#* -*342."')62#'#6"'"++"-#'*+'+8#8."'4.*4*/29/'32?'("')$#6'
the "Y$/#$%&'/$#82#$*%0'42.#$-892.9?')6"."'#6"'."/$5"%#$29'2."2/'2++"-#"5'(?'/8.+2-"')2#".'+.*3'#6"'1"2#6'2."'9$>"9?'#*'("'
2++"-#"5J

K"'8%5"./#2%5'#62#'F.J'18&6"/'2%5'7*H')$99'9$2$/"')$#6 7235"%';2/'9"25'28#6*.$#?<0'VK@0'D@'2%5'FDIP@'2%5'4.*:$5"'#6"3'
)$#6'84'#*'52#"'$%+*.32#$*%J'K"'/6*895'9$>"'#*'>%*)'6*)'2%5')$#6')6*3'#6$/'$%+*.32#$*%')$99'("'/62."5J

79"2.'$%+*.32#$*%'/6*895'("'325"'2:2$92(9"'#62#')$99'"%2(9" ."/$5"%#/'#*'2//"//'#6"$.'"Y4*/8."'#*'M**5'.$/>'2%5'$%/8."./'#* 
5"#".3$%"'#6"'-*/#'*+'#6"'.$/>J

7235"%'62:"'/2$5'#62#'#6"?'32?'62:"'2--"//'#*'&*:".%3"%#'+8%5$%&'$+'M**5$%&'$/'9$>"9?'#*'*--8.'$%'2%'":"%#'*+']kge'*.'9"//J'
VK@'62:"'2'/#2#8#*.?'*(9$&2#$*%';\'("9$":"<'#*'5.2$% /8.+2-"')2#".'2.$/$%&'+.*3'2']kj['":"%#J' K"'/6*895'9$>"'-*%,.32#$*%'
$%'#6"'9$&6#'*+'#6"'%")'-29-892#$*%/'#62#'2%#$-$42#"5':*983"/0'/4""5'2%5'9*-2#$*%'*+'/8.+2-"')2#".'2.$/$%&'+.*3'299'":"%#/0'
$%-985$%&']kj['2%5']kge'":"%#/0'("'325"'2:2$92(9"'#*'/#2#8#*.?'28#6*.$#$"/J

K"'/6*895'9$>"'-*%/$/#"%#'2%5'."9$2(9"'$%+*.32#$*%'325"'2:2$92(9"'*%'#6"'/$h"0'9*-2#$*%'2%5'-*%%"-#$*%/'*+'5.2$%/'2%5 
/")"./0'(*#6'+*.'/8.+2-"0'+*89';-*3($%"5'/")"./<'2%5'/#*.3')2#".J

V6"',&8."/'&$:"%'+*.'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%'$%5$-2#"'#62#'#6" -242-$#?'*+'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%'#*'-*4"')$#6'32C*.'":"%#/'$/ 
("##".'#62%'#62#'*+'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%J'@'5.?'."/".:*$.')6$-6 )$99'+8.#6".'3$#$&2#"'5*)%/#."23'M**5$%&'$/'("$%&'-*%/$5"."5 
#*'$34.*:"'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%J'K"')$/6'#* ("'2//8."5'#62#'/$3$92.'3"2/8."/'("'-*%/$5"."5'+*.'#6" 
1$&6&2#"'-62$%J

7235"%'7*8%-$9'2."'#6"'H"25'H*-29'I9**5'@8#6*.$#?'2%5'62:"'/#2#8#*.?'
."/4*%/$($9$#$"/'$%'#".3/'*+'/8.+2-"')2#".'M**5$%&J

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'2'58#?'#*'"%/8."'#6"'/2+"#?'*+'#6"'
523/0'2%5')*.>/'2."'%"-"//2.?'#*'"%/8."'#62#'#6"'G.*(2(9"'!2Y$383'
I9**5'$/'/2+"9?'42//"5'#6.*8&6'#6"'-2#-63"%#J

F.'18&6"/';#6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".<'62/'25:$/"5'#62#'#6"'4.*4*/"5')*.>/'*%'
#6"'1"2#6')$99'%*#'$%-."2/"'/8.+2-"')2#".'M**5$%&J

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'/62."5'#6"'-8.."%#'F"/$&%'I9**5'
@//"//3"%#')$#6'7235"%'7*8%-$9'2%5'V623"/'K2#".'@8#6*.$#?'2%5'48#'
#6$/'."4*.#'*%'#6"'7$#?T/')"(/$#"J

I9**5'324/'2."'2:2$92(9"'*%'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'2%5'
D%:$.*%3"%#'@&"%-?')"(/$#"/J'K"'2."'8%2(9"'#*'-*33"%#'*%'$%/8."./T'
."O8$."3"%#/J

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%')$99'-*%#$%8"'#*'9$2$/"')$#6'#6"'."/4*%/$(9"'
/#2#8#*.?'28#6*.$#$"/

V623"/'K2#".'@8#6*.$#?'6*95/'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'#6"'/8.+2-"')2#".'
/")".'/?/#"3J''V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'4.*:$5"5'299'*+'#6"'
$%+*.32#$*%'#62#'62/'(""%'325"'2:2$92(9"'#*'$#J

V6"'$//8"'*+'2##"%82#$%&')2#".'$/'2'>"?'-*34*%"%#'$%'(*#6'-62$%/'*+'4*%5/J'
@99'*4#$*%/')$99'("'-*%/$5"."5J

Harriet King, 
!"##$%&'(

Mansions on Design 
Flood Assessment

27 March 2013

`j V2(9"'G2&"'ik'K6?'2."'#6"']k][['4"2>'M*)/'+*.'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'#6"'*%9?'*%"/'#62#'@#>$%/'62:"'"/#$32#"5'#*'("'&."2#".'
#62%'12?-*->d

K"'62:"'8/"5'#6"'ID1'.2$%+299E.8%*++'3*5"9'#* -29-892#"'299'6?5.*.246/'
("9*)' #6"' ][0[[[' ?"2.'6?5.*&.246J' ' 12?-*->' ' -29-892#"5' ' #6"' ' ][[''
?"2.'4"2>' M*)' 8/$%&' 2%' "34$.$-29' +*.3892' #*' -29-892#"'Q!"2%';3"2%'
2%%829' M**5<0' 2%5' -*3($%"5' ' #6$/ )$#6' #6"' *95' IBP' ."&$*%29' M**5'
+."O8"%-?' -8.:"J V6$/' 244.*2-6' 8/"5' (?' 12?-*->' )2/' /84"./"5"5 in 
]bbb' (?' #6"' ID1'2%5')$99' &$:"' :".?' 5$++"."%#'."/89#/'#*'#6"'ID1'.2$%+299E
.8%*++'244.*2-6J

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

`` K"'%*)'6*4"'#*'4"./825"'#6"'28#6*.$#$"/';$%-985$%&'7235"%0 V623"/'K2#".0'#6"'D%:$.*%3"%#'@&"%-?0'FDIP@0'"#-<'#*'
&*'#6"':$#29'/#"4'+8.#6".'2%5'$%:"/#$&2#"'2%5'$%-985"'$%'#6"$.'5"/$&%/')*.>/'#62#')$99'$34.*:"'*8.'/$#82#$*%'2#'9"2/#'$%'9$%" 
)$#6'#6"'4."5$-#"5'$%-."2/"'$%'+."O8"%-?'2%5'$%#"%/$#?'*+'.2$%+299'/#*.3'":"%#/J'K"'8%5"./#2%5'+.*3'F.'18&6"/'2%5 B$3*%'
H""'#62#'/6*895'+8%5/'("-*3"'2:2$92(9"0'/8-6'3$#$&2#$*%'+2-#*./'-2%'("'$%:"/#$&2#"5'2%5'$349"3"%#"5'2/'42.#'*+'#6"'32$%'
K*.>/'(?'7*H'E'#6"."'$/'/#$99'#$3"'(8#'$#'$/ #$&6#'2442."%#9?J'V*'5*'/8-6')*.>/'*%'#6"'1"2#6')*895'("'68&"9?'3*."'-*/#E
"++"-#$:"'#62%'#.?$%&'#*'2-6$":"'#6"'/23"'."/89#'(?')*.>/'*++'#6"'1"2#6J'12/'#6"'7*H'2/>"5'@#>$%/'#* $%:"/#$&2#"'2%5'-*/#'
^*%'#6"'1"2#6T'3$#$&2#$*%'3"2/8."/d

7235"%'7*8%-$9'2."'#6"'H"25'H*-29'I9**5'@8#6*.$#?'2%5'62:"'/#2#8#*.?'
."/4*%/$($9$#$"/'$%'#".3/'*+'/8.+2-"')2#".'M**5$%&J

7235"%'7*8%-$9'2."'8%5".#2>$%&'/#85$"/'#*'3*5"9'/8.+2-"')2#".'M**5$%&'
$%'42.#/'*+'7235"%')6"."'M**5$%&'62/'4.":$*8/9?'*--8.."5J'V6"'7$#?'*+'
H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'%*#'(""%'4.*:$5"5')$#6' #6"'*8#-*3"'*+'2%?'*+'
#6"/"'/#85$"/J
@9/*'49"2/"'/""'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#'$//8"5'*%'aic]]c]a0'244"%5"5'#*'#6$/'
B-6"589"J

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

`e @#')62#'/#*.3'":"%#'5*'#6"'#)*'-62$%/'/#2.#'*:".#*44$%& -8.."%#9?d'\%'42.#$-892.0')$#6'."+"."%-"'#*'V2(9"'eE]a0'2."'?*8'2(9"'
#*'&$:"'8/'3*."'4."-$/"'"/#$32#"/'*+')6"%'1$&6&2#"'=*']'4*%5'/#2.#/'*:".#*44$%&d'K$99'#6"'K*.>/'-62%&"'#6$/d

B""'V2(9"'e'S']a'$%'32$%'."4*.#J

@99' @#>$%/' -2%' /2?' 2#' #6$/' /#2&"' $/' #62#' #6"' )*.>/')$99' %*#' 32>"' #6"'
/$#82#$*%' )*./"' #62%' #6"?' 2."'%*)J

P
age 185



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

12

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

`Z @#')62#'/#*.3'":"%#'9":"9')$99'/8.498/')2#".'42//$%&'#6.*8&6 1234/#"25'=*']'4*%5'-28/"'M**5$%&'#*'*8.'-*338%$#?d'K"'
244."-$2#"'#62#'#6$/'32?'("'("?*%5'#6"'/-*4"'*+'#6$/'."4*.#'(8#'2%?',&8."/0'"/#$32#$*%/0'$%5$-2#$*%/'*.'":"%'"Y492%2#$*%/'
*+'^6*)'#*'2//"/'#6$/T')*895'("'3*/#'6"94+89J

\%' #6"' "Y$/#$%&' /-"%2.$*0' 2' M**5' *+' ."#8.%' 4".$*5' &."2#".' #62%' ]k]0[[['
?"2./')*895'-28/"'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'523'2#'1234/#"25'=*J]'G*%5J
\%' #6"' -8.."%#' 4."+".."5' *4#$*%/0' #6$/' /#2%52.5' *+' 4.*#"-#$*%' $/' "$#6".'
32#-6"5';W4#$*%'!<'*.'"Y-""5"5';W4#$*%'G<J

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

`g K$99'@#>$%/'32>"'299'."9":2%#'$%+*.32#$*%'+.""9?'2:2$92(9"'#* *#6".'28#6*.$#$"/';/8-6'2/'7235"%'7*8%-$9'2%5'V623"/
K2#".<'/*'#62#'#6"?'-2%'$%-985"'/8-6'$%+*.32#$*%'$%'#6"$.
M**5'299":$2#$*%'5"/$&%/d

K*.>' 4.*58-"5' (?' @#>$%/' $/' #6"' 4.*4".#?' *+' #6" 7$#?'*+'H*%5*%J'
V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'/62."5'#6"'-8.."%#'F"/$&%'I9**5'
@//"//3"%#')$#6'7235"%'7*8%-$9'2%5'V623"/'K2#".'@8#6*.$#?'2%5'48#'
#6$/'."4*.#'*%'#6"'7$#?T/')"(/$#"J

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

`i K"'2."'/#$99'8%/8."'2(*8#'#6"'.8%E*++'-29-892#$*%/J'V6"'&899?'5*)%'#6"'/$5"'*+'*8.'42#6';#*'#6"'D2/#'*+'#6"'H$5*<'$/'-*%/#2%#9?'
+899'#*'*:".M*)$%&')$#6')2#".J'W+#"%0'":"%'$%'9$&6#'.2$%+2990'#6"'42#6'$#/"9+'62/')2#".'M*)$%&'5*)%'$#'"/4"-$299?'2#'#6"'#*4';%"2.'
#6"'F"4*#<'2%5'/#"44$%&'*++'#6"'42#6'3"2%/ /#"44$%&'$%#*'/*55"%0'/*&&?'385J'\%/#$%-#'/2?/'#62#'#6"."+*."'2%?'/#*.3'":"%#'
.2$%+299')*895'/$349?'62:"'#*'.8%'*++'#6"'/8.+2-"'*+'#6"'1"2#6'/$%-"'#6"'&.*8%5'$/'29."25?'^+899TJ'K"',%5'$#'62.5'#*'8%5"./#2%5'
6*)'$#'$/'#62#'$%'2']'$%'][['?"2.'/#*.3'":"%#'#62#'`gn'*+'#6"'.2$%+299')*895'/*2>'$%#*'#6" &.*8%5JJJ

K6$9"'/*3"'42.#/' *+' #6"'1"2#6')$99' 62:"'6$&6 .8%*++' .2#"/0' 32%?'
*+' #6"' :"&"#2#"5' 2."2/' 2%5'2."2/' 2)2?' +.*3' -*342-#"5' +**#42#6/'
)$99' 299*)'.2$%+299' #*' $%,9#.2#"J' \#' $/'29/*'2'+8%-#$*%'*+'#6"' 2($9$#?' *+'
#6"' 8%5".9?$%&' /*$9' #*' 2--"4#' 2%5 #.2%/3$#' .2$%+2990' 2%5' 2--*.5$%&' #*'
#6"' /*$9' 324/'+*.' #6"'6"2#60' #6"' -*34*/$#$*%'*+' /*$9' 5*"/'299*)'+*.'
$%,9#.2#$*%'*%'/*3"'42.#/'*+'#6"'1"2#6J

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

`b !2?')"'62:"'#6"'"O8$:29"%#',&8."/'+*.'/#*.3'":"%#/'/3299".'#62%']k][[0'/2?']k][0']ka[0']kj[0']ke['2%5']kge'd'!2.>'
F$->$%/*%'*+'V623"/'K2#".'#*95'8/'#62#'W+)2#')$99'*%9?'299*)'#6"3'#*'84&.25"'2."2/')6*'2."'2#'.$/>'+.*3'2']k]['/#*.3'
":"%#'2%5'-2%'*%9?'84&.25"'#6"3'#*'2']kj['9":"9J'V68/0'2/'4".'*8.'4*$%#'g'2(*:"0'/8-6'$%+*.32#$*%')*895'("':".?'8/"+89J

@#>$%/'*8#48#'$/'#6"'4.*4".#?'*+'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%J
V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'/62."5'#6"'-8.."%#'F"/$&%'I9**5'
@//"//3"%#')$#6'7235"%'7*8%-$9'2%5'V623"/'K2#".'@8#6*.$#?'2%5'48#'
#6$/'."4*.#'*%'#6"'7$#?T/')"(/$#"J
V6"'7$#?' *+' H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%' -2%' ("' ."O8$."5' #*' -2..?' *8#')*.>/' #*'
"%/8."'#62#'#6"'.$/>'*+'+2$98."'*+'#6"'523/'*%'$#/'/#2#8#*.?'."/".:*$./'58"'
#*'*:".#*44$%&' $/' l:$.#8299?'"9$3$%2#"5mJ'V6"'F"/$&%'B#2%52.5/' #6"."+*."'
."O8$."'3*5"99$%&' *+' "Y#."3"' .2$%+299' ":"%#/' .2#6".' #62%'3*."' +."O8"%#'
.2$%+299'":"%#/J

Charles Leonard, 
ECOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

50 @."'#6"."'2%?'5$/-8//$*%/'("$%&'625')$#6'7235"%'7*8%-$9 2%5c*.'V623"/'K2#".'2(*8#')6"."'#6"'.2$%+299')2#".'#62#
^42//"/'#6.*8&6T'1$&6&2#"'=*']'4*%5'2%5'1234/#"25'=*']'4*%5')$99'"%#".'#6"$.'5.2$%2&"'/?/#"3/d

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'2'58#?' #*'"%/8."' #6"'/2+"#?'*+' #6"'
523/0' 2%5')*.>/' 2."' %"-"//2.?' #*' "%/8."' #62#' #6"' G.*(2(9"'!2Y$383'
I9**5'$/'/2+"9?'42//"5'#6.*8&6'#6"'-2#-63"%#/J

Charles Leonard, 
EGOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

51 K62#'$/'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'D3".&"%-?'U29:"'/?/#"3'*% 1$&6&2#"'=*']d'\/'#6$/'/?/#"3'("$%&'."#2$%"5'+*.'*4".2#$*%29'8/"d'
F*'2%?'*+'#6"',&8."/'$%'#6"'."4*.#'."M"-#'6*)'38-6'#6$/'."58-"/'"&'*:"./4$99'+*.'5$++"."%#'.2$%+299'/#*.3'":"%#/d

V6$/'62/'%*#'(""%'":2982#"5q'#6"':29:"'$/'2'5.2)'5*)%'3"-62%$/3'"%2(9$%&'
32$%#"%2%-"')*.>/'2%5'-8.."%#9?'"3".&"%-?'5.2)5*)%'*+')2#".J'\#'$/'#**'
"2.9?'#*'/2?')6"#6".'#6$/')$99'("'."#2$%"5J
G9"2/"'29/*'/""'2%/)".'#*'O8".?'gbJ

Charles Leonard, 
EGOVRA on Design 
Flood Assessment

28 March 2013

52 !2?')"'62:"'2%?'$%+*.32#$*%'@#>$%/'62/'2(*8#'#6"'4$4")*.>/'8%5".%"2#6'2%5'2.*8%5'#6"'1"2#6';$%'*8.'2."2<0'$%-985$%&
$%+*.32#$*%'2(*8#'#6"'I9**5'@99":$2#$*%'V8%%"9/d'K"';2%5'*#6"./<'62:"'2/>"5'7*H'2%5'V623"/'K2#".'+*.'/8-6 $%+*.32#$*%'
)$#6*8#'/8--"//J'K"'62:"':2.$*8/'^324/T'#62#'-*%M$-#$%&'2%5':".?'9$3$#"5'$%+*.32#$*%J

V6"'2##2-6"5'492%' /6*)/' #6"' 9*-2#$*%'*+'*8#M*)'2%5'5.2)5*)%':29:"/'
2//*-$2#"5' )$#6' 1"2#6' 4*%5/' 2%5' #6"' V623"/' K2#".' @8#6*.$#?' ^I9**5'
@99":$2#$*%'V8%%"9/TJ

P
age 186



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
13

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Colin Gregory, 
Garden Suburb

Residents 
Association on 
Design Flood 
Assessment

4 April 2013

53

e`

55

!?'8%5"./#2%5$%&'$/'#62#'#6"'.$/>'#*'("'255."//"5'$/'#62#'*+'2 523'+2$9$%&'2%5'-28/$%&'5232&"'#*'4.*4".#?';*#6".'#62%'#6"'
7$#?T/<0'$%C8.?'*.'9*//'*+'9$+"J' @9#6*8&6'P?92%5/':'I9"#-6".'9$2($9$#?'$/'/#.$-#0'#6"'.$/>'-2%%*#'."29$/#$-299?'("'."58-"5'#* h".*J'
K62#'62/'#*'("'5"-$5"5'$/')62#')*.>/'2."'%"-"//2.?'#*'."58-"'#6"'.$/>'*+'2'523'+2$9$%&'$%'#6"'":"%#'*+'2'/4"-$,"5'9":"9'*+'
.2$%+299'#*'2%'2--"4#2(9?'9*)'9":"9J' \/'#62#'-*.."-#d

@9#6*8&6'#6"."'$/'2'9*#'$%'#6"'424".'2(*8#'*:".#*44$%&'2%5 :*983"/'2%5'/4""5/'*+'M**5')2#".0'%*#'38-6'5"#2$9'$/ 4.*:$5"5'
*%'#6"'.$/>'*+'523'+2$98."J' W%'42&"'ej';42&"'`j'*+'#6"'424".<'$#T/'/#2#"5'#62#'l/#2%52.5'&8$52%-"'/8&&"/#/'#62#'#6"'523'
/9*4"/')*895'%""5'."$%+*.-"3"%#'#*'4.":"%#'".*/$*% )6$-6'-*895'9"25'#*'2'(."2-6'*+'#6"'523mJ''!?'8%5"./#2%5$%& $/'#62#'
#6"'7$#?'$/'%*#'9$2(9"'$+')2#".'42//"/'*:".'#6"'523/')$#6*8#'2'(."2-60'":"%'$+'M**5$%&'*--8./'9*)".'5*)%';$%5""5 #6$/'$/'
)62#'#6"')*.>/'2."'5"/$&%"5'#*'2-6$":"<'(8#'3*/#'*+'#6"'.$/>/'255."//"5'2."'2(*8#'*:".#*44$%&J' \'#6$%>')"'%""5 3*."'
$%+*.32#$*%'2(*8#'#6"'l/#2%52.5'&8$52%-"m'."+".."5'#*'2%5'":$5"%-"'2(*8#'#6"'9$>"9$6**5'*+'(."2-6J

V6"'-*%-98/$*%'/2?/'#62#'l#*'."58-"'#6"'.$/>'*+'(."2-6$%&0'$34.*:"3"%#/')$99'%""5'#*'("'325"'#*'/*3"'*+'#6"'523/mJ'
V6$/'5*"/%T#'/2?'2%?#6$%&'2(*8#')62#'2%'2--"4#2(9"'."58-"5'9":"9'*+'.$/>')*895'("J' \#'244"2./'#62#'#6"'.$/>'#*'("'
&82.5"5'2&2$%/#'$/'#6"'.$/>'*+'(."2-6'$%'#6"'":"%#'*+'2'l4.*(2(9"'32Y$383'M**5m';*--8..$%&'9"//'#62%'*%-"'$%'][0[[['
?"2./<J

\'#6$%>')"'%""5'3*."'$%+*.32#$*%'2(*8#')62#'#6"'-8.."%#'.$/>'*+'(."2-6'$/';2/'*44*/"5'#*'*:".#*44$%&<'2%5')62#'#6"'2$3'
$/'$%'#".3/'*+'#6"'."58-"5'9":"9'*+'.$/>0'$%-985$%&'#6"'."2/*%'+*.'/"9"-#$%&'l4.*(2(9"'32Y$383'M**5m'2/'#6"'":"%#'#*'("'
&82.5"5'2&2$%/#J

V6"'-8.."%#'&8$52%-"'+*.'."/".:*$.'/2+"#?'/#2%52.5/'$%'I9**5/'2%5'P"/".:*$.'
B2+"#?0'j.5'D5$#$*%0'48(9$/6"5'(?'#6"'\%/#$#8#$*%'*+'7$:$9'D%&$%""./'$%']bbZJ'
V2(9"']'$%'#6$/'5*-83"%#'4.*:$5"/'#6"'523'-2#"&*.$"/'2%5'#6"'5"/$&%'M**5'
$%M*)J

V6"'244.*2-6'$/'-*%/"O8"%-"'(2/"5'2%5'/*'#6" -2#"&*.$/2#$*%'$/'(2/"5'
#6"'4*#"%#$29'"++"-#'*+'2 523'(."2-6'$J"J'$#'-*%/$5"./'#6"'-*%/"O8"%-"/'
*+'2'523'(."2-60'2%5'5*"/'%*#'2//"//'#6"'4.*(2($9$#?'*+'+2$98."'*+'#6"'
523J

K6"."'2'(."2-6'-*895'"%52%&".'9$:"/'$%'2 -*338%$#?0'#6"'523'$/'
72#"&*.?'@'2%5'#6"'5"/$&% M**5'$/'#6"'G.*(2(9"'!2Y$383'I9**5J

P$/>' $/' #6"'4.*58-#'*+' #6"'4.*(2($9$#?'*+' +2$98."'2%5 #6"'-*%/"O8"%-"'*+'
+2$98."J' K"')$99'("'-2..?$%& *8#'2'Q82%#$#2#$:"'P$/>'@//"//3"%#';QP@<'2/'
42.#'*+'#6$/'4.*C"-#'2%5'#6$/'/6*895'4.*:$5"'2% 8%5"./#2%5$%&'*+'#6"'*:".299'
.$/>'*+'+2$98."'*+'#6" "3(2%>3"%#/J

\#'/6*895'29/*'("'%*#"5'#62#'#6"':"9*-$#$"/'&$:"%'$% #6"'."4*.#'2."'(2/"5'
*%' 2' /3**#6' 8%$+*.3' /9*4"' 2%5'5*' %*#' #2>"' $%#*' 2--*8%#' #6"' 9*-29$/"5'
"++"-#/'*+'#.""/0'+"%-"'4*/#/0'/3299'-62%&"/'$%'/9*4"/'299 *+')6$-6'-*%#.$(8#"'
/$&%$,-2%#'-*%-"%#.2#$*%/'*+'6$&6':"9*-$#?'M*)J' V6"/"'-*%-"%#.2#$*%/')$99 
"Y2-".(2#"'".*/$*%'5232&"')6$-6'-*895'9"25'#*'2 (."2-6J

David Lewis,

Protect Our Ponds 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

8 April 2013

eZ K*.>'$/'/#$99'."O8$."5'2/'299'*+'#6"'4*%5/'-2%'*:".#*4'":"% $%'/3299".'.2$%+299'":"%#/J'K$#6'"2.#6'523/';/8-6'2/'#6*/"'*%'#6"'
1"2#6<'*:".#*44$%&'-2%'-28/"'".*/$*%'2%5'4*#"%#$299?'9"25'#*'523'+2$98."J'l72%m'$/'#6"'*4".2#$:"')*.5J'K"'2."'(2->')$#6'#6"'
*.$&$%29'5$/2/#".'3*:$"'/-"%2.$*J

W:".#*44$%&'-2%'-28/"'+2$98."'2%5'62/'-28/"5'+2$98."'*%'#6"'1"2#6'2%5'
$%'*#6".'492-"/J'V6"'4."5$-#"5' ."#8.%'4".$*5' +*.'*:".#*44$%&0' #6"'5"4#6'
2%5':"9*-$#$"/'2."'/8-6'#62#'3*/#'4*%5/')$99'/8++".'/$&%$,-2%#'5232&"'2%5'
-*895'+2$9'$%'#6"'#6"$.'-8.."%#'/#2#"J

David Lewis,

Protect Our Ponds 
on Design Flood 
Assessment

8 April 2013

57 D:"%'3*."'/$%$/#".'$/'#6"'/#2#"3"%#';+.*3'#6"'."-"%#'3"3*'(?'@#>$%/'#*'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'."+"..$%&'#*'#6"'/4."25'/6""#
32#.$Y'*+'*4$%$*%/'*%'#6"'492%/<k

\#'/6*895'("'%*#"5'#62#')6"."'2'42.#$-892.'*4#$*%'62/'(""%'M2&&"5'2/'."50'$J"J'#6"'*4#$*%'62/'(""%'$5"%#$,"5'2/'9$>"9?'#*'."/89#'
$%'/$&%$,-2%#'%"&2#$:"'"++"-#/'*%'2%?'42.#$-892.'5$/-$49$%"0'*.')$99'%*#'("'/844*.#"5'(?'2'42.#$-892.'/#2>"6*95".'&.*840'#6$/'5*"/'
%*#'%"-"//2.$9?'4."-985"'#62#'42.#$-892.'"%&$%"".$%&'*4#$*%'+*.'$%-98/$*%'$%'#6"'/-6"3"J'\#'/""3/'4*$%#9"//'62:$%&'#6$/'"92(*.2#"'
-*%/89#2#$*%'$+'#6"'5"/$&%".'."/".:"/'#6"'.$&6#'#*'$&%*."'/$&%$,-2%#'-*33"%#/'325"'(?'/#2>"6*95"./'2%5'*#6"./J'\+'#6$/'2-#8299?'
6244"%/0'#6"')6*9"'4.*-"//')$99'62:"'(""%'2'/623J'P"3"3(".'#62#'#6"';%*)'38-6'-.$#$-$/"5<'5"/$&%/'$%'#6"'12?-*->'P"4*.#'
)"."'325"'(?'@#>$%/';%*#'12?-*-><0'2'+2-#'#62#'62/'/*3"6*)'"/-24"5'-*33"%#'."-"%#9?J

\#' )*895' %*#' ("' 4."-985"5' +.*3' #6"' /-6"3"' 4.*:$5"5' #62#' 244.*4.$2#"'
"%:$.*%3"%#29 3$#$&2#$*%' 2%5c*.' "%62%-"3"%#' 3"2/8."/' -2%' ("'
$349"3"%#"5'*%'#6"'25:$-"'*+'#6"'."9":2%#'#"-6%$-29'/4"-$29$/#J

B#2>"6*95".'-*33"%#/')$99'("'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#J

V6"'5"/$&%/'$%'#6"'12?-*->'P"4*.#')"."'(?'12?-*->'2%5'=WV'@#>$%/J

Susan Rose, 
Highgate

Society on Design 
Flood Assessment

9 April 2013

ei 12:"'#6"'/23"'-29-892#$*%/'."J'M*)'.2#"/0':"9*-$#?'"#-J'(""% 5*%"'+*.'#6"'_"%)**5'4*%5/'2/'+*.'#6"'1"2#6'4*%5/d'K62#'
2."'#6"',&8."/d'1*)'5*"/'#6$/'$%+*.32#$*%'$342-#'*%'#6"'3"2/8."/'%""5"5'#*'4.*#"-#'#6"'1"2#6'523/d'\%'#6"'":"%#/'*+'2'
_"%)**5'4*%5'523'*:".#*44$%&'*.'-*9924/$%&')*895 D%&9$/6'1".$#2&"'("'9$2(9"'8%5".'P?92%5/'2%5'I9"#-6".d

DY49$-$#' -29-892#$*%/' +*.' #6"' _"%)**5' 4*%5/' 62:"' %*#' (""%' -2..$"5' *8#'
2/' #6"/"' 4*%5/' 2."' %*#' #6"' ."/4*%/$($9$#?' *+' #6"' 7$#?' *+' H*%5*%J' V6"$.'
-2#-63"%#/'62:"'(""%'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#'$%'"/#$32#$%&'#6"'M*)/'$%#*'#6"'
*#6".'4*%5/'*%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%J

\+'#6"'523/'-*9924/"50'#6"%'D%&9$/6'1".$#2&"')*895'("'9$2(9"'8%5".'P?92%5/'
2%5'I9"#-6".'(8#'%*#'$+'#6"."')2/'%*'-*9924/"J

Susan Rose, 
Highgate

Society on Design 
Flood Assessment

9 April 2013

eb \%'#6"'":"%#/'*+'2'_"%)**5'4*%5'523'*:".#*44$%&'*.'-*9924/$%&')*895'D1'("'9$2(9"'8%5".'P?92%5/'2%5'I9"#-6".d D%&9$/6'1".$#2&"')*895'("'9$2(9"'8%5".'P?92%5/'2%5'I9"#-6".'$+'#6"'523/'
-*9924/"50'(8#'%*#'$+'#6" 523/'*:".#*44"5')$#6*8#'-*9924/$%&J

\#' $/'%*#'244.*4.$2#"'+*.'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'#*'-*33"%#'*%'
#6"'4*#"%#$29'9$2($9$#?'*+'*#6".'*.&2%$/2#$*%/J''@%?'-*%-".%/'."&2.5$%&'#6"'
_"%)**5'4*%5/'/6*895'("'255."//"5'#*'D%&9$/6'1".$#2&"J

P
age 187



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

14

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

Z[ R2inf299 P8n-off +.*3 the R.(2n I.2ction of the 1$&6g2#e 72#-63"%tk' B"-#$*%'`Jj'/#2#"/'#62#'#6"'8.(2%'2."2/'25C2-"%#'#*'
#6"'4*%5'-62$%')$99'("'$%-985"5'+*.'M*)'"/#$32#$*%J

B"-#$*%'`J`'/#2#"/'#62#'Z]Jen'*+'^8.(2%T'2."2/'$/'2//83"5'#*'("'$34".:$*8/J' V6$/'32?'("'244.*4.$2#"'+*.'6$&6'5"%/$#?'
6*8/$%&'$%'38-6'*+'H*%5*%0'(8#')"'/8&&"/#'#62#'$#'$/'%*#'244.*4.$2#"'+*.'#6"'-2#-63"%#/'*+'#6"'1$&6&2#"'/9*4"/J
I$&8."'`Ea'/6*)/'#62#'1$&6&2#"'G*%5/']'#*'e'299'62:"'-2#-63"%#/'#62#'9$"'*8#/$5"'#6"'1"2#6J' V6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'G*%5'62/'
2':".?'92.&"'2."2'2%5'#6"'H25$"/'N2#6$%&'G*%5'2%5 !*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'29/*'62:"'/$h"2(9"'2."2/0'"Y#".%29'#*'#6" 1"2#6J'
V6"/"'2."2/0'/8-6'2/'I$#h.*?'G2.>'2%5'1$&6,"95/ L.*:"'2."'%*#'#?4$-299?'8.(2%'2%5'6"2:$9?'(8$9#'840'(8# &"%".299?'2."'
$/*92#"5'5)"99$%&/'$%':".?'92.&"'&2.5"%/J' K"'/8&&"/#'#62#'2'38-6'9*)".'4".-"%#2&"'("'2//83"5'2/'$34".:$*8/J

K"'-2%%*#'-62%&"'#6"'4".-"%#2&"'#62#'ID1'2//83"/'$%'$#/'"O82#$*%'+*.'
8.(2%'2."2 25C8/#3"%#J

G9"2/"'29/*'/""'2%/)".'#*'O8".?'giJ

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

Z] W:".299 R2inf299 P8n-off G".-"%#2&"/k 12?-*->'8/"5'i[n'#* b[nJ' @#>$%/'62/'."58-"5'#6$/'#*'gZn'+*.'G!IJ' N*#6'N$%%$" 
$%']big'2%5'N92->'A'U"2#-6'$%'a[[g0'(*#6'6$&69?'."/4"-#"5 523'"%&$%""./0'8/"5'agnJ' V6"."'$/'C85&"3"%#'$%'/"9"-#$%& 2%'
244.*4.$2#"'.8%E*++J' B6*895'%*#'@#>$%/'4".-"%#2&"'("'/$&%$,-2%#9?'9*)".'#62%'gZnd' G9"2/"'-92.$+?'$%'5"#2$9J

V6"."' 244"2./''#*'("'2'5$++"."%-"' $%' #6"' #".3$%*9*&?' 8/"5' (?' 4.":$*8/'
-*%/89#2%#/')6*'62:"'8%5".#2>"%'M**5'"/#$32#$*%'+*.'#6"'6"2#6J'K"'62:"'
.":$")"5'#6"'N$%%$"'2%5'G2.#%".T/']big'62%5'-29-892#$*%/'2%5'-*348#".'
4.$%#'*8#/'*+'#6"$.'IBP'3*5"9J'V6"$.']big'3*5"9'4.$%#'*8#/'/6*)'#62#'#6"?'
8/"5' 2%' BGP' :298"' *+' `gn')6$-6' ."/89#"5' $%' GP' :298"/' *+' ejJen'2%5'
ZbJZ`n'+*.'#6"'][0[[[?"2.'2%5'#6"'G!I'."/4"-#$:"9?J

V6"' ."+"."%-"' #*' #6"' agn' $/' +.*3' 2' #2(9"' $%' #6" 12?-*->T/' ."4*.#0'
)6$-6' $/' &$:"%' +*.' 1$&6&2#"' ]'4*%5' +*.' #6"' ][0[[[' ?"2.' ":"%#J' V6"'
agn' /""3/' #*' ("' ."+"..$%&' #*' #6"' 4".-"%#2&"' *+' #6"' ][0[[[' ?"2.'
:*983"'#62#'*8#M*)/'+.*3'#6"'4*%5';2+#".'$# 62/' (""%' .*8#"5' #6.*8&6'
#6"' 4*%50' 4."/832(9? #6.*8&6' 2' 6?5.289$-' 3*5"9<' -*342."5' #*' #6" 
.2$%+299' :*983"' $%' ;#6$/' 244"2./' #*' ("' #6"' &.*//'.2$%+299'5"4#6' 2%5' %*#'
#6"' %"#' .2$%+299' 2+#".' #6"'4".-"%#2&"'.8%*++';GP'2/')"'8%5"./#2%5'$#'+*.'
the ID1cIBPPEP' 3*5"9<' $/' 2449$"5<J'B*' )"' 2."' %*#'-*342.$%&'9$>"'+*.'
9$>"')$#6'."/4"-#'#*'#6"'agnJ

K"' ("9$":"' #62#' #6"' i[Eb[n' #62#' 12?-*->' 62:"'(""%' #29>$%&' 2(*8#'
$/' -*342.2(9"' ;$%' #".3/' *+')62#' $/' 3"2%#' (?' $#<' )$#6' *8.' gZn' 2%5'
NNUT/'ZbJZ`n' 2%5' $/' #6"'n'*+' .2$%+299' #62#' $/' -*%:".#"5 #*' .8%*++' $%#*'
#6"' ."/".:*$.' ;$J"J' *%9?' $%' #6" 6?5.*9*&$-29' 3*5"9<J' 1*)":".' #6"' agn'
:298" 2##.$(8#"5' #*' NNU' $/' #6"' 4".-"%#2&"' *+' *8#M*)'+.*3'1$&6&2#"'
]' -*342."5' #*' #6"' #*#29'&.*//'.2$%+299' :*983"' +*.' #6"' 4*%5' 2%5' $/' %*#'
-*342.2(9"' #*' #6"' BGP' 2%5' GP' )"' 62:"' (""% 5$/-8//$%&J'V6"'N$%%$"'
BGP':298"'*+'`gn'$/':".?'/$3$92.' #*' #6"' 25C8/#"5' :298"' *+' `Zn')"' &*#'
+*.' *8.'BGP'("+*."' $%-."2/$%&' $#' #*'ejn'#*'2--*8%#' +*.' /833".' 5.?$%&'
2%5'-*342-#$*%0'2%5'#6"/"':298"/'."/89#"5' $%'GP'*+'gZn'+*.'@#>$%/'2%5'
ZbJZ`n'+*.'N$%%$"'+*.'#6"'G!I'."/4"-#$:"9?J'

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

Za

Zj

Z`

P"9"2/" of W2#er fro3 the Gon5/k K"'8%5"./#2%5'+.*3'#6"'7$#?T/'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#'*%'F$/-62.&"'*+'K2#".0'=*:"3(".'
a[]a0'#62#'#6"'7$#?'$/'%*#'9$2(9"'+*.'5*)%/#."23 -*%/"O8"%-"/'+*.'255$#$*%29'M**5')2#".'#62#'/2+"9?'*:".#*4/'2'523J'
1*)":".0'$+'#6"."'$/'2%'"/-24"'*.'2'5"9$(".2#"'."9"2/"'*+'/#*."5')2#".0'#6"%'9$2($9$#?'8%5".'P?92%5/'2%5'I9"#-6".'32?'2449?J

\#'32?'("'%"-"//2.?'#*'*4"%'#6"':29:"'*%'#6"'*8#9"#'4$4"'*+'2 4*%5'+*.'#)*'."2/*%/k' $%'2%'"3".&"%-?'#*'9*)".'.24$59?'#6" 
)2#".'9":"9'#*'4.":"%#'2'523'(."2-6q'2%5'29/*'3*."'.*8#$%"9? #*'."9"2/"'2##"%82#"5';/#*."5<')2#".'2+#".'$#'62/'(""%'6"95 
(2->'("6$%5'6$&6".'523/'58.$%&'2%'"Y#."3"'/#*.30'#* 4.*:$5"'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'+*.'2'+8#8."'/#*.3J

K62#'$/'#6"'32Y$383'.2#"'*+'."9"2/"'+.*3'(*#6'1$&6&2#"'2%5'1234/#"25'=*']'4*%5/'#62#')$99'%*#'$%-8.'9$2($9$#?'8%5".'
P?92%5/'2%5'I9"#-6".d' \+'/#*."5')2#".'$/'5"9$(".2#"9? ."9"2/"5'+.*3'.2$/"5'523/'2#'844".'4*%5/')6$-6'#6"% *:".#*4/'#6"'
(*##*3'4*%5/0')62#'9$2($9$#?0'$+'2%?0'#6"% 2449$"/d

12/'#6"'7$#?'/*8&6#'*.'."-"$:"5'#"-6%$-29'*.'9"&29'25:$-"'*% 6*)'$#'/6*895'"Y".-$/"'2'-6*$-"'("#)""%'."9"2/$%&')2#".'#* 
4.":"%#'523'(."2-6'2%5'%*#'5*$%&'/*d

=*#'$%'@#>$%/'/-*4"'*+')*.>J

\+')2#".'$/'5"9$(".2#"9?'."9"2/"5'2%5'$#'-28/"/'5232&"'5*)%/#."230'#6"%'
#6"."')*895'("'9$2($9$#?'8%5".'P?92%5/'2%5'I9"#-6".J

V6$/')*895'%""5'#*'("'5"#".3$%"5'*%'2'-2/"'(?'-2/"'(2/$/J

G9"2/"'/""'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#J

P
age 188



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
15

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

Ze =2#8.29 B4$99)2?/k F.'18&6"/'62/'/#2#"5'#62#'$#'$/'"//"%#$29 +*.'#6"'523/'#*'("'5"/$&%"5')$#6'/4$99)2?/'#*'#2>"'M**5'M*)'
/2+"9?')$#6*8#'/$&%$,-2%#'".*/$*%'#*'#6"'523'/9*4"/0'2%5'#62#'#6"/"'32?'62:"'#*'("'$%'."$%+*.-"5'-*%/#.8-#$*%'#*'3$%$3$/"'
5232&"J' 1"'62/'$%5$-2#"5'#62#'j'462/"'/4$99)2?/'32?'("'-*%/$5"."5';62.50'/*+#')$#6'."$%+*.-"5'&.2//0'2%5'/*3"'-."/#'
*:".#*44$%&<0'299'/$#"5'*%'#6"'523'2%5'5$/-62.&$%&'5*)%'#6" 5*)%/#."23'/9*4"J' K"'62:"'/8&&"/#"5'#62#'2%'29#".%2#$:"'
-*%-"4#'*+'^%2#8.29'/4$99)2?/T'-*895'("'+2.'4."+".2(9"J' V6"/"'-*895'("'5"/$&%"5'+*.'"Y#."3"'M**5/'#*'5$/-62.&"'2/'
*:".(2%>'M*)/'*8#'*+'#6"'/$5"/'*+'/*3"'."/".:*$./0'2%5'#6"% M*)'#6.*8&6'/-.8(0'#.""/'2%5'+"%-"/0'299'9"+#'8%#*8-6"50'*%'2 
%2#8.29'.*8#"'#*'#6"'9*)".'4*%5')6$-6'9"2:"/'#6"'523'/9*4"/0 #*"'2%5'3$#."/'8%#*8-6"5J' V6$/')*895'("'/$3$92.'#*'#6"')2?'
#6"'/4$99)2?'*%'#6"'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'4*%5'5$/-62.&"/'2#'4."/"%#J' N"-28/"'%2#8.29'&.*8%5'/9*4"/'2."'/6299*)'2%5'#6" .*8#"'
2:*$5/'#6"'523'/#.8-#8."0'%*'/8.+2-"'."$%+*.-"3"%#')*895'("'%"-"//2.?0'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'92%5/-24"'-*895'."32$% 8%#*8-6"50'
2%5'."$%+*.-"5'/4$99)2?/'32?'%*#'("'%""5"5'*% #6"'523'$#/"9+J

I$&8."'eEa'-9"2.9?'/6*)/'#6$/'/$5"'*:".(2%>'4*//$($9$#?'*%'#6" 1$&6&2#"'-62$%J' 1$&6&2#"'=*/'a0'j'2%5'e'4*%5/'244"2.'"2/$9?'
/8$#2(9"0'2%5'#6"'*#6".'4*%5/'32?'("'2(9"'#*'8/"'#6$/ 4.$%-$49"')$#6'/*3"'&.*8%5'."E/624$%&J' K$99'@#>$%/ $%:"/#$&2#"'#6$/'$%'
4."+"."%-"'#*'."$%+*.-"5'/4$99)2?/'/$#"5'*% #6"'523/d

K6$9"'#6"'%2#8.29'/4$99)2?'-*%-"4#'3$&6#'244"2.'+"2/$(9"0'M*)'#6.*8&6'
/-.8(0'#.""/'2%5'+"%-$%&'-28/"/'$%-."2/"5'".*/$*%'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'
/$5"'*+'#6"'#6"/"'+"2#8."/J'V6"/"')*895'#"%5'-28/"'+8.#6".'M*)'
-*%-"%#.2#$*%/')$#6'"%62%-"5'".*/$*%')6$-6'-*895'-62%%"9')2#".'(2->'
#*)2.5/'#6"'523'3$#."/'2%5'-28/"'5232&"'$%'#6$/'9*-2#$*%J'!*."*:".0'
#6"."'-*895'("'(2->)2.5'".*/$*%'8%#$9'#6"'-*%#"%#/'*+'#6"'4*%5'2%5'
-28/"'$%-."2/"5'5232&"'5*)%/#."23J'\#'$/'3*."'."9$2(9"'#*'4.*:$5"'2'
/*+#'"%&$%""."5'/4$99)2?'#*'-*%#.*9'#6"'M*)'$%'2'3*."'."9$2(9"'32%%".J

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

ZZ W:".to44$%& F2#2k 5"#2$9"5'O8".$"/kE
E' ]ke'?"2.'*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6'+*.'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'/""3/'*55J' G9"2/"'-*%,.3J

- )6?'$/'#6"'*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6'$%-."2/"'("#)""%']k]0[[['#* ]k][0[[['?"2./'/*'/3299'&"%".299?'$%'-*342.$/*%')$#6'#6" 
$%-."2/"/'("#)""%'299'*#6".'":"%#/d

)$99'@#>$%/'4.*:$5"'&.246/'*+'*:".#*44$%&':"9*-$#?'Y'#$3"'+*.'299'*:".#*44$%&'6"$&6#/'/6*)%d

V2(9"'eEi'/6*)/'2'%"&2#$:"'*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6 )6$-6'3"2%/'#62#'#6"'4*%5'
5*"/'%*#'*:".#*4J

N"-28/"'("#)""%'#6"']0[[['?"2.'2%5'][0[[['?"2.'M**5/')"'-62%&"'
+.*3'#6"'ID1'#*'IBP'.2$%+299'2%5 #6"."'$/'9$##9"'5$++"."%-"'("#)""%'#6"'
]0[[['?"2.'2%5'#6"'][0[[['?"2.'.2$%+299'5"4#6/0'6"%-"'/$3$92.'+*.'#6"'
*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6/

K"'62:"'%*#'4.*58-"5'/8-6'-62.#/'2/'#6"?')*895 ("'3$/9"25$%&'("-28/"'
#6"?' )*895' ("' (2/"5' *%' 2 8%$+*.3' /3**#6' /8.+2-"' 2%5' #6"' 9*-29$h"5 
$%M8"%-"/'*+'+"%-"/0'#.""/'2%5'/9*4"'$.."&892.$#$"/'2%5'-*%-"%#.2#"5'M*)/'
2#'9*)'4*$%#/'*%'#6"'-."/#')*895'("'%*#'("'2--*8%#"5'+*.J

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

Zg F23 Bre2ch B-"%2rio 2%5 Q82%#$,e5 P$/> @//"//3"%#k F.'18&6"/0'@#>$%/'F"/$&%'P":$")'!"#6*5'B#2#"3"%#0'2%5'#6" 7$#?'
*+'H*%5*%T/'."4*.#'#*'#6"'7*%/89#2#$:"'7*33$##""'*%'i'@4.$9'299'/#2#"'#62#'#6"'%"Y#'/#"4/'/6*895'("'#*'5",%"'#6" 4*#"%#$29'
5"/$&%'*4#$*%/J' K"'5$/2&.""'2%5'8.&"'#62#'2'V$".'j QP@'("'$33"5$2#"9?'-2..$"5'*8#J' F.'18&6"/'62/'4.":$*8/9? 25:*-2#"5'#6"'
8/"'*+'QP@'#*'$%+*.3'#6"'5"/$&%'4.*-"//0'2%5 )"'8%5"./#2%5'#62#'2'523'(."2-6'2%29?/$/'$/'."O8$."5'8%5".'#6"'P"/".:*$.'@-#'
]bgeJ' K"'8.&"'#62#'#6$/'/6*895'$%-985"'#6" 4.*(2($9$#?'*+'523'+2$98."J' K"'#6"."+*."'."O8"/#'#62#'2'QP@ ("'-2..$"5'*8#'("+*."'
4*#"%#$29'5"/$&%'*4#$*%/'2."'5":"9*4"5J ;V6$/'O829$,"/'*8.'O8".?'*+'ae'!2.-6<J' K6"%')$99'#6$/'("'2:2$92(9"d

V6"'(."2-6'3*5"99$%&'$/'$%'4.*&."//'2%5'#6" $%8%52#$*%'2."2/'2."'."O8$."5'#*'
2//"//'#6" 4*4892#$*%'2#'.$/>'2%5'#6"."+*."'#*'2##"34#'2'V$".'j'Q82%#$#2#$:"'
P$/>' @//"//3"%#' $/' 4."32#8."J !*."*:".0' +.*3' *8.' "Y4".$"%-"' QP@' $/'
8%9$>"9?' #* 32>"' 2'5$++"."%-"' 2/' #*')6"#6".' *.' %*#')*.>/' 2."' ."O8$."5'
("-28/"'#6"'4.*(2($9$#?'*+'+2$98."'2%5'#6" 9$>"9?'4*4892#$*%'2#'.$/>'2."'#**'
6$&6'$%'#6$/'-2/"J

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS on Design 
Flood Assessment

10 April 2013

Zi Heg29 I//8e/k @#>$%/'F"/$&%'P":$")'!"#6*5'B#2#"3"%#'=*:"3(".'a[]a'/#2#"/'#62#'F.'18&6"/'62/').$##"%'#*'#6" L*:".%3"%#'
2/>$%&'+*.'2'6$".2.-6?'*+'@-#/0'$J"J'@-#/ 4.*3*#$%&'P"/".:*$.'B2+"#?';$J"J'6832%'9$+"<':/']ig] 1234/#"25'1"2#6'@-#/'"%/8.$%&'+8#8."'
*+'#6"'1"2#6J'@#'#6" 7*%/89#2#$:"'7*33$##""'3""#$%&'*%'i'@4.$9'a[]j0'F.'18&6"/'/#2#"5'#62#'6"'625'%*#'."-"$:"5'2'."49?0'":"%'
2+#".'2'+8.#6".'."O8"/#'#*'#6"'!$%$/#".0'(8#'6"')*895'/6*)'#6"'."/4*%/"'#* 8/'$+'."-"$:"5J' K"'62:"'4.":$*8/9?'/#2#"5'#62#')"'
-*%/$5".'$# "//"%#$29'#62#'#6"'5"/$&%"./0'2%5'#6"'-*338%$#?'62:"'2'-9"2.'(.$"+'*%'299'9"&29'$//8"/'("+*."'5"/$&%'4.*-""5/0'2%5'
#6$/ $//8"'."32$%/'*8#/#2%5$%&J' !2?')"'("'&$:"%'-*4$"/'*+'299 -*.."/4*%5"%-"'(?'F.'18&6"/')$#6'#6"'L*:".%3"%#'2%5'$#/'
2&"%-$"/'*%'#6$/'$//8"d

V6"'$//8"'#62#'$/'#.?$%&'#*'("'."/*9:"5'$/'."/".:*$.'/2+"#?'9"&$/92#$*%')*.>/'
("$%&'5"92?"5'(?'*#6".'9"&$/92#$*%J'P"/*98#$*%'*+'#6$/'$//8"')$99'%*#'32>"'
2%?'5$++"."%-"'#*'%""5'+*.')*.>/'."O8$."5'*%'#6"'1"2#6J

F.'18&6"/T/'-*338%$-2#$*%/')$#6'#6"'!$%$/#".'2."'4"./*%29'2%5')$99'%*#'
("'325"'2:2$92(9"J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

Zb \/'-29-892#"5'4".-"%#2&"'.8%E*++'$%#*'#6"'844".'2%5'3*."'/"%/$#$:"'4*%5/'#**'6$&6d !2.&2."##2' @?*8%&' 5"/-.$("5' 4".-"%#2&"' .8%E*++' 2%5' 6*)' $#' 625' (""%'
-29-892#"5J'@1'/2$5'@#>$%/'38/#'+*99*)'("/#'4.2-#$-"'3"#6*5*9*&?'2%5'#6$%>'
*+'#6"'%"Y#'\%/4"-#$%&'D%&$%"".'S'#6"?'38/#'("'6244?')$#6'6$/'"/#$32#"/'
2%5'38/#'("'2(9"'#*'."4.*58-"'#6"3'$%'#6"'+8#8."J'V6"?')*895'+*99*)'("/#'
4.2-#$-"'2%5'#2>"'$%#*'2--*8%#'9*-29'-*%5$#$*%/J

Karen Beare at 
Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

70 1*)'62:"'@#>$%/'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#'9*-29'-*%5$#$*%/d !2.&2."##2'@?*8%&'/6*)"5'*%' #6"'/9$5"/' #6"'5$++"."%#'-2#-63"%#'2."2/'
2%5'6*)'#6"?'2."'-83892#$:"'2/'?*8'&*'5*)%'#6"'-62$%J'B6"'/2$5'#6"'I9**5'
D/#$32#$*%'12%5(**>';ID1<'62/'2'6$&6'9":"9'*+'5"#2$9J'V6"'ID1'4.*:$5"/'
5"4#6c+."O8"%-?'-8.:"'2%5'$#'$%-985"/'.2$%'&28&"/'*:".'2')$5"'2."2J'V6"'
4*$%#'*+'8/$%&'2'92.&"'52#2'/"#0'2/'$%-985"5'$%'#6"'ID1'$%+*.32#$*%0'$/'$#'$/'
38-6'3*."'/#2#$/#$-299?'."9$2(9"J

P
age 189



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

16

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

71 1*)'5"#2$9"5'$/'#6"'ID1'2%5'2."'/9*4"/'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#d F2#2'$/'4.*:$5"5'+*.'629+'>3'/O82."/'2%5'?"/'/9*4"/'2."'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#J

!2.&2."##2'@?*8%&')"%#'*%'#*'"Y492$%'#6"'5$++"."%-"'("#)""%'#6"'B#2%52.5'
G".-"%#2&"'P8%*++';BGP<'2%5'#6"'G".-"%#2&"'P8%*++';GP<J''V6"'BGP'$/'#6"'
.8%*++'2//*-$2#"5')$#6'#6"'ab'/*$9' #?4"/' $%-985"5' $%' #6"'ID1'52#2'(2/"J''
V6"'GP'$/'#6"'"/#$32#"'*+'#6"'.8%*++'#62#')*895'("'"Y4"-#"5'#*'*--8.'$%'
#6"',"95'2%5'$/'-29-892#"5'(?'25C8/#$%&'#6"'BGP'(?'#)*'5?%23$-'+2-#*./'
;-*4$"/'*+'42&"/'aZEag'*+'#6"'@//"//3"%#'*+'F"/$&%'I9**5'P"4*.#')"."'
62%5"5'*8#<J' '!@'"Y492$%"5' #62#' #6"'ID1'4.*:$5"/' +*.'ab'5$++"."%#' /*$9'
#?4"/';8/$%&'#6"'R_'1?5.*9*&?'*+'B*$9'V?4"';1WBV<':298"/<'."4."/"%#$%&'
299'*+'#6"'5$++"."%#'/*$9'#?4"/'+*8%5'$%'#6"'R_J

!@'/2$5'j[Jbgn'$/'#6"'5"+289#'BGP'+*.'1234/#"25')6$-6'$/'(2/"5'*%'#6"'
#)*'32$%'/*$9'#?4"/'#62#'*--8.' $%'#6"'1"2#6J''V6"'ID1'5"+289#'BGP')2/'
25C8/#"5'#*'#6"'9*-29'-*%5$#$*%/'*%'#6"'1"2#6'(?'#2>$%&'2--*8%#'*+'#6"'2."2'
;498/'][3'(8++".<' *+' +**#42#6/' #62#'12?-*->'2//"//"5'2/'("$%&'6"2:$9?'
-*342-#"5J''V6$/'25C8/#"5'BGP')2/'-2..$"5'#6.*8&6'#*'#6"'GP'-29-892#$*%J

Karen Beare at 
Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

72 F*"/'$#'$%-985"5'#6"'*:".92?'*+'&"*9*&?d V6"'ID1'/*$9'#?4"'52#2'(2/"'#2>"/'$%#*'2--*8%#'#6"'&"*9*&?'*+'#6"'2."2J

!@'/2$5'2')$5#6'*+']['3')2/'255"5'*%'"$#6".'/$5"'*+'#6"'+**#42#6/'#*'299*)'
+*.'255$#$*%29'/*$9'-*342-#$*%'*%'"$#6".'/$5"'*+'#6"'+**#42#6/J'S'#6$/')2/'
#6"%'8/"5''#*'25C8/#'#6"'j[Jbgn'#*'&"#'`ZnJ''V6$/'5".$:"5':298"0'`Zn0'
)2/'#6"%'$%-."2/"5'#*'2':298"'*+'ejn'2/'$/'."-*33"%5"5'(?'#6"'ID1'+*.'
-2#-63"%#/'4.*%"'#*'5.?$%&'2%5'-*342-#$*%J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

73 B6*895'2%'25C8/#3"%#'+*.'-*342-#$*%'("'325"'#*'844".'-2#-63"%#0')6$-6'4*#"%#$299?'62:"'+")".'+**#42#6/d !2.&2."##2' @?*8%&' /6*)"5' #6"' ."/89#/' *+' /"%/$#$:$#?' 2%29?/"/0' )6$-6'
/6*)"5'#62#'2%?'."/89#$%&'5$++"."%-"'$%'*:".#*44$%&'5"4#6'$/'%*#'/$&%$,-2%#J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

g` 72%'/#2>"6*95"./'62:"'2'5"#2$9"5'"Y492%2#$*%'*+' #6"'3"#6*5'*+'-29-892#$%&']k][0[[['2%5'G!G'M*)/'2%5'#6"'4"2>'/#*.3'
58.2#$*%/d''

@%/)".k'!@'/2$5'#6"'G.*(2(9"'!2Y$383'G."-$4$#2#$*%';G!G<')2/'"/#$32#"5'
(?'#6"'!"#"*.*9*&$-29'W+,-"'2%5'$/'(2/"5'*%'#6"'46?/$-/'*+'#6"'2#3*/46"."'
S'$#'$/'2%'"/#$32#"'*+'#6"'32Y$383'23*8%#'*+')2#".'#6"'2#3*/46"."'-2%'
6*95J' ' V6$/' "Y".-$/"')2/' -2..$"5' *8#' (?' #6"'!"#'W+,-"' *:".' #6"')6*9"'
-*8%#.?' 2%5' 2' /".$"/' *+'324/' +*.' #6"')6*9"' -*8%#.?' $/' $%-985"5' $%' #6"'
I9**5'B#85$"/'P"4*.#J' 'V6"'][0[[['?"2.'.2$%+299' $/'(2/"5'*%'2'/#2#$/#$-29'
"Y23$%2#$*%'*+'.2$%'&28&"'52#2'+*.'#6"')6*9"'-*8%#.?J'''I*.'2%?'-2#-63"%#'
#62#'?*8'-6**/"'?*8'-2%'*(#2$%'#6"'][0[[['?"2.'.2$%+299'$%+*.32#$*%'+.*3'
#6"'I9**5'B#85$"/'P"4*.#J'_N'2/>"5')62#')"$&6#$%&')2/'&$:"%'#*'9*-29'52#2'
2%5'$+'-9$32#"'-62%&"')2/'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#J

!@'/2$5'-9$32#"'-62%&"')2/'%*#'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#'2/'#6"/"'2."'29."25?'
"Y#."3"'":"%#/J

P
age 190



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
17

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Charles Leonard 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

75 K62#'2(*8#'#6"'DR'5$."-#$:"d !@'/2$5'DR'M**5'5$."-#$:"'$/'+*.'M**5/'*+'2'/3299".'."#8.%'4".$*5'2%5'#6"'
G!I'$/'2'M**5'/*'"Y#."3"'#62#'$#'5*"/'%*#'62:"'2%'25C8/#3"%#'+*.'-9$32#"'
-62%&"'2/'$/'."O8$."5'(?'#6"'DR'5$."-#$:"'+*.'/3299".'M**5/J

!@'/2$5'#62#'#6"."')2/'*%9?'][['?"2./'*+'9*-29'.2$%+299'52#2')6$-6'$/'#**'
/6*.#'2'."-*.5'9"%&#6'#*'8/"'$%'5".$:$%&'#6"'"Y#."3"'M**5/'."O8$."5'+*.'#6$/'
4.*C"-#J''B6"'/#2#"5'#62#'2'-*33*%'.89"'*+'#683('$/'#62#'#6"'."#8.%'4".$*5'
)6$-6'-2%'("'."9$2(9?'5".$:"5'+.*3'2'52#2/"#'*+'='?"2./'$%'9"%&#60'$/'=caJ''
1"%-"'+*.'1234/#"25'1"2#6'#6"'11BB'.2$%+299'52#2'-*895'29/*'("'8/"5'#*'
."9$2(9?'5".$:"'.2$%+299'5"4#6/'*+'84'#*'#6"']'$%'e['?"2.'.2$%+299J'K6"%'2/>"5'
)6?'#6"'11BB'52#2')2/'%*#'8/"5'#*'4.*:$5"'#6"'.2$%+299'5"4#6'84'#*'#6"'
]'$%'e['?"2.'.2$%+2990'/6"'/2$5'#6"'9*-29'11BB']'$%'e['?"2.'.2$%+299'5"4#6'
2&.""/')$#6'#6"'ID1']'$%'e['?"2.'.2$%+299'5"4#6'+*.'#6"'a`'6*8./'58.2#$*%'
/#*.30'/*'#6"'9*-29'52#2')*895'%*#'32>"'2'3"2%$%&+89'5$++"."%-"'+*.'#6"/"'
/6*.#'."#8.%'4".$*5'M**5/J'\%'255$#$*%0'#6"'11BB'.2$%+299'52#2'$/'52$9?'#*#29'
.2$%+299'2%5'#6"'M**5'"/#$32#$*%'+*.'1234/#"25'1"2#6'."O8$."/'/8(E52$9?'
52#2';("-28/"'#6"'-.$#$-29'/#*.3'58.2#$*%/'2."'*+'2'+")'6*8./'.2#6".'#62%'
52?/<0'/*'#6"'11BB'52#2'/"#'-*895'%*#'("'8/"5'$%'2%?'-2/"'*%'$#/'*)%J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

gZ B8.4.$/"5'#62#'#6"'G!Ic]k][0[[['.2#$*'2#'#6"'(*##*3'523/'."/89#/'$%'.2#$*/'*+'aJ]a'2%5'aJaa0'("2.$%&'$%'3$%5'#62#'.2#$*/'*%'
/*3"'523/'$%'*#6".'42.#/'*+'#6"'-*8%#.?'-2%'("'38-6'9*)".0'"J&J'V$9&2#"'F23'G!I'$/'*%9?']J]`Y][0[[['?"2.'M**5J''K6?'
5*"/'#6"'1"2#6'62:"')62#'244"2./'#*'("'2%'8%8/8299?'6$&6'.2#$*d

!@'2%5'@1'"Y492$%"5'#62#'#6"."'$/'%*',Y"5'.2#$*'("#)""%'#6"'][0[[['?"2.'
G!I'4"2>'M*)J''V6"'.2#$*'$/'2'+8%-#$*%'*+'#6"'46?/$-29'-62.2-#".$/#$-/'*+'
2' &$:"%' -2#-63"%#J' ' I9**5/' 2%5'P"/".:*$.' B2+"#?' 4.*:$5"/' 244.*Y$32#"'
&8$52%-"'2%5'/8&&"/#/'2'.2#$*'*+'a')6$-6'$/'-9*/"'#*'.2#$*'@#>$%/'*(#2$%"5'
*%'#6"'1"2#6J

@1'255"5'#62#'#6"'M**5/'2#'V$9&2#"')*895'("'$%M8"%-"5'(?'#6"'4."/"%-"'
*+'#6"'!aj'2%5'#6"'."/".:*$.'-62$%'$/'38-6'/3299".'#62%'*%'#6"'1"2#6J''@1'
-*%,.3"5'#62#'6"'$/'6244?')$#6'#6"'.2#$*'+*.'1234/#"25'1"2#6J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

77 K62#'5"#2$9"5')*.>'62/'(""%'-2..$"5'*8#'(?'@#>$%/'#*'5"3*%/#.2#"'#62#'M*)/'$%#*'#6"'B#*->'G*%5'2."'%*#'*:".E"/#$32#"5d''
G9"2/"'&$:"'5"#2$9/'*+'#6"'3*5"99$%&'5*%"'*%'#6"'_"%)**5'G*%5/

@%/)".k'@1'/2$5'#6"'_"%)**5'4*%5/'625'(""%'3*5"99"5'#*'2//"//'6*)'
38-6')2#".' #6"?')*895' /#*."' 58.$%&' #6"' G!I' ":"%#' 2%5' $#' )2/' +*8%5'
#6"?' )*895' 4.*:$5"' %"&9$&$(9"' /#*.2&"' /*' #6"' "++"-#' *+' #6"3')*895' ("'
$%/$&%$,-2%#J

@1'/2$5'*8#48#'+.*3'#6"'3*5"99$%&'*+'#6"/"'4*%5/'-*895'("'/6*)%'#*'#6"'
/#2>"6*95".'&.*84J

!@'/6*)"5'2'#2(9"'*+'."/89#/')6$-6'/6*)"5'#62#')6"%'#6"'/#*.2&"'*+'#6"'
_"%)**5'G*%5/'$/'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#0'#6"'5"4#6'*+'*:".#*44$%&'2#'B#*->'
G*%5'-62%&"5'(?'][33'#*'a[330'#68/'/6*)$%&'#62#'#6"'$%M8"%-"'*+'#6"'
_"%)**5'G*%5/'$/'%"&9$&$(9"J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

gi 1A1B'("9$":"'#6"'.8%E*++'#2>"%'+*.'#6"'1$&6&2#"'/9*4"/'$/'+2.'#**'6$&6'2%5'2--*8%#'%""5/'#*'("'#2>"%'*+'#6"'+2-#'#62#'38-6'
*+'#6"'2."2'5"/-.$("5'2/'8.(2%'$/'$%'+2-#'*+'.8.29'-62.2-#".';92.&"'&2.5"%/<'#62#')*895'2(/*.('38-6'*+'#6"')2#".J'@9/*'2/>"5'
)6?'#6"'8.(2%'-2#-63"%#'4".-"%#2&"'+*.'#6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'$/'6$&6".'#62%'1234/#"25'=*J']'4*%5J

!@' ."/4*%5"5' #62#' #6"' -2#-63"%#' 2."2/' 8/"5' #*' 5".$:"' #6"' M**5/' 2."'
-83892#$:"'/*'#62#'8.(2%'"Y#"%#':298"/')"."'+*.'#6"'-83892#$:"'-2#-63"%#/'
2%5'%*#'#6"'$%#".3"5$2#"'-2#-63"%#/')6$-6'XK')2/'5"/-.$($%&J''V6$/'$/')6?'
#6"'8.(2%'"Y#"%#':298"'&"%".299?'$%-."2/"/'2/'?*8'&*'5*)%'-62$%J'L2.5"%/'
62:"'(""%'#2>"%'$%#*'2--*8%#'2/'ID1'8.(2%'"Y#"%#':298"'$/'-*34.$/"5'*+'
:298"/'+*.'8.(2%'2/')"99'2/'/8(8.(2%'&.$5'-"99/'(2/"5'*%'2'629+'2'>$9*3"#."'
/O82."'."/*98#$*%J''ID1'#6"."+*."'4."/".:"/'#6"'&.""%'2."2/')$#6$%'"2-6'
[Je'>$9*3"#."'/O82."'-"99'$+'#6"'-"99'$/'%*#'][[n'-*:"."5'(?'8.(2%'92%58/"'
2%5'#."2#/'8.(2%'2%5'/8(8.(2%'5$++"."%#9?J''\%'255$#$*%0'#6"'8.(2%'"Y#"%#'
62/'(""%'8452#"5'8/$%&'WB'3244$%&'2%5'#6"."'$/'2'+2-$9$#?'#*'8452#"'8.(2%'
"Y#"%#'#*'#2>"'2--*8%#'+*.'8.(2%$/2#$*%'/$%-"'8.(2%'"Y#"%#')2/'5".$:"5J'''

P
age 191



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

18

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

gb B#2>"6*95"./')*895'9$>"'+8.#6".'5"#2$9/'*%'#6"'.2#"'*+'."9"2/"'+.*3'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'*+'1$&6&2#"'=*J']'G*%5J @%/)".k'@1'/2$5'#6"'"/#$32#"5'.2#"'*+'."9"2/"'+.*3'#6$/'4$4"'$/']['9$#."/'
4".'/"-*%5'2%5'$#')*895'#2>"']e'6*8./'#*'&"#'#6"')2#".'9":"9'5*)%'[J`3J'
V6"'G!I'M**5'4"2>/'2#'ja[[['9$#."/'4".'/"-*%5J

7H'2/>"5'$+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"')*895'("'."3*:"5'2/'B$3*%'H""'625'$%5$-2#"5'
$#'3$&6#'%*#'+*.3'42.#'*+'#6"',%29'5"/$&%J

@1'/2$5'6"'625'%*'$%#"%#$*%'*+'&"##$%&'.$5'*+'#6"'/-*8.':29:"/0'2/'#6"."')2/'
%*'."2/*%'#*'5*'/*'2%5'#6"?'2."'8/"+89'+*.'%*.329'-$.-83/#2%-"/
7H'2/>"5'6*)'*+#"%'#6"':29:"/'625'(""%'8/"5'#*'."9"2/"')2#".'5*)%/#."23J
@1'/2$5'6"')2/'%*#'/8."'S'2%"-5*#299?'6"'625'6"2.5'#6"?'625'(""%'8/"5'
2'-*849"'*+'#$3"/'$%'#6"'42/#J

GB'/2$5'#6"'7$#?')*895'4.*(2(9?'%*#'62:"'#62#'$%+*.32#$*%'(8#'6"'625'29/*'
6"2.5'2%"-5*#299?'#6"?'625'(""%'8/"5'2'+")'#$3"/J
 
@1'/2$5'6"'*4"%/'#6"':29:"/'":".?'/$Y'3*%#6/')6"%'6"'$%/4"-#/'#6"'523/J

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

i[ 1A1B'/2$5'@#>$%/'62:"'."C"-#"5'/4$99)2?/')6$-6')*895'+*99*)'/3299'%2#8.29'l:299"?/m'*%'#6"'/$5"/'*+'/*3"'*+'#6"'4*%5/0'2%5'
2/>/')6?d

@1'/2$5'%*#6$%&'625'(""%'."C"-#"5'2/'#6"'4.*C"-#')2/'%*#'$%'#6"'5"/$&%'
/#2&"J'V6"'5"-$/$*%'*%')62#'/*.#'*+'/4$99)2?/'62/'/#$99'#*'("'325"J

Charles Leonard 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

i] F*'V623"/'K2#".c'7235"%'7*8%-$9'c'@#>$%/'c7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'299'3"2%'#6"'/23"')6"%'#6"?'#29>'2(*8#'5$++"."%#'":"%#'/$h"/'
"J&J']'$%'a[0']'$%'e['"#-J

r"/'#6"?'/6*895'299'3"2%'#6"'/23"'#6$%&

Charles Leonard 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

ia 72%'#6"'.8%*++'52#2'+*.'*#6".'.2$%+299'":"%#'/$h"/'("'&$:"%'#*'/#2>"6*95"./d r"/0'@#>$%/'4.*:$5"5'#6"'.8%*++'52#2';$%'2'6?5.*&.246<'+*.'2']'$%'e0']'$%'a[0'
]'$%'e['2%5']'$%'][['?"2.'":"%#/'+*.'"2-6'4*%5'*%'aj'!2?'a[]j

Harriet King 

19 April 2013

ij \/'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J']'/$&%$,-2%#d @1'/2$5'1$&6&2#"'=*J']'62/'2%'*:".M*)'2%5'2'5.2$%'4$4"'2#'2'9*)".'9":"9'
;)6$-6'."9"2/"')2#".'2#']['9$#."/'4".'/"-*%5J'@1'/2$5'#6"'*:".M*)'$/'2#'
6$&6'9":"9'2%5'$/'.8%%$%&'299'#6"'#$3"J'

Karen Beare at 
Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

i` V6"."'$/'-*%+8/$*%'2(*8#'*#6".'92.&"'.2$%+299'":"%#/'#62#'625'6244"%"5'*%'1234/#"250'$J"J']bge'":"%#0'a[[a'":"%#0'
a[]['":"%#J'7*895'@#>$%/')*.>'*8#'6*)'38-6'.2$%'625'+299"%'58.$%&'#6"/"'92.&"'":"%#/'/*'$#'-2%'("'-*338%$-2#"5'#*'
/#2>"6*95"./'2%5'#6"')$5".'48(9$-')62#'62/'(""%'6244"%$%&'*%'#6"'1"2#6J

@#>$%/'#*'"/#$32#"5'#6"'."#8.%'4".$*5'*+'#6"/"'/#*.3/'2%5'/62."5'#6"'52#2'
*%'aj'!2?J

Charles Leonard 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

ie K62#'$/'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'"3".&"%-?':29:"'/?/#"3'*%'1$&6&2#"'=*J']'4*%5d V6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6$/'4$4"'."O8$."/'-29-892#$*%'(8#'2/'$#'$/'*%9?'je[33'$%'
5$23"#".'$#'$/'8%9$>"9?'#*'("'3*."'#62%']33c/J''

P
age 192



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
19

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Charles Leonard 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

iZ B#2>"6*95"./')*895'9$>"':".$,-2#$*%'#62#'/$#82#$*%'5*)%/#."23')$99'%*#'("'325"')*./"'+*99*)$%&'#6"')*.>J @1'5"/-.$("5'#62#'2%?')*.>'#6"?'5*')$99'6"94'#6"'/$#82#$*%'5*)%/#."23'
2/'#6"?')$99'("'-."2#$%&'3*."'/#*.2&"'2."2'+*.')2#".'+8.#6".'84'#6"'-62$%'
/*' $#')$99'("' ."9"2/"5'5*)%/#."23' $%'2'-*%#.*99"5'32%%".' 9"//' #62%' #6"'
%2#8.29'4"2>'.2#"J'V6$/'$/'#.8"'+*.'299'/$h"/'*+'/#*.3/0'$%-985$%&'#6"'/3299".'
/#*.3'":"%#/'2%5'%*#'C8/#'#6"'*%"/'#62#'#6."2#"%'523'+2$98."'2%5'#62#'#6$/'
-*895'("':".$,"5'#6.*8&6'#6"'6?5.289$-'3*5"9J''@55$#$*%29'=*#"'W-#*(".'
a[]jk'V6$/':".$,-2#$*%'62/'/$%-"'(""%'5*%"0'2%5'$#'62/'(""%'/6*)%'#62#'
#6"'+."O8"%-?'*+'M**5$%&'5*)%/#."23')$99'("'."58-"5'2/'2'-*%/"O8"%-"'
*+'#6"/"')*.>/J'

Jeremy Wright 
at Design Flood 
Assessment 
meeting on

19 April 2013

ig \%'#6"'2."2'2(*:"'B#*->'G*%5'#6"'#"..2$%'244"2."5'#*'("'+2:*8.2(9"'#*'#6"'#"34*.2.?'/#*.2&"'*+'.8%*++J'12/'(""%'#2>"%'
$%#*'2--*8%#d

H*-29$/"5'3$-.*E#*4*&.246?'5*"/'%*#'62:"'2'/$&%$,-2%#'$%M8"%-"'*%'M**5'
"/#$32#"/0'42.#$-892.9?'+*.'#6"'9*%&".'."#8.%'4".$*5/'2%5'G!IJ

Ian Harrison

19 April 2013

ii Q8"/#$*%"5')6"#6".'#6"'-2#-63"%#'(*8%52.$"/'/6*)%'$%'I$&8."/'`Ea'2%5'`Ej'62:"'(""%'5.2)%'-*.."-#9?'2/':$/829'
*(/".:2#$*%/'*%'#6"'&.*8%5'/8&&"/#"5'3*."')2#".')*895'M*)'#*'U29"'*+'1"29#6'G*%5'2%5'9"//'#*'72#-6'G$#'#62%'/8&&"/#"5'
(?'#6"'(*8%52.?'/6*)%'*%'I$&8."'`Ejd

!@'."49$"5'#62#'("-28/"'#6"'M**5'"/#$32#"/'62:"'(""%'(2/"5'*%'-83892#$:"'
-2#-63"%#' 2."2' 2(*:"' "2-6' 4*%50' #6"/"' :2.$2#$*%/' $%' #6"' -2#-63"%#'
(*8%52.$"/' )*895' 62:"' 2%' $%/$&%$,-2%#' "++"-#' *%' #6"' M**5' "/#$32#"/J''
!*."*:".0'#62#'$%'#6"'-*%#"Y#'*+'#6"'/$h"'*+'#6"'-2#-63"%#'2."2'2/'2')6*9"0'
#6"' /8&&"/#"5' (*8%52.?' :2.$2#$*%/')*895' 62:"' %"&9$&$(9"' "++"-#' *%' #6"'
"/#$32#"5'M**5'M*)J

Jeremy Wright

H&HS  on 
Constrained 
Options report

25 June 2013

ib K"'2&.""')$#6'#6"'4.$%-$49"'*+'2##"%82#$*%'$+'#6$/')$99'."58-"'*.'2:*$5'#6"'%""5'+*.')*.>'*%'/"%/$#$:"'4*%5/J''1*)":".0'+*.'
-*342.$/*%'48.4*/"/')"')*895'9$>"'#*'/""':$/829'$32&"/'*+'#6"'*4#$*%'*+'/4$99)2?/'*%'(*#6'-62$%/')$#6*8#'2%?'$%-."2/"5'
2##"%82#$*%J

V*' 42//' #6"' G!I' 2%5' 2-6$":"' #6"' F"/$&%' G.$%-$49"/' .2$/$%&' *+' 523/' $/'
%"-"//2.?J'

Jeremy Wright

H&HS  on 
Constrained 
Options report

25 June 2013

b[ K"'2&.""'#62#'#6"'72#-64$#'/""3/'#*'("'#6"'9"2/#':$/$(9"'9*-2#$*%'*%'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%'+*.'.2$/$%&c-."2#$%&'2'5230'2%5'
244."-$2#"5'#6"'$%5$-2#$*%'*%'/$#"'*+'#6"'4*//$(9"'"Y#"%#'*+'`30'eJa3'2%5'g3'"2.#6'3*8%5/J''\%'*.5".'#*'2//"//')6$-6'
3$&6#'("'#6"'3*/#'244.*4.$2#"0')"'2/>'#62#'-*348#".'&"%".2#"5'$32&"/'*+'#6"'^#.25"E*++T'-*342.$/*%/'("'4."42."5'*+'#6"'
5$++"."%#')*.>/'#62#'3$&6#'("'%""5"5'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'523/')$#6'"2-6'*+'#6"'/8&&"/#"5'72#-64$#'3*8%5'6"$&6#/0'2%5'
)$#6'/*3"'/4."25$%&'*+'2##"%82#$*%'#6.*8&6*8#'#6"'-62$%J''K"'29/*'42.#$-892.9?'."O8"/#'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'6*)'#6"'32#8."'
#.""/'$%'#6"'72#-64$#':299"?')$99'("'4."/".:"5J

V6$/'$//8"')2/'-*%/$5"."5'2/'42.#'*+'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'."4*.#'2%5'X89?')*.>/6*4'
*+' GGBL' )6"."' #.25"E*++/' ("#)""%' 523' .2$/$%&' 2%5' /4$99)2?/' )"."'
3*5"99"5J
V6"'2-#829'9*-2#$*%'*+'#6"'72#-64$#'523'."O8$."/'5"#2$9"5'#*4*&.246$-'2%5'
#.""'/8.:"?/'#62#'2."'-8.."%#9?'("$%&'-*33$//$*%"5J

Jeremy Wright

H&HS  on 
Constrained 
Options report

25 June 2013

b] K"'2."'-*%-".%"5'#62#'#6"'92.&"'O82%#$#?'*+'"2.#6'#*'+*.3'#6"'72#-64$#'3*8%5'32?'."O8$."'2'92.&"'2%5'$%#.8/$:"'(*..*)'
4$#0'$+'*(#2$%"5'*%'/$#"J''K"'."O8"/#'#62#'#6$/'("'$%:"/#$&2#"5'8.&"%#9?0'2%5'5$++"."%#'*4#$*%/'+*.'*(#2$%$%&'#6$/'"2.#6'("'
4.*:$5"5J

F"4"%5$%&'84*%'#6"'/$9#'/8.:"?/'$#'3$&6#'("'4*//$(9"'#*'5")2#".'#6"'/$9#'2%5'
."8/"'#*',99'4*#"%#$29'(*..*)'4$#/J'@%29?/$/'*+'#6"'/$9#'$/'("$%&'8%5".#2>"%J

Jeremy Wright

H&HS  on 
Constrained 
Options report

25 June 2013

ba K"'2&.""'#62#'#6"'N*2#'G*%5'/""3/'#*'("'#6"'3*/#'244.*4.$2#"'/$#"'+*.'2##"%82#$*%'*%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'2/'$#'$/'#6"'9"2/#'
%2#8.29'9**>$%&'4*%5J''1*)":".0')"'62:"'3$Y"5':$")/0'2%5'/*3"'*+'8/'62:"'-*%-".%/'#62#'#6"'523'.2$/"5'(?'2/'38-6'2/'
j3')*895'("'38-6'#**'6$&60'2/'/6*)%'#*'8/'*%'/$#"J''\%'*.5".'#*'6"94'8/'#*'C85&"0')"'2/>'#62#'-*348#".'&"%".2#"5'$32&"/'
*+'#6"'^#.25"E*++T'-*342.$/*%/'("'4."42."5'*+'#6"'5$++"."%#')*.>/'#62#'3$&6#'("'%""5"5'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'523/'2%5'#6"'
N*2#'4*%50')$#6'#6"'N*2#'4*%5'523'.2$/"5'(?'/2?']30'a3'2%5'j30'2%5')$#6'/*3"'/4."25$%&'*+'2##"%82#$*%'#6.*8&6*8#'#6"'
-62$%J''K"'%""5'#6$/'#*'"/#2(9$/6'exactly')62#'."9":2%#'."58-#$*%'*+')*.>')*895'."/89#'*%'#6"'."/#'*+'#6"'-62$%'$%'."92#$*%'
#*'#6*/"'*4#$*%/J

V6$/'$//8"')2/'-*%/$5"."5'2/'42.#'*+'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'."4*.#'2%5'X89?')*.>/6*4'
*+' GGBL' )6"."' #.25"E*++/' ("#)""%' 523' .2$/$%&' 2%5' /4$99)2?/' )"."'
3*5"99"5J

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS  on 
Constrained 
Options report

25 June 2013

bj K"')*895'244."-$2#"'."-"$:$%&'$%5$-2#$:"';O82%#$,"5<'6?5.*&.246/'+*.'#6"'^#.25"E*++T'-*342.$/*%/'+*.'(*#6'-62$%/ 1?5.*&.246/'+*.'#6"'#)*'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'*4#$*%/';`'2%5'Z<'+*.'#6"'1$&6&2#"'
=*J]' 2%5'!*5"9' N*2#$%&' G*%5/' 2."' 244"%5"5' #*' #6"' G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'
P"4*.#J

1?5.*&.246/'+*.'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%'*4#$*%/')$99'+*99*)J

P
age 193



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

20

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright,

H&HS  on 
Constrained 
Options report

25 June 2013

b` \%'*.5".'#*'("'2(9"'#*'-*%/$5".'#6"'$342-#/'*+':2.$*8/'4.*4*/29/0')"'8.&"'#62#'-*%/#.8-#$*%'32%2&"3"%#'492%%$%&'("'
8.&"%#9?'255."//"5

D2.9?' -*%#.2-#*.' $%:*9:"3"%#' $/' /""%' 2/' 2%' $%#"&.29' 42.#' *+' #6"' 5"/$&%'
/*98#$*%0' 42.#$-892.9?' #6"' 5":"9*43"%#' *+' #6"' 7!GJ' B#2>"6*95"./' 62:"'
+*.3"5'42.#'*+'#6"'#"23'/"9"-#$%&'#6"'4."+".."5'-*%/#.8-#$*%'-*%#.2-#*.J

Rachel Douglas,

Mixed Pond 
Association on 
Constrained 
Options Report

25 June 2013

be V6"'72#-64$#'"3(2%>3"%#c(2..$".0')6"#6".'/$#"5'2/'4.*4*/"5'*%']gJZJ]j0'*.0'2/'29/*'/8&&"/#"50'":"%'-9*/".'#*'#6"'4*%50'
)$99'/8(/#2%#$299?'-62%&"'#6"'244"2.2%-"'*+'#6"'=*.#6'"%5'*+'#6"'G*%50'/$%-"'2'/#.8-#8."'*+'#62#'/$h"'$%'#62#'4*/$#$*%')$99'
("':$/$(9"'":"%'$+'2%5')6"%'5"%/"':"&"#2#$*%'$/'."E"/#2(9$/6"5J'V6$/')$99'8%5*8(#"59?'("'5$/9$>"5'(?'32%?'G*%5'8/"./J'
Details of exact positioning, replanting and so on will be crucial to mitigate the expected antagonism the 
proposition of so large a barrier is bound to produce.

\#' $/' ."-*&%$h"5' #62#' 9*-2#$*%' *+' #6$/' %")'"3(2%>3"%#')$99' %""5' #*' ("'
-2."+899?'3*5"99"5'#*'3$%$3$h"'$#/':$/829'$%#.8/$*%J'N*#6'#*4*&.246$-'2%5'
#.""'/8.:"?/'2."'-8.."%#9?'("$%&'8%5".#2>"%'#*'"%2(9"'2%29?/$/'*+')6"."'
#6$/'%")'"3(2%>3"%#'3$&6#'("/#'("'9*-2#"5J

Rachel Douglas,

Mixed Pond 
Association on 
Constrained 
Options Report

25 June 2013

bZ V6"')$95".%"//'$%'#6"':299"?'84/#."23'+.*3'#6"'!$Y"5'G*%5'255/'#*'#6"'-62.3'*+'#6"'G*%5'"%:$.*%3"%#'2%5'$/'29/*':".?'
38-6':298"5'(?'&"%".29'1"2#6'8/"./'2/')"99'2/'/)$33"./J'K"'2."'#6"."+*."'-*%-".%"5'#62#')6"%'#6"')*.>'$/'*:".'#6"."'
/6*895'("'2':$2(9"'492%'#*'"%2(9"'/$3$92.'5"%/"':"&"#2#$*%'#*'("'."E"/#2(9$/6"5J'V6$/'32?'."O8$."'+"%-$%&'*++'#6"'5232&"5'
2."2/'8%#$9'/8-6'#$3"'2/'#6"':"&"#2#$*%'$/'5"%/"'"%*8&6'#*'5"#".'32//'2--"//'2%5'#*'"%/8."'4"*49"'>""4'#*'42#6/J'Such 
plans must be made clear before the proposal goes out for public consultation.

V6"'7$#?'7*.4*.2#$*%' $/'4.*4*/$%&' #*'62:"'2'V".3'!2$%#"%2%-"'G92%' #*'
"%/8."'#62#'#6"'/-6"3"' $/'25"O82#"9?'32$%#2$%"50'"%/8.$%&'#6"'1"2#6T/'
%2#8.29'2/4"-#'$/'."#2$%"5J

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

bg K"'%""5'#*'/""'2'4."-$/"'-*.."92#$*%'("#)""%'#6"'/$h"'*+'#6"'.2$/"5'NG'523'2%5'#6"'-*%/"O8"%#'$%-."2/"5'/4$99)2?'
"%&$%"".$%&')*.>/'+*.'#6"'!G0'$%-985$%&'."&2.5$%&'#6"'9*//'*+'#.""/0'-62%&"'$%'*.'9*//'*+':"&"#2#$*%0'2%5'-62%&"'$%'#6"'
244"2.2%-"'*+'#6"':"&"#2#$*%J''@%5'#6"'"%&$%"".$%&')*.>/'%""5'#*'("'"Y49$-$#9?'9$%>"5'#*'#6"')2#".M*)'/#2#$/#$-/J

W4#$*%/'3*5"99$%&'/*' +2.'62/'(""%' $%#"%5"5'#*'/6*)'#6"'/$h"'*+' .2$/$%&'
)*.>/'2#'4*%5/'5*)%/#."23'*+'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'2%5'#*'299*)'9$>"E+*.E
9$>"' -*342.$/*%' ;*+' #6"' "++"-#/' *+' :2.?$%&' #6"' .2$/$%&' *+'!*5"9' N*2#$%&'
G*%5<'#6"'/4$99)2?'/$h"'2#'!"%T/'N2#6$%&'G*%5')2/'>"4#'#6"'/23"J'1*)":".0'
.",%"3"%#/'*%'#6"'/$h"'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?'-2%'("'-2..$"5'*8#'$%'#6"'*8#9$%"'
5"/$&%'/#2&"'2%5')$99'8/"'%")'#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?'$%+*.32#$*%'#*'5*'#6$/J

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

bi K62#'$/'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/$h"'*+'#6"'l%")'4$4"'#*'42//'#6.*8&6'.2$/"5'42.#'*+'523m'*%'NGd V6$/'62/'%*#'?"#'(""%'3*5"99"5J'\#'$/'9$>"9?'#*'("'2'.",%"3"%#'#*'*%"'*+'
#6"'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/J

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

bb

100

12:"'@#>$%/'/".$*8/9?'-*%/$5"."5'#6"'/-29"'2%5'$342-#'*+'-*%/#.8-#$%&'#6"'NG'523'.2$/"5'(?'j3d''\+'$#'$/'j3'Y']e3'
#.$2%&892.'/"-#$*%'Y']a[3'9*%&';/2?<0'$#')*895'."O8$."'ag[['3j'*+'/*$9'(.*8&6#'$%J''\+'2'5834".'#.8->'-2..$"/'][3j'0'$#')*895'
%""5'ag['9*25/'#6.*8&6'7235"%0'84'*.'5*)%'K"/#'1$99'2%5'29*%&'!$99,"95'H2%"J''\/'#6$/'"%:$.*%3"%#299?'2--"4#2(9"d''7*895'
#6"'"Y$/#$%&'NG'523')$#6/#2%5'#6$/'48%$/63"%#d''\/'#6"'$%#"%#$*%'#*'2:*$5'#6$/'92.&"E/-29"'(.$%&$%&'$%'*+'/*$9'(?'"Y-2:2#$%&'
2%5'"Y#"%5$%&'#6"')"/#'/$5"'*+'#6"'NGd''\%'*#6".')*.5/0'5*"/'#6"'j3'523'%"-"//2.$9?'"%#2$9'#6$/'"Y#"%/$*%';."&2.59"//'*+'
#6"'92##".T/':$/829'$342-#<d

K"'8%5"./#2%5'l2'."$%+*.-"5'/4$99)2?m';2/'5$/#$%-#'+.*3'l2'/4$99)2?m<'-2%%*#'62:"'#.""/'*%'$#0'(8#'$#'-2%'62:"'&.2//'2%5'
:"&"#2#$*%J''\/'#6$/'-*.."-#d''K"'%""5'#*'/""'"Y2-#9?0'$+'#6"'NG'523')2/'.2$/"5']Je'#*'a3'*%9?0')6$-6'#.""/')*895'62:"'#*'
("'."3*:"5'+.*3'#6"'l-6*/"%'2."2m'*+'#6"'!G'523J''

\%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%'/-6"3"'#6"'j3'6"$&6#'*4#$*%'*+'.2$/$%&'N*2#$%&'
4*%5'523'62/'(""%'5$/-*8%#"5J
7*H'2."')*.>$%&')$#6'@#>$%/' #*' $5"%#$+?' (*..*)'4$#' 9*-2#$*%/' #*' 4.*:$5"'
32#".$29'+*.'#6"'5230'#6$/')*895'."58-"'3*:"3"%#/'*+'32#".$29/'+*.'523'
-*%/#.8-#$*%J''\%'255$#$*%0'5"4"%5$%&'*%'/$9#'/8.:"?/'$#'32?'("'4*//$(9"'#*'
5")2#".'#6"'/$9#'2%5'."E8/"'$#'#*',99'4*#"%#$29'(*..*)'4$#/J''@%29?/$/'*+'/$9#'
$/'("$%&'8%5".#2>"%J

V6$/' $/' -*.."-#J' ' @' #.""' 9*//' 492%' )$99' ("' 4.*:$5"5' /**%' 2+#".' #6"' %")'
#*4*&.246$-29'$%+*.32#$*%'$/'-*3($%"5')$#6'#6"'#.""'/8.:"?'$%+*'2%5'#6"'
*8#9$%"'5"/$&%J''78.."%#9?'$#'$/'"/#$32#"5'#62#'*%"'9"//'#.""')$99'("'2++"-#"5'
$%'2'aJ[3'.2$/$%&'*4#$*%'#62%'$%'#6"'aJe3'*.'jJ[3'.2$/$%&'*4#$*%/J'

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

101 K"'%""5'#*'/""'3*."'5"#2$9/'2(*8#'#6"'/$h"'2%5'%83(".'*+'#6"'4$4"/'2%5'/4$99)2?/'4.*4*/"5J''V6"'P"4*.#'5*"/'%*#'32>"'
#6$/'-9"2.J

!*."'$%+*.32#$*%'2(*8#'4.*:$/$*%29'/4$99)2?'5"4#6/'2%5'9*-2#$*%/'$/'&$:"%'
$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#J

P
age 194



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
21

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

102 K"'%""5'/4"-$,-$#?'*%')6$-6'#.""/'62:"'#*'("'+"99"5'2%5')62#':"&"#2#$*%'-2%'."32$%'*.'("'492%#"5'$%'."92#$*%'#*'"2-6'
*4#$*%J

B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"';#*'O8".?'][[<'2(*8#'#6"'#.""'9*//'492%'#*'("'4.*58-"5'
2#'*8#9$%"'5"/$&%'/#2&"J

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

103 K62#'$/'#6"'-8.."%#'4*/$#$*%')$#6'#6"'."4*.#"5'9"2>/'*%'#6"'!G'523d''12:"'#6"?'(""%'498&&"50'2%5')62#'$/c)2/'#6"$.'
/$&%$,-2%-"'+*.'#6"'G.*C"-#d

V6"'9"2>/')$99'("'$%:"/#$&2#"5'+8.#6".'2%5'."3"5$29')*.>/'#*'/#*4'#6"'9"2>/'
)$99'("'5"/$&%"5'2/'42.#'*+' #6"'4.*C"-#J' 'V6"/"')*.>/')$99'("'O82%#$,"5'
2+#".'&.*8%5'$%:"/#$&2#$*%'$%#*'#6"'523'32#".$29'2%5'2%29?/$/'*+'#6"'523T/'
/#2($9$#?J

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate

Men’s Bathing Pond 
on Constrained 
Options Report

27 June 2013

][` K"'2."'8%-9"2.';$<'6*)'#6"'4".-"%#2&"'"/#$32#"/'*+')2#".'2##"%82#$*%'+*.'#6"':2.$*8/'*4#$*%/'62:"'(""%'-29-892#"50'2%5';$$<'
6*)'#6"/"'2."'9$%>"5'#*'#6"'"/#$32#"5':*983"/'*+'.8%E*++'(2/"5'*%'.":$/"5';$J"J'4*/#E12?9*-><'2(/*.4#$*%'-29-892#$*%/J

@//83$%&' #6"'O8".?' ."92#"/' #*'7*%/#.2$%"5'*4#$*%/' ."4*.#' 4jb' lNX' /2$5'
(?' .2$/$%&' j30' $#' -*895' -."2#"' ][Z0[[[3s' /#*.2&"E' 293*/#' e[n' *+' #6"'
5"/$&%"5'M**5Jm

V6$/'/#2#"3"%#')2/'325"'("+*."'#6"'5"#2$9"5'3*5"99$%&'*+'#6"'*4#$*%/')2/'
,%29$/"5'2%5')2/'#6"."+*."'$%#"%5"5'#*'("'$%5$-2#$:"'*%9?J

\%M*)':*983"/'#*'2%?'&$:"%'4*%5'-2%'("'-29-892#"5'2/'#6"'/83'*+' #6"'
$%M*)':*983"'+.*3k
F$."-#'.2$%+299'+299$%&'*%'#6"'4*%5q
P8%*++'+.*3'#6"'/8..*8%5$%&'92%5q
\%M*)'+.*3'#6"'84/#."23'4*%5'4$4"q'2%5
\%M*)'*:".'#6"'84/#."23'4*%5'523'-."/#q
V6"/"'$%M*)':*983"/'-2%'("'-29-892#"5'+*.'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/$#82#$*%'2%5'+*.'
#6"'3*5"9"5'*4#$*%/J

B#*.2&"'-242-$#$"/'*+'"2-6'4*%5'2."'-29-892#"5'2/' #6"':*983"'*+')2#".'
)6$-6'-2%'("'/#*."5'("#)""%'#6"'V*4'K2#".'H":"9';5",%"5'2/'#6"'4$4"'
$%:".#'9":"9<'2%5'#6"'523'-."/#'9":"9J'V6$/'$/'#6"."+*."'#6"':*983"'*+')2#".'
#62%'-2%'("'/#*."5'$%'#6"'4*%5')$#6*8#'#6"'523'-."/#'*:".#*44$%&J'

V6"'4".-"%#2&"'*+')2#".'#62#'-2%'("'2##"%82#"5'$/'#6"."+*."'#6"'/#*.2&"'
-242-$#?'2(*:"'VKH'2/'2'4".-"%#2&"'*+'#6"'#*#29'4*%5'$%M*)J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

105 V6"'^-*%/#.2$%"5'*4#$*%/T'-*34.$/"'2'9$3$#"5':"./$*%'*+'#6"'8%-*%/#.2$%"5'*4#$*%/J'="2.9?'299'^*44*.#8%$#$"/T'+*.'1$&6&2#"'=*'
]'/8332.$/"5'$%'#6"'7.$#$-29'P":$")'62:"'5$/244"2."5J'K6?'62:"'#6"/"'(""%'/"#'2/$5"d

D%92.&$%&'#6"'4*%5'2."2')*895'."/89#'$%'#.""'2%5'/6.8('9*//'2%5'2%'$342-#'
*%':$/829'23"%$#?'2%5'-62.2-#".'*+'4*%5'2%5'/"##$%&'*+'1"2#6J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

][Z V6"'4*#"%#$29'+*.'.2$/$%&'#6"'B#*->'G*%5'523'#*'4.*:$5"'255$#$*%29'/#*.2&"')2/'-*%/$5"."5'2%5'/844*.#"5'2/'2%'*4#$*%'2#'
#6"')*.>/6*4J''V6"'$342-#'*%'#.""/'-2%'("'3$#$&2#"5'(?'8/$%&'2')299'-*%/#.8-#$*%'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'+2-"J'K6?'62/'#6$/'
*4#$*%'(""%'/"#'2/$5"d

I8.#6".' 3*5"99$%&' .":"29"5' #62#' #6"' ("%",#' *+' 4.*:$5$%&' 255$#$*%29'
2##"%82#$*%'2#'B#*->'G*%5')2/':".?'/3299';*+'#6"'*.5".'*+'a['Ej[33'5.*4'
$%'4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'+*.'2%'"Y#.2'[Je3'.2$/$%&'2#'B#*->'G*%5'*%'#*4'*+'#6"'
[Je3'("$%&'-*%/$5"."5J<

P
age 195



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

22

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

107 @#')62#'":"%#')$99'#6"'/4$99)2?'4.*4*/"5'#*'#6"')"/#'*+'1$&6&2#"'=*]'523'-*3"'$%#*'8/"d \%'(*#6'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'+*.'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'*+'4*%5/'#6"'1$&6&2#"'
=*J']'/4$99)2?')$99'%*#'*4".2#"'8%#$9'2']k][[['":"%#J
78.."%#9?'#6"'4*%5/'*:".#*4' $%'2%'8%-*%#.*99"5'32%%".' $%'2']k][['?"2.'
":"%#J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

][i K62#'$/'#6"'492%%"5'#*#29'G!I':*983"'2%5'2:2$92(9"'/#*.2&"'+*.'1$&6&2#"'=*]'4*%50'/8(/"O8"%#'#*'#6"'1234/#"25'1"2#6'
G*%5'G.*C"-#d

\%' W4#$*%' `0' 1$&6&2#"' =*]' 4*%5' 62/' 2' /#*.2&"' -242-$#?' *+' `j0jeZ33 
("#)""%' #6"'4$4"' $%:".#' 9":"9' 2%5' #6"'523'-."/#' 9":"9J'V6"'G!I' $%M*)'
:*983"'#*'1$&6&2#"'=*]'4*%5'$%'W4#$*%'`'$/'a]e0Zig33J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

][b K62#'$/'#6"'-8.."%#'32Y$383'M*)'5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'4$4"/'#62#'5.2$%'1$&6&2#"'=*]'4*%5d V6"'-242-$#?'*+' #6"'"Y$/#$%&'[J`Z3'5$23"#".'*:".M*)'4$4"'2#'1$&6&2#"'
=*J]'G*%5'62/'(""%'-29-892#"5'2#'("#)""%'[Je'2%5'[Jb33c/J''V6"'*8#M*)'
$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*'4"2>/'2#'*:".']g33c/';$%'2']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#<'
2%5'ji33c/'$%'2'G!I'":"%#0')6$-6'3"2%/'#62#'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"')*895'("'
$%/8+,-$"%#'2%5'M**5)2#".')*895'("'(2->'84'2%5'M*)'*:".'#6"'523J

V6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'je[33'5$23"#".'/-*8.'4$4"'$/'9$>"9?'#*'("'9"//'#62%'
]33c/J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

110 @."'7*H'4.*4*/$%&'-*%#$%8$%&'8/"'*+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'2/'2%'*:".M*)d =*0'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'$/'*%9?'+*.'32$%#"%2%-"'48.4*/"/J'V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'
."O8$."'-*%/"%#'+.*3'V623"/'K2#".'#*'."9"2/"')2#".'8/$%&'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

111 K62#'$/'#6"':*983"'*+'255$#$*%29'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'#62#'$/'("$%&'492%%"5'+*.'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%d @' #*#29' *+' ]jj0j]g33' *+' 255$#$*%29' /#*.2&"' -242-$#?' $/' 492%%"5' +*.' #6"'
4*%5/'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'8%5".'W4#$*%'`J'V6$/'62/'(""%'-29-892#"5'2/'
#6"'/83'#*#29'*+'#6"'255$#$*%29'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'4.*:$5"5'2#'"2-6'*+'#6"'/$Y'
4*%5/'("#)""%'4$4"'$%:".#'9":"9'2%5'523'-."/#'9":"9J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

112 F*"/'^\34.*:"'5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?T'3"2%'^$%-."2/"'#6"'O82%#$#?'*+')2#".'#62#')$99c-2%'("'5$/-62.&"5'$%'3jc'/"-d r"/0'/$%-"'#6"'-8.."%#'5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?'*+'(*#6'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"/'2%5'
#6"' /-*8.'4$4"/'2."' $%25"O82#"' +*.'5"29$%&')$#6'M*)/' $%']k][0[[['?"2.'
":"%#/'*%'299'#6"'523/J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

113 1*)'$/'#6"'5$/-62.&"'*+')2#".'+.*3'1$&6&2#"'=*]'4*%5'#*'("'32%2&"5d'
'"&'2<''($&&".'5.2$%/'(<''-2#-64$#c'5.?'."/".:*$.'*.'-<'/4$99)2?

K2#".')$99'42//'#6.*8&6'#6"'-62$%'*+'4*%5/'2%5'#6"%'42//'5*)%/#."23J

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

]]` V6"'+*99*)$%&'*4#$*%/'62:"'(""%'5$/-*8%#"5J'K6?d
2' F23'.2$/$%&k'#6$/'/6*895'%*#'("'5$/-*8%#"5'2#'#6$/'4*%5J''\#'62/'#6"'9*)"/#'-."/#'9":"9'2(*:"'#6"'*8#M*)'*+'

2%?'*+'#6"'4*%5/'*%'#6"'6"29#6J'
(' G$9$%&'#6"'+2-"0'-9"2.$%&'5*)%/#."23'+2-"'2%5'*#6".'*4#$*%/'62:"'29/*'(""%'5$/-*8%#"5'*.'."2/*%/')6$-6'

2."'8%-9"2.J
-' D%92.&$%&'#6"'4*%5'62/'29/*'(""%'.89"5'*8#J'@//83$%&'#6$/'3"2%/'$%-."2/"5'4*#"%#$29'#*'-*%#2$%'M**5'

)2#".'$%'"Y#."3"'":"%#/'#6$/'$/')*.#6'-*%/$5".$%&'$%'-*%C8%-#$*%')$#6'92%5/-24$%&'#*'#6"'4".$3"#".J

a. K*895'%""5'#*'>%*)')6$-6'4*%5'$/'("$%&'."+".."5'#*'6"."J
b. @55$%&'3*."'/6""#'4$9$%&'#*'#6"'4*%5/')*895'("'8%4*4892.' $%'#".3/'
*+'$#/':$/829'$342-#J'l79"2.$%&'#6"'5*)%/#."23'+2-"m'3"2%/'."3*:29'*+'
#.""/'*%'299'523/0')6$-6')"'2."'#.?$%&'#*'2:*$5J

c. D%92.&$%&' #6"'4*%5' $/' *%9?'("$%&' -*%/$5"."5'2#'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'
$%'*.5".'#*'4.*:$5"'32#".$29'#*'(8$95'2'.2$/$%&'"3(2%>3"%#J'D%92.&$%&'
5*"/'%*#'/$&%$,-2%#9?'29#".'M**5'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'(?'$#/"9+J

P
age 196



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
23

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

115 D%&$%"".$%&'*4#$*%/'%""5'#*'-*%/$5".'#6"'32%2&"3"%#'*+'M**5')2#"./'("?*%5'#6$/'523'2%5'$%#*'#6"'38%$-$429'5.2$%2&"'
/?/#"3J''K62#')*.>/'2."'("$%&'-*%/$5"."5'#*'4.*#"-#'."/$5"%#$29'4.*4".#$"/'(?'#6"'-."2#$*%'*+'2'5.?'."/".:*$.'2."2d

V6"' 5.?' ."/".:*$.' )*895' %""5' #*' /#*."' 244.*Y$32#"9?' ][g0[[[33' $%' 2'
]k][0[[[' ?"2.' ":"%#J' V6$/' $/' #)$-"' #6"' -242-$#?' *+'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'
2%5' #6$/')*895'%*#'("'2-6$":2(9"'&$:"%' #6"' #*4*&.246?'5*)%/#."23'*+'
1$&6&2#"'=*J]J'

Charles Leonard,

EGOVRA on 
Constrained 
Options Report

28 June 2013

]]Z K*895'#6"'7*H'-*%,.3'#62#'-*348#".'3*5"99$%&'*+':2.$*8/'29#".%2#$:"/')$99'("'4.*:$5"5'2%5'#62#'#6$/')$99'("'$%'2'+*.3'#62#'
"%2(9"/'8/'#*'."29$/#$-299?'8%5"./#2%5'#6"'$342-#'*+'.2$/$%&'*%"'*.'3*."'*+'#6"'*#6".'523/'$%'"2-6'-62$%'E'/8-6'2/'#62#'*+'
#6"'B#*->'G*%5'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%d'V6$/'$/'$%'."+"."%-"'#*'#6"'42.23"#"./'*+'#6"'*8#M*)'*+')2#".'+.*3'#6"'4*%5/'2#'#6"'
(*##*3'*+'"2-6'-62$%'2%5'$#/'32%2&"3"%#J

V6"'*4#$*%/'M*)-62.#/'$%'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#';2%5'8452#"5'$%'#6"'
G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#<')"."' $%#"%5"5' #*' $998/#.2#"' #6"'-*%/"O8"%-"/'
2%5'#.25"E*++/'*+'.2$/$%&'#6"'92/#'j'523/'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%J''B""'29/*'
#6"'6?5.*&.246/')6$-6'2."'("$%&'244"%5"5'#*' $%' #6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'
P"4*.#J

Charles Leonard, 
EGOVRA at 
Stakeholder 
meeting 

22 July 2013

117 72%'.2$/$%&'B#*->'G*%5'(?']'3'("'-*%/$5"."5d I8.#6".' 3*5"99$%&' .":"29"5' #62#' #6"' ("%",#' *+' 4.*:$5$%&' 255$#$*%29'
2##"%82#$*%'2#'B#*->'G*%5')2/':".?'/3299';*+'#6"'*.5".'*+'a['Ej[33'5.*4'
$%'4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'+*.'2%'"Y#.2'[Je3'.2$/$%&'2#'B#*->'G*%5'*%'#*4'*+'#6"'
[Je3'("$%&'-*%/$5"."5J<

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]]i K62#'$/'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%'+*.'1$&6&2#"'=*]'G*%5';1L=*]<d''V6"'@//"//3"%#'*+'I9**5'F"/$&%'/4"-$,"/'
#6$/'+299/'("#)""%'e['2%5'][['?"2./J''G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'#6$/')$#6'&."2#".'2--8.2-?J

V6"'3$%$383'-."/#'9":"9'*+'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'4*%5'62/'(""%'23"%5"5'$%'
#6"'3*5"90'2%5'/$%-"'$#'62/'/9$&6#9?'$%-."2/"5'#*'ZjJgg3@WF0'#6"']'$%'
][['?"2.'."#8.%'4".$*5'":"%#'5*"/'%*#'%*)'-28/"'*:".#*44$%&J''V6"'4"2>'
)2#".'9":"9'$%'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'58.$%&'#6"']'$%'][['?"2.'":"%#''$/'
ZjJgZ`30'/*'#6"'B#2%52.5'*+'G.*#"-#$*%';B*G<'$/'293*/#'"Y2-#9?']'$%'][['
?"2./J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]]b F*"/'#6"'5"#".3$%2#$*%'*+'#6"'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%'$%-985"'#6"'8#$9$h2#$*%'*+'299'4$4"/';W:".M*)'G$4"'2%5'#6"'B-*8.'G$4"<'
9"2:$%&'1L=*]d

W:".M*)'4$4"/'2."'$%-985"5'$%'#6"'3*5"9'2%5')"."'-*%/$5"."5'#*'("'
*4"%'2%5'M*)$%&'58.$%&'#6"'3*5"9'.8%/'#*'5"#".3$%"'B#2%52.5'*+'
G.*#"-#$*%';B*G<J

V6"'/-*8.'4$4"/')"."'%*#'$%-985"5'$%'#6"'3*5"9'2/'#6"':29:"/'*%'#6"/"'
2."'%*.3299?'-9*/"50'/*')"'62:"'%*#'3*5"99"5'/-*8.'4$4"/';%*.'5$5'
12?-*->/<J''B$%-"'/-*8.'4$4"/'62:"'#*'("'*4"%"5'(?'/*3"*%"'#*'("'
"++"-#$:"0')"'62:"'#*'2//83"'#62#'#6"?'2."'%*#'*4"%'*.'%*#'2:2$92(9"'
58.$%&'2%'":"%#J''''

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

120 K62#'2."'#6"'M**5'32%2&"3"%#'4.*-"58."/'#62#'62:"'(""%'8/"5'#*'32%2&"'#6"'M**5)2#"./'*+'1L=*]'$%-985$%&'(*#6'
#6.*8&6'"Y$/#$%&'5.2$%2&"'/?/#"3/'2%5'2%?'*#6".'3"2%/'"J&J'/8.+2-"')2#".d

V6$/'/?/#"3'$/'4.$32.$9?'2//*-$2#"5')$#6'8%5".#2>$%&'32$%#"%2%-"')*.>/0'
299*)$%&')$#6'V623"/'K2#".'-*%/"%#')2#".'9":"9/'#*'("'9*)"."5J'V6"'
92->'*+'25"O82#"'/4$99)2?'4.*:$/$*%'$/'2'32##".'#62#'#6"'G*%5/'G.*C"-#'
/"">/'#*'255."//'299*)$%&')2#".'#*'42//'#6.*8&6'#6"'-62$%'*+'4*%5/'(8#'
l:$.#8299?'"9$3$%2#$%&m'#6"'.$/>'*+'523'+2$98."J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

121 K6*'*)%/'*.'$/'."/4*%/$(9"'+*.'"2-6'4$4"'9"2:$%&'1L=*]'$%-985$%&'#6"$.'32$%#"%2%-"d V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'*)%/'#*'#6"',./#'4*$%#'*+'-*338%$-2#$*%'
)$#6'2%*#6".'5.2$%J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

122 K62#'$/'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'523'2(*:"'#6"'%*.329')2#".'9":"9d V6"'3$%$383'523'-."/#'9":"9'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*']'$/'ZjJgg3@FJ'V6"'#?4$-29'
)2#".'9":"9'[note 18th Oct – this should say Top Water Level]'$/'2#'#6"'
*:".M*)'$%:".#'9":"9')6$-6'$/'2#'ZaJ`e3@FJ'V6"'3$%$383'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'
523'2(*:"'*:".M*)'$%:".#'9":"9'$/'#6"."+*."']Jja3J

P
age 197



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

24

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

123 K62#'2."'#6"'5$3"%/$*%/0'32Y$383'5$/-62.&"'M*)'.2#"'2%5':*983"'*+'"2-6'4$4"';W:".M*)'2%5'B-*8.'G$4"/<'#62#'9"2:"/'
1L=*]d

V6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'5$23"#".'$/'[Jj]3J'[Note 18th Oct – this should say 
460mm.]'V6"'-29-892#"5'/#2&"';6"$&6#<':/'5$/-62.&"'."92#$*%/6$4'+*.'#6"'
*:".M*)'4$4"'$/'#2(892#"5'("9*)0')$#6'#6"'32Y$383'M*)'.2#"'."2-6$%&'
[Jg33c/J'[note 18th Oct – this maximum was for the highest pond water 
level that occurred in Option 3. For Options 4 and 6 where water levels 
!"#$%&%'(%"!&)%#*&+,-,,./012&34&)5&+,-67.2&)%"&859&!#)"&9'::&'*$!"#;"&
slightly more, up to 0.8 m3/s. The table below is separately calculated 
stage-discharge relationship which was used in the hydraulic model so 
)%#)&')&$53:<&'*)"!45:#)"&)%"&<';$%#!("&'*&)%"&5="!859&4'4"&>5!&#*?&9#)"!&
level in the pond. The table was calculated for higher levels but only the 
part of the table that covers levels up to 64.94m is given here, since this 
is the nearest value to the modelled peak water level of 64.93m which 
occurs in Options 4 and 6 in the PMF event.]';V6"'/-*8.'4$4"'62/'%*#'
(""%'3*5"99"50'+*.'#6"'."2/*%/'&$:"%'2(*:"'$%'."/4*%/"'#*'O8".?']]b<J

Flow

m3/s

Stage (water level) 

mAOD

0 ZaJ`e

[J[]] ZaJZ`

[J[`Z ZaJg`

[J][a ZaJi`

[J]ga ZaJb`

[Jaai ZjJ[`

[Jagb ZjJ]`

[Jjja ZjJa`

[Jjgj ZjJj`

[J`[e ZjJ``

[J`jZ ZjJe`

[J`ZZ ZjJZ`

[J`be ZjJg`

[Jeaj ZjJi`

[Jee] ZjJb`

[Jegi Z`J[`

[JZ[e Z`J]`

[JZj] Z`Ja`

[JZeg Z`Jj`

[JZia Z`J``

0.707 64.54

0.732 64.64

0.756 64.74

0.780 64.84

0.803 64.94

Added 18th Oct

P
age 198



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
25

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]a` G9"2/"'4.*:$5"',&8."/'+*.'#6"'"Y$/#$%&':*983"'2%5'5$/-62.&"'M*)'.2#"/'*+')2#".'42//$%&'#6.*8&6'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'58.$%&'
]<'%*.329'-*%5$#$*%/';$J"J')6"%'#6"."'$/%T#'2%?'.2$%<'2%5'a<'/#*.3'":"%#/'*+']'$%'][0'a[0'j['2%5'e['2%5'2#'#6"'4*$%#')6"%'
*:".#*44$%&'("&$%/d'V6$/'$/'#*'"/#2(9$/6'#6"'-8.."%#'-*%5$#$*%/'+*.'-*342.$/*%')$#6'#6"'"Y4"-#"5'-*%5$#$*%/'2+#".'#6"'
4.*4*/"5')*.>/'62:"'(""%'-*349"#"5J'

\%'5.?'-*%5$#$*%/0'#6"."'$/'%*'M*)'#6.*8&6'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"0'#6"/"'5.?'
-*%5$#$*%/'2."'."4*.#"5'#*'6244"%'244.*Y$32#"9?'e'3*%#6/'$%'2'?"2.J''
V6"'6?5.*9*&?'+*.'#6"']'$%']['?"2.'2%5']'$%'j['?"2.'M**5'":"%#/')2/'
%*#'-29-892#"50'/*'#6"'M*)/'58.$%&'#6"']'$%'a[0']'$%'e[0']'$%'][['2%5']'$%'
]0[[['?"2.'":"%#/'62:"'(""%'&$:"%0'#*'299*)'-*342.$/*%/J

Return period 

(1 in T years)

Total volume discharged 

*+"#,-+)#.&"/#0)121&

(m3 )

Peak discharge in pipe

(m3/s)

1 in 20 6,047 0.01

1 in 50 10,534 0.40

1 in 100 17,728 0.50

1 in 1000 19,256 0.53

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

125 G.*:$5"'5"#2$9/'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'#*#29':*983"0'4"2>'5$/-62.&"'M*)'.2#"0'5"4#6'*+'*:".#*44$%&'2%5'*:".#*44$%&'58.2#$*%'$%'e[0'
ge'2%5'][['?"2.'/#*.3'":"%#/J

V6"'523'$/'%*#'*:".#*44"5'$%'#6"']'$%'e['2%5']'$%'][['?"2.'."#8.%'4".$*5'
":"%#/'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*J

V6"."+*."0'#*'299*)'2'3"2%$%&+89'-*342.$/*%'*+'"Y$/#$%&'2%5'4.*4*/"5'
/-"%2.$*/0')"'.2%'#6"'3*5"9'+*.'#6"']'$%'][[['?"2.'":"%#0')$#6'."/89#/'2/'
+*99*)/k

V*#29':*983"'*:".#*44$%&'t'e0jag33

G"2>'5$/-62.&"'M*)'.2#"'t'aJ]33c/J
!2Y'5"4#6'*+'*:".#*44$%&'t'[J]]3
F8.2#$*%'*+'*:".#*44$%&'t']'6.'`e'3$%8#"/J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]aZ G.*:$5"'2'#*4*&.246$-29'324'*+'1L=*]'$5"%#$+?$%&'#6"'9*-2#$*%'5$3"%/$*%/'2%5'5"/$&%'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?0'#6"'4*%5'
2."2'#62#')*895'("'$%8%52#"5'(?'2'M**5'4.$*.'#*')2#".'-*3$%&'5*)%'#6"'/4$99)2?0')6"."'#6"'/4$99)2?')$99'5$/-62.&"')2#".'
2%5'#6"'"Y4"-#"5'5$."-#$*%'*+')2#".'M*)'*++'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%';7*H<'4.*4".#?

K"'2."'2$3$%&'#*'4.*:$5"'2'M**5'324'(2/"5'*%'H\F@P'52#2'$%'#6"'%"2.'
+8#8."J''G9"2/"'29/*'/""'2%/)".'#*'O8".?'aabJ

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

127 \/'$#'4.*4*/"5'#62#'#6"."')$99'("'2%?'"2.#6)*.>/';(8%5'*.'*#6".)$/"<'#*'32%2&"'#6"'5$."-#$*%'2%5'/4""5'*+')2#".'M*)'*%-"'
$#'62/'-*3"'5*)%'#6"'/4$99)2?d

B8-6'"2.#6)*.>/'2."'%*#'-8.."%#9?'42.#'*+'#6"'/-6"3"0'/$%-"'#6"."'$/'%*'
6$&6'&.*8%5'5*)%/#."23'#*'#$"'$%#*0'/*'#6"'5$/-62.&"5')2#".')*895'/#$99'
-$.-892#"'(2->'#*'#6"'9*)'&.*8%5'5*)%/#."23'*+'#6"'523J''1*)":".0'(*#6'
#6"' /4""5' 2%5' #6"' :*983"'*+' #6"' 5$/-62.&"5')2#".')$99' ("' ."58-"5'(?'
$%-."2/$%&'/#*.2&"'$%'#6"'4*%5'-62$%'/?/#"3

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]ai \/'$#'4.*4*/"5'#*'-62%&"'#6"'M**5'32%2&"3"%#'4.*-"58."/'$%'+8#8."'2%5'$+'/*')6?'2."'#6"/"'-62%&"/'("$%&'$%#.*58-"5'2%5'
)62#'2."'#6"'4.*4*/"5'%")'M**5'32%2&"3"%#'4.*-"58."/'$%-985$%&'#6.*8&6'"Y$/#$%&'5.2$%2&"'2%5'/8.+2-"')2#".'/?/#"3/d''
\/'2%?'-*%/$5".2#$*%'("$%&'&$:"%'#*'2'/?/#"3'#62#'4."E"34#/'4".$*5/'*+'"Y4"-#"5'6$&6'.2$%+299'(?'$%-."2/$%&'#6"')2#".'
5$/-62.&"5'+.*3'#6"'4*%5'$%'25:2%-"'*+'#6"'/#*.3d

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'$349"3"%#"5'2%'*%E/$#"'"3".&"%-?'
2-#$*%'492%J'7235"%'7*8%-$9'62/'."/4*%/$($9$#?'+*.'#6"'*++E/$#"'"3".&"%-?'
2-#$*%'492%J

V6"'#$3"'#2>"%'#*'9*)".'#6"')2#".'9":"9'$%'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'4*%5'-*895'("'
-29-892#"50'(8#'$#'$/'9$>"9?'#62#'5.2$%$%&'#6"'4*%5')$99'#2>"'9*%&".'#62%'#6"'
#$3"'+*.'2'+*."-2/#'M**5'#*'2..$:"J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]ab @#')62#'6"$&6#'2(*:"'%*.329')2#".'9":"9')$99'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'("&$%'42//$%&')2#".d' V6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')"$.'9":"9'$/'2#'ZjJg[3'@WF0':".?'-9*/"'#*'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'3$%$383'-."/#'9":"9';ZjJgg<J''V?4$-29')2#".'9":"9'$/'ZaJ`e3@WF'
/*'#6"')2#".')*895'62:"'#*'.$/"']Jae3'("+*."'$#'42//"/'*:".'#6"'/4$99)2?'
)"$.J' [Note 18th Oct – the spillway weir level of 63.70m mentioned here 
is only for Option 3, which has since been discounted.  For Options 4 and 
6, the current preferred options, the proposed spillway level is 64.45m 
AOD, greater than the existing dam crest level, so the water would have 
to rise 2.0m before the spillway operates.]

P
age 199



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

26

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

130 K62#'2."'#6"'4.*4*/"5'48(9$-'+2-$9$#$"/'#62#'2."'#*'("'325"'2:2$92(9"'*%'1L=*]d''@."'#6"."'492%/'#*'$%#.*58-"'2%&9$%&'*%'
#6$/'4*%5d

V6"."'2."'%*'4.*4*/29/'2/'42.#'*+'#6"'G*%5/'4.*C"-#'."&2.5/'+8#8."'8/"'
*+'#6$/'4*%5'+*.'2%&9$%&J'V6"'7$#?'62:"'-*33"%-"5'5$/-8//$*%/')$#6'#6"'
1234/#"25'1"2#6'@%&9$%&'B*-$"#?'*%'/":".29'$//8"/'."92#$%&'#*',/6$%&'*%'
#6"'4*%5/'(8#'#6"/"'2."'2#'2':".?'4."9$3$%2.?'/#2&"J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

131 K62#'523'.2$/$%&'-2%'("'2-6$":"5'*%'#6$/'4*%5')$#6*8#'2++"-#$%&'#6"'#.""'-*:".'*+'#6"'4*%5d V6"'3$%$383'.2$/$%&'*+'#6"'523'$/'[Je3'$%'W4#$*%'j';)6"."'!*5"9'
N*2#$%&'G*%5'523'$/'.2$/"5'(?'j3<J'V6$/'[Je3'.2$/$%&'-*895'("'2-6$":"5'
)$#6'2'/6*.#')299'/$#82#"5'*%'#6"'523'-."/#'/*'2/'#*'2:*$5'#6"'#.""/'*%'
#6"'84/#."23'2%5'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"/'*+'#6"'523J

V6"'32Y$383'.2$/$%&'2#'#6"'523')*895'("'aJ[3'$%'W4#$*%'e';)6"."'#6"'
.2$/$%&'*+'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'523'$/'*%9?']J[3<J''V6$/')*895'62:"'#*'("'
2-6$":"5')$#6'2%'"2.#6'"3(2%>3"%#'(8$9#'*%'#6"'4*%5'/$5"0')6$-6')*895'
."O8$."'."3*:29'*+'299'#6"'#.""/'*%'#6"'84/#."23'+2-"0'2%5'2%'8%>%*)%'
%83(".'*+'#.""/'*%'#6"'%*.#6E"2/#'(2%>'2/'$#')*895'62:"'#*'#$"'$%#*'
6$&6".'&.*8%5J'G2.#9?'+*.'#6"/"'."2/*%/0'#6"'4."+".."5'*4#$*%'$/'W4#$*%'j'
)6$-6'3$%$3$h"/'#6"'#.""'9*//'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5J''

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

132 V6"'F"/$&%'G6$9*/*46?'/#2#"/'lu#6"')*.>/'#*'#6"'4*%5/')$99'%*#'32>"'#6"'M**5$%&'/$#82#$*%'5*)%/#."23')*./"mJ''\/'#6$/'
#6"'-2/"'+*.'299'/#*.3'":"%#/'2%5'6*)')$99'#6$/'("'5"3*%/#.2#"5c:".$,"5d

V6$/'/6*895'("'#6"'-2/"'&$:"%'#6"'255$#$*%'*+'/#*.2&"J'\#'$/'("$%&':".$,"5'
8/$%&'#6"'3*5"99$%&'."/89#/J

V6"'/6*.#9$/#"5'*4#$*%/'62:"'(""%'-6"->"5'#*':".$+?'#62#'#6"'M*)'
5$/-62.&$%&'+.*3'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'$%'#6"'G!I'
":"%#'$/'9"//'#62%'#6"'M*)'*:".#*44$%&'#6"'(2%>'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*J'
I8.#6".'-6"->/'62:"'%*)'(""%'325"'*%'#6"':*983"'("$%&'5$/-62.&"5'
;/""'."/4*%/"'#*'O8"/#$*%']j'("9*)J<'@#'#6"'*#6".'"%5'*+'#6"'/-29"0'%*'
M**5'":"%#/'84'#*'2%5'$%-985$%&'#6"']k][['?"2.'":"%#'-28/"'#6"'/4$99)2?'
#*'("'*:".#*44"50';)6$-6'$/'#6"'/23"'2/'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*<0'2%5'
4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'2."'9*)".J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

133 \#'$/'4.*4*/"5'#*'lu$34.*:"'#6"'5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?um'2#'1L=*]'4*%5J''1*)'$/'#6$/'#*'("'2-6$":"5'2%5')6?d''W8.'-*%-".%'
$/'#62#'/8.+2-"')2#".')$99'("'5$/-62.&"5'/**%".'#62%'$/'-8.."%#9?'#6"'-2/"'2%5'2#'2'+2/#".'.2#"J

V6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')$99'$34.*:"'#6"'control of '5$/-62.&"/0'$"'#6"'
%")'/4$99)2?')$99'62:"'38-6'3*."'-242-$#?'#62%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'*:".M*)'
4$4"0')6$-6'$/'-8.."%#9?'$%25"O82#"q'#6$/')$99'3"2%'#6"'"3(2%>3"%#')$99'
*:".#*4'9"//'+."O8"%#9?J''V6"'5$/-62.&"'*:".'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')$99'
%*#'*--8.'"2.9$".'#62%'#6"'5$/-62.&"'+.*3'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'
(2%>0'("-28/"'#6"'/4$99)2?')"$.'9":"9'$/'244.*Y$32#"9?'#6"'/23"'2/'#6"'
3$%$383'"Y$/#$%&'(2%>'9":"90'2%5'("-28/"'3*."'M**5')2#".')$99'("'
/#*."5'2#'#6$/'4*%5'2%5'2#'#6"'%"Y#'#)*'4*%5/'84/#."23J'

K"'62:"'-6"->"5'#62#'#6"'.2#"'*+'5$/-62.&"'+.*3'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'
)*895'("'9"//'#62%'#6"'5$/-62.&"'*+'M*)'*:".#*44$%&'#6"'"3(2%>3"%#'$%'
#6"'92.&"/#'M**5'":"%#/0'/""'("9*)

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]j` G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'8/')$#6'2'324'*+'#6"'5.2$%2&"'4$4"'/?/#"3'2.*8%5'#6"'1"2#6'2%5'25:$/"'8/'6*)'$#'$/'"%:$/2&"5'#62#')2#".'
)$99'5.2$%'#6.*8&6'#6$/'/?/#"3'$%'5$++"."%#'/#*.3'":"%#/J

78.."%#9?')"'*%9?'62:"'2'/".:$-"/'492%'/6*)$%&'6*)'#6"'*8#9"#'4$4"/'
+.*3'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'4*%5/'-*%%"-#'$%#*'#6"'%"2."/#'/8.+2-"')2#".'5.2$%/J''
7235"%'7*8%-$9')$99'62:"'/8.+2-"')2#".'5.2$%2&"'324/J'

1*)":".0'#6"'#?4$-29'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'/8.+2-"')2#".'5.2$%/')$99'("'+*.'
2.*8%5']'$%'j['?"2.'M**5/0'/*')6"%'M**5/'92.&".'#62%']'$%'][['*--8.'
2%5'-28/"'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'523'*.'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?0'
#6"'/8.+2-"')2#".'5.2$%/')$99'29."25?'("'+899J''V6"."+*."0')"'62:"'%*#'
3*5"99"5'6*)'#6"'5$/-62.&"/'+.*3'523'*:".#*44$%&')*895'&"#'$%#*'#6"'
5.2$%2&"'/?/#"30'("-28/"')"'>%*)'#62#'#6"?')*895%T#0'$%'"$#6".'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'*.'4.*4*/"5'/-"%2.$*/J''K2#".'*:".#*44$%&'#6"'523'$%'92.&"'
M**5'":"%#/')*895'M*)'*:".92%5'+*.'-*%/$5".2(9"'5$/#2%-"/'$%'"$#6".'
/-"%2.$*J'

P
age 200



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
27

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

135 \%'#6"'@//"//3"%#'*+'F"/$&%'I9**5'$#'2%#$-$42#"/'agZ0bbZ'3j'#*#29'G!I':*983"'"%#".$%&'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%'2%5'#*#29'
2:2$92(9"'/#*.2&"'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%'*+'`a0e]i'3jJ''V6$/'3"2%/'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%'-2%'*%9?'-8.."%#9?'/#*."']en'*+'#6"'
G!IJ''K62#'$/'#6"'4.*4*/"5'$342-#'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/-6"3"'*%'#6"'/#*.2&"'*+'#6"'G!I'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%'G*%5/d

!*."'*+'#6"'G!I')2#".')$99'("'/#*."5'$%'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/-6"3"J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]jZ K62#'$/'#6"'$342-#'*+'#6"'/-6"3"'*%'#6"'/3299".'/#*.3'":"%#/d''V6"'$349$-2#$*%'$/'#62#'#6"?')$99'*:".#*4'9"//'+."O8"%#9?'2/'
3*."'/#*.2&"'"Y$/#/'$%'#6"'/?/#"3J

\%'/3299".'/#*.3'":"%#/0'$"'84'#*'2%5'$%-985$%&'#6"']'$%'][['?"2.'":"%#0'
#6"."')*895'("'%*'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?0'C8/#'2/'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'523'$/'%*#'*:".#*44"5J'

\%'92.&".'/#*.3'":"%#/0'#6"'$%-."2/"5'/#*.2&"'84/#."23'3"2%/'#62#'#6"'
4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'$%'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'4*%5')*895'("'9*)".'#62%'$%'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'2..2%&"3"%#J''V6"."+*."0')6$9"'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')$99'/#$99'("'
*4".2#$%&'$%'92.&".'":"%#/0'#6"'/4$99)2?')$99'("'*4".2#$%&'9"//'+."O8"%#9?J
I*.'"Y2349"0'$%'W4#$*%'j0'#6"']'$%'][[['?"2.'":"%#'5*"/'%*#'-28/"'#6"'
/4$99)2?'#*'*4".2#"0')6"."2/'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'-2/"'$#'*:".#*4/'#6"'523J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

137 K62#'$/'#6"'$342-#'*+'#6"'/-6"3"'*%'#6"'2:2$92(9"'/#*.2&"'$%'1L=*]d @:2$92(9"'/#*.2&"')$99'$%-."2/"'("-28/"'$%'299'*4#$*%/'#6"'523'-."/#'9":"9'
$/'.2$/"5J'

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]ji G9"2/"'4.*:$5"',&8."/'+*.'#6"'4.*4*/"5'#*#29':*983"'2%5'4"2>'5$/-62.&"'M*)'.2#"/'*+')2#".'42//$%&'#6.*8&6'#6"'*:".M*)'
4$4"'58.$%&']<'%*.329'-*%5$#$*%/';$J"J')6"%'#6"."'$/%T#'2%?'.2$%<'2%5'a<'/#*.3'":"%#/'*+']'$%'][0'a[0'j['2%5'e['2%5'2#'
#6"'4*$%#')6"%'*:".#*44$%&'("&$%/d'K"')2%#'#*'("'/8."'#62#'7235"%'2%5'V623"/'K2#".'62:"'/8+,-$"%#'$%+*.32#$*%'#*'
-29-892#"'#6"'$342-#'*+'#6$/'"Y#.2')2#".'*%'#6"$.'5.2$%/'2%5'/")"./J

V6"'*:".M*)'4$4"':*983"/'2%5'5$/-62.&"/'+*.'#6"'":"%#/'3*5"99"5'
#*'52#"';]'$%'a['2%5']'$%'e[<')"."'%*#'2:2$92(9"'2#'#6"'4."/"%#'#$3"J'
1*)":".0'/$%-"'#6"'4"2>'5$/-62.&"'#6.*8&6'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'$/'
5"4"%5"%#'*%'#6"')2#".'9":"9'$%'#6"'4*%50'2%5'#6"/"')2#".'9":"9/'2."'
9"//'$%'299'M**5'":"%#/'$%'W4#$*%'j0')"')*895'"Y4"-#'#6"'4"2>'5$/-62.&"/'
#6.*8&6'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"/'#*'("'9"//J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]jb G.*:$5"'5"#2$9/'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'#*#29':*983"0'4"2>'5$/-62.&"'M*)'.2#"0'5"4#6'*+'*:".#*44$%&'2%5'*:".#*44$%&'58.2#$*%'$%'
e[0'ge'2%5'][['?"2.'/#*.3'":"%#/J

V6"'3*5"9'$/'/6*)$%&'#62#'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'
)$99'%*#'*4".2#"'$%'#6"']'$%'e['?"2.'*.'#6"']k][['?"2.'."#8.%'4".$*5'
":"%#/'$%'W4#$*%'j';)6$-6'$/'#6"'/23"'2/'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*<J

I*.'2'-*342.$/*%')$#6'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*0')"'.2%'#6"']k][[['?"2.'
":"%#'$%'#6"'W4#$*%'j'3*5"90'(8#'#6$/'29/*'5$5'%*#'-28/"'M*)'$%'#6"'
/4$99)2?J'''V6"'4"2>')2#".'9":"9')2/'ZaJij30'/*')2/'[Jig3'("9*)'#6"'
4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')"$.'9":"90'2%5']J[e3'("9*)'#6"'4"2>')2#".'9":"9'$%'
#6"'/23"'M**5'":"%#'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`[ V6"'4*/$#$*%$%&'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?'2%5'#6"'%2#8."'*+'$#/'5$/-62.&"'*+')2#".'$/'2'+2-#*.'$%'5"#".3$%$%&'9$2($9$#?'$+'#6"')2#".'$/'
-28/"5'#*'M*)'$%'2'3*."'-*%-"%#.2#"5'+*.3'#62%'$#'%2#8.299?')*895'2/'#6"'."/89#'*+'2.#$,-$29'29#".2#$*%/J''G9"2/"'25:$/"'8/'
6*)'#6$/'$/'("$%&'255."//"5d

V6"'/4$99)2?/'2."'42.#'*+'#6"'."/".:*$.'/#.8-#8."/'2%5'2/'/8-6'#6"'7$#?'
)$99'("'&8$5"5'(?'#6"'25:$-"'*+'#6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`] G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'8/')$#6'2'-*4?'*+'7*H'"3".&"%-?'2-#$*%'492%J P"9"2/"'*+'#6"'"3".&"%-?'2-#$*%'492%'62/'#*'("'244.*:"5'2/'$#'-*%#2$%/'
(*#6'4.$:2#"'2%5'/"-8.$#?'$%+*.32#$*%'*+'2'-*%,5"%#$29'%2#8."J'K"'2."'
)*.>$%&'*%'4.*58-#$*%'*+'2'48(9$-':"./$*%J'

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`a G9"2/"'25:$/"'8/'*+'7*HT/'9"&29'."/4*%/$($9$#?'#*'."/$5"%#/'2%5'4.*4".#$"/'*%'#6"'1"2#6'(*8%52.?')$#6'."&2.5'#*'#6"'
5"9$:".?'*+']<'/8.+2-"')2#".'2%5'a<'8%5".&.*8%5c4$4"5')2#".J'@9/*0'49"2/"'-92.$+?'6*)'#6"'7*HT/'8%5"./#2%5$%&'*+'#6"$.'
."/4*%/$($9$#$"/'$%'#6$/'32##".'62:"'-62%&"50'$+'2#'2990'/$%-"'#6"'-$.-892#$*%'#*'#6"'K!BL'*+'#6"'lG*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#'
*%'F$/-62.&"'*+'K2#".';W:".#*44$%&'*+'G*%5/'2%5'B8.+2-"'K2#".<'+.*3'1234/#"25'1"2#6m'*%'ai#6'=*:"3(".'a[]aJ

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%T/'4*/$#$*%'62/%T#'-62%&"5'+.*3'#6"'G*/$#$*%'B#2#"3"%#'
#62#'62/'4.":$*8/9?'(""%'$//8"5'2%5'$/'244"%5"5'#*'#6$/'5*-83"%#J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`j F*"/'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/-6"3"'-*349?')$#6'#6"'."O8$."3"%#/'2%#$-$42#"5'8%5".'#6"'a[]['@-#d''\+'%*#'$%')62#')2?'5*"/'$#'%*#'
-*349?d

V6$/'4.*C"-#'62/'#*'("'244.*:"5'(?'#6"'7$#?T/'."#2$%"5'G2%"9'D%&$%"".'
)6*'62/'#*'("'/2#$/,"5'#62#'#6"'7$#?'62/'l:$.#8299?'"9$3$%2#"5m'#6"'.$/>'*+'
523/'+2$9$%&J'''

P
age 201



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

28

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`` K62#'$/'#6"'"//"%-"'*+'#6"'9"&29'5$/48#"'("#)""%'1234/#"25'2%5'1$&6&2#"'B*-$"#?'2%5'7*Hd V6"."'$/'%*'9"&29'5$/48#"0'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'$/'"%5"2:*8.$%&'
#*'6*/#'2'3""#$%&'("#)""%'9"&29'42.#$"/'$%-985$%&'#6"'7$#?T/'."#2$%"5'Q7'
2%5'#6"'B*-$"#?T/'."#2$%"5'Q7'#*'5$/-8//'9"&29'2/4"-#/'2//*-$2#"5')$#6'
#6"'4.*C"-#J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`e G9"2/"'-92.$+?')62#'5$/-8//$*%/'62:"'#2>"%'492-"')$#6'2%?'-*%-".%"5'@8#6*.$#$"/'$%-985$%&'7235"%'7*8%-$90'V623"/'K2#".'
2%5'D%:$.*%3"%#'@&"%-?J

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'7*.4*.2#$*%'62/'4.*:$5"5'."4*.#/'2//*-$2#"5')$#6'#6"'
G*%5/'G.*C"-#'#*'#6"'."9":2%#'28#6*.$#$"/J

Rob Mitchell,

!"##$%&'()
Mansions

6 Aug 2013

]`Z F*"/'#6"'/-6"3"'#2>"'$%#*'-*%/$5".2#$*%'#6"'G."9$3$%2.?'I9**5'P$/>'@//"//3"%#'4."42."5'(?'7235"%'2%5'7235"%T/'/#85?'
*%'/8.+2-"')2#".'M**5$%&d

\#'$/'."-*33"%5"5'#62#'."/$5"%#/'9$2$/"'5$."-#9?')$#6'7235"%'7*8%-$9'
."&2.5$%&'#6"$.'."/4*%/$($9$#$"/J

Jane Shallice,

Ladies Pond on 
Shortlist Options 
Report

21 Aug 2013

]`g !*."'*%'5"E/$9#$%&
• G92%/')6$-6'/6*)'#6"'5"#2$9"5'4.*4*/29/0'$%-985$%&'#6"'32#".$29/'#62#'2."'#*'("'8/"5J

• 7.*//'/"-#$*%/'k'
'''''''E'''V6"'9*%&$#85$%29'/"-#$*%'#6.*8&6'#6"'4*%50'5230'3"25*)0'/#*->'4*%50'(*2#$%&'4*%5'2%5'3"%T/'4*%5J
''''''''E'''7.*//'/"-#$*%'5*)%'#6"'3$559"'*+'#6"'2--"//'92%"'5*)%'#*'#6"'523'2%5'-62%&$%&'.**3/J
''''''''E'''7.*//'/"-#$*%'#6.*8&6'*8.'3"25*)0'#6"'4*%5'2%5'#6"'3"25*)'#*'#6"'K"/#J
''''''''E'''F"#2$9"5'-.*//'/"-#$*%/'#6.*8&6'#6"'5$++"."%#'-*%5$#$*%/'2.*8%5'#6"'"5&"'*+'#6"'4*%5'$J"J'#6.*8&6'#6"
''''''''''''5230'#6"'/4$99)2?0'#6"'K"/#'/$5"0'#6"'=*.#6'/$5"'2%5'#6"'D2/#'/$5"J
• U$/829$/2#$*%/'*+'#6"'4.*4*/29/'+.*3'#6"'42#60'#6"'5230'#6"'/4$99)2?0'#6"'9$+"&82.5/T'9**>*8#0'#6"
''''''''-62%&$%&'.**3/0'#6"')2#".0'2%5'#6"'3"25*)J

\%+*.32#$*%' *%' #6"' /-*4"' *+' 5"E/$9#$%&' #62#' -2%' ("' -2..$"5' *8#' #*' #6"'
H25$"/'G*%5')$99'("'5"4"%5"%#'*%'#6"'."/89#/'*+'(2#6?3"#.$-'/8.:"?/')6$-6'
2."'*%&*$%&J'V6"/"')$99' 299*)'"/#$32#"/'*+' #6"'O82%#$#$"/'*+' /$9#' *%' #6"'
4*%5'("5J''V6$/'$%+*.32#$*%')$99'("'-*3($%"5')$#6'2%'2//"//3"%#'*+'#6"'
#."2#3"%#'."O8$."5'#*'#6"'/$9#'$+'$#'$/'#*'("'3*:"5'"9/")6"."'*%'#6"'1"2#6J

7.*//'/"-#$*%/'#6.*8&6'#6"'-62%&$%&'.**3/'2%5'3*."'5"#2$9"5'5.2)$%&/'
)$99'("')*.>"5'84'58.$%&'#6"'5"#2$9"5'5"/$&%'462/"J'

V6"' 2.-6$#"-#' $/' -8.."%#9?' )*.>$%&' 84' *8#9$%"' 5"/$&%' 4.*4*/29/' +*.'
-*%/$5".2#$*%' 2%5')$99' ("' 2(9"' #*' 4.*:$5"'3*."' 5"#2$9' *%' #6"' 4.*4*/"5'
-62%&$%&'.**3'-*%/#.8-#$*%J

V6"'"%:$.*%3"%#29')*.>/'2."'/8332.$/"5'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'."4*.#J'
V6"'5"#2$9'*+'#6"/"')*.>/')$99'("'5":"9*4"5'$%'#6"'%"Y#'/#2&"'*+'5"/$&%J'V6"'
-8.."%#'4.*4*/29/'2."'#*'299*)'2'48(9$-'-*%/89#2#$*%')6$-6'"%-*342//'#6"'
4.$%-$49"'*+'3$%$3$/$%&'#6"'$342-#'*%'#6"'1"2#6'(?'+*-8/$%&'$%#".:"%#$*%'
$%'*%"'32$%'2."2';$J"J'!*5"9'N*2#$%&<J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]`i The public have been invited to comment on this complex and detailed report, so there needs to be guidance 
on the key issues where comments are most sought.  As this document may be read as a ‘stand alone’ report 
by the public, we consider that Section 2 ‘Brief Summary’ is too condensed and does not provide a logical 
3,4*2%56*2#7)8#")*+&)0#"$49)16"*25,'6"':)8#")1&"4#74)0+#)+6.&)7#*)"&6()*+&)1"&5&(27-)(#5,;&7*4<))\%'42.#$-892.0'
#6"'46.2/"'^D//"%#$299?0'3*."'/#*.2&"'$/'%""5"5T'$/'%*#'2'9*&$-29'-*%-98/$*%'*+')62#'&*"/'("+*."'$%'#6$/'/"-#$*%J''@9/*0'#6"'
4.$32.?'*(C"-#$:"'*+'#6"'4.*C"-#'#*'4.":"%#'523'(."2>'$/'%*#'/#2#"50'2%5'#6"'46.2/"'^JJJ#*'$34.*:"'#6"'."/$9$"%-"'*+'#6"'
523/JJJJJT''$/'*(/-8."'#*'#6"'8%$%+*.3"5J''@%'255$#$*%29'#)*'*.'#6.""'/"%#"%-"/'3$&6#'6"94'-*%/$5".2(9?J

V6"."')$99'("'2'/$3$92.'/"-#$*%'/8332.$/$%&'#6"'4.*(9"3'5",%$#$*%'$%'#6"'
+*.#6-*3$%&' G."+".."5' W4#$*%/' P"4*.#0' )6"."' #6"/"' -*33"%#/' -2%' ("'
255."//"5J

V6$/'/"-#$*%'*+'#6"'."4*.#')$99'$%-985"'2%'"Y492%2#$*%'*+']<'6*)'$%-."2/$%&'
/#*.2&"'$%'*%"'4*%5'."58-"/'#6"'M*)'5$/-62.&$%&'+.*3'#6"'%"Y#'4*%50'2%5'
a<'6*)'#6"'l."/$9$"%-"'*+'#6"'523/m'."+"./'#*'#6"'2($9$#?'*+'#6"'523/'#*'
)$#6/#2%5'#6"'".*/$:"'$342-#'*+'M**5)2#"./'*:".#*44$%&'#6"'523'-."/#/'
2%5'M*)$%&'5*)%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"J'

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]`b 6, 8 and 9.' K"'2."'/*3")62#'("38/"5'(?'#6"'49"#6*.2'*+'^F"/$&%'G.$%-$49"/T0'2%5'+"2.'#62#'#6"'&"%".29'48(9$-')$99'
."-"$:"'2'-*%+8/"5'3"//2&"J''K"'%*#"'#6"'`'4.$%-$49"/'*%'42&"'Z0'j.5'-*983%0')6$-6'2."'#6"%'/8449"3"%#"5'(?'a'3*."'$%'
-*983%'`J''V6"/"'2."'#6"%'/8449"3"%#"5'(?'2'+8.#6".'Z'*%'42&"'i0'-*983%'j0'2%5'#6"%'*%'42&"'b'#6"."'2."'2'+8.#6".'j'^>"?'
*(C"-#$:"/TJ''K"'/8&&"/#'#62#'$#')*895'("'6"94+89'#*'/#2#"'*%"'-9"2.'/"#'*+'2$3/0'-*%/$/#"%#')$#6'58#$"/'8%5".'9"&$/92#$*%J

V6$/' $/' %*#"5' 2%5' 2' -9"2.".' /"#' *+' *(C"-#$:"/0' 5"/$&%' 4.$%-$49"/' 2%5'
46$9*/*46?'$/'/"#'*8#'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'."4*.#'2/'/8&&"/#"5J

P
age 202



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
29

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

150 K"'%*#"'#62#'#6"'5"/$&%'#"23cF.'18&6"/'62/'/2$5'#62#'some damage can be accepted.  K"'29/*'%*#"'#62#'\7D'
^I9**5/'2%5'P"/".:*$.'B2+"#?T'V2(9"']'."-*33"%5/'#62#'/4$99)2?/'+*.'72#"&*.?'@'523/'("'5"/$&%"5'+*.']k][0[[[0')$#6'#6"'
."32$%5".'*+'#6"'/6*.#".'58.2#$*%'2%5'.2.".'/8.498/'G!I'/4$99$%&'*:".'#6"'-."/#'$+'*:".#*44$%&'$/'#*9".2(9"J

K"'."-*&%$/"'#62#'G!I'/4$99)2?/'2."'2'4.85"%#'5"/$&%'4.$%-$49"'#62#')*895'29/*'2:*$5'$%#.8/$:"')*.>/'#*'."$%+*.-"'*8.'
"Y$/#$%&'2%5'/"%/$#$:"'523/'#*'#2>"'*:".#*44$%&J''However, if PMF overtopping could be tolerated on two dams, 
we suggest this could reduce dam raising by approx 1m, being the depth of spillways below the crest.  We 
)$99'255."//'#6$/'$%'5"#2$9')6"%')"'.":$")'*4#$*%/0'/4"-$,-299?'+*.'#6"'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'4*%50'2%5'#6"'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'4*%5J

V6"'."+"."%-"'#*'V2(9"']'*+'^I9**5/'2%5'P"/".:*$.'B2+"#?T'$/'-*.."-#'2%5'$#/'
."-*33"%52#$*%/'5*'$%+*.3'*8.'5"/$&%'4.$%-$49"/J''1*)":".0'#6"'5"-$/$*%'
*%')6"#6".' *:".#*44$%&' $/' #*9".2(9"' *.' %*#' 5"4"%5/' *%' /":".29' +2-#*./'
$%-985$%&'#6"'%2#8."'*+':"&"#2#$*%'*%'#6"'523'-."/#'2%5'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"0'
2%5' #6"'5"4#6' 2%5' /4""5'*+' M*)'*:".' #6"'523'-."/#' 2%5'5*)%/#."23'
/9*4"J''I*.'"Y2349"0'#6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".'62/'/2$5'#62#'6"')*895'%*#'2--"4#'
*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'523'2#'1234/#"25'=*Ja'4*%5'("-28/"'#6"'492%"'#.""/'
)*895'-28/"'"55?$%&'2%5'#8.(89"%-"')6$-6')*895'$%-."2/"'#6"'".*/$*%'*+'
#6"'523'58.$%&'*:".#*44$%&J''V6"'523/')6$-6')*895'("'3*."'."/$9$"%#'#*'
*:".#*44$%&'2."'#6*/"')6$-6'62:"'2'8%$+*.3'&.2//?'/9*4"')$#6'%*')**5?'
c'(8/6?':"&"#2#$*%J'V6$/'5"/-.$4#$*%')*895'92.&"9?'2449?'#*'#6"'-28/")2?'
523'2#'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'G*%50'+*.'"Y2349"0'(8#'%*#'#*'#6"'523'2#'!*5"9'
N*2#$%&'G*%50')6$-6'62/'/":".29'92.&"'#.""/'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'*+'
#6"'523'$#/"9+0'*.'3*/#'*+'#6"'*#6".'523/J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

151 9, 25, 47 Please explain, if all the PMF is routed through spillways and does not overtop the crest, why 
crest restoration is required on many dams, with possible impact on crest vegetation, as their crests will 
normally be above water level.  This query applies to Stock, Ladies, Bird, Vale and Viaduct ponds.

@#'B#*->0'H25$"/0'U29"'*+'1"29#6'2%5'U$258-#'G*%5/0'-."/#' ."/#*.2#$*%' $/'
4.*4*/"5'+*.'#6"'9*)'/4*#/';)6$-6'#"%5'#*'("'$%'#6"'3$559"'*+'#6"'523<'#*'
(.$%&'#6"'-."/#'#*'8%$+*.3'9":"9'/*'#62#'#6"'/4$99)2?'-2%'("'9*-2#"5'2)2?'
+.*3'#6"'3$559"0'2%5'29/*'/*'#62#'#6"')"$.'9":"9'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?'-2%'("'>"4#'
2(*:"'#?4$-29')2#".'9":"9J''K"'-2%'#6"."+*."'."58-"'#.""'9*//'*%'#6"'523'
;(?'9*-2#$%&'#6"'/4$99)2?'2)2?'+.*3'#6"'3*/#':2982(9"'#.""/<'2%5'29/*'62:"'
2'%*.3299?'5.?'/4$99)2?')6$-6'-2%'("'9$%"5')$#6'&.2//'#62#'-2%'(9"%5'$%'
)$#6'#6"'/8..*8%5$%&/J

@#'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'4*%50'#6"'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%'$/'$%#"%5"5'#*',99'$%'9*)'/4*#/'
/*'#62#'$+'#6"."'$/'/*3"'*:".#*44$%&'$%'/3299'M**5/0'#6"'.$/>'*+'#6"'M*)'
-*%-"%#.2#$%&'$%#*'2'%2..*)'-8#'$%'#6"'523'$/'."58-"5J'\%'92.&".'M**5/0'
)2#".')$99'("'(2->$%&'84'*%'(*#6'/$5"/'*+'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'5230'/*'$#')$99'
("-*3"'/8(3".&"5J

V6"'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%'2#'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'523'$/'."92#$:"9?'3$%*.')$#6'*%9?'
2%'i[33'$%-."2/"'."O8$."5'2#'#6"'9*)'/4*#/0'#6$/'-*895'("'2-6$":"5')$#6'
."/8.+2-$%&'*+' #6"'-."/#' .*25')$#6*8#'2++"-#$%&' #6"':"&"#2#$*%'*%'"$#6".'
/$5"J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

152 b0'ae0'`g' G9"2/"'-92.$+?0'2/'3*/#'"Y$/#$%&'523/')$99'-8.."%#9?'*:".#*4'$%'G!I0'$+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'5"4#6'$/'/2?'
244.*Y']3'2%5'/*3"'523/'62:"'-."/#'.2$/$%&c."/#*.2#$*%'9"//'#62%'#6$/0'5*"/'#6$/'3"2%'#62#'#6"/"'3*5$,"5'523/')$99'/#*."'
9"//')2#".'#62%'#6"'-8.."%#'"Y$/#$%&'523/d

L"%".299?' #6"' -."/#' ."/#*.2#$*%' 4.*4*/"5' +*.' 84/#."23' 523/' 299*)/'
#6"' /4$99)2?')"$.' 9":"9' #*' ("' 2(*:"' #6"' #?4$-29')2#".' 9":"9' $%' #6"' 4*%5'
84/#."23'2%5'2/'-9*/"'2/'4*//$(9"'#*'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'&.*8%5'9":"9J'1*)":".0'
#6$/'$/'%*#'29)2?/'4*//$(9"0'/*'#*'3$%$3$/"'.2$/$%&')*.>/'2#'#6"/"'4*%5/0'
#6"."' $/' 2' /9$&6#' ."58-#$*%' $%' /#*.2&"' -242-$#?' 2#' /*3"' 4*%5/J' V6$/' $/'
3*."' #62%' -*34"%/2#"5' +*.'(?' #6"' .2$/$%&'*+'523/' ;*.'(8$95$%&'2'%")'
*%"<'5*)%/#."230'2%5' #6$/' $/')6?' #6"')6*9"'-62$%'*+'4*%5/'/6*895'("'
-*%/$5"."5'2/'2'/?/#"30')6"."'#6"'.2$/$%&'*+'2'523' $%'#6"'3$559"'*+'2'
-62$%'-2%'."58-"'#6"')*.>/'."O8$."5'(*#6'84/#."23'2%5'5*)%/#."23J

F"4#6/'*+'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?/')$99'("'/6*)%'*%'#6"'*4#$*%/'M*)-62.#/'+*.'
#6"'%"Y#'."4*.#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

153 ]['1$&6&2#"'-62$%'M*)-62.#k''G9"2/"'"Y492$%kE

!" )6?'2."'/4$99)2?')$5#6/'*%'#6"'N*2#$%&'G*%5'$5"%#$-29'+*.'*4#$*%/'j0'`'2%5'Z0'.2#6".'#62%'("$%&'#2$9*."5'+*.'#6"'
5$++"."%#'/8.498/'M**5/d''@."'#6"?'*:"./$h"5'+*.'#6"'6$&6".'523/d''K"'%*#"'o4a]p'#62#'/4$99)2?'/$h"'$/'2'>"?'
-*%/$5".2#$*%0'2/':"&"#2#$*%'-9"2.2%-"')$99'("'%""5"50''6"%-"')"'8.&"'#62#'#6"/"'("'#6"'3$%$383'/$h"'4*//$(9"

78.."%#9?0' #6"'4"2>')2#".' 9":"9/' $%'W4#$*%/'j0'`'2%5'Z'2."'*%9?'2.*8%5'
j[[33' ("9*)' #6"' 523' -."/#' 9":"9' 58.$%&' 2' G!I0' )6$-6' /8&&"/#/' #62#'
#6"."'$/'9$##9"'/-*4"'+*.'/4$99)2?/'#*'("'325"'%2..*)".')$#6*8#'9*/$%&'#6"'
+.""(*2.5' ."O8$."5'(?' #6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".' #*' 299*)' +*.')2:"' /8.-62.&"J''
1*)":".0'$#'32?'("'4*//$(9"'#*'."58-"'#6"'/4$99)2?'/$h"'(?'255$%&'2%*#6".'
4$4"'#6.*8&6'#6"'523J'P",%"3"%#/'#*'#6"'/4$99)2?'/$h"'/8-6'2/'#6"/"')$99'
("'#"/#"5'8/$%&'#6"'3*5"9'2#'#6"'("&$%%$%&'*+'#6"'*8#9$%"'5"/$&%'/#2&"J''

P
age 203



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

30

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]e` !" !"%T/'2%5'1$&6&2#"']'/4$99)2?/'S')6?'2."'#6"/"'$5"%#$-29'+*.'299'*4#$*%/0'$.."/4"-#$:"'*+'#6"'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'N*2#$%&'
4*%5'523d

I*.' #6"' /6*.#9$/#' *4#$*%/' ."4*.#0' /4$99)2?')$5#6/' *%' #6"' 92/#' a'1$&6&2#"'
-62$%' 4*%5/' )"."' >"4#' #6"' /23"' )6"%' 3*5"99$%&' #6"' 1$&6&2#"' -62$%'
*4#$*%/'/*'#62#'#6"'5"&.""'*+'.2$/$%&'2#'"2-6'4*%5'-*895'("'O82%#$,"5'2%5'
-*342."5J''V6$/')2/'$%#"%5"5'#*'5"3*%/#.2#"'#6"'4.$%-$49"'*+'#.25"E*++/0'
/*')"'-*895'5",%"'#6"'-*%/"O8"%-"/'*+':2.?$%&'23*8%#/'*+'.2$/$%&'*+'#6"'
523'2#'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5J''

I8.#6".' .",%"3"%#/' )$99' ("' -2..$"5' *8#' #*' $%:"/#$&2#"' 4*//$($9$#$"/' *+'
."58-$%&'/4$99)2?'/$h"J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

155 !" W4#$*%'e'/6*)/'2'aJ[3'.2$/$%&'*%'1$&6&2#"']0'(8#'*%9?'2']Je3'.2$/$%&'*%'#6"'!"%T/'4*%5J''N*#6'#6"/"'.2$/$%&/'
32?'."O8$."'2%'"2.#6'523'#*'("'(8$9#'$%/$5"'#6"'4*%5/0'o42&"'jjp0')6$-6'32?'62:"'2'32C*.'$342-#'*%'/-.""%$%&'
:"&"#2#$*%'2%5'#.""/'*%'1$&6&2#"']J''7*895'?*8'49"2/"'#"/#'#6$/'*4#$*%')$#6'2'32Y']Jae3'.2$/$%&'2#'1$&6&2#"']'o$"J'
)$#6'2')299p0'#*'5"#".3$%"'#6"'23*8%#'*+'523'.2$/$%&'#6"%'%""5"5'*%'#6"'!"%T/'4*%5'523d

W4#$*%' e' 62/' %*)' (""%' 5$/-*8%#"5' 58"' #*' #6"' $342-#' *%' /-.""%$%&'
:"&"#2#$*%'3"%#$*%"5J

W4#$*%'Z'62/'/6*)%'#62#')6"%'#6"."'$/'2']Jae3'.2$/$%&'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'
G*%5'5230']J[3' $/' ."O8$."5' 2#'!"%T/' G*%5'5230'(8#' *%9?' $+' #6"."' $/' 2'
.2$/$%&'*+'aJe3'2#'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]eZ 9, 10, 25' K"'%*#"0'."'^/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%T0'#62#'#6"'."#8.%'4".$*5JJJJJJ#62#'-28/"/'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'92/#'523'
$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*'$/'-*342."5')$#6'#6"'M**5'":"%#'#62#'-28/"/'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'$%'"2-6'*4#$*%'#*'/#2.#'#*'/4$99'
)2#".J''F"/4$#"'32C*.'2##"%82#$*%'*%'"2-6'-62$%0'#6"'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%'2%5'4"2>':"9*-$#$"/'244"2.'+.*3'#6"'M*)-62.#/'
#*'."32$%':$.#8299?'8%-62%&"50')$#6*8#'2%?'$34.*:"3"%#J''V*'2//"//'#6$/0'please supply the current and proposed 
"6*&)#8)/#0).&"4,4)*2;&)-"61+4)=+:("#-"61+4>)8#")6'')#1*2#74)8#")*+&)?#**#;)@)1#7(49)*+&)A2B&()!6*+27-)
Pond and the Boating pond, 2%5'29/*'+*.'299'#6"'4*%5/'$+'4*//$(9"J

V6"'*4#$*%/'M*)-62.#'$%'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'."4*.#'625'2'/9$&6#'"..*.'$%'
#6"'(*Y"/'/#2#$%&'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%0'$%'#62#'299'*+'#6"3'/6*895'62:"'
/#2#"5'^at least']'$%'e['?"2.'M**5TJ'';@#'#6"'#$3"0'*%9?'#6"'G!I'2%5'2']'
$%'e['?"2.'M**5'625'(""%'.8%'#6.*8&6'#6"'*4#$*%/'3*5"9/<J''B$%-"'#6"%0'
#6"'3*5"9/'+*.'W4#$*%/'j0'j20'`'2%5'Z';)$#6'aJe3'S'jJ[3'.2$/$%&'2#'!*5"9'
N*2#$%&' G*%5<' 62:"' (""%'3*5"99"5')$#6' 6$&6".' ."#8.%' 4".$*5' M**5/' $%'
*.5".'#*',%5'*8#'#6"'2-#829'.2%&"'*+'/#2%52.5/'*+'4.*#"-#$*%J''\%'299'#6"/"'
`'*4#$*%/0'#6"'/4$99)2?''5$5'%*#'*4".2#"'+*.'M**5/'84'#*'2%5'$%-985$%&'2']'
$%'][[['?"2.'M**50'$%5$-2#$%&'#62#'#6"'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%'&$:"%'(?'#6"'
92/#'523'$/'("##".'#62%'"Y$/#$%&0'58"'#*'#6"'%"#'$%-."2/"'$%'/#*.2&"'$%'#6"'
4*%5'-62$%J

1?5.*&.246/' /6*)$%&' *8#M*)/' +.*3' #6"' 1$&6&2#"' =*J]' G*%5' +*.' #6"'
%"Y#'92.&".'M**5/';]k][0[[['?"2.'2%5'G!I<'2."'$%-985"5'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'
W4#$*%/'P"4*.#' #*'299*)'-*342.$/*%'("#)""%'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*'2%5'*%"'
*4#$*%'+*.'"2-6'-62$%J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

157 ]a' 1234/#"25'762$%'I9*)-62.#J''G9"2/"'"Y492$%kE

!" V6"'-62.#'/6*)/'U29"'4*%5'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%'2/'[Ja3'32Y0')6"."2/'#6"'#"Y#'o4`gp'/#2#"/'[JZ3'32YJ''G9"2/"'-92.$+?
V6"'-62.#'/6*)/'U$258-#'4*%5'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%'2/'[Je30')6"."2/'#6"'#"Y#'o4`gp'/#2#"/'[J]i3'32YJ''G9"2/"'-92.$+?

V6"'#"Y#'$%'#6"'."4*.#'$/'-*.."-#0'#6"'4.*4*/"5'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%'$/'[JZ3'2#'
U29"'*+'1"29#6'2%5'[Ja3';[J]i'3'.*8%5"5'84<'2#'U$258-#J

V6$/' 62/' (""%' -*.."-#"5' *%' #6"' *4#$*%/' M*)-62.#/' 4."/"%#"5' *%' ]`th 
B"4#"3(".'2%5'244"2./'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ei V6"'I9*)-62.#'/6*)/'#6"'72#-64$#')$#6'#6.""'5$++"."%#'*4#$*%/'*+'4$4"'/$h"'#6.*8&6'#6"'/23"'eJZ3'6$&6'523J''G9"2/"'
"Y492$%'#6"'"++"-#'*+'#6"/"'5$++"."%#'*4#$*%/'."'#$3$%&0'58.2#$*%0':"9*-$#?'2%5'#*#29':*983"'*+'M**5')2#".'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'
523/J''K"'5*'%*#'8%5"./#2%5'#6"'("%",#/'*+'#6"/"'5$++"."%#'*4#$*%/

V6"'5$++"."%#'/$h"'*+'4$4"/'$%'#6"'523')"."'#"/#"5'2+#".'$#')2/'+*8%5'$%'2%'
"2.9$".'$#".2#$*%'#62#'2'g3'6$&6'523')$#6'2'Z[[33'4$4"'#6.*8&6'$#')*895'
*%9?'$34*8%5'eJZ3'*+')2#".J''B3299".'4$4"/')"."'#6"%'#.$"50'#*'/""'$+'#6"'
:*983"'*+'/#*."5')2#".'-*895'("'32Y$3$h"5J''K6$9"'$#')*895'("'4*//$(9"'
#*'-29-892#"'299'#6"'"Y2-#'52#2'."O8"/#"50'#6"'>"?':2.$2(9"'+*.'-*342.$/*%'
("#)""%' *4#$*%/' )2/' #6"' )2#".' 9":"9' 5*)%/#."23' $%' 1234/#"25' =*Ja'
4*%50')6"%'#6"'523')2/'-*3($%"5')$#6'5$++".$%&'/4$99)2?'c'-89:".#'/$h"/'
2#'#62#'4*%5J''V6"'>"?'("%",#'*+'62:$%&'/3299".'4$4"/')2/'#6*8&6#'#*'("'
#62#'#6"'$%-."2/"5'/#*."5':*983"')*895'."58-"')2#".'9":"9/'5*)%/#."23J'
1*)":".0'."58-$%&'#6"'4$4"'5$23"#".'5$5'%*#'62:"'2/'38-6'*+'2%'$342-#'
*%'5*)%/#."23'4*%5/'2/'#6"'23*8%#'*+'.2$/$%&'3*5"99"5'2#'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'
G*%5J

P
age 204



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
31

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]eb !" K"'38-6')"9-*3"'#6"'4."/"%#2#$*%'*+'/*'32%?'5$++"."%#'*4#$*%/0'(8#'2."'48hh9"5'2#'/*3"'*+'#6"',&8."/'4."/"%#"5J''
K"')*895'244."-$2#"'-92.$,-2#$*%J''I*.'"Y2349"0'."+"..$%&'#*'#6"'/4$99)2?c-89:".#'*4#$*%/'+*.'1234/#"25'=*'a'
4*%5kE

)6?'$/'W4#$*%'X'/4$99)2?'/$&%$,-2%#9?'92.&".'#62%'W4#$*%'1'o)6"."'(*#6'62:"']Je3'.2$/$%&'*+'#6"'!$Y"5'G*%5pd

\%'W4#$*%'1'#6"'4.*4*/"5'72#-64$#'523'625'2'92.&".'4$4"';Z[[33<'#62%'
$%'W4#$*%' X' ;`[[33<0' 2%5' #6"' 4"2>')2#".' 9":"9/')"."' 5$++"."%#' ;("$%&'
6$&6".'$%'W4#$*%'1<0')6$-6'3"2%/'$#'$/'%*#'29)2?/'"2/?'#*'-*342."'9$>"'+*.'
9$>"J''V6"'*4#$*%/'M*)-62.#'+*.'#6"'1234/#"25'-62$%'5$5'-*%#2$%'2'9*#'*+'
$%+*.32#$*%'/*'$#')2/'5"-$5"5'%*#'#*'$%-985"'/4$99)2?'5"4#6/'2%5'3*5"99"5'
)2#".' 9":"9/J' '1*)":".0' /4$99)2?' 5"4#6/')$99' ("' /6*)%' $%' #6"' G."+".."5'
W4#$*%/'P"4*.#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Z[ )6?'$/'W4#$*%'='/4$99)2?'293*/#'#6"'/23"'/$h"'2/'W4#$*%'7'o)6$-6'62/'38-6'9"//'/#*."5')2#".pd V6"."'$/'2%'"..*.'$%'#6"'#"Y#'$%'#6"'M*)-62.#0'#6"'*4"%'-62%%"9'/4$99)2?'
$%'W4#$*%'='$/'2-#8299?'3*5"99"5'2#']`Jj3')$5"'2#'#6"'(2/"0'/*'$/'/9$&6#9?'
)$5".'#62%'$%'#6"']]Jb3')$5"'/4$99)2?'$%'W4#$*%'7J''78.."%#9?'#6"/"'*4#$*%/'
62:"' (""%' 5$/-*8%#"5' $%' +2:*8.' *+' #6*/"' )$#6' (*Y' -89:".#' /4$99)2?/' 2#'
1234/#"25'=*Ja'4*%5J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Z] )6?'2."'#6"'-.*//'/"-#$*%29'/4$99)2?'2."2/'o-29-892#"5'84'#*'-."/#'9":"9p'/$&%$,-2%#9?'&."2#".'#62%'#6"'-.*//'/"-#$*%29'2."2/'
*+'#6"'-89:".#/0')6"%'-*342.$%&'42$./'+*.'#6"'/23"'M*)/d''B4$99)2?'2."2/':2.?'+.*3']JeY'#*'jJ]Y'92.&".'$%'2."2'#62%'#6"'
"O8$:29"%#'-89:".#/J''B8."9?'/4$99)2?'M*)')*895'("'/3**#6".'2%5'3*."'"+,-$"%#'#62%'-89:".#'M*)')6$-6'-*895'("'#8.(89"%#0'
)6$-6'-*895'("'"Y4"-#"5'#*'32>"'/4$99)2?'2."2'9"//'#62%'-89:".#'2."2d

V6"'M*)-62.#'5*"/'%*#'/6*)'4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'2%5'5"4#6/'c'$%:".#'9":"9/0'
/*'$#'$/'%*#'4*//$(9"'#*'32>"'9$>"'+*.'9$>"'-*342.$/*%/'*%'-.*//'/"-#$*%29'
2."2/'*+'M*)J

N*Y'-89:".#/'62:"'(""%'-*%/$5"."5'+*.'1234/#"25'=*Ja'4*%5'$%'*.5".'#*'
."58-"'#6"')$5#6'*+'/4$99)2?/'2%5'#6"."+*."'3$%$3$h"'#.""'9*//J

V6"'M*)'.2#"'*:".'/4$99)2?/'$/'4.*4*.#$*%29'#*'#6"'5.$:$%&'6"25'.2$/"5'#*'
#6"'4*)".'*+']Je'2%5'9$%"2.9?'4.*4*.#$*%29'#*'#6"')$5#6J''V6$/'3"2%/'#6"'
6"25'62/'2'38-6'&."2#".'$%M8"%-"'*%'#6"'M*)'.2#"'#62%'#6"')$5#6J''\%'
*.5".'#*'3$%$3$/"'#6"')$5#6'*+'#6"'(*Y'-89:".#/0'2'&."2#".'6"25'$/'2449$"5'
#*'&"#'#6"'M*)'#6.*8&6'#6"'-89:".#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Za )6?'$/'#6"."'#6$/':2.$2#$*%'$%'#6"'.2#$*'*+'/4$99)2?'2."2/'#*'#6"'"O8$:29"%#'-89:".#'2."2/d''B8."9?'#6"."'/6*895'("'#6"'/23"'
.2#$*'#6.*8&6*8#d''I*.'"Y2349"0'#6"'/4$99)2?'2."2'$%'W4#$*%'H'$/']JeY'#6"'2."2'*+'#6"'"O8$:29"%#'-89:".#/'$%'W4#$*%'_0'
)6"."2/'#6"'/4$99)2?'2."2'$%'W4#$*%'X'$/'jJ]Y'#6"'2."2'*+'#6"'-89:".#/'$%'W4#$*%'\J''\/'/4$99)2?'X'#)$-"'#6"'/$h"'%""5"5d

V6"'M*)-62.#'5*"/'%*#'/6*)'4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'2%5'5"4#6/'c'$%:".#'9":"9/0'
/*' $#' $/'%*#'4*//$(9"' #*'32>"' 9$>"' +*.' 9$>"'-*342.$/*%/J' 'V6"'4.*-"//'*+'
5":"9*4$%&'3*5"9/')2/'%*#'(2/"5'*%'.2#$*/'(8#'*%'25C8/#$%&'#6"'/4$99)2?'
)"$.'9":"9'2%5')$5#6'*+'"2-6'*4#$*%'8%#$9'#6"'4"2>')2#".'9":"9')2/'("9*)'
#6"'3$%$383'"Y$/#$%&'-."/#'9":"9J

B""'29/*'#6"'-*33"%#'2(*:"'."&2.5$%&'#6"'$%M8"%-"/'*+'6"25'2%5')$5#6'
*%'M*)'.2#"/J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Zj 14, 22  We note $%'299'-2/"/'$#'$/'2//83"5'#62#')2#".'9":"9/'."32$%'2/'#*52?J''K"'"%5*./"'#6$/'4.$%-$49"'&"%".299?0'
2/'2&.""5'2#'#6"']j'X89?')*.>/6*40'2/'9*)".$%&'-*895'2++"-#'"-*9*&?'2%5':$/829'244"2.2%-"J''1*)":".0'we query if a 
single exception might be made for the Boating Pond,'2/'9*)".$%&'#6"')2#".'9":"9'32?'"%2(9"'#6"'4.*4*/"5'523'#*'
("'."58-"5'$%'6"$&6#J''K"'5$/-8//'#6$/'$%'5"#2$9'92#".

V6$/'$/'#"-6%$-299?'+"2/$(9"0'(8#'#6"."')2/'2'&"%".29'-*%/"%/8/')$#6$%'#6"'
+""5(2->' +.*3' #6"' "2.9?' -*%/89#2#$*%/' #62#' %*' #?4$-29' ' ;"Y$/#$%&<')2#".'
9":"9/'/6*895'("'-62%&"5J''\#')2/'29/*'5$/-8//"5'2#'#6"'a%5'GGBL')*.>/6*4'
2%5'3*/#'/#2>"6*95"./')"."'2&2$%/#'9*)".$%&'#6"')2#".'9":"9J

V6"'."-"%#'/$9#'#"/#$%&'62/'/8&&"/#"5''#62#'#6"."''-*895'("'84'#*'aJa3'*+'
/$9#'$%'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%50'2%5'/*'#6"'."58-#$*%'$%'#6"'5"4#6'*+'-9"2.')2#".'
-*895'62:"'2'%"&2#$:"'"++"-#'*%',/6'4*4892#$*%/')6$-6')*895'%""5'#*'("'
2//"//"5'(?'/4"-$29$/#/J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Z` aZ' ' U$")4*$%#'Z0'j3'.2$/$%&0'/#$99'/6*)/'#6"'-2%*4?'*+'2'#.""'#62#')*895'("'."3*:"5')$#6'#6$/'*4#$*%J''V6"."'
2."'/$3$92.'$%/#2%-"/'$%'/":".29'46*#*':$/829$/2#$*%/J''K"'8.&"'+*.'2--8.2#"'$32&".?'$%'#6"'%"Y#'."4*.#

V6$/'$/'%*#"50'2%5'#6"':$/829$h2#$*%')$99'("'-*.."-#"5'+*.'#6"'%"Y#'."4*.#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Ze j]' ' K"'%*#"'#62#'3*/#'*+'#6"'25:2%#2&"/'2%5'5$/25:2%#2&"/'O8*#"5'+*.'W4#$*%'j'2."'-62%&"/'#62#'2."'
$.."9":2%#'#*'523'6"$&6#0'2%5'2449?'#6"."+*."'#*'299'#6"'*4#$*%/0'%*#'C8/#'#*'W4#$*%'jJ

V6$/'4*$%#'$/'325"'*%'42&"'j`'*+'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#'2%5'/*'#6"'
5$++"."%-"/'$%'25:2%#2&"/'2."'&$:"%')6"%'5$/-8//$%&'#6"'%"Y#'*4#$*%J

P
age 205



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

32

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ZZ HIGHGATE CHAIN

\%'2//"//$%&'#6"/"'*4#$*%/0')"'62:"'-*%/$5"."5'#6"'+*99*)$%&'>"?'4.$%-$49"/kE

B#*."c2##"%82#"'2/'38-6'*+'#6"'G!I'2/'4*//$(9"'2#'#6"'N*2#$%&'4*%50'(8#'3$%$3$/"'92%5/-24"'$342-#J''This implies 
C1*2#7)D)=D<E;)"62427->9)?,*)0&)+6.&)"&4&".6*2#749)67()4,--&4*2#74)64)?&'#0<))F&)0#,'()'2$&)*#)'2;2*)*+&)
apparent height to approx 1.5m

K"'%*#"'#62#'#6"'$342-#'*%'92%5/-24"'2#'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'$/'/$&%$,-2%#0'
(8#'$#'$/'."92#"5'#*'#6"'%""5'#*'/*8.-"',99'32#".$29'2/'-9*/"'2/'4*//$(9"'#*'
#6"'4*%50'$%'*.5".'#*'3$%$3$/"'#6"'%""5'+*.'$34*.#"5',99'#*'("'#.2%/4*.#"5'
#6.*8&6'."/$5"%#$29'2."2/'2.*8%5'#6"'1"2#6J

V6"'3*5"99$%&'*+'*4#$*%/'62/'/6*)%'#62#'2'9*)".'.2$/$%&'6"$&6#'2#'!*5"9'
N*2#$%&'G*%5')*895'62:"'#6"'-*%/"O8"%-"'*+'2'92.&".'%")'"3(2%>3"%#'
2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%50'#68/'/4."25$%&'#6"'2."2'*+'32C*.')*.>/'2%5'#6"'
$342-#'*%'*#6".'4*%5/J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Zg On Highgate 1, minimise any loss of trees and vegetation'#62#'/-.""%'#6"'1"2#6'+.*3'."/$5"%#$29'(8$95$%&/0'
42.#$-892.9?'N.**>,"95'!2%/$*%/'2%5'#6"'$%#.8/$:"')6$#"'(9*->/'*+'K"/#'1$99'7*8.#'o/""'-*33"%#'*%'42&"'j]pJ''G2&"'j`'
$%5$-2#"/'#62#'2'[Je3'*.']Jae3'523'.2$/$%&'*%'1$&6&2#"']'-*895'("'2--*33*52#"5')$#6'2')299'*%'#6"'-."/#')6$-6')*895'
62:"'9"//'$342-#'*%'#6"':"&"#2#$*%'#62%'2%'"2.#6'523J''1*)":".0'#6$/'$/'42.#9?'-*%#.25$-#"5'(?'42&"'jj0')6$-6'$349$"/'#62#'
2%'"2.#6'523'3$&6#'62:"'#*'("'(8$9#'+*.'#6"']Jae3'523'.2$/$%&0'2%5'2%?'6$&6".'.2$/$%&J''This therefore implies Option 
3, or perhaps Option 6, but we have queries.

\%'(*#6'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'$#'$/'4.*4*/"5'#62#'2')299'("'(8$9#'2#'1$&6&2#"'
=*J']'4*%5J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Zi 1. Carry out the minimum possible work on all other dams

K"'5"#2$9'#6"/"'4.$%-$49"/'*%'#6"'+*99*)$%&'.":$")'*+'#6"'4.*4*/29/'+*.'"2-6'4*%50'(2/"5'*%'W4#$*%'j'/#*."5':*983"0'(8#'
)$#6'2'N*2#'G*%5'523'.2$/$%&'*+'38-6'9"//'#62%'j3'$+'*8.'/8&&"/#$*%/'2."'$%-*.4*.2#"5kE

Highgate Chain – pond by pond review

Spillways generally

B4$99)2?/'2."'5"/-.$("5'$%'*8#9$%"'*%'299'#6"'523/0'5$3"%/$*%/'2."'/#2#"50'(8#'9*-2#$*%/'2."'.2."9?'&$:"%J''7*%/"O8"%#9?0'
#6"':$/829'$342-#'$/'5$+,-89#'#*'2//"//J''It is essential that we be provided urgently with simple plans showing 
*+&)'#56*2#749)02*+)67:)42-72%567*)*"&&)67().&-&*6*2#7)'#44)(&45"2?&(<))K6"."'^%2#8.29T'/4$99)2?/'-2%'("'.*8#"5'
#*'2:*$5'#6"'523'/9*4"/'2%5'#*"0'#6"%')"'8.&"'#62#'%*'."$%+*.-"3"%#'$/'%""5"50'2%5'%*'#.""/0'(8/6"/'*.'+"%-"/'%""5'("'
."3*:"5'*%'#6"'.*8#"J''F8.$%&'2'G!I'/4$990'#.""/0'(8/6"/'2%5'+"%-"/'32?'/8++".'/*3"'5232&"'58.$%&'#6$/'"Y#."3"9?'.2."'
":"%#0'(8#'#6$/')*895'("'2--"4#2(9"0'.2#6".'#62%'8%%"-"//2.$9?'-9"2.'2%5'."$%+*.-"'#6"'/4$99)2?0'2/'4.*4*/"5'*%'/*3"'523/J

K"'2."'%*#'?"#'$%'2'4*/$#$*%'#*'."9"2/"'*8#9$%"'5"/$&%'5.2)$%&/0')6$-6'2."'
4.*&.233"5'#*'("'5":"9*4"5'$%'W-#*(".J'K"'-2%'/8332.$/"'#6"'/4$99)2?'
9*-2#$*%'4*/$#$*%'2/'+*99*)/k

B#*->'G*%5k'2#'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'5230'#*'("'/6*)%'$%'2'%")':$/829$h2#$*%J
H25$"/'N2#6$%&'G*%5k'2#'#6"')"/#".%'629+'*+'#6"'523'2/'3"%#$*%"5'$%'#6"'
B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%'."4*.#J

!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5k''2#'#6"')"/#'2(8#3"%#'*+'#6"'%")c"Y$/#$%&'523/J
!"%T/'N2#6$%&'G*%5k'2#'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'5230'2#'#6"'&24'$%'#.""/')6"."'
#6"."'$/'2%'"Y$/#$%&'&.2//?'/9*4"J

1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5k''42.#9?'*%'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'5230'42.#9?'*%'#6"'
%2#8.29'&.*8%50'2/'5"/-.$("5'*%'42&"'j[J

\%' #".3/' *+' #6"' 9*-2#$*%0' #6"/"' -2%' ("' 5$/-8//"5' $%' 5"#2$9' )$#6' #6"'
#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?/'2%5'#.""'/8.:"?'$%+*.32#$*%J

K"'62:"'#.$"5'#*'9*-2#"'/4$99)2?/'$%'/8-6'2')2?'2/'#*'3$%$3$h"'#.""'9*//0'
8/$%&'#6"'3"#6*5*9*&$"/'5"/-.$("5'2(*:"0'(8#'58"'#*'#6"'-*%/#.2$%#/'*+'
#6"'"Y$/#$%&'&.*8%5'9":"9/'2%5'#6"'9*-2#$*%/'*+'#6"'3*/#':2982(9"'#.""/'$#'$/'
%*#'29)2?/'4*//$(9"'#*'-*349"#"9?'2:*$5'#6"'523/J

\#')*895'("'%"-"//2.?'#*'-9"2.'#.""/'+.*3'#6"'/4$99)2?/')6"."'#6"?'2."'*%'
#6"'5230'/$%-"'5232&"'#*'2%?'#.""/'*%'#6"'523/')*895'%*#'("'2--"4#2(9"0'
/$%-"'#.""/'$%'M*)'-28/"'6$&6'#8.(89"%-"'$33"5$2#"9?'5*)%/#."23'*+'#6"'
#.""')$#6'5""4'".*/$*%J''V.""/'-2%'+299'*:".'58"'#6"'5*)%/#."23'".*/$*%'
2%5'9"2:"'2'/$&%$,-2%#':*$5'$%'#6"'"3(2%>3"%#')6"."'#6"'.**#'(299'62/'
(""%'4899"5'*8#J

P
age 206



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
33

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]Zb

170

171

172

173

2. Stock Pond – crest restore 0.5m to 1.0m

K"'4."/83"'#62#'#6$/'6"$&6#'*+'523'.2$/$%&'$/'4.$%-$4299?'#*'299*)'2'/4$99)2?'#*'("'$%/".#"5'$%#*'#6"'-."/#')$#6*8#'8%589?'
9*)".$%&'#6"'%*.329')2#".'9":"90'.2#6".'#62%'+*.'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%J''G9"2/"'-92.$+?J

K"')*895'4."+".'#$3(".'+2-$%&'#*'#6"'4.*4*/"5'."#2$%$%&')299')6$-6')"'-*%/$5".'3*."':$/8299?'244.*4.$2#"'#62%'(.$->J''
V6"."'-*895'("'492%#$%&'$%'+.*%#'2/'/-.""%$%&J''D%&9$/6'1".$#2&"'/-.""%"5'#6"'.2$/"5'K**5'G*%5'523'9$>"'#6$/0')6$-6'/""3/'
:$/8299?'2--"4#2(9"J''V6$/'."32.>'29/*'2449$"/'#*'#6"'4.*4*/"5')299/'2#'#6"'!"%T/'G*%5'2%5'1$&6&2#"'=*']J

K"'%*#"'#62#'#)*'o4*%5'/$5"dp'#.""/'32?'("'9*/#'$%'(8$95$%&'#6"'."#2$%$%&')299'o42&"'jip'2%5'O8".?'$+'#6$/'-2%'("'2:*$5"5'
#6.*8&6'5"/$&%

@/'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'$/'#*'("'."$%+*.-"50')$#6'#*4/*$9'2%5'&.2//'-*:".'*:".0'-*895'#6"."'("'/*3"'(8/6"/'*.'/6.8(/'*%'$#/'
5*)%/#."23'/9*4"d

\/'$#'$%#"%5"5'#62#'#6$/'4*%5'("'5."5&"5'2/'42.#'*+'#6"')*.>/'o4``p0'2/'#6"."'$/'5""4'/$9#'$%'#6$/'4*%5d

V6"' 9":"9' *+' -."/#' ."/#*.2#$*%' $/' $%#"%5"5' #*' 299*)' 2' %")' /4$99)2?' 2%5'
*:".M*)' 4$4"' #*' ("' $%/#299"5' )6$9"' >""4$%&' #6"' /4$99)2?' 2(*:"' #?4$-29'
)2#".'9":"9J''

V6"'4."+"."%-"'+*.'#$3(".'-9255$%&'62/'(""%'%*#"5'2%5'#6$/')2/'/6*)%'
*%'#6"'4.*4*/"5')299/'$%'#6"'%")'/"#'*+':$/829$h2#$*%/'2#'#6"'B"4#"3(".'
]`th')*.>/6*4J'

K"'62:"'/$%-"'."9*-2#"5' #6"'/4$99)2?' #*' #6"')"/#'/$5"0'/*' #6"' #.""' 9*//'
*%9?'2449$"/'#*'2'/3299'-98/#".'*+'#.""/')$#6'#.8%>'5$23"#"./'*+'9"//'#62%'
][[33J

@/'2'&"%".29'.89"0'#6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".'62/'/4"-$,"5'#62#'492%#$%&'*+'(8/6"/'
*.'/6.8(/')*895'*%9?'("'2--"4#2(9"'*%'#6"'84/#."23'/9*4"'*+'2%?'5230'
2%5'%*#')$#6$%'#6"'/4$99)2?'/$%-"'#6$/')*895'2++"-#'#6"'M*)J

B#*->'G*%5'$/'*%"'*+'#6"'6$&6"/#'4.$*.$#?'4*%5/'$%'#".3/'*+'492%/'+*.'5"E
/$9#$%&J''V6"'23*8%#'*+'5"/$9#$%&'*%'#6$/'2%5'*#6".'4*%5/')$99'5"4"%5'*%'
#6"':*983"'*+'/$9#0'#*'("'-*%,.3"5'(?'(2#6?3"#.$-'/8.:"?/0'2%5'#6"'."/89#/'
*+'/$9#'#"/#$%&')6$-6'$/'("$%&''-2..$"5'*8#0'/$%-"'#6"/"'(*#6'62:"'2'("2.$%&'
*%'-*/#/J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]g` Ladies Bathing Pond – crest restore by 0.2m
G9"2/"'5"#2$9'#6"'4*/$#$*%'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?0')$#6'2%?'#.""'9*//J

@#'#6"')"/#".%'629+'*+'#6"'523'2/'3"%#$*%"5'$%'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%'."4*.#J''
V.""' 9*//' #*' ("' -*%,.3"5' *%-"' #6"' ."/89#/' *+' #6"' 92#"/#' #*4*&.246$-29'
/8.:"?'2."'."-"$:"5'2/'#6"?')$99'#6"%'("'-*3($%"5')$#6'#6"'#.""'/8.:"?J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

175 Bird Sanctuary Pond – crest restore by 0.1m
G9"2/"'-92.$+?'$+'#6"."')$99'("'2%?'#.""'9*//')6"%'-2..?$%&'*8#'#6"'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%J''\+'/*0')"'O8".?')6?'2%?')*.>'%""5/'
#*'("'-2..$"5'*8#J''V6$/'523'$/'#6"'3*/#'.*(8/#'*%'#6"'1"2#60'#6"."'$/'2'#2.32-'.*25'*%'#6"'-."/#')6$-6'/$&%$,-2%#9?')$99'
4.*#"-#'+.*3'2%?'".*/$*%0'2%5'8%5".'M**5'-*%5$#$*%/'#6"'523')$99'4.*(2(9?'("'*:".)6"93"5'(?'.$/$%&')2#".'$%'#6"'N*2#'
4*%5'("+*."'+*.32#$*%'*+'2%?'/3299'&899$"/

=*'#.""'9*//'58"'#*'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%')*.>'$/'2%#$-$42#"5'2#'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'
G*%5J''V6"'."/#*.2#$*%')*.>')*895'("'-*%,%"5'#*'#6"')$5#6'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'
.*25'/8.+2-"J

P
age 207



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

34

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]gZ

177

Model Boating Pond – raise dam to store equivalent volume of water of a 3.0m raising

\#'244"2./'5"/$.2(9"'#*'/#*."'244.*Y'][Z0[[['-8'3'*.'3*."'$+'4*//$(9"'("6$%5'#6$/'5230'2/'$%'W4#$*%'j')6$-6'62/'j3'523'
.2$/$%&J''1*)":".0')"'-*%/$5".'#62#'this extra height could severely impact on the landscape, and suggest that 
the raising ideally be limited to an apparent 1.5m0')6$9/#'/#$99'/#*.$%&'#6$/':*983"'*+')2#".J''K"'/8&&"/#'#62#'#6$/'
3$&6#'("'2-6$":"5'(?'#6"'+*99*)$%&'#6.""'3"2/8."/kE

1. G&42-7)*+&)412''06:)*#)(245+6"-&)*+&)HIHE9EEE):&6")/##()#7':9)02*+)*+&)4,"1',4)JAK)06*&")?&27-)6''#0&()
to overtop the crest.''V6$/'3$&6#'."58-"'#6"'.2$/$%&'(?'244.*Y']J]30'("$%&'#6"'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?J''Please 
5'6"28:)67()5#7%";

V6"'*95'2%5'%")'523/')*895'#6"%'62:"'#*'("'4.*#"-#"5'+.*3'".*/$*%'+.*3'#6"'*:".#*44$%&'G!I0'2%5'#6"'%""5'+*.'#6$/'
)$99'5"4"%5'*%'#6" .2#"'*+'M*)'2%5'58.2#$*%0'hence please supply the hydrograph.  

V6"'%")'.2$/"5'"2.#6'523'-*895'62:"'299'/9*4"/'2%5'#6"'-."/#'"2/$9?'4.*#"-#"5')$#6'."$%+*.-"5'&.2//'o492/#$-'D%>232#'*.'
/$3$92.p'$%/#299"5'58.$%&'-*%/#.8-#$*%'2%5'#6$/')*895'4."/"%#'2'/$3$92.'/8.+2-"'#*'#62#'4.*4*/"5'+*.'W4#$*%'j0'$"J'8%$+*.3'
&.2//0')$#6'4*//$(9?'2'(".3c42#6'2%5'/*3"'(8/6"/'*.'/6.8(/'*%'#6"'84/#."23'+2-"'#*'/*+#"%'#6"'244"2.2%-"J

V6"'-."/#c-?-9"'#.2->'*%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'523'$/'29."25?'$%'62.5'#2.32-'-*%/#.8-#$*%0'(8#'#6$/'-*895'("'."E92$5'$%'62.5".'
-*%/#.8-#$*%'#*'"%/8."'#62#'$#')*895'%*#'("'".*5"5'*.'8%5".3$%"5J''\#')$99'#6"%'+*.3'2'(".3'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"0'

V6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'523'$%#*'#6"'!"%T/'G*%5'$/'(.*259?'8%$+*.3'&.2//')$#6'/*3"'/4"-$3"%'#.""/')6$-6'
2."'#*'("'."#2$%"5J''\+'#6"'6?5.*&.246'$%5$-2#"/'#62#'#6$/'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'%""5/'#*'("'4.*#"-#"50'#6"%'."$%+*.-"5'&.2//'
-*895'("'92$5'*%'$#'2%5'2.*8%5'#6"'#.""/')$#6*8#'/$&%$,-2%#9?'29#".$%&'#6"'244"2.2%-"J''K"'2--"4#'#62#'#6$/'32?'%*#'4.*:$5"'
#6"'/23"'4.*#"-#$*%'2/'*%'2'%")'5230'(8#'/8&&"/#'#62#'$#'/6*895'("'25"O82#"0'#2>$%&'$%#*'2--*8%#'#6"'+899?'4.*#"-#"5'-."/#0'
2%5'#6"'32//$:"'#6$->%"//'*+'#6"'-*3($%"5'"Y$/#$%&'2%5'%")'523/J''V6"."'-*895'4".624/'("'/*3"'/8.+2-"'5232&"'(8#'%*'
/#.8-#8.29'5232&"0'2%5')"'8%5"./#2%5'#62#'/*3"'5232&"'-2%'("'2--"4#"5J

P"58-$%&' #6"'844".'-."/#'*+' #6"' .2$/$%&'523'(?']J]3')*895'"++"-#$:"9?'
."58-"'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'/$%-"'#6"'4"2>')2#".'9":"9/'2."'[Jg3'2(*:"'#6"'
/4$99)2?' -."/#' 58.$%&' #6"' G!I' ":"%#0' ("-28/"' #6"' /4$99)2?' -28/"/' #6"'
)2#".'#*'(2->'84'("6$%5'$#';#6"'#6.*##9$%&'"++"-#<J''V6$/')*895'."4."/"%#'2'
9*//'*+'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'*+'2#'9"2/#']g0j[[33'(2/"5'*%'2%'"/#$32#"'8/$%&'
#6"'/8.+2-"'2."2/'*+'N$.5'2%5'!*5"9'4*%5/';9$>"9?' #*'("'3*."'/$%-"'#6"'
2."2/' $%-."2/"')$#6' 6"$&6#<J' ' V6$/' 9*//' *+' /#*.2&"' -242-$#?')*895' 62:"'
-*%/"O8"%-"/'*%'#6"')*.>/'."O8$."5'*%'5*)%/#."23'4*%5/'#*'2-6$":"'%*'
%"#'$%-."2/"'$%'M**5$%&'5*)%/#."23J

V6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".')*895'%*#'2--"4#'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'32$%'523'58"'#*'
#6"'#.""/'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"')6$-6'2."'#*'("'."#2$%"5J''V6"/"'#.""/'
)*895'-28/"'"55?$%&'2%5'#8.(89"%-"')6$-6')*895'$%-."2/"'#6"'".*/$*%'*+'
#6"'523'58.$%&'*:".#*44$%&J

V6"'>$%5'*+'5232&"'#62#')*895'("'2--"4#"5')*895'("'3$%*.')"2.'2%5'#"2.'
*+'#8.+')6$-6'-*895'("'."492-"5'2+#".'2'M**5'":"%#J'D.*/$*%'*+'-62%%"9/'
2.*8%5'#.""/0'*.'#.""/'("$%&'48/6"5'*:".'2%5'."3*:$%&'#6"'.**#'(299'+.*3'
#6"'5230')*895'%*#'("'2--"4#2(9"J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]gi Lower the water level in the pond by say, 0.5m max, and hence trim further height off the raised dam.  

@/'/#2#"5'2(*:"0')"'2(/*98#"9?'2&.""'#62#')2#".'9":"9/'/6*895'."32$%'8%-62%&"5'*%'299'*#6".'4*%5/0'58"'#*'#6"'25:"./"'
"++"-#'*%'"-*9*&?'2%5':$/829'2/4"-#/J''1*)":".0')"'/8&&"/#'#62#'#6"'N*2#$%&'4*%5'$/'2'/4"-$29'-2/"J''\#'$/'2%'2.#$,-$29'
9**>$%&'4*%50'*+'%*'/$&%$,-2%#'"-*9*&$-29':298"J''V*'-*%/#.8-#'#6"'%")'5230')"'("9$":"'#62#'#6"'4*%5'32?'62:"'#*'("'
-*349"#"9?'5.2$%"5')$#6'2."2/'5."5&"5'+*.'#6"'%")'5230'2%5'#6"'#)*'/3299'.""5'("5/'2%5'*#6".'492%#$%&')$99'%*#'/8.:$:"J''
\#'$/'29/*'4.*4*/"5'#*'-8#'(2->'#6"')"/#'/9*4"/'/$&%$,-2%#9?'$%#*'#6"'.$/$%&'92%50'#*')$%',99'2%5'-."2#"'2'3*."'%2#8.29'"5&"
K6$9/#'#6$/')*.>'$/'("$%&'-2..$"5'*8#0'$#')*895'("'"Y#."3"9?'/$349"'#*'5."5&"'#6"'4*%5'5""4".'2%5'9*)".'#6"')2#".'9":"9'
4".32%"%#9?')$#6*8#'."58-$%&'#6"'/8.+2-"'2."2'*+'#6"'4*%5J''K"'/8&&"/#'#6$/'("'9$3$#"5'#*'/2?'[Je3'32YJ''K"'2--"4#'
#62#'5$/4*/29'*+'/$9#0'42.#$-892.9?'$+'-*%#23$%2#"50'32?'("'2'4.*(9"30'(8#'/$&%$,-2%#'O82%#$#$"/'32?'62:"'#*'("'5$/4*/"5'
2%?)2?0'":"%'$+'#6"')2#".'9":"9'$/'%*#'."58-"5J''V6"'5"/$&%'*+'#6"'523'2%5')"/#'/9*4"/'-2%'"2/$9?'("'25C8/#"5'+*.'2'9*)".'
)2#".'9":"9J''1*)":".0'#6$/'-*895'9"2:"'#6"'8%#*8-6"5'"2/#'2%5'%*.#6'"5&"/'6$&6".'2(*:"'2%5'/9$&6#9?'3*."'."3*#"'+.*3'
#6"')2#".J''K"'#6"."+*."'/8&&"/#'#62#'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'"2/#'2%5'%*.#6'4".$3"#".'42#6'-*895'("'."E-*%/#.8-#"5'#*'#6"'/23"'
6"$&6#'2(*:"'#6"'9*)"."5')2#".'9":"9'2/'%*)J''@9#".%2#$:"9?0'#6"/"'42#6/'-*895'."32$%'2/'%*)0'(8#'2'%")'/#"44"5')2#".T/'
"5&"'-*895'("'+*.3"5'25:2%-"5'$%#*'#6"'4*%50'(.*259?'2/'*%'42&"']Z0'(8#')$#6'2')29>)2?'C8/#'2(*:"')2#".'9":"9J''B*3"'
32.&$%29'492%#/'-*895'("'255"5'$+'."O8$."5'#*'/*+#"%'2%5'-*%-"29'#6"')29>)2?0'(8#'+899'2--"//')*895'/#$99'"Y$/#'+*.'3*5"9'
(*2#/J''K"'/8&&"/#'#62#'#6$/'-*895'+8.#6".'^%2#8.29$/"T'#6"'4*%5'2##.2-#$:"9?J''@'/$3$92.'/8&&"/#$*%')2/'29/*'325"'2#'#6"'
B#2>"6*95"./')*.>/6*4'*%']Z'X89?'a[]j'o4`epJ

@/'3"%#$*%"5'2(*:"0'$#'$/'8%9$>"9?'#62#'*#6".'/#2>"6*95"./')$99'32>"'#6$/'
"Y-"4#$*%J'K6$9"'$#'$/'#"-6%$-299?'+"2/$(9"'#*'$%-."2/"'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'(?'
9*)".$%&'#6"'*:".M*)'9":"90'#6"."')*895'("'/#2>"6*95"./')6*')*895'%*#'
9$>"'#6"':$/829'$342-#'*+'"Y4*/$%&'[Je3'*+'#6"'/6""#'4$9"/'+*.'#6"')6*9"'
4".$3"#".0'*.'#6"'9*//'*+'2--"//'+*.'3*5"9'(*2#"./J

F."5&$%&' #6"' 4*%5' $/' 8%9$>"9?' #*' ("' /$349"' -*%/$5".$%&' #6"' O82%#$#$"/'
$%:*9:"50'#6"'-*/#/'2%5'#6"'23*8%#'*+'492%#'3*:"3"%#/J''78.."%#9?'#6"'
-*/#'"/#$32#"'*%9?'$%-985"/'2%'299*)2%-"'+*.'a[n'*+'#6"'4*%5'2."2'#*'("'
5."5&"5';#*'299*)'-*%/#.8-#$*%'*+'#6"'%")'(8%5<0'(8#' $%-."2/$%&'#6$/'#*'
][[n')*895'/$&%$,-2%#9?'$%-."2/"'-*/#/J''V6"'$//8"'*+')6"."'#*'9*-2#"'#6"'
."3*:"5'/$9#'$/'29."25?'2//*-$2#"5')$#6'6$&6'.$/>/'2%5'8%>%*)%/J

P
age 208



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
35

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]gb The additional area of the pond, formed by excavating the west bank, may allow the raised dam to be 
trimmed further in height.  K"'2)2$#'-29-892#$*%/'*%'#6$/')$#6'$%#"."/#'o42&"'j]pJ''1*)":".0')"'2."':".?'-*%-".%"5'2#'
#6"'4*//$(9"':$/829'$342-#'*+'"Y#"%5$%&'#6"'4*%5')$5#6'(?'84'#*'g[30')6$-6')"'8%5"./#2%5'32?'("'32$%9?'2#'#6"'%*.#6'
"%5J''V6$/')*895'double the width of the pond.  K"'2."'29/*'-*%-".%"5'2#'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/#""4"%$%&'*+'#6"')"/#'(2%>'
/9*4"/'+.*3']k]j'#*']ke0')6$-6'-*895'9**>':".?'2.#$,-$29J''K"'2."'29/*'-*%-".%"5'2#'2%?'#.""'9*//'#62#')*895'("'-28/"5'(?'
#6$/')$5"%$%&0'49"2/"'-92.$+?J''

K"'62:"'3*5"99"5'2':2.$2#$*%'*+'*%"'*+'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'W4#$*%/')$#6'
#6"'255$#$*%29'/#*.2&"':*983"'2-6$":"5'+.*3'#6"'"Y-2:2#$*%/'2(*:"')2#".'
9":"90'(8#'$#'325"':".?'9$##9"'5$++"."%-"'#*'M**5'9":"9/'5*)%/#."23';2.*8%5'
a['S'j[33<J''V6"'4.$32.?'."2/*%'+*.'#6"')$5"%$%&'$/'#6"."+*."'#*'4.*:$5"'
32#".$29')$#6*8#'$34*.#$%&'92.&"'O82%#$#$"/'#6.*8&6'."/$5"%#$29'2."2/J

V6"'-8.."%#'5"/$&%'+*.'#6"')"/#'(2%>'/9*4"'62/'2'32Y$383'/9*4"'*+']ki0'
)6"."'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/9*4"'$/'2.*8%5']k][J

V.""' 9*//'58"' #*' #6"'"Y-2:2#$*%')$99'("'2:*$5"5'(?')*.>$%&'2.*8%5' #6"'
#.""/0'9"2:$%&'#6"'&.*84'*+'9$3"'#.""/'2/'2%'$/92%50'2%5'62:$%&'#6"')$5"/#'
"Y-2:2#$*%'2#'#6"'2."2'*+'*4"%'&.2//92%5'#*)2.5/'#6"'%*.#6')"/#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]i[ V6$/'32C*.')$5"%$%&'*+'#6"'4*%5'$/'%*#'."M"-#"5'$%'#6"'492%E5$2&.23'*%'42&"'`]J''\+'#6$/'"%92.&"5')$5#6'$/'4.*4*/"5'32$%9?'
#*')$%'"2.#6'+*.'#6"'523'-*%/#.8-#$*%0'.2#6".'#62%'$34*.#'"2.#60')"'/#.*%&9?'/8&&"/#'#62#'/".$*8/'-*%/$5".2#$*%'("'&$:"%'#*'
#6"'*4#$*%'*+'5$&&$%&'5""4".'$%#*'#6"'4*%50'.2#6".'#62%'32>$%&'$#')$5".J''@9/*0'$+'/8$#2(9"'2%5'8%*(#.8/$:"'9*-2#$*%/'-2%'("'
+*8%5'+*.'(*..*)'4$#/'#*'*(#2$%',99'+*.'#6"'5230'#6"/"'32?'4*//$(9?'("'(2->,99"5')$#6'8%/8$#2(9"'/*$9'2%5'/$9#'$+'4*%5/'2."'
5"E/$9#"50'.2#6".'#62%'#.2%/4*.#'*++E/$#"J

\%'/8332.?0')"'6*4"'#62#'#6"/"'#6.""'3"2/8."/')$99'"%2(9"'#6"'2442."%#'523'.2$/$%&'#*'("'9$3$#"5'#*'244.*YJ']Je30')6$9/#'
/#$99'/#*.$%&'#6"'/23"':*983"'*+')2#".'2/'W4#$*%'jJ''N"-28/"'#6"'+**#4.$%#'*+'#6"'523')*895'("'."58-"50')"'6*4"'#62#'(*#6'
32#8."')$99*)/'2#'#6"')"/#'"%5'C8/#'%*.#6'*+'#6"'2%-$"%#'*2>'-*895'#6"%'("'."#2$%"5J''G9"2/"'29/*'25:$/"'$+'#6"'92.&"'2%5'
#6"'3"5$83'6*.%("23/'2#'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'-28/")2?'-2%'("'."#2$%"5J

K"'2."'-*%-".%"5'2#'/8&&"/#"5'#.""'9*//'+*.'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')*.>/'*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'523'
o4aicabpJ''\#'$/'essential'#62#'2'5"#2$9"5'492%'("'4.*:$5"5'/6*)$%&'#.""'9*//J''Gab'/#2#"/'#62#'2'9*)'"2.#6'(8%5'')*895'#.2$%'
the o)2#".p'M*)'2)2?'+.*3'#6"'523'2%5'#6"."+*."'2:*$5'#6"'%""5'#*'9$%"o."$%+*.-"p'2')$5".'2."2'*.'-8#'$%#*'#6"'&.*8%5'
#*'+*.3'2'/4$99)2?'-68#"J''DY-"99"%#f''1*)":".0')"'#6"."+*."'+""9'#62#'#6"."'/6*895'("'%*'%""5'#*'#*8-6'2%?'#.""/'*%'#6$/'
/4$99)2?'.*8#"0'2%5')"'-*%#"/#'#62#'#)*'H*%5*%'492%"/'62:"'#*'("'+"99"5'#*'+*.3'#6$/'-*..$5*.'+*.'#6"'9*)".'/4$99)2?J

@':$/829$h2#$*%'*+'#6"'4*%5')$5"%$%&'62/'/$%-"'(""%'4."/"%#"5'*%'#6"']`th 
B"4#"3(".')*.>/6*4'2%5')$99'("'$%-985"5'$%'#6"'%"Y#'."4*.#J

F$&&$%&'5""4".'$%#*'#6"'4*%5'$/'9"//':$2(9"'("-28/"'*+'#6"'92?".'*+'/$9#'$%'
#6"'4*%50'."-"%#9?'"/#$32#"5'#*'("'84'#*'aJa3'5""4'$%'492-"/J

V6"'5."5&"5'/$9#')$99'%*#'("'/8$#2(9"'+*.'8/"'$%'523'-*%/#.8-#$*%0'2%5'
$#')*895'#2>"'/*3"'3*%#6/'#*'5.?'*8#'32#".$29'*(#2$%"5'+.*3'#6"'62.5'
("5'("9*)'#6"'/$9#J'V6$/'32#".$29')*895'%""5'#*'("'#"34*.2.$9?'/#*."5'*%'
/$#"')6$-6'-*895'("'8%/$&6#9?J''F."5&$%&')$99'29/*'%*#'4.*:$5"'2%?'3*."'
M**5)2#".'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?J'''V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'2."')*.>$%&')$#6'@#>$%/'
#*'$5"%#$+?'(*..*)'4$#'9*-2#$*%/'(8#'/8$#2(9"'9*-2#$*%/'2."'9$3$#"5J

=*%"'*+'#6"'6*.%("23/'*%'#6"'523')*895'("'2++"-#"5J'78.."%#9?'#6"'*%9?'
#.""'#62#'62/'(""%'$5"%#$,"5'+*.'."3*:29'$/'2')$99*)0')6$-6'$/'%*.#6'*+'#6"'
523';("#)""%'#6"'844".'2%5'9*)".'42#6/<J''B*3"'5$/-8//$*%'8/$%&'324/'
2%5'46*#*/')*895'("'%""5"5'#*'-*%,.3')6"#6".'#6$/')$99*)'$/'*%"'*+'#6"'
#)*'."+".."5'#*J

@'5"#2$9"5'492%'/6*)$%&'#.""'9*//'-2%'("'4.*:$5"5'$%'#6"'%"2.'+8#8."'*%-"'
299' #6"'%")'#*4*&.246$-29' /8.:"?' $%+*.32#$*%' $/'-*3($%"5')$#6' #6"' #.""'
/8.:"?'$%+*.32#$*%'2%5'#6"'*8#9$%"'5"/$&%/J'V6$/'$/'9$>"9?'#*'("'58.$%&'#6"'
*8#9$%"'5"/$&%'462/"0'4.*&.233"5'+*.'W-#*(".'c'"2.9?'=*:"3(".J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]i] Men’s Swimming Pond – raise dam 0.5m

K"'4."+".'#$3(".'+2-$%&'+*.'#6"'4.*4*/"5')299'*%'#6"'523'-."/#'.2#6".'#62%'(.$->)*.>')6$-6')*895'("'8%2--"4#2(9"0'
/-.""%"5')$#6'32.&$%29':"&"#2#$*%J

K"'."O8"/#'2'492%'/6*)$%&'#6"'92?*8#'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?0'2%5'#6"%'62:"'2'C*$%#'.":$")'*%'/$#"J''K"'2."'/8.4.$/"5'2#'
#6"'92.&"')$5#6'oae3c`j3pJ''1*)":".0'$+'$#'$/'/$#"5'42.#9?'*%'#6"')"/#'(2%>0'(?'#6"'.2%&"./T'(*#6?0')"'("9$":"'#62#'$#'-*895'
+*99*)'2'%2#8.29'/9*4"'*:".'/6299*)'&.*8%5'5*)%'#*'#6"'%"Y#'4*%5'2%5'%*'."/624$%&'*+'#6"'&.*8%5')*895'("'%""5"5J''@/'
#6$/'%2#8.29'.*8#"'-*349"#"9?'2:*$5/'#6"'523'#*"0'%*'."$%+*.-"3"%#'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?'$/'%""5"50'"Y-"4#'2#'#6"'523'-."/#'2%5'
/4$99)2?'3$#."/J''@9/*0'%*'#.""/0'(8/6"/'*.'+"%-"/'%""5'("'."3*:"5'*%'#6$/'.*8#"J''F8.$%&'2'G!I'/4$990'#.""/0'(8/6"/'2%5'
+"%-"/'32?'/8++".'/*3"'5232&"'58.$%&'#6$/'"Y#."3"9?'.2."'":"%#0'(8#'#6$/')*895'("'2--"4#2(9"0'.2#6".'#62%'8%%"-"//2.$9?'
-9"2.'2%5'."$%+*.-"'#6"'/4$99)2?'2/'4.*4*/"5J''

V6$/' 4."+"."%-"' 62/' (""%' %*#"5' 2%5' $%-*.4*.2#"5' $%#*' #6"' 8452#"5'
:$/829$h2#$*%/'/6*)%'2#'#6"']`th'B"4#"3(".')*.>/6*4J
K"'2."'%*#'?"#'2(9"'#*'$//8"'5"#2$9"5'492%/'*+'/4$99)2?/'(8#'32?'("'2(9"'#*'
5$/-8//'#6"'*8#9$%"'/>"#-6"/'#*'("'#2(9"5'2#'*+M$%"'3""#$%&/J

I*.' $%+*.32#$*%' *%' /4$99)2?' 9*-2#$*%' 49"2/"' /""' #6"' G."+".."5' W4#$*%/'
P"4*.#J''V6"'."$%+*.-"3"%#'*+'2%?'/9*4"')*895'62:"'3$%$329':$/829'$342-#'
/$%-"')62#":".'."$%+*.-"3"%#'32#".$29'$/'8/"5'#6"."')$99'("'#8.+'2%5'&.2//'
-*:".$%&'$#J

V6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'9":"9'2#'#6$/'4*%5'$%'W4#$*%'`'$/'ZiJb]3@WFJ''V6"'
&.*8%5'9":"9/'("#)""%'#6"'523'2%5'#6"'42#6'.8%%$%&'=K'S'BD'42/#'#6"'
4*%5'2."'84'#*'ZiJbg3@WF'/*'#6"'%2#8.29'&.*8%5'$/'%*#'2/'/6299*)'2/'$/'
."O8$."5'2%5')*895'%*#'("'2'%2#8.29'.*8#"'+*.')2#".'#*'M*)'5*)%')$#6*8#'
/*3"'"Y-2:2#$*%'*+'#6"'2."2J''B8-6'2%'"Y-2:2#$*%')*895'."O8$."'#.""'9*//'
)6$-6'$/'*44*/"5'(?'#6"'!"%/'N2#6$%&'G*%5'@//*-$2#$*%J

P
age 209



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

36

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ia Highgate No 1 Pond – raise dam 0.5m

K"'4."+".'#$3(".'+2-$%&'+*.'#6"'4.*4*/"5')299'*%'#6"'523'-."/#'.2#6".'#62%'(.$->)*.>')6$-6')*895'("'8%2--"4#2(9"J''K"'
8.&"'#62#'#6$/')299'("'62%5'-*%/#.8-#"5'/*'#62#'#6"."'$/'%*'#.""'9*//'*%'#6"'-."/#'*.'523'/9*4"/')6$-6')*895'"Y4*/"'K"/#'
1$99'7*8.#'2%5'N.**>,"95'!2%/$*%/'+.*3'#6"'1"2#6J''@/'#6"')299'$/'*%'#6"'-."/#')$#6'2'/9*4$%&'84/#."23'+2-"0')"'8.&"'#62#'$#'
("'-*%-"29"5')$#6':"&"#2#$*%'2%5'/6.8(/'*%'(*#6'/$5"/J

K"'2."'&."2#9?'/8.4.$/"5'#62#'#6"'/4$99)2?'$/'4.*4*/"5'#*'("'Z[3cg`3'9*%&0'2%5'2/>'#62#'-29-892#$*%/'("'4.*:$5"5'#*'
/8(/#2%#$2#"'#6$/'"Y#.2*.5$%2.?')$5#6J''V6$/'/4$99)2?'o4j[p')*895'("'42.#9?'*%'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'523'2%5'42.#9?'29*%&'#6"'
%2#8.29'&.*8%5'#*'#6"')"/#'*+'#6"'523J''@#'#6$/'4*/$#$*%'#)*'92.&"'#.""/'o$%-985$%&'2':".?'92.&"'6*./"'-6"/#%8#'25C2-"%#'#*'
#6"'42#60p'2%5'2'/3299".'9$3"'2%5'#)*'295"./')*895'("'+"99"5J''V6"."'$/'29/*'2':"#".2%'*2>'25C2-"%#0'2(*8#')6$-6'#6"'."4*.#'
$/'/$9"%#'o"Y-"4#'+*.'3"%#$*%'*%'42&"'jjpJ

We consider this tree loss to be unacceptable0'2%5'O8".?'$+'+")".'#.""/')*895'("'9*/#'$+'#6"'.2$/"5'523'$/'-*%#$%8"5'
.*8%5'#6"')2#"./'"5&"'293*/#'#*'#6"'5*&'/)$33$%&'2."2J''V6"')"/#'(2%>'+.*3'#6$/'4*$%#'%*.#6)2.5/')*895'#6"%'+*.3'2'
^%2#8.29T'/4$99)2?')6$-6'-*895'M**5'2-.*//'#6"'42#6'#*'#6"'9*)'9?$%&'2."2'#*'#6"')"/#0'2%5'#6"%',99'84'("+*."'*:".M*)$%&'
/*8#6'#6.*8&6'2'%2#8.29'5"4."//$*%'(.*259?'29*%&'#6"'9$%"'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'+**#42#6J''@/'3*/#'*+'#6$/'%2#8.29'.*8#"0')6$-6'$/'
+8.#6".'#*'#6"')"/#'#62%'4.*4*/"5'$%'#6"'."4*.#0')*895'2:*$5'#6"'523'#*"0'#6"%'9$##9"'*.'%*'."$%+*.-$%&'32?'("'."O8$."5J''\#'
32?'29/*'/9$&6#9?'."58-"'2%?'$342-#'*+'#6"'M**5'#*'N.**>,"95'!2%/$*%/J

K"'."O8"/#'2'492%'/6*)$%&'#6"'92?*8#'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?')$#6'#.""/'#62#')*895'("'9*/#0'2%5'2'5"#2$9"5'9":"9'/8.:"?'
2%5'492%'*+'*8.'29#".%2#$:"'4.*4*/29'2(*:"J''V6"."'/6*895'#6"%'("'2'C*$%#'.":$")'*%'/$#"J''W%'#6"/"'492%/0'49"2/"'$%5$-2#"'
#6"'&"%".29'5$."-#$*%'#6$/'*:".#*44$%&'/8.+2-"')2#".')$99'#2>"'2+#".'9"2:$%&'#6"'523J

G9"2/"'-92.$+?')62#'$/'$%#"%5"5'(?'E''%")'/4$99)2?'-*895'("'492%#"5'2/'2'($*/)29"'+"2#8."'o4`jp

V6$/'4."+"."%-"'62/'(""%'%*#"5J

=*'#.""' 9*//' $/'2%#$-$42#"5'29*%&'#6"'523'-."/#'58"'#*'-*%/#.8-#$%&'#6"'
.2$/$%&')299/'$%'*4#$*%/'j'2%5'ZJ''

B*3"'492%#$%&'*+'(8/6"/'c'/6.8(/'$/'4*//$(9"'*%'#6"'84/#."23'+2-"J

V6"' /4$99)2?')$5#6')2/' #"/#"5' $%' #6"' 6?5.289$-'3*5"9' /*' #6"."' 2."' %*'
-29-892#$*%/'2/'/8-60'29#6*8&6'#6"'$%48#/'#*'#6"'3*5"9';#6"'6?5.*9*&?'8/"5'
#*'-29-892#"'#6"'$%M*)/0'2%5'#6"'5$3"%/$*%/'8/"5'+*.'#6"'5"/$&%'/4$99)2?<'
2."'285$#2(9"J'

V6"'/4$99)2?')$5#6'2%5'5"4#6'-*895'("'.",%"5'2#'#6"'%"Y#'5"/$&%'/#2&"'
2%5'#6"."'32?'("'/-*4"'+*.'."58-#$*%J

V6"'-8.."%#'/4$99)2?'.*8#"'2:*$5/'#6"':"#".2%'*2>J

V6"'%2#8.29'&.*8%5'5"/-.$("5'$%'#6$/'4.*4*/29'$/'6$&6".'#62%'#6"'/4$99)2?'
9":"9';"&' $%'W4#$*%'`<'2%5')*895'."O8$."'"Y-2:2#$*%J''K6$9"'#6"'&.*8%5'
244"2./'#*'("'9*)".'2#'#6"'42#6'%"2.'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'5230'$#'$/'-9*/"'
#*'#6"'3$%$383'"Y$/#$%&'&.*8%5'9":"9'*+'#6"'-."/#'*+'#6"'523J''@'-*4?'*+'
#6"'#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?'-2%'("'/"%#'#*'#6"'1A1B'#*'299*)'2'.":$")'*+'
#6"/"'9":"9/J

V6"'/4$99)2?'9*-2#$*%'2%5'#.""'9*//'492%/')$99'("'325"'2:2$92(9"'2#'*8#9$%"'
5"/$&%'/#2&"';W-#*(".<J'V*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'#.""'9*-2#$*%/'
$/'"Y4"-#"5'/**%'2%5'#6$/')$99'("'-*3($%"5')$#6'#6"'#.""'/8.:"?'#*'299*)'2'
3*."'5"#2$9"5'2//"//3"%#'*+'#.""'9*//J

\#' $/'/8&&"/#"5'#62#'#6"."')*895'("'492%#$%&'2#'#6"'4*%5'2%5'84/#."23'
+2-"'*+'#6"'523'%"2.'#6"'/4$99)2?'*8#'*+'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%50'$%'*.5".'#*'
/-.""%'#6"'+"2#8."J''\#'32?'("'4*//$(9"'#*'255'/*3"'3*."'492%#$%&'$%#*'#6"'
/4$99)2?'-62%%"9')6"%'$#'$/'/8+,-$"%#9?'("?*%5'#6"'5*)%/#."23'#*"'*+'#6"'
5230'(8#'#6$/')$99'5"4"%5'*%'#6"'/4"-$,-'29$&%3"%#'*:".'c'2.*8%5'#6"'523J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ij L7.2"#7;&7*6')A676-&;&7*)C1*2#74)=1MMNMO>
K"'%*#"'#6"'"Y#"%/$:"'#**9(*Y'*+'*4#$*%/'+*.'4*%50')2#".'O829$#?'2%5'"-*9*&?0'(8#'+""9'#62#')"'-2%%*#'*++".'2%?'*4$%$*%/'
2#'#6$/'/#2&"J''It is essential that ":".?'4*%5'$/':$/$#"5'2%5'5"#2$9"5'5$/-8//$*%/'6"95'*%'/$#"'("+*."'2%?'*4#$*%/'-2%'("'
/844*.#"5'*.'5$/-2.5"5J

F$/-8//$*%/'*%'/$#"'-2%'("'2..2%&"5J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]i` CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS – HAMPSTEAD CHAIN

;/""'42.#$-892.9?'42&"/']]E]a0'`gEZ]<

Key Principles and Selected Options

\%'2//"//$%&'#6"/"'*4#$*%/0')"'62:"'-*%/$5"."5'#6"'+*99*)$%&'>"?'4.$%-$49"/kE

]J' V*'3$%$3$h"'#.""'9*//'*%'1234/#"25'=*'a'4*%5

aJ' V*'2##"%82#"c/#*."'3*."'M**5')2#".'#62%'4.*4*/"5'$%'#6"'."4*.#0'provided that this would reduce the tree loss 
on Hampstead No 2J''K"'42.#$-892.9?'O8".?'$+'3*."'/#*.2&"'$/'4*//$(9"'2#'#6"'72#-64$#0'#6"'!$Y"5'4*%50'2%5'2#'
1234/#"25'=*'a

jJ' V*'3$%$3$h"'#6"':$/829'$342-#'*+'#6"')*.>/'2#'299'4*%5/

B9$&6#9?'3*."'/#*.2&"'32?'("'2-6$":2(9"'2#' #6"'4.*4*/"5'72#-64$#'523'
(?' .2$/$%&' #6"' /4$99)2?' 9":"9' (?'2.*8%5'e[33';#6"' -8.."%#'*:".#*44$%&'
5"4#6<0'*.'3*."'$+'#6"'4$4"'#6.*8&6'#6"'523'$/'."58-"5'2&2$%'+.*3'j[[33'
#*'ae[33J'V6"'*%9?')2?'#*'/#*."'/$&%$,-2%#9?'3*."'#62%'#6$/')*895'("'#*'
62:"'2%'28#*32#"5':29:"'*.'4"%/#*->'/?/#"3')6$-6')*895'-9*/"'#6"'4$4"'
&*$%&'#6.*8&6'#6"'523J''1*)":".0'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'4."+".'%*#'#*'."9?'
*%'2%?'28#*32#"5'c'3"-62%$-29'/?/#"3/J''\%'#".3/'*+'42//$:"'/?/#"3/0'
2' +8.#6".' .",%"3"%#' -*895' ("' 2-6$":"5' )$#6' 2' 6?5.*(.2>"0' )6$-6' $/' 2'
:*.#"Y'/624"')$#6$%'#6"'4$4"';)$#6'%*'3*:$%&'42.#/<0'#62#'-2%'32Y$3$/"'
#6"'/#*.2&"J'V6$/'-*895'("'$%:"/#$&2#"5'2#'*8#9$%"'*.'5"#2$9"5'5"/$&%'/#2&"J

P
age 210



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
37

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ie Hampstead Chain – pond by pond review

Spillways generally

B4$99)2?/'2."'5"/-.$("5'$%'*8#9$%"'*%'299'#6"'523/0'5$3"%/$*%/'2."'/#2#"50'(8#'9*-2#$*%/'2."'.2."9?'&$:"%J''7*%/"O8"%#9?0'
#6"':$/829'$342-#'$/'5$+,-89#'#*'2//"//J''It is essential that we be provided urgently with simple plans showing 
*+&)'#56*2#749)02*+)67:)42-72%567*)*"&&)67().&-&*6*2#7)'#44)(&45"2?&(<))K6"."'^%2#8.29T'/4$99)2?/'-2%'("'.*8#"5'
#*'2:*$5'#6"'523'/9*4"/'2%5'#*"0'#6"%')"'8.&"'#62#'%*'."$%+*.-"3"%#'$/'%""5"50'2%5'%*'#.""/0'(8/6"/'*.'+"%-"/'%""5'("'
."3*:"5'*%'#6"'.*8#"J''F8.$%&'2'G!I'/4$990'#.""/0'(8/6"/'2%5'+"%-"/'32?'/8++".'/*3"'5232&"'58.$%&'#6$/'"Y#."3"9?'.2."'
":"%#0'(8#'#6$/')*895'("'2--"4#2(9"0'.2#6".'#62%'8%%"-"//2.$9?'-9"2.'2%5'."$%+*.-"'#6"'/4$99)2?0'2/'4.*4*/"5'*%'/*3"'523/J

I*.' $%+*.32#$*%' *%' /4$99)2?' 9*-2#$*%' 49"2/"' /""' #6"' G."+".."5' W4#$*%/'
P"4*.#J' ' V.""' 9*//'492%/')$99' ("'325"'2:2$92(9"' 2#' *8#9$%"'5"/$&%' /#2&"'
;W-#*(".<J'V*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'#.""'9*-2#$*%/'$/'"Y4"-#"5'
/**%' 2%5' #6$/' )$99' ("' -*3($%"5' )$#6' #6"' #.""' /8.:"?' #*' 299*)' 2'3*."'
5"#2$9"5'2//"//3"%#'*+'#.""'9*//J

V6"'5232&"' #*' #.""/'58.$%&'2'M**5' $/'%*#' /*'38-6'*+'2%' $//8"'2/' #6"'
5232&"' #*' 523' 32#".$29' *.' /4$99)2?' #62#' 3$&6#' ("' -28/"5' (?' 2' #.""'
*:".#8.%$%&' 58.$%&' 2' M**50' 2%5' #6$/' $/' #6"' 5232&"' #62#' )*895' %*#' ("'
2--"4#2(9"J

G9"2/"'29/*'/""'2%/)".'#*'O8".?']ZiJ

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]iZ P6'&)#8)Q&6'*+)J#7()R)5"&4*)"&4*#"6*2#7)E<@;);6B)=#")E<S;T>
\#'62/'(""%'/#2#"5'#62#'#6$/'4*%5'62/'%":".'*:".M*)"5'2%5'$/'/4.$%&'+"5')$#6'2'/3299'-2#-63"%#'2."2J''V6"'$.."&892.'#2.32-'
-."/#'62/'%*#'(""%'%*#"5'2/'*+'2%?'-*%-".%J''K"'#6"."+*."'O8".?')6?'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%'$/'%""5"50')$#6'4*//$(9"'$342-#'*%'
-."/#'#.""/'

G9"2/"'-92.$+?'$+'8/"'*+'2'4$4"'92.&".'#62%'e[[33')*895'2:*$5'#6"'8/"'*+'2'/4$99)2?')$#6'-*%/"O8"%#'#.""'9*//J''K"')*895'
4."+".'#6$/
G9"2/"'-92.$+?'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'2%5'4$4"'5$/-62.&"'.*8#"/'."'#6"'92.&"'/"O8*$2'#.""0'2%5'5"#2$9'2%?'#.""'9*//J

V6"'U29"'*+'1"29#6'4*%5'523'62/'(""%'-*%/$5"."5'$%'#6"'-*%#"Y#'*+'$#/'492-"'
$%'2'-62$%'*+'4*%5/J'\+'$#')"."'#*'+2$90'#6"'/#*."5':*983"'."9"2/"5';"/#$32#"5'
2#']g0i[[33'2#'-."/#'9":"9<')*895'("'#**'38-6'+*.'#6"'5*)%/#."23'523/'
#*'/#*."';":"%'$%'#6"'4.*4*/"5'5"/$&%'*4#$*%/<0'-28/$%&'*:".#*44$%&'2#'#6"'
j'5*)%/#."23'523/'2%5'#6"'2//*-$2#"5'.$/>'*+'".*/$*%'2%5'+8.#6".'+2$98."J''
V6"'."#8.%'4".$*5'*+'*:".#*44$%&'$/'"/#$32#"5'2#'("#)""%'2']'$%'][['2%5']'
$%']0[[['?"2./0'2%5'#6"'.$/>'*+'+2$98."'58"'#*'*:".#*44$%&'$/'#6"."+*."'#**'
6$&6'#*'("'2--"4#2(9"J

K6$9"' #6"' 4.*4*/"5' j.5' *:".M*)'4$4"' -*895' %*#' ("' 92.&".' #62%' e[[33'
)$#6*8#'$%-."2/$%&'#6"'.2$/$%&'*+'#6"'523'-."/#0'$#'$/'4*//$(9"'#*'3*5"9'#6"'
"++"-#/'*+'255$%&'2'`th'4$4"'$%'#".3/'*+'2'4*//$(9"'."58-#$*%'*+'#6"'*4"%'
-62%%"9'/4$99)2?'/$h"J

I*.' $%+*.32#$*%' *%' /4$99)2?' 9*-2#$*%' 49"2/"' /""' #6"' G."+".."5' W4#$*%/'
P"4*.#J

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ig P26(,5*)J#7()R)5"&4*)"&4*#"6*2#7)E<O;)=#")E<HU;T>
G9"2/"'-92.$+?'/4$99)2?'.*8#"'2%5'#.""'9*//

I*.' $%+*.32#$*%' *%' /4$99)2?' 9*-2#$*%' 49"2/"' /""' #6"' G."+".."5' W4#$*%/'
P"4*.#J

V6"'#.""'9*//'-2%T#'("'-*%,.3"5'8%#$9')"'-*3($%"'#6"'#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?'
$%+*.32#$*%'*%'#.""'9*-2#$*%/')$#6'#6"'#.""'/8.:"?J

P
age 211



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

38

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ii Catchpit – suggest 5.8m dam

K"'%*#"'#62#'2'eJZ3'523'$/'4.*4*/"5'("-28/"'#6"'gJa3'523'."2-6"5'2'32Y')2#".'9":"9'*%9?']Z[33'6$&6".'#62%')$#6'#6"'
eJZ3'523J''K6?'%*#'$%-."2/"'#6"'4.*4*/"5'523'#*'eJi30'$%'*.5".'#*'/#*."'#6"'2(/*98#"'32Y$383':*983"'*+'M**5d''V6"'
I9*)-62.#'o4]ap'$%5$-2#"/'#6"':298"'*+'3*."'/#*.2&"0')6"%'*%"'-*342."/'#6"'`J`3'2%5'eJZ3'523/J

K"'62:"'-*%/$5"."5'#6"'#)*'4*/$#$*%/'/8&&"/#"5'+*.'#6"'523'S'2<'2'/$%8*8/'-8.:"'*%'#6"'B'/$5"'*+'#6"':299"?0'*.'(<'
3*:$%&'#6"'523'-Jae3'(2->'84/#."23J''N"+*."'&$:$%&'2':$")0'it is essential that detailed plans of these options be 
provided, showing trees that would be lostJ''K"')*895'#6"%'9$>"'2&2$%'#*':$")'#6"/"'*4#$*%/'*%'/$#"0'2/'*4#$*%'(<')2/'
%*#'-*%/$5"."5'2#'#6"'92/#'/$#"':$/$#J

We initially favour Option a), but only if it can be designed not to endanger the two hybrid black poplars and 
hornbeams.''V6$/'*4#$*%')*895'6*95'3*."'M**5')2#".'#62%'*4#$*%'(<J'

\+'W4#$*%'(<'$/'-*%/#.8-#"50')"'4."/83"'#6"'*2>'#62#')*895'("'9*/#'$/'C8/#'$%/$5"'#6"'72#-64$#'+"%-"J''1*)":".0'$#'$/'
"//"%#$29'#62#'2'32#8."'*2>'2#'#6"'#*4'*+'#6"')"/#'/9*4"'%"2.'#6"'72#-64$#'("'."#2$%"50'2/'#6$/'/6*895'/$&%$,-2%#9?'/-.""%'
#6"'%")')*.>/'+.*3'G.?*./'I$"95J''!2%?')$99*)/'*%'#6"'72#-64$#'(*8%52.?'*%'#6"'"2/#'/$5"'32?'("'9*/#0'E'#6"."'/6*895'("'
."492-"3"%#'492%#$%&'*%'#6"'523'#*"J''

K"'%*#"'*%'4`b'#62#'2%'25:2%#2&"'*+'W4#$*%'(<'244"2./'#*'("'#62#'#6"'72#-64$#'$%+.2/#.8-#8."'-*895'("'."(8$9#'2%5'
$34.*:"50')$#6'4*#"%#$29'+*.'-."2#$*%'*+'2')"#92%5'62($#2#'84/#."23J''\+'#6$/'$/'5"/$.2(9"0')"'/8&&"/#'#62#'$#'-*895'("'-2..$"5'
*8#'$.."/4"-#$:"'*+'#6"'4*/$#$*%'*+'#6"'%")'523

W4#$*%'(<'*%'#6"'%*.#6'/$5"')$99'/#*."'9"//')2#".'#62%'*4#$*%'2<J''G9"2/"'."E-29-892#"'/#*.2&"':*983"/0'2%5'$%5$-2#"')62#'
25C8/#3"%#/'/6*895'("'325"'#*'#6$/'2%5'*#6".'523'6"$&6#/'#*'-*34"%/2#"J

@/'#6$/'523'$/'2'^5.?T'5230')"'4."/83"'#62#'/6.8(/'2%5'(8/6"/'-2%'("'492%#"5'*%'#6"'/9*4"/J''G9"2/"'-*%,.3J''\+'#6"'
/9*4"/'2."'$%')**592%50'#6"%')"')*895')2%#'(8/6"/'+*.'/-.""%$%&J''\+'#6"'/9*4"'+2-"/'&.2//92%50'#6"%')"')$/6'#*'.":$")'*%'
/$#"

\#'$/'4*//$(9"'#*'$%-."2/"'#6"'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'523'#*'."#2$%'#6"'"Y#.2'`[33'
)6$-6'$/'#6"'-8.."%#'3*5"99"5'6"$&6#'*+'*:".#*44$%&'*:".'#6"'/4$99)2?J

V6"'4*//$(9"'523'4*/$#$*%/')$99'("'."5.2)%'*%'#6"',%29$/"5'#*4*&.246$-29'
/8.:"?'2%5'#.""'/8.:"?'492%')6"%'#6$/' $/'2:2$92(9"'2%5'2'3*."'5"#2$9"5'
2//"//3"%#'*+'#.""'9*//')$99'#6"%'("'4*//$(9"J

K"')$99'/**%'("'2(9"'#*'-*%,.3'$+'2'/$%8*8/'.*8#"'2:*$5$%&'#6"/"'42.#$-892.'
#.""/'$/'4*//$(9"J'\+'%*#0'#6"'4*/$#$*%'*+'#6"'523'+8.#6".'84/#."23';*:".'
#6"'-8.."%#'9*-2#$*%'*+'#6"'-2#-64$#<')$99'("'3*5"99"5J'1*)":".0'$#' $/'%*#'
2%#$-$42#"5' #62#' #6"' ."58-#$*%' $%' /#*.2&"'-242-$#?')$99'("' /$&%$,-2%#0' /*'
#6"'#.""'9*//'2%5'O82%#$#$"/'2."'9$>"9?'#*'("'#6"'5"#".3$%$%&'-.$#".$2')6"%'
5"-$5$%&'*%'#6"'"Y2-#'523'9*-2#$*%J

B*3"'."492-"3"%#'492%#$%&')$99'("'4*//$(9"'*%'#6"'84/#."23'#*"'*+'#6"'
5230'2)2?'+.*3'#6"'-"%#.29'-*."J

V6$/' 4*$%#' $/' %*#"50' 29#6*8&6' #6"."' 32?' ("' -*/#' -*%/$5".2#$*%/' $+' #6"'
-2#-64$#'$/'."3*:"5')6$9"'("$%&'*8#/$5"'*+'2'523'+**#4.$%#J

K"')$99' -6"->' #6"' $342-#' *%' /#*.2&"' :*983"/' 2#' *8#9$%"' 5"/$&%' /#2&"0'
29#6*8&6'$#'$/'%*#'#6*8&6#'#62#'#6"'$342-#'*+'3*:$%&'#6"'523'84/#."23'
)$99'("'&."2#J

V6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".'62/'25:$/"5' #62#'/*3"'492%#$%&' $/'299*)2(9"'*%' #6"'
9*)".'42.#'*+'#6"'84/#."23'/9*4"'*+'#6"'5230'$%'#6"'+*.3'*+'(8/6"/'2%5'
/6.8(/')$#6'&24/'("#)""%' #*'299*)' $%/4"-#$*%'*+' #6"'/8.+2-"'-*%5$#$*%J'
N*#6'/9*4"/')*895'+2-"')**592%5J

P
age 212



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
39

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]ib Mixed Bathing Pond
Options K, I and M indicate that two plane trees may be lost

#7)Q6;14*&6()@)J#7()(6;<))V8)*+24)'#44)5#,'()?&)"&(,5&()*#)#7':)#7&)*"&&)?:)275"&6427-)*+&)/##()4*#"6-&)6*)
the Mixed Pond more than proposed, then we would support this option.''V6$/'/6*.#'523'$/'29."25?'2%'2.#$,-$29'
9**>$%&'-28/")2?')$#6'/#""4'5"/-"%#/'*%#*'$#'2#'(*#6'"%5/0'2%5'.2$/$%&'$#'/$&%$,-2%#9?'/6*895'("'/$349"J''1*)":".0'#6"'>"?'
$//8"/'#*'-*%/$5".'$%-985"kE

!" 4"5"/#.$2%/'*%'#6"'-28/")2?'/6*895'/#$99'("'2(9"'#*':$")'#6"')2#".'*%'#6$/'4*%5'2%5'1234/#"25'=*'a'4*%5'2#'#6"'
/23"'#$3"0')6$-6'$349$"/'.2$/$%&'#6"'-."/#'.*25'#*'"%2(9"'*%"'#*'9**>'%*.#6'*:".'#6"'-."/#'*+'#6"'%")'523')6$-6'
)*895'("'(8$9#')$#6$%'#6"'!$Y"5'G*%50'/$3$92.9?'#*'#6"'4.*4*/"5'N*2#'G*%5'523

!" 9*//'*+'#6"'&9$34/"'*+')2#".'*+'#6"'!$Y"5'G*%5')6"%':$")"5'+.*3'1234/#"25'=*'a'G*%5'-28/")2?J''1*)":".0'#6$/'
&9$34/"')$99'("'9*/#'$+'#6"'523'$/'.2$/"5'9"//'#62%']ca30'/*'2'&."2#".'.2$/$%&')*895'%*#'2++"-#'#6$/'2/4"-#J

!" V6"'"++"-#'*+'#6"'.2$/"5'523')6"%':$")"5'+.*3'#6"'/)$33$%&'"%-9*/8."0'29#6*8&6')"'4."/83"'$#'-*895'62:"'/*3"'
/6.8(/0'2%5'2')$95M*)".'/""5'3$YJ''K"'%*#"'+.*3'#6"'I9*)-62.#'o4]ap'#62#']Je3'.2$/$%&'$/'/8&&"/#"5')$#6*8#'
O829$,-2#$*%0'(8#'2'aJ[3'.2$/$%&'$/'%*#'4."+".."5'(?'/*3"'/#2>"6*95"./J''

R9#$32#"9?0'#6"'23*8%#'#6"'523'$/'.2$/"5'32?'("'2'(292%-"'("#)""%'/2:$%&'*%"'492%"'#.""/'*%'1234/#"25'=*'a'2%5'#6"'
+""9$%&/'*+'#6"'/)$33"./'."'2'.2$/"5'523'#*'#6"'/*8#6J''V*'32>"'#6$/'5"-$/$*%0')"'%""5'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'6*)'3*."')2#".'
/#*.2&"'2#'#6"'!$Y"5'G*%5'3$&6#'$%M8"%-"'9*//'*+'492%"'#.""/'*%'=*'a'523J

1*)":".0'2//83$%&'#6"'/4$99)2?'$/'5"/$&%"5'+*.'G!I'o2/'*%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%p0'#6"%'$+'#6"'/4$99)2?'$/'."E5"/$&%"5'#*'
5$/-62.&"'#6"']k][0[[['?"2.'M**5'*%9?0')$#6'#6"'/8.498/'G!I')2#".'("$%&'299*)"5'#*'*:".#*4'#6"'-."/#0'#6$/'3$&6#'."58-"'
#6"'.2$/$%&'(?'244.*Y']30'("$%&'#6"'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?J''G9"2/"'."+".'#*'*8.'-*33"%#/'."'#6"'N*2#$%&'G*%50'-92.$+?'2%5'
-*%,.3J''

\+'#6$/'*4#$*%'$/'/"9"-#"50'#6"%'#6"')6*9"'523'32?'62:"'#*'("'."$%+*.-"5'#*'#2>"'*:".#*44$%&J''V6$/'/6*895'("':".?'/$349"0'
2/'#6"'/9*4"/'2."'/6*.#0'2%5'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'$/'29."25?'8%$+*.3'&.2//'2%5'62/'%*'#.""/'29*%&'$#/'-.$#$-29'
9"%&#6J''@9/*0'#6$/'523'$/'#6"'/"-*%5'3*/#'.*(8/#'523'*%'#6"'1"2#6'o2+#".'#6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'523pJ''V6$/'*4#$*%'32?'
#6"."+*."'"%2(9"'3*."')2#".'#*'("'/#*."5')$#6*8#'+8.#6".'.2$/$%&'#6"'523

K$99'#6"'4*%5'("'5."5&"50'2/'$#'$/':".?'/6299*)0'42.#$-892.9?'29*%&'#6"')6*9"'*+'#6"')"/#'(2%>d

\%'2%?'-*%,&8.2#$*%'*+'2'a3'.2$/$%&0' #6"'-28/")2?'.*25'/8.+2-"')*895'
("'.2$/"50'/*'#62#'4"5"/#.$2%/')$99'62:"'2'-9"2.':$")'*+'#6"'4*%5/'*%'(*#6'
/$5"/J

V6$/'$/'%*#"5J'

V6$/'244"2./'#*'("'#6"'>"?'$//8"'+*.'32%?'/#2>"6*95"./'2%5')"'2."'9**>$%&'
2#'5$++"."%#'5"/$&%/'+*.'.2$/$%&'#6"'523'a30'"&')$#6'2']3'6$&6')299'2(*:"'
]3' *+' "2.#6' "3(2%>3"%#' 2(*:"' #6"' "Y$/#$%&' -28/")2?' 9":"9J' 'K"' 2."'
2$3$%&'#*'$%-985"'/*3"'-.*//'/"-#$*%'/>"#-6"/'*+'#6"/"'*4#$*%/'$%'#6"'%"Y#'
."4*.#J

V6"'*4#$*%/'M*)'-62.#'-2%'("'23"%5"5'#*'/#2#"'#62#'a'#.""/'2."'"Y4"-#"5'
#*'("'9*/#'2#'1234/#"25'=*Ja'$%'W4#$*%'!0''(8#']'492%"'#.""')*895'("'9*/#'
$%'W4#$*%'G0'#6"'%")'*4#$*%'$%#.*58-"5'2#'#6"']`th'B"4#"3(".')*.>/6*4J

V6"."'$/'/-*4"'#*')$5"%'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'2#'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'G*%50')6$-6'
32?'299*)'#6"'844".'.2$/"5'-."/#'"$#6".'/$5"'#*'("'9*)"."5J'1*)":".0'#6"'
/4$99)2?'-."/#'9":"9'$/'-8.."%#9?'*%9?'j[[33'("9*)'#6"'844".'-."/#'9":"90'
/*'#6"'%"#'."58-#$*%'$%'#6"'844".'.2$/"5'/"-#$*%'-*895'*%9?'("'("#)""%'['
2%5'j[[33J

@&.""5'#62#'3*/#'*+'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'-*895'("'."$%+*.-"50'"Y-"4#'+*.'
#6"'#)*'32#8."'#.""/'2#'#6"')"/#'"%5';*%'#6"'523'$#/"9+<'2%5'#6"'92.&"'
:"#".2%'*2>'2#'#6"'"2/#'"%5')6$-6')*895'("'2++"-#"5J

V6"."'2."'5$/-8//$*%/'2(*8#'#6"'4*//$($9$#?'*+'5."5&$%&'#6"'84/#."23'"%5J'
V6"'4*%5'$/'*%"'*+'#6"'6$&6"/#'4.$*.$#?'4*%5/'+*.'5"E/$9#$%&J

P
age 213



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

40

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]b[ Hampstead No 2 Pond

1. Options K, I and M indicate that two plane trees may be lost on this dam.  If this loss could be reduced to 
#7':)#7&)*"&&))?:)275"&6427-)*+&)/##()4*#"6-&)6*)*+24)1#7(9)*+&7)0&)0#,'()4,11#"*)*+24)#1*2#79)?,*)64)6)
last resort only if necessary, after our other suggestions have been adopted.  

K"'%*#"'#62#'12?-*->'4.*4*/"5'#*'.2$/"'#6"'-."/#'(?']J[30'2%5'7*9:$%'2%5'!*&&.$5&"0'H2%5/-24"'@.-6$#"-#/0'/8&&"/#"5'
$%'=*:'a[]['#62#'*%"'-*895'."492-"'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'+"%-"'o4*/#/'b[[33'6$&6p')$#6'2'(8##."//"5')299']3'6$&6J''V6$/')$99'
.2$/"'#6"'9":"9'*+'#6"'523')$#6'3$%$383'$342-#'*%'#.""'.**#/J''@--"//'-*895'("'4.*:$5"5'#*'#6"',/6".3"%T/'42#6'2#'#6"'
)2#"./'"5&"J''V6$/'*4#$*%'3$&6#'-28/"'M**5')2#".'#*'"%#".'#6"'9*)"/#'42.#'*+'#6"'&2.5"%/'*+'/*3"'6*8/"/'$%'B*8#6'
1$99'G2.>0'(8#'$+'/*0'#6$/')*895'("'(.$"M?'58.$%&'"Y-"4#$*%299?'.2."'"Y#."3"'M**5'":"%#/0'2%5'#6"'6*8/"/'/6*895'%*#'("'
2++"-#"5J''V6$/'/8&&"/#$*%')*895'."O8$."':".?'-2."+89'92%5/-24$%&'/*'2/'%*#'#*'("'$%#.8/$:"')6"%':$")"5'+.*3'#6"'%*.#6J''
V6"'42#6'32?'62:"'#*'("'.2$/"50'2%5'#6"')299'32?'%""5'#*'("'/-.""%"5')$#6':"&"#2#$*%'*%'#6"'%*.#6'/$5"J''\%'*.5".'#*'
2//"//'#6$/'*4#$*%0'49"2/"'4.*:$5"'5"#2$9/'*%')6"#6".'/#*.2&"'2#'#6$/'4*%5')*895'("'("%",-$29J''

aJ' K"'62:"'-*%/$5"."5'#6"'*4#$*%/'*+'/4$99)2?/':"./8/'-89:".#/J''G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'5"#2$9/'*+'?*8.'$%:"/#$&2#$*%'*+'#6"'
4*//$($9$#?'*+'/49$##$%&'84'#6"'/4$99)2?/'#*'.8%'("#)""%'#6"'#.""/J''1*)":".0')"'$%$#$299?'+2:*8.'-89:".#/0'#*'("'/$#"5'2/'+2.'
)"/#'2/'4*//$(9"J

jJ' r*8.'U$")'G*$%#'j'o42&"'eap'/6*)/'#)*'#.""/')*895'("'9*/#J''\+'#6"'#.""'*%'#6"'"2/#'$/'."3*:"50'#6"%'#6"'P*?29'I.""'
1*/4$#29')$99'("-*3"':$/$(9"'#6.*8&6'#6"'&24')6"%':$")"5'+.*3'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'!$Y"5'G*%5'-28/")2?0'38-6'
+8.#6".')"/#'#62%'U$")'G*$%#'`')6$-6'$/'+.*3'#6"'"2/#'"%5'*+'#6"'-28/")2?J''1*)":".0'$+'*%9?'#6"'#.""'*%'#6"')"/#'
$/'."3*:"50'#6"%'#6"'6*/4$#29')$99'%*#'("':$/$(9"'2/'#6"'&24')$99'("'/-.""%"5'(?'#.""/'*:".62%&$%&'#6"')"/#'(2%>'*+'
1234/#"25'=*'a'4*%5J''K"'#6"."+*."'8.&"'#62#'*%9?'#6"')"/#'#.""'("'."3*:"5J

`J' K"'#6"."+*."'O8".?'$+'#6"')$5"'(8#'/6299*)'(*Y'-89:".#'-*895'("'-*%/#.8-#"5')$#6'2'#24".'$%'492%'#*'+*.3'2'%2..*)')2$/#'
(8#'5""4".'/"-#$*%'2/'$#'42//"/'("#)""%'#6"'#.""/'/*'#62#'*%9?'#6"')"/#'#.""'%""5'("'."3*:"5J

eJ' K"'29/*'6*4"'#62#'3*."'/#*.2&"'2#'#6"'72#-64$#0'!$Y"5'G*%5'2%5'1234/#"25'=*'a'4*%50')6"%'-*3($%"50'3$&6#'."/89#'
$%'#6"'."58-#$*%'*+'#6"'%83(".'*+'j3')$5"'-89:".#'#*'#)*0')6$-6'4."/832(9?')$99'62:"'2')$5#6'*+'ZJe3J''\+'/*0')"'
/8&&"/#'#62#'*%9?'*%"'492%"'%""5'("'9*/#0'2/'#6"?'2."'2#'i3'-"%#."/

ZJ' \+'#)*'#.""/')$99'/#$99'("'9*/#')$#6'/6299*)'-89:".#/0')"'O8".?'$+'2'9"##".(*Y'5.*4'-89:".#0')$#6'2'9*)'9":"9'#6.8/#'(*."5'*.'
#8%%"99"5'-89:".#'-*895'("'-*%/#.8-#"5'("9*)'#6"'#.""'.**#/0'#*'/2:"'*%"'*.'(*#6'*+'#6"'#.""/'4.*4*/"5'+*.'+"99$%&')$#6'
/6299*)'-89:".#/

gJ' K"'%*#"'/8&&"/#$*%'+*.'2%'$/92%5'o4eipJ''K"')*895'9$>"'#*'3""#'*%'/$#"'#*'5$/-8//'5"#2$9/'2%5'42.#$-892.9?'#6"'/$h"'*+'
2%?'4.*4*/29/

@' %")' *4#$*%0'W4#$*%' G0' 62/' (""%' $%#.*58-"5' #*' $%:"/#$&2#"')6"#6".' 2'
/3299'23*8%#'*+'.2$/$%&'2#'1234/#"25'=*Ja'-2%'."58-"'#6"')$5#6'*+'#6"'
(*Y' -89:".#' /4$99)2?' ' $%' *.5".' #*' ."58-"' #6"'492%"' #.""' 9*//' 5*)%' #*' ]'
;)6"%'-*3($%"5')$#6'2'a3'.2$/$%&'2#'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'G*%5<J''V6"'523'-."/#'
-*895'("'.2$/"5'(?'[Je3'(?'2'/6*.#')299'/$#82#"5'2(*:"'#6"'/6""#'4$9"/'*%'
#6"'84/#."23'+2-"J'V6"'#*4'*+'#6$/')299'$/'("9*)'#6"'6$&6"/#'42.#'*+'#6"'
523'2#'#6"'"2/#".%'2(8#3"%#0'(8#')"')$99'-6"->'#62#'#6"'#6."/6*95'9":"9/'
*+'#6"'6*8/"/'#*'#6"'"2/#'2."'%*#'("9*)'#6$/'9":"9J'

V6"'3*5"99$%&'*+'#6"'*4#$*%'$%5$-2#"5'#62#'#6"'G!I'4"2>')2#".'9":"9/')"."'
("9*)'#6"'.2$/"5'-."/#')299'9":"90'/*'#6$/'*4#$*%'$/'%*)'*%'#6"'/6*.#9$/#J

W4#$*%'G'62/'(""%'4."/"%#"5'2#'#6"']`th'B"4#"3(".')*.>/6*4'2%5')$99'("'
5"/-.$("5'+8.#6".'$%'#6"'%"Y#'."4*.#J

V6"' *4"%' -62%%"9' /4$99)2?/' )"."' 3*5"99"5' "Y#"%/$:"9?0' (8#' #6"?' )"."'
"$#6".'#**')$5"';$+'#.""/'2."'-9"2."5<'*.')*895'/4."25'#6"'.$/>'*+'5232&"'
#*'3*."'#.""/'":"%'$+'%*%"'2."'+"99"50'(?'*:".9*25$%&'#6"'/#.8-#8.29'.**#/'
)$#6'/*$9'*.'."$%+*.-"3"%#'32#".$29/J
@&.""5'#62#'#6"'$5"29'9*-2#$*%'*+'#6"'-89:".#'/4$99)2?')*895'("'2#'#6"')"/#'
"%5'*+'#6"'523J

@&.""5'#62#'$+']'#.""'/6*895'("'."3*:"5'#6"%'#6"')"/#".%'#.""')*895'("'
#6"'("##".'*%"J

V6"' %2..*)"/#' 4*$%#' $%' #6"' -89:".#' )*895' -*%/#.2$%' #6"' M*)' /*' )*895'
-28/"')2#".' #*' (2->'84'3*."'84/#."23' $%' #6"'4*%5J'@#' *8#9$%"' 5"/$&%'
/#2&"')"')$99'9**>'2#'3*."')2?/'#*'."58-"'#6"'-89:".#')$5#60'$%-985$%&'#6"'
32Y$3$h$%&'*+'/#*.2&"'2#'72#-64$#'523'2/'5"/-.$("5'2(*:"J

V6$/'/-"%2.$*'62/'(""%'3*5"99"5'2/' #6"'%")'W4#$*%'G0')6$-6'62/'(""%'
+*8%5'#*')*.>')$#6'2'e3')$5"'Y'`[[33'6$&6'(*Y'-89:".#J

V6"'G2%"9'D%&$%"".'62/'"Y4."//"5'-*%-".%/' #62#'2' #6.8/#'(*."5'-89:".#'
-*895' -28/"' 5232&"' #*' #6"' 523' (?' -."2#$%&' 4."+"."%#$29' ' M*)' 42#6/'
2.*8%5'#6"'*8#/$5"'*+'#6"'#8%%"9J''V6"'523'-."/#'9":"9'$/'2.*8%5'e[[33'
2(*:"'#?4$-29')2#".'9":"9'/*'2%?'4$4"')*895'("'/3299'2%5')*895'62:"'#*'
5.*4':".?'/62.49?'#*'&"#'("9*)'#6"'#.""'.**#/J''

@'/$#"'3""#$%&'-2%'("'2..2%&"5J

P
age 214



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
41

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Jeremy Wright, 
H&HS on Shortlist 
Options Report

24 Aug 2013

]b] Hampstead No 1 Pond

K"'4."/83"'#6"'*8#M*)')$99'("'/$#"5'2#'#6"'"Y#."3"'"2/#'"%5'*+'#6"'523J''\+'/*0'#6"%'#6$/'/6*895'("'-*%-"29"5'+.*3'
#6"'+**#42#6'*%'#6"'/*8#6'(?'#6"'("9#'*+'#.""/'2%5'/6.8(/'2#'#6"'523'#*"0')6$-6')$5"%/'*8#'2#'#6"'"2/#'"%5J''K"')*895'
#6"."+*."'4."+".'2'/4$99)2?')6$-6'/6*895'("'9"//'$%#.8/$:"')6"%':$")"5'+.*3'84/#."23J''1*)":".0')"'/8&&"/#'#62#'#6$/'
/6*895'("'325"'2/'%2..*)'2/'4*//$(9"0'2%5'O8".?'$+'#6"'/$5"'/9*4"/'-*895'("'325"'/#""4".0'2/'2--"//'#*'#6"'-."/#'$/'4.$:2#"

K"'%*#"'/8&&"/#$*%'+*.'2%'$/92%5'o4ebpJ''K"')*895'9$>"'#*'3""#'*%'/$#"'#*'5$/-8//'5"#2$9/'2%5'42.#$-892.9?'#6"'/$h"'*+'2%?'
4.*4*/29/J

L7.2"#7;&7*6')A676-&;&7*)C1*2#74)=1SENSH>

K"'%*#"'#6"'"Y#"%/$:"'#**9(*Y'*+'*4#$*%/'+*.'4*%50')2#".'O829$#?'2%5'"-*9*&?0'(8#'+""9'#62#')"'-2%%*#'*++".'2%?'*4$%$*%/'
2#'#6$/'/#2&"J''It is essential that ":".?'4*%5'$/':$/$#"5'2%5'5"#2$9"5'5$/-8//$*%/'6"95'*%'/$#"'("+*."'2%?'*4#$*%/'-2%'("'
/844*.#"5'*.'5$/-2.5"5J

V6$/'$/'-*.."-#J''V6"'4."+".."5'*4#$*%'2#'1234/#"25'=*J]'4*%5'$/'2'%2..*)'
(*Y'-89:".#')6$-6')"'("9$":"'-*895'("'/-.""%"5'(?'9*-2#$%&'$#'2#'#6"'"2/#'
"%5'*+'#6"'523J

@'/$#"'3""#$%&')$#6'*8.'"%:$.*%3"%#29'2%5'523'"%&$%""./'-2%'("'2..2%&"5J

Michael 
Hammerson, 
Highgate Society

on Shortlist Options 
Report

26 Aug 2013

]ba  Western “roadway”J'V6"'42#6)2?c.*25'29*%&'#6"')"/#".%'/$5"'*+'#6"'(*2#$%&'4*%5'$/'*%"'*+'#6"'1"2#6T/'32C*.'
#6*.*8&6+2."/0'+*.'4"*49"'2%5'1"2#6':"6$-9"/J'\#'$/'+2.'+.*3'-9"2.'6*)'$#')$99'("'."-*%,&8."5'2%5')62#')$99'("'$#/'
/8(/"O8"%#'."92#$*%/6$4')$#6'2%?'%")'"5&"'#*'#6"'4*%5J'F.2)$%&/'2."'."O8$."5J

U$/829$/2#$*%/')"."'4."/"%#"5'2#' #6"'B#2>"6*95".'K*.>/6*4'*%' #6"']`th 
B"4#"3(".'+*.'-*%/$5".2#$*%JP

age 215



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

42

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Marc Hutchinson,

Highgate Men’s 
Pond Association 
on Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

]bj

]b`

]be

]bZ

]bg

]bi

]bb

200

K"'62:"'2//83"5'S'(8#'2/>'+*.'#6$/'#*'("'-*%,.3"5'S'#62#'#6$/'.2$/"5'42#6')$99'%*#'&*'84'2%5'*:".'*.'2.*8%5'#6"'-."/-"%#E
/624"5')"/#)2.5'-*%#$%82#$*%'*+'#6"'.2$/"5'NG'523J

Men’s Bathing Pond
]J' \/'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'*%'#6"'523'*+'#6"'!G'#*'("'2'62.5'/4$99)2?'*%')6$-6'#.""/'-2%%*#'&.*)d''

aJ' \/'$#'#6"'-2/"'#62#'2'(.*25".'/4$99)2?'*%'#6"'!"%T/'G*%5')*895'."/89#'$%'2'9"//".'.2$/"5'523'*%'#6"'!"%T/'G*%5'
)6$9"'."#2$%$%&'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'#.""/d

K"')*895'9$>"'#*'/""'2'492%'2%5'4$-#8."'/6*)$%&'#6"'."#8.%/'*%'#6"'"2/#'2%5')"/#'*+'#6"'!G'523'2/')"99'2/'#6"'+899'l(.$->m'
)299J''K6?'$/'(.$->'-6*/"%d''V*'-*%-"29'-*%-."#"d

W%'42&"'ab'*+'#6"'P"4*.#'#6"."'$/'2'."+"."%-"'#*'#6"'523'/9*4"'%""5$%&'#*'("']k]aJ''K"'5*'%*#'8%5"./#2%5'#6"'%""5'+*.'
#6$/'$%'#6"'2(/"%-"'*+'2%'2--"//$(9"'42#6'#*'#6"'#*4'*+'#6"'523J

K$99'$#'("'%"-"//2.?'#*'-9*/"'#6"'!G'+2-$9$#?'$%'*.5".'#*'-*%/#.8-#'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'2%5c*.'.2$/"'#6"'!G'523d''\+'/*0'
)6?d

P"&2.59"//'*+'#6"'2-#829')*.>/'2#'#6"'!G0'$/'$#'$%#"%5"50'$%'2%?'-$.-83/#2%-"/0'#*'8/"'#6"'!G'+2-$9$#?'2/'2%'"%&$%"".$%&'
-*34*8%5'+*.'#6"'/#*.2&"'*+'492%#'*.'32#".$29d

K"'/#$99'-*%/$5".'#62#'$%/8+,-$"%#'#6*8&6#'62/'(""%'&$:"%'#*'#6"'-*%/#.8-#$*%'*+'2'/$5"'-62%%"9')6$-60'32>$%&'#6"'("/#'8/"'
*+'#6"'%2#8.29'-*%#*8./'*+'#6"'1"2#60')*895'-2..?'#6"'"Y-"//')2#".'5*)%'#6"'/$5"'*+'=*J']'2%5'=*J'a'G*%5/'.2#6".'
#62%'#6.*8&6'#6"3J''V6"'-62%%"9/'-*895'("')6"."'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'%*.#6c/*8#6'42#6/'2."';2%5'#6"/"'-*895'."32$%'$%'
8/"'2/'42#6/<'2%5'-."2#$*%'*+'#6"'-62%%"9/')*895'%*#'$%:*9:"'#6"'+"99$%&'*+'#.""/J''K"'2%#$-$42#"'#6"?'3$&6#'("'
244.*Y$32#"9?'Z['3"#."/')$5"'(8#')*895'%*#'%""5'#*'("'"Y-2:2#"5'2/'-62%%"9/J''P2#6".'2'."$%+*.-"5'(8%5'-*895'("'
-*%/#.8-#"5'*%'#6"'4*%5'/$5"'*+'#6"'-62%%"9')$#6'#6"'%2#8.29'/9*4"'*+'G2.9$23"%#'1$99'4.*:$5$%&'#6"'l(8%5m'*%'#6"'
"2/#'/$5"J''F.2$%/'*%'"$#6".'/$5"'*+'#6"'42#6'-*895'5"29')$#6'3$95'M**5$%&J''V6"'."$%+*.-"5'(8%5')*895'4.":"%#'#6"'
)2#".'$%'#6"'-62%%"9'+.*3'M*)$%&'*:".'2%5'$%#*'#6"'4*%5J

P"E.*8#"5'42#6'.*8#"/'62:"'%*#'?"#'(""%'-*%,.3"5'2%5'-2%'("'
5$/-8//"5'2/'42.#'*+'#6"'*%&*$%&'%*%E/#2#8#*.?'-*%/89#2#$*%J

V6"'/4$99)2?')$99'%*#'("'2'62.5'/8.+2-"'(8#'9$%"5')$#6'#*4/*$9'2%5'&.2//J'
B*3"'492%#$%&'-2%'("'-*%/$5"."5'+*.'#6"'42.#/'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?')6$-6'2."'
("?*%5'#6"'5*)%/#."23'#*"'*+'#6"'523/0'(8#'#.""/')$99'%*#'("'492%#"5'
*%'/4$99)2?/'&"%".299?J

=*0'$#'$/'#6"'*#6".')2?'.*8%5J'V6"'9"//".'#6"'.2$/$%&0'#6"')$5".'#6"'
/4$99)2?')*895'62:"'#*'("0'("-28/"'$%-."2/$%&'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'."58-"/'
#6"'*8#M*)'#*'("'.*8#"5'#6.*8&6'2'/4$99)2?'2%5'/*'#6"'/4$99)2?'-2%'("'
."58-"5J

V6"'5"#2$9/'*+'#6"'."#8.%/'*+'#6"'.2$/$%&')299'*%'#6"'!"%T/'G*%5'523'
)$99'("'5":"9*4"5'$%'#6"'*8#9$%"'5"/$&%'462/"J''V6"'-9255$%&'*+'#6"')299'
)*895'("'#*'-*%-"29'2'-*%-."#"'-*."0'(8#'-2%'("'2%?'32#".$29'"&'#$3(".0'
/8(C"-#'#*'2&.""3"%#')$#6'#6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'2%5'/#2>"6*95"./J'

V6"']k]a'/9*4"')*895'("'+*.'#6"'/$5"'/9*4"/'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?'29*%&'#6"'
-."/#'9$%"'*+'#6"'523J''V6"."'$/'2'42#6'*%'#6"'-."/#0'(8#'%*#'2'+*.329$/"5'
*%"0'/*'$#'32?'("'4*//$(9"'#*'C8/#$+?'2'/#""4".'/9*4"J

V6"'4.*4*/"5')*.>/'#*'#6"'523'2#'#6"'!"%T/'G*%5')*895'%*#'."O8$."'
9*)".$%&'*+'#6"')2#".'9":"90'/*'$#'32?'("'4*//$(9"'#*'>""4'42.#'*.'299'*+'
#6"'4*%5'*4"%'58.$%&')*.>/0'(8#'#6$/')$99'("'-*%,.3"5'*%-"'-*%/#.8-#$*%'
462/$%&'$/'492%%"5'(?'#6"'244*$%#"5'-*%/#.8-#*./J

V6$/'62/'%*#'(""%'492%%"50')$#6'*#6".'9*-2#$*%/'"9/")6"."'*%'#6"'1"2#6'
("$%&'-*%/$5"."5'+*.'/$#"'-*34*8%5/J''

V6"'4.*4*/29'*+'2'5.?'5$:"./$*%'-62%%"9'2%5'."$%+*.-"5'(8%5'62/'(""%'
-*%/$5"."5'$%'5"#2$9'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#J

Rob Mitchell,

EGOVRA and 
!"##$%&'()#7)
Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

201 V6"'P"4*.#'/4"-$,"/'#62#'lH"//'/":"."'M**5/'62:"'29/*'(""%'8/"5'#*'2//"//'#6"'/?/#"3'."/4*%/"'#*'"%/8."'#62#'#6"'*4#$*%/'
+*.'42//$%&'#6"'G!I'5*'%*#'"Y2-".(2#"'#6"'M*)/'5*)%/#."23'58.$%&'9"//".'M**5/Jm''K"')*895'9$>"'#*'/""'#6"'."/89#/'*+'#6$/'
)*.>'2/'$#'32?'&*'/*3"')2?'#*'/2#$/+?'8/'#62#'#6"/"'*4#$*%/'5*'%*#'."/89#'$%')*./"'M**5/'2.$/$%&'$%'9*)".'."#8.%'4".$*5/'
#62%'2#'4."/"%#J''\%#8$#$:"9?'#6"'$%-."2/"5'/#*.2&"'$%'#6"'4*%5'/?/#"3'/6*895'."58-"'#6"'4*#"%#$29'*+'M**5$%&0'6*)":".0'#6"'
5"/$&%'#"23'62:"'%*#'(""%'2(9"'#*'-*%,.3'#6$/'+*.'8/J

V6"'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%')*895'("'$%-."2/"5'*%'1$&6&2#"'762$%'#*'
2#'9"2/#'2']k]0[[['?"2.'M**5'":"%#';(*#6'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/<J''W4#$*%/'
+*.'#6"'1234/#"25'762$%'"$#6".'32$%#2$%'#6"'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%'
2#'3$%$383']k]0[[['?"2.'":"%#';W4#$*%'!<'*.'$%-."2/"'$#'#*'2#'9"2/#'
]k][0[[['?"2.';W4#$*%'G<J

P
age 216



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
43

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Fitzroy Park RA 202 @-#829'52#2'+*.'"Y4"-#"5'2##"%82#$*%'5*)%'#6"'-62$%0'4."/"%#"5'2/'n2&"'*+'G!I0'2%5'*#6".']k][[['*.']ke[[['?"2.'M**5/0'$/'
-.$#$-29'$%'C8/#$+?$%&'#6"/"'/$&%$,-2%#')*.>/J

1?5.*&.246/'+*.'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'62:"'(""%'$%-985"5'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'
W4#$*%/'P"4*.#'#*'$998/#.2#"'#6$/'2##"%82#$*%J''V6"/"'6?5.*&.246/'/6*)'
#6"'5$++"."%-"'("#)""%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'4"2>'*8#M*)/'+.*3'#6"'92/#'4*%5'
2%5'#6"'*8#M*)/'+.*3'#6"'92/#'4*%5'/4$99)2?'$%'*%"'*+'#6"'4."+".."5'
*4#$*%/';W4#$*%'`<J''V6$/'*4#$*%')*895'2-6$":"'2'."58-#$*%'$%'*8#M*)/'
$%'2']k][0[[['?"2.'M**5'2%5'2'G!I'M**5J'''@99'*+'#6"'M**5)2#".'$%'2'
]k]0[[['?"2.'M**5'$/'2##"%82#"5';*.'/#*."5<')$#6$%'#6"'4*%5'/?/#"3'$%'
W4#$*%/'`'2%5'Z0'/*'#6"'/4$99)2?')*895'%*#'*4".2#"J''V6"']ke0[[['?"2.'
M**5'62/'%*#'(""%'-29-892#"5J

\%+*.32#$*%'*%'#6"'."58-#$*%'$%':*983"/'("$%&'5$/-62.&"5'+.*3'#6"'92/#'
4*%5';$%'#6"']k][0[[['?"2.'2%5'G!I'":"%#/<')$99'+*99*)'/"42.2#"9?J

Prem Holdaway 203

a[`

205

a[Z

=*)6"."'$/'#6"'-8.."%#'*8#M*)'*+'(*#6'%83(".'*%"'4*%5/'O8*#"5J
D2-6'4*%5'%""5/'#*'("'O8*#"5'$%5$:$58299?J

=*)6"."'$/'#6"'32Y$383'*8#M*)'*+'(*#6'%83(".'*%"'4*%5/'O8*#"5J'@&2$%'"2-6'4*%5'%""5/'#*'("'O8*#"5'$%5$:$58299?J

@99'*4#$*%/'/*'+2.'/""3'#*'("'*%9?'5"/$&%"5'+*.'/#*.$%&')2#".J

K62#'6244"%/'$+'#6"."'$/'2%*#6".']'$%'][0[[['?"2.'/#*.30'#6"'52?'2+#".J'K6"."'$/'#62#')2#".'&*$%&'#*'&*d

K62#'2."'#6"'*4#$*%/'+*.'5"/$&%$%&'#6"'*8#M*)'*+'"2-6'4*%5'#*'$#/'":"%#829'#2.&"#J'V6"'P$:".'V623"/J'B*'#62#'%*'255$#$*%29'
)2#".'$/'/#*."5J

V6"'-242-$#?'*+' #6"'"Y$/#$%&'[J`Z3'5$23"#".'*:".M*)'4$4"'2#'1$&6&2#"'
=*J]'G*%5'62/'(""%'-29-892#"5'2#'[Jb33c/J' 'V6"'*8#M*)' $%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'
/-"%2.$*'4"2>/'2#'*:".']g33c/';$%'2']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#<'2%5'ji33c/'$%'2'
G!I'":"%#0')6$-6'3"2%/'#62#'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"')*895'("'$%/8+,-$"%#'2%5'
M**5)2#".')*895'("'(2->'84'2%5'M*)'*:".'#6"'523J

@#'1234/#"25'=*J]' G*%50' #6"' -242-$#?' *+' #6"' "Y$/#$%&' [Jj]3'5$23"#".'
*:".M*)'4$4"'2#'1234/#"25'=*J]'G*%5'$/'[J`i33c/J''V6"'G!I'":"%#'*8#M*)'
$/'2.*8%5'i33c/')6$-6'2&2$%'3"2%/'#62#'#6"'523')*895'("'*:".#*44"5J

V6"'2(*:"'*:".M*)'-242-$#$"/'2."'"++"-#$:"9?'#6"'32Y$383'*8#M*)'*+'
#6"'=*J]'G*%5/J

V"34*.2.?'255$#$*%29')2#".'/#*.2&"'$/'."O8$."5'#*'-*4"')$#6'#6"'5"/$&%'
M**5J''V6"'4.*4*/29/'29/*'$%-985"'-."/#'."/#*.2#$*%0'%")'/4$99)2?/'"#-J''
\+'#6"'255$#$*%29'/#*.2&"')2/'%*#'$%-985"5'255$#$*%29'"%&$%"".$%&')*.>/'
)*895'("'."O8$."5'2#'299'4*%5/'$%'#6"'-62$%J''K$#6*8#'255$%&'/#*.2&"'
-242-$#?'#*'/*3"'4*%5/'$%'#6"'-62$%0'#6"'/4$99)2?/')*895'62:"'#*'("'
38-6'92.&".'2%5')*895'."O8$."'."3*:29'*+'32%?'3*."'#.""/J

V6"'/4$99)2?/' $%'#6"'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/')*895'("'*:".#*44"5'$+'2'/"-*%5'
92.&"' M**5' *--8.."50' /$%-"' #6"' M**5)2#".' /#*."5' 58.$%&' #6"' ,./#' M**5'
)*895'#2>"'/*3"'52?/'#*'5.2$%'2)2?'$%#*'#6"'/")".'/?/#"3J
1*)":".0'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*0'3*."')2#".')*895'*:".#*4'#6"'523/'$%'
(*#6'#6"',./#'2%5'/"-*%5'M**5J

V6$/'*4#$*%')*895'$%:*9:"'32%?':".?'92.&"'5$23"#".'4$4"/'.8%%$%&'#6.*8&6'
-"%#.29'H*%5*%'/*'$#'8%9$>"9?'#*'("'+"2/$(9"J

David Lewis, 
Protect Our Ponds 
on Shortlist Options 
Report

19 Aug 2013

207 K2#".'Q829$#?

\/'#6$/')2#".'O829$#?'/#2%52.5'-*3489/*.?d'\/'$#'4*//$(9"'#*'*(#2$%'2%'"Y"34#$*%d

DR'(2#6$%&'5$."-#$:"/'2."'-*3489/*.?'$+'(2#6$%&'4*%5/'2."'#*'("'8/"5'2/'
/8-6J

P
age 217



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

44

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Ken Blyth on 
Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

a[i \'23'48hh9"5'(?'#6"'/#2#"3"%#'$%'#6"'/"-#$*%'*+'#6"'B8332.?'2(*8#'@//"//3"%#'*+'F"/$&%'I9**5'#62#0'29#6*8&6'#6"'52#2'
+.*3'#6"'1234/#"25'B-$"%#$,-'B*-$"#?'l4.*:$5"5'2'8/"+89'."-*.5'*+'.2$%+299'*:".'2(*8#'][['?"2./JJJJ$#'$/'%*#'/8$#2(9"'#*'
4.*:$5"'5"/$&%'.2$%+299'5"4#6/'+*.'#6"']'$%'][[['4".$*5'":"%#/'84'#*'#6"'G!I'%""5"5'+*.'#6$/'/#85?'$J"J'84'#*'#6"'][0[[['
?"2.'M**50'2/'#6$/')*895'$%:*9:"'/$&%$,-2%#'"Y#.24*92#$*%'("?*%5'#6"'8/"+89'.2%&"'*+'#6"'.2$%+299'52#2mJ''V6$/'5*"/'%*#'
32>"'-9"2.')6?'#6"'1234/#"25'52#2'2."'-*%/$5"."5'8/"9"//'+*.'/#2#$/#$-29'48.4*/"/0'%*.')62#'52#2'"Y#"%5$%&'*:".'3*." 
#62%'][['?"2./'62:"'$%'+2-#'(""%'8/"5J''\#'$/'%*#'-9"2.'"$#6".')6?'52#2'+.*3'*#6".'42.#/'*+'D%&92%5';*.'"9/")6"."'$%'#6"'
R_'E'2%5'D8.*4"<'2."'#6*8&6#'."9":2%#'#*'1234/#"25'1"2#6J''V6"'."4*.#'(9$%5/'(?'32#6"32#$-29'+*.3892"'2%5'5*"/'%*#'
/2?'"%*8&6'2(*8#'#6"'52#2'#62#'2."'+"5'$%#*'#6"3J'''

B""'3"#6*5*9*&?'$%'G.*(9"3'F",%$#$*%'P"4*.#J

V6"'/#2#"3"%#'4*$%#/'#*'#6"'+2-#'#62#'/#2#$/#$-299?0'#6"'11BB'.2$%+299'
."-*.5'$/'#**'/6*.#'#*'&$:"'2'."9$2(9"'"/#$32#"'*+'92.&"'.2$%+299'":"%#/'*%'
$#/'*)%J''V6"'ID1'FFI'-8.:"/'2."'2:2$92(9"'+*.'#6"'R_')6$-6'299*)/'+*.'
/#2#$/#$-299?'."9$2(9"'"/#$32#"/'*+'.2$%+299'+*.'92.&"'":"%#/'2/'$#'$/'(2/"5'*%'
52#2'+.*3'3*."'#62%'*%"'.2$%'&28&"J'1234/#"25'1"2#6'B-$"%#$,-'B*-$"#?'
.2$%+299'&28&"'$/'9$/#"5'2/'*%"'*+'#6"'.2$%'&28&"/'8/"5'$%'#6"'ID1'FFI'
.2$%+299'3*5"9';11BB'52#2'+.*3']bjjE]bbe'$/'8/"5<J'''V6"'FFI'-8.:"/'
)"'8/"50'2."'#6"."+*."'9$>"9?'#*'$%-*.4*.2#"'11BB'.2$%+299'*(/".:2#$*%/0'
-*349"3"%#"5'(?'*#6".'.2$%'&28&"/'#*'4.*:$5"'2'3*."'/#2#$/#$-299?'
."9$2(9"'"/#$32#"'*+'.2$%+299J''K$#6'."&2.5'#*'52#2'8/"5'$%'#6"'2%29?/$/0'#6"'
ID1'32%829/0'7F/'2%5'."4*.#/'/"#'*8#'299'52#2'8/"5'2%5'299'8%5".9?$%&'
3"#6*5*9*&$"/'2449$"50'$%'2':".?'#.2%/42."%#'32%%".J''V6"'."25".'$/'
."+".."5'#*'#6"'ID1'32%829/'+*.'+8.#6".'$%+*.32#$*%J''

W8.'2//"//3"%#'62/'2449$"5'#6"'F"+.20'I9**5'2%5'."/".:*$.'/2+"#?'
P":$/"5'&8$52%-"'+*.'42%"9'"%&$%""./'#*'-29-892#"'#6"'6?5.*9*&$-29'
$%M*)/'#*'#6"'1234/#"25'1"2#6'4*%5/J'V6$/'$%-985"/'#6"'I9**5'B#85$"/'
P"4*.#';IBP<'2%5'I9**5'D/#$32#$*%'12%5(**>';ID1<'3"#6*5*9*&$"/'+*.'
5".$:$%&'M**5'":"%#'.2$%+299'6?"#*&.246/'2%5'M*)'6?5.*&.246/J'V6"'IBP'
2%5'ID1'32%829/'/"#'*8#'#6"'52#2'8/"5'$%'(*#6'5":"9*4$%&'2%5'2449?$%&'
#6"'3"#6*5*9*&$"/J

P
age 218



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
45

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

West Hill Court RA 
on Shortlist Options 
Report

27 Aug 2013

a[b

210

211

212

213

a]`

K"')*895'9$>"'#*'>%*)')6"#6".'#6"."'62/'(""%'2'/#85?'*+'4.":$*8/'M**5$%&'$%'#6"'2."2d'K"'244."-$2#"'#62#'#6$/')$99'%*#'
6"94'4."5$-#'#6"'+8#8."0'(8#'$#'32?'$%+*.3'/*98#$*%/J'K"'8%5"./#2%50'+*.'$%/#2%-"'#62#'$%25"O82#"'5.2$%2&"'2#'9*)".'9":"9/'
)2/'2%'$34*.#2%#'+2-#*.'$%'#6"']bge'M**5/J'

K"'2."'29/*'-*%-".%"5'#62#'#6"."'32?'%*#'("'25"O82#"'-*992(*.2#$*%'("#)""%'#6"'2&"%-$"/'."/4*%/$(9"'+*.'M**5'$//8"/J'
7*895'$#'("'#62#'/#.*%&".'C*$%#')*.>'("#)""%'V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%0'V623"/'K2#".'2%5'7235"%'7*8%-$9'3$&6#'"%2(9"'2'
3*5$,-2#$*%'*+'#6"')*.>/d'

V6"'7$#?T/'$%#"%#$*%'244"2./'#*'("'/$349?'#*'$%-."2/"'#6"'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'523/'/*'+2.'#62#'38-6'3*."')2#".'$/'/#*."5'2%5'
#6"."'$/'9"//'.$/>'*+'*:"./4$99J'W8.'."/$5"%#/'62:"'.2$/"5'2'%83(".'*+'O8"/#$*%/'$%'#6$/'."/4"-#k'

]J' 1*)'38-6'$/'^6$&6'"%*8&6Td

aJ' K62#'$/'2'^/2+"':*983"T'*+')2#".'#*'/#*."d

jJ' \/'$#'%*#'#6"'-2/"'#62#'$%-."2/$%&'#6"'6"$&6#'*+'#6"'523'3"2%/'#62#'$+'#6"'523'5$5'(."2-60'#6"':*983"'*+')2#".'
."9"2/"5')*895'("'92.&".'2%5'-28/"'3*."'5232&"d

`J' L$:"%'#62#'%*(*5?'-*895'&82.2%#""'#6"'.2$%+299'$%'2']'$%'][0[[['5$/2/#".0'/6*895'%*#'#6"'4.$*.$#?'("'#*'32%2&"'
#6"')2#".'#62#')*8950'*.'5*"/0'/4$99'*:".d'\%'/*3"'*#6".'2."2/')"'&2#6".'#62#'#6"."'2."'%*)'^/834/T0'5"5$-2#"5'
)"#92%5/'*.'M**5'492$%/'#*'2(/*.('"Y#.2')2#".'$%'"Y2-#9?'#6"')2?'#62#'4"*49"'$%'#6"'42/#'32%2&"5':2.$2#$*%/'
$%')"2#6".J'V6"."'$/'/*3"'."-*&%$#$*%'*+'#6$/'$%'#6"'."4*.#')$#6'#6"'8/"'*+'/4$99)2?/'"#-'E'-*895'%*#'3*."'8/"'
*+'#6"/"'/?/#"3/'("'325"'*%'#6"'1"2#6d'7."2#$%&'3*."')"#92%5/'62/'$34.*:"5'#6"'/$#82#$*%'$%'32%?'2."2/'*+'
B8//"Y0'4.*#"-#"5'6*8/"/0'-.*4/'2%5'9$:"/#*->'+.*3'/".$*8/'M**5$%&'2%5'625'#6"'255"5'(*%8/'*+'$34.*:$%&'#6"'
.2%&"'*+')$959$+"'2%5'492%#/'$%'#6"'2."2/'2++"-#"5J

G.":$*8/'/#85$"/'8/"5'$%'#6"'@#>$%/')*.>k
v' 1?5.*9*&$-29' 2%5' K2#".' Q829$#?' \%:"/#$&2#$*%' 2%5' !*5"99$%&' *+' #6"'
1234/#"25'1"2#6'H2>"'762$%/'2%5'@//*-$2#"5'72#-63"%#/0'12?-*->'
@//*-$2#"/'H$3$#"50'a[[Zq

v' 1?5.*9*&?' \34.*:"3"%#/' F"#2$9"5' D:2982#$*%' G.*-"//' ;1$FDG<k'
1?5.*9*&?'2%5'B#.8-#8."'1?5.289$-/0'12?-*->'@//*-$2#"/'H$3$#"50'a[][q

v' 1234/#"25' 1"2#6' F23' jF' V*4*&.246$-' B8.:"?0' G9*)32%' 7.2:"%0'
a[][q

v' 12?-*->'1234/#"25'1"2#6'B#"992'3*5"90'a[][q'2%5
v' 1234/#"25'1"2#6' P"/".:*$./' W%EB$#"' D3".&"%-?' P"/4*%/"' G92%' +*.'
P"/".:*$.'F23'\%-$5"%#/J'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%0'=*:"3(".'a[]aJ

K"' 62:"' %*#' 3*5"99"5' 4.":$*8/' M**5' ":"%#/' *%' #6"' 1"2#6' 2/' 42.#' *+'
*8.'/#85?'2/0'#6"."'$/':".?'9$##9"'-29$(.2#$*%'52#2'+*.'4.":$*8/'*#6".'#62%'
)6"#6".'523/'*:".#*44"5'*.'%*#J' '@9/*0' #6"' +*-8/'*+'*8.')*.>')2/'*%'
5".$:$%&'":"%#/'*+'5$++"."%#'."#8.%'4".$*5/'#*'2//"//'#6"'*:".#*44$%&'.$/>'
*+'#6"'523/'8%5".'#6"/"'#?4"/'*+'":"%#/J'''K"'62:"'8%5".#2>"%'2'.":$")'
*+'*#6".'/#85$"/')6$-6'62:"'$%:"/#$&2#"5'4.":$*8/'M**5'":"%#/J

V623"/'K2#".'2."'%*#'."/4*%/$(9"'+*.'#6"'/2+"#?'*+'#6"'523/'*.'+*.'#6"'
)2#".'%*.3299?'/#*."5'$%'#6"'523/'#62#'-*895'("'(."2-6"5J
V6"$.'/")".'/?/#"3/'2."'*%9?'5"/$&%"5'+*.'/3299'M**5'":"%#/'84'#*'
2.*8%5'2']kge'?"2.'."#8.%'4".$*5'":"%#J''B#2%52.5'&8$52%-"'*%'523'
/2+"#?'."O8$."/'#62#'523/'-2%'/2+"9?'42//'M**5)2#".'+.*3'2'G!I0')$#6'
/4$99)2?/'2(9"'#*'42//'#6"'M**5)2#".'+.*3'2']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#0'/*'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'/")".'/?/#"3'-2%%*#'2--*33*52#"'#6"/"'>$%5/'*+'M**5/J
V6"."'$/'%*'*44*.#8%$#?'#*'4.*:$5"'/8+,-$"%#'/#*.2&"'*+'#6"'"Y-"//'
M**5)2#".'5*)%/#."23'*+'#6"'4*%5/'$%'7235"%J

1. B#*.2&"'-242-$#?'62/'(""%'255"5'#*'/*3"'*+'#6"'523/'8%#$9'#6"'
5"/$&%'M**5';#6"'G!I<'$/'/2+"9?'42//"5')$#6*8#'*:".#*44$%&'#6"'
523'-."/#'2/'#6$/'-*895'-28/"'523'+2$98."J

2. @'/2+"':*983"')*895'("'#6"'23*8%#'#62#'9"2:"/'2'/3299'"%*8&6'
"Y-"//'M**5)2#".'#62#'-2%'("'42//"5'#6.*8&6'#6"'/4$99)2?J

3. N?'$34.*:$%&'#6"'/2+"#?'*+'#6"'523/')$#6'25"O82#"'/4$99)2?/'2%5'
"Y#.2'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?0'#6"'4*//$($9$#?'*+'#6"'523/'(."2-6$%&'$/'
38-6'."58-"5J''L.*8%5'$%:"/#$&2#$*%'"2.9?'%"Y#'?"2.')$99'4.*:$5"'
$%+*.32#$*%'#*'299*)'#6"'2%29?/$/'*+'#6"'/#2($9$#?'*+'523/')6"%'
9*25"5')$#6'6$&6".')2#".'9":"9/J''@%?'$//8"/')$99'("'."3"5$"5'$%'
#6"'5"#2$9"5'5"/$&%'*+'#6"'/2+"#?')*.>/J

4. V6"'4.$%-$49"/'#62#'5"-$5"')6$-6'2/4"-#'$/'#6"'6$&6"/#'4.$*.$#?'
2."'-*%/#.2$%"5'(?'92)'2%5'/#2%52.5'$%58/#.?'&8$52%-"';/""'#6"'
4.*(9"3'5",%$#$*%'/"-#$*%'$%'#6"'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'."4*.#<J''\%'
#6"']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#0'$#'$/'"/#$32#"5'#62#'2.*8%5'][g0[[[33 
*+'"Y-"//'M**5)2#".')$99'*:".#*4'#6"'523'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J'G*%5'
$%'#6"',./#']`'6*8./J''V6$/'$/'#**'38-6':*983"'#*'("'/#*."5'$%'
#6"'F8>"/'I$"95'2."2'*+'#6"'1"2#60'2/'$#')*895'."O8$."''2'%")'
."/".:*$.')$#6'#)$-"'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5J''\#'$/'
#6"."+*."'3*."'+"2/$(9"'#*'5"/$&%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'523'#*'42//')2#".'
/2+"9?')$#6*8#'-*9924/"J'W:".#*44$%&'-*895'/#$99'*--8.'(8#')$99'%*#'
."/89#'$%'523'+2$98."J

P
age 219



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

46

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King at 
PPSG meeting 
30/09/13

215 P"O8"/#"5'2'-*%#*8.'324'*+'#6"'1$&6&2#"'=*J']'2."2J V6$/'-2%'("'4.*:$5"5'/"42.2#"9?J

Jeremy Wright 
at PPSG meeting 
30/09/13

a]Z P"O8"/#"5'-.*//'/"-#$*%/'*+'#6"'4.*4*/29/'2#'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'G*%5J \%5$-2#$:"'-.*//'/"-#$*%/'*+'#6"'*4#$*%/'+*.'.2$/$%&'!$Y"5'N2#6$%&'G*%5'2."'
&$:"%'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%'."4*.#J

Harriet King at 
PPSG meeting 
30/09/13

217 P"O8"/#"5'3*."':$/829/'*+'#6"'1$&6&2#"'=*J']'4*%5'2."2'S'/6*)$%&')62#')299')*895'9**>'9$>"J @'%")':$/829'*+' #6"':$")'*%'#6"'/4$99)2?'2%5'.2$/$%&')299' 9**>$%&'%*.#6'
+.*3'5*)%/#."23'$/'&$:"%'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%'."4*.#J

Geoff Goss at PPSG 
meeting 30/09/13

a]i 7.*//'/"-#$*%/'*+'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'2%5'!"%T/'N2#6$%&'4*%5'523 7.*//'/"-#$*%/'*+'#6"'.2$/$%&'523'2#'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5';+*.'W4#$*%/'`'
2%5'Z<'2."'&$:"%'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%'."4*.#J

Prem Holdaway 
at PPSG meeting 
30/09/13

P"O8"/#"5'#6"'5$23"#".'*+'4$4"/'*%'(*#6'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'2%5'1234/#"25'=*J']0'498/'9"%&#6'2%5'2%&9"J B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"'#*'/$3$92.'O8".?'(?'!.'1*952)2?J'H"%&#6'2%5'2%&9"'
2."'%*#'2/'-.$#$-29'2/'#6"'5$23"#".'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'*:".M*)'4$4"/0')6$-6'
2."' $%25"O82#"' +*.' 5"29$%&')$#6' #6"' 92.&".' M**5'":"%#/')6$-6'38/#' ("'
-*%/$5"."5J''

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

a]b G9"2/"'-*%,.3'#6"'/$h"/'*+'299'6$/#*.$-29'":"%#/';+*.')6$-6'52#2'$/'2:2$92(9"<'*:".'#6"'92/#'][['?"2./J K"'62:"'"Y#.2-#"5'#6"']['92.&"/#'."-*.5"5'.2$%+299'":"%#/'+.*3'#6"'11BB'
."-*.5' 2%5' "/#$32#"5' ."#8.%' 4".$*5' *+' .2$%+2990' (2/"5' *%' #6"' a`E6*8.'
FFI' .2$%+299' -8.:"/' 5".$:"5' +*.' #6"'1"2#6J' ' G9"2/"' %*#"/' #62#0' ("-28/"'
#6"' .2$%+299' ."-*.5' $/' 52$9?0' )"' 5*' %*#' >%*)' #6"' "Y2-#' 58.2#$*%' *+' #6"'
":"%#J''1"%-"'#6"'."#8.%'4".$*5')*895'("'5$++"."%#')6"%'#6"'-*.."-#'/#*.3'
58.2#$*%'$/'#2>"%'$%#*'-*%/$5".2#$*%J''V6"'."/89#/'$%'#6"'#2(9"'2."'#6"."+*."'
.*8&6'"/#$32#"/'*%9?J''V6"'*%"'":"%#'#62#')"'5*'>%*)'#6"'58.2#$*%'*+'$/'
#6"']bge'":"%#')6$-6')2/'a'6*8./'je'3$%/J' $%'58.2#$*%';6$&69$&6#"5' $%'
."5<J''V6$/'."#8.%'4".$*5'*+'#6$/'":"%#')2/'."-"%#9?'."E"/#$32#"5'(?'7D1'
2%5'+*8%5'#*'("']b0[[['?"2./J

Year Date 24-hour observed 

rainfall (mm)

Estimated Ref. Period 

(based on PDF rainfall)

2009 15-Sep-09 53.2 5-10 years

2008 31-Aug-08 35.2 < 5 years

2002 07-Aug-02 71.5 10-20 years

2001 29-Oct-00 47 < 5 years

2000 15-Sep-00 42.2 < 5 years

1994 10-Aug-94 45.2 < 5 years

1992 22-Sep-92 60.3 10 years

1988 09-Oct-87 48.8 approx 5 years

1977 16-Aug-77 79.6 20-50 years

1975 14-Aug-75 170.8 500-1000 years

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

220 V6"'/-*8.'4$4"'62/'6$/#*.$-299?'(""%'8/"5'#*'4.":"%#'#6"'M**5$%&'*+'N.**>,"95'2%5'$33"5$2#"'%"$&6(*8.6**5J'V6"'"++"-#'
*+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'$%'-2..?$%&'"Y-"//')2#".'#*'#6"'5.2$%2&"'/?/#"3'/6*895'("'$%-985"5'$%'?*8.'2//"//3"%#'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'
/$#82#$*%J
G9"2/"'&$:"'8/'#6"'52#2'*%'#6"'5$/-62.&"'.2#"'*+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"';7*H'2&.""5'#*'#6$/'*%'j[cbc]j<J

\#' $/'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%T/'4*9$-?'%*#'#*'8/"'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'
G*%5'/$%-"'4".3$//$*%'$/'."O8$."5'+.*3'V623"/'K2#".J
K6$9"'$#'62/'(""%'8/"5'$%'#6"'42/#0'#6$/')2/'%*#'28#6*.$h"5J
V6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'je[33'5$23"#".'/-*8.'4$4"'$/'9$>"9?'#*'("'9"//'#62%'
]33c/'2%5'/*' $#')$99' #2>"'32%?'6*8./'3*."' #*'"34#?' #6$/'4$4"' $%#*' #6"'
/")".'/?/#"3';$+'#6$/')2/'#6"*."#$-299?'299*)"5<'#62%'#6"'#$3"'#*'4"2>'*+'
#6"'M**5'+.*3'2']k][0[[['?"2.'/#*.3'":"%#';2.*8%5'j'6*8./<J'

P
age 220



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
47

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

221 G9"2/"'&$:"'8/'#6"'52#2'*%'#6"'5$/-62.&"'.2#"'*+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4" B""'2(*:"' ;."/4*%/"' #*'O8".?'aa[<J' 'V6"' /-*8.'4$4"')$99' %*#'62:"' #6"'
-242-$#?'#*'5"29')$#6'#6"']g33c/'$%M*)'"Y4"-#"5'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'$%'
2']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

222 G9"2/"'-*%,.3'#6"'4"2>'5$/-62.&"'$%'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"';@#>$%/T',&8."/'/6*)'[Jej3jc/"-<'2%5'6*)'#6$/',&8."'$/'5".$:"5E'
$"')62#'+*.3892'62/'(""%'8/"5'2%5')62#'-*"+,-$"%#'*+'5$/-62.&"J'@/'#6$/'52#2'$/':$#290'$#'/6*895'("'-*%,.3"5')$#6'2',"95'
3"2/8."3"%#J'

K"'8%5"./#2%5'#6$/'."+"./'#*'#6"'1$&6&2#"']'*:".M*)'4$4"')6$-6'9"25/'
$%#*'#6"'/")".'/?/#"3J''

K"'2//83"5'$%'*8.'3*5"90'#62#'#6" [scour outlet]'4$4"')$99'%*#'("'
2:2$92(9"';$J"J'%*'*%"'#*'*4"%'[the valve]0'*.'/")".'-242-$#?'"Y-""5"5'
2%5'4$4"'-2%%*#'5$/-62.&"<J'

V6"'4$4"')"'62:"'3*5"99"5'$/'#6"'/3299'*:".M*)'4$4"J''F$/-62.&"'
#6.*8&6'#6"'4$4"/')2/'-29-892#"5'8/$%&'$%+*.32#$*%'*%'#6"'9"%&#6'2%5'
5$23"#".'*+'4$4"/J'

U*983"'*+')2#".'#62#'-2%'M*)'#6.*8&6'both pipes'$/':".?'/3299'-*342."5'
)$#6'#6"'$%M*)/'$%'#6"'G!I'":"%#J

@A5)"&BC)%&0$)&D&$:#!'E$#)'5*;&.#<"&#F5="G-

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

223 W8#M*)/'+.*3'1L]'2//83"'299'-62.2-#".$/#$-/'*+'#6"'6$&6".'4*%5/'2."'3*5"99"5'-*.."-#9?0'-2%'#6$/'("'2-6$":"5')$#6*8#'
"Y#"%/$:"',"95'3*%$#*.$%&d

W8.'2//"//3"%#'62/'2449$"5'#6"'F"+.20'I9**5'2%5'."/".:*$.'/2+"#?'
P":$/"5'&8$52%-"'+*.'42%"9'"%&$%""./'#*'-29-892#"'#6"'6?5.*9*&$-29'
$%M*)/'#*'#6"'1234/#"25'1"2#6'4*%5/J'V6$/'$%-985"/'#6"'I9**5'B#85$"/'
P"4*.#';IBP<'2%5'I9**5'D/#$32#$*%'12%5(**>';ID1<'3"#6*5*9*&$"/'+*.'
5".$:$%&'M**5'":"%#'.2$%+299'6?"#*&.246/'2%5'M*)'6?5.*&.246/J'V6"'IBP'
2%5'ID1'32%829/'/"#'*8#'#6"'52#2'8/"5'$%'(*#6'5":"9*4$%&'2%5'2449?$%&'
#6"'3"#6*5*9*&$"/J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

aa`

225

aaZ

K62#'$/'3"2%#'(?'^,./#'4*$%#'*+'-*%%"-#$*%')$#6'2%*#6".'5.2$%Td
K6"."'2."'#6"/"'-*%%"-#$*%'4*$%#/d

1*)'5*'7*H'-*'*4".2#"')$#6'VK@d

12/'7*H'-*%/$5"."5'$%-."2/$%&'#6"'/$h"'*+'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'+.*3'1L]'#*'$%-."2/"'$#/'-242-$#?'2%5'#*'-*34"%/2#"'+*.'#6"'
4*//$(9"'9*//'*+'8/"'*+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"d

V6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'5$/-62.&"/'$%#*'/8.+2-"')2#".'5.2$%2&"'/?/#"3'-9*/"'#*'
#6"'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5J

B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"';#*'O8".?'a][<'#*'/$3$92.'O8".?'+.*3'K"/#'1$99'7*8.#'
P@'*%'B6*.#9$/#'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#0'52#"5'ag'@8&'a[]jJ

V6"'-242-$#$"/'*+'":"%'2'92.&"'%83(".'*+'92.&".'4$4"/')*895'("'8%9$>"9?'
#*'5"29')$#6'#6"'92.&"'"Y-"//'M**5)2#".':*983"/'+*.')6$-6'#6"'523/'
38/#'("'325"'/2+"'2--*.5$%&'#*'#6"'\7D'&8$5"9$%"/J'

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

227 B*3"'+*.3'*+'/98$-"')6$-6')*895'299*)'#6"'5$/-62.&"'*+')2#".'#*'("'#.$&&"."5'(?'2'.$/"'$%')2#".'9":"9'*+'`e[33'2(*:"'VKH'
*+'1L]';j[[33'("9*)'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?<')*895'("'2'/#.2$&6#+*.)2.5'/*98#$*%'#*'299*)$%&'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'#*'5$/-62.&"'
)2#".'("+*."'#6"'/4$99)2?'$/'*:".#*44"5J'V6$/'*4#$*%'38/#'("'-*%/$5"."5'.2#6".'#62%'8%-*%#.*99"5'5"9$:".?'*+')2#".'#*'
5*)%/#."23'2."2/J'

V6"'7$#?'*+'H*%5*%'2."'/"">$%&'#*'2:*$5'3"-62%$-29'/?/#"3/')6$-6'62:"'
#6"'.$/>'*+'(."2>$%&'5*)%'2%5')*895'("'5$+,-89#'#*'2--"//'58.$%&'M**5'
":"%#/J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

aai @#')62#'/$h"'":"%#'5*"/')2#".'9"2:"'#6"'1\&6&2#"'-62$%'$%'2%'8%-*%#.*99"5')2?'$"'*:".'#6"'/4$99)2?'2/'/8.+2-"')2#".d' \%'(*#6'W4#$*%/'`'2%5'Z0' #6"' /4$99)2?')*895'("'*4".2#"5' $%'2'M**5'*+'
."#8.%'4".$*5'("#)""%']k]0[[['2%5']k][0[[['?"2./J''\%'-*342.$/*%0'2%?'
M**5'":"%#'92.&".'#62%'2']k][['?"2.'":"%#')*895'-28/"'*:".#*44$%&'*+'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'523'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

aab G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'2'5"#2$9"5'492%'*+'#6"'2."2'/6*)$%&'-*%#*8./'2#'[Ja3'$%#".:29/'*+'#6"'2."2'#*'#6"'B0'K'2%5'D'*+'1L]J'V6$/'
38/#'/6*)'9*-29'-62%&"/'$%'9":"9J'\%#"99$&"%#'-*%:"%#$*%29'/8.:"?$%&'-2%'("'8/"5'#*'*(#2$%'."9$2(9"'."/89#/'.2#6".'#62%'#6"'
."3*#"'/"%/$%&'#"-6%$O8"/'4.*4*/"5J'

@'492%'/6*)$%&']3'-*%#*8./'-2%'("'4.*:$5"5'/"42.2#"9?J
K6$9"'$#'$/'#.8"'#62#'H$F@P'52#2';*(#2$%"5'+.*3'2$.-.2+#<'$/'%*#'2/'2--8.2#"'
2/'-*%:"%#$*%29'#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?$%&0'-*342.$/*%/'*+'#6"'H$F@P'9":"9'
52#2')$#6'#6"'."/89#/'*+'#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?$%&'62/'/6*)%'2'-9*/"'32#-6J
I8.#6".'#*4*&.246$-29'/8.:"?$%&'*+'#6"'2."2'2.*8%5'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'$/'
("$%&'-2..$"5'*8#'2%5')$99'$%+*.3'#6"'*8#9$%"'2%5'5"#2$9"5'5"/$&%'/#2&"/J

P
age 221



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

48

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

230 V6"'&.*8%5'#*'#6"'%*.#6'*+'#6"'5*&'2--"//'#*'#6"'4*%5'5*"/'%*#'.$/"'$33"5$2#"9?0'49"2/"'492-"'4*/#/'/6*)$%&'4.*4*/"5'
9":"9'*+'#6"')"/#".%'"5&"'*+'#6"'4*%5')6$-6'38/#';*(:$*8/9?<'("'2#'9"2/#'2/'6$&6'2/'#6"'4.*4*/"5')299'*%'#6"'523J'V6"'
+"%-"'2#'4."/"%#'$/'92.&"9?'("9*)'#6"'523'-."/#0'49"2/"'-*%,.3'#6"'9*-2#$*%'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'%")')299';5$3"%/$*%"50'*%'2'
492%<J'

1*)'#6$->')$99'#6"')299'("d

G92-$%&'4*/#/'29*%&'#6$/'48(9$-9?'2--"//$(9"'2."2'2#'j[[33'6"$&6#'3$&6#'
("'O8$#"'5$+,-89#q'#6"'4*/#/'$%'#6"')2#".'2#'#6"'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'2."'%*#'
2--"//$(9"'#*'#6"'48(9$-'%*.'5*'#6"?'4."/"%#'2'#.$4'62h2.5J

V6"'4.*4*/"5'9":"9'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5')6"."'$#'-.*//"/'
#6"'42#6'%"2.'#6"'5*&'2--"//')$99'*%9?'("'84'#*'j[[33'2(*:"'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'
&.*8%5' 9":"9/J' 'V6"'4.*4*/"5')299' #*' .2$/"' #6"'523')*895'/#2.#'*%' #6"'
-."/#'("?*%5'#6"'9*->"5'&2#"'*%'#6"'+"%-"'2-.*//'#6"'523'-."/#J

V6"'#6$->%"//'*+'#6"')299')*895'5"4"%5'*%'%2#8."'*+'#6"'-9255$%&')6$-6'$/'
#*'("'5$/-8//"5')$#6'/#2>"6*95"./J''V6"'-*%-."#"'-*."')*895'("'("#)""%'
ae['2%5'j[[33'#6$->J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

231 G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'8452#"5',&8."/'+*.'#2(9"'eJg'*+'#6"'FI@'+*.'#6"'a'4.*4*/"5'*4#$*%/'+*.']k][[q']k]0[[[q']ke0[[['2%5'
]k][0[[['":"%#/0'#*&"#6".')$#6'#6"'+*."-2/#'M**5':*983"/J

V6$/'#2(9"'62/'%*#'(""%'8452#"5')$#6'4.*4*/"5'*4#$*%/'2%5')*895'%""5'#*'
("'$%/#.8-#"5'/"42.2#"9?'(?'7*H'$+'."O8$."5J'

G9"2/"'%*#"'#62#'/#*.2&"':*983"/')*895'("'$%-."2/"5'$%'299'*4#$*%/'2%5'
#6"."+*."'299'*4#$*%/')*895'("%",#'4"*49"'5*)%/#."23'$%'299'/$h"/'*+'M**5TJ'

=*#"'2']ke0[[['?"2.'M**5'":"%#'62/'%*#'(""%'-29-892#"5J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

232 V6"'VK@'324';)6$-6')"'62:"'625'("+*."<'5*"/'%*#'/6*)'5$23"#"./0'-242-$#$"/0'-623("./'*.'-*%%"-#$*%/J'G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'
#6"/"J

F"#2$9/' *+' 299' *+' #6"/"'62:"'%*#'(""%'325"'2:2$92(9"' ?"#J'1*)":".0')"'
>%*)'#62#'#6"'/")".'/?/#"3/'2."'*%9?'5"/$&%"5'+*.'/3299'M**5'":"%#/'84'
#*'2.*8%5'2']kge'?"2.'."#8.%'4".$*5'":"%#J''B#2%52.5'&8$52%-"'*%'523'
/2+"#?' ."O8$."/' #62#'523/' -2%' /2+"9?'42//'M**5)2#".' +.*3'2'G!I0')$#6'
/4$99)2?/'2(9"'#*'42//'#6"'M**5)2#".'+.*3'2']k][0[[['?"2.'":"%#0'/*'#6"'
"Y$/#$%&'/")".'/?/#"3'-2%%*#'2--*33*52#"'#6"/"'>$%5/'*+'M**5/J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

233 V6"'/#*.3')2#".'/")".'$/'-242(9"'*+'#2>$%&'-*%#.*99"5'5$/-62.&"'*+')2#".'+.*3'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'2%5'/6*895'("'#2>"%'$%#*'
2--*8%#'$%'2//"//$%&'#6"'*8#M*)'-242-$#?'*+'"Y$/#$%&'5.2$%/'("?*%5'1L]J

@'324'/6*)$%&'5.2$%/0'-89:".#/'2%5'/#."23/'*%'7*HT/'92%5'/6*895'29/*'("'4.*:$5"50'$%-985$%&'#6"'/#."23c'-89:".#'(9*->"5'
(?')*.>/'#*'#6"'/"-."#'&2.5"%'2%5'42.>'>""4".T/'6*8/"';6$/#*.$-299?0'#6"/"'#**>'M**5')2#".'#*'9*)".'4*%5/'+8.#6".'5*)%'
1$&6&2#"'P*25<J

G9"2/"'4.*:$5"'2'/"-#$*%'2#']ke['#6.*8&6'#6"'4.*4*/"5')299'2%5'+*8%52#$*%'*%'#6"'523'*+'1L]'2%5'2'/"-#$*%'42.299"9'#*'#6$/'
#6.*8&6'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?J'G9"2/"'$%5$-2#"'VKH'2%5'#6"'9":"9'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'*:".M*)J

B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"/';#*'O8".?'aja<'."92#$%&'#*'#6"'$%25"O82#"'-242-$#?'
*+'"Y$/#$%&'4$4"/'c'5.2$%/0'$%'#6"'-*%#"Y#'*+'#6"'5"/$&%'M**5'+*.'523'/2+"#?'
/#2%52.5/J

B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"';#*'O8".?'aja<'."92#$%&'#*'#6"'$%25"O82#"'-242-$#?'*+'
"Y$/#$%&'4$4"/'c'5.2$%/J

W8#9$%"'5"/$&%/'/6*)$%&'#6$/'>$%5'*+' $%+*.32#$*%')$99'("'325"'2:2$92(9"'
58.$%&'#6"'%*%E/#2#8#*.?'48(9$-'-*%/89#2#$*%J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

aj` K62#'$/'#6"'2-#829'-242-$#?'*+'"Y$/#$%&'5.2$%/'.2#6".'#62%'#?4$-29'-242-$#?d'12/'#6$/'(""%'3*5"99"5d'

G9"2/"'-*%,.3'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'VK@T/'%")'/#*.3')2#".'."9$"+'/")"./';g['?"2./')2/'O8*#"5'2#'#6"'3""#$%&'*%'j[cbc]j<J'\+'
#6"/"'625'(""%'$%'492-"'+*.'6$/#*.$-'":"%#/'"&']bge0')62#'"++"-#')*895'#6"?'62:"'625d

B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"';#*'O8".?'aja<'."92#$%&'#*'#6"'$%25"O82#"'-242-$#?'*+'
"Y$/#$%&'4$4"/'c'5.2$%/J

B""'2(*:"'."/4*%/"';#*'O8".?'aja<'."92#$%&'#*'#6"'$%25"O82#"'-242-$#?'*+'
"Y$/#$%&'4$4"/'c'5.2$%/J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

235 G9"2/"'"Y23$%"'#6$/'8/$%&'."29'6$/#*.$-29'52#2'*.'&"%".2#"5'."29$/#$-'52#2'+*.'9"//".'M**5/'#*'"/#2(9$/6'-62.2-#".$/#$-/'*+'
)6"%'#6"')2#".')$99'-*3"'5*)%'#6"'/4$99)2?'2#'1L]J'

r*8'62:"'/#2#"5';O8".?'aj`<''#62#'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'/")".'/?/#"3'$/']'$%'
g['?"2./0'6*)":".'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"'$/'38-6'/3299".J'I9**5'
)2#".'$/'#6"."+*."'."/#.$-#"5'(?'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"0'.2#6".'#62%'#6"'/")".'
-242-$#?J''\#'/6*895'("'%*#"5'#62#'"Y23$%2#$*%'*+'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'/")".'
$/'("?*%5'#6"'/-*4"'*+'*8.')*.>J

P
age 222



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
49

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

ajZ

237

K"'8%5"./#2%5'#62#'#6"'D%:$.*%3"%#'@&"%-?'8/8299?'"Y4"-#/'3*/#'*+'#6"')2#".'."/89#$%&'+.*3'2'M**5'#*'("'/#*."5'$%'#62#'
9*-29$#?'2%5'."9"2/"5'/9*)9?'2+#".)2.5/J'V6"'$%#"%#$*%'$/'#*'4.*#"-#'9$+"'2%5'4.*4".#?'5*)%/#."23'+.*3'M**5$%&J'K6"#6".'*.'
%*#'#6"'G*%5/'+299')$#6$%'#6$/'5",%$#$*%0'#6"'4.$%-$49"'/6*895'2449?J

G9"2/"'-*%,.3'#62#'7*H'$/'>""4$%&'#6"'D@'$%+*.3"5'*+'#6"'4.*4*/29/

@/' #6"' D%:$.*%3"%#' @&"%-?' $/' #6"' D%+*.-"3"%#' @8#6*.$#?' +*.' #6"' ]bge'
P"/".:*$.'@-#0'2%5'#6"'/#."23/'2."'%*#'-92//"5'2/'^32$%T'.$:"./0'#6"$.'*%9?'
$%#"."/#' $%'#6$/'4.*C"-#' $/' $%'/""$%&'#62#')*.>/'#*'"%/8."'523'/2+"#?'2."'
-2..$"5'*8#J

\%'#6"'4.*4*/"5'*4#$*%/0'M**5)2#".')$99'("'/#*."5'2/'38-6'2/'4*//$(9"J''
N?'255$%&'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?0'3*."'M**5)2#".')$99'("'."9"2/"5'/9*)9?'2+#".'
M**5/' $%#*'#6"'/")".'/?/#"3':$2'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'*:".M*)'4$4"/0' $%/#"25'*+'
*:".#*44$%&'#6"'523/J

\%'#".3/'*+'#6"'P"/".:*$./'@-#'#6"'*%9?'.*9"'#62#'#6"'D@'4".+*.3'$/'2/'2%'
"%+*.-"3"%#'28#6*.$#?J

Harriet King

Via email

2 October 2013

aji 72%'?*8'-92.$+?')6?'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'o2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5p';`eg3'5$23"#".0'Z3'6"25'*+')2#".<'62/'2'5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?'
*+'[J[]3jc/')6"."2/'#6"'*:".M*)'4$4"';j][33'5$23"#".0'6"25'*+')2#".':".?'38-6'9"//E'\T3'%*#'/8."')62#'#6$/'$/<0'62/'2'
5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?'*+'[Jej3jc/'$"'we['#$3"/'2/'92.&"d'V6$/'5*"/%T#'32>"'/"%/"'#*'3"J

V6"',&8."'*+'[J[]3jc/'+*.'#6"'/-*8.'*8#9"#'4$4"'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'
)2/' O8*#"5' $%' #6"' D3".&"%-?'P"/4*%/"' G92%J' ' ' @'3*."' 9$>"9?' -242-$#?'
)*895'("'$%'#6"'."&$*%'*+'[Je'S']J['3jc/J''1*)":".0'#6$/'/#$99'3"2%/'#62#'2<'
#6"'4$4"')*895'%*#'-*4"')$#6'#6"':".?'92.&"'$%M*)/'"Y4"-#"5'$%'#6"'5"/$&%'
M**5';#6"'G!I<0'2%5'(<'$#')*895'4.*(2(9?'#2>"'#**'9*%&'#*'5.2$%'#6"'4*%5'
8/$%&' #6$/' *8#9"#' -*%/$5".$%&' #6"' 9$>"9?')2.%$%&' #$3"' 2:2$92(9"' +.*3' #6"'
("&$%%$%&'*+'2%'"Y#."3"'/#*.3'":"%#J

V6"'5$/-62.&"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'*8#9"#'4$4"')$99'("'-29-892#"5'2%5'#6"'."/89#'
*+'#6$/'-29-892#$*%')$99'("'-*%,.3"5'$%'#6"'%"2.'+8#8."J'1*)":".0'#6"'."/89#'
$/'%*#'"Y4"-#"5'#*'-62%&"'#6"'4*/$#$*%'*%'#6"'8/"+89%"//'*+'#6"'/-*8.'4$4"'
$%'M**5'":"%#/J

Harriet King

Via email

10 October 2013

ajb

a`[

]J' VKH'5"/-.$("/'V*4'K2#".'H":"9'$%'#6"'FI@'(8#'$/'%*)'8/"5'#*'5"/-.$("'V?4$-29'K2#".'H":"9J'@."'#6"/"'#6"'/23"d

aJ' I.*3'#6"'FI@'\'8%5"./#2%5'#62#'#6"'-83892#$:"'n'*+'43+'$%M*)'#62#'-2%'("'/#*."5'$%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'$/'eZn0'-2%'
?*8'#"99'3"')62#'#6"'."9":2%#',&8."/'2."'+*.'#6"'a'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/'+*.'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%';2%5')6"."'\'-2%',%5'#6$/<d'
\T3'/8."'#6$/'$/'/*3")6"."'$%'#6"'$%+*.32#$*%'?*8T:"'/"%#'8/'(8#'2#'4."/"%#'\'-2%T#',%5'$#J

]J' V?4$-29'K2#".'H":"9'2%5'V*4'K2#".'H":"9'2."'#6"'/23"0'(*#6'."92#"'#*'
#6"'$%:".#'9":"9'*+'#6"'*:".M*)'2#'2'4*%5';*.'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?<J 

aJ' V6"',&8."'*+'eZn')2/'*%9?'#6"'4".-"%#2&"'*+'G!I'$%M*)'+.*3'#6"'
/8(E-2#-63"%#'2%5'5$."-#'.2$%+299'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'/#*."5'$%'#6"'
4*%50'$"'$#'5$5'%*#'$%-985"'#6"'$%M*)/'+.*3'/4$99$%&'+.*3'#6"'84/#."23'
4*%5/J'V6"'"O8$:29"%#'4".-"%#2&"'62/'%*#'(""%'-29-892#"5'+*.'#6"'
-8.."%#'4."+".."5'*4#$*%/';`'2%5'Z<J''1*)":".0')"'62:"'-29-892#"5'
#6"'#*#29'$%-."2/"'$%'/#*.2&"'2-.*//'#6"'1$&6&2#"'-62$%'$%'W4#$*%'`'
;$%-985$%&'#6"'aJ[3'.2$/$%&'2#'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5<0'#6$/'$%-."2/"'$/'
]jj0j[[3jJ'';@'/$3$92.'(8#'92.&".'$%-."2/"')*895'("'2-6$":"5'(?'#6"'
4.*4*/"5')*.>/'$%'W4#$*%'Z<J''V6$/'$%-."2/"'$%'/#*.2&"'$%'#6"'-62$%'
"Y492$%/')6?'#6"'4"2>')2#".'9":"9'$%'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5'$/'9*)".'
#62%'$%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/-"%2.$*'$%'299'M**5'":"%#/'$%'(*#6'*4#$*%/'`'2%5'
Z0'/*'#62#'#6"'/#2%52.5'*+'4.*#"-#$*%'$/'$%-."2/"5'(?'(*#6'*4#$*%/J'

P
age 223



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

50

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Dr Geoff Goss 
& other PPSG 
members,  
Preferred Options 
Workshop,

14th September 
2013

a`] 12/'#6"']bge'M**5'(""%'.8%'#6.*8&6'#6"'3*5"9'$%'*.5".'#*'#"/#'2%5'-29$(.2#"'$#d E' V6"' ]bge' ."#8.%' 4".$*5' M**5' 62/' %*#' (""%' 8/"5' #*' #"/#' #6"'3*5"9'
("-28/"'242.#'+.*3'#6"'+2-#'#62#'#6"'523/')"."'299'*:".#*44"50'#6"."'
$/'%*#'38-6'52#2' #62#'-*895'299*)'2%'2--8.2#"'-*342.$/*%'*+'3*5"9'
."/89#/J''\%'42.#$-892.0'#6"'5"4#6/'*+')2#".'*:".#*44$%&'#6"'523/')"."'
%*#'."-*.5"5J'

E' V6"']bge'."#8.%'4".$*5'M**5')2/'"Y23$%"5'29*%&')$#6'*#6".'6$/#*.$-29'
":"%#/'/8-6'2/'#6"'/#*.3/'*+']bg['2%5'a[][0'2%5'#6"$.'."#8.%'4".$*5/'
)"."'"/#$32#"5'8/$%&'5"4#6'58.2#$*%'+."O8"%-?';FFI<'-8.:"/'4.*:$5"5'
(?'#6"'\%/#$#8#"'*+'1?5.*9*&?'+*.'#6"'9*-29'2."2J'';B""'."/4*%/"'#*'O8".?'
a]b'2(*8#'6$/#*.$-29'52#2'+*.'#6"'+899'#2(9"'*+'":"%#/<J''V6"']bge'":"%#'
)2/'"/#$32#"5'2/'"$#6".'2']'$%'e[['E'][[['?"2.'":"%#0';8/$%&'#6"'ID1'
FFI'-8.:"<0'*.'2']'$%']b0[[['?"2.'":"%#0';8/$%&'#6"'IBP'FFI'-8.:"<J''
V6"'IBP'FFI'-8.:"'$/'-*%/$5"."5'#*'("'2'3*."'244.*4.$2#"'FFI'-8.:"'
+*.' 5".$:$%&' #6"' ."#8.%' 4".$*5' *+' #6"' ]bge' ":"%#' &$:"%' $#/' "Y#."3"'
%2#8."J' ' V6"' -29-892#"5' ]k][0[[[' ?"2.' M**5' $%' #6"' 6?5.289$-'3*5"9'
-28/"/'#6"'*:".#*44$%&'*+'299'#6"'523/'$%'(*#6'-62$%/0'/*'$+'2']k]b0[[['
?"2.'M**5')2/'#*'("'-29-892#"5'2%5'.8%'#6.*8&6'$%'#6"'3*5"90'$#')*895'
9"25' #*'*:".#*44$%&'*+' 299' #6"'523/'2&2$%J' ' B$3$92.9?0' #6"' -29-892#"5'
]k]0[[['?"2.'M**5'-28/"/'*:".#*44$%&'*+'299'#6"'523/'*%'#6"'1$&6&2#"'
-62$%'$%'#6"'3*5"90')$#6'2']k][['?"2.'M**5'C8/#'*:".#*44$%&'1$&6&2#"'
=*J]'G*%5'(?'2'+")'330'/*'$+'2']ke[['?"2.'M**5')2/'-29-892#"5'2%5'.2%'
#6.*8&6'#6"'3*5"9'$#')*895'29/*'-28/"'*:".#*44$%&J''V6"'"/#$32#$*%/'*+'
#6"'."#8.%'4".$*5/'*+'#6"']bge'M**5'52#2'#6"."+*."':29$52#"'#6"'3*5"90'
$%'#62#'#6"'3*5"9'4."5$-#/'*:".#*44$%&'*+'299'523/'+*.'2%?#6$%&'($&&".'
#62%'2']'$%'][['?"2.'M**5J''@%?'+8.#6".'.8%/'*+'."#8.%'4".$*5/'/8-6'2/'
]ke[['*.']k]b0[[['?"2./')*895'#6"."+*."'%*#'4.*58-"'2%?'8/"+89'."/89#/'
*.'$%-."2/"5'4."-$/$*%'$%'#6"'3*5"9J

P
age 224



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
51

Source Query 
Number

Query Design Team Response

Susan Rose

Email 14th October 
2013

a`a PDk'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'P"4*.#
\'23'-*%+8/"5'(?'#6"/"'5*-83"%#/q'\'62:"'2/>"5'2#'9"2/#'*%-"'$+'%*#'3*."'*+#"%'+*.'-29-892#$*%/'."'#6"'5$++"."%-"'$%'
-242-$#?'("#)""%'#6"'(*2#'4*%5'2/'$#'"Y$/#/'2%5'#6"'(*2#'4*%5'2/'"Y#"%5"5'(8#')$#6'.2$/"5'523"'$%/$5"'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'523'
(8#'-2%',%5'%*'."-*.5'*+'#6$/'$%'"$#6".'5*-83"%#J

V6"'"Y$/#$%&'M**5'/#*.2&"'-242-$#?'*+'!*5"9'N*2#$%&'G*%5'$/'`0jgb330'
$+'#6"':*983"'/#*."5'$/'#2>"%'2/'#6"'/42-"'("#)""%'#6"'#*4')2#".'9":"9'
;#6"'$%:".#'9":"9'*+'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'*:".M*)'4$4"<'2%5'#6"'28Y$9$2.?'/4$99)2?'
9":"9';#6"'9*)"."5'&.*8%5'*%'#6"')"/#'(2%><J'';V6$/':298"')2/'*.$&$%299?'
O8*#"5'$%'#2(9"'eEg'*+'#6"'F"/$&%'I9**5'@//"//3"%#'P"4*.#J<
V6"'2-#829'/#*.2&"'32?'("'/9$&6#9?'6$&6".'#62%'#6$/'/$%-"'#6"'42#6')"/#'
*+'#6"'523'$/'/9$&6#9?'6$&6".'#62%'#6"'/4$99)2?'9":"9J'\+'#6$/':298"'$/'8/"50'
#6"'"Y$/#$%&'-242-$#?'$/'i0g]g33J
1*)":".0'#6"'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'4*%5'$%'W4#$*%'`'$/'$%-."2/"5'#*'2#'9"2/#'
eZ0eie33'(?'.2$/$%&'#6"'523'(?'aJ[3J''V6$/'$/'2%'$%-."2/"'$%'-242-$#?'
*+'ea0]aa33';("#)""%'#6"'"Y$/#$%&'/4$99)2?'9":"9'2%5'#6"'4.*4*/"5'
.2$/"5'523'-."/#'9":"9<J'''@9/*0'/$%-"'#6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'G*%5')*895'
("'/8(3".&"5'$%'2'M**5'":"%#')$#6'#6"'.2$/"5'(2%>'$%'492-"'$%'!*5"9'
N*2#$%&'G*%50'2'+8.#6".']e0[[g33'2(*:"'#6"'N$.5'B2%-#82.?'G*%5')*895'
("'255"50'/*'$%'"++"-#'#6"'#*#29'"Y#.2'-242-$#?'*+'#6"'-*3($%"5'4*%5/'$/'
2#'9"2/#'Zg0]ab33J
K6$9"')"'62:"'%*#'?"#'-29-892#"5'#6"'$%-."2/"'$%'/#*.2&"'2#'#6"'#)*'
4*%5/'$%'#6"'*#6".'4."+".."5'*4#$*%0'W4#$*%'Z';)$#6'aJe3'.2$/$%&'2#'!*5"9'
NG<0'$#')*895'("'2':298"'("#)""%'Zg0]ab33'2%5'#6"'][Z0[[[33 4.":$*8/9?'
-29-892#"5'2/'#6"'"Y#.2'/#*.2&"'$%'W4#$*%'j';#6"'*4#$*%')$#6'jJ[3'.2$/$%&'
#62#'62/'/$%-"'(""%'5$/-*8%#"5<J'
V6"'#*#29'$%-."2/"'$%'/#*.2&"'2-.*//'#6"')6*9"'*+'#6"'1$&6&2#"'762$%'$%'
W4#$*%'`'$/']jj0j]g33J

Harriet King

telecon with Ben 
Jones of Atkins, 
18/10/2013

a`j ]<'K62#'$/'#6"'9":"9'*+'#6"'#*4'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'.2$/$%&')299'2#'1$&6&2#"'=*J]'G*%5';1L]<'$%'W4#$*%/'`'2%5'Zd
a<'K62#'$/'*+'#6"'9":"9'*+'#6"'4.*4*/"5'/4$99)2?'5"4#6'$%'W4#$*%/'`'2%5'Z'2#'1L]J
j<' \/'2'^/4$99)2?')"$.T'#6"'/23"'2/'2'/4$99)2?d'
`<'K62#'$/'#6"'G!I':*983"d
e<' 1*)')*895'#6"'/4$99)2?'("'9$%"5')6"."'$#'$/'$%'%2#8.29'&.*8%5'*%'#6"')"/#'(2%>d

]<' ZeJ[a3@WF';]Jae3'2(*:"'#6"'3$%$383'523'-."/#'9":"9<J
a<' V6"'/4$99)2?')"$.'9":"9')*895'("'eg[33'("9*)'#6"'#*4'*+'#6"'
4.*4*/"5'.2$/$%&')2990'%*#'Zg[33'2/'$#'/2?/'$%'#6"'G."+".."5'W4#$*%/'
."4*.#'#"Y#0'#6$/')2/'2'#?4*'"..*.J
j<' V6"')"$.'$/'C8/#'#6"'M2#'(2/"'/"-#$*%'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?0'2#'#6"'#*4J
`<' G!I':*983"'VN7J
e<' V6"'/"-#$*%'*+'/4$99)2?'*%'#6"'%2#8.29'&.*8%5')*895'("'9$%"5'
)$#6'2'/6299*)'#8.+'."$%+*.-"3"%#'32#0'#6"%'#6"'#8.+'."$%/#2#"5'*%'#*4'
2#'#6"'/23"'&.25$"%#'2/'"Y$/#$%&';2(*8#']k][<J'V6"'VP!')*895'("'#*'
4.":"%#'".*/$*%'%"2.'#6"'2(8#3"%#'*+'#6"'523J''V6"'#.""/'*%'#6"'%2#8.29'
&.*8%5'42.#'*+'#6"'/4$99)2?')*895'%*#'62:"'#*'("'."3*:"50'*%9?'#6"'#.""/'
*%'#6"'5*)%/#."23'/9*4"'*+'#6"')"/#'"%5'*+'#6"'523'$#/"9+';32Y$383'`<'
)*895'62:"'#*'("'."3*:"5'+*.'#6"'/4$99)2?<J

P
age 225



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

52

9
5

 

 

P
o
si

ti
o
n

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 D
is

c
h

a
r
g
e
 o

f 
W

a
te

r
 (

S
u

r
fa

ce
 W

a
te

r
 a

n
d

 O
v
e
r
to

p
p

in
g

 o
f 

P
o
n

d
s)

 f
r
o
m

 H
a
m

p
st

e
a
d

 

H
e
a

th
 

W
it

h
 t
h

e 
in

tr
o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
th

e 
F

lo
o
d

 a
n

d
 W

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ct

 2
0

1
0
, 
th

er
e 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 a

 c
h

an
g
e 

in
 e

m
p
h
as

is
 f

ro
m

 

fl
o
o
d
 d

ef
en

ce
 t

o
 f

lo
o
d
 r

is
k
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 a

s 
it

 i
s 

n
o
w

 a
cc

ep
te

d
 t

h
at

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o
ss

ib
le

 t
o
 d

ef
en

d
 a

g
ai

n
st

 t
h

e 
fu

ll
 

ra
n

g
e 

o
f 

n
at

u
ra

l 
d
is

as
te

rs
 t

h
at

 c
o
u
ld

 o
cc

u
r.

 T
h

is
 p

ap
er

 s
et

s 
o
u
t 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

p
o
si

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 r

es
p
o
n

si
b
il

it
ie

s 
o
f 

m
aj

o
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 i
n

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 f

lo
o
d
 r

is
k
 m

an
ag

em
en

t.
 

C
o
m

m
o
n

 L
a
w

 

T
h

e 
ru

le
 i

n
 R

yl
an

d
s 

v
 F

le
tc

h
er

 w
il

l 
ap

p
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e 

m
an

-m
ad

e 
d
am

s 
on

 t
h

e 
H

ea
th

, 
an

d
 s

tr
ic

t 
li

ab
il

it
y 

w
it

h
o
u
t 

an
y 

p
ro

o
f 

o
f 

n
eg

li
g
en

ce
 w

il
l 

ar
is

e 
if

 t
h

e 
w

at
er

 e
sc

a
p
es

 a
n

d
 c

au
se

s 
d

am
ag

e 
o
n

 n
ei

g
h

b
o
u

ri
n

g
 l

an
d
. 
  

T
h

e 
w

at
er

 w
h

ic
h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

 a
re

 ‘
k

ee
p

in
g
’ 

o
n

 t
h

e 
H

ea
th

, 
is

 t
h

e 
w

at
er

 h
el

d
 b

ac
k
 b

eh
in

d
 t

h
e 

d
am

s 
–
 i

t 

o
n

ly
 ‘
!"
#$
%
!"
& 

if
 a

 d
am

 f
ai

ls
, 
n

o
t 

w
h

en
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
at

er
 o

v
er

to
p

s 
a 

d
am

. 

In
 r

el
at

io
n

 C
le

rk
 &

 L
in

d
se

ll
 o

n
 T

o
rt

s 
(t

h
e 

m
o
st

 a
u
th

o
ri

ta
ti

v
e 

g
u

id
an

ce
 a

v
ai

la
b
le

 o
n

 a
ll

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

la
w

 o
f 

to
rt

) 

th
e 

p
o
si

ti
o
n
 i

n
 r

el
at

io
n
 t

o
 l

an
d
 d

o
w

n
st

re
am

 i
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
at

 p
ar

a 
2

1
-3

0
, 
w

h
er

e 
it

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

, 
"T

h
e 

o
w

n
er

 o
f 

la
n
d

 o
n
 a

 

lo
w

er
 l

ev
el

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

co
m

p
la

in
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
n

a
tu

ra
ll

y 
fl

o
w

in
g

 o
r 

p
er

co
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 h

is
 l

a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 a
 h

ig
h
er

 l
ev

el
."

  
T

h
e 

p
ar

a 

g
o
es

 o
n

 t
o
 s

ay
, 

"N
ev

er
th

el
es

s,
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
er

 p
ro

p
ri

et
o

r 
is

 l
ia

b
le

 i
f 

h
e 

d
el

ib
er

a
te

ly
 d

ra
in

s 
h
is

 l
a

n
d
 o

n
 t

o
 h

is
 l

o
w

er
 

n
ei

g
h
b
o

u
r'

s 
la

n
d
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 a
p

p
ea

rs
 t

o
 b

e 
so

 i
f 

th
e 

w
a

te
r 

is
 c

a
u

se
d

 t
o

 f
lo

w
 i

n
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
n
ce

n
tr

a
te

d
 f

o
rm

 t
h
a
n
 i

t 
n
a
tu

ra
ll

y 
w

o
u
ld

 a
s 

th
e 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
a
rt

if
ic

ia
l 

a
lt

er
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

le
ve

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
to

u
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

h
ig

h
er

 l
a
n
d
."

  
 

T
w

o
 o

th
er

 p
ar

as
 f

ro
m

 C
le

rk
 &

 L
in

d
se

ll
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t 

- 
p

ar
a 

2
1
-3

2
 s

ta
te

s 
th

at
, 
"I

t 
is

 t
h
e 

d
u

ty
 o

f 
a

n
yo

n
e 

w
h
o
 

in
te

rf
er

es
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

co
u
rs

e 
o
f 

a
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

st
re

a
m

 t
o

 s
ee

 t
h

a
t 

th
e 

w
o

rk
s 

w
h

ic
h
 h

e 
su

b
st

it
u

te
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ch
a

n
n
el

 p
ro

vi
d
ed

 
b
'(
)
$
*+
,!
($
,!
($
-
!.
+
$
*!
(*
/
(#
$
,,
'(
/
00
(*
1
!(
2
$
*!
,(
3
,/
+
4
1
*(
-
/
2
)
(!
5!
)
(3
'(
!6
*,
$
/
,-
7)
$
,'
(,
$
7)
0$
88
9

" 
 P

ar
a 

2
1

-3
3
 s

ta
te

s 

th
at

, 
"E

ve
n
 i

f 
a
 s

tr
ea

m
 i

s 
d
iv

er
te

d
, 
th

er
e 

w
il

l 
b
e 

n
o

 l
ia

b
il

it
y 

if
 i

t 
ca

n
 b

e 
sh

o
w

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e 
in

ju
re

d
 p

a
rt

y 
w

o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 

su
ff

er
ed

 t
h
e 

sa
m

e 
d
a
m

a
g
e 

if
 t

h
e 

st
re

a
m

 h
a
d

 n
o
t 

b
ee

n
 d

iv
er

te
d

."
  
 

H
al

sb
u
ry

's
 L

aw
s 

h
el

p
fu

ll
y 

st
at

es
 t

h
at

, 
"A

 r
ip

a
ri

a
n

 o
w

n
er

..
.h

a
s 

th
e 

ri
g
h

t 
to

 h
a
ve

 t
h
e 

w
a

te
r 

g
o
 f

ro
m

 h
is

 l
a
n
d

 
2
7*
1
/
+
*(
/
3
"*
,+
#*
7/
)
9
:
/
)
5!
,"
!8
';
($
(8
/
2
!,
(,
7%
$
,7
$
)
(/
2
)
!,
(7
"(
+
)
-
!,
($
)
(/
3
87
4
$
*7
/
)
(*
/
(,
!#
!7
5!
(*
1
!(
)
$
*+
,$
8(
08
/
2
(/
0(

w
a
t!
,9

" 
  

It
 c

an
n

o
t 

b
e 

ri
g
h

t 
th

at
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
le

 a
t 

co
m

m
o
n

 l
aw

 f
o
r 

al
l 

o
f 

th
e 

w
at

er
 p

as
si

n
g
 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 t
h

e 

p
o
n

d
s 

fr
o
m

 u
p
st

re
am

, 
an

d
 f

o
r 

d
o
w

n
st

re
am

 f
lo

o
d

in
g
 t

h
at

 w
o
u

ld
 o

cc
u

r 
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
p

o
n

d
s 

w
er

e 
th

er
e 

or
 n

o
t.

  
T

h
e 

o
w

n
er

 o
f 

la
n
d
 o

n
 a

 l
o
w

er
 l

ev
el

 c
an

n
o
t 

co
m

p
la

in
 o

f 
w

at
er

 n
at

u
ra

ll
y 

fl
o

w
in

g
 o

r 
p

er
co

la
ti

n
g

 t
o
 h

is
 l

an
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 

h
ig

h
er

 l
ev

el
. 

T
h

er
e 

is
 n

o
 l

ia
b
il

it
y 

ar
is

in
g
 a

t 
co

m
m

o
n
 l

aw
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
n

at
u
ra

l 
fl

o
w

 o
f 

w
at

er
 d

o
w

n
st

re
am

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
is

 u
n

d
er

 n
o
 

d
u
ty

 t
o
 m

it
ig

at
e 

th
is

. 

 R
e
se

r
v
o
ir

 A
c
t 

1
9
7
5
 

T
h

e 
R

es
er

v
o
ir

s 
A

ct
 1

9
7
5
 p

ro
v
id

es
 t

h
e 

le
g

al
 f

ra
m

ew
o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
U

K
 r

es
er

v
o
ir

s 
th

at
 h

o
ld

 a
t 

le
as

t 

2
5
,0

0
0
 c

u
 m

 o
f 

w
at

er
 a

b
o
v
e 

n
at

u
ra

l 
g
ro

u
n

d
 l

ev
el

. 

‘U
n

d
er

ta
k
er

s’
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 t
h

e 
o
w

n
er

s 
o
r 

o
p

er
at

or
s 

o
f 

th
e 

re
se

rv
o
ir

, 
an

d
 h

av
e 

u
lt

im
at

e 
re

sp
o
n

si
b
il

it
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
re

se
rv

o
ir

. 
T

h
e 

H
ea

th
 c

u
rr

en
tl

y 
h

as
 t

h
re

e 
d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
es

er
v
o
ir

s,
 M

o
d
el

 B
o
at

in
g
 P

o
n

d
 a

n
d
 

M
en

’s
 B

at
h
in

g
 P

o
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

H
ig

h
g
at

e 
ch

ai
n
 o

f 
p

o
n

d
s 

an
d
 H

am
p

st
ea

d
 N

o
. 

1
 P

o
n

d
. 

T
h

e 
E

n
fo

rc
em

en
t 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 i

s 
re

sp
o
n

si
b
le

 f
o
r 

en
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
U

n
d

er
ta

k
er

s 
o
b
se

rv
e 

an
d
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
. 
T

h
e 

W
at

er
 A

ct
 2

0
0

3
 t

ra
n

sf
er

re
d

 r
es

p
o
n

si
b
il

it
y 

fo
r 

en
fo

rc
in

g
 t

h
e 

R
es

er
v

o
ir

s 
A

ct
 1

9
7
5
 t

o
 

th
e 

E
n

v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

A
g
en

cy
 i

n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 W

al
es

. 
It

 a
ls

o
 g

av
e 

th
e 

G
o
v

er
n

m
en

t 
th

e 
p

o
w

er
 t

o
 i

ss
u

e 
a 

M
in

is
te

ri
al

 
D

ir
ec

ti
on

 t
o
 r

es
er

v
o
ir

 u
n

d
er

ta
k
er

s 
(i

.e
. 
o
w

n
er

s)
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
ce

 r
es

er
v
o
ir

 f
lo

o
d

 p
la

n
s 

(i
.e

. 
em

er
g

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s)

. 

S
in

ce
 1

 O
ct

o
b
er

 2
0
0
4
 t

h
e 

E
n

v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

A
g

en
cy

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 t

h
e 

E
n

fo
rc

em
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 W

al
es

 

T
h

e 
C

it
y’

s 
st

at
u
to

ry
 d

u
ti

es
 u

n
d
er

 t
h

e 
R

es
er

v
o
ir

s 
A

ct
 1

9
7
5
 a

re
 v

er
y 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 i
n

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

st
ru

ct
u
ra

l 
in

te
g
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
d
am

s.
 T

h
e 

A
ct

 d
o
es

 n
o
t 

h
o
w

ev
er

 c
o
n

ta
in

 a
n

y 
d

et
ai

ls
 a

s 
to

 t
h

e 
w

o
rk

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
. 

 

T
h

e 
S

u
p
er

v
is

in
g
 E

n
g
in

ee
r 

ca
n

 c
al

l 
fo

r 
an

 i
n

sp
ec

ti
o
n

 b
y 

an
 I

n
sp

ec
ti

n
g
 E

n
g

in
ee

r 
at

 a
n

y 
ti

m
e 

u
n

d
er

 s
ec

ti
o
n
 1

0
(2

) 

o
f 

th
e 

R
es

er
v
o
ir

s 
A

ct
 1

9
7
5
. 
 U

n
d
er

 s
ec

ti
o
n

 1
0

(3
) 

th
e 

In
sp

ec
ti

n
g
 E

n
g

in
ee

r 
ca

n
 m

ak
e 

an
y 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n

s 
h

e 

se
es

 f
it

 i
n
 t

h
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
o
f 

sa
fe

ty
. 

 I
f 

th
e 

C
it

y 
is

 a
g
g
ri

ev
ed

 b
y 

a
 r

ec
o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

In
sp

ec
ti

n
g
 E

n
g

in
ee

r,
 i

t 
ca

n
 

re
fe

r 
th

e 
m

at
te

r 
to

 a
n

 i
n

d
ep

en
d
en

t 
q
u
al

if
ie

d
 c

iv
il

 e
n

g
in

ee
r 

u
n

d
er

 s
ec

ti
o
n

 1
9
. 
 I

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

fa
il

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 a

 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n
 o

f 
th

e 
In

sp
ec

ti
n
g
 E

n
g
in

ee
r,

 t
h

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
au

th
o
ri

ty
 h

av
e 

th
e 

p
o
w

er
 u

n
d
er

 s
ec

ti
o
n

 1
5
 t

o
 c

ar
ry

 

o
u
t 

th
e 

w
o
rk

s 
in

 d
ef

au
lt

 a
n
d

 t
o
 r

ec
h

ar
g
e 

th
e 

C
it

y.
  

F
ai

lu
re

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 a

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

In
sp

ec
ti

n
g
 

E
n

g
in

ee
r 

w
it

h
o
u
t 
re

as
o
n

ab
le

 e
x
cu

se
 i

s 
a 

cr
im

in
al

 o
ff

en
ce

 u
n

d
er

 s
ec

ti
o
n

 2
2
 o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
. 

G
u
id

an
ce

 s
et

 o
u
t 

b
y 

T
h

e 
In

st
it

u
ti

o
n
 o

f 
C

iv
il

 E
n

g
in

ee
rs

 p
u

b
li

ca
ti

on
 F

lo
o
d

s 
an

d
 r

es
er

v
o
ir

 s
af

et
y 

3
rd

 e
d
it

io
n

, 
1
9
9
6
 

st
at

es
 t

h
at

, 
“I

ts
 m

a
in

 i
n
te

n
ti

o
n
s 

a
re

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a
t,

 w
h

er
e 

a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
co

u
ld

 b
e 

en
d
a

n
g

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

b
re

a
ch

 o
f 

a
 

d
a
m

, 
th

e 
ri

sk
 o

f 
a
n
y 

b
re

a
ch

 c
a
u
se

d
 b

y 
fl

o
o

d
 i

s 
vi

rt
u

a
ll

y 
el

im
in

a
te

d
.”

  

T
h

e 
H

ea
th

 r
es

er
v
o
ir

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
C

at
eg

o
ry

 A
 a

n
d
 t

o
 q

u
o
te

 t
h

e 
g

u
id

an
ce

 f
o
r 

C
at

eg
o
ry

 A
 d

am
s:

 

“I
t 

is
 c

o
n
si

d
er

ed
 t

h
a
t 

p
u
b
li

c 
o
p
in

io
n
 w

il
l 

n
o
t 

a
cc

ep
t 
co

n
sc

io
u
s 

d
es

ig
n

 f
o

r 
a
 s

p
ec

if
ic

 t
h

re
a
t 

to
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y,
 e

ve
n
 

th
o
u
g
h
 i

t 
to

le
ra

te
s 

to
 a

n
 e

xt
en

t 
b
o
th

 r
a
n

d
o

m
 a

n
d
 a

cc
id

en
ta

l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
li

fe
. 
C

o
n

se
q
u

e
n
tl

y,
 n

o
 d

a
m

 a
b

o
ve

 a
 v

il
la

g
e 

o
r 

to
w

n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e 

d
es

ig
n
ed

 k
n
o

w
in

g
ly

 w
it

h
 a

 f
in

it
e 

ch
a

n
ce

 o
f 

a
 d

is
a

st
ro

u
s 

b
re

a
ch

 d
u

e 
to

 t
h
e 

u
n
d

er
-p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 o

f 

P
age 226



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
53

9
6

 

 sp
il

lw
a

y 
ca

p
a
ci

ty
.”

 A
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y 

in
 t

h
is

 c
o
n

te
x
t 

is
 c

o
n

si
d

er
ed

 t
o
 b

e 
n

o
t 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 1

0
 p

er
so

n
s 

w
h

o
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e 

af
fe

ct
ed

. 

T
h

e 
d
es

ig
n
 s

ta
n
d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

C
at

eg
o
ry

 A
 r

es
er

v
o
ir

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
th

at
 t

o
 b

e 
to

le
ra

n
t 

o
f 

o
v
er

to
p

p
in

g
, 
th

e 
sp

il
lw

a
y 

st
ru

ct
u
re

(s
) 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e 

ca
p
ab

le
 o

f 
sa

fe
ly

 p
as

si
n

g
 a

 1
:1

0
,0

0
0

 y
ea

r 
ra

in
fa

ll
 e

v
en

t.
 

A
s 

an
 U

n
d
er

ta
k
er

 t
h

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 h

as
 i

n
 a

cc
o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

W
at

er
 A

ct
 2

0
0

3
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 a
n

 o
n

-s
it

e 

em
er

g
en

cy
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
. 

F
lo

o
d

 a
n

d
 W

a
te

r
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
t 

2
0

1
0
 

T
h

e 
F

lo
o
d
s 

an
d
 W

at
er

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ct

 w
as

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
in

to
 U

K
 l

aw
 i

n
 2

0
1

0
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e 

fl
o
o
d
 r

is
k

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
it

y 
o
f 

w
at

er
 s

u
p
p
ly

. 
W

it
h

in
 G

o
v

er
n

m
en

t 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t,
 F

o
o
d

 a
n

d
 R

u
ra

l 

A
ff

ai
rs

 i
s 

th
e 

le
ad

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

 

 A
 k

ey
 f

ea
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
 i

s 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e 
P

it
t 

R
ev

ie
w

 i
n

to
 t

h
e 

su
m

m
er

 2
0

0
7
 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
, 
th

u
s 

in
cr

ea
si

n
g
 t

h
e 

em
p
h
as

is
 o

n
 s

o
u

rc
es

 o
f 

fl
o

o
d

in
g

 o
th

er
 t

h
an

 f
lu

v
ia

l 
an

d
 t

id
al

, 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 w

h
ic

h
 f

ea
tu

re
d
 h

ea
v
il

y 
in

 t
h

e 
2
0
0

7
 f

lo
o
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e 

A
ct

 a
ls

o
 u

p
d

at
es

 t
h

e 
R

es
er

v
o
ir

s 
A

ct
 1

9
7
5

 t
o
 r

ef
le

ct
 a

 

m
o
re

 r
is

k
-b

as
ed

 a
p
p
ro

ac
h

 t
o
 r

es
er

v
o
ir

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o
n

. 

T
h

e 
A

ct
 g

iv
es

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
il

it
ie

s 
an

d
 p

o
w

er
s 

to
 b

o
th

 t
h

e 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
en

t 
A

g
en

cy
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

L
ea

d
 L

o
ca

l 

F
lo

o
d
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

 (
L

L
F

A
).

 L
L

F
A

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
re

sp
o
n

si
b
le

 f
o
r 

lo
ca

l 
fl

o
o
d

 r
is

k
 a

n
d

 m
ai

n
 r

iv
er

s 
(t

h
is

 i
n

cl
u
d

es
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
il

it
y 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g
 f

lo
o
d
 r

is
k
 f

ro
m

 s
u
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 a

n
d

 g
ro

u
n

d
 w

at
er

),
 t
h

e 
se

a 
an

d
 l

ar
g
e 

re
se

rv
o
ir

s 
ar

e 
th

e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
il

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t 
A

g
en

cy
. 

T
h

e 
L

L
F

A
 f

o
r 

th
e 

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
H

am
p

st
ea

d
 H

ea
th

 i
s 

C
am

d
en

 C
o
u
n

ci
l.

  
T

h
e 

re
se

rv
o
ir

 s
ec

ti
o
n

s 
o
f 

th
e 

A
ct

 a
re

 d
ep

en
d

en
t 

u
p

on
 o

n
 t

h
e 

d
ev

el
o
p

m
en

t 
o
f 

se
co

n
d

ar
y 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 (

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n

s 

an
d
 o

rd
er

s)
 b

ef
o
re

 t
h

e 
la

w
 c

an
 b

e 
fu

ll
y 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
. 
S

o
m

e 
o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o
se

d
 c

h
an

g
es

 i
n

cl
u
d

e:
 

!
 

R
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 a
 r

e
se

rv
o

ir
 w

il
l 

b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
te

d
 f

ro
m

 2
5

,0
0

0
m

3
 t

o
 1

0
,0

0
0

m
3

; 
a

n
d

  

!
 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

o
n

ly
 t

h
o

se
 r

e
se

rv
o

ir
s 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 a
s 

a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
sk

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
  

!
 

A
ll

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

rs
 w

it
h

 r
e

se
rv

o
ir

s 
o

v
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

m
3

m
u

st
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
th

e
ir

 r
e

se
rv

o
ir

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

cy
 

!
 

In
sp

e
ct

in
g

 e
n

g
in

e
e

rs
 m

u
st

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 i

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
in

 6
 m

o
n

th
s 

 

!
 

A
ll

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

rs
 m

u
st

 p
re

p
a

re
 a

 r
e

se
rv

o
ir

 f
lo

o
d

 p
la

n
  

!
 

A
ll

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ts
 a

t 
re

se
rv

o
ir

s 
m

u
st

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

T
h

e 
se

co
n

d
ar

y 
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n
 i

s 
b
ei

n
g
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 i

n
 S

ta
g

es
; 

re
ce

n
t 

ad
v
ic

e 
fr

o
m

 D
E

F
R

A
 t

o
 t

h
e 

H
ea

th
 &

 H
am

p
st

ea
d
 

S
o
ci

et
y 

h
as

 i
n

d
ic

at
ed

 t
h
at

 S
ta

g
e 

1
 i

s 
li

k
el

y 
to

 r
es

u
lt

 i
n

 a
 c

h
an

g
e 

o
f 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
se

rv
o
ir

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 

A
-D

 (
th

e 
H

ea
th

 r
es

er
v
o
ir

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

C
at

eg
o
ry

 A
),

 t
o
 a

 s
in

g
le

 “
H

ig
h

 R
is

k
” 

ca
te

g
o
ry

 [
w

h
er

e 
li

k
el

y 
lo

ss
 o

f 
li

fe
 

is
 1

 o
r 

m
o
re

] 
w

it
h

 a
 h

ig
h

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
su

p
er

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o
l,

 a
n

d
 a

 ”
N

o
t 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k

” 
ca

te
g

o
ry

 w
it

h
 l

es
s 

co
n

tr
o
l.

 I
t 

is
 

li
k
el

y 
th

at
 t

h
e 

H
ea

th
 d

am
s 

w
il

l 
b
e 

re
cl

as
si

fi
ed

 a
s 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k
. 

 

It
 w

as
 a

n
ti

ci
p
at

ed
 t

h
at

 S
ta

g
e 

1
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

 t
h

e 
co

n
ce

p
t 

o
f 

ca
sc

ad
e 

o
f 

re
se

rv
o
ir

s 
w

it
h

 a
n
 a

g
g
re

g
at

e 
v
o
lu

m
e 

in
 e

x
ce

ss
 o

f 
2
5
,0

0
0
 c

u
b
ic

 m
et

re
s,

 r
es

u
lt

in
g
 i

n
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 m
o
re

 o
f 

th
e 

H
ea

th
 p

o
n

d
s 

b
ei

n
g
 s

u
b
je

ct
 t

o
 

re
se

rv
o
ir

 l
eg

is
la

ti
o
n
. 

It
 i

s 
n

o
w

 c
o
n

si
d
er

ed
 u

n
li

k
el

y 
th

at
 t

h
is

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

S
ta

g
e 

1
. 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

ar
e 

se
ek

in
g
 a

 

m
ee

ti
n

g
 w

it
h
 D

E
F

R
A

 t
o
 t

ry
 a

n
d
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

p
o
si

ti
o
n

 w
il

l 
in

cl
u

d
e 

th
e 

re
d

es
g
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
d

am
s.

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y 

F
o
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

P
it

t 
R

ev
ie

w
, 

D
ef

ra
, 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 t
h

e 
E

n
v
ir

on
m

en
t 

A
g

en
cy

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u

ce
 s

im
p
li

fi
ed

 i
n

u
n

d
a
ti

o
n
 m

ap
s 

fo
r 

al
l 

2
,0

9
2
 l

ar
g
e 

ra
is

ed
 r

es
er

v
o
ir

s 
re

g
u

la
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
R

es
er

v
o
ir

s 
A

ct
 1

9
7
5

. 
L

o
ca

l 
R

es
il

ie
n

ce
 F

o
ru

m
s 

(L
R

F
s)

 a
n

d
 

re
se

rv
o
ir

 u
n

d
er

ta
k
er

s 
h

av
e 

n
o
w

 r
ec

ei
v
ed

 t
h

es
e 

m
ap

s 
to

 h
el

p
 t

h
em

 p
ro

d
u

ce
 e

m
er

g
en

cy
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

s.
 

T
h

a
m

e
s 

W
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

C
am

d
en

 C
o
u
n

ci
l 

is
 r

es
p
o
n

si
b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e 

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 o

f 
g

u
ll

ie
s 

u
p

 t
o
 t

h
e 

p
o
in

t 
w

h
er

e 
th

ey
 c

o
n
n

ec
t 

to
 t

h
e 

m
ai

n
 

se
w

er
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i

s 
th

en
 t

h
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
il

it
y 

o
f 

T
h

am
es

 W
at

er
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

 

T
h

am
es

 W
at

er
 A

u
th

or
it

y 
se

w
er

s 
ar

e 
d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 c

o
p

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
m

aj
o
ri

ty
 o

f 
st

o
rm

s,
 b

u
t 

o
cc

as
io

n
al

ly
 s

to
rm

s 
ar

e 
so

 
h

ea
v
y 

th
at

 t
h

ey
 o

v
er

w
h

el
m

 t
h

e 
sy

st
em

. 
 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 h
as

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

ed
 s

ew
er

 s
ys

te
m

 t
h

at
 t

ak
es

 i
n

 b
o
th

 s
ew

a
g

e 
an

d
 r

ai
n

fa
ll

 -
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ea
n

s 
d

u
ri

n
g

 a
 h

ea
v
y 

st
o
rm

, 
th

e 
fl

o
w

 i
n

 t
h

e 
se

w
er

 i
s 

m
u
ch

 g
re

at
er

. 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 a
ls

o
 h

as
 a

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

b
as

em
en

t 
fl

at
s 

b
el

o
w

 s
tr

ee
t 

le
v
el

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

t 
g
re

at
er

 r
is

k
 o

f 
se

w
er

 f
lo

o
d

in
g
. 

T
h

am
es

 W
at

er
 A

u
th

or
it

y 
in

st
al

le
d
 a

 f
lo

o
d

 a
ll

ev
ia

ti
o
n

 s
ys

te
m

 t
h

at
 r

u
n

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h

e 
H

ea
th

, 
th

e 
ex

ac
t 

lo
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

d
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 c
u
rr

en
tl

y 
b
ei

n
g
 i
n

v
es

ti
g

at
ed

. 

C
a
m

d
e
n

 C
o
u

n
c
il

 

U
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
2
0
1
0
 A

ct
 C

am
d
en

 C
o
u
n

ci
l 

h
as

 a
 d

u
ty

 ‘
to

 i
d

en
ti

fy
 w

h
er

e 
fl

o
o

d
in

g
 r

is
ks

 a
re

 p
re

se
n
t!

. 

A
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y 

F
lo

o
d
 R

is
k
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
(P

F
R

A
) 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 u

n
d
er

ta
k

en
 f

o
r 

th
e 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 B
o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 

C
am

d
en

. 
It

 h
as

 

b
ee

n
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
th

e 
L

o
n

d
on

 B
o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 

C
am

d
en

 t
o
 m

ee
t 

it
s 

d
u
ti

es
 a

s 
a 

L
L

F
A

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
rs

t 
st

ag
e 

o
f 

th
e 

F
lo

o
d
 R

is
k
 R

eg
u
la

ti
on

s 
(2

0
0

9
).

 T
h

es
e 

re
g

u
la

ti
on

s 
im

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
E

U
 F

lo
o
d
s 

D
ir

ec
ti

v
e 

in
 t
h

e 
U

K
. 

 

P
age 227



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

54

9
7

 

 T
h

is
 s

tu
d
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

L
o
n

d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 

C
am

d
en

 f
o
rm

s 
p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

w
id

er
 D

ra
in

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
a 

w
id

er
 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e 

th
at

 i
n

v
o
lv

es
 t

h
e 

u
n

d
er

ta
k
in

g
 o

f 
S

u
rf

ac
e 

W
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

la
n

s 
an

d
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y 

F
lo

o
d

 R
is

k
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 f
o
r 

ea
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

th
ir

ty
 t

h
re

e 
L

o
n

d
on

 B
o
ro

u
g

h
s.

 

A
n
 i

m
p

o
rt

an
t 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

 o
f 

th
e 

m
et

h
o
d
 f

o
r 

as
se

ss
in

g
 t

h
e 

si
g
n

if
ic

an
ce

 o
f 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 f

lo
o
d

in
g
, 

is
 o

f 
it

 o
cc

u
rr

in
g
 1

 

in
 1

0
0
 c

h
an

ce
 i
n

 a
n

y 
g
iv

en
 y

ea
r.

  

F
u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

an
y 

fl
o
o
d
 d

ef
en

ce
s 

is
 n

o
t 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

A
ct

, 
b
u

t 
th

e 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
en

t 
A

g
en

cy
 i

s 
sp

ec
if

ie
d
 a

s 
th

e 
le

ad
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

o
d

y 
fo

r 
fl

o
o
d
 r

is
k
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 i

s 
ab

le
 t

o
 m

ak
e 

g
ra

n
ts

 i
n

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o
f 

ex
p

en
d
it

u
re

 i
n

cu
rr

ed
 o

r 

ex
p
ec

te
d
 t

o
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 w

it
h

 f
lo

o
d
 r

is
k
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

 E
n

g
la

n
d
. 

It
 i

s 
u
n

d
er

st
o
o
d
 t

h
at

 C
am

d
en

 a
re

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
g
 w

it
h

 a
 m

o
re

 d
et

ai
le

d
 s

tu
d

y 
o
n

 s
u
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 f

lo
o
d

in
g
 i

ss
u
es

 t
h

at
 

h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

cl
u

d
es

 a
re

as
 a

ro
u

n
d
 G

o
sp

el
 O

ak
, 

ju
st

 s
o
u

th
 o

f 
th

e 
H

ea
th

. 
A

t 
th

is
 

st
ag

e 
so

lu
ti

on
s 

re
g

ar
d
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 s

u
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 f

lo
o
d

in
g
 h

av
e 

n
o
t 

b
ee

n
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 o

r 
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

es
e 

m
ig

h
t 

in
v
o
lv

e 
sc

h
em

es
 o

f 
w

at
er

 a
tt

en
u
at

io
n
 o

n
 H

am
p

st
ea

d
 H

ea
th

. 

C
iv

il
 C

o
n

ti
n

g
e
n

ci
e
s 

A
c
t 

2
0
0

4
 

In
 L

o
n

d
o
n
, 
th

e 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y 

R
is

k
 R

eg
is

te
rs

 h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 c

re
at

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
p

u
b
li

c 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

b
o
u

t 
h

az
ar

d
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 p
o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 h
av

e 
an

 i
m

p
ac

t 
u

p
o
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

. 
T

h
e 

re
g
is

te
rs

 h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 p

u
b
li

sh
ed

 i
n

 r
es

p
o
n

se
 

to
 t

h
e 

C
iv

il
 C

on
ti

n
g
en

ci
es

 A
ct

 2
0
0
4
. 

C
am

d
en

’s
 l

o
ca

l 
R

is
k
 R

eg
is

te
r 

is
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

b
o
u

t 
h

az
ar

d
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 p
o
ss

ib
ly

 

h
av

e 
an

 i
m

p
ac

t 
u
p
o
n
 t

h
e 

lo
ca

l 
ar

ea
. 
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
 s

p
ec

if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

ss
o

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h

 l
o
ca

l 
u
rb

an
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 

m
aj

o
r 

d
am

 f
ai

lu
re

. 

   !
"
#$

%
&
'$

(
)
*
)
+,
$

-
.
/0
&
1
"
$,
"
2
0
+3
4
/3
&
5
$"
6
/+
)
0
/"
,
$

#+
&
1
$/
7
"
$8
&
5
,
&
5
$9
&
1
1
.
5
3/
:
$!
32
;
$

!
"
<
32
/"
+$
=
"
+2
3&
5
$>
$?
32
2
.
"
,
$@
A
>
>
B$

8
3;
"
C3
7
&
&
,
$

)
5
,
$

D1
4
)
0
/$

!
32
;
$

!
)
/3
5

<
$

9
)
1
,
"
5
$

+"
2
4
&
5
,
"
+2
$

0
&
1
1
"
5
/)
+

:
$
E
)
+0
7
$@
A
>
@
$

H
L1

8
 

 

Lo
c
a
l 
/ 

U
rb

a
n
 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
 

(f
lu

vi
a
l 
o
r 

su
rf

a
ce

 r
u
n
-

o
ff

).
 

-
.
/0
&
1
"
$F
"
2
0
+3
4
/3
&
5
$ 

A
 s

u
st

a
in

e
d
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
h
e
a
vy

 r
a
in

fa
ll 

e
xt

e
n
d
in

g
 o

ve
r 

2
 w

e
e
ks

, 
p
e
rh

a
p
s 

co
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

n
o
w

 m
e
lt
, 

re
su

lt
in

g
 i
n
 f

la
sh

 f
lo

o
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

te
a
d
ily

 r
is

in
g
 r

iv
e
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

ve
r 

e
n
ti
re

 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s,

 c
o
u
ld

 t
h
re

a
te

n
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 

u
rb

a
n
 t

o
w

n
. 

 
Lo

c
a
lis

e
d
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
 o

f 
1
,0

0
0
 t

o
 1

0
,0

0
0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s 

fo
r 

2
-7

 d
a
ys

. 
U

p
 t

o
 1

5
 f

a
ta

lit
ie

s 
&

 1
5
0
 c

a
su

a
lt
ie

s.
 

U
p
 t

o
 1

5
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 e
v
a
cu

a
te

d
. 

U
p
 t

o
 5

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 
st

ra
n
d
e
d
 o

ve
r 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
re

sc
u
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
im

p
a
ct

 r
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

a
il 

lin
ks

, 
m

a
ki

n
g
 t

h
e
m

 i
m

p
a
ss

a
b
le

 f
o
r 

u
p
 t

o
 5

 d
a
ys

. 
 

Im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 i
n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 i
n
cl

u
d
e
s:

 s
o
m

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

 
co

lla
p
se

, 
w

a
te

r 
d
a
m

a
g
e
, 

ro
a
d
 a

n
d
 b

ri
d
g
e
 d

a
m

a
g
e
. 

 
S
e
d
im

e
n
t 

m
o
ve

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
su

p
p
lie

s.
 L

o
ss

 o
f 

e
ss

e
n
ti
a
l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(g
a
s,

 e
le

ct
ri
ci

ty
  

&
 t

e
le

co
m

s)
 t

o
 2

0
,0

0
0
 h

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

u
p
 t

o
 1

4
 d

a
ys

. 
 

W
id

e
sp

re
a
d
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

7
-1

4
 d

a
ys

, 
si

g
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

 
d
e
b
ri
s 

a
n
d
 p

o
llu

ta
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

ff
e
ct

e
d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

e
s.

 U
p
  

to
 1

,0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
in

g
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 w
it
h
 s

h
e
lt
e
ri
n
g
  

fo
r 

u
p
 t

o
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s.
  

R
u
ra

l 
im

p
a
ct

s 
in

cl
u
d
e
 w

id
e
sp

re
a
d
 l
iv

e
st

o
ck

  
ca

rc
a
ss

e
s,

 w
a
te

rb
o
rn

e
 d

is
e
a
se

. 
S
e
w

a
g
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

 
w

o
rk

s 
fl
o
o
d
e
d
. 
U

p
 t

o
 5

0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s 

d
e
st

ro
y
e
d
 a

n
d
  

m
a
n
y 

m
o
re

 u
n
in

h
a
b
it
a
b
le

. 
U

p
 t

o
 2

,0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

  
n
e
e
d
in

g
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 w
it
h
 s

h
e
lt
e
ri
n
g
 f

o
r 

u
p
 t

o
 

1
2
m

th
s.

  
G
)
+3
)
/3
&
5
$H
$I
.
+/
7
"
+$
D5
#&
+1
)
/3
&
5
$ 

T
h
e
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
 e

v
e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 r
e
g
io

n
a
l 
im

p
a
ct

, 
 

p
o
ss

ib
ly

 t
ra

n
sl

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
to

 l
o
ss

 o
f 

liv
e
s,

 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
  

e
co

n
o
m

ic
 d

a
m

a
g
e
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 6

 a
n
d
 1

8
  

m
o
n
th

s 
re

co
v
e
ry

 b
e
fo

re
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 a
s 

u
su

a
l 

co
n
d
it
io

n
s 

a
re

 r
e
st

o
re

d
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
p
th

 a
n
d
 v

e
lo

ci
ty

 o
f 

w
a
te

r 
fl
o
w

s 
w

ill
 v

a
ry

. 
S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

m
u
tu

a
l 
a
id

 w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 d

e
p
lo

y
e
d
 f

ro
m

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 r

e
g
io

n
s,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

o
th

e
r 

re
g
io

n
s 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
sk

 o
r 

im
p
a
ct

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
. 

 

3
 a

n
d
 4

  

 

V
e
ry

 

H
ig

h
 

R
is

k 
ra

ti
n
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

C
a
m

d
e
n
 

9
/1

2
/2

0
1
0
 

H
4
4
  

M
a
jo

r 
-
.
/0
&
1
"
$F
"
2
0
+3
4
/3
&
5
$ 

C
o
lla

p
se

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

w
a
rn

in
g
 r

e
su

lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

lm
o
st

 
1
 a

n
d
 5

 
M

e
d
iu

m
  

T
h
e
 d

o
w

n
 

P
age 228



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
55

9
8

 

 

re
se

rv
o
ir
 

d
a
m

 

fa
ilu

re
 /

 
co

lla
p
se

  
  

in
st

a
n
ta

n
e
o
u
s 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

m
o
ve

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
d
e
b
ri
s 

(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 v

e
h
ic

le
s)

 a
n
d
 

se
d
im

e
n
t.

 C
o
m

p
le

te
 d

e
st

ru
ct

io
n
 o

f 
so

m
e
 

re
si

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s 

a
n
d
 

se
ri
o
u
s 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 o

f 
u
p
 t

o
 5

0
0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s.

 
S
e
v
e
ra

l 
th

o
u
sa

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 

fl
o
o
d
e
d
. 
U

p
 t
o
 2

0
0
 f

a
ta

lit
ie

s,
 u

p
 t

o
 1

0
0
0
 

ca
su

a
lt
ie

s.
 U

p
 t
o
 5

0
 m

is
si

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
s 

a
n
d
 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
tr

a
n
d
e
d
. 

H
a
za

rd
o
u
s 

re
co

v
e
ry

 
a
m

o
n
g
st

 c
o
lla

p
se

d
 i
n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n
d
 d

e
b
ri
s.

 
W

a
te

r 
su

p
p
ly

 t
o
 h

o
m

e
s 

a
n
d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

is
 

lo
st

. 
U

p
 t

o
 2

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

2
 !

 1
8
 m

o
n
th

s.
  

!
"
#
$"
%
$&
'
("
'
)
(*
+
#
%
,
-
#
($
'
*
&
#
.
"
%
$&
'
( 

A
ss

u
m

e
s:

 N
o
 t

im
e
 t

o
 e

v
a
cu

a
te

, 
fl
o
o
d
in

g
 l
a
st

s 
le

ss
 t

h
a
n
 2

4
 h

o
u
rs

. 
E
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

n
o
t 

p
re

-w
a
rn

e
d
. 
 

E
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

d
o
w

n
st

re
a
m

 e
ff

e
ct

 c
o
u
ld

 r
e
a
ch

 5
0
-

6
0
km

. 
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 t

o
 g

a
s,

 e
le

ct
ri
ci

ty
 

su
p
p
lie

s,
 t

e
le

co
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s,

 r
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

a
il 

lin
ks

. 
 

st
re

a
m

 e
ff
e
ct

 
o
f 
th

e
 v

e
ry

 

u
n
lik

e
ly

 
e
v
e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

H
a
m

p
st

e
a
d
 

o
r 

H
ig

h
g
a
te

 
d
a
m

s 
b
re

a
ch

in
g
 

re
m

a
in

s 
in

 
C
a
m

d
e
n
. 
T
h
e
 

e
ff
e
ct

 o
f 
th

e
 

Is
lin

g
to

n
 

d
a
m

 h
a
s 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
im

p
a
ct

 

Is
lin

g
to

n
 a

n
d
 

C
a
m

d
e
n
. 

 C
am

d
en

 h
as

 r
es

p
o
n

si
b
il

it
ie

s 
u
n

d
er

 t
h

is
 l

eg
is

la
ti

on
 t

o
 p

re
p

ar
e 

o
ff

-s
it

e 
em

er
g

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s.

 T
h

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
on

 h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 l

ia
is

in
g
 w

it
h

 C
am

d
en

 C
o
u

n
ci

l 
o
n

 t
h

e 
p

re
p

ar
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
o
ff

-s
it

e 
em

er
g

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o
 t

h
e 

ab
o

v
e 

ri
sk

s.
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 a
t 

W
o
rk

 A
c
t 

1
9

7
4
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
ls

o
 h

av
e 

a 
d

u
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e 

w
el

fa
re

 o
f 

o
th

er
s 

u
n

d
er

 c
u

rr
en

t 
h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
af

et
y 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n

. 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 3
 s

ta
te

s 

th
e 

d
u

ty
 o

f 
al

l 
em

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n

d
 s

el
f-

em
p

lo
y
ed

 p
er

so
n

s 
“i

s 
to

 e
n
su

re
, 
a

s 
fa

r 
a

s 
is

 r
ea

so
n

a
b
ly

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
b

le
 t

h
e 

sa
fe

ty
 

o
f 

p
er

so
n

s 
o
th

er
 t

h
a

n
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
, 
fo

r 
ex

a
m

p
le

, 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

, 
vi

si
to

rs
, 
th

e 
g
en

er
a

l 
p

u
b
li

c 
a

n
d

 c
li

en
ts

”.
 

R
e
fe

r
e
n

ce
s:

 

B
ri

ti
sh

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 F

ed
er

at
io

n
 -

 T
h

e 
F

lo
o
d

 a
n

d
 W

at
er

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ct

 2
0
1

0
 -

 2
1

st
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 B
o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
C

am
d

en
 -

 P
re

li
m

in
ar

y 
F

lo
o
d

 R
is

k
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
–
 1

3
th
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 B
o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
C

am
d

en
 -

 B
o
ro

u
g

h
 R

is
k

 R
eg

is
te

r 
–
 M

ar
ch

 2
0

1
2
 

T
h

e 
B

ri
ti

sh
 D

am
 S

o
ci

et
y 

–
 w

eb
si

te
 R

es
er

v
o
ir

 S
af

et
y 

- 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
ti

sh
d
am

s.
o
rg

/r
es

er
v
o
ir

_
sa

fe
ty

/d
ef

au
lt

.h
tm

#
b
il

l2
0

1
0
 

                     

P
age 229



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

56

99

P
age 230



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 
57

P
age 231



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
LOG OF QUERIES AND ANSWERS ON HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT 

58

Epsom Gateway 
2 Ashley Avenue 
Epsom 
Surrey 
KT18 5AL 
England

Telephone +44 (0) 1372 75 6280 
Mobile    +44 (0) 7710 36 3354  
Email:     mike.woolgar@atkinsglobal.com

www.atkinsglobal.com

© Atkins Ltd except where stated otherwise 

P
age 232



 

 JMW/22/10/13   1 

 

 
 
Present: 
Karen Beare   KB  Fitzroy Park RA (Acting Chair) 
Jeremy Simons  JLS City of London elected member (Deputy Chair) 
Tom Brent   TB South End Green RA 
Rachel Douglas  RD Mixed Pond Association 
Geoff Goss   GG Highgate Men’s Pond Association 
Prem Holdaway  PH Hampstead Heath Anglers Society 
Harriet King   HK Brookfield Mansions RA 
Simon Lee   SL Superintendent, Hampstead Heath 
Mary Port   MP Dartmouth Park CAAC 
Susan Rose   SR Highgate Society 
Jane Shallice   JS Kenwood Ladies Pond Association 
Ellin Stein   ES Mansfield CAAC 
Will Temple   WT Vale of Health Society 
Peter Wilder   PW Strategic Landscape Architect, Wilder Associates 
Jennifer Wood   JMW Communication Officer, City of London (notes) 
Jeremy Wright   JW Heath & Hampstead Society 
 
Alternate members observing 
Tony Gilchik   TG Heath & Hampstead Society 
Marc Hutchinson  MSH Highgate Men’s Pond Association 
Ed Reynolds   ER Oak Village RA 
 
Officers observing:  
Declan Gallagher  DG Operations Service Manager, Hampstead Heath 
Paul Monaghan  PM Assistant Director Engineering, City Surveyors 
Peter Snowdon  PS Project Consultant, City Surveyor’s 
 
 

1. Apologies 
 

Michael Hammerson (Highgate Society), Harley Atkinson(Fitzroy Park RA), Mary Cane(Kenwood 
Ladies Pond Association), Nick Bradfield (Dartmouth Park CAAC) 
 
 

2. Approval of previous note 

• Approved 

• KB thanked JMW for her support in getting the notes out. 
 

3. Matters arising 
 

Legal Meeting 

• KB – a meeting took place between the H&HS and City’s legal representatives and a note is 
to be distributed. This has not yet been agreed but it will be coming. 

• JLS - H&HS put forward a first version which City received last week. City has now sent 
back their changes and hope to have a note agreed next week. 

Ponds Project Stakeholder Group 

DRAFT NOTE OF MEETING 

Monday 21 October 2013, 6.00pm 

Parliament Hill meeting room 

 

Page 233



 

 JMW/22/10/13   2 

 

• WT – what is note about? 

• JLS – it is about the differences in opinion over the legal basis for the project. 

• JS – it is important to work out what these differences are before the public consultation, so 
it can be clearly presented to the public. 

• JLS – we can’t go into too much detail as the meeting was sought by H&HS on a privileged 
basis. 

• CL – will it impact on the timetable? 

• SL – probably not as the City is proceeding with the advice it has been given. 

• RD – this legal difference needs to be made clear during the public consultation. 

• SL – agreed that we will make our legal position clear. It is up to the H&HS to present their 
legal position. 

 
Meeting with Brookfield/EGOVRA and Atkins 

• SL – hoping to organise this meeting in the next week or two. 

• MP – will it include West Hill Court Residents Association? 

• SL – this would need to be discussed with the Chair and also Brookfield/EGOVRA. 

• KB – this meeting is primarily to discuss the outstanding queries that Brookfield/EGOVRA 
have so perhaps not appropriate to invite West Hill Court, but they can be updated on the 
meeting and discussions can be shared with them. 

• MP – West Hill Court should be invited to join PPSG 

• SL – the membership of the PPSG will possibly need to be reviewed at some point and at 
this stage they can be perhaps be brought in. The City has met with them separately and 
has been keeping them updated. 

• PH – Anglers should be involved in discussions about Highgate No.1 Pond 
 
Meeting with Prem Holdaway – Hampstead Heath Anglers Society 

• SL –important for PH to come in and be updated on any aspects he may have missed. 

• PH – Anglers meeting next week. 

• SL – need to get a specific meeting in the diary. 
 
 
4.  Feedback on Preferred Options Report 

 

• SL – we started off six months ago on this iterative process. Comments tonight will form the 
basis of a report which goes to Consultative Committee. Important to remember this is not 
the detailed design, these are outline options which go to a wider public consultation. 

• KB – we will go around the table and everyone can give their views. 

• MP – still unclear about the proposals for mitigating the works which will have a profound 
effect on Heath and those who live nearby. The Model Boating Pond (MBP) is extremely 
artificial looking and to concentrate work here is the least unreasonable location. We support 
Highgate Society in their opposition to a floating island on Stock Pond. We need to be 
clearer about what the spillways will look like. H&HS made a proposal to increase depth of 
MBP – we are interested in this proposal. Need better visualisations. 

• SR – spillway diagrams completely inadequate. Need to be marked out on ground and the 
depth must be made clear. Worried that the general ecology will make everything look far 
too tidy and manicured. What would be the purpose of a water channel in Bird Sanctuary 
Pond? There should only be absolute minimum raising of MBP. Access must be carefully 
considered. The digging out of MBP creates such a huge volume of storage we question 
why the embankment needs to be so high. 

• HK – the threat to life and property at the end of the chain should be considered. Scour 
pipes can be adapted in a way to make them passive. Pipes need to be looked at in more 
detail. Thames Water need to be more involved. Lots of tables in the Design Flood 
Assessment have now been superseded – it is difficult to make comparisons. The idea of 

Page 234



 

 JMW/22/10/13   3 

 

creating a dry reservoir has not been given any serious consideration. The concerns of 
Brookfield and downstream residents have not been taken into account. The water that 
leaves the chain through the bottom spillway will create a lot of damage. 

• CL – our statement was joint with Brookfield. Beggars belief that only minimal 
communication has taken place between City,Thames Water and Camden Council. It should 
be a legal requirement for these organisations to work together. Still no idea about what the 
storm relief drain does. Happy that the standard of protection is going up. It is supposed to 
be a generational project, but how can it be if it doesn’t take into account changing weather 
patterns. We urge City to put pressure on Thames Water and Camden Council to get more 
done. 

• JS – Kenwood Ladies Pond relatively happy as the impact on their pond is minimal. The 
spillway will be in a wooded area and not visible. But swimmers are also users of the Heath 
and we are urging them to contribute during the public consultation. Worried that there isn’t 
any room for manoeuvre. Very clear information on the flood estimates must be produced to 
allow people to have an educated choice. People must be convinced by the stats otherwise 
consultation is a waste of time. 

• TB – too many vague stats. KB picked up the differences in the scales of the hydrographs – 
makes a mockery of the process. I support the principle of the works and when Catchpit was 
raised as a solution, it became a catch all and negated serious work south of the chain. 
However now we have a proposal to raise the Mixed Bathing Pond dam by 2m – I do not 
believe this is necessary. The figures are fantasy and there is no logic why there needs to be 
a raising here. I think we’ve been misguided and a lot of it doesn’t make sense and is very 
confusing. 

• RD – we’ve got to go back to basic principles. We need to know the City’s legal obligations. I 
can’t justify the project to any of my members. We haven’t been told anything about early 
warning systems. We think the figures are designed to scare and would urge City to stop 
using them. Concerned about timing of public consultation – especially with Mixed Pond 
users as not around over winter. What is the purpose of the consultation exercise? Catchpit 
sounds like a good idea but we don’t want a big walkway – it must remain as a wooded dell. 
Must be done in a sensitive way. Mixed Pond Association do not support the 2m raising and 
the idea of having a wall on top is horrendous. Strongly opposed to Option P. 

• WT – support the high level comments that have been presented already. Atkins have been 
very conservative. The proposal to raise Vale of Health is now at 0.6m and has gone up from 
0.2m – quite a big increase relative to the work required – needs explanation. We feel the 
best place for the spillway is at the south end as this follows the natural contours much 
better. 

• GG – we do recognise there is a risk of flooding but we think the solutions are 
disproportionate. We want Atkins and the City to go back and look at combining a range of 
solutions and take into account early warning systems. We don’t understand the 
hydrographs and they are difficult to read. Spillways should be shown on the maps and need 
to be more explicit. We proposed a solution which was discounted because it would have 
been a 60m wide channel running down the side of the ponds, but some of the spillway 
proposals are 60m wide. We want a solution which uses a combination of ideas – pipes 
combined with spillways etc. 

• PH – all of the proposals take away angling from the ponds, especially where dams are 
being built up. Is it legal for a spillway to come off Highgate No. 1 and take water onto the 
public highway? Need to look at storm relief system and enlarging pipes. 

• JW – we cannot support any of the options but will continue to work with the City to see if we 
can get the minimum that is legally required for the scheme. Consultation with this group is 
going too fast. The public consultation starts the day after the Management Committee – too 
soon. Unclear about the period after the public consultation. We have little faith in the 
figures, especially the QRA and we have not had answers to our questions and will not get  
them until after 28 October. Too much is required on Highgate No. 1 – it is a very visible 
dam. Our idea to have the whole of Mixed Pond as a spillway was not incorporated in the 

Page 235



 

 JMW/22/10/13   4 

 

report. Visualisations need to be better. We are worried about the landscape and ecological 
analysis – we thought it was indicative and we want site walks, but now worried these are 
set in stone. 

• ES – we share concerns of other downstream community representatives about lives and 
properties at risk and worried about where water will be sent out. We need to know more 
about drainage. We don’t have the information we need to make decisions. The likelihood of 
various events needs to be clarified. The information for the public consultation needs to be 
simplified and in plain English. It must address the issues people are concerned with. A cost 
benefit analysis must be presented and simply explained. Money, inconvenience and time 
are big questions. 

• KB – the changes through the document have been difficult to track. A lot of work has gone 
into presentation but the documents are hard to read. No information on spillways and it is 
regrettable there are no contour maps. It has been helpful to meet with CL and HK but lots of 
anomalies were discovered - hopeful that the meeting due to take place will resolve these. 
Still not sure how early warning will affect the design. Visualisations need to be clearer. 
Consultation is about listening and paying respect, which the City has done. Consultation is 
not about agreeing. 

• PW – I’ve drafted a report about the effectiveness of the consultation process. Not everyone 
in the PPSG is happy with the outcome but I feel that people might have been a little unfair 
and dismissive of what has happened so far. Atkins have gone to great lengths but perhaps 
they need to be clearer. If you look back at the Critical Review you will see your initial ideas 
have been taken on board. The legality issue is overhanging but are these the best results 
we can achieve? I’m hearing around the table that this group does not think they are the best 
and that many are still not convinced about the scale and that it is too much. 

• CL – not everyone thinks it is too much. 

• PW – how can this group come back and vocalise what they are not convinced about? We 
have been on a balanced journey, not everyone agrees with the outcome but it has followed 
the original brief, set out by this group. 

• SL- PPSG thinks the designs are too conservative. With regards early warning, the Met 
Office will not give us a guarantee on an accurate prediction of a convection storm. If people 
are truly unhappy then a judicial review may be the only thing to settle it. We are proceeding 
with the advice we have and following industry standard. 

• KB – let’s now have a Q & A for 15 mins. 

• JS – PW wrong that the question of law as the only way this is being judged, the biggest 
issue will be what the public consultation throws up. Clarity in the public consultation is key. 

• SL – we understand we must set out the City’s story. 

• TB – still lots of vague aspects that need sorted out. Scales on hydrographs must be like for 
like. 

• GG – from an engineering perspective, it is the optimisation which concerns me. None of our 
suggestions, such as extra pipes have been taken on board. Heath is a special place, if it 
takes 3 to 4 months to thrash out a better plan that would surely be better. 

• JW – H&HS have put forward alternative approach. 

• SL – unfortunately our lawyers could not accept that approach. 

• JW – SL challenged the H&HS to bring a judicial review. 

• SL – Not true, did not say H&HS, but if those who don’t agree with our proposals, we would 
prefer this challenge sooner rather than later. 

• JW – no judicial review until a report on final design is taken to Management Committee.  

• SL – if we do not progress the project at deliberate speed, a section 10 could be called. If 
this happens, the work must take place without the City being able to control and influence 
and works could be focused on the three statutory reservoirs. The implementation to resolve 
risks would be would be time bound. 

• GG - is Section 10 part of 1975 Reservoirs Act? 

• SL – yes 

Page 236



 

 JMW/22/10/13   5 

 

• RD – there has been a change in emphasis from Government recently that moves away 
from flood defence to reduction in flood risk, as the authorities realise they cannot defend 
against a flood. 

• SL – yes this is true and very important. 

• WT – seems absurd that the flood relief system has not been taken into account. 

• SL - on 14 Jan, the PPSG heard a presentation from Thames Water and in this it was said 
that the flood defense system under the Heath can only deal with a 1 in 70 year size flood. In 
the PMF event this system would be full and would not help the situation. 

• PH – if all pipes are enlarged, then the dams wouldn’t need to be so high. 

• SL- we’ve looked into this option but it is not viable with the amount of water we are talking 
about. 

• HK – what is the percentage of the PMF that can be stored in Option 4? 

• SL – not sure 

• HK – is the purpose of the 2010 Act not to protect life and property? If not should it be? 

• CL – after public outcry in 2011 a more landscape led approach was put forward. Is there 
any way this could be peer reviewed? 

• KB – having run through the figures, we are not convinced that the standard of protection 
increases. 

• TB – why can’t more height be put at Catchpit to reduce work downstream? 

• TB – what is the build-up time of a convection storm? 

• JW – City rejected early warning because MET office can’t warrant a convection storm, but 
in the Design Flood Assessment they talk about several hours of overtopping before 
collapse. 

• JW – please retitle Preferred Options Report, Proposed Options Report 

• SL – no – it is the the City’s lead designers (Atkin’s) Preferred Options. 

• KB – we’ll take item 6 next. 
  

6. Update on Communications and Consultation 
 

• SL – important to stress this is the City’s consultation exercise. We take on board all of your 
comments about setting out all of the facts clearly and giving people as much context as 
possible. 

• JMW – we’ve been working with our consultants Resources for Change to design a 
consultation which will reach as many people as possible. Using a mixture of methods – 
drop-in center, consultation stands, mail shot of questionnaire, online questionnaire. 

• ES – could a question and answer session which is open to the public, but moderated 
beforehand be useful? 

• WT – perhaps an event on the Heath, which could attract a large number of people. 

• KB – need targets to demonstrate value in the consultation. Dismayed that Resources for 
Change were not planning to consult upon the background of the project. 

• SL – they are now. All of the comments made by the group have been taken on board 
 
 
5.  Update on Contractor Appointment and Programme– Simon Lee 

• SL – thanks to JW and SR for giving up their time to be part of the contractor appointment 
process. Moderation took place earlier that day and hopefully very close to appointing. 

• JW – very impressed by the rigorous procedure. 

• SL – a report on this process will be taken to Management Committee. 

• JW – need to flesh out the timetable after the public consultation. 

• KB – perhaps a calendar could be produced? 

 

Page 237



 

 JMW/22/10/13   6 

 

7. Next meetings 
 
Monday 2 December 
Monday 13 January 
Monday 24 February 
 
8. AOB 

 

• SL announced he would be leaving his position as Superintendent to become Chief 
Executive of Wimbledon and Putney Commons. 

• PPSG said it had been a pleasure working with SL and he will be sorely missed on the 
Heath. 
 

Page 238



THE HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT

WITHOUT PREJUDICE JOINT STATEMENT

by the City of London Corporation and The Heath & Hampstead Society

Representatives of the City and the Society, together with their respective legal advisers, met on 

19 September 2013 at the Guildhall to exchange views on the legal basis for the proposed works comprising

the Project.

The parties agree that the Reservoirs Act 1975 (“RA 1975”) currently only applies to the three largest ponds 

on Hampstead Heath, but that the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (“FWMA 2010”), if fully 

implemented, will apply the RA 1975 to all of the ponds in the Hampstead and Highgate chains. It is agreed 

that, to the extent that works are required, it is preferable that these should be carried out in a holistic way 

along the chains of ponds (rather than be confined to the three largest ponds), in order to minimise the 

impact on the Heath, and to avoid further works having to be undertaken if the FWMA 2010 is fully 

implemented. The Society accepts that some works may be necessary in order to ensure the safety of the 

ponds in accordance with the RA 1975.

The RA 1975 requires the City to take appropriate steps “in the interests of safety” to maintain the dams on 

the relevant ponds. The phrase “in the interests of safety” is not defined in the RA 1975.

The view of the City is that the phrase “in the interests of safety” must be given its meaning by dam 

engineers carrying out their appointed roles under the RA 1975, and ultimately, in appropriate circumstances, 

by a court or tribunal according to the relevant law.  The City has decided to follow the advice given by its 

supervising engineer, appointed under the RA 1975, as to the works that are required. He in turn is following

standard industry guidelines that have been applied to reservoirs nationwide. These guidelines state that, 

where a community could be endangered by the breach of a dam, the risk of any breach caused by a flood 

must be virtually eliminated. In other words, safety comes first. It is only where no community is at risk that 

economic factors, and possibly other factors such as environmental factors, may be taken into account.

The view of the Society is that the phrase “in the interests of safety” must be given its meaning by the courts

and according to the general law.  Because absolute safety cannot be achieved, a court would hold that a 

standard of reasonable safety is the standard intended by the RA 1975. Such a standard is not 

compromised by considering during the process of the design of the works (i) how to reduce the adverse 

consequences of dam collapse by taking into account practicably available measures such as early warning 

and (ii) the balancing of the scale of the proposed works against their impact on the Heath, its users, the 

local community and the environment.

The Hampstead Heath Act 1871 (“HHA 1871”) requires the City to at all times preserve, as far as may be, 

the natural aspect and state of the Heath. The City’s view is that this is a qualified duty, which does not

prohibit works that are required under any other statutory provision i.e. the RA 1975, or works that are 

otherwise required in the interests of safety. Accordingly, the HHA 1871 should not influence any decision as 

to the works that are required in the interests of safety under the RA 1975, but is relevant to the Project in 

that, so long as this does not jeopardise safety, the works should be undertaken in the way that is most 

sympathetic to the natural aspect and state of the Heath.

The view of the Society, on the other hand, is that the duties of the City under the HHA 1871 must influence 

at an initial stage any decision as to the works that are required under the RA 1975.

As a result, the City and the Society were unable to agree on the correct application of the RA 1975 and the 

HHA 1871 to the Project.

Date of publication: 7 November 2013

Page 239



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



W I L D E R

A S S O C I A T E S

Hampstead Heath

 Ponds Project

STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECT REVIEW

FINAL VERSION
27th October 2013

P
age 241



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

2

P
age 242



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION     5
GENERAL OVERVIEW    6
PROBLEM DEFINITION   10
DESIGN       12
PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 18
THE NEXT STAGE     20
CONCLUSION      21

DOCUMENT REVISIONS
First Draft  15th October 2013
Second Draft 22nd October 2013
Final Version  27th October 2013

P
age 243



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

4

Kenwood Ladies’ Bathing Pond

Wood Pond

Vale of Health Pond

Whitestone Pond

Seven Sisters Ponds

Lily Pond

Swan Pond

Leg of Mutton Pond

Hampstead No. 1. Pond

Hampstead No. 2. Pond

Mixed Bathing Pond (No.3.)

Viaduct Pond

Thousand Pound Pond

Stock Pond

Bird Sanctuary Pond

Model Boating Pond

Highgate Men’s Bathing PondHighgate Men’s Bathing Pond

Highgate No. 1. Pond

Highgate Ponds

Hampstead Ponds

Overview of Hampstead Heath Ponds

P
age 244



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

5

In August 2012 The City of London appointed 
the Strategic Landscape Architect for the 
Hampstead Heath Ponds Project to act as 
an impartial representative of the Ponds 
Stakeholder Group and to challenge the 
design team to come up with the most 
sensitive and appropriate solutions for the 
Heath, taking into account the various 
!"#!$%&'()'*+%',%-.&,#*.(!/'0((1'2(1%,,.!-'
and environmental considerations required. 
This is a role that has continued to evolve as 
the project examines both the legal and moral 
obligations of the City of London to comply 
with the Reservoirs Act, Flood and Water 
Management Act and the Hampstead Heath 
Act.

3!%'()'*+%'45&*'.!.*.#*.6%&'"!1%5*#7%!'89'*+%'
Strategic landscape Architect was a workshop 
designed to consolidate the opinions, fears 
and aspirations of the Hampstead Heath 
Ponds Project Stakeholder Group (HHPPSG) 
into a cohesive document that could be 
formulated into a brief for the design team. 
This was to become an important milestone 
in the project as it provided a platform for the 
stakeholder groups to formalise their concerns 
into a powerful message both to the City of 
London and to the Atkins design team.

This report is a summary of the design 
process and the role that the HHPPSG have 
had in determining the issues most pertinent 
to their members. It also examines how 
issues raised in the Critical Review have been 
addressed in the proposals by Atkins and 
whether the consultation process has in fact 
.!0"%!$%1'*+%'("*$(2%:

On the 6th October 2012 the Strategic 
Landscape Architect accompanied the HHPPSG 
and the Superintendent of Hampstead Heath 
on a walk of the Hampstead chain to discuss 
possible approaches and issues regarding 
the proposed works. In subsequent visits 
The Panel Engineer also joined the group to 
discuss possible options in addressing the 
issue of dam safety. The issues discussed 
ranged from potential impacts of the dam 
works on more sensitive parts of the Heath 
to how the proposals by Haycock  might 
be mitigated through the work of Atkins. 
The Panel Engineer proposed a number of 
possibilities, including works on less sensitive 
areas of the Heath such as the Catchpit on the 
Hampstead Chain and the Model Boating Pond 
on the Highgate Chain. As a result of these 
discussions the Strategic landscape Architect  
proposed a that a workshop be held in order 
to gather ideas, thoughts, opportunities and 

concerns of the stakeholder group into a 
single and coherent document as a reference 
for Atkins in their approach to the Hampstead 
Heath Ponds Project.

The workshop which took place on the 
10th January 2013 involved a virtual walk 
through both chains of ponds in order to 
5%6.%;'&<%$.4$'$(!$%5!&')(5'%#$+'<(!1'#!1'*('
review the perceived shortfalls of the Haycock 
proposals. The following is a summary of the 
outcomes of the workshop and the subsequent 
report produced by Wilder Associates for the 
HHPPSG.

INTRODUCTION

P
age 245



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

6

There was an general consensus, among the 
HHPPSG, that much of the proposed works 
in the Haycock report were aimed at creating 
water storage high up in the Heath for 
0"&+.!-'*+%',(;%5'<(!1&'.!'(51%5'*('.2<5(6%'
water quality. It was deemed that the impact 
of such development on the more sensitive 
<(!1&';#&'1.&<5(<(5*.(!#*%'*('*+%'8%!%4*&:'
It was also felt that other means of achieving 
water quality, such as re-circulation, de-silting 
#!1'8.(=4,*5#*.(!';(",1'8%'#'2(5%'#<<5(<5.#*%'
and far less intrusive. Another concerns was 
that the main objective of the ponds project, 
to ensure the resilience of the dams, was not 
best served by increasing water storage at the 
top of the pond chain.

A principle concern of the HHPPSG was the 
prevention of tree loss on the more intimate 
ponds, such as Stock, Bird Sanctuary and 
Kenwood Ladies Bathing Pond and the 
protection of critical views. There was general 
consensus among stakeholders that in order 
to improve the overall resilience within each 
pond chain and to lessen the impact on the 
Heath, the focus of works should be aimed at 
the middle of each pond chain. The possibility 
of major works at the Catchpit on the 
Hampstead Chain and the Model Boating Pond 
on the Highgate Chain was agreed on the 
basis that only minor works would be required 
to improve the dam structures and spillway 
capacity of the remaining ponds.

The Critical Review of Key Issues by the 
Water Management Stakeholder Group 
>??@@ABC'.1%!*.4%1'<(&&.8.,.*.%&'#!1'<5.!$.<,%&'
that were broadly acceptable to the group 
based on feedback from site walks and the 
10th January workshop.

The following is a brief summary of the points 
made by the HHPPSG on each of the ponds 
likely to be affected by the Ponds Project:

Highgate Chain

Stock Pond
A small and intimate pond, third in the chain, 
this pond has a very small capacity for storage 
and its dense vegetation means that any 
changes to the dam height or water level 
would result in tree loss. The small causeway 
that crosses over the dam is one of the most 
delightful experiences on the Heath and it 
was felt the value of the pond character far 
outweighed the relatively small gains that 
might be made through works to improve 
storage capacity. It was felt that works here 
should only address resilience of the dam to 
overtopping and improved ecology through 
some light clearing of base vegetation with 
retention of the main tree canopy structure.

GENERAL OVERVIEW

P
age 246



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

7

Kenwood Ladies Bathing Pond
The screening of the Ladies Pond by trees is 
fundamental to the secluded setting and the 
location of the changing facilities on the dam 
crest provides the lifeguards with the best 
possible views over the pond. It was therefore 
felt that minimal changes to the dam height 
and the retention of existing entrances 
and access arrangements were important 
considerations. Retention of key views from 
the south meadow and improvements to 
water quality were also considered important 
issues to address along with improved 
resilience to overtopping during extreme 
rainfall events.

Bird Sanctuary Pond
The Bird Sanctuary Pond receives water both 
from the Ladies Bathing Pond and surface 
water runoff from Heath which feeds its 
western arm. Any change in water level here 
would dramatically change the character 
of the shallow wetlands and emergent 
vegetation that have made this a rich 
ecological environment. It was considered 
that any disturbance of this pond through 
dam improvements may have a detrimental 
effect on the wildlife and biodiversity which 
surrounds this pond. Many considered that 
further management, including the removal of 
invasive species and expansion of bird nesting 
areas, could be enabled through the Ponds 
Project. It was considered that a raising of the 
1#2'+%5%';(",1'+#6%',.**,%'8%!%4*/'<#5*.$",#5,9'

HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS
A CRITICAL REVIEW OF KEY ISSUES BY THE 

WATER MANAGEMENT STAKEHOLDER GROUP

February 2013

Front cover of the Critical Review by the Water Management Stakeholder Group (now Hampstead Heath Ponds Project Stakeholder Group)

P
age 247



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

8

as the raising of the dam at the Model Boating 
@(!1';(",1'5%&",*'.!'*+%'*%2<(5#59'0((1.!-'
of the causeway between the ponds without a 
long term detrimental effect to the wildlife.

Model Boating Pond
One of the largest ponds on the Heath, 
the Model Boating Pond is also one of the 
most open and formal with hard edges and 
pathways to the entire perimeter. This pond 
offers the greatest opportunity for expansion 
through raising of the dam and expansion 
towards the west. There are still concerns 
however about the loss of openness and the 
ability for the pond to continue to function 
as a boating pond. Existing trees on the west 
side of the pond should be retained and could 
be incorporated into an island or peninsula of 
the pond and a new spillway on the south-
western corner of the pond should aim to 
minimise tree loss.

Highgate Men’s Bathing Pond
The largest pond in the Highgate chain, 
the Men’s Bathing Pond has limited room 
for expansion due to large groups of trees 
on its east and west banks and a relatively 
narrow dam on its southern perimeter. 
Works on the Model Boating Pond are likely 
to have an impact on the setting of this 
pond and any raising of the dam on the 
Men’s Bathing Pond should avoid any loss of 
trees. The ponds project should also aim to 
create improvements in water quality, either 

through dredging or aeration systems and 
improvement in disabled access. 

Highgate No.1 Pond
This pond, the lowest in the Highgate Chain, 
sits in close proximity to residential properties 
.!$,"1.!-'D5((74%,1'E#!&.(!&'*('*+%'%#&*:'
The dam has a large number of trees on it 
which provide screening to the Heath. Whilst 
raising of the dam is not the preferred option 
here, due to loss of tree cover and impact 
on adjoining properties, there is a strong 
1%&.5%'*('.2<5(6%'*+%'0((1'5%&.,.%!$%'()'*+.&'
<(!1'#!1'*('#6(.1'0((1.!-'()'!%#589'#!1'
downstream properties. Whilst major works 
to the Model Boating pond would help to 
.2<5(6%'*+%'0((1'5%&.,.%!$%'#!1'5%1"$%'*+%'
incidence of overtopping, some work should 
be carried out on this pond to improve its 
capacity to pass water safely on and past 
D5((74%,1'E#!&.(!&'.!'*+%'%6%!*'()'#'2#F(5'
storm.

Dr. Andy Hughes discusses dam safety at Highgate No.1 Pond.

The HHPPSG review the setting of the Model Boating Pond

P
age 248



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

9

Hampstead Chain

Vale of Health
Lying at the head of the western branch of 
the Hampstead Chain, the Vale of Health 
Pond is an integral part of the Vale of Health 
community. As such it was felt that very little 
should be done to disturb the setting of the 
pond and that increased storage capacity here 
;(",1'8%'()',.**,%'8%!%4*'*('*+%'0((1'5%&.,.%!$%'
of the chain. Minor improvements to the dam 
crest (crest restoration) and improved spillway 
capacity would help to ensure that the pond 
$#!'&#)%,9'<#&&'0((1';#*%5'1(;!&*5%#2'.!'#'
peak storm event. Loss of trees and access 
to the water’s edge were key concerns of 
residents.

Viaduct Pond
Lying at the head of the northern branch of 
the Hampstead Chain, the imposing structure 
of the viaduct makes this one of the most 
photographed of all ponds on the Heath. 
This pond suffers from silt problems due to 
the largely untreated runoff from the Heath. 
The dam suffered damage in the 1975 storm 
and repair work carried out since has made 
this one of the more resilient structures on 
the Heath. Therefore the major concerns for 
this pond are around loss of vegetation and 
alteration of the scene if major dam works 
were proposed. Potential for de-silting and 
5%%1'8%1'4,*5#*.(!'#*'*+%'!(5*+%5!'%!1'()'*+%'
pond should be considered as part of the 

<(!1&'<5(F%$*'#,(!-';.*+'.2<5(6%1'(6%50(;'
capacity for major storm events.
Catchpit
The Catchpit currently acts as an interceptor 
for silt from Vale of Health and Viaduct Pond 
before it enters the Mixed Bathing Pond. 
There is scope and space for a potential new 
dam here that would relieve pressure on 
lower dams in the event of a major storm 
event. There is an potential for the new dam 
to be well concealed and to act as a semi-
permanent wetland at the centre of the 
Hampstead Chain. The main concerns around 
*+.&'<5(<(&#,';%5%'#8("*',(&&'()'&.-!.4$#!*'
trees and the route across the Heath as well 
as the proximity of the works to the Mixed 
Bathing Pond.

Mixed Bathing Pond
The Mixed Bathing Pond is well concealed 
from the east and the west with a low and 
open causeway to the south that affords views 
into and out of the pond. While there is an 
opportunity to raise the dam on this pond, 
due to the absence of trees, there is a strong 
view that this should be no more than 1m in 
order to preserve the openness to the south. 
There are also concerns about water quality 
on this pond and the introduction of cascades 
#!1'8.(4,*5#*.(!'8%1&'$(28.!%1';.*+'15%1-.!-'
of the pond should be considered as part of 
the ponds project. There is also concern about 
loss of swimming area if the dam works were 
to further encroach into the pond.

Hampstead No.2 Pond
This pond is bounded by residential properties 
and woodland to the east, open meadows to 
the west and a spectacular avenue of Plane 
trees to the south. There is concern that any 
raising of the dam would result in certain 
loss of trees and therefore any raising of the 
dam here should consider the use of a wall or 
internal dam structure to prevent such loss. 
G+%'$5%#*.(!'()'#!'.2<5(6%1'(6%50(;';.,,'#,&('
have a potential impact on trees and should 
be considered carefully.

Hampstead No.1 Pond
This is the lowest pond in the chain and lies in 
close proximity to housing on its eastern edge. 
There are therefore limits to how high the dam 
can be raised without affecting neighbouring  
properties and without a loss of trees on the 
dam. Tree loss may be necessary in order to 
.2<5(6%'1#2'5%&.,.%!$%'#!1'(6%50(;'$#<#$.*9'
of the dam. However efforts should be made 
to retain or improve screening beneath the toe 
of the dam and to reduce the impact of tree 
loss on the crest of the dam.

P
age 249



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

10

Following the submission of the Critical Review 
H*7.!&'<5(1"$%1'*+%.5'@5(8,%2'I%4!.*.(!'
report which provided an assessment of the 
Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) event and 
*+%'$#<#$.*9'()';#*%5'*+#*';#&',.7%,9'*('0(;'
through the chains in such an extreme event. 
The report examined the methodology of 
approach used in the Haycock report and 
compared it with new estimations on the rate 
of runoff from the site and likely overtopping 
heights of water at each dam during a 
PMF event. The report found that whilst 
the Haycock report may have exaggerated 
the scale of the problem, there were still 
substantial shortfalls in the capacity of the 
dams to safely pass a PMF event through each 
respective pond chain and that works would 
be required to alleviate pressure on those 
pond that were likely to fail during shorter 
return periods.

The second iteration of this report entitled 
Assessment of Design Flood provided a 
more detailed assessment of the hydraulic 
modelling for the Highgate and Hampstead 
catchments. The report looked at both the 
current capacity of the ponds and standard 
of protection as well as predicted scenarios 
of failure during a PMF event. This initial 
report illustrated the height at which each 
dam would overtop in a PMF event and 
provided evidence behind the calculation 
methodologies. The report concluded that 
;+.,&*'*+%'0((1'%&*.2#*.(!&'89'H*7.!&';%5%'

some 30% to 50% lower than those produced 
by Haycock, the volume and duration of 
overtopping during a PMF event combined 
with the uneven nature of the dams led to 
increased likelihood of erosion and potential 
dam breach.

Whilst not strictly part of the brief, Atkins 
<(.!*%1'("*'*+#*'#'8%!%4*'()'.!$5%#&.!-'
storage capacity in order to control the 
overtopping of dams within the two chains 
would provide an enhanced level of protection 
for residents downstream of Hampstead Heath 
during lesser return periods.

G+%'@5(8,%2'I%4!.*.(!J'H&&%&&2%!*'()'I%&.-!'
K,((1'5%<(5*'8%$#2%'*+%'45&*'.!'#'&%5.%&'()'
reports designed to explore all of the options 
available to the design team and to eliminate 
those which were less likely to satisfy the 
(8F%$*.6%&'()'*+%'??@@AB'#!1'*+%'0((1'
modelling carried out by Atkins.

The diagram opposite outlines the iterative 
process agreed by the design team, CoL and 
*+%'??@@AB'.!'#55.6.!-'#*'#'&+(5*,.&*'#!1'4!#,'
preferred options for the project.

PROBLEM DEFINITION

P
age 250



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

11

Stakeholder
consultation with 

constituents 

Stakeholder
consultation with 

constituents 

Overview of options development process

Quantitative 
(QRA) Risk 
Assessment 

(First phase - 
Baseline)

Professional 
experience

Existing pond 
use site visits 
and reports

Ecological 
conditions 

observed and 
documented

Project drivers 
and objectives

Possible 
!"#$%&'"'()*+,+

Water quality

Landscape 
considerations

User 
requirements 
from previous 
consultation

Concept 
engineering

Stakeholder
consultation with 

constituents 

Hydrology 
and hydraulic 

modelling

Detail, data and 
analysis

Environment 
design, 

management and 
improvements

Statutory 
obligations

Engineering and 
environmental 

advice

1st Iteration 
Stakeholder 
engagement

Constrained 
options PPSG 

Workshop 
18 May 2013

Requirements 
for dam safety 

and water 
management

Cyclical 
process taking 
into account 

engineering and 
environmental 
consderations

2nd Iteration 
Stakeholder 
engagement

Short list of 
options PPSG 

Workshop
13 July 2013

3rd Iteration
Stakeholder 
engagement

Preferred options
PPSG Workshop
14 September 

2013

31st May 2013

CONSTRAINED OPTIONS REPORT 

Constrained 
Options Report

4th October 2013

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 

Preferred 
Options Report

(this report)

PROBLEM DEFINITION

Problem 
!"#$%&%'$ 

 Assessment 
of Design 

Report

Quantitative 
(QRA) Risk 
Assessment 

(Second phase 
- Design)

Design 
Development

Planning 
Application

Constrained options

Non-Statutory 
Public 

Consultation

Statutory 
Consultation

Constructor 
involvement and 

advice

Water Management 
Matrix (WMM)

unconstrained options

July 2013

SHORTLIST OPTIONS REPORT 

Shortlist 
Options Report

Design Review 
Method Statement

Above: Extract from Atkins Preferred Options Report outlining the key steps  in 
arriving at a well considered design for the pond chains at Hampstead Heath

P
age 251



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

12

H*7.!&'<5(<(&%1'*+#*'*+%'45&*'&*%<'.!'
5%&<(!1.!-'*('*+%'@5(8,%2'I%4!.*.(!';#&'*('
produce a matrix of Unconstrained Options 
for the Highgate and Hampstead pond chains. 
This matrix considered options for each pond 
that ranged from doing nothing to raising 
dam levels and expanding ponds in order to 
accommodate increased storage capacity. 
Each option was reviewed in the context of 
the habitat, ecology, landscape, water quality 
and the concerns of the HHPPSG, Heath Staff 
and the wider public. Whilst the matrix was 
useful in capturing all of the related issues 
#!1'$(!0.$*&'.*';#&')("!1'*('8%'1.)4$",*'*('
read and provided too many irrelevant or non- 
viable solutions.

It was also at this stage that there was 
particular concern from the HHPPSG over 
.!&")4$.%!*'*.2%'*('$(!&",*';.*+'2%28%5&'
and to provide meaningful feedback to 
reports being produced by Atkins. After much 
deliberation, a new programme was devised 
that created more time between reports, time 
for feedback and re-issue of reports at each 
stage of development and a full day workshop 
at each design stage in order to provide direct 
feedback to the design team on concerns or 
questions about the approach.

3!'*+%'LM*+'E#9'NOLP'*+%'45&*'1%&.-!'
workshop took place on the unconstrained 
options for the Heath Ponds. At this meeting 
Atkins explained that the principle of creating 

storage on the Heath was not to prevent 
0((1.!-'1(;!&*5%#2/'#,*+("-+'0((1.!-'.!'
smaller return periods would be reduced, but 
*('5%1"$%'*+%'.2<#$*'()'0((1'%6%!*&'(!'*+(&%'
ponds lower down in the chain where it was 
1.)4$",*'*('$#559'("*'#!9'2#F(5'1#2';(57&:'D9'
attenuating water higher up the chain where 
2(5%'&<#$%'.&'#6#.,#8,%')(5'&.-!.4$#!*';(57&/'
the scale of works on the more sensitive 
ponds could be reduced and still achieve 
the required standard of protection during 
a PMF event. This was summed up best in 
the statement: “By storing water higher up 
the chain you are taking the energy out it 
by reducing the force and velocity out of the 
storm surge”.

During this session many questions arose 
about whether increasing storage volumes 
;(",1',%#1'*('#'-5%#*%5'5.&7'()'0((1.!-'
downstream and how the proposed dams 
would impact upon the Heath. At this stage 
no actual design had commenced and only 
a methodology of approach was being 
discussed. Nevertheless Atkins were asked 
if they could start to illustrate some of the 
concepts that they had in mind and to explain 
some of the terminology they were using 
&"$+'#&'Q5%&*'R%&*(5#*.(!/'A<.,,;#9&/'36%50(;'
@.<%&'#!1'D(S'Q",6%5*&:'G+%'4!#,'<#5*'()'*+%'
workshop involved the Strategic Landscape 
Architect asking each member of the HHPPSG 
to identify their main concern on each of the 
pond chains in order to establish where there 

DESIGN

Above: Stakeholder Workshop on 13th July 2013 discussed the 
merits of the shortlisted options and the general approach to 
dealing with a major storm event on the Heath.

P
age 252



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

13

was consensus or divided opinion over the key 
issues. This provided a useful insight into key 
concerns that ranged from loss of trees to loss 
of key views on the Heath. This information 
was fed back to Atkins in order to help in their 
5%4!%2%!*'()'*+%'1%&.-!'<5.!$.<,%&:

Whilst some members of the HHPPSG were 
!(*'&#*.&4%1'*+#*'#'<5(<%5'$#&%')(5'*+%';(57&'
had been established through the Problem 
I%4!.*.(!'(5'#'T"#!*.4%1'R.&7'H&&%&&2%!*/'
Atkins were asked to proceed with developing 
a Constrained Options report that looked 
more closely at viable options rather than 
focus on those which were considered non-
viable. At the same time they were asked to 
continue developing their hydraulic modelling 
and landscape and environmental solutions to 
address both mitigation of the works on the 
heath and water quality issues.

On the 7th June 2013 Atkins issued their draft 
Constrained Options Report. This report set 
("*')(5'*+%'45&*'*.2%'*+%',.7%,9'&$#,%'()'*+%'
works at the middle of each pond chain and 
on the 17th June ranging poles were used to 
demonstrate the likely scale of the new dam 
heights proposed at Catchpit and at Model 
Boating Pond. This exercise was met with a 
mixed response at the scale of the proposed 
works if the upper and lower ponds were to 
remain largely untouched. 

The general consensus from this exercise was 
that: 
UP2';#&'*(('+.-+')(5'*+%'E(1%,'D(#*.!-'@(!1
UV:W2'+.-+';#&'#$$%<*#8,%')(5'*+%'Q#*$+<.*'#&'
long as it was relatively concealed and did not 
.2<#$*'(!'&.-!.4$#!*'*5%%&'(5'6.%;&'!(5*+')5(2'
the Mixed Bathing Pond.

The initial Constrained Options report also set 
out key heights and variations for other ponds 
including some of the residual works (those 
works aimed at improved dam resilience 
rather than the creation of storage) including 
crest restoration and spillway types. The 
Constrained Options Final Report was issued 
on the 11th July 2013.

On the 13th July 2013 the second stakeholder 
group workshop was held with the objective of 
debating the merits of the constrained options 
and a method of arriving at a series of short-
list options. At this meeting Atkins presented 
*+%.5'0((1'2(1%,,.!-'#!1'1#2&'(<*.(!&'#,(!-'
with the work of their environmental team on 
landscape and water quality issues. Further 
.!)(52#*.(!'#8("*'*+%'0((1'2(1%,,.!-'#!1'
hydrology approach led to further questions 
from the HHPPSG   with regards to the 
methodologies applied. It was decided that 
the best way to address this would be through 
#'&%5.%&'()'()0.!%'2%%*.!-&'.!6(,6.!-'#'+#!1)",'
of HHPPSG members with particular interest 
in the technical aspects of the dam breach 
modelling. 

Above: Stakeholders were asked by the Strategic Landscape 
Architect to identify their one main concern on each pond chain 
in order to distil the major issues from the minor ones. This 
exercise showed that most concerns centred around the lower 
ponds (since minimal intervention was proposed for the upper 
ponds) and that loss of trees and important views were key 
issues. Other issues around standard of protection downstream 
and design detail were also considered important.

P
age 253



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

14

At the HHPPSG meeting on the 22nd 
July 2013 Atkins were asked to consider 
further options in their constrained options 
report, including the likely impact on other 
ponds if the height of the Model Boating 
Pond dam were lowered to 2m and to 1m. 
H*7.!&'<5%&%!*%1'*+%'(<*.(!&'#&'#'0(;$+#5*'
which illustrated the implications of certain 
decisions taken higher up the chain. One 
such option involved the implications of not 
raising the Model Boating Pond and the likely 
consequences to the downstream ponds and a 
reduced standard of protection. At this stage, 
as anticipated, some of the options began 
to fall away as they were shown to be less 
viable and less acceptable with regards to 
their impact on the Heath. The implication of 
spillways on the character of the Heath was 
also a key concern and Atkins were asked to 
avoid if possible the loss of trees, particularly 
on Hampstead No.2 Pond.

On the 5th August Atkins published their 
Shortlist Options Report which included 
further options as discussed in the stakeholder 
;(57&+(<'#!1'*+%'0(;$+#5*&'(<*.(!&')(5'
both pond chains. Crucially this report also 
<5(6.1%1'*+%'45&*'<+(*(2(!*#-%';(57'()'+(;'
the proposed dams might look in the different 
scenarios proposed. Unlike the ranging 
pole exercise carried out on the Heath, the 
HHPPSG were able to see how the view might 
vary depending upon the viewpoint. Whilst 
these views provoked more debate, they 

illustrated how some viewpoints would be 
marginally affected. Most of the viewpoints 
illustrated were focussed on the ponds that 
would be most affected by the works including 
the Model Boating Pond, Men’s Bathing Pond, 
Mixed Bathing Pond and Hampstead No.2 
Pond. The report also provided a number of 
options and illustrations of environmental 
treatment systems including types of 
revetment, ecological management and water 
quality systems for the ponds. Biological 
$(!*5(,'#!1'0(#*.!-'.&,#!1&';%5%'$(!&.1%5%1'
to help balance the biological oxygen demand 
within the ponds and to reduce the level of 
nitrates and phosphates present. At this point 
information was still unavailable from water 
or silt tests to determine the extent of the 
<5(8,%2:'G+%'T"#!*.4%1'R.&7'H&&%&&2%!*';#&'
also unavailable and the HHPPSG requested 
that this be carried out in order to establish 
the legal premise for the works.

The summer hiatus meant that while there 
was an extended period for the HHPPSG to 
review the Shortlist Options Report, there 
were also a large number of people away 
(!'+(,.1#9:'G+.&'2#1%'.*'1.)4$",*'*('(8*#.!'
input from the members of most stakeholder 
groups. Some meetings, such as the one 
;.*+'D5((74%,1'E#!&.(!&'#!1'XB3YRH/'1.1'
take place over the summer period and a 
representative from the Hampstead Heath 
Anglers Society was briefed ahead of joining 
the HHPPSG.

P
age 254



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

15

At the Preferred Options Stakeholder 
Workshop on the 14th September the early 
part of the meeting focussed on the lack of 
time for consultation and comments from 
Heath and Hampstead Society on the Draft 
T"#!*#*.6%'R.&7'H&&%&&2%!*'.&&"%1'(!'*+%'
29th August. The heath Superintendant 
agreed to provide more time for comments on 
the Shortlist Options Report and that issues 
&"55("!1.!-'*+%'TRH';(",1'8%'1%#,*';.*+'.!'
a separate meeting with representatives from 
the Heath and Hampstead Society. 

Atkins gave a presentation on water quality 
issues and the results of water testing which 
revealed high levels of phosphates and 
nitrates and poor dissolved Oxygen content. 
He stated that this made some of the water 
quality options such as biological control 
1.)4$",*'*('.2<,%2%!*:'

Atkins led the HHPPSG through options for 
each pond chain and stated that the design 
for PMF in the Highgate chain had resulted in 
a greater standard of protection, 1:1000, than 
the current standard of protection of 1:100. 
It was explained that the ponds would safely 
pass all water down the chain during a PMF 
event but that during a shorter return period 
the greater attenuation capacity of the ponds 
would ensure that more water was stored on 
the Heath rather than being passed down the 
chain. This news was welcomed by members 

()'D5((74%,1'E#!&.(!&'#!1'XB3YRH';+('+#1'
expressed concern about this issue from the 
start.

Atkins Senior Engineer explained that the only 
way to reduce tree loss on Hampstead No.2 
Pond from 2 down to 1 would be to increase 
the height of the Mixed Bathing Pond from 
1m to 2m, an equally unpalatable option. 
When asked why increasing the height of 
the Catchpit would not further alleviate the 
situation. Atkins explained that the dam at 
Q#*$+<.*';(",1'!%6%5'4,,'1"%'*('.*&'<(&.*.(!'.!'
the upper catchment and that at 5.6m it was 
already accommodating the PMF volume for 
this part of the chain.

One of the issues that emerged from this 
workshop was a feeling from the stakeholders 
that questions being raised were not being 
properly addressed in writing by Atkins. The 
SLA suggested that although many of the 
questions being asked had been answered in 
previous reports by Atkins, a useful reference 
*(';+%5%'*('4!1'*+%2'(5'#';5.**%!'5%&<(!&%'
would help to resolve any queries. 
Further important meetings took place 
between the workshop of the 14th September 
and the stakeholder meeting of the 30th 
A%<*%28%5:'G+%'45&*';#&'#'2%%*.!-'(!'*+%'
18th September between legal representatives 
on the City of London and Heath and 
Hampstead Society to the discuss the legal 
imperative for the dams project. 

P
age 255



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

16

The second was a meeting on the 27th 
September between HHPPSG representatives, 
the City of London and Atkins to discuss 
the methodology of approach used in the 
T"#!*.*.6%'R.&7'H&&%&&2%!*:'D(*+'2%%*.!-&'
argued the moral and legal obligations of 
the City of London to protect the Heath and 
*+(&%'5%&.1%!*&'1(;!&*5%#2'#*'5.&7'()'0((1.!-'
during both catastrophic and regular storm 
events. The Heath and Hampstead Society 
expressed their frustration that early warning 
systems did not constitute a greater part 
of the risk assessment methodology and 
that manual release mechanisms and early 
evacuation procedures should be considered 
to reduce reliance on the dams during a 
PMF event. The City of London’s response 
;#&'*+#*'*+%'EXG'3)4$%';%5%'"!#8,%'*('
warrant the accuracy of weather forecasts 
for early warning systems and that manual 
procedures may also prove unreliable during 
such events due to the risk that it places 
on staff and emergency services. The City 
of London reinforced their position that any 
designed system must be passive and not rely 
on human intervention to prevent failure of 
the dams. They also stated that whilst it was 
reasonable to assume their might be a loss of 
,.)%')5(2'0((1.!-'1(;!&*5%#2'1"5.!-'#'&%6%5%'
storm event that the City of London were 
legally bound to prevent any likely loss of life 
from a dam breach during such an event.

A further meeting was held on the 27th 
September with members of the Mens Bathing 
Pond Association to discuss proposals that 
they had put forward for a dry channel to 
run between the Model Boating Pond and 
Highgate No.1 Pond in order to alleviate the 
need for a 3m high dam raising at Model 
Boating Pond.  Atkins had stated previously 
that this option would accelerate the rate 
at which water reaches the end of the 
pond chain and provide a lower standard of 
protection than the current situation. They 
also stated that the channel would have to be 
around 50m wide in order to accommodate 
water in a PMF event and that this would be 
a greater intrusion on the Heath than the 
proposed dam increase. Atkins suggested 
that where proposals had been offered by the 
stakeholder group but not adopted they would 
provide reasons why the option had been 
discarded. 

P
age 256



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

17

At the Stakeholder meeting of the 30th 
September 2013 issues around options 
were again discussed and the option of the 
!(52#,,9'159'$+#!!%,'0#!7.!-'*+%'E%!Z&'
Bathing Pond was discussed and debated 
with mixed views on how it improved on the 
current scheme offered. The Highgate Men’s 
Bathing Pond Association were adamant that 
they did not want a 3m increase in height 
of the dam adjacent to their facility. Whilst 
there was some debate over whether this 
was an appropriate time to be introducing 
new ideas or going over old ground, Atkins 
$(!452%1'*+#*'*+%'P2'(<*.(!')(5'*+%'E(1%,'
Boating Pond was no longer being considered 
and instead there were two new options as 
outlined in table 1.1.

On the Hampstead Chain some work has 
been done to show the two main options 
which centred around the raising of the Mixed 
Bathing Pond by 2m or the loss of 2 trees 
on Hampstead No.2 Pond. These options are 
summarised in table 1.2.

!

Highgate Chain 

 Option 4 Option 6 

Model Boating Pond 2m 2.5m 

Men’s Bathing Pond 1.5m (wall) 1m (wall) 

Highgate No. 1 Pond 1.25m (wall) 1.25m(wall) 

Standard of protection 1 in 1000 year 1 in 1000 year 

!

!

Hampstead Chain 

 Option M Option P 

Mixed Bathing Pond 1m 2m (embankment or wall 
combination)

Hampstead No. 2 3x 3m box culverts 0.5m wall, 1x4.5m box culvert 

Hampstead No. 1 1x4.5m box culvert 1x4.5m box culvert 

Standard of Protection 1 in 1000 year 1in 10,000 year 

Tree loss on Hampstead No. 2 2 1 

!

Table 1.1

Table 1.2

P
age 257



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

18

On the 7th October 2013 Atkins issued their 
Preferred Options Report in 3 parts. 
Volume 1 contained the main body of the 
report, Volume 2 contained comments 
received on the Shortlist Options Report 
and Volume 3 contained a compilation of all 
stakeholder comments received and answers 
provided by Atkins. The Preferred Options 
Report acts as a summary of the design 
decisions taken to date and although it is 
!(*'.!*%!1%1'#&'*+%'4!#,'&(,"*.(!/'.*'&%*&'
out the broad principles of a viable scheme. 
It includes a section on suggestions by 
stakeholders that have been incorporated 
into the preferred options and a summary 
of the consultation process undertaken to 
date. Importantly the report contains plans 
for each pond that indicate the dam works 
proposed, the proposed location of spillways 
or box culverts and a range of environmental 
considerations designed to reduce the impact 
of the works or improve the water quality and 
biodiversity credentials of each pond.

The Preferred Options Report contains more 
visualisations of the main works proposals 
than previous reports and aims to capture 
key views for each chain including views 
across the Model Boating Pond, Men’s 
Bathing Pond, Highgate No.1 Pond, Catchpit 
(aerial locations), Mixed Bathing Pond and 
Hampstead No.2 Pond. The report also 
includes a section on discounted options, 
including those put forward by the HHPPSG, 

with reasons why they were not considered 
viable or appropriate.

Summary of the report

The design process that has been undertaken 
by Atkins has paid close attention to the 
Critical Review offered as a guideline by 
the HHPPSG back in February 2013. The 
preferred options leave the upper ponds 
largely untouched with only minor remedial 
works proposed for the dam structures. Ponds 
considered more sensitive, such as the Bird 
Sanctuary Pond and the Kenwood Ladies 
Bathing Pond, would only receive minor 
reinstatement of the dam crest in the current 
scenario. The majority of the works would 
occur in the middle of both pond chains, as 
suggested by the Critical Review. Whilst the 
proposal for a new dam near the Catchpit has 
met with relatively little resistance, it is the 
proposals centred around the Model Boating 
pond that have attracted most criticism. 
It is surprising that the one pond labelled 
as ‘sterile’ and requiring softening by the 
HHPPSG should meet with such resistance 
to change. However, as with all things on 
the Heath, it is a matter of context rather 
than scale of operations that seems to be of 
most concern. The Model Boating Pond, as 
one of the most open a visually accessible 
ponds,  requires that changes are in keeping 
with the context and setting of the Heath. 
There is also pressure to reduce the impact of 

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT

7th October 2013

PREFERRED OPTIONS REPORT 

VOLUME 1

P
age 258



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

19

the Model Boating Pond dam on the nearby 
changing facilities of the Mens bathing Pond.
The options developed by Atkins to reduce 
the dam height from a 3m increase to 2m and 
2.5m respectively, demonstrate a willingness 
to adapt to the concerns of the stakeholders. 
With further environmental mitigation, the 
impact of a 2.5m dam height increase could 
be further softened and blended into the 
existing landscape. The opportunity to soften 
the western edge of the pond and create an 
island from the current tree group would add 
a feature to the pond which feels instantly old 
and in keeping with the rural nature of the 
Heath.

There are certain aspects of the report by 
Atkins that do not tend to sit comfortably with 
the character of the Heath. These include 
proposals to improve water quality through 
the removal of overhanging trees in order to 
reduce the build up of organic matter from 
leaf drop into the ponds. This is very much 
part of the character of the heath and it is 
likely that large volumes of material will still 
be washed or blown into the ponds. The 
creation of islands from excavated sediment 
(5'0(#*.!-'.&,#!1&'.!'*+%'<(!1&'.&'#,&('
uncharacteristic of the Heath and apart from 
reducing the view of open water could in fact 
accelerate the build up of litter within the 
ponds. Floating islands should at least be kept 
out of swimming ponds where they may block 
views of swimmers from lifeguard positions. 

The creation of reed beds at the head of 
each pond would only contribute to increased 
water quality during periods where there is an 
#$*.6%'0(;'()';#*%5:'G+.&'"&"#,,9'($$"5&'1"5.!-'
the winter months when algal blooms and 
water quality are less of an issue. Mechanical 
aeration of ponds through pumps or aeration 
curtains result in a relatively short term 
improvement of dissolved oxygen content. 
A.-!.4$#!*'.2<5(6%2%!*&'.!';#*%5'["#,.*9'
could be obtained through a combination of 
reed beds and pond recirculation through 
Flowform cacscades. These devices, which 
(<%5#*%'(!',(;'0(;'6(,"2%&/'+%,<'*('<5(6.1%'
improved aeration at a molecular level and 
could be concealed within reed beds.

Testing of pond sediment has revealed 
relatively low levels of toxicity meaning that 
material gained from dredging could be used 
or disposed of on site. Though the material 
is unlikely to be suitable for the construction 
of dams, due to its lack of cohesion and 
structural qualities, it could be swapped with 
material extracted from borrow pits to create 
a net balance. Conveyor systems could be 
used to transport materials in order to reduce 
the impact of vehicle movements during this 
process.

Ultimately some of these issues could be the 
subject of a management plan for the Heath, 
but it is essential that any opportunities for 
long term improvement of water quality is 
considered as part of the Ponds Project. Early 
contractor involvement in the design process 
may also lead to further solutions that have 
!(*'9%*'8%%!'.1%!*.4%1'89'*+%'1%&.-!'*%#2:'

P
age 259



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

20

Negotiations with contractors have already 
commenced and it is likely that a contractor 
will be appointed in as early as December to 
assist in the design process. Members of the 
HHPPSG have been involved in the selection 
process and we hope to have the contractor 
engage directly with the stakeholder group 
once they are appointed.

Public consultation is due to commence at 
the end of November 2013 and run through 
*('K%85"#59'NOL\'*('%!&"5%'&")4$.%!*'*.2%'
for all users to have their say in the future 
of the Hampstead Heath ponds. A further 
stakeholder group meeting is planned for 2nd 
December 2014. 

This is by no means the end of the design 
process, and further dialogue is likely to 
happen once a contractor is appointed and 
the design team commence detailed design 
for the project. This will be a time when 
many other questions previously raised by 
the HHPPSG around site access, circulation, 
security, noise, vibration, timing of works, 
phasing and type of equipment used could be 
dealt with directly by the contractor.

THE NEXT STAGE

Above: Members of the HHPPSG, City of London, Capita, Atkins and the Strategic Landscape Architect visit projects by shortlisted contractors 
as part of the tender evaluation process.

P
age 260



HAMPSTEAD HEATH PONDS PROJECT
STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS REVIEW

21

The introduction of the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 has the altered the risk 
categories of dams from A,B,C and D to either 
High Risk or Not High Risk depending on the 
likely loss of life during a PMF event. 

In addition to this the Flood and Water 
Management Act will introduce the evaluation 
of water bodies as cascades so that the 
cumulative volume of water within a chain 
can be dealt with under the Reservoirs Act if it 
exceeds 25,000m³. 

In order to address this legislation the City 
of London have undertaken to review the  
Hampstead and Highgate chain in their 
entirety in order to ensure current and 
future compliance with the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 and the Reservoirs Act 
1975. 

There is currently a statutory obligation to 
have regular dam inspections by a Panel 
Engineer and recent inspections have 
highlighted the inadequacy of the Hampstead 
and Highgate chains to safely pass a PMF 
storm event without a risk of collapse.

The City of London have no alternative but to 
embark on a process to undertake statutory 
works to the dams in a manner that is, as far 
as possible, in keeping with the sentiments of 
the Hampstead Heath Act of 1871. 

Whilst it is conceivable that the Panel Engineer 
could impose a solution to rectify the dams 
at Hampstead Heath, it is in the interest of all 
parties to work towards a solution that is both 
&%!&.*.6%'#!1';#55#!*#8,%:'G+.&'.!6(,6%&'45&*'
recognising that the problem is real and the 
;(57&'F"&*.4#8,%:'

The commitment shown by the City of 
London to deliver an acceptable scheme 
has been matched by the Hampstead Heath 
Ponds Project Stakeholder Group who have 
shown incredible resolve and determination 
to make this scheme as subtle as possible. 
The consultation process, which has engaged 
with an organised and articulate community, 
has had a noticeable impact on the depth 
and breadth of information provided by the 
design team. The design team in turn have 
responded by putting forward a range of 
options that are broadly aligned to the key 
.&&"%&'.1%!*.4%1'.!'*+%'Q5.*.$#,'R%6.%;'89'*+%'
HHPPSG.

Whilst there are still concerns among 
the stakeholders that the proposals are 
disproportionate to the scale of the problem, 
we need to be mindful that the design is 
catering for extreme events. There are 
&*.,,'2#!9'.*%5#*.(!&'*(')(,,(;'8%)(5%'#'4!#,'
scheme is decided. The important issues at 
this stage to be decided by the HHPPSG  are 
the following:

CONCLUSION

!' ?#&'*+%'1%&.-!'<5(6.1%1'&")4$.%!*'' '
 resilience for the pond chains on the Heath. 
! Has the design taken account of the special  
 character of the Heath and preserved   
 where possible that character.
! Have the solutions provided gone far   
 enough to minimise the impact of the   
 works within the constraints of the required  
 works.
!' ?#6%'&*#7%+(,1%5&'8%%!'-.6%!'&")4$.%!*'' '
 input into the key decisions that have been  
 made.

The Preferred Options Report provides a 
basis on which the City of London are able 
to take the current proposals to wider public 
consultation. The options provided are an 
indication of the types of solutions that would 
#115%&&'*+%'<5(8,%2'.1%!*.4%1:'G+%'#5%'
+(;%6%5'!(*'4!#,'1%&.-!'&(,"*.(!&'#!1'*+%5%'
is still scope for review once a contractor has 
been brought on board.

I look forward to working with the Hampstead 
Heath Ponds Project Stakeholder Group and 
*+%'Q.*9'()'](!1(!'.!'*+%')"5*+%5'5%4!%2%!*'
of Atkins preferred options in order to ensure 
that the best possible outcome is achieved for 
future generations who will come to know and 
cherish Hampstead Heath.

P
age 261



P
age 262

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk)  28.10.13   DISCUSSION – NON-STATUTORY PUBLIC PROCESS PLAN 

1 

City of London Hampstead Heath Ponds Project  

Non-Statutory Process for  

Information Giving and Consultation 

26 November 2013 – 17 February 2014 

Context for the Non-Statutory Consultation 
This document outlines a non-statutory process of information giving and consultation to be carried out 

with support from Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk) a specialist engagement organisation employed 

by the City of London to offer expert and independent advice.  This non-statutory consultation process will 

be guided by reference to the City of London’s Communication and Engagement Strategy. The Strategy 

provides a broad framework for this non-statutory consultation process, as well as for the City’s overall 

communication and engagement approach.    

 

As set out in the Strategy’s timeline, the non-statutory process of information giving and consultation is 

being rolled out at a key milestone in the Ponds Project: the development of the Preferred Options report 

for meeting the City of London’s legal obligations to improve the safety of dams in both the Hampstead and 

Highgate chains of ponds to prevent them from failing, whilst maintaining the site’s natural aspect as an 

open space.  It will run from 26 November 2013 – 17 February 2014 (12 weeks).  The non-statutory process 

is intended to support and compliment the range of other communication and engagement activities 

described in the Strategy, including the extensive and detailed engagement of the Ponds Project 

Stakeholder Group. 

 

Note: The first two weeks of the public process from 26 November will largely focus on information giving 

and consultation via online methods.  This will enable the process to take account of the City’s internal 

committees’ approvals process (Hampstead Heath, Highgate Wood and Queen’s Park Management 

Committee, 25 November).  

Purpose of the Non-Statutory Consultation Process 
Working with the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group and informed by activities to date, options have been 

narrowed down to those that best meet the Design Objectives, Principles and Philosophy as originally set 

out in the Constrained Options Report.  It is the Preferred Options for each chain of ponds, which the Non-

Statutory Consultation will be focused upon. 

 

The primary purpose of the consultation process is to inform the public about what is being done and why.  

Full details of the timeline of the project to date, how we have reached the current position in terms of the 

site constraints, hydrology and the legal context that has framed the development of the Preferred 

Options, will be given as part of the information giving process.    

 

People will be given the opportunity to inform the City of London’s choice of solution based on the 

Preferred Options report for the Hampstead and Highgate pond chains.   This will involve a simple 

indication as to which option they prefer; however, the consultation will include an opportunity for open 

responses that will allow people to comment on the options by subject heading: such as amenity; wildlife; 

landscape; and water quality. 

 

There will still be a planning application stage and this will involve a formal consultation for planning 

approval. 

  

What the consultation element (seeking public views) will not cover  

Whilst all comments will be invited and recorded, to avoid confusing the purpose of the non-statutory 

public consultation and / or raising unrealistic expectations the consultation will not specifically: 

Page 263



 

Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk)  28.10.13   DISCUSSION – NON-STATUTORY PUBLIC PROCESS PLAN 

2 

Consult on the legal context 

The consultation will not cover any challenge to the legality of the need to safeguard the pond dams.   

Resources for Change will only consult on the proposals to address the City’s legal obligations.  It is not 

R4C’s role at this stage to engage in consultation on the appropriateness or otherwise of the current UK 

law. This would cause confusion as to the purpose and role of the consultation. 

Consult on the science 

The consultation will not seek public views on the science behind the hydrology or associated modelling. 

 

What the Consultation will achieve 
We cannot expect to walk away from the consultation with a clear consensus or support, i.e. we may not 

get a clearly favoured option or approval from the public for the work on each of the chains.  However it 

will highlight issues (significant or otherwise) that the City Corporation or Atkins need to take account of in 

approving or refining the chosen options to address the concerns of the public about the impact of works 

on the Heath  and it will give a sense of where public feeling is in its reaction to the proposals.    

Who we will seek to reach 
There has been significant engagement already with key stakeholders which will continue.  The purpose of 

this process, both its information giving and consultation, is therefore to ‘reach out’ to others who may be 

affected and have had less involvement to date, with a focus on those with a defined interest in the issues 

raised by the Ponds Project work.  These are identified as: 

 

• Users of the ponds and immediate surrounds  

• Those living within the vicinity of pond chain areas 

• Users of the Heath 

• Those having a specialist interest in the Heath (e.g. bird watchers) 

• Off site - those within potentially impacted area in the situation of a dam failure 

• Those who may potentially (or have reason to think they will) be impacted by the Ponds Project  when 

works take place  

• Wider public (considered beyond scope apart from information sharing) 

 

The non-statutory public consultation will therefore focus on the following groupings identified within the 

City of London’s Communication and Engagement Strategy, based on the nature of their interest in the 

issues raised by the ponds safeguarding work as listed in the bullets above. 

 

• Individual members of the public 

• Recreational groups 

• Advisory and user groups  

• Neighbours and residents  

• Wildlife and science groups 

• Religious and ethnic groups 

• Volunteers 

• Local schools and youth groups 

• Those with local business interests 

 

Baseline data  

The City’s existing data would be used to ensure that outreach to and coverage of the above listed groups 

in the roll out of the process is robust.  We would expect this would include the following kinds of data: 

• City of London statistics on visitors/users 

• Data currently held by the City on the residents’, advisory and user groups  what they are and their 

contact details 

• Contact data already supplied by individuals who have registered their interest in the Ponds Project via 

previous information giving and consultation exercises undertaken by the City of London. 

Page 264



 

Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk)  28.10.13   DISCUSSION – NON-STATUTORY PUBLIC PROCESS PLAN 

3 

 

The following groups are either already involved or there are separate, defined mechanisms that already 

exist by which the City of London is able to engage them at the appropriate time; this may not be necessary 

until the statutory consultation process:  

• Hampstead Heath Consultative and Management Committees   

• The Ponds Project Stakeholder Group, which has representatives from Heath user & interest groups 

and local residents’ groups.   

• Staff 

• Local, regional and national elected representatives 

• Local Authorities with jurisdiction adjacent to the Heath 

• Statutory consultees    

 

Proposed Information Giving and Consultation Methods 
Both the information given and the consultation questions asked need to be clear. The topic is extremely 

complicated.  It is important that plain English and precise, non-ambiguous language are used.  Clear 

explanations should be provided of any project specific terms used.  There is a lot of detail informing the 

need for the project and its options development which is too much to present in the public consultation.  

However those reached by the public process also need to have easy access to all the background 

information, including information on the legal and scientific background, should they wish to consult it in 

more detail.    

 

The following activities are proposed to help ensure the public (with a focus on those affected or 

potentially affected) are informed and able to comment: 

Public meetings 

Note: We have not chosen this method since in our experience it will not reach or give a voice to the 

general public as effectively as the methods below.    

 

On site methods 

Parliament Hill and mobile caravan drop-ins 

At Parliament Hill, a simple, visual display situated in the garage space in the staff yard near the café where 

it is clearly visible from the path.  The purpose of the drop-ins would be to maximise access for the public to 

information about the project and an opportunity to give feedback on the Preferred Options at a very busy 

Heath location.   The drop-ins’ displays and facilities would include the following material:  

• Information boards summarising the project timeline to date 

• Information boards summarising the options considered and their pros and cons 

• A more detailed summary (with images) of the preferred option(s) on a handout for people to take 

away 

• Questionnaires to give feedback on the options for people to fill in or take away  

• A post box for questionnaires to be returned 

• Postcards for people to take away which signpost where further information and feedback 

opportunities can be accessed. 

• Information collection pin boards to gain a sample of visitor numbers and their profiles (age, 

gender, etc) for use when the drop-ins are staffed. 

 

This should be open to the public as much as possible over the consultation period as an unmanned display 

and be staffed at times of high footfall.  

 

In parallel, a mobile caravan unit, encapsulating the broadly the same range visual information, (adapted to 

fit the available space) and feedback materials will be available to widen the coverage of the drop-in facility 

across the Heath, particularly for the Hampstead chain of ponds. 

Page 265



 

Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk)  28.10.13   DISCUSSION – NON-STATUTORY PUBLIC PROCESS PLAN 

4 

Site information 

Information boards should be located at all sites where works are proposed.   The purpose of the site 

information is to enable people to understand the Preferred Options in their immediate location and get an 

enhanced understanding of what the impacts of them might be.  It also engages Heath-users attention in 

the Ponds Project and its proposals at a specific point of interaction or interest for them 

 

This site information would include:  

• Summary information boards on the proposed changes 

• Instructions on how to comment / location of other information 

• Visual markers and other methods of helping people understand the proposals 

• Dispensers for the consultation postcards 

Guided walks at key areas  

The public would be able to meet staff from both Atkins and the City of London to hear about the options 

on the Ponds Project work first hand.  This would be at the key areas on the Heath such as the Model 

Boating Pond, Men’s Bathing Pond, Highgate No. 1 pond, Mixed Bathing Pond and the Hampstead No. 2 

pond.  This would provide an opportunity to ‘ask the experts’ and would complement the on-going work 

the Heath management team have already done.   This kind of ‘on the spot’ information giving will make 

the work and options more meaningful and easier for people to understand.   The Guided Walks at Key 

Areas would be advertised by the City of London for example in the local press and on boards around the 

Heath to indicate which days they were available. 

 

Participants would then be encouraged to complete questionnaires (i.e. the same as those provided at the 

drop-ins) at the end of the talk, having had their interest and understanding stimulated by that.   If possible, 

there should also be pin boards set up for basic information collection (age, gender, etc.) at these Key Areas 

to gauge the use of the events.  This is because not all people may complete questionnaires, and may just 

be attending to gain understanding what is happening and only responding if they have a concern or 

problem.  

 

Involvement of City of London staff 

City of London staff will be briefed on the project and the non-statutory process.  This will enable selected 

staff to provide additional support at the Heath drop-ins and at the walks at key areas.  A key benefit will be 

that, on a more ad-hoc basis, staff will then be able to provide informed, spontaneous assistance to the 

public and direct Heath users to the planned information and feedback opportunities described above. 
 

Off site methods 

Stalls at strategic public locations 

To be carried out by Resources for Change in collaboration with City and Atkins staff within the area 

potentially:  

• The downstream community 

• Living within vicinity of pond chain areas 

• Adjacent to transport hubs e.g. over-ground stations 

 

The primary purpose of the stalls would be to provide information on the 

ponds project including its purpose and rationale.  Feedback would also be 

possible via the stalls.  The stalls would comprise: 

• Information boards summarising the project timeline and options 

considered and their pros and cons 

• Map of the site 

• A more detailed summary (with images) of the preferred option(s) on a 

handout for people to take away 

Page 266



 

Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk)  28.10.13   DISCUSSION – NON-STATUTORY PUBLIC PROCESS PLAN 

5 

 

• Questionnaires to give feedback on the options for people to fill in or take away  

• A post box for questionnaires to be returned 

• Postcards for people to take away which signpost where further information and feedback 

opportunities can be accessed 

• Information collection pin boards to gain a sample of visitor numbers and their profiles 

• Pin boards for feedback on people’s preferred options  

 

Consultation Support Materials 
We propose to develop the following consultation components to support the above activities and enable 

the public to be informed and to comment: 

Questionnaire  

The consultation questionnaire would be available online and also as a paper take-away from consultation 

stalls, the Parliament Hill and caravan drop-ins and guided walks.  This would provide an introductory 

summary and links to the web based information.     

Postcard 

Primarily a simple postcard with a set of visual images of the ponds on the front (possibly showing the 

ponds at a number of periods in history plus the proposed options) could be used as an information giving 

tool.  The postcards would then have simple summary on the back, locations for further information and 

link to the website information and an on-line questionnaire. 

 

As well as being accessed at the Parliament Hill & caravan drop-ins, the guided walks, the site information 

points, and the consultation stalls as described above, the postcard should be made widely available 

around the Heath (café, swimming ponds).  They could also be distributed in cafes and other venues with 

the potentially affected areas (local vicinity of the works or potential areas affected by dam failure). 

 

Online information 

Information is already available on the City of London website.  However, its location is not immediately 

obvious and so a clear hyperlink is required via the other information-giving materials. 

 

Record Keeping 
Responses will all be kept anonymous (and we will highlight this approach in the questionnaire).  All of the 

consultation methods could request people’s contact details should they wish to be kept informed and this 

information would be collated separately in order to be made available to the City of London.  Analysis may 

be undertaken with regards to respondents’ post codes (the first part and first digit of the second part). 

 

A full final report will be produced to inform the City of London and Atkins so that they can take account of 

public feedback in their decision-making and final chosen option.   A two-sided summary report with visuals 

should also be produced for wider public circulation. 

 

Feedback Loop 
In addition to the above, we would expect the City of London provide some kind of report-back on the 

feedback that they have received from the consultation via the above reporting and to share this publicly.   

This ‘feedback loop’ would for example reflect on and address the key findings reported from the 

consultation and state how Atkins/City of London had been able to incorporate them (or not) in the next 

stages of decision-making.  At the same time information should also be provided on what the next steps 

are for the project, including any future consultation opportunities for the public.  This information as well 

as being posted on the City’s website could also be circulated to those stakeholders who have provided 

their contact details via the consultation. 

Page 267



 

Resources for Change (www.r4c.org.uk)  28.10.13   DISCUSSION – NON-STATUTORY PUBLIC PROCESS PLAN 

6 

 

Publicity 
Work will be required around the advertising and publicity of the public process such as local media, leaflet 

drops and posters around the Heath for the launch of the non-statutory consultation process, which will be 

undertaken by the City of London with additional advice from Resources for Change.  This will include the 

announcement of the drop-ins and site information, availability of online questionnaire and postcards; 

specific dates for activities such as the guided walks at key areas, and stalls in public locations. 

 

Page 268



Agenda Item 11

Page 269

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 270

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	3a Draft Minutes of the Hampstead Heath Consultative Committee meeting dated 12 November 2013
	5 Terms of Reference
	HHHWQP Terms of Reference 2013-14

	6 Hampstead Heath Ponds Project - Preferred Options Report and Non-Statutory Consultation
	Appendix 1 - Preferred Options Report Volume 1
	Appendix 2 - Comments and Answers on Shortlist Options Report
	Appendix 3 - Log of all Questions and Responses Relating to the Ponds Project to Date
	Appendix 4 - Notes of the Ponds Project Stakeholder Group Meeting 21 October 2013
	Appendix 5 - Hampstead Heath Ponds Project Joint Written Statement
	Appendix 6 - HHPP Strategic Landscape Architect Report
	Appendix 7 - Consultation and Information Giving Methodology

	11 Non-Public Minutes

